
UMC Governing Board Meeting
Wednesday, February 28, 2024 2:00 pm

Delta Point Building - Emerald Conference Room - 1st Floor

Las Vegas, NV



 

1 

 AGENDA 
 

University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 
GOVERNING BOARD 

February 28, 2024  2:00 p.m. 
901 Rancho Lane, Las Vegas, Nevada 

Delta Point Building, Emerald Conference Room (1st Floor) 
 

Notice is hereby given that a meeting of the UMC Governing Board has been called and will be 
held on Wednesday, February 28, 2024, commencing at 2:00 p.m. at the location listed above 
to consider the following: 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
SECTION 1.  OPENING CEREMONIES 

 

CALL TO ORDER 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

INVOCATION 
 

 

1. Public Comment. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT.  This is a period devoted to comments by the general public about 
items on this agenda.  If you wish to speak to the Board about items within its 
jurisdiction but not appearing on this agenda, you must wait until the “Comments by the 
General Public” period listed at the end of this agenda.  Comments will be limited to 
three minutes.  Please step up to the speaker's podium, clearly state your name and 
address, and please spell your last name for the record.  If any member of the Board 
wishes to extend the length of a presentation, this will be done by the Chair or the Board 
by majority vote. 
 

2. Approval of Minutes of the meeting of the UMC Governing Board held on January 31, 
2024. (Available at University Medical Center, Administrative Office) (For possible 
action)  
 

3. Approval of Agenda. (For possible action) 

 
This meeting has been properly noticed and posted online at University Medical Center of Southern 
Nevada’s website http://www.umcsn.com and at Nevada Public Notice at https://notice.nv.gov/, and 
University Medical Center 1800 W. Charleston Blvd. Las Vegas, NV (Principal Office) 
 
 

 
• The main agenda is available on University Medical Center of Southern Nevada’s website http://www.umcsn.com,  For 

copies of agenda items and supporting back-up materials, please contact Stephanie Ceccarelli, Governing Board Secretary, 
at (702) 765-7949.  The Governing Board may combine two or more agenda items for consideration. 

• Items on the agenda may be taken out of order. 
• The Governing Board may remove an item from the agenda or delay discussion relating to an item at any time. 
• Consent Agenda - All matters in this sub-category are considered by the Governing Board to be routine and may be acted 

upon in one motion.  Most agenda items are phrased for a positive action.  However, the Governing Board may take other 
actions such as hold, table, amend, etc. 

• Consent Agenda items are routine and can be taken in one motion unless a Governing Board member requests that an item 
be taken separately.  For all items left on the Consent Agenda, the action taken will be staff's recommendation as indicated 
on the item.   

• Items taken separately from the Consent Agenda by Governing Board members at the meeting will be heard in order.  

Page 2 of 853

http://www.umcsn.com/
https://notice.nv.gov/
http://www.umcsn.com/


 

2 

SECTION 2:  CONSENT ITEMS 
 
4. Approve the February 2024 Medical and Dental Staff Credentialing Activities for 

University Medical Center of Southern Nevada (UMC) as authorized by the Medical 
Executive Committee (MEC) on February 27, 2024; or take action as deemed 
appropriate. (For possible action) 
 

5. Approve the UMC Policy and Procedures Committee’s activities of December 6, 2023 
and January 3, 2024, including the recommended creation, revision, and/or retirement of 
UMC policies and procedures; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible 
action) 
 

6. Approve the UMC Contract Evaluations as recommended by the UMC Clinical Quality 
and Professional Affairs Committee; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible 
action) 

 
7. Review and recommend for approval by the Board of Hospital Trustees for University 

Medical Center of Southern Nevada; the proposed amendments to the UMC Medical 
and Dental Staff Bylaws and Rules & Regulations; as approved and recommended by 
the Medical Executive Committee on November 28, 2023; or take any action deemed 
appropriate. (For possible action) 
 

8. Approve the Fifth Amendment to the CEO’s Employment Agreement as recommended 
the Human Resources and Executive Compensation Committee; or take action as 
deemed appropriate. (For possible action)  

 
9. Approve the new Remote Work Policy; and take action as deemed appropriate. (For 

possible action) 
 

10. Approve the HR Procedure for Disciplinary Hearing Process; or take action as deemed 
appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
11. Approve the revisions to various HR Policies and Procedures regarding references to 

Administrative Leave Days and Compensation Plans; or take action as deemed 
appropriate. (For possible action)   
 

12. Ratify the Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Agreement with Essential 
Associates Holdings, LLC for radiology clinical services; authorize the Chief Executive 
Officer to exercise renewal options within his delegation of authority; or take action as 
deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 
 

13. Award the RFP 2023-03, Comprehensive Background Checks Services to 
AccuSourceHR, Inc.; authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the Agreement for 
Comprehensive Background Checks; execute extensions and amendments; or take 
action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 
 

14. Award the RFP 2023-08, FMLA Administrative and Other Related Leave Services to 
AbsencePlus Administrators; authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the RFP No. 
2023-08 Service Agreement; execute extensions and amendments; or take action as 
deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 
 

15. Award Bid No. 2023-15, UMC Southern Highlands PC/QC Expansion, to Monument 
Construction, the lowest responsive and responsible bidder, contingent upon submission 
of the required bonds and insurance; authorize the Chief Executive Officer to execute 

Page 3 of 853



 

3 

change orders within his delegation of authority; or take action as deemed appropriate. 
(For possible action) 
 

16. Approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the Master Services 
Agreement with EV&A Architects for Architectural Design and Documents Service; 
authorize the Chief Executive Officer to execute extensions and amendments; or take 
action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
17. Approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the Agreement with Getinge 

USA Sales, LLC; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 
 

18. Approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the Agreement for Contingent 
Permanent Placement with Optimum Healthcare Solutions, LLC; authorize the Chief 
Executive Officer to execute extensions and amendments; or take action as deemed 
appropriate. (For possible action) 
 

19. Approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the Professional Services 
Agreement with Meena P. Vohra, M.D. dba Las Vegas Pediatric Critical Care 
Associates; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 
 

20. Approve the report on the emergency repairs of a chilled water line repair; or take action 
as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 
 

21. Approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the Service Agreement with 
Stericycle, Inc. for Waste Disposal Services; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For 
possible action) 
 

22. Approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the Agreement with T Evans 
RNFA, LLC for Cardiovascular Operating Room First Assist Services; authorize the 
Chief Executive Officer to execute extensions and amendments; or take action as 
deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 
 

23. Review and recommend for approval by the Board of Hospital Trustees for University 
Medical Center of Southern Nevada, the Agreements with ICU Medical Sales, Inc. and 
Smiths Medical ASD, Inc. for Infusion Pumps and related products; or take action as 
deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 
 

24. Approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the Agreement with Waxie 
Sanitary Supply for Sanitation Materials and Equipment; or take action as deemed 
appropriate. (For possible action) 
 

SECTION 3:  BUSINESS ITEMS 
 
25. Receive Ethics training from Ross E. Armstrong Esq., Executive Director of Nevada 

Commission on Ethics; and take any action deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 
 

26. Receive a report from the Governing Board Clinical Quality and Professional Affairs 
Committee; and take any action deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 
 

27. Receive a report from the Governing Board Human Resources and Executive 
Compensation Committee; and take any action deemed appropriate. (For possible 
action) 
 

Page 4 of 853



 

4 

28. Receive a report from the Governing Board Audit and Finance Committee; and take any 
action deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 
 

29. Receive the monthly financial report for January FY24; and take any action deemed 
appropriate. (For possible action) 
 

30. Receive an update from the Dean of the Kirk Kerkorian School of Medicine at UNLV; 
and take any action deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 
 

31. Receive an update from the Hospital CEO; and take any action deemed appropriate. 
(For possible action) 

 
SECTION 4:  EMERGING ISSUES 
 
32. Identify emerging issues to be addressed by staff or by the Board at future meetings; 

and direct staff accordingly. (For possible action) 
 

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC 
 
A period devoted to comments by the general public about matters relevant to the Board’s 
jurisdiction will be held.  No action may be taken on a matter not listed on the posted agenda.  
Comments will be limited to three minutes.  Please step up to the speaker’s podium, clearly 
state your name, and address and please spell your last name for the record. 
 

 
All comments by speakers should be relevant to the Board’s action and jurisdiction. 
 

 
 UMCSN ADMINISTRATION KEEPS THE OFFICIAL RECORD OF ALL PROCEEDINGS OF UMCSN GOVERNING 

BOARD.  IN ORDER TO MAINTAIN A COMPLETE AND ACCURATE RECORD OF ALL PROCEEDINGS, ANY 
PHOTOGRAPH, MAP, CHART, OR ANY OTHER DOCUMENT USED IN ANY PRESENTATION TO THE BOARD 
SHOULD BE SUBMITTED TO UMCSN ADMINISTRATION.  IF MATERIALS ARE TO BE DISTRIBUTED TO THE 
BOARD, PLEASE PROVIDE SUFFICIENT COPIES FOR DISTRIBUTION TO UMCSN ADMINISTRATION. 

THE BOARD MEETING ROOM IS ACCESSIBLE TO INDIVIDUALS WITH DISABILITIES.  WITH TWENTY-FOUR (24) 
HOUR ADVANCE REQUEST, A SIGN LANGUAGE INTERPRETER MAY BE MADE AVAILABLE (PHONE: 702-765-
7949). 

Page 5 of 853



University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 
Governing Board Meeting 
January 31, 2024 
______________________________________________________________________ 
Emerald Conference Room 
Delta Point Building (1st Floor) 
901 Rancho Lane 
Las Vegas, Clark County, Nevada 
Wednesday, January 31, 2024 
2:00 PM. 
 
The University Medical Center Governing Board met in regular session, at the location and date 
above, at the hour of 2:00 PM.  The meeting was called to order at the hour of 2:03 PM by Chair 
O’Reilly. The following members were present, which constituted a quorum of the members 
thereof: 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Board Members: 
 

Present: 
John O’Reilly, Chair 
Donald Mackay, M.D., Vice-Chair  

 Laura Lopez-Hobbs 
Robyn Caspersen  
Mary Lynn Palenik  
Harry Hagerty 

  Renee Franklin 
Chris Haase (WebEx) 

 Jeff Ellis (via WebEx) 
   
Ex-Officio Members: 
 
 Present: 

Dr. Meena Vohra, Chief of Staff  
 
Absent:  
Steve Weitman, Ex-Officio (Excused) 
Dr. Marc Kahn, Dean of Kirk Kerkorian SOM at UNLV  

 
 Others Present: 

Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer 
Tony Marinello, Chief Operating Officer 
Jennifer Wakem, Chief Financial Officer 
Maria Sexton, Chief Information Officer 
Susan Pitz, General Counsel 
Stephanie Ceccarelli, Governing Board Secretary 

  
 
 
 
 

Page 6 of 853



UMC Governing Board 
January 31, 2024  Page 2 of 12 
 
SECTION 1.  OPENING CEREMONIES 
 
 CALL TO ORDER 
 
 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 INVOCATION 
 
ITEM NO. 1 PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

Chair O’Reilly asked if there were any persons present in the audience wishing to 
be heard on any item on this agenda. 
 
Speakers: None 

 
ITEM NO. 2 Approval of Minutes of the meeting of the UMC Governing Board held on 

December 13, 2023. (Available at University Medical Center, Administrative 
Office) (For possible action)  

 
FINAL ACTION: 
A motion was made by Member Mackay that the agenda be approved as 
recommended.  Motion carried by unanimous vote.  

 
ITEM NO. 3 Approval of Agenda (For possible action) 
 

FINAL ACTION:  
A motion was made by Member Franklin that the agenda be approved as 
presented.  Motion carried by unanimous vote.  

 
SECTION 2: CONSENT ITEMS 
 
ITEM NO. 4 Approve the December 2023 and January 2024  Medical and Dental Staff 

Credentialing Activities for University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 
(UMC) as authorized by the Medical Executive Committee (MEC) on 
December 26, 2023 and January 23, 2024; and take action as deemed 
appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- December Credentialing Activities 
- January Credentialing Activities 
 

ITEM NO. 5 Approve the revisions to the Physician & Non-Physician Provider 
Traditional Compensation Plan; and take action as deemed appropriate. 
(For possible action)  

 
DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- Physician/Non-Physician Provider Traditional Compensation Plan 

 
ITEM NO. 6  Approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the Amendment 

One to Facility Agreement with Airgas USA, LLC for supply of cylinder 
products and other related equipment; authorize the Chief Executive 

Page 7 of 853



UMC Governing Board 
January 31, 2024  Page 3 of 12 
 

Officer to exercise any extension options; or take action as deemed 
appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
  DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  

- Amendment One – Redacted 
- Disclosure of Ownership 

 
ITEM NO. 7  Approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the Amendment 

Two to Services Agreement with Certiphi Screening Inc. for Comprehensive 
Background Check Services; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For 
possible action) 

 
DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- Amendment Two – Partially Redacted 
- Disclosure of Ownership 

 
ITEM NO. 8 Ratify the Amendment #2 to Preferred Provider Agreements with Culinary 

Health Fund Administrative Services, LLC for Managed Care Services; or 
take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- Preferred Provider Agreement – Amendment Two 
- Disclosure of Ownership 

 
ITEM NO. 9 Approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the Amendment 

No. 2 (Add Product, Delete Product, Price Change and Renewal 
Amendment) to Master Customer Agreement with Experian Health, Inc. for 
revenue cycle software solutions; authorize the Chief Executive Officer to 
execute future amendments within his yearly delegation of authority; or 
take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- Master Customer Agreement – Amendment Two 

 
ITEM NO. 10 Approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the Client 

Agreement with FocusOne Solutions, LLC for Staffing Services; authorize 
the Chief Executive Officer to execute the extension option and future 
amendments; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- Staffing Client Agreement – Redacted 
- Disclosure of Ownership 

 
ITEM NO. 11 Approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the Permanent 

Placement Agreement with Ocean Healthcare Solutions LLC; authorize the 
Chief Executive Officer to execute extensions and amendments; or take 
action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- Ocean Perm Placement Agreement 
- Disclosure of Ownership 

Page 8 of 853



UMC Governing Board 
January 31, 2024  Page 4 of 12 
 
ITEM NO. 12  Accept a report on the emergency repair of a failed steam pipe; or take 

action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 
 

DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- Emergency Repair Proposal  

 
ITEM NO. 13  Award Bid No. 2023-14, UMC Orthopedic Clinic Refresh Phase 2, to SAVI 

Construction, the lowest responsive and responsible bidder; authorize the 
Chief Executive Officer to exercise any Change Orders within his 
delegation of authority; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible 
action) 

 
DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- SAVI Construction Agreement 
- Disclosure of Ownership 

 
ITEM NO. 14 Approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the Second 

Amendment to RFP 2018-10 Service Agreement with R&R Partners, Inc. for 
Federal and State Advocacy Service; or take action as deemed appropriate. 
(For possible action) 

 
DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- Service Agreement – Amendment Two 
- Disclosure of Ownership 

 
ITEM NO. 15  Review and recommend for approval by the Board of Hospital Trustees for 

University Medical Center of Southern Nevada, the Agreement for 
Transplant Services with Nevada Donor Network, Inc.; or take action as 
deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- Agreement for Transplant Services 
- Disclosure of Ownership 

 
ITEM NO. 16  Review and recommend for approval by the Board of Hospital Trustees for 

University Medical Center of Southern Nevada, the Agreement for 
Histocompatibility Testing Services with Nevada Donor Network, Inc.; or 
take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- Lab Agreement 
- Disclosure of Ownership 

 
 FINAL ACTION:  

 
A motion was made by Member Mackay that Consent Items 4-16 be approved as 
presented.  Motion carried by unanimous vote.  
 

 
 
 

Page 9 of 853



UMC Governing Board 
January 31, 2024  Page 5 of 12 
 
SECTION 3: BUSINESS ITEMS 
 

At this time, Chairman O’Reilly pulled Item No. 26 out of sequence to be 
heard at this time. 
 

ITEM NO. 26 Accept the appointment of Bill Noonan to serve on the Governing Board, as 
well as the Clinical Quality and Professional Affairs Committee, as an Ex-
Officio member; and direct staff accordingly. (For possible action) 

 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Chairman O’Reilly welcomed Bill Noonan to the appointment as an Ex-Officio 
member of the Governing Board. 

Mr. Noonan was formerly City Manager and was recognized as City Manager of 
the Year for the City of Las Vegas. He has been very involved in many 
leadership roles and projects throughout the city that have shaped and benefited 
the community.  

The agenda item was amended to remove the Committee Appointment, which 
will be decided at a later time. 

FINAL ACTION:  
  

  At this time the Board returned to discuss Item 17. 
 
ITEM NO. 17  Receive an update from Maria Sexton, UMC Chief Information Officer, 

regarding Epic User Group project updates; and take any action deemed 
appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
DISCUSSION:  

Maria Sexton provided a brief update on the go-live date of the transfer center. The 
anticipated date was delayed due to additional optimization and training that is 
scheduled. The new anticipated date is in February. 
 
Ms. Sexton continued her discussion regarding the Epic Payer Platform. This 
platform is a bi-directional exchange between payers and providers. This will 
reduce costs and administrative complexities. This is an initiative that the finance 
team is working with IT.  
 
The many benefits of this platform to UMC includes improvement of authorization 
turnaround times, reduce denials, and creates efficiencies in registration and bill 
payments, as well as improve clinical outcomes and quality scores. The success 
of the platform requires payer involvement and participation.  
 
There are currently 11 payers that are participating in this program. UMC is 
focusing on Anthem BlueCross BlueShield, United Healthcare Optum and Aetna. 
There are 8 additional payers that may be beneficial to UMC and 5 others that are 
considering joining the platform with Epic. 
 

Page 10 of 853



UMC Governing Board 
January 31, 2024  Page 6 of 12 
 

UMC has anticipated a go-live date in mid-March with Anthem BCBS products. 
The team will continue to provide future updates to the Board. 
 
There was continued discussion regarding the cost savings analysis of the 
platform. 
 
Member Franklin shared her experience with using this type of system. 
 
Member Ellis asked if this is similar with the Electronic Medical Record initiatives 
or is this specific between payer and providers. Ms. Sexton responded that this is 
not the same as the Healthie Nevada organization, but it is a great resource for 
our providers. She added that the registration with HIE has increased from 20 to 
over 400. 

FINAL ACTION:  
None 
 

ITEM NO. 18 Review and discuss the potential topics to include on the Governing Board  
   2024 Action Plan calendar; and take any action deemed appropriate. (For  
   possible action)  
    

DISCUSSION:  

Chair O’Reilly thanked all of the Board members for their participation in the 
Governing Board survey. He highlighted the purpose of the survey is to use the 
information as an action plan for the year. The comments and suggestions will be 
a part of the agenda going forward.  
 
The comments and suggestions are highlighted are as follows: 
 

• Focus on the future of UMC: plant and equipment, clinical trials, 
regional best areas of focus 

• Academic Health Center and quality of healthcare 
• Additional focus with Trustees; joint meeting and regular interactions 
• Strategy and risk analysis 
• GMEs and improve quality of service 
• UMC’s place in the Medical District  and ongoing relationship with 

UNLV  
• Exploration into AI to streamline UMC processes 
• Board and Committee Chairs focus on succession planning 

Chair O’Reilly stated that priorities of the Board should be shared, as it provides 
guidance throughout the year. 

FINAL ACTION:  
None 

 

Page 11 of 853



UMC Governing Board 
January 31, 2024  Page 7 of 12 
 
ITEM NO. 19  Receive a report from the Governing Board Human Resources and 

Executive Compensation Committee; and take any action deemed 
appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  

  None 
 
DISCUSSION:  

Member Ellis provided a report on the meeting held on Monday, January 22, 
2024 at 2:00 pm. There was a quorum in attendance. There was no public 
comment. The minutes and the agenda were both approved. 
 
The CHRO updates highlighted the start of new SEIU negotiations, performance 
management system upgrades and new vendors for FMLA and background 
checks. There was also a review of the CEO goals.  
 
Next, the Committee received an update on employee hiring and staff turnover. 
The percentage of staff turnover includes per diem employees. The overall 
turnover rate in total is less than 4% and new hires outpace the terminations. 
 
There was a discussion of the demographics of UMC employees. Statistics 
surrounding race, ethnicity and gender breakdown was provided, as well as age 
and years of service. Approximately 55% of employees have less than 5 years of 
service. It was noted that there have been more hires than terminations.  
 
Physician/Non-Physician Compensation Plan also had some revisions that were 
discussed.  
 
Emerging issues were discussed and after last call for public comment, the 
meeting was adjourned. 
 
FINAL ACTION:  
None 

 
ITEM NO. 20 Receive an update a report from the Governing Board Audit and Finance 

Committee; and take any action deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 
 

DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
  None  

 
DISCUSSION:  

Member Caspersen provided a report on the meeting which was held on 
Wednesday, January 24, 2024 at 2:00 pm. There was a quorum in attendance. 
There was no public comment and minutes and the agenda were both approved 
unanimously.   
 
The Committee received a report regarding financial results from the months of 
November and December FY24, as well as year to date financials, which 

Page 12 of 853



UMC Governing Board 
January 31, 2024  Page 8 of 12 
 

included trended stats and data. A number of items were discussed to address 
below budget results. Anesthesia and Radiology are on an employment model, 
therefore there has be an impact causing below budget results. Outstanding 
supplemental payments were received of approximately $140 million. There is 50 
million in back payments still to be received.  
 
Next the status of the FY23 Performance Goals were reviewed. 
  
The business items were reviewed and approved by the Committee during the 
meeting. All of the contracts that were approved during the meeting are a part of 
today’s consent agenda.  
 
Emerging issues were discussed, there was no public comment and the meeting 
adjourned at 3:16 PM. 

FINAL ACTION:  
None 
 

ITEM NO. 21 Receive the monthly financial report for November and December FY24; 
and take any action deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  

  November and December FY23 Financials 
 
DISCUSSION:  

Ms. Wakem provided a summary of the monthly financial reports for November 
and December FY2023. 
 
The key indicators for November showed admission 8% below budget. The 
AADC was 566 and average length of stay was 5.75 days. Overall acuity was 
1.80 and Medicare CMI was 2.04. Inpatient surgeries were 5% below budget and 
outpatient surgeries were 32% above budget. There were 13 transplant cases.  
 
ER visits were below budget 11%.  Conversion rate was 22%. Quick cares and 
primary cares were below budget market wide. Telehealth had 633 visits for the 
month. Orthopedic Clinic volumes was 40% below budget. Deliveries were 13% 
below budget.  

The income statement for the month showed operating revenue down $5.4 
million and operating expenses were $3 million above budget. Total income from 
ops was $3.7 million on a budget of $5.6 million, a loss of $1.9 million. It was 
suggested to review the performance of Ortho and Telehealth and apply that to 
other service lines. 
 
Key indicators for December showed that admissions were down 8%. The AADC 
was 584, length of stay was up to 6.55. Overall hospital acuity was 1.92 and 
Medicare CMI was 2.06. Inpatient surgeries were below budget 5.6% and 
outpatient surgeries were up 28%. There were 15 transplants. ER visits were 
approximately 9.5% below budget, but the conversion rate was 22%.  

Page 13 of 853



UMC Governing Board 
January 31, 2024  Page 9 of 12 
 

 
Quick cares were down less than 2% and primary cares were down 30%. 
Telehealth visits were at 785 for December, outpatient orthopedic clinic visits 
were down 36% and deliveries were above budget 8%. 

The income statement for the month showed net revenue below budget $3.1 
million and operating expenses were $2.2 million above budget. Total income 
from ops showed earnings of $675K, $4.8 million below budget, primarily due to 
the challenges associated with radiology. Ms. Wakem next reviewed the year to 
date income statement.  
 
Salaries, wages and benefits, contract labor showed a $1.4 million variance due 
to radiology. All other expenses were $2.2 over budget due to supplies and 
transplants. Purchased services is about $578K over budget. 

FINAL ACTION:  

None 
 

ITEM NO. 22 Receive an update on the Kirk Kerkorian School of Medicine at UNLV; and 
take any action deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  

  None  
 
DISCUSSION:  

The Dean was not present for today’s meeting. There was no report. 
 
FINAL ACTION:  
None 
 

ITEM NO. 23 Receive an update from the Hospital CEO; and take any action deemed 
appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  

  CEO Update  
 
DISCUSSION:  

Mason Van Houweling, UMC CEO provided the following updates: 

• Radiology Update – there are approximately 20 vacancies. 5 Interventional 
Radiologists have been hired, 1 hire is pending and there have been 2 
Diagnostic Radiologist hires and 1 pending. UMC will also be hiring physician 
assistants.  

• Liver transplant with Nevada Donor Network – Transplant surgeon has been 
hired. Goal is to do a liver transplant by the 1st of next year.  

• DNV Stroke Certification and American Heart Association – UMC was 
recognized as Gold Plus Elite and confident we will be a Comprehensive 
Stroke Center 

Page 14 of 853



UMC Governing Board 
January 31, 2024  Page 10 of 12 
 

• OR leaders – A new Chief of Anesthesia and surgeon to help with 
efficiencies, utilization and block times. The Board is encouraged to schedule 
a tour of the OR. 

• ReVITALlize update – 45% completed. Trauma opens in February and the 
parking lot will be done on the 24th. The round building will be done in March.  

• Trauma Resus Refresh - the 2231 refresh has been approved.  
• Ortho and Spine Clinic update was provided 
• Nellis relocation – before and after images were shown of the location. 
• SEIU 1107 at Sunrise – There are 3 other County departments that are also 

in negotiations. The SEIU expanded at Sunrise and is now inclusive of 
ancillary departments. 

• UMC Lions Burn Care Center Open House February 8 at 10am. Please join. 
• The Community brochure was provided as informational. 

 
FINAL ACTION:  
None 
 

ITEM NO. 24 Review for approval the amendment to the Governing Board Bylaws; and 
take any action deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
DISCUSSION: 
 
Ms. Pitz stated that before the Board is a proposed amendment to the Bylaws in 
which the officers provisions are to be made consistent to the term provisions of 
the Governing Board members. 
 
FINAL ACTION:  
 
A motion was made by Member Mackay that the UMC Governing Board Bylaws 
governance documents be approved as recommended.  Motion carried by 
unanimous vote.  

 
ITEM NO. 25 Elect a Chair and Vice Chair to the Governing Board to serve a two-year 

term ending January 2026; and take any action deemed appropriate. (For 
possible action) 

 
DISCUSSION:  
 
Member Palenik nominated John O’Reilly as Chair of the Board and nominated 
Dr. Donald Mackay as Vice-Chair of the Board. 
 
Chair O’Reilly indicated that he and Dr. Mackay would be honored to continue to 
serve the two-year term. Dr. Mackay added that it has been a privilege and a 
pleasure to serve.  
 
FINAL ACTION:  
 
Member Palenik made two motions for Chair O’Reilly and Dr. Mackay to continue 
for another two-year term in their capacities as Chair and Vice-Chair, 
respectively. Both motions carried by unanimous vote, with noted abstentions 
below.  

Page 15 of 853



UMC Governing Board 
January 31, 2024  Page 11 of 12 
 

 
Chair O’Reilly and Dr. Mackay abstained from voting on their respective 
nominations. 
 

SECTION 4: EMERGING ISSUES 
 
ITEM NO. 27 Identify emerging issues to be addressed by staff or by the Board at future 

meetings; and direct staff accordingly. (For possible action) 
 

DISCUSSION:  

1. Potential impact of AI (Artificial Intelligence) and how it will affect the hospital 
as well as how Epic is involved. Dr. Lippmann commented that an AI 
demonstration will be taking place at the hospital in the near future. There 
was continued discussion on how AI has affected business and IT services. 

2. Possible from Judy Faulkner.  

3. Ms. Pitz provided an update on the annual check list.  The checklist is based 
on the Bylaws, governance requirements and training and education. The 
checklist will also track committee responsibilities. 

FINAL ACTION:  
None 
 

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC: 
 
Comments from the general public were called. No such comments were heard. 
 
A motion was made by Member Mackay to go into closed session pursuant to 
NRS 241.015(3)(b)(2). 

 
There being no further business to come before the Board at this time, at the 
hour of 3:12 PM, Chair O’Reilly adjourned the meeting, and the Board recessed 
to go into closed session. 
 

SECTION 5: CLOSED SESSION 
 

ITEM NO. 28 Go into closed session, pursuant to NRS 241.015(3)(b)(2), to receive 
information from UMC’s Office of General Counsel regarding potential or 
existing litigation involving a matter over which the Board has supervision, 
control, jurisdiction or advisory power, and to deliberate toward a decision 
on the matter; and direct staff accordingly.  
 
The meeting was reconvened in closed session at 3:14 PM. 
 
At the hour of 3:33 PM, the closed session on the above topic ended. 
 
FINAL ACTION TAKEN:  
 
None 
 

Page 16 of 853



UMC Governing Board 
January 31, 2024  Page 12 of 12 
 

There being no further business to come before the Board at this time, at the 
hour of 3:33 PM.  Chair O’Reilly adjourned the meeting.     
  

 
 
APPROVED:   
 
Minutes Prepared by: Stephanie Ceccarelli, Board Secretary 
 
 
 

Page 17 of 853



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD 

AGENDA ITEM 

Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling 

Recommendation: 

That the Governing Board approve the February Medical and Dental Staff 
Credentialing Activities for University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 
(UMC) as authorized by the Medical Executive Committee (MEC) on 
February 27, 2024; and take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible 
action) 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
None 

 

BACKGROUND: 
 

As per Medical Staff Bylaws, Credentialing actions will be approved by the Medical Executive 
Committee (MEC) and submitted to the Governing Board monthly.  
 
This action grants practitioners and Advanced Practice Professionals the authority to render care 
within UMC.  
 
At the February 15, 2024 meetings, these activities were reviewed by the Credentials Committee 
and recommended for approval by the Medical Executive Committee.  
 
The MEC reviewed and approved these credentialing activities at the February 27, 2024 meetings. 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cleared for Agenda 
February 28, 2024 
 
      Agenda Item # 

     4 

Page 18 of 853



Page 19 of 853



Page 20 of 853



Page 21 of 853



Page 22 of 853



Page 23 of 853



Page 24 of 853



Page 25 of 853



Page 26 of 853



Page 27 of 853



Page 28 of 853



Page 29 of 853



Page 30 of 853



Page 31 of 853



Page 32 of 853



Page 33 of 853



Page 34 of 853



Page 35 of 853



Page 36 of 853



Page 37 of 853



Page 38 of 853



Page 39 of 853



Page 40 of 853



Page 41 of 853



Page 42 of 853



Page 43 of 853



Page 44 of 853



Page 45 of 853



Page 46 of 853



Page 47 of 853



Page 48 of 853



Page 49 of 853



Page 50 of 853



Page 51 of 853



Page 52 of 853



Page 53 of 853



Page 54 of 853



Page 55 of 853



Page 56 of 853



Page 57 of 853



Page 58 of 853



Page 59 of 853



Page 60 of 853



Page 61 of 853



Page 62 of 853



Page 63 of 853



Page 64 of 853



Page 65 of 853



Page 66 of 853



Page 67 of 853



Page 68 of 853



Page 69 of 853



Page 70 of 853



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
February 28, 2024 

 
 

 

Agenda Item #  

5 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Issue:            UMC Policies and Procedures   

 
Back-up: 
      

 
Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer 
 

 
Clerk Ref. # 
      

 
Recommendation: 
 
That the UMC Governing Board approve the UMC Policy and Procedures Committee’s 
activities of December 6, 2023 and January 3, 2024, including the recommended creation, 
revision, and/or retirement of UMC policies and procedures; and take action as deemed 
appropriate. (For possible action) 
 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
None 
 

BACKGROUND: 
 
At their meeting held on February 5, 2023, the Clinical Quality and Professional Affairs Committee 
reviewed and approved the UMC Policies and Procedures Committee’s activities of December 6, 
2023 and January 3, 2024, including the recommended creation, revision, and/or retirement of UMC 
policies and procedures and recommend for approval by the Governing Board. 
 

Page 71 of 853



 

 
NMU01062A 

December 6, 2023 Hospital Policy / Procedure Committee 
As part of our regular policy review, the attached policies have been reviewed and 
updated by necessary hospital leaders/experts in order to reflect current regulatory 
rules and industry standards.  A summary of the changes to each policy is included 
below.  
Total of 42 Approved, 0 Retired 

 

POLICY NAME NEW/ 
REVISED 

HPP 
COMMITTEE 
DECISION 

SUMMARY 

Influx of Infectious Patients Revised Approved as 
Submitted 

Updated AIIR Room and removed on 
duty administrator verbiage. Vetted 
by Director of Infection Prevention 
and Surgical Services, Medical 
Director Inpatient and Outpatient 
Infectious Disease Services. 

Cleaning, Disinfection, and 
Sterilization Revised Approved as 

Submitted 

Minimal changes updated high level 
disinfectants; placed in new format. 
Vetted by Director of Infection 
Prevention and 
Surgical Services, Medical Director 
Inpatient and Outpatient Infectious 
Disease Services. 

MRSA/ORSA Active Surveillance  Revised Approved as 
Submitted 

Epic name change to MRSA 
Surveillance Screening. Vetted by 
Director of Infection Prevention and 
Surgical Services, Medical 
Director Inpatient and Outpatient 
Infectious Disease Services. 

Non MQSA Equipment Usage Revised Approved as 
Submitted 

Removed # 6 Compression Checks 
will be performed according to 
regulations, no longer required. 
Vetted by Director of Imaging 
Services. 

Wellness Center-Human 
Immunodeficiency Virus (HIV) 
Screening Guidelines 

Revised Approved as 
Submitted 

Updated USPSTF to CDC 
recommendations for age of 
screening. Vetted by Wellness and 
Medical Director Infectious Diseases. 

Ambulatory Care 
Scanning/Importing Protocol Revised Approved as 

Submitted 

Transferred to new template. 
Updated title to include importing 
into the protocol and to align with 

Page 72 of 853



 

 
NMU01062A 

POLICY NAME NEW/ 
REVISED 

HPP 
COMMITTEE 
DECISION 

SUMMARY 

current process. Vetted by 
Ambulatory Care PAS Director. 

Late Patient Arrival New Approved as 
Submitted 

Memo set to guideline and 
transferred to new template. Vetted 
by Ambulatory Care PAS Director. 

PAT Pre-Anesthesia High Risk 
Patient Screening Protocol New Approved as 

Submitted 

New protocol. Vetted by Director of 
Surgical Services and Head of 
Anesthesia 
Department. 

Pre-Admission Testing and 
Preoperative Unit: Pre-
Anesthesia 

New Approved as 
Submitted 

New protocol. Vetted by Director 
Surgical Services, Director Pharmacy 
Services and Head of Anesthesia 
Department. 

Preoperative Type and Screen 
Testing Revised Approved as 

Submitted 

Added procedure to Head and Neck 
Category. Moved to new template. 
Removed information regarding 
specimen labeling. Updated 
references. Moved to new template. 
Vetted by Director of Peri-Operative 
Service, Blood Bank Supervisor and 
Director of Anesthesia. 

Department Inventories New Approved as 
Submitted 

New policy. Vetted by Director of 
Supply Chain Services and Controller. 

Inventory Management 
Philosophy New Approved as 

Submitted 
New policy. Vetted by Director of 
Supply Chain Services and Controller. 

Appropriate Workstation, Laptop, 
and Tablet Use Revised Approved as 

Submitted 

New policy template; Added Tablets 
to scope; Added verbiage regarding 
unauthorized use of equipment. 
Vetted by Chief Information Officer. 

Appropriate Telephone Use Revised Approved as 
Submitted 

New policy template; Added 
statement regarding red phones; 
Added statement regarding 
contacting IT for repair/ replacement 
of telephones. Vetted by Chief 
Information Officer. 

Page 73 of 853



 

 
NMU01062A 

POLICY NAME NEW/ 
REVISED 

HPP 
COMMITTEE 
DECISION 

SUMMARY 

Appropriate Copier, Printer, and 
Facsimile Use Revised Approved as 

Submitted 

Updated to new policy template. 
Scheduled review, no changes. 
Vetted by Chief Information Officer. 

Email Archive and Retention Revised Approved as 
Submitted 

Updated to new policy template, 
item 11 added. Vetted by Chief 
Information Officer. 

Progressive Mobility Guideline 
for the Adult Patient New Approved as 

Submitted 

Reviewed with Clinical Directors. 
Revision and modification of policy to 
include 6-Clicks and Progressive 
Mobility integration for Basic Mobility 
Screening process, language, and 
employment of mobility progressions 
using updated visual aid (see 
appendix). 

Recall of Hospital Sterilized 
Items New Approved as 

Submitted 
New policy. Vetted by Director of 
Peri-Operative Service and CNO. 

Biological Monitoring of Steam 
Sterilizers Revised Approved as 

Submitted 

Update to new format. Removal of 
Chemical Class 5 Integrator because 
we do not perform any “immediate 
use” sterilization. Vetted by Director 
of Peri-Operative Service and CNO. 

Receiving Instruments for 
Processing Revised Approved as 

Submitted 

Update to new format. Scheduled 
review, no changes. Vetted by 
Director of Peri-Operative Service 
and CNO. 

Shelf Life and Storage for Sterile 
Items Revised Approved as 

Submitted 

Updated to new format. Scheduled 
review, no changes. Vetted by 
Director of Peri-Operative Service 
and CNO. 

Perioperative Operations 
Governance New Approved as 

Submitted 
New policy. Vetted by Director of 
Peri-Operative Service and CNO. 

Operating Room Case Scheduling 
Guideline and Block Scheduling 
Management 

New Approved as 
Submitted 

New policy. Vetted by Director of 
Peri-Operative Service and CNO. 

Personal Use Items Revised Approved as 
Submitted 

Scheduled review, no changes. 
Updated to new policy format. 
Vetted by EOC Committee. 

Page 74 of 853



 

 
NMU01062A 

POLICY NAME NEW/ 
REVISED 

HPP 
COMMITTEE 
DECISION 

SUMMARY 

Occupational Therapy Assistant / 
Provisional Licensee Supervision Revised Approved as 

Submitted 

Several changes of wording and flow 
– no content changes. Vetted by 
Rehabilitation Services Manager and 
ACNO. 

Occupational Therapy 
Professional Conduct Revised Approved as 

Submitted 

Added the last two bullet points in 
the Ethical Service Delivery section to 
match the current focus and 
direction of the department’s 
initiatives. Vetted by Rehabilitation 
Services 
Manager and ACNO. 

Occupational Therapy Scope and 
Standards of Practice Revised Approved as 

Submitted 

Added the following sections - 
“UMC's Occupational Therapists and 
Therapist Assistants will focus all 
knowledge and efforts on improving 
their patients' independence with 
activities of daily living (ADLs) before 
addressing long-distance ambulation 
outside the patient's room.” - “All 
Occupational Therapy interventions 
provided at UMC must be “skilled” 
(require the skills of a licensed 
Occupational Therapist or 
Occupational Therapist Assistant) 
and medically necessary.” Removed 
the following text - “The 
Occupational Therapy Department 
addresses occupational performance 
and their performance components” 
Vetted by Rehabilitation Services 
Manager and ACNO. 

Individualized Treatment Plan 
(Acute Care) Revised Approved as 

Submitted 

Format changes. Minimal verbiage 
changes to update the “Procedure” 
section to current standards of 
practice. Vetted by Rehabilitation 
Services Manager and ACNO. 

Orientation, Training, and 
Education (for New/Returning 
Rehabilitation Employees) 

Revised Approved as 
Submitted 

Transferred policy to new template. 
No changes. Vetted by Rehabilitation 
Services Manager and ACNO. 

Page 75 of 853



 

 
NMU01062A 

POLICY NAME NEW/ 
REVISED 

HPP 
COMMITTEE 
DECISION 

SUMMARY 

Rehabilitation Services 
Documentation of Progress Notes Revised Approved as 

Submitted 

The minimum requirements have 
been edited for flow and verbiage. 
No content changes 
Added the following text: - To 
facilitate interdisciplinary 
communication and patient 
throughput, the Rehab Therapists 
and Rehab Therapists Assistants are 
expected to enter at least 90% of 
their notes within 4 hours of the 
therapy intervention. - All notes must 
be entered within the same day as 
the intervention Vetted by 
Rehabilitation Services Manager and 
ACNO. 

Equipment Cleaning and Safety 
(Acute Care) Revised Approved as 

Submitted 

Scheduled review, no changes. 
Updated to new template. Vetted by 
Rehabilitation Services Manager and 
ACNO. 

Rehabilitation Services 
Equipment Safety Procedures Revised Approved as 

Submitted 

Added “If a staff member is 
uncomfortable or believes they lack 
the competence to use a piece of 
equipment for different reasons 
(orientation/training not completed, 
orientation/training completed a long 
time ago, etc.), it is the staff 
member's responsibility to find a 
different option for patient care and 
to notify the department's 
management team.” Vetted by 
Rehabilitation Services Manager and 
ACNO. 

Skills Inventory / Competency 
for Rehabilitation Services Staff Revised Approved as 

Submitted 

Scheduled review, no changes. 
Vetted by Rehabilitation Services 
Manager and ACNO. 

Patient-Controlled Epidural 
(Regional) Anesthesia/Analgesia 
for the Labor Patient 

New Approved as 
Submitted 

New policy. Vetted by Clinical 
Director Maternal Child Services, 
Pharmacy, Dr. Kirgan and Dr. Hu. 

Page 76 of 853



 

 
NMU01062A 

POLICY NAME NEW/ 
REVISED 

HPP 
COMMITTEE 
DECISION 

SUMMARY 

Medical and Neuroscience 
Surgical Intensive Care Unit 
(MICU/NSICU) Criteria for 
Triage, Admission and Discharge 

Revised Approved as 
Submitted 

Updated guideline with current 
template. Coincide verbiage with 
other ICU admission criteria for 
bipap. Vetted by Director of Critical 
Care Services, Dr. Modi and Dr. 
Honsberg. 

Guideline for Disposable Bedside 
Bronchoscopy in Critical Care 
Units 

Revised Approved as 
Submitted 

Update to current template and 
removal of LIP language. Vetted by 
Director of Critical Care Services and 
Director of Respiratory Services. 

No-Show/Out of Care Policy Revised Approved as 
Submitted 

Transferred to new template. 
Removed Ambulatory from 
ownership per PAS Director request. 
Updated to align with current 
process. Vetted by Ambulatory Care 
Clinical Director and 
Ambulatory/Wellness Clinical 
Manager. 

Transmission of Prescription by 
Facsimile Machine Revised Approved as 

Submitted 

Transferred to new template. 
Scheduled review, no changes. 
Vetted by Ambulatory Care Clinical 
Director. 

Ambulatory Care Staff 
Responsibilities and Education 
Records 

Revised Approved as 
Submitted 

Transferred to new template. 
Updated policy to include MA’s and 
aligned with current practice. Vetted 
by Ambulatory Care 
Clinical Director. 

Transition of Care Visits into UMC 
Primary Care New Approved with 

Revisions 
New Policy of Department 
Established. Vetted by Ambulatory 
Care Clinical Director. 

Privacy Precautions for Public 
Figure Patients Revised Approved as 

Submitted 
Routine review in accordance with 
schedule. Updated to new policy 
format. Vetted by Privacy Officer. 

Personal Representatives Revised Approved as 
Submitted 

Routine review in accordance with 
schedule. Updated to new Policy 
format. References reviewed. 
Reviewed with HIMD. 

 

Page 77 of 853



 

 
NMU01062A 

January 4, 2024 Hospital Policy / Procedure Committee 
As part of our regular policy review, the attached policies have been reviewed and 
updated by necessary hospital leaders/experts in order to reflect current regulatory 
rules and industry standards.  A summary of the changes to each policy is included 
below.  
Total of 10 Approved, 0 Retired 

 

POLICY NAME NEW/ 
REVISED 

HPP 
COMMITTEE 
DECISION 

SUMMARY 

Ryan White HIV/AIDS Program 
Management Revised Approved as 

Submitted 
Added language to include Program 
Income. Vetted by Finance and 
Ambulatory Care. 

Umbilical Arterial 
Catheters Revised Approved as 

Submitted 

Placed into new template. Typos 
were corrected. Added the Lippincott 
resources for further reference. 
Vetted by NICU, Pediatric 
Department and Dr. Francis Banfro. 

Umbilical Venous 
Catheters Revised Approved as 

Submitted 

Placed into new template, Corrected 
Typos and added the Lippincott 
resources for further reference. 
Vetted by NICU Clinical Manager, 
Pediatric Department and Dr. Francis 
Banfro.  

Authorization to Close 
Incomplete Medical Record New Approved as 

Submitted 

Policy being established to ensure 
appropriate closure of incomplete 
medical records is performed. Vetted 
by HIM and Chief Medical Officer. 

Administration of Blood and 
Blood Products Revised Approved as 

Submitted 

Added the following statement: Pre-
transfusion Vital Signs, as well as 
review of records of donor and 
recipient information verification 
must be performed in the presence 
of the patient before hanging and 
spiking the blood product for 
transfusion administration, under 
Administration section #19 Starting 
Transfusion. Vetted by Blood Bank 
Supervisor. 

Page 78 of 853



 

 
NMU01062A 

POLICY NAME NEW/ 
REVISED 

HPP 
COMMITTEE 
DECISION 

SUMMARY 

ABCDEF Bundle for Management 
of Ventilated/Critically Ill 
Patients in the ICU (Adults) 

Revised Approved as 
Submitted 

Updated bundle to include new 
mobility parameters. Incorporated 
attachments into body of guideline. 
Vetted by Critical Care Committee. 

Sentinel, Never, and Adverse 
Events; Serious Reportable 
Events (SRE) 

Revised Approved as 
Submitted 

Revised definition of suicide to 
expand from within 72 hours 
discharge to within 7 days to match 
TJC changes effective 1/2024. Vetted 
by CQPS. 

Emergency Drug Sheet, Pediatric 
Patient Revised Approved as 

Submitted 

Updated to new format; updated 
scope, added references. Vetted by 
Pediatric Department. 

Disaster Privileging of Licensed 
Practitioners Revised Approved as 

Submitted 

Updated language and format. 
Language updated per joint 
commission current terminology. 
Vetted by Medical Staff Department. 

2024 Quality Assurance and 
Performance Improvement 
Program Plan (QAPI) 

Revised Approved as 
Submitted 

Updated to align to annual 
organizational and Governing Board 
QAPI Priorities; Revised reporting 
schedule due to leadership changes. 
Vetted by Quality, Patient Safety, & 
Regulatory Officer. 

 

Page 79 of 853



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
February 28, 2024 

 
 

 

Agenda Item #  

6 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Issue:            UMC Contract Evaluations 

 
Back-up: 
      

 
Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer 
 

 
Clerk Ref. # 
      

 
Recommendation: 
 
That the UMC Governing Board approve the UMC Contract evaluations as 
recommended by the UMC Clinical Quality and Professional Affairs Committee; or take 
action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 
 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
None 
 

BACKGROUND: 
 
At their meeting held on February 5, 2023, the Clinical Quality and Professional Affairs Committee 
reviewed and approved the hospital contract evaluations and recommend for approval by the 
Governing Board. 
 

Page 80 of 853



Contract # Vendor Name Contract Description Start Date Termination Date Evaluation 
Received

Met Performance 
Standards Yes/No 

(Question 8)

Evaluator Comments

5997 College of Southern Nevada Renew Dental Contract  4/1/2020 2/28/2022 3/30/2023 Yes

5845 Neuropathy & Pain Center of 
Las Vegas

Renewal to Provide Outpatient Pain 
Mgmt Svcs to HIV Pt's

7/1/2020 6/30/2023 3/30/2023 Yes

5837 Advanced Audiology dba 
Heppler Audiology

Renew Contract for Audiology 8/1/2020 7/31/2023 3/30/2023 Yes

6658 Frank Lee, DO Radiology Services Renewal for Ryan 
White Patients

4/5/2021 6/30/2024 3/30/2023 Yes

5748 Desert West Surgery Outpatient Ambulatory Surgery 7/1/2020 6/30/2023 3/30/2023 Yes

6655 Tyler Christensen DDS Dental Consultant for Ryan White 
clients at the Wellness Center. 

6/1/2021 5/31/2024 5/19/2023 Yes

4639 Access to Healthcare Network Eligibility Services MOU for Ryan 
White Patients

3/5/2018 3/3/2023 3/30/2023 Yes

7332 College of Southern Nevada - 
Dental Faculty Practice 

Renewal

Renew Dental Contract 02/28/2022 02/28/2025 5/19/2023 Yes

7069 Dignity Health-St. Rose 
Dominican

Provide Medical Nutrition Therapy and 
the Fruit and Vegetable Prescription 

Program to UMC Wellness Center Ryan 
White Part A clients and UMC Healthy 

Living Institute clients at no charge.

03/21/2022 03/31/2027 11/30/2023 Yes

7864 Dr. Farabi - First Amendment 
Telemedicine - October 12, 

2022

This amendment permits Dr. Farabi to 
utilize Telemedicine with patients at 

Wellness Center

02/01/2020 01/31/2023 3/30/2023 Yes

6654 Laboratory Corporation of 
America

Ryan White - Clinical Laboratory 
Testing Services - Amendment 2

3/30/2021 4/30/2022 11/30/2023 Yes

5096 Aid for Aids of Nevada 
(AFAN)

HIV Support Services MOU for Ryan 
White Patients

10/16/2018 10/15/2023 3/30/2023 Yes

Page 81 of 853



5569 Alireza Farabi MD PC  Infectious Disease Care 2/1/2020 3/31/2023 5/19/2023 Yes

5930 Community Counseling 
Center

Renew Contract for Mental Health 
Services to HIV-AIDS Patients  

7/1/2020 6/30/2023 3/30/2023 Yes

6663 Enrique Lacayo M.D. Provide outpatient gastroenterology 
services to Ryan White Wellness Center 

clients

8/1/2021 7/31/2024 3/30/2023 No Minimum patient requirement 
not met

4640 Golden Rainbow Case Management Services MOU & 
BAA (RW)

2/28/2018 2/28/2023 3/30/2023 Yes

6653 Kerry Davis DDS Dental services for Ryan White clients 
at the Wellness Center

4/16/2021 4/30/2024 3/30/2023 Yes

6662 Kidney Specialists of 
Southern Nevada

Outpatient nephrology services for 
Wellness Center HIV/AIDS Ryan White 

clients.  Extension

8/1/2021 7/31/2022 5/19/2023 Yes

6654 Laboratory Corporation of 
America

Ryan White - Clinical Laboratory 
Testing Services

4/26/2021 4/29/2022 11/30/2023 Yes

5875 Meadows Retina Renew Contract for Outpatient Retina 
Services  

7/1/2020 6/30/2025 3/30/2023 Yes

Meadows Retina Psychiatric Services For RW patients 06/30/2023 3/30/2023 Yes

5874 Michelle Lisoskie M.D. Renew Agreement for Mental Health 
Services  for RW patients

7/1/2020 6/30/2023 11/30/2023 Yes

4556 Nevada Aids Research and 
Education Society

Case Management Services for Ryan 
White Patients

3/6/2018 3/6/2023 3/30/2023 Yes

6201 Nevada Heart & Vascular 
Center

Outpatient cardiology services to UMC 
Wellness Center Ryan White HIV/AIDS 

clients. 

8/1/2020 7/31/2023 3/30/2023 Yes

6659 Orr, Daniel II, DDS Provide oral surgery services to Ryan 
White Wellness Center clients.

7/1/2021 6/30/2024 5/19/2023 Yes

5846 PBS Anesthesia Outpatient Anesthesia Svcs for HIV Pt's 7/1/2020 6/30/2023 3/30/2023 No Minimum patient requirement 
not met

Page 82 of 853



7955 Professional Services 
Agreement between Southern 
Nevada Health District and 

University Medical Center of 
Southern Nevada

Amendment A03 to the Professional 
Services Agreement. The amendment 

deletes the 4th paragraph and it is 
replaces with new verbiage as well as 

Section 2 Incorporated Documents that 
was deleted and replaced with new 

verbiage. Section 3 Compensation is 
increased. Attachment A-A01 Scope of 
Work deleted and replaced. Attachment 
B-A02 payment is deleted and replaced 
with amendment B-A03. effective date 

is the date of last signature

10/05/2022 10/05/2022 11/30/2023 Yes

7632 SNHD - PSA Grant (2021) - 
Amendment A02 - 6.27.2022 

(7632)

This is an amendment to continue work 
for "year two" of the SNHD/Wellness 
Center Grant. Period-2/1/22-7/31/22.

Must be signed in blue ink per Grantor

02/01/2022 07/31/2022 11/30/2023 Yes

6660 Summerlin Dermatology Outpatient dermatology services to 
Ryan White Wellness Center clients

7/1/2021 6/30/2024 3/30/2023 No Minimum patient requirement 
not met

6665 Sunrise Hospital Provide outpatient retina services to 
Ryan White Wellness clients.

10/1/2021 9/30/2024 11/30/2023 Yes

5579 UNLV SOM - Ryan White Ryan White Services 2020 3/25/2020 3/27/2022 11/30/2023 Yes

7414 UNLV SOM - Ryan White 
Services 2022 - Agreement

Ryan White Services 2022
Multispecialty Endocrinology, 

Gastroenterology, Maternal and Child 
Fetal Medicine/Ob-Gyn, Neurology and 

Rheumatology

03/22/2022 11/30/2023 Yes

5850 Urology Specialists of Nevada Outpatient Urology Svcs to HIV Pt's 7/1/2020 6/30/2025 3/30/2023 No Minimum patient requirement 
not met

5851 Wairimu, Kathleen MD  Infectious Disease Svcs at Wellness 
Center for HIV Pt's

9/1/2020 8/31/2023 3/30/2023 Yes

6661 Wayne Dunetz MD Provide outpatient podiatry services to 
Ryan White Wellness clients.

8/1/2021 7/31/2024 3/30/2023 Yes

Page 83 of 853



6656 William F. Harvey OD Optometry services for Ryan White 
Wellness Center

7/1/2021 6/30/2024 5/19/2023 Yes

6606 / 6943 Alireza Farabi, MD Professional Services Agreement for 
Individual Physician Clinical Coverage - 
Infectious Disease and Infection Control

3/1/2021 2/29/2024 2/7/2023 Yes

6550 Amy Urban, MD Administrative Services Agreement - 
Medical Staff Credentials Committee 

Chair

1/1/2021 12/31/2023 2/7/2023 Yes

7446 Bruce Snyder, MD - 
Retinopathy of Prematurity 

2022

Provide on-call retinopathy of 
prematurity screenings and services to 
newborns at the NICU Department 7 

days each week.

03/20/2022 03/19/2025 2/7/2023 Yes

 6697 / 7600 C. Edward Yee, MD Professional Services Agreement for 
Individual Physician On-Call Coverage - 

Ophthalmology

6/1/2017 5/31/2022 2/7/2023 Yes

6475 Cardiovascular Surgery of 
Southern Nevada

Professional Services Agreement for 
Clinical Services - Cardiovascular and 

Thoracic Surgery

1/1/2021 12/31/2023; plus two, 
one-year options

2/7/2023 Yes

7250 / 8062 Children's Lung Specialists Professional Services Agreement for 
Medical Directorship Services - 

Pediatric Pulmonology

1/1/2022 12/31/2022; plus one 
year option

2/7/2023 Yes

4283 Compass Group USA, Inc. Clinical Nutrition Services RFP 1/1/2019 12/31/2023 2/7/2023 Yes

6055 / 6744 Darrick Neibaur, DO Professional Services Agreement for 
Individual Physician On-Call Coverage - 

Ophthalmology

6/1/2017 5/31/2022 2/7/2023 Yes Contract not renewed - No 
response to RFI.

6455 Desert Radiology Professional Services Agreement for 
Clinical Services - Radiology

12/1/2020 11/30/2023; auto renew 
for two additional one-

year periods

2/7/2023 Yes 9a. Delayed reads of images; 9e. 
Shortage of providers being 

worked on.
7096 / 7901 / 

8040
Duke Forage Anson 

Neurosurgical - Neurosurgery 
and Neuro Spine Surgery On-
Call Services 2022 (Amended 

and Restated)

Professional Services Agreeement for 
Neurological Surgery and Neurological 

Spine Surgery on-call coverage

09/01/2021 10/31/2025 2/7/2023 Yes

 6745 / 7743 Emil Stein, MD, FACS Professional Services Agreement for 
Individual Physician On-Call Coverage - 

Ophthalmology

6/1/2021 5/31/2025; plus two, one-
year options

2/7/2023 Yes

5595 / 6746 Ethan Wonchon Lin, MD Professional Services Agreement for 
Individual Physician On-Call Coverage - 

Ophthalmology

10/1/2019 5/31/2022 2/7/2023 Yes Contract expire, did not respond 
to RFI.

8079 Eugene Libby, DO Professional Services Agreement - 
General Orthopedic Medicine (Non-

Surgical)

11/01/2022 10/31/2024; plus two, 
one-year options

2/7/2023 Yes Section II: New contact.

Page 84 of 853



6747 / 7744 Frank Lee, DO Professional Services Agreement for 
Individual Physician On-Call Coverage - 

Ophthalmology

6/1/2021 5/31/2025; plus two, one-
year options

2/7/2023 Yes

6045 / 6748 Gregory Hsu, DO Professional Services Agreement for 
Individual Physician On-Call Coverage - 

Ophthalmology

6/1/2017 5/31/2022 2/7/2023 Yes Section II: Contract ended - did 
not respond to RFI mid year 

2022
6217 Hand Surgery Specialists of 

Nevada (Young)
Professional Services Agreement for 
Group Physician On-Call Coverage - 

Hand Surgery

7/1/2020 6/30/2023; plus two, one-
year options

2/7/2023 Yes

5559 iSchemaView, Inc. Subscription Service for Stroke 
Notification to Doctors

9/3/2019 9/2/2022 2/7/2023 Yes 4. Subscription services; As 
needed

7288 Kidney Specialists of 
Southern Nevada 

Professional Services Agreement for 
Clinical Services - General Nephrology

01/01/2022 12/31/2024; plus two, 
one-year options

2/7/2023 Yes

7289 Kidney Specialists of 
Southern Nevada 

Professional Services Agreement for 
Clinical Services - Transplant 

Nephrology

01/01/2022 12/31/2024; plus two, 
one-year options

2/7/2023 Yes

5281 Las Vegas Pediatric Critical 
Care Associates

Agreement for Physician Medical 
Directorship and Physician Professional 

Services for Pediatric Critical Care 
Services: Meena Vohra, MD

2/1/2019 1/31/2024 2/7/2023 Yes

6749 / 7680 Las Vegas Urology Professional Services Agreement for 
Group Physician On-Call Coverage - 

Adult Urology

6/1/2020 5/31/2022; plus one year 
option

2/7/2023 Yes

6048 / 6750 Mark Stradling, DO Professional Services Agreement for 
Individual Physician On-Call Coverage - 

Ophthalmology

6/1/2017 5/31/2022 2/7/2023 Yes Section II: Contract not renewed - 
did not respond to RFP

7893 Med-Smart - General 
Radiology Technologists 
Staffing Services 2018 - 

Amendment 1

Amendment One to Staffing Service 
Agreeement for Onsite Licensed 

Imaging Technologist 

10/24/2022 10/23/2023 2/7/2023 Yes Section II: Limited supply of 
technologists as we need more

7441 Meena Vohra, MD Administrative Services Agreement - 
Chief of Staff

01/01/2022 12/31/2023 2/7/2023 Yes

6608 Nevada Heart and Vascular 
Center (Resh)

Professional Services Agreement for 
Clinical Services - Cardiology

3/1/2021 2/28/2026 2/7/2023 Yes

6328 / 6694 / 
6771 / 7524

OptumCare Anesthesia Amended and Restated Professional 
Services Agreement for Clinical 

Services - Anesthesia

4/1/2018 3/31/2022 2/7/2023 Yes

6610 / 7428 OptumCare Cancer Care 
(previously Nevada Cancer 

Specialists)

Professional Services Agreement for On-
Call Coverage - Hematology and 

Medical Oncology

3/15/2017 2/28/2022 2/7/2023 Yes Section II: Conract not renewed. 
Contractor wanted mored 
compensation then FMV

Page 85 of 853



6159 OptumCare Orthopaedics and 
Spine

Professional Services Agreement for 
Group Physician On-Call Coverage - 

RFP 2020-11 Orthopaedic Surgery and 
Orthopaedic Spine Surgery

9/1/2020 8/31/2023 2/7/2023 Yes Section II: Contract not renewed - 
Practice getting out of Ortho 

business

6985 Oral and Maxillofacial 
Surgery Associates of Nevada

Professional Services Agreement for 
Group Physician On-Call Coverage - 

Oral and Maxillofacial Surgery

7/1/2021 6/30/2024; plus two, one-
year options

2/7/2023 Yes Section II: Good mix of 
providers as part of this group

6751 / 7745 Paul Casey, MD, FACS Professional Services Agreement for 
Individual Physician On-Call Coverage - 

Ophthalmology

6/1/2017 5/31/2025; plus two, one-
year options

2/7/2023 Yes Section II: Has requested a new 
microscope due to the age of the 

current one
6352 / 7094 / 

7833
Pediatrix Medical Group of 

Nevada
Newborn Hearing Screen Services 9/27/2017 9/26/2025 2/7/2023 Yes Section II: Brings own 

equipment 
6312 / 7095 Pediatrix Medical Group of 

Nevada
Retinopathy of Prematurity Agreement 10/1/2017 9/30/2022 2/7/2023 Yes Section II: Brought own 

equipment; company cancelled 
the contract due to lack of 

providers 
6695 Pokroy Medical Group of 

Nevada (previously S & G 
Halthore)

Professional Services Agreement for 
Individual Physician On-Call Coverage - 

Pediatric Neurology

5/1/2017 4/30/2022 2/7/2023 Yes Section II: On-call; reponses per 
policy

6372 Quality Care Consultants Professional Services Agreement for 
Physician Advisor Services - Case 

Management

11/1/2020 10/31/2022; plus two, 
one-year options

2/7/2023 Yes

6057 / 6752 Rajy Rouweyha, MD Professional Services Agreement for 
Individual Physician On-Call Coverage - 

Ophthalmology

6/1/2017 5/31/2022 2/7/2023 Yes Section II: Contract expired. 
Provider did not respond to RFP

5683 / 8061 Ross Berkeley, MD Administrative Services Agreement 
(Professional Improvement Committee 

Chair Services)

10/1/2019 12/31/2023; auto renew 
for two additional one-

year periods

2/7/2023 Yes

6054 / 6753 Shoib Myint, DO Professional Services Agreement for 
Individual Physician On-Call Coverage - 

Ophthalmology

6/1/2017 5/31/2022 2/7/2023 Yes

6151 Sound Physicians Emergency 
Medicine of Nevada (Bessler)

Professional Services Agreement - 
Emergency Medicine Clinical Services

7/1/2020 6/30/2023; auto renew 
for two additional one-

year periods

2/7/2023 Yes 9a. Continued to discuss 
admissions & discharge from ED

6576 Sound Physicians of Nevada 
II

Professional Services Agreement for 
Clinical Services - Hospitalists

3/1/2021 2/29/2024; auto renew 
for two additional one-

year periods

2/7/2023 Yes 9a. Discharge issues being 
reviewed currently 

6013 Staff Care Provide locum tenens physicians in 
critical need areas of the hospital. 

4/29/2020 4/28/2022 2/7/2023 Yes

6056 / 6754 Stewart Park, MD, FACS Professional Services Agreement for 
Individual Physician On-Call Coverage - 

Ophthalmology

6/1/2017 5/31/2022 2/7/2023 Yes Section II: Contract expired. 
Provder did not respond to RFP 

for services.
6227 Stroke and Neurology 

Specialists
Professional Services Agreement for 
Group Physician On-Call Coverage - 

Neurology and Stroke Neurology

8/1/2020 7/31/2023; plus two, one-
year options

2/7/2023 N/A Section II: Very responsive

Page 86 of 853



6058 / 6755 Surjeet Singh, MD Professional Services Agreement for 
Individual Physician On-Call Coverage - 

Ophthalmology

6/1/2017 5/31/2022 2/7/2023 Yes

6772 / 7746 Thomas Kelly, MD Professional Services Agreement for 
Individual Physician On-Call Coverage - 

Ophthalmology

6/1/2021 5/31/2025; plus two, one-
year options

2/7/2023 Yes Section II: Has requested a new 
microscope in the OR due to age 

of current one
6607 / 7459 UNLV Medicine Professional Services Agreement for 

Group Physician On-Call Coverage - 
Pediatric Gastroenterology

3/2/2020 3/1/2022; plus one-year 
option

2/7/2023 Yes

5904 UNLV Medicine Professional Services Agreement for 
Clinical Services - Pediatric Nursery

2/20/2020 8/31/2021 2/7/2023 Yes Section II: Contract expired in 
2021

6241 UNLV Medicine Professional Services Agreement for 
Clinical Services - Surgery

9/1/2020 6/30/2023; auto renew 
for two additional one-

year periods

2/7/2023 Yes

7799 UNLV Medicine & UNLV 
KSOM

Professional Services Agreement for 
Clinical Services - Internal and Family 

Medicine

7/1/2022 6/30/2025; plus two, one-
year auto renew options 

unless either party 
provides at least 90 days 
non-renewal notice prior 
to the end of the Initial 

Term of any anniversary 
period thereafter

2/7/2023 Yes

7752 UNLV Medicine & UNLV 
KSOM

Professional Services Agreement for 
Clinical Services - Psychiatry

7/1/2022 6/30/2025; plus two, one-
year auto renew options 

unless either party 
provides at least 90 days 
non-renewal notice prior 
to the end of the Initial 

Term of any anniversary 
period thereafter

2/7/2023 Yes 

7799 UNLV Medicine & UNLV 
KSOM - Internal and Family 
Medicine Clinical Services 

2022

Professional Services Agreement for 
Family Medicine clinical services 

07/01/2022 06/30/2027 2/7/2023 Yes

7753 UNLV Medicine & UNLV 
KSOM - Obstetrics & 

Gynecology Clinical Services 
2022

Professionl Services Agreement for 
Obstetrics and Gynecology clinical 

services

07/01/2022 06/30/2027 2/7/2023 Yes 9a. Resolved ; 9e. Resolved; 
Section II: Ultrasound use issue - 

resolved 

6651 UNLV Medicine & UNLV 
SOM

Professional Services Agreement - 
Urgent Care Chief Residents 

Moonlighting

3/31/2021 3/30/2022; plus two, one-
year options

2/7/2023 Yes Section II: Contract not renewed - 
mutual agreement 

6233 UNLV Medicine & UNLV 
SOM

Professional Services Agreement for 
Clinical Services - Internal and Family 

Medicine

7/1/2017 6/30/2022 2/7/2023 Yes  Section II: Contract not renewed 
- mutual agreement 

Page 87 of 853



4296 UNLV Medicine & UNLV 
SOM

Professional Services Agreement for 
Clinical Services - Obstetrics and 

Gynecology (Women's Care)

7/1/2017 6/30/2022 2/7/2023 Yes 9a. Resolved; Section II: 
Ultasound usuage - Resolved; 
Replaced contact with a new 

PSA
4294 UNLV Medicine & UNLV 

SOM
Professional Services Agreement for 

Clinical Services - Psychiatry
7/1/2017 6/30/2022 2/7/2023 Yes Section II: Replaced this contract 

with a new PSA
6329 / 7176 UNLV School of Dental 

Medicine
Interlocal Agreement - General and 

Pediatric Dentistry On-Call Services
10/26/2017 10/25/2022 2/7/2023 Yes Section II: Replaced with a new 

PSA
7984 UNLV SDM - General and 

Pediatric Dentistry On-Call 
Services 2022

Professional Services Agreement for 
General and Pediaric Dentistry On-Call 

Coverage 

10/26/2022 10/25/2025 2/7/2023 Yes Section II: Brings own 
equipment (Some)

6889 UNLV SOM Professional Services Agreement - 
Internal and Family Medicine Residents 
and Family Medicine Chief Residents 

Moonlighting

9/29/2021 9/28/2022; plus two, one-
year options

2/7/2023 Yes

6456 USAP-Nevada Professional Services Agreement for 
Group Physician On-Call Coverage - 

Cardiovascular Anesthesia

1/1/2021 12/31/2022 2/7/2023 Yes Section II: New contract started 
01/01/2023

5708 / 7272 C. Roofian, MD Professional Services Agreement for 
Medical Directorship Services - 

Palliative Care

10/24/2019 2/5/2022 2/7/2023 Yes Contract not renewed

7538 Pediatrix Medical Group of 
Nevada - Pediatric Neurology 

On-Call Services 2022

Proffesional Services Agreement for 
Pediatric Neurology On-Call Coverage.

05/01/2022 04/30/2025 2/7/2023 Yes

7362 Signs of Hope  - MOU RCC is a non-profit organization that 
depends on a core base of volunteers 

and staff that provide crisis 
intervention, advocacy, support and 
education to those affected by sexual 

violence through face-to-face and over-
the-phone intervention with newly 

victimized individuals.

01/27/2022 06/30/2027 2/16/2023 Yes 3. 2 million in aggregate 

7318 American Sign Language 
Communication

Agreement for Interpretation 04/15/2022 04/14/2027 2/16/2023 Yes 3. 2 million in aggregate 

6689 Advanced Neurodiagnostics & 
Sleep Center

Provide pediatric and neonatal critical 
care sleep diagnostic testing.

10/19/2021 10/18/2024 1/30/2023 Yes

6993 CareDX Transplant 
Mangement Inc.

Business Associate Agreement to assist 
UMCSN in improving quality 

management, patient outcomes, 
reducing regulatory risk, and decreasing 

financial exposure for its transplant 
program. 

02/07/2022 02/06/2024 1/30/2023 Yes

6428 Children's Orthotics and 
Prosthetics LLC

On-Call Service for UMC for 
Prosthetics

1/27/2021 1/26/2024 1/30/2023 Yes

Page 88 of 853



7861 Cody Smith - Professional 
Services - First Amendment 

Contract Extension for Surgical First 
Assist

08/16/2022 09/15/2022 1/30/2023 Yes

7806 Cody Smith - Service 
Agreement - July 9, 2022 

(7806)

Agreement for contracted services 
between UMC & Cody Smith, CFSA to 
provide services as a Certified Surgical 

Assistant to cover Hospital’s OR 
department on-call and as needed, from 

July 9, 2022 – August 15, 2022.

07/09/2022 08/15/2022 1/30/2023 Yes

7703 Comprehensive Care - 
Agreement / Amendment 1 - 

September 1, 2022

Perfusion services for anesthesia 
support.

09/01/2022 08/31/2025 1/30/2023 Yes

7661 Comprehensive Care - 
Anesthesia & Equipment - 

Agreement 

Anesthesia Tech Services and 
Equipment Lease

06/01/2022 05/31/2023 1/30/2023 Yes

6447 Fresenius Dialysis In hospital Dialysis (Amendment 1 
6667)

12/31/2020 12/30/2023 1/30/2023 Yes

6462 Fresenius Kidney Care 
Nevada, LLC

In hospital dialysis treatments 2/1/2021 1/31/2024 1/30/2023 Yes

6558 Hanger Prosthetics & 
Orthotics, Inc 

On- Call Service for UMC Prosthetics 7/28/2021 7/27/2024 1/30/2023 Yes

7751 Healthy Minds - Program 
Letter of Agreement

Agreement for a partial hospitalization 
program for mental/behavioral health 
children. Healthy Minds needs this 

affiliation to be able to be approved by 
Medicaid.

07/14/2022 07/31/2027 1/30/2023 Yes

4733 Interactivation Health 
Networks, LLC

Patient Education Channel Amendment 
(Amendments 5211 6185)

1/9/2018 6/30/2023 1/30/2023 Yes

5286 Inter-Tribal Council of 
Nevada Women, Infants and 

Children

Nutrition Education and Services MOU 1/1/2019 1/1/2022 1/30/2023 Yes

7673 LocumTenens.com - 
Physician Staffing Services 

2022

24 hour call for CVT Surgery 05/04/2022 05/03/2023 1/30/2023 Yes

5321 Med-Smart, Inc. Medical Diagnostic Staffing - EEG and 
Echocardiography Services 

10/24/2018 10/23/2023 1/30/2023 Yes

7078 NSI Nursing Solutions Recruitment services to employ full-
time registered nurses

8/25/2021 8/24/22022 1/30/2023 Yes

5357 Orthopedic Motion, Inc Custom Fabrications and Devices, 
Prosthetics and Halo.

6/1/2019 5/31/2024 1/30/2023 Yes

Page 89 of 853



4264 Physio-Control, Inc. Lifenet EKG System Subscription 9/20/2017 9/19/2022 1/30/2023 Yes

5248 CareDx, Inc. Allosure Specimen Testing and 
Collection

1/31/2020 1/29/2025 2/16/2023 Yes

5604 Kashi Clinical Laboratories, 
Inc.

Agreement for Lab Kidney Rejection 1/30/2020 1/30/2024 2/16/2023 Yes

5611 Laboratory Corporation of 
America

Reference Laboratory Testing Services 
2020

4/3/2020 12/31/2022 2/16/2023 Yes

7727 Las Vegas College - 
Educational Affiliation 

Agreement - June 1, 2022

Laboratory Assistant, EKG, 
Technician/Phlebotomist Diploma 

Program Externship

07/01/2022 06/30/2025 2/16/2023 Yes

2248 Quest Diagnostics, Inc. Remnant Agreement - specimen 
processing

1/6/2012 2/16/2023 Yes

5574 / 7836 Vitalant - Blood Services Blood Products and Services 07/01/2019 07/31/2025 2/16/2023 Yes 9a. Decrease in products for no 
apparent reason; increase in 
pricing and changed whats 

considered STAT
5575 Vitalant Blood Services Therapeutic Apheresis Services 7/1/2019 6/30/2022 2/16/2023 Yes

5978 Vitalant Blood Services Delivery of Convalescent Plasma (6036) 7/1/2019 6/30/2025 2/16/2023 Yes

6590 AQuity Solutions 
Transcription

UMC Transcription services 10/1/2021 9/30/2023 2/10/2023 Yes

6358 Agiliti Surgical Inc (UHS 
Surgical)

Professional Services-Laser Technician 
(Amendments 6358 1 and 2)

12/23/2021 12/31/2022 3/16/2023 Yes 3. $3,000,000.00 not indicated; 
5. Contract states hospital must 
provide access Section 2 2.2 ; 9. 
Not available ; 9e. Staff is not 

always capable of doing certain 
cases 

6800 Neuromonitoring Associates Intraoperative neuromonitoring services 
for inpatients receiving medical 

treatment at Hospital.  

9/1/2021 8/31/2024 3/16/2023 Yes 4. Contracting Law State of 
Nevada

3175 SpecialtyCare, Inc. Master Services Agreement and 
Services Agreement for Perfusion and 

Related Services

5/1/2016 5/31/2023 3/16/2023 Closed contract 9b: Delay in care; contractor 
broke term of contract

4453 Press Ganey Associates, Inc. Hospital Engagement Survey 4/1/2017 12/31/2022 3/6/2023 Yes

Page 90 of 853



7307 Robert Futoran, MD Professional Services Agreement for 
Group Physician On-Call Coverage - 

Gynecologic Oncology

1/1/2019 12/31/2022; plus one 
year option

2/22/2023 Yes No complaints from patients and 
staff

7685 AHS Staffing Agreement for Placement Services 09/28/2022 09/27/2025 2/16/2023 Yes 3. Yes to $1M per occurrence 
but no $3M aggregate

7923 AppleOne Employment 
Services 

Agreement for Placement Services 09/28/2022 09/27/2025 2/16/2023 Yes 3. Yes to $1M per occurrence 
but no $3M aggregate

7624 Core Medical Group Recruitment Services Agreement 05/17/2022 05/16/2025 2/16/2023 Yes

7711 Nevada Health Centers, Inc Transfer Agreement 09/01/2022 08/31/2025 4/6/2023 Yes

7987 Southern Nevada Health 
District Transfer Agreement - 

Amendment A01

Reciprocal transfer agreement 10/19/2022 10/19/2022 4/6/2023 Yes

6911 FocusOne Solutions Temporary Labor Staffing Services - 
Clinical, Physician, Management (6911)

7/1/2021 6/30/2023 4/6/2023 Yes

4022 GMTCare, LLC Non-Emergent Patient Transport 1/26/2017 1/26/2022 4/6/2023 Yes

7776 Valley View Surgical Center - 
Transfer Agreement

Reciprocal Transfer Agreement 01/01/2020 12/31/2026 4/6/2023 Yes

6570 West Coast Healthcare 
Professional, Diagnostic 

Imaging

Echo and EEG Contracted Labor 7/1/2021 6/30/2024 4/6/2023 Yes Staff not always available.   

7201 Tegria Services Group BlueTree call center support contract 12/16/2021 10/10/2022 3/13/2023 Yes

5554 National Disaster Medical 
System

Medical Mass Casualty Emergency 
Response

10/31/2019 10/31/2024 1/26/2023 Yes

7304 Cyracom International, Inc. Service Agreement for Translation 
Services 

06/01/2022 10/31/2024 6/21/2023 Yes 1-Million per occurrence ;    2-
Million in aggregate

6973 Rose Heart, Inc. Sexual Assault Nurse Examiner 
Agreement 

08/30/2021 01/31/2026 6/21/2023 Yes

Page 91 of 853



een = Physicia  Blue = Ryan White Orange = All Others

Page 92 of 853



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
February 28, 2024 

 
 

 

Agenda Item #  

7 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Issue: Amendments to Medical and Dental Staff Bylaws and Rules & 

Regulations 
 

 
Back-up: 
      

 
Petitioner: Mason VanHouweling, Chief Executive Officer  
 

 
Clerk Ref. # 
      

 
Recommendation: 
 

That the Governing Board approve and recommend approval by the Board of 
Hospital Trustees the proposed amendments to the UMC Medical and Dental Staff 
Bylaws and Rules & Regulations; as approved and recommended by the Medical 
Executive Committee on November 28, 2023; and take action as deemed 
appropriate.  (For possible action)     

 
 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
None  
           

BACKGROUND: 
 

The UMC Governing Board is responsible for the review and approval of the UMC Medical and 
Dental Staff Bylaws and Rules & Regulations, subject to final approval by the Board of Hospital 
Trustees.   
 
At its meeting on November 28, 2023, the UMC Medical Executive Committee recommended 
approval of amendments to the Medical and Dental Staff Bylaws and Rules & Regulations, subject to 
the completion of the approval process set forth in Part I, Section 9 of the UMC Medical and Dental 
Staff Bylaws.  The proposed amendments relate to changes recommended by the UMC Medical and 
Dental Staff during the course of the past year.   
 
A summary of the proposed revisions to the Medical and Dental Staff Bylaws and Rules & 
Regulations have been provided for your convenience. For a complete review of the proposed 
amendments, please see the attached red-line version of the UMC Medical and Dental Staff Bylaws 
and Rules & Regulations.  

 

Page 93 of 853



Summary of Material Proposed Bylaws/Rules & Regulations Amendments 
MEC 11/28/2023 

 
Bylaws Citation Rationale Bylaws Citation 

Part III Credentials Procedures Manual 
Section 3.1 v : Completion of 
Application  
v. Unless otherwise exempted from 
this specific requirement by the 
MEC, evidence of an office and 
residence within Clark County, 
Nevada. This requirement will not 
apply to Licensed Practitioners who 
have sole Telemedicine privileges. 
 

Telemedicine privileges are not required to provide an office 
address/residence address within Clark County. 

Part III , Section 3.1 V 

Section 3.1.5 j: Three peer 
recommendations chosen from 
practitioner(s) who have observed the 
applicant’s clinical and professional 
performance and can evaluate the 
applicant’s current medical/clinical 
knowledge, technical and clinical skills, 
clinical judgment, interpersonal skills, 
communication skills, and 
professionalism as well as the physical, 
mental, and emotional ability to perform 
requested privileges in the last 2 years; 

 

Adding specific timeframe for consistency Part III, Section 3.1.5 j 

Section 4.4.1 b: At least one (1) peer 
reference chosen from a 
practitioner(s) who has observed the 
applicant’s clinical and professional 
performance and can evaluate the 
applicant’s current medical/clinical 
knowledge, technical and clinical 

 
Language changed for consistency 

Part III, Section 4.4.1 
b 

Page 94 of 853



Summary of Material Proposed Bylaws/Rules & Regulations Amendments 
MEC 11/28/2023 

 
skills, clinical judgment, 
interpersonal skills, communication 
skills, and professionalism as well as 
the physical, mental, and emotional 
ability to perform requested 
privileges in the last 2 years; 

Section 5.2, f 
Remove allied health professionals from 
practitioners eligible to apply for 
privileges without membership 

 

Medical Staff office does not credential Allied Health Professionals 
( Scrub techs, RNFA’s) 

Part III Section 5.2 f 

Part I Medical & Dental Staff 
Rules/Regulations 

  

Section 4.7.2 Certifying the Cause of 
Death 

 
 
Adding Department Chief to who can complete Death Certificate 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Part I, Section 4.7.2 

Page 95 of 853



Summary of Material Proposed Bylaws/Rules & Regulations Amendments 
MEC 11/28/2023 

 
The attending physician or Advanced 
Practice Registered Nurse is responsible 
for certifying the cause of death, and 
authenticating the Death Certificate 
within forty-eight (48) hours of death per 
Nevada law. If the attending physician or 
Advanced Practice Registered Nurse will 
not be available within forty-eight (48) 
hours of death, the certificate shall be 
completed by  an associate physician 
who has access to the deceased patient’s 
medical records, the Department Chief 
or the Chief of Staff. In cases of death 
within the emergency department, the 
emergency physician will be responsible 
for certifying the cause of death and 
completing the Death Certificate in 
accordance with Nevada laws and 
regulations. 
 
 

 

Section 3.7.1 

PROGRESS NOTES 

Daily Progress Notes 

The attending physician, or Advanced 
Practice Professional (APP), will record 
a progress note each day for each 
significant patient encounter on all 
hospitalized (inpatient, observation, and 
boarded) patients excluding the day of 
admission and the day of discharge. A 
physician must do the progress note on 

Clearly delineates the daily Progress Note requirement Part I Section 3.7.1 

Page 96 of 853



Summary of Material Proposed Bylaws/Rules & Regulations Amendments 
MEC 11/28/2023 

 
postoperative day #1 for all patients 
undergoing a procedure. ICU patients 
must be seen daily by a physician with 
documentation of Progress Notes. All 
progress notes must document the reason 
for continued hospitalization.   
 
The Joint Commission eliminated the 
term “ LIP”( Licensed Independent 
Practitioner) - replaced with Licensed 
Practitioner 
 

 

Page 97 of 853



 

 

University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 
Medical and Dental Staff Bylaws  

& 
Medical and Dental Staff Rules and Regulations 

 

 
MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF  

BYLAWS 
 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF  
RULES AND REGULATIONS 

 
Approved By: 

 
Date 

 
Approved By: 

 
Date 

Medical Executive Committee July 25, 2017 Medical Executive Committee June 27, 2017 
Governing Board August 23, 2017 Governing Board August 23, 2017 
Board of Hospital Trustees September 5, 2017 Board of Hospital Trustees September 5, 2017 
 
Revised On: 

 
Date 

 
Revised On: 

 
Date 

Medical Executive Committee July 24, 2018 Medical Executive Committee July 24, 2018 
Governing Board August 29, 2018 Governing Board August 29, 2018 
Board of Hospital Trustees September 18, 2018 Board of Hospital Trustees September 18, 2018 
 
Revised On: 

 
Date 

 
Revised On: 

 
Date 

Medical Executive Committee August 27, 2019 Medical Executive Committee August 27, 2019 
Governing Board September 25, 2019 Governing Board September 25, 2019 
Board of Hospital Trustees October 15, 2019 Board of Hospital Trustees October 15, 2019 
 
Revised On: 

 
Date 

 
Revised On: 

 
Date 

Medical Executive Committee November 24, 2020 Medical Executive Committee November 24, 2020 
Governing Board December 16, 2020 Governing Board December 16, 2020 
Board of Hospital Trustees January 4, 2021 Board of Hospital Trustees January 4, 2021 
 
Revised On: 

 
Date 

 
Revised On: 

 
Date 

Medical Executive Committee May 25, 2021 Medical Executive Committee May 25, 2021 
Governing Board June 30, 2021 Governing Board June 30, 2021 
Board of Hospital Trustees July 20, 2021 Board of Hospital Trustees July 20, 2021 
 
Revised On: 

 
Date 

 
Revised On: 

 
Date 

Medical Executive Committee October 26, 2021 Medical Executive Committee October 26, 2021 
Governing Board December 15, 2021 Governing Board December 15, 2021 
Board of Hospital Trustees December 21, 2021 Board of Hospital Trustees December 21, 2021 
 
Revised On: 

 
Date 

 
Revised On: 

 
Date 

Medical Executive Committee May 27, 2022 Medical Executive Committee May 27, 2022 
Governing Board August 31, 2022 Governing Board August 31, 2022 
Board of Hospital Trustees September 20, 2022 Board of Hospital Trustees September 20, 2022 
 
Revised On: 

 
Date 

 
Revised On: 

 
Date 

Medical Executive Committee October 25, 2022 Medical Executive Committee October 25, 2022 
Governing Board February 22, 2023 Governing Board February 22, 2023 
Board of Hospital Trustees March 21, 2023 Board of Hospital Trustees March 21, 2023 
 
Revised On: 

 
Date 

 
Revised On: 

 
Date 

Medical Executive Committee July 25, 2023 Medical Executive Committee July 25,  2023 
Governing Board July 26, 2023 Governing Board July 26, 2023 
Board of Hospital Trustees August 15, 2023 Board of Hospital Trustees August 15, 2023 

Page 98 of 853



 

 

Table of Contents 

UMC MEDICAL STAFF AND DENTAL BYLAWS: 

PART I: GOVERNANCE 

Section 1. Medical Staff Purpose and Authority 1 

Section 2. Medical Staff Membership 2 

Section 3. Categories of the Medical Staff 7 

Section 4. Officers of the Medical Staff and MEC At-Large members 9 

Section 5. Medical Staff Organization 13 

Section 6. Committees 16 

Section 7. Medical Staff Meetings 18 

Section 8. Conflict Resolution 21 

Section 9. Review, Revision, Adoption, and Amendment 22 

PART II: INVESTIGATIONS, CORRECTIVE ACTIONS, HEARING AND 
APPEAL PLAN 

Section 1. Collegial, Educational, and/or Informal Proceedings 1 

Section 2. Investigations 2 

Section 3. Corrective Action 4 

Section 4. Initiation and Notice of Hearing 8 

Section 5. Hearing Panel and Presiding Officer or Hearing Officer 11 

Section 6. Pre-Hearing and Hearing Procedure 13 

Section 7. Appeal to the Hospital Board 16 

PART III: CREDENTIALS PROCEDURES MANUAL 

Section 1. Medical Staff Credentials Committee 1 

Section 2. Qualifications for Membership and/or Privileges 3 

Section 3. Initial Appointment Procedure 5 

Section 4. Reappointment 14 

Section 5. Clinical Privileges 17 

Section 6. Clinical Competency Evaluation 23 

Section 7. Reapplication after Modifications of Membership Status or Privileges and 
Exhaustion of Remedies 24 

Section 8. Leave of Absence 26 

Section 9. Practitioners Providing Contracted Services 27 

Section 10. Medical Administrative Officers 28 
 

Page 99 of 853



 

 

UMC MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF RULES AND REGULATIONS 

PART I: MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF RULES & REGULATIONS 

Section 1. Introduction 1 

Section 2. Admission and Discharge 2 

Section 3. Medical Records 7 

Section 4. Standards of Practice 17 

Section 5. Patient Rights 25 

Section 6. Surgical Care 26 

Section 7. Rules of Conduct 27 
Section 8.      Department Specific Rules and Regulations                                                                          28 

PART II: ORGANIZATION AND FUNCTIONS MANUAL 

Section 1. Organization and Functions of the Staff 1 

Section 2. Medical Staff Committees 9 

Section 3. Confidentiality, Immunity, Releases, and Conflict of Interest 16 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 100 of 853



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 
Medical and Dental Staff Bylaws  

 
 

Page 101 of 853



 

 

UMC MEDICAL STAFF AND DENTAL BYLAWS: 

PART I: GOVERNANCE 

Section 1. Medical Staff Purpose and Authority 1 

Section 2. Medical Staff Membership 2 

Section 3. Categories of the Medical Staff 7 

Section 4. Officers of the Medical Staff and MEC At-Large members 9 

Section 5. Medical Staff Organization 13 

Section 6. Committees 16 

Section 7. Medical Staff Meetings 18 

Section 8. Conflict Resolution 21 

Section 9. Review, Revision, Adoption, and Amendment 22 
 

PART II: INVESTIGATIONS, CORRECTIVE ACTIONS, HEARING AND 
APPEAL PLAN 

Section 1. Collegial, Educational, and/or Informal Proceedings 1 

Section 2. Investigations 2 

Section 3. Corrective Action 4 

Section 4. Initiation and Notice of Hearing 8 

Section 5. Hearing Panel and Presiding Officer or Hearing Officer 11 

Section 6. Pre-Hearing and Hearing Procedure 13 

Section 7. Appeal to the Hospital Board 16 
 

PART III: CREDENTIALS PROCEDURES MANUAL 

Section 1. Medical Staff Credentials Committee 1 

Section 2. Qualifications for Membership and/or Privileges 3 

Section 3. Initial Appointment Procedure 5 

Section 4. Reappointment 14 

Section 5. Clinical Privileges 17 

Section 6. Clinical Competency Evaluation 23 

Section 7. Reapplication after Modifications of Membership Status or Privileges and 
Exhaustion of Remedies 24 

Section 8. Leave of Absence 26 

Section 9. Practitioners Providing Contracted Services 27 

Section 10. Medical Administrative Officers 28 
 

Page 102 of 853



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS 

Part I:  Governance 
 

 

 

Page 103 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page i 
Part I:  Governance 

Part I: Governance – Table of Contents 

Section 1. Medical Staff Purpose and Authority 1 

Section 2. Medical Staff Membership 2 

Section 3. Categories of the Medical Staff 7 

Section 4. Officers of the Medical Staff and MEC At-Large members 9 

Section 5. Medical Staff Organization 13 

Section 6. Committees 16 

Section 7. Medical Staff Meetings 18 

Section 8. Conflict Resolution 21 

Section 9. Review, Revision, Adoption, and Amendment 22 
 

Page 104 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 1 
Part I:  Governance 

Section 1. Medical Staff Purpose and Authority 

 Purpose 

The purpose of this Medical Staff is to organize the activities of physicians and other clinical 
practitioners who practice at University Medical Center of Southern Nevada in order to carry out, 
in conformity with these Bylaws, the functions delegated to the Medical Staff by the University 
Medical Center of Southern Nevada Board of Trustees. 

 Authority 

Subject to the authority and approval of the Board of Clark County Commissioners, sitting as the 
Board of Trustees, the Medical Staff will exercise such power as is reasonably necessary to 
discharge its responsibilities under these Bylaws, associated Rules and Regulations, policies, and 
under the corporate Bylaws of the University Medical Center of Southern Nevada. Henceforth, 
whenever the term “the hospital” is used, it shall mean University Medical Center of Southern 
Nevada; and whenever the term “the Board” is used, it shall mean Board of Trustees or its 
delegated authority. Whenever the term “CEO” is used, it shall mean the Chief Executive Officer 
appointed by the Board to act on its behalf in the overall management of the hospital. The term 
CEO includes a duly appointed acting administrator serving when the CEO is away from the 
hospital. Whenever the term “Medical Staff” is used, it shall mean those professionally competent 
licensed  practitioners, including physicians (M.D. or D.O.), dentists, oral and maxillofacial 
surgeons, podiatrists, and advanced practice registered nurses who have been granted 
membership to the Medical and Dental Staff of University Medical Center of Southern Nevada in 
accordance with these Bylaws.  

 

 

Page 105 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 2 
Part I:  Governance 

Section 2. Medical Staff Membership 

 Nature of Medical Staff Membership 

Membership on the Medical Staff of the hospital is a privilege that shall be extended only to 
professionally competent physicians (M.D. or D.O.), dentists, oral and maxillofacial surgeons, 
podiatrists, and advanced practice registered nurses who continuously meet the qualifications, 
standards, and requirements set forth in these Bylaws, associated Rules and Regulations, policies, 
and procedures of the Medical Staff and the hospital.  

 Qualifications for Membership 

The qualifications for Medical Staff membership are delineated in Part III of these Bylaws 
(Credentials Procedures Manual). 

 Nondiscrimination 

The Medical Staff will not discriminate in granting staff appointment and/or clinical privileges on 
the basis of race, color, religion, sex, age, national origin, sexual orientation, gender identity or 
expression, genetic information, or disability unrelated to the provision of patient care or required 
Medical Staff responsibilities, or any other basis prohibited by applicable law, to the extent the 
applicant is otherwise qualified. 

 Conditions and Duration of Appointment 

The Board shall make initial appointment and reappointment to the Medical Staff. The Board 
shall act on appointment and reappointment only after the Medical Staff has had an opportunity to 
submit a recommendation from the Medical Executive Committee (MEC) with the exception of 
emergency, disaster and temporary privileges. Appointment and reappointment to the Medical 
Staff shall be for no more than twenty-four (24) calendar months. 

 Medical Staff Membership and Clinical Privileges 

Requests for Medical Staff membership and/or clinical privileges will be processed only when the 
potential applicant meets the current minimum qualifying criteria approved by the Board. 
Membership and/or privileges will be granted and administered as delineated in Part III 
(Credentials Procedures Manual) of these Bylaws. A practitioner who fails to meet the minimum 
qualifying criteria as set forth in Part III of these Bylaws shall be ineligible to apply for Medical 
Staff membership and/or clinical privileges. 

 Medical Staff Members Responsibilities 

2.6.1 Each staff member and practitioner with privileges, must provide for appropriate, timely, 
and continuous care of his/her patients at the level of quality and efficiency generally 
recognized as appropriate by medical professionals in the same or similar circumstances. 

2.6.2 Each staff member and practitioner with privileges must participate, as assigned or 
requested, in quality/performance improvement/peer review activities and in the 
discharge of other Medical Staff functions (including service on appropriate Medical 
Staff committees) as may be required. 

2.6.3 Each staff member, consistent with his/her granted clinical privileges, shall participate in 
the on call coverage of the emergency department or in other hospital coverage programs 
as defined in the On Call Physician Policy.   

Page 106 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 3 
Part I:  Governance 

2.6.4 Each staff member and practitioner with privileges must submit to any pertinent type of 
health evaluation as requested by the officers of the Medical Staff, MEC, Credentials 
Committee, Chief Executive Officer (CEO), and/or Department Chief when it appears 
necessary to protect the well-being of patients and/or staff, or as part of a post-treatment 
monitoring plan consistent with the provisions of any Medical Staff and hospital policies 
addressing physician health or impairment. 

2.6.5 Each staff member and practitioner with privileges must abide by the Medical and Dental 
Staff Bylaws and any other rules, regulations, policies, procedures, and standards of the 
Medical Staff and hospital, including the Corporate Compliance Code of Conduct. 

2.6.6 Each staff member and practitioner with privileges must provide evidence of professional 
liability coverage of a type and in an amount sufficient to cover the clinical privileges 
granted or an amount established by the Board, whichever is higher. In addition, staff 
members shall comply with any financial responsibility requirements that apply under 
state law to the practice of their profession. Each staff member and practitioner with 
privileges shall notify the Chief of Staff or designee within thirty (30) days of any and all 
malpractice claims filed in any court of law against the Medical Staff member or any 
settlement agreement regarding alleged malpractice which the medical staff member or 
practitioner may agree to. Failure to properly notify the Chief of Staff shall be grounds 
for discontinuance of processing of an application or reapplication for staff membership 
and privileges and/or the relinquishment, or limitation, of staff membership and 
privileges. 

2.6.7 Each applicant for privileges or staff member or practitioner with privileges agrees to 
release from any liability, to the fullest extent permitted by law, all persons for their 
conduct, done in good faith and without malice, in connection with investigating and/or 
evaluating the quality of care or professional conduct provided by the Medical Staff 
member and his/ her credentials. 

2.6.8 Each staff member and practitioner with privileges shall prepare and complete in timely 
fashion, according to Medical Staff and hospital policies, the medical and other required 
records for all patients to whom the practitioner provides care in the hospital, or within its 
facilities, clinical services, or departments. 

a. All medical history and physical examinations must be completed and documented 
by a physician, an oral and maxillofacial surgeon, advanced practice registered 
nurse or Advanced Practice Professional in accordance with State law and hospital 
policy.  A medical history and physical examination shall be completed for each 
patient at the hospital as follows:   

i. For each hospital inpatient, patient under observation, or patient requiring 
anesthesia services, a complete medical history and physical examination shall 
be completed no more than seven (7) days before or twenty-four (24) hours after 
admission or registration, but prior to surgery or a procedure requiring 
anesthesia services. An updated examination of the patient, including any 
changes in the patient’s condition, shall be completed and documented within 
twenty-four (24) hours after admission or registration, but prior to surgery or a 
procedure requiring anesthesia services, when the medical history and physical 
examination is completed within seven (7) days before admission or 
registration. 

Page 107 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 4 
Part I:  Governance 

ii.  For each hospital outpatient procedure requiring only moderate sedation, a 
focused medical history and physical examination shall be completed no more 
than thirty (30) days before or twenty-four (24) hours after admission or 
registration, but prior to surgery or procedure. An updated examination of the 
patient, including any changes in the patient's condition, shall be completed and 
documented within twenty-four (24) hours after admission or registration, but 
prior to surgery or a procedure, when the medical history and physical 
examination are completed within thirty (30) days before admission or 
registration.  

iii. For patients receiving specific outpatient surgical or procedural services that do 
not require moderate sedation or anesthesia, an assessment of the patient, in lieu 
of a comprehensive history and physical examination, may be completed and 
documented after registration, but prior to surgery or a procedure, when 
performed in accordance with the policies established by the medical staff. The 
assessment must be completed and documented by a physician, an oral and 
maxillofacial surgeon, or other qualified licensed individual in accordance with 
State law and hospital policy.   
 

b. The requirements related to complete history and physical examinations, focused 
history and physical examinations, and assessments in lieu of history and physical 
examinations are further delineated in the Rules and Regulations. 

2.6.9 Each staff member and practitioner with privileges agrees that they shall not serve as the 
attending or consulting practitioner for any member of their own family. Medical Staff 
members and practitioners with privileges may not schedule or perform operations or 
procedures on members of their own families in the operating room, procedure rooms, or 
laboratories except in emergencies when no other qualified member of the Medical Staff 
is available.  

2.6.10 Each staff member and practitioner with privileges will use confidential information only 
as necessary for treatment, payment, or healthcare operations in accordance with HIPAA 
rules and regulations, to conduct authorized research activities, or to perform Medical 
Staff responsibilities. For purposes of these Bylaws, confidential information means 
patient information, peer review information, and the hospital’s business information 
designated as confidential by the hospital or its representatives prior to disclosure. 

2.6.11 Each staff member and practitioner with privileges must participate in any type of 
competency evaluation when determined necessary by the MEC and/or Board in order to 
properly delineate that member’s clinical privileges.  Each staff member and practitioner 
with privileges shall provide true and accurate information during the course of any 
evaluation, inquiry, or investigation of the practitioner’s qualifications, conduct, 
competency, or suitability for medical staff membership and clinical privileges. 

2.6.12 Each practitioner on the Medical Staff shall disclose to the Medical Staff any ownership 
or financial interest that may conflict with, or have the appearance of conflicting with, the 
interests of the Medical Staff or hospital. Medical staff leadership will deal with conflict 
of interest issues per the Medical Staff Conflict of Interest Statement. 

Page 108 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 5 
Part I:  Governance 

 Medical Staff Member Rights 

2.7.1 Each staff member in the Active category has the right to a meeting with the MEC on 
matters relevant to the responsibilities of the MEC that may affect patient care or safety. 
In the event such practitioner is unable to resolve a matter of concern after working with 
his/her Department Chief or other appropriate Medical Staff leader(s), that practitioner 
may, upon written notice to the Chief of Staff two (2) weeks in advance of a regular 
meeting, meet with the MEC to discuss the issue.  The written notice to the Chief of Staff 
shall adequately describe the matter to be considered by the MEC and contain a 
recommendation for how to address the issue.       

2.7.2 Each privileged practitioner has the right to legal counsel, for Medical Staff 
organizational functions, only when in a fair hearing circumstance. 

2.7.3 Each staff member in the Active category has the right to initiate a recall election of a 
Medical Staff officer by following the procedure outlined in Section 4.7 of these Bylaws, 
regarding removal and resignation from office. 

2.7.4 Each staff member in the Active category may initiate a call for a general staff meeting to 
discuss a matter relevant to the Medical Staff by presenting a petition signed by twenty 
percent (20%) of the members of the Active category. Upon presentation of such a 
petition, the MEC shall schedule a general staff meeting for the specific purposes 
addressed by the petitioners. No business other than that detailed in the petition may be 
transacted. 

2.7.5 Each staff member in the Active category may challenge any rule, regulation, or policy 
established by the MEC. In the event that a rule, regulation, or policy is thought to be 
inappropriate, any Medical Staff member may submit a petition signed by twenty percent 
(20%) of the members of the Active category. Upon presentation of such a petition, the 
adoption procedure outlined in Section 9.3 will be followed. 

2.7.6 Each staff member in the Active category may call for a Department meeting by 
presenting a petition signed by twenty percent (20%) of the members of the Department. 
Upon presentation of such a petition the Department Chief will schedule a Department 
meeting. 

2.7.7 The above sections 2.7.1 to 2.7.5 do not pertain to issues involving individual peer 
review, formal investigations of professional performance or conduct, denial of requests 
for appointment or clinical privileges, or any other matter relating to individual 
membership or privileges. Part II of these Bylaws (Investigations, Corrective Action, 
Hearing and Appeal Plan) provides recourse in these matters. 

2.7.8 Any practitioner eligible for Medical Staff appointment has a right to a hearing/appeal 
pursuant to the conditions and procedures described in the Medical Staff’s hearing and 
appeal plan (Part II of these Bylaws). 

 Staff Dues/Fees/Assessments 

2.8.1 Annual Medical Staff dues and other fees or assessments, if any, shall be determined by 
the MEC. Failure of a Medical Staff member to pay dues, fees, or assessments shall be 
considered a voluntary resignation from the Medical Staff. The MEC may pass policies 
that exempt certain categories of membership or members holding specified leadership 
positions from dues, fees, or assessments. 

Page 109 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 6 
Part I:  Governance 

 Indemnification 

2.9.1 Members of the Medical Staff are entitled to the applicable immunity provisions of state 
and federal law for the credentialing, peer review and performance improvement work 
they perform on behalf of the hospital and Medical Staff. 

2.9.2 In accordance with applicable Nevada law, the hospital will provide a defense and shall 
indemnify a Medical Staff member against damages in connection with any pending or 
threatened action, suit, or proceeding to which he is made a party by reason of his having 
acted in an official capacity in good faith on behalf of the hospital or Medical Staff. 
However, no member shall be entitled to such indemnification if the acts giving rise to 
the liability constituted willful misconduct, breach of a fiduciary duty, self-dealing or bad 
faith. 

Page 110 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 7 
Part I:  Governance 

Section 3. Categories of the Medical Staff 

 The Active Category 

3.1.1 Qualifications 

Members of this category must have served on the Medical Staff for at least one year and  
have: 

Been involved in at least twelve (12) UMC patient encounters within the preceding 
year or twenty four (24) UMC patient encounters within the preceding 2 years (i.e., a 
UMC patient encounter is defined as a UMC inpatient admission; UMC telemedicine 
visitation; UMC consultation; UMC inpatient or outpatient surgical procedure; or 
other patient encounters within UMC hospital or a UMC clinic);  

AND 

Attended at least three (3) Medical Staff or hospital committee meetings per year. 

Additionally, in the interest of patient welfare and continuum of care, members of the 
Active category must maintain an office and residence within Clark County.  Exceptions 
may be granted by the Medical Executive Committee on a case by case basis.  Use of a 
Post Office Box for a mailing address does not negate the requirement for a Physician, 
Dentist or Podiatrist to maintain an office and residence in Clark County.  It is the 
Physician’s, Dentist’s or Podiatrist’s responsibility to notify the Medical Staff Office 
when the location of his/her office address changes within thirty (30) days.  

In the event that a member of the Active category does not meet the qualifications for 
reappointment to the Active category, and if the member is otherwise abiding by all 
Bylaws, rules, regulations, and policies of the Medical Staff and hospital, the member 
may be appointed to another Medical Staff category if s/he meets the eligibility 
requirements for such category. Any such appointment shall not be considered a 
reduction of privileges or adverse action and the practitioner shall not be entitled to the 
procedural rights under the Fair Hearing Plan. 

3.1.2 Prerogatives 

Members of this category may: 

a. Attend Medical Staff, department, and subspecialty meetings of which s/he is a 
member and any Medical Staff or hospital education programs; 

b. Vote on all matters presented by the Medical Staff, department, subspecialty, and 
committee(s) to which the member is assigned; and 

c. Hold office and sit on or be the chair of any committee in accordance with any 
qualifying criteria set forth elsewhere in the Medical and Dental Staff Bylaws, Rules 
and Regulations, or Medical Staff policies. 

3.1.3 Responsibilities 

Members of this category shall: 

a. Contribute to the organizational and administrative affairs of the Medical Staff; 

Page 111 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 8 
Part I:  Governance 

b. Actively participate as requested or required in activities and functions of the 
Medical Staff, including quality/performance improvement and peer review, 
credentialing, risk, and utilization management, medical records completion and in 
the discharge of other staff functions as may be required; and 

c. Fulfill or comply with any applicable Medical Staff or hospital policies or 
procedures. 

 The Affiliate Category 

3.2.1 Qualifications 

The Affiliate category is reserved for Medical Staff members who do not meet the 
eligibility requirements for the Active category. Additionally, in the interest of patient 
welfare and continuum of care, members of the Affiliate category must maintain an office 
and residence within Clark County.  Exceptions may be granted by the Medical 
Executive Committee on a case by case basis.  Use of a Post Office Box for a mailing 
address does not negate the requirement for a Physician, Dentist or Podiatrist to maintain 
an office and residence in Clark County.  It is the Physician’s, Dentist’s or Podiatrist’s 
responsibility to notify the Medical Staff Office when the location of his/her office 
address changes within thirty (30) days.  

3.2.2 Prerogatives 

Members of this category may: 

a. Attend Medical Staff, department, committee, and subspecialty meetings of which 
s/he is a member and any Medical Staff or hospital education programs; and 

b. Not vote on matters presented by the entire Medical Staff or department or be an 
officer of the Medical Staff.  

 

3.2.3 Responsibilities 

Members of this category shall: 

a. Have the same responsibilities as Active category members. 

 Honorary Recognition 

Honorary Recognition is restricted to those individuals recommended by the MEC and approved 
by the Board. Appointment for this Recognition is entirely discretionary and may be rescinded at 
any time with or without cause. Procedural or fair hearing rights do not apply to the failure to 
grant, or termination of, membership to Honorary Recognition. Practitioners granted Honorary 
Recognition shall consist of those practitioners who have retired from active hospital practice, 
who are of outstanding reputation, and have provided distinguished service to the hospital. They 
may attend the General Medical Staff meeting, social and educational meetings of the Medical 
Staff and continuing medical education activities. They shall not hold clinical privileges, hold 
office or be eligible to vote. An active member of the Medical Staff shall sponsor and provide 
information to the MEC regarding a practitioner being recommended for honorary recognition. 

 

Page 112 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 9 
Part I:  Governance 

Section 4. Officers of the Medical Staff and MEC At-Large members 

 Officers of the Medical Staff and MEC At-Large members 

4.1.1 Chief of Staff 

4.1.2 Vice Chief of Staff 

4.1.3 Secretary-Treasurer  

4.1.4 Immediate Past Chief of Staff 

 Qualifications of Officers and MEC At-Large members 

4.2.1 Officers and MEC At-Large members must be physician-members in good standing of 
the Active category and be actively involved in patient care in the hospital, have 
previously served in a significant leadership position of the Medical Staff (e.g. 
department or subspecialty head, or committee chair), indicate a willingness and ability to 
serve, have no pending adverse recommendations concerning Medical Staff appointment 
or clinical privileges, have no licensure sanctions, have participated in Medical Staff 
leadership training and/or be willing to participate in such training during their term of 
office, and be in compliance with the professional conduct policies of the hospital. The 
Medical Staff Nominating Committee will have discretion to determine if a staff member 
wishing to run for office meets the qualifying criteria. The immediate past Chief of Staff 
attains his/her position by automatic succession from the office of Chief of Staff. 

4.2.2 Officers and MEC At-Large Members may not simultaneously hold a leadership position 
(any position in which the Member serves on the MEC or the Board) on another 
hospital’s Medical Staff.  

 Election of Officers and MEC At-Large members 

4.3.1 The Nominating Committee shall offer one nominee for each available position. 
Nominations must be announced, and the names of the nominees distributed to all 
members of the Active Medical Staff at least 30 days prior to the election. 

4.3.2 A petition signed by at least three (3) Active staff Members may add nominations to the 
ballot. The Medical Staff must submit such a petition to the Chief of Staff at least 
fourteen (14) days prior to the election for the nominee(s) to be placed on the ballot. The 
Nominating committee must determine if the candidate meets the qualifications in 
Section 4.2 above before he/she can be placed on the ballot. 

4.3.3 Officers and MEC At-Large members shall be elected prior to the expiration of the term 
of the current officers or At-Large members. Two MEC At-Large Member positions will 
be elected each year. There will be separate elections for each At-Large position with the 
Member receiving a plurality of votes elected for that position. Only members of the 
Active category shall be eligible to vote. The MEC will determine the mechanisms by 
which votes may be cast. The mechanisms that may be considered include written mail 
ballots and electronic voting via computer, fax, or other technology for transmitting the 
member’s voting choices. No proxy voting will be permissible. The nominee(s) who 
receives the greatest number of votes cast will be elected. In the event of a tie vote, the 
MEC will make arrangements for a repeat vote(s) deleting the candidate with the lowest 
number of votes until one candidate receives a greater number of votes. 

Page 113 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 10 
Part I:  Governance 

4.3.4 An Incumbent shall be automatically placed on the ballot without requiring nominations 
if he/she still wishes to run for election. 

 Term of Office 

All officers and MEC At-Large members serve a term of two (2) years. They shall take office in 
the month of January. Each officer shall serve in office until the end of his/her term of office or 
until a successor is appointed/elected or unless s/he resigns sooner or is removed from office. 

 Vacancies of Office 

The MEC shall fill vacancies of office during the Medical Staff year, except the office of the 
Chief of Staff. If there is a vacancy in the office of the Chief of Staff, the Vice Chief of Staff shall 
serve the remainder of the term. 

 Duties of Officers and MEC At-Large members 

4.6.1 Chief of Staff:  The Chief of Staff (COS) is the primary elected officer of the Medical 
Staff and is the Medical Staff’s advocate and representative in its relationships to the 
Board and the administration of the hospital. The Chief of Staff, jointly with the MEC, 
provides direction to and oversees Medical Staff activities related to assessing and 
promoting continuous improvement in the quality of clinical services and all other 
functions of the Medical Staff as outlined in the Medical and Dental Staff Bylaws, Rules 
and Regulations, and Medical Staff/hospital policies. Specific responsibilities and 
authority are to: 

a. Call and preside at all general and special meetings of the Medical Staff; 

b. Serve as chair of the MEC and as ex officio member of all other Medical Staff 
committees without vote, and to participate as invited by the CEO or the Board on 
hospital or Board committees; 

c. Enforce Medical and Dental Staff Bylaws, Rules and Regulations, and Medical 
Staff/hospital policies; 

d. Except as stated otherwise, appoint committee chairs and all members of Medical 
Staff standing and ad hoc committees; in consultation with hospital administration, 
appoint Medical Staff members to appropriate hospital committees or to serve as 
Medical Staff advisors or liaisons to carry out specific functions; in consultation 
with the chair of the Board, appoint the Medical Staff members to appropriate Board 
committees when those are not designated by position or by specific direction of the 
Board or otherwise prohibited by state law; 

e. Support and encourage Medical Staff leadership and participation on 
interdisciplinary clinical performance improvement activities; 

f. Report to the Board the MEC’s recommendations concerning appointment, 
reappointment, delineation of clinical privileges or specified services, and corrective 
action with respect to practitioners who are applying for appointment or privileges, 
or who are granted privileges or providing services in the hospital; 

g. Continuously evaluate and periodically report to the hospital, MEC, and the Board 
regarding the effectiveness of the credentialing and privileging processes; 

Page 114 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 11 
Part I:  Governance 

h. Review and enforce compliance with standards of ethical conduct and professional 
demeanor among the practitioners on the Medical Staff in their relations with each 
other, the Board, hospital management, other professional and support staff, and the 
community the hospital serves; 

i. Communicate and represent the opinions and concerns of the Medical Staff and its 
individual members on organizational and individual matters affecting hospital 
operations to hospital administration, the MEC, and the Board; 

j. Attend Board meetings and Board committee meetings as invited by the Board; 

k. Ensure that the decisions of the Board are communicated and carried out within the 
Medical Staff; and 

l. Perform such other duties, and exercise such authority commensurate with the office 
as are set forth in the Medical and Dental Staff Bylaws. 

4.6.2 Vice Chief of Staff:  In the absence of the Chief of Staff, the Vice Chief of Staff shall 
assume all the duties and have the authority of the Chief of Staff. S/he shall perform such 
further duties to assist the Chief of Staff as the Chief of Staff may request from time to 
time. 

4.6.3 Secretary-Treasurer:  This officer will collaborate with the hospital’s Medical Staff 
office, assure maintenance of minutes, attend to correspondence, act as Medical Staff 
treasurer, and coordinate communication within the Medical Staff. S/he shall perform 
such further duties to assist the Chief of Staff as the Chief of Staff may request from time 
to time. 

4.6.4 Immediate Past Chief of Staff:  This officer will serve as a consultant to the Chief of 
Staff and Vice Chief of Staff and provide feedback to the officers regarding their 
performance of assigned duties on an annual basis. S/he shall perform such further duties 
to assist the Chief of Staff as the Chief of Staff may request from time to time. 

4.6.5 MEC At-Large members:   There shall be four (4) MEC At-Large members who will 
advise and support the Medical Staff officers and are responsible for representing the 
needs/interests of the entire Medical Staff, not simply representing the preferences of 
their own clinical specialty.  

 Removal and Resignation from Office 

4.7.1 Automatic Removal:  A Medical Staff officer shall be automatically removed from 
his/her position if he/she no longer meets the qualifications of the position as defined in 
the Bylaws. 

a. No longer in good standing as evidenced by:  

i. an automatic suspension of clinical privileges that lasts more than thirty days,  

ii. a summary suspension of greater than fourteen (14) days, or 

iii. any corrective action taken by the MEC or Board; 

b. No longer an Active Member of the Medical Staff; 

c. No longer actively practicing within the Hospital; or 

d. Holds a leadership position (defined as an MEC or Board member) at another 
hospital. 

Page 115 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 12 
Part I:  Governance 

e. In the event that a Member-At-Large becomes the Chief/Vice Chief of a 
Department or holds another voting position at the MEC, he/she will vacate 
his/her position as Member-At-Large. 

4.7.2 Removal of Officer for Failure to Perform Their Duties: The Medical Staff may 
initiate the removal of any officer if at least twenty percent (20%) of the Active members 
sign a petition advocating for such action. Removal shall become effective upon an 
affirmative vote by two thirds (2/3) of those Active staff members casting ballot votes. 

4.7.3 Resignation:  Any elected officer or MEC At-Large member may resign at any time by 
giving written notice to the MEC. Such resignation takes effect on the date of receipt, 
when a successor is elected, or any later time specified therein. 

Page 116 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 13 
Part I:  Governance 

Section 5. Medical Staff Organization 

 Organization of the Medical Staff 

5.1.1 The Medical Staff shall be organized into departments. The Medical Staff may create 
clinical subspecialties within a department in order to facilitate Medical Staff activities. A 
list of departments organized by the Medical Staff and formally recognized by the MEC 
is listed in the Medical and Dental Staff Rules and Regulations, Part II: Organization and 
Functions Manual, Section 1. . 

The MEC, with approval of the Board, may designate new Medical Staff departments or 
clinical subspecialties or dissolve current departments or clinical subspecialties as it 
determines will best promote the Medical Staff needs for promoting performance 
improvement, patient safety, and effective credentialing and privileging. 

 Qualifications, Selection, Term, and Removal of Department Chiefs and Vice Chiefs 

5.2.1 Department Chiefs and Vice Chiefs of exclusively contracted department shall be 
governed by the contract. 

5.2.2 For non-exclusively contracted departments, each Department Chief and Vice Chief shall 
be elected to serve a term of two (2) years commencing on January 1 and may be elected 
to serve successive terms. All Chiefs and Vice Chiefs must be physician-members of the 
Active Medical Staff, have relevant clinical privileges and be certified by an appropriate 
specialty board or have affirmatively established comparable competence through the 
credentialing process. In addition, Department Chiefs and Vice Chiefs shall indicate a 
willingness and ability to serve, have no pending adverse recommendations concerning 
Medical Staff appointment or clinical privileges, have no licensure sanctions, have 
participated in Medical Staff leadership training and/or be willing to participate in such 
training during their term of office, and be in compliance with the professional conduct 
policies of the hospital.  Department Chiefs and Vice Chiefs may not simultaneously hold 
a leadership position (any position in which the Member serves on the MEC or the 
Board) on another hospital’s Medical Staff. Noncompliance with this requirement will 
result in the Department Chief or Vice Chief being automatically removed from office. 

5.2.3 For non-exclusively contracted departments, Department Chiefs and Department Vice 
Chiefs shall be elected by plurality vote of the Active members of the Department, 
subject to ratification by the MEC. An Incumbent shall automatically be placed on the 
ballot without requiring nominations if he/she still wishes to run for election.  For non-
incumbents, three nominations are needed from the Active members of the Department in 
order to qualify to be placed on the ballot.  For Departments with less than 15 Members, 
one nomination is needed from an Active Member of the Department in order to qualify 
to be placed on the ballot. The election process will be the same as that for Officers of the 
Medical Staff other than voting shall be limited to the Active Members of the affected 
Department or Subspecialty. Following the election of the Department Chief and Vice-
Chief, the Department Chief shall appoint the respective Subspecialty Head . 

5.2.4 Automatic Removal of elected Chiefs and Vice Chiefs:  The Department Chief or Vice 
Chief may be automatically removed from his/her position if he/she no longer meets the 
qualifications of the position as defined in these Bylaws. 

a. No longer in good standing as evidenced by:  

Page 117 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 14 
Part I:  Governance 

i. an automatic suspension of clinical privileges that lasts more than thirty 
days,  

ii. a summary suspension of greater than fourteen (14) days, or 

iii. any corrective action taken by the MEC or Board; 

b. No longer an Active Member of the Medical Staff; 

c. No longer actively practicing within the Hospital; or 

d.  Holds a leadership position (defined as an MEC or Board member) at another 
hospital. 

5.2.5 Removal of Elected Department Chief or Vice Chief for Failure to Perform Their Duties: 
The Medical Staff of the affected Department may initiate the removal of any 
Department Chief or Vice Chief if at least twenty percent (20%) of the Active members 
sign a petition advocating for such action. Removal shall become effective upon an 
affirmative vote by two thirds (2/3) of those Active staff members casting ballot votes. 

5.2.6 If a Department Chief is removed through this process, the Vice Chief shall assume the 
position of Chair and a new election for Vice Chief will occur within thirty (30) days. 

 Responsibilities of Department Chiefs 

Department Chiefs shall carry out the following responsibilities: 

a. To oversee all clinically-related activities of the Department; 

b. To oversee all administratively-related activities of the Department, unless otherwise 
provided by the hospital; 

c. To provide ongoing surveillance of the performance of all individuals in the Medical Staff 
Department who have been granted clinical privileges; 

d. To recommend to the Credentials Committee the criteria for requesting clinical privileges that 
are relevant to the care provided in the Medical Staff Department; 

e. To recommend clinical privileges for each member of the Department and other licensed  
practitioners practicing with privileges within the scope of the Department; 

f. To assess and recommend to the MEC and hospital administration off-site sources for needed 
patient care services not provided by the Medical Staff Department or the hospital; 

g. To integrate the Department into the primary functions of the hospital; 

h. To coordinate and integrate interdepartmental and intradepartmental services and 
communication; 

i. To develop and implement Medical Staff and hospital policies and procedures that guide and 
support the provision of patient care services and review and update these, at least triennially, 
in such a manner to reflect required changes consistent with current practice, problem 
resolution, and standards changes; 

j. To recommend to the CEO sufficient numbers of qualified and competent persons to provide 
patient care and service; 

k. To provide input to the CEO regarding the qualifications and competence of Department or 
service personnel who are not  licensed practitioners but provide patient care, treatment, and 
services; 

Page 118 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 15 
Part I:  Governance 

l. To continually assess and improve of the quality of care, treatment, and services; 

m. To maintain quality control programs as appropriate; 

n. To orient and continuously educate all persons in the Department; and 

o. To make recommendations to the MEC and the hospital administration for space and other 
resources needed by the Medical Staff Department to provide patient care services. 

 Responsibilities of Department Vice Chief:   

In the absence of the Department Chief, the Department Vice Chief shall assume all the duties 
and have the authority of the Department Chief.  The Department Vice Chief shall perform such 
further duties to assist the Department Chief as the Department Chief may request from time to 
time.  

 Assignment to Department 

The MEC will, after consideration of the recommendations of the Chief(s) of the appropriate 
Department(s), recommend Department assignments for all members in accordance with their 
qualifications. Each member will be assigned to one primary Department. Clinical privileges are 
independent of Department assignment. 

Page 119 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 16 
Part I:  Governance 

Section 6. Committees 

 Designation and Substitution 

There shall be a Medical Executive Committee (MEC) and such other standing and ad hoc 
committees as established by the MEC and enumerated in the Organization and Functions 
Manual of the Rules and Regulations. Meetings of these committees will be either regular or 
special. Those functions requiring participation of, rather than direct oversight by the Medical 
Staff may be discharged by Medical Staff representation on such hospital committees as are 
established to perform such functions. The Chief of Staff may appoint ad hoc committees as 
necessary to address time-limited or specialized tasks. 

 Medical Executive Committee (MEC) 

6.2.1 Committee Membership: 

a. Composition:  The MEC shall be a standing committee consisting of the following 
voting members:  the Officers of the Medical Staff, the Department Chiefs, four (4) 
At-Large Members, the Credentials Committee Chair, the Professional Improvement 
Committee Chair, the Bylaws Committee Chair, and the Advanced Practice 
Professionals Committee Chair. The chair of the MEC will be the Chief of Staff. 
The non-voting members will include the CEO, Chief Operating Officer (COO), 
Chief Nursing Officer (CNO), the Dean of the School of Medicine, and the Director 
of the Office of Military Medicine. 

b. Removal from MEC:  An Officer, MEC At-Large Member, or Department Chief 
who is removed from his/her position in accordance with Section 4.7 and/or Section 
5.2 above will automatically lose his/her membership on the MEC. When the chair 
of either the Credentials Committee, Professional Improvement Committee, or 
Bylaws Committee resigns or is removed from these positions, his/her replacement 
will serve on the MEC. When a member of the MEC who was elected At-Large 
resigns or is removed, the MEC will arrange for an At-Large election for a 
replacement to serve out the remainder of the vacated term. Such an election will 
follow procedures established by the MEC and must take place within sixty (60) 
days of the removal of an MEC member. 

6.2.2 Duties:  The duties of the MEC, as delegated by the Medical Staff, shall be to: 

a. Serve as the final decision-making body of the Medical Staff in accordance with the 
Medical and Dental Staff Bylaws and provide oversight for all Medical Staff 
functions; 

b. Coordinate the implementation of policies adopted by the Board; 

c. Submit recommendations to the Board concerning all matters relating to 
appointment, reappointment, staff category, department assignments, clinical 
privileges, and corrective action; 

d. Report to the Board and to the staff for the overall quality and efficiency of 
professional patient care services provided by individuals with clinical privileges 
and coordinate the participation of the Medical Staff in organizational performance 
improvement activities; 

Page 120 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 17 
Part I:  Governance 

e. Take reasonable steps to encourage and monitor professionally ethical conduct and 
competent clinical performance on the part of practitioners with privileges including 
collegial and educational efforts and investigations, when warranted; 

f. Make recommendations to the Board on medical administrative and hospital 
management matters; 

g. Keep the Medical Staff up-to-date concerning the licensure and accreditation status 
of the hospital; 

h. Participate in identifying community health needs and in setting hospital goals and 
implementing programs to meet those needs; 

i. Review and act on reports from Medical Staff committees, departments, and other 
assigned activity groups; 

j. Formulate and recommend to the Board Medical Staff rules, policies, and 
procedures; 

k. Request evaluations of practitioners privileged through the Medical Staff process 
when there are questions about an applicant or practitioner’s ability to perform 
privileges requested or currently granted; 

l. Make recommendations concerning the structure of the Medical Staff, the 
mechanism by which Medical Staff membership or privileges may be terminated, 
and the mechanisms for fair hearing procedures; 

m. Consult with administration on the quality, timeliness, and appropriateness of 
contracts for patient care services provided to the hospital by entities outside the 
hospital; 

n. Coordinate, with the Compliance Officer, that portion of the corporate compliance 
plan that pertains to the Medical Staff; 

o. Hold Medical Staff leaders, committees, and departments accountable for fulfilling 
their duties and responsibilities; 

p. Make recommendations to the Medical Staff for changes or amendments to the 
Medical and Dental Staff Bylaws; and 

q. The MEC is empowered to act for the organized Medical Staff between meetings of 
the organized Medical Staff. 

6.2.3 Meetings:  The MEC shall meet at least ten (10) times per year and more often as needed 
to perform its assigned functions. Permanent records of its proceedings and actions shall 
be maintained in accordance with applicable law. 

Page 121 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 18 
Part I:  Governance 

Section 7. Medical Staff Meetings 

 Medical Staff Meetings 

7.1.1 An annual meeting will be held, usually in December.  Other general meetings, if any, of 
the Medical Staff shall be held at a time determined by the MEC. Notice of the meeting 
shall be given to all Medical Staff members via appropriate media and posted 
conspicuously. 

7.1.2 Except for Bylaws amendments or as otherwise specified in these Bylaws, the actions of 
a plurality of the members present and voting at a meeting of the Medical Staff is the 
action of the group. Action may be taken without a meeting of the Medical Staff by 
presentation of the question to each member eligible to vote, in person, via telephone, 
and/or by mail or Internet, and their vote recorded in accordance with procedures 
approved by the MEC. Such vote shall be binding so long as the question that is voted on 
receives a plurality of the votes cast. 

7.1.3 Special Meetings of the Medical Staff 

a. The Chief of Staff may call a special meeting of the Medical Staff at any time. The 
Chief of Staff must call a special meeting if so directed by resolution of the MEC. 
Such request or resolution shall state the purpose of the meeting. The Chief of Staff 
shall designate the time and place of any special meeting. 

b. Written or electronic notice stating the time, place, and purposes of any special 
meeting of the Medical Staff shall be conspicuously posted and shall be sent to each 
member of the Medical Staff at least three (3) business days before the date of such 
meeting. No business shall be transacted at any special meeting, except that stated in 
the notice of such meeting. 

 Regular Meetings of Medical Staff Committees and Departments 

Committees and Departments may, by resolution, provide the time for holding regular meetings 
without notice other than such resolution. 

 Special Meetings of Committees and Departments 

A special meeting of any committee or department may be called by the committee chair or Chief 
of the Department thereof or by the Chief of Staff. 

 Quorum 

7.4.1 Medical Staff Meetings:  Those eligible Medical Staff members present and voting on an 
issue. 

7.4.2 MEC, Credentials Committee, and Professional Improvement Committee:  A quorum 
will exist for the MEC and Credentials Committee when fifty percent (50%) of the voting 
members are present. For the Professional Improvement Committee, a quorum will exist 
when at least seven (7) voting members are present. When dealing with Category 1 
requests for routine appointment, reappointment, and clinical privileges the MEC quorum 
will consist of at least three members. 

7.4.3 Department meetings or Medical Staff committees other than those listed in 7.4.2 above:  
Those eligible Medical Staff members present and voting on an issue. 

Page 122 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 19 
Part I:  Governance 

 Attendance Requirements 

7.5.1 Members of the Medical Staff are encouraged to attend meetings of the Medical Staff. 

7.5.2 MEC, Credentials Committee, and Professional Improvement Committee meetings:  
Members of these committees are expected to attend at least two-thirds (2/3rds) of the 
meetings held. Failure to meet the attendance requirements will result in removal of the 
member from the committee. 

 Special Meeting Attendance Requirements:   

Whenever there is a reason to believe that a practitioner is not complying with Medical and 
Dental Staff Bylaws or hospital policies or has deviated from standard clinical or professional 
practice, the Chief of Staff or the applicable Department Chief or Medical Staff committee chair 
may require the practitioner to confer with him/her or with a standing or ad hoc committee that is 
considering the matter. The practitioner will be given special notice of the meeting at least five 
(5) days prior to the meeting. This notice shall include the date, time, place, issue involved and 
that the practitioner’s appearance is mandatory. Failure of the practitioner to appear at any such 
meeting after two notices, unless excused by the MEC for an adequate reason, will result in an 
automatic suspension of the practitioner’s membership and privileges. Such suspension would not 
give rise to a fair hearing, but would automatically be rescinded if and when the practitioner 
participates in the previously referenced meeting. Failure to comply within thirty (30) calendar 
days will be considered a voluntary resignation from the Medical Staff. Nothing in the foregoing 
paragraph shall preclude the initiation of summary restriction or suspension of clinical privileges 
as outlined in Part II of these Bylaws (Investigations, Corrective Action, Hearing and Appeal 
Plan). 

 Participation by the CEO 

The CEO or his/her designee may attend any general, committee, or department meetings of the 
Medical Staff as an ex-officio member without vote. 

 Robert’s Rules of Order 

Medical staff and committee meetings shall be run in a manner determined by the chair of the 
meeting. When parliamentary procedure is needed, as determined by the chair or evidenced by a 
plurality vote of those attending the meeting, the latest abridged edition of Robert’s Rules of 
Order shall determine procedure. 

 Notice of Meetings 

Written or electronic notice stating the place, day, and hour of any special meeting or of any 
regular meeting not held pursuant to resolution shall be delivered or sent to each member of the 
Department or committee not less than three (3) business days before the time of such meeting by 
the person or persons calling the meeting. The attendance of a member at a meeting shall 
constitute a waiver of notice of such meeting. 

Page 123 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 20 
Part I:  Governance 

 Action of Committee or Department 

Only items that appear on the agenda at least one (1) business day in advance of the meeting shall 
be voted upon, with the exception of items needed for regulatory/legal compliance that may 
appear on the agenda at the time of the meeting. The recommendation of a plurality of its 
members present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the action of a committee or 
department. Such recommendation will then be forwarded to the MEC for action. 

 Rights of Ex officio Members 

Except as otherwise provided in these Bylaws, persons serving as ex officio members of a 
committee shall have all rights and privileges of regular members, except that they shall not vote, 
be able to make motions, or be counted in determining the existence of a quorum. 

 Minutes 

Minutes of each regular and special meeting of a committee or department shall be prepared and 
shall include a record of the attendance of members and the vote taken on each matter. The 
presiding committee chair or Department Chief shall authenticate the minutes and copies thereof 
shall be submitted to the MEC or other designated committee. Records of the proceedings shall 
be kept in accordance with applicable law. 

Page 124 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 21 
Part I:  Governance 

Section 8. Conflict Resolution 

 Conflict Resolution 

8.1.1 In the event the Board acts in a manner contrary to a recommendation by the MEC, 
involving issues of patient care or safety, the matter may (at the request of the MEC) be 
submitted to a Joint Conference Committee composed of the Board of Trustees’ 
Chairperson, the Chief Executive Officer or designee, the Chief of Medical and Dental 
Staff or designee, Governing Board Chair or designee, Governing Board Clinical Quality 
and Professional Affairs Sub-Committee Chair, the Performance Improvement 
Chairperson or designee, Associate Administrator of Clinical Intervention / Quality 
Management, Dean of the University of Nevada School of Medicine (or any succeeding 
medical school operated by the Nevada State of Higher Education and affiliated with 
UMC) or designee, one other member of the Board of Trustees and the Nurse Executive, 
Medical Staff for review and recommendation to the full Board. The committee will 
submit its recommendation to the Board within thirty (30) days of its meeting. 

8.1.2 To promote timely and effective communication and to foster collaboration between the 
Board, management, and Medical Staff, the chair of the Board, CEO, or the Chief of Staff 
may call for a meeting between appropriate leaders, for any reason, to seek direct input, 
clarify any issue, or relay information directly. 

8.1.3 Any conflict between the Medical Staff and the Medical Executive Committee will be 
resolved using the mechanisms noted in Sections 2.7.1 through 2.7.4 of Part I of these 
Bylaws. 

8.1.4 The Medical Staff may seek the legal advice of Hospital’s Office of General Counsel on 
matters affecting hospital operations.  Additionally, at its expense, the Medical Staff may 
retain and be represented by independent legal counsel. The authority to engage 
independent legal counsel on behalf of the Medical Staff shall be the prerogative of the 
Medical Executive Committee and may be required in the event that a conflict or 
potential conflict of interest impairs or prohibits Hospital counsel from rendering advice 
based on applicable rules of professional conduct or law. 

Page 125 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 22 
Part I:  Governance 

Section 9. Review, Revision, Adoption, and Amendment 

 Medical Staff Responsibility 

9.1.1 The Medical Staff shall have the responsibility to formulate, review at least triennially, 
and recommend to the Board any Medical and Dental Staff Bylaws, Rules and 
Regulations, policies, procedures, and amendments as needed. Amendments to the 
Bylaws and Rules and Regulations shall be effective when approved by the Board. The 
Medical Staff can exercise this responsibility through its elected and appointed leaders or 
through direct vote of its membership. 

9.1.2 Such responsibility shall be exercised in good faith and in a reasonable, responsible, and 
timely manner. This applies as well to the review, adoption, and amendment of the 
related rules, policies, and protocols developed to implement the various sections of these 
Bylaws. 

 Methods of Adoption and Amendment to These Bylaws 

9.2.1 Proposed amendments to these Bylaws may be originated by the MEC or by a petition 
signed by twenty percent (20%) of the members of the Active category. 

Each Active member of the Medical Staff will be eligible to vote on the proposed 
amendment via printed or secure electronic ballot in a manner determined by the MEC. 
All Active members of the Medical Staff shall receive at least thirty (30) days advance 
notice of the proposed changes. The amendment shall be considered approved by the 
Medical Staff unless a simple majority of those members eligible to vote returns a ballot 
marked “no.” 

Amendments so adopted shall be effective when approved by the Board. 

 Methods of Adoption and Amendment to any Medical Staff Rules and Regulations, and 
Policies 

9.3.1 The Medical Staff may adopt additional rules, regulations, and policies as necessary to 
carry out its functions and meet its responsibilities under these Bylaws. A Rules and 
Regulations and/or Policies Manual may be used to organize these additional documents. 

9.3.2 The MEC shall vote on the proposed language changes at a regular meeting, or at a 
special meeting called for such purpose. Following an affirmative vote by the MEC, 
Rules and Regulations may be adopted, amended, or repealed, in whole or in part and 
such changes shall be effective when approved by the Board. Medical Staff Policies and 
procedures will become effective upon approval of the MEC, subject to final approval by 
the Board. 

9.3.3 In addition to the process described in 9.3.2 above, the organized Medical Staff itself may 
recommend directly to the Board an amendment(s) to any rule, regulation, or policy by 
submitting a petition signed by twenty percent (20%) of the members of the Active 
category. Upon presentation of such petition, the adoption process outlined in 9.2.1 above 
will be followed. 

9.3.4 When a new rule, regulation, or policy is proposed, the proposing party (either the MEC 
or the organized Medical Staff) will communicate the proposal to the other party prior to 
vote. 

Page 126 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 23 
Part I:  Governance 

9.3.5 If the MEC proposes to adopt a rule or regulation, or an amendment thereto, it first 
communicates the proposal to the Medical Staff. In cases of a documented need for an 
urgent amendment to Rules and Regulations necessary to comply with law or regulation, 
the MEC may provisionally adopt and the Governing Board may provisionally approve 
an urgent amendment without prior notification of the Medical Staff. In such cases, the 
MEC immediately informs the Medical Staff. The Medical Staff has the opportunity for 
retrospective review of and comment on the provisional amendment. If there is no 
conflict between the organized Medical Staff and the MEC, the provisional amendment 
stands. If there is conflict over the provisional amendment, the process for resolving 
conflict between the organized Medical Staff and the MEC is implemented. If necessary, 
a revised amendment is then submitted to the Board for action. 

9.3.6 The MEC may adopt such amendments to these Bylaws, rules, regulations, and policies 
that are, in the committee’s judgment, technical or legal modifications, or clarifications. 
Such modifications may include reorganization or renumbering, punctuation, spelling, or 
other errors of grammar or expression. Such amendments need not be approved by the 
entire Board but must be approved by the hospital CEO. Neither the organized Medical 
Staff nor the Board may unilaterally amend the Medical and Dental Staff Bylaws or 
Rules and Regulations. 

 

Page 127 of 853



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 128 of 853



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS 

Part II:  Investigations, Corrective Actions, Hearing 
and Appeal Plan 

 

 

 

Page 129 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page i 
Part II:  Investigations, Corrective Action, Hearing and Appeal Plan 

Part II: Investigations, Corrective Actions, Hearing and Appeal Plan – Table of Contents 

Section 1. Collegial, Educational, and/or Informal Proceedings 1 

Section 2. Investigations 2 

Section 3. Corrective Action 4 

Section 4. Initiation and Notice of Hearing 8 

Section 5. Hearing Panel and Presiding Officer or Hearing Officer 11 

Section 6. Pre-Hearing and Hearing Procedure 13 

Section 7. Appeal to the Hospital Board 16 
 

Page 130 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 1 
Part II:  Investigations, Corrective Action, Hearing and Appeal Plan 

Section 1. Collegial, Educational, and/or Informal Proceedings 

 Criteria for Initiation 

These Bylaws encourage Medical Staff leaders and hospital management to use progressive steps, 
beginning with collegial and education efforts, to address questions relating to an individual’s 
clinical practice and/or professional conduct. The goal of these progressive steps is to help the 
individual voluntarily respond to resolve questions that have been raised. All collegial 
intervention efforts by Medical Staff leaders and hospital management shall be considered 
confidential, subject to all applicable laws, and part of the hospital’s performance improvement 
and professional and peer review activities. Collegial intervention efforts are encouraged, but are 
not mandatory, and shall be within the discretion of the appropriate Medical Staff leaders and 
hospital management. When any observations arise suggesting opportunities for a practitioner to 
improve, the matter should be referred for peer review in accordance with the peer review and 
performance improvement policies adopted by the Medical Staff and hospital. Collegial 
intervention efforts may include but are not limited to the following: 

a. Educating and advising colleagues of all applicable policies, including those related to 
appropriate behavior, emergency call obligations, and the timely and adequate completion of 
medical records; 

b. Following up on any questions or concerns raised about the clinical practice and/or conduct 
of privileged practitioners and recommending such steps as proctoring, monitoring, 
consultation, and letters of guidance; and 

c. Sharing summary comparative quality, utilization, and other relevant information to assist 
individuals to conform their practices to appropriate norms. 

Following collegial intervention efforts, if it appears that the practitioner’s performance places 
patients in danger or compromises the quality of care, or in cases where it appears that patients 
may be placed in harm’s way while collegial interventions are undertaken, the MEC will consider 
whether it should be recommended to the Board to restrict or revoke the practitioner’s 
membership and/or privileges. Before issuing such a recommendation the MEC may authorize an 
investigation for the purpose of gathering and evaluating any evidence and its sufficiency. 

Page 131 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 2 
Part II:  Investigations, Corrective Action, Hearing and Appeal Plan 

Section 2. Investigations 

 Initiation 

A request for an investigation must be submitted in writing by a Medical Staff officer, committee 
chair, Department Chief, CEO, CMO, or hospital board chair to the MEC. The request must be 
supported by references to the specific activities or conduct that is of concern. If the MEC itself 
initiates an investigation, it shall appropriately document its reasons. 

 Preliminary Investigation 

The MEC recognizes that there are situations where incidents of inappropriate conduct, disruptive 
behavior, or competency require an immediate preliminary investigation or review.  When 
dealing with such circumstances, the Chief of Staff, or his or her designee, may immediately 
investigate or review the matter on behalf of the MEC to ensure the orderly operation of the 
hospital and safety of UMC patients, personnel, and practitioners.  If warranted, the information 
developed during such a preliminary investigation or review shall be presented at the next 
regularly scheduled meeting of the MEC.  The MEC shall determine whether to open a formal 
investigation as set forth in Section 2.3 or take any other appropriate action that may be warranted 
by the circumstances. 

 Investigation 

If the MEC decides that an investigation is warranted, it shall direct an investigation to be 
undertaken through the adoption of a formal resolution. In the event the Board believes the MEC 
has incorrectly determined that an investigation is unnecessary, it may direct the MEC to proceed 
with an investigation. 

The MEC may conduct the investigation itself or may assign the task to an appropriate standing 
or ad hoc committee of the Medical Staff. 

If the investigation is delegated to a committee other than the MEC, such committee shall proceed 
with the investigation promptly and forward a written report of its findings, conclusions, and 
recommendations to the MEC as soon as feasible. The committee conducting the investigation 
shall have the authority to review all documents it considers relevant, to interview individuals, to 
consider appropriate clinical literature and practice guidelines, and to utilize the resources of an 
external consultant if it deems a consultant is necessary and such action is approved by the MEC 
and the CEO. The investigating body may also require the practitioner under review to undergo a 
physical and/or mental examination and may access the results of such exams. The investigating 
body shall notify the practitioner in question of the allegations that are the basis for the 
investigation and provide to the practitioner an opportunity to provide information in a manner 
and upon such terms as the investigating body deems appropriate. The meeting between the 
practitioner in question and the investigating body (and meetings with any other individuals the 
investigating body chooses to interview) shall not constitute a “hearing” as that term is used in the 
hearing and appeals sections of these Bylaws. The procedural rules with respect to hearings or 
appeals shall not apply to these meetings either. The individual being investigated shall not have 
the right to be represented by legal counsel before the investigating body nor to compel the 
Medical Staff to engage external consultation. Despite the status of any investigation, the MEC 
shall retain the authority and discretion to take whatever action may be warranted by the 
circumstances, including suspension, termination of the investigative process, or other action. 

2.3.1 An external peer review consultant should be considered when: 

a. Litigation seems likely; 

Page 132 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 3 
Part II:  Investigations, Corrective Action, Hearing and Appeal Plan 

b. The hospital is faced with ambiguous or conflicting recommendations from Medical 
Staff committees, or where there does not appear to be a strong consensus for a 
particular recommendation. In these circumstances consideration may be given by the 
MEC or the Board to retain an objective external reviewer; 

c. There is no one on the Medical Staff with expertise in the subject under review, or 
when the only physicians on the Medical Staff with appropriate expertise are direct 
competitors, partners, or associates of the practitioner under review. 

 MEC Action 

As soon as feasible after the conclusion of the investigation the MEC shall take action that may 
include, without limitation, and consistent with Section 4 of this Investigations, Corrective Action 
Hearing and Appeal Plan: 

a. Determining no corrective action is warranted, if the MEC determines there was not 
credible evidence for the complaint in the first instance; 

b. Deferring action for a reasonable time when circumstances warrant; 

c. Issuing letters of education, admonition, censure, reprimand, or warning, although 
nothing herein shall be deemed to preclude appropriate committee chairs or 
Department Chiefs from issuing informal written or oral warnings prior to an 
investigation. In the event such letters are issued, the affected practitioner may make 
a written response, which shall be placed in the practitioner’s file; 

d. Recommending the imposition of terms of probation or special limitation upon 
continued Medical Staff membership or exercise of clinical privileges, including, 
without limitation, requirements for co-admissions, mandatory consultation, or 
monitoring/proctoring; 

e. Recommending denial, restriction, modification, reduction, suspension, revocation, 
or probation of clinical privileges; 

f. Recommending reductions of membership status or limitation of any prerogatives 
directly related to the practitioner’s delivery of patient care; 

g. Recommending suspension, revocation, or probation of Medical Staff membership; 
or 

h. Taking other actions deemed appropriate under the circumstances. 

 Subsequent Action 

The Board shall act on the MEC’s recommendation unless the member requests a hearing, in 
which case the final decision shall be determined as set forth in this Hearing and Appeal plan. 

Page 133 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 4 
Part II:  Investigations, Corrective Action, Hearing and Appeal Plan 

Section 3. Corrective Action 

 Automatic Relinquishment/Voluntary Resignation 

In the following triggering circumstances, the practitioner’s privileges and/or membership will be 
considered relinquished, or limited as described, and the action shall be final without a right to 
hearing. It shall be the responsibility of each practitioner to report immediately to the Chief of 
Staff any of the following triggering circumstances or any proceeding, investigation, complaint or 
charge that might result in any of the following triggering circumstances.  

Where a bona fide dispute exists as to whether the circumstances have occurred, the 
relinquishment, suspension, or limitation will stand until the MEC determines it is not applicable. 
The MEC will make such a determination as soon as feasible. The Chief of Staff may reinstate 
the practitioner’s privileges or membership after determining that the triggering circumstances 
have been rectified or are no longer present. If the triggering circumstances have not been 
resolved within sixty days, the practitioner will have to reapply for membership and/or privileges. 
In addition, further corrective action may be recommended in accordance with these Bylaws 
whenever any of the following triggering circumstances occur: 

3.1.1 Licensure. 

a. Revocation and suspension:  Whenever a practitioner’s license or other legal 
credential authorizing practice in this state is revoked, suspended, expired, or 
voluntarily relinquished, Medical Staff membership and clinical privileges shall be 
automatically relinquished by the practitioner as of the date such action becomes 
effective. 

b. Restriction:  Whenever a practitioner’s license or other legal credential authorizing 
practice in this state is limited or restricted by an applicable licensing or certifying 
authority, any clinical privileges that the practitioner has been granted at this hospital 
that are within the scope of said limitation or restriction shall be automatically limited 
or restricted in a similar manner, as of the date such action becomes effective and 
throughout its term. 

c. Probation:  Whenever a practitioner is placed on probation by the applicable 
licensing or certifying authority, his or her membership status and clinical privileges 
shall automatically become subject to the same terms and conditions of the probation 
as of the date such action becomes effective and throughout its term. 

3.1.2 Medicare, Medicaid, Tricare or other Federal Program Exclusion:  Whenever a 
practitioner is sanctioned or barred from Medicare, Medicaid, Tricare, or other federal 
programs, Medical Staff membership and clinical privileges shall be considered 
automatically relinquished as of the date such action becomes effective. Any practitioner 
listed on the United States Department of Health and Human Services Office of the 
Inspector General’s List of Excluded Individuals/Entities will be considered to have 
automatically relinquished his or her privileges. 

Page 134 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 5 
Part II:  Investigations, Corrective Action, Hearing and Appeal Plan 

3.1.3 Controlled substances 

a. DEA certificate and Nevada Pharmacy Certificate of Registration:  Whenever a 
practitioner’s United States Drug Enforcement Agency (DEA) certificate or Nevada 
Pharmacy Certificate of Registration is revoked, limited, or suspended, the 
practitioner will automatically and correspondingly be divested of the right to 
prescribe medications covered by the certificate, as of the date such action becomes 
effective and throughout its term. 

b. Probation:  Whenever a practitioner’s DEA certificate or Nevada Pharmacy 
Certificate of Registration is subject to probation, the practitioner’s right to prescribe 
such medications shall automatically become subject to the same terms of the 
probation, as of the date such action becomes effective and throughout its term. 

3.1.4 Medical record completion requirements:  A practitioner will be considered to have 
voluntarily relinquished the privilege to admit new patients or schedule new procedures 
whenever s/he fails to complete medical records within time frames outlined in the 
Electronic Health Record System policy. This relinquishment of privileges shall not 
apply to patients admitted or already scheduled at the time of relinquishment, to 
emergency patients, or to imminent deliveries. The relinquished privileges will be 
automatically restored upon completion of the medical records and compliance with 
medical records policies. 

3.1.5 Professional liability insurance:  The minimum amount per occurrence shall be 
$100,000.00 with a minimum aggregate of $300,000.00.  Employed Physicians, Dentists 
or Podiatrists will provide a UMC Certificate of Insurance and Statement of 
Indemnification, pursuant to Section 41.038 of the Nevada Revised Statutes. The 
Advanced Practice Professional covered under the policy of his or her sponsor is required 
to submit a copy of the sponsor's policy and rider with a statement signed by the sponsor 
stating that the Advanced Practice Professional is covered under that policy, when 
applicable. Failure of a practitioner to maintain professional liability insurance in this 
manner shall result in immediate, automatic relinquishment of a practitioner’s clinical 
privileges. The practitioner must notify the Medical Staff office immediately of any 
change in professional liability insurance carrier or coverage. 

3.1.6 Medical Staff dues/fees/assessments:  Failure to promptly pay Medical Staff dues or 
any fee or assessment shall be considered an automatic relinquishment of a practitioner’s 
appointment. If within 60 calendar days after written warning of the delinquency the 
practitioner does not remit such payments, the practitioner shall be considered to have 
voluntarily resigned membership on the Medical Staff. 

3.1.7 Felony conviction:  A practitioner who has been convicted of or entered a plea of 
“guilty” or “no contest” or its equivalent to a felony relating to controlled substances, 
illegal drugs, insurance or healthcare fraud or abuse, violence, or abuse (physical, sexual, 
child or elder) in any jurisdiction shall automatically relinquish Medical Staff 
membership and privileges. Such relinquishment shall become effective immediately 
upon such conviction or plea regardless of whether an appeal is filed.  

Page 135 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 6 
Part II:  Investigations, Corrective Action, Hearing and Appeal Plan 

3.1.8 Failure to satisfy the special appearance requirement:  A practitioner having received 
two notices and who fails without good cause to appear at a meeting where his/her 
special appearance is required under these Bylaws shall be considered to have 
automatically relinquished all clinical privileges with the exception of emergencies and 
imminent deliveries. These privileges will be reinstated when the practitioner complies 
with the special appearance requirement. Failure to comply within 30 calendar days will 
be considered a voluntary resignation from the Medical Staff. 

3.1.9 Failure to participate in an evaluation:  A practitioner who fails to participate in an 
evaluation of his/her qualifications for Medical Staff membership or privileges as 
required under these Bylaws, Rules and Regulations, or Medical Staff/hospital policies 
(whether an evaluation of physical or mental health, of clinical management skills, or of 
fitness to practice), shall be considered to have automatically relinquished all privileges. 
Subject to the findings of any such evaluation, these privileges may be restored following 
the practitioner’s compliance with the requirement for an evaluation. Failure to comply 
within thirty (30) calendar days will be considered a voluntary resignation from the 
Medical Staff. 

3.1.10 Failure to become board certified:  A practitioner who fails to become board certified 
in compliance with the eligibility criteria set forth in the Delineation of Privileges form of 
his or her Department will be deemed to have immediately and voluntarily relinquished 
his or her Medical Staff appointment and clinical privileges, unless an exception is 
granted, for a good cause, by the Board upon recommendation from the MEC. 

3.1.11 Failure to Meet UMC Vaccination Requirements: Unless approved for a medical or 
religious exemption from such requirement, any practitioner who  fails to submit proof of 
full vaccination  in accordance with UMC hospital policies shall be considered to have 
automatically relinquished all privileges.  If the practitioner submits proof of compliance 
with UMC hospital vaccination policies within thirty (30) calendar days of notice of the 
automatic relinquishment, the practitioner’s privileges may be reinstated. Thereafter, the 
member will be deemed to have voluntarily resigned from the staff and must reapply for 
staff membership and privileges. 

3.1.12 Failure to execute release and/or provide documents:  A practitioner who fails to 
execute a general or specific release of information and/or provide documents when 
requested by the Chief of Staff or designee to evaluate the competency and 
credentialing/privileging qualifications of the practitioner shall be considered to have 
automatically relinquished all privileges. If the release is executed and/or documents 
provided within thirty (30) calendar days of notice of the automatic relinquishment, the 
practitioner may be reinstated. Thereafter, the member will be deemed to have resigned 
voluntarily from the staff and must reapply for staff membership and privileges. 

3.1.13 MEC Deliberation:  As soon as feasible after action is taken or warranted as described 
above, the MEC shall convene to review and consider the facts, and may recommend 
such further corrective action as it may deem appropriate following the procedure 
generally set forth in these Bylaws. 

Page 136 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 7 
Part II:  Investigations, Corrective Action, Hearing and Appeal Plan 

 Summary Restriction or Suspension 

3.2.1 Criteria for Initiation:  A summary restriction or suspension may be imposed when a 
good faith belief exists that immediate action must be taken to protect the life or well-
being of patient(s); or to reduce a substantial and imminent likelihood of significant 
impairment of the life, health, and safety of any person. Under such circumstances one 
Medical Staff leader (Chief of Staff or designee) and one administrator (CEO or 
designee) may suspend or restrict the Medical Staff membership or clinical privileges of 
such practitioner.  A summary suspension or restriction of all or any portion of a 
practitioner’s clinical privileges at another hospital may be grounds for a summary 
suspension of all or any of the practitioner’s clinical privileges at this hospital. 

Unless otherwise stated, such summary restriction or suspension shall become effective 
immediately upon imposition and the person or body responsible shall promptly give 
written notice to the practitioner, the MEC, the CEO, and the Board. The notice shall 
contain the basis of the summary restriction or suspension and the findings supporting its 
imposition. The restriction or suspension may be limited in duration and shall remain in 
effect for the period stated or, if none, until resolved as set forth herein. The summary 
suspension is not a complete professional review action in and of itself, and it shall not 
imply any final finding regarding the circumstances that caused the suspension. 

Unless otherwise indicated by the terms of the summary restriction or suspension, the 
practitioner’s patients shall be promptly assigned to another Medical Staff member by the 
Chief of Staff or designee, considering, where feasible, the wishes of the affected 
practitioner and the patient in the choice of a substitute practitioner. 

3.2.2 MEC action:  As soon as feasible and within 14 calendar days after such summary 
suspension has been imposed, the MEC shall meet to review and consider the action and 
if necessary begin the investigation process as noted in Section 2 above. Upon request, 
and at the discretion of the MEC, the practitioner will be given the opportunity to address 
the MEC concerning the action, on such terms and conditions as the MEC may impose, 
although in no event shall any meeting of the MEC, with or without the practitioner, 
constitute a “hearing” as defined in this Hearing and Appeal Plan, nor shall any 
procedural rules with respect to hearing and appeal apply and no legal counsel will be 
allowed to attend. The MEC may modify, continue, or terminate the summary restriction 
or suspension, but in any event it shall furnish the practitioner with notice of its decision. 
Unless the MEC terminates the suspension within 14 calendar days, notice of the MEC’s 
decision shall comply with the requirements for Notice for Recommendation of Adverse 
Action set forth in these Bylaws.  

3.2.3 Procedural rights:  Unless the MEC promptly terminates the summary restriction or 
suspension prior to or immediately after reviewing the results of any investigation 
described above, the privileged practitioner (or applicant for privileges) shall be entitled 
to the procedural rights afforded by this Hearing and Appeal Plan once the restrictions or 
suspension last more than 14 calendar days.  Unless the MEC has terminated the 
summary restriction or suspension, it shall remain in effect during the pendency and 
completion of the corrective action and hearing process. 

Page 137 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 8 
Part II:  Investigations, Corrective Action, Hearing and Appeal Plan 

Section 4. Initiation and Notice of Hearing 

 Initiation of Hearing 

Any practitioner eligible for Medical Staff appointment or privileges shall be entitled to request a 
hearing whenever an unfavorable recommendation with regard to clinical competence or 
professional conduct has been made by the MEC or the Board. Hearings will be triggered only by 
the following “adverse actions” when the basis for such action is related to clinical competence or 
professional conduct: 

a. Denial of Medical Staff appointment or reappointment; 

b. Revocation of Medical Staff appointment; 

c. Denial or restriction of requested clinical privileges, but only if such restriction is for more 
than fourteen (14) calendar days and is not caused by the member’s failure to complete 
medical records or any other reason unrelated to clinical competence or professional conduct; 

d. Involuntary reduction or revocation of clinical privileges; 

e. Application of a mandatory concurring consultation requirement, or an increase in the 
stringency of a pre-existing mandatory concurring consultation requirement, when such 
requirement only applies to an individual Medical Staff member and is imposed for more 
than fourteen (14) calendar days; or 

f. Suspension of staff appointment or clinical privileges, but only if such suspension is for more 
than fourteen (14) calendar days and is not caused by the member’s failure to complete 
medical records or any other reason unrelated to clinical competence or professional conduct. 

 Hearings Will Not Be Triggered by the Following Actions 

a. Issuance of a letter of guidance, warning, or reprimand; 

b. Imposition of a requirement for proctoring (i.e., observation of the practitioner’s performance 
by a peer in order to provide information to a Medical Staff peer review committee) with no 
restriction on privileges; 

c. Failure to process a request for a privilege when the applicant/member does not meet the 
eligibility criteria to hold that privilege; 

d. Conducting an investigation into any matter or the appointment of an ad hoc investigation 
committee; 

e. Requirement to appear for a special meeting under the provisions of these Bylaws; 

f. Automatic relinquishment or voluntary resignation of appointment or privileges; 

g. Imposition of a summary suspension that does not exceed fourteen (14) calendar days; 

h. Denial of a request for leave of absence, or for an extension of a leave; 

i. Determination that an application is incomplete or untimely; 

j. Determination that an application will not be processed due to misstatement or omission; 

k. Decision not to expedite an application; 

l. Denial, termination, or limitation of temporary privileges unless for demonstrated 
incompetence or unprofessional conduct; 

Page 138 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 9 
Part II:  Investigations, Corrective Action, Hearing and Appeal Plan 

m. Determination that an applicant for membership does not meet the requisite 
qualifications/criteria for membership; 

n. Ineligibility to request membership or privileges or continue privileges because a relevant 
specialty is closed under a Medical Staff development plan or covered under an exclusive 
provider agreement; 

o. Imposition of supervision, with no restriction on clinical privileges, pending completion of an 
investigation to determine whether corrective action is warranted; 

p. Termination of any contract with or employment by hospital; 

q. Proctoring, monitoring, and any other performance monitoring requirements, with no 
restriction on clinical privileges, imposed in order to fulfill any Joint Commission standards 
on focused professional practice evaluation; 

r. Any recommendation voluntarily accepted by the practitioner; 

s. Expiration of membership and privileges as a result of failure to submit an application for 
reappointment within the allowable time period; 

t. Change in assigned staff category; 

u. Refusal of the Credentials Committee or MEC to consider a request for appointment, 
reappointment, or privileges within five (5) years of a final adverse decision regarding such 
request; 

v. Removal or limitations of emergency department call obligations; 

w. Any requirement to complete an educational assessment; 

x. Retrospective chart review; 

y. Any requirement to complete a health and/or psychiatric/psychological assessment required 
under these Bylaws; 

z. Any action recommended or taken which is not reportable to the state or the National 
Practitioner Data Bank; 

aa. Grant of conditional appointment or appointment for a limited duration; or 

bb. Appointment or reappointment for duration of less than 24 months. 

 Notice of Recommendation of Adverse Action 

When a summary suspension lasts more than fourteen (14) calendar days or when a 
recommendation is made, which, according to this Hearing and Appeal Plan entitles an individual 
to request a hearing prior to a final decision of the Board, the affected individual shall promptly 
(but no longer than five (5) calendar days) be given written notice by the Chief of Staff delivered 
either in person or by certified mail, return receipt requested. This notice shall contain: 

a. A statement of the recommendation made and the general reasons for it (Statement of 
Reasons); 

b. Notice that the individual shall have thirty (30) calendar days following the date of the receipt 
of such notice within which to request a hearing on the recommendation; 

c. Notice that the recommendation, if finally adopted by the Board, may result in a report to the 
state licensing authority (or other applicable state agencies) and the National Practitioner 
Data Bank;  

Page 139 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 10 
Part II:  Investigations, Corrective Action, Hearing and Appeal Plan 

d. A summary of the practitioner’s rights to be afforded at the hearing, including the 
practitioner’s right to representation by counsel, to have a record made of the proceedings, to 
call and cross-examine witnesses, to submit a written closing statement, and to receive a 
written decision by the Hospital; and 

e. The individual shall receive a copy of Part II of these Bylaws outlining procedural rights with 
regard to the hearing. 

 Request for Hearing 

A practitioner shall have thirty (30) calendar days following the date of the receipt of such notice 
within which to request the hearing. The request shall be made in writing to the Chief of Staff or 
designee. In the event the affected individual does not request a hearing within the time and in the 
manner required by this policy, the individual shall be deemed to have waived the right to such 
hearing and to have accepted the recommendation made. Such recommended action shall become 
effective immediately upon final board action. 

 Notice of Hearing and Statement of Reasons 

Upon receipt of the practitioner’s timely request for a hearing, the Chief of Staff shall schedule 
the hearing and shall give written notice to the person who requested the hearing. The notice shall 
include: 

a. The time, place, and date of the hearing; 

b. A proposed list of witnesses (as known at that time, but which may be modified) who will 
give testimony or evidence on behalf of the MEC, (or the Board), at the hearing; 

c. The names of the hearing panel members and presiding officer or hearing officer, if known; 
and 

d. A statement of the specific reasons for the recommendation as well as the list of patient 
records and/or information supporting the recommendation. This statement, and the list of 
supporting patient record numbers and other information, may be amended or added to at any 
time, even during the hearing so long as the additional material is relevant to the continued 
appointment or clinical privileges of the individual requesting the hearing, and that the 
individual and the individual’s counsel have sufficient time to study this additional 
information and rebut it. 

The hearing shall begin as soon as feasible, but no sooner than thirty (30) calendar days after the 
notice of the hearing unless an earlier hearing date has been specifically agreed to in writing by 
both parties. 

 Witness List 

At least fifteen (15) calendar days before the hearing, each party shall furnish to the other a 
written list of the names of the witnesses intended to be called. Either party may request that the 
other party provide either a list of, or copies of, all documents that will be offered as pertinent 
information or relied upon by witnesses at the Hearing Panel and which are pertinent to the basis 
for which the disciplinary action was proposed. The witness list of either party may, in the 
discretion of the presiding officer, be supplemented or amended at any time during the course of 
the hearing, provided that notice of the change is given to the other party. The presiding officer 
shall have the authority to limit the number of witnesses. 

Page 140 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 11 
Part II:  Investigations, Corrective Action, Hearing and Appeal Plan 

Section 5. Hearing Panel and Presiding Officer or Hearing Officer 

 Hearing Panel 

a. When a hearing is requested, a hearing panel of not fewer than three individuals will be 
appointed. This panel will be appointed by a joint decision of the CEO and the Chief of Staff. 
No individual appointed to the hearing panel shall have actively participated in the 
consideration of the matter involved at any previous level. However, mere knowledge of the 
matter involved shall not preclude any individual from serving as a member of the hearing 
panel. Employment by, or a contract with, the hospital or an affiliate shall not preclude any 
individual from serving on the hearing panel. Hearing panel members need not be members 
of the hospital Medical Staff. When the issue before the panel is a question of clinical 
competence, all panel members shall be clinical practitioners. Panel members need not be 
clinicians in the same specialty as the member requesting the hearing. 

b. The hearing panel shall not include any individual who is in direct economic competition 
with the affected practitioner or any such individual who is professionally associated with or 
related to the affected practitioner. This restriction on appointment shall include any 
individual designated as the chair or the presiding officer. 

c. The Chief of Staff or designee shall notify the practitioner requesting the hearing of the 
names of the panel members and the date by which the practitioner must object, if at all, to 
appointment of any member(s). Any objection to any member of the hearing panel or to the 
hearing officer or presiding officer shall be made in writing to the Chief of Staff, who shall 
determine whether a replacement panel member should be identified. Although the 
practitioner who is the subject of the hearing may object to a panel member, s/he is not 
entitled to veto that member’s participation. Final authority to appoint panel members will 
rest with the Chief of Staff. 

 Hearing Panel Chairperson or Presiding Officer 

5.2.1 In lieu of a hearing panel chair, the CEO, acting for the Board and after considering the 
recommendations of the Chief of Staff (or those of the chair of the Board, if the hearing is 
occasioned by a Board determination) may appoint an attorney at law or other individual 
experienced in legal proceedings as presiding officer. The presiding officer should have 
no conflict of interest with either the hospital or the practitioner. Such presiding officer 
will not act as a prosecuting officer, or as an advocate for either side at the hearing. The 
presiding officer may participate in the private deliberations of the hearing panel and may 
serve as a legal advisor to it, but shall not be entitled to vote on its recommendation. 

5.2.2 If no presiding officer has been appointed, a chair of the hearing panel shall be appointed 
by the Chief of Staff to serve as the presiding officer and shall be entitled to one vote. 

5.2.3 The presiding officer (or hearing panel chair) shall do the following: 

a. Act to insure that all participants in the hearing have a reasonable opportunity to be 
heard and to present relevant oral and documentary evidence subject to reasonable 
limits on the number of witnesses and duration of direct and cross examination, 
applicable to both sides, as may be necessary to avoid cumulative or irrelevant 
testimony or to prevent abuse of the hearing process; 

b. Prohibit conduct or presentation of evidence that is cumulative, excessive, 
irrelevant, or abusive, or that causes undue delay. In general, it is expected that a 
hearing will last no more than eight (8) hours over two (2) days; 

Page 141 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 12 
Part II:  Investigations, Corrective Action, Hearing and Appeal Plan 

c. Maintain decorum throughout the hearing; 

d. Determine the order of procedure throughout the hearing; 

e. Have the authority and discretion, in accordance with these Bylaws, to make rulings 
on all questions that pertain to matters of procedure and to the admissibility of 
evidence; 

f. Act in such a way that all information reasonably relevant to the continued 
appointment or clinical privileges of the individual requesting the hearing is 
considered by the hearing panel in formulating its recommendations; 

g. Conduct argument by counsel on procedural points and may do so outside the 
presence of the hearing panel; and 

h. Seek legal counsel when s/he feels it is appropriate. Legal counsel to the hospital 
may advise the presiding officer or panel chair on issues of Nevada law. 

 Hearing Officer (for non-clinical issues only) 

5.3.1 As an alternative to the hearing panel described above, the Chief of Staff (or the chair of 
the Board, if the hearing is occasioned by a Board determination) may instead appoint a 
hearing officer to perform the functions that would otherwise be carried out by the 
hearing panel. The hearing officer may be an attorney in non-clinical matters. 

5.3.2 The hearing officer may not be any individual who is in direct economic competition 
with the individual requesting the hearing, and shall not act as a prosecuting officer or as 
an advocate to either side at the hearing. In the event a hearing officer is appointed 
instead of a hearing panel, all references to the “hearing panel” or “presiding officer” 
shall be deemed to refer instead to the hearing officer, unless the context would clearly 
require otherwise. 

Page 142 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 13 
Part II:  Investigations, Corrective Action, Hearing and Appeal Plan 

Section 6. Pre-Hearing and Hearing Procedure 

 Provision of Relevant Information 

6.1.1 There is no right to formal “discovery” in connection with the hearing. The presiding 
officer, hearing panel chair, or hearing officer shall rule on any dispute regarding 
discoverability and may impose any safeguards, including denial or limitation of 
discovery to protect the peer review process and ensure a reasonable and fair hearing. In 
general and pursuant to Nevada law, the individual requesting the hearing shall be 
entitled, upon specific request, to the following, subject to a stipulation signed by both 
parties, the individual’s counsel and any experts that such documents shall be maintained 
as confidential consistent with all applicable state and federal peer review and privacy 
statutes and shall not be disclosed or used for any purpose outside of the hearing: 

a. Copies of, or reasonable access to, all patient medical records referred to in the 
Statement of Reasons, at his or her expense; and 

b. Reports of experts relied upon by the MEC. 

No information regarding other practitioners shall be requested, provided, or considered 
and evidence unrelated to the reasons for the recommendation or to the individual’s 
qualifications for appointment or the relevant clinical privileges shall be excluded. 

6.1.2 Prior to the hearing, on dates set by the presiding officer or agreed upon by counsel for 
both sides, each party shall provide the other party with all proposed exhibits. All 
objections to documents or witnesses to the extent then reasonably known shall be 
submitted in writing prior to the hearing. The presiding officer shall not entertain 
subsequent objections unless the party offering the objection demonstrates good cause. 

6.1.3 There shall be no contact by the individual who is the subject of the hearing with those 
individuals appearing on the hospital’s witness list concerning the subject matter of the 
hearing; nor shall there be contact by the hospital with individuals appearing on the 
affected individual’s witness list concerning the subject matter of the hearing, unless 
specifically agreed upon by that individual or his/her counsel. 

 Pre-Hearing Conference 

The presiding officer may require a representative for the individual and for the MEC (or the 
Board) to participate in a pre-hearing conference. At the pre-hearing conference, the presiding 
officer shall resolve all procedural questions, including any objections to exhibits or witnesses, 
and determine the time to be allotted to each witness’s testimony and cross-examination.  

 Failure to Appear 

Failure, without good cause, of the individual requesting the hearing to appear and proceed at 
such a hearing shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of all hearing and appeal rights and a 
voluntary acceptance of the recommendations or actions pending, which shall then be forwarded 
to the Board for final action. Good cause for failure to appear will be determined by the presiding 
officer, chair of the hearing panel, or hearing officer. 

Page 143 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 14 
Part II:  Investigations, Corrective Action, Hearing and Appeal Plan 

 Record of Hearing 

The hearing panel shall maintain a record of the hearing by a reporter present to make a record of 
the hearing or a recording of the proceedings. The cost of such reporter shall be borne by the 
hospital, but copies of the transcript shall be provided to the individual requesting the hearing at 
that individual’s expense. The hearing panel may, but shall not be required to, order that oral 
evidence shall be taken only on oath or affirmation administered by any person designated to 
administer such oaths and entitled to notarize documents in the State of Nevada. 

 Rights of the Practitioner and the Hospital 

6.5.1 At the hearing both sides shall have the following rights, subject to reasonable limits 
determined by the presiding officer: 

a. To call and examine witnesses to the extent available; 

b. To introduce exhibits; 

c. To cross-examine any witness on any matter relevant to the issues and to rebut any 
evidence; 

d. To have representation by counsel who may be present at the hearing, advise his or 
her client, and participate in resolving procedural matters. Attorneys may not argue 
the case for his/her client. Both sides shall notify the other of the name of their 
counsel at least ten (10) calendar days prior to the date of the hearing; 

e. To submit a written statement at the close of the hearing. 

6.5.2 Any individuals requesting a hearing who do not testify in their own behalf may be called 
and examined as if under cross-examination. 

6.5.3 The hearing panel may question the witnesses, call additional witnesses, or request 
additional documentary evidence. 

 Admissibility of Evidence 

The hearing shall not be conducted according to legal rules of evidence. Hearsay evidence shall 
not be excluded merely because it may constitute legal hearsay. Any relevant evidence shall be 
admitted if it is the sort of evidence on which responsible persons are accustomed to rely in the 
conduct of serious affairs, regardless of the admissibility of such evidence in a court of law. 

 Burden of Proof 

It is the burden of the MEC (or Board) to demonstrate that the action recommended is valid and 
appropriate. It is the burden of the practitioner under review to demonstrate that s/he satisfies, on 
a continuing basis, all criteria for initial appointment, reappointment, and clinical privileges and 
fully complies with all Medical Staff and hospital policies. 

 Post-Hearing Memoranda 

Each party shall have the right to submit a post-hearing memorandum, and the hearing panel may 
request such a memorandum to be filed, following the close of the hearing. 

Page 144 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 15 
Part II:  Investigations, Corrective Action, Hearing and Appeal Plan 

 Official Notice 

The presiding officer shall have the discretion to take official notice of any matters, either 
technical or scientific, relating to the issues under consideration. Participants in the hearing shall 
be informed of the matters to be officially noticed and such matters shall be noted in the record of 
the hearing. Either party shall have the opportunity to request that a matter be officially noticed or 
to refute the noticed matter by evidence or by written or oral presentation of authority. 
Reasonable additional time shall be granted, if requested by either party, to present written 
rebuttal of any evidence admitted on official notice. 

 Postponements and Extensions 

Postponements and extensions of time beyond any time limit set forth in this policy may be 
requested by anyone but shall be permitted only by the presiding officer or the Chief of Staff on a 
showing of good cause. 

 Persons to be Present 

The hearing shall be restricted to those individuals involved in the proceeding. Administrative 
personnel may be present as requested by the Chief of Staff or CEO. All members of the hearing 
panel shall be present for all stages of the hearing and deliberations. 

 Order of Presentation 

The Board or the MEC, depending on whose recommendation prompted the hearing initially, 
shall first present evidence in support of its recommendation. Thereafter, the burden shall shift to 
the individual who requested the hearing to present evidence. 

 Basis of Recommendation 

The hearing panel shall recommend in favor of the MEC (or the Board) unless it finds that the 
individual who requested the hearing has proved, by a preponderance of the evidence, that the 
recommendation that prompted the hearing was arbitrary, capricious, or not supported by credible 
evidence. 

 Adjournment and Conclusion 

The presiding officer may adjourn the hearing and reconvene the same at the convenience and 
with the agreement of the participants. Upon conclusion of the presentation of evidence by the 
parties and questions by the hearing panel, the hearing shall be closed. 

 Deliberations and Recommendation of the Hearing Panel 

Within twenty (20) calendar days after final adjournment of the hearing, the hearing panel shall 
conduct its deliberations outside the presence of any other person (except the presiding officer, if 
one is appointed) and shall render a recommendation, accompanied by a report, signed by all the 
panel members, which shall contain a concise statement of the reasons for the recommendation. 

 Disposition of Hearing Panel Report 

The hearing panel shall deliver its report and recommendation to the Chief of Staff and MEC who 
shall forward it, along with all supporting documentation, to the Board for further action. The 
Chief of Staff shall also send a copy of the report and recommendation, certified mail, return 
receipt requested, to the individual who requested the hearing. 

Page 145 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 16 
Part II:  Investigations, Corrective Action, Hearing and Appeal Plan 

Section 7. Appeal to the Board 

 Time for Appeal 

Within ten (10) calendar days after the hearing panel makes a recommendation, either the 
practitioner subject to the hearing or the MEC may appeal the recommendation. The request for 
appellate review shall be in writing, and shall be delivered to the Chief of Staff and CEO or 
designee, for delivery to the Board, either in person or by certified mail, and shall include a brief 
statement of the reasons for appeal and the specific facts or circumstances which justify further 
review. If such appellate review is not requested within ten (10) calendar days, both parties shall 
be deemed to have accepted the recommendation involved, and the hearing panel’s report and 
recommendation shall be forwarded to the Board. 

 Grounds for Appeal 

The grounds for appeal shall be limited to the following: 

a. There was substantial failure to comply with the Medical and Dental Staff Bylaws prior to or 
during the hearing so as to deny a fair hearing; or 

b. The recommendation of the hearing panel was made arbitrarily, capriciously, or with 
prejudice; or 

c. The recommendation of the hearing panel was not supported by substantial evidence based 
upon the hearing record. 

 Time, Place, and Notice 

Whenever an appeal is requested as set forth in the preceding sections, the chair of the Board 
shall schedule and arrange for an appellate review as soon as arrangements can be reasonably 
made, taking into account the schedules of all individuals involved. The affected individual shall 
be given notice of the time, place, and date of the appellate review. The chair of the Board may 
extend the time for appellate review for good cause. 

 Nature of Appellate Review 

a. The chair of the Board shall appoint a review panel composed of at least three (3) members of 
the Board to consider the information upon which the recommendation before the Board was 
made. Members of this review panel may not be direct competitors of the practitioner under 
review and should not have participated in any formal investigation leading to the 
recommendation for corrective action that is under consideration. 

b. The review panel may, but is not required to, accept additional oral or written evidence 
subject to the same procedural constraints in effect for the hearing panel or hearing officer. 
Such additional evidence shall be accepted only if the party seeking to admit it can 
demonstrate that it is new, relevant evidence and that any opportunity to admit it at the 
hearing was denied. If additional oral evidence or oral argument is conducted, the review 
panel shall maintain a record of any oral arguments or statements by a reporter present to 
make a record of the review or a recording of the proceedings. The cost of such reporter shall 
be borne by the hospital, but copies of the transcript shall be provided to the individual 
requesting the review at that individual’s expense. The review panel may, but shall not be 
required to, order that oral evidence shall be taken only on oath or affirmation administered 
by any person designated to administer such oaths and entitled to notarize documents in the 
State of Nevada. 

Page 146 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 17 
Part II:  Investigations, Corrective Action, Hearing and Appeal Plan 

c. Each party shall have the right to present a written statement in support of its position on 
appeal. In its sole discretion, the review panel may allow each party or its representative to 
appear personally and make a time-limited thirty-minute (30) oral argument. The review 
panel shall recommend final action to the Board. 

d. The Board may affirm, modify, or reverse the recommendation of the review panel or, in its 
discretion, refer the matter for further review and recommendation, or make its own decision 
based upon the Board’s legal responsibility. 

 Final Decision of the Hospital Board 

Within thirty (30) calendar days after receiving the review panel’s recommendation, the Board 
shall render a final decision in writing, including specific reasons for its action, and shall deliver 
copies thereof to the affected individual and to the chairs of the Credentials Committee and MEC, 
in person or by certified mail, return receipt requested. 

 Right to One Appeal Only 

No applicant or Medical Staff practitioner with privileges shall be entitled as a matter of right to 
more than one (1) hearing or appellate review on any single matter, which may be the subject of 
an appeal. In the event that the Board ultimately determines to deny Medical Staff appointment or 
reappointment to an applicant, or to revoke or terminate the Medical Staff appointment and/or 
clinical privileges of a current member or a physician or dentist with privileges without 
membership, that individual may not apply within five (5) years for Medical Staff appointment or 
for those clinical privileges at this hospital unless the Board advises otherwise. 

 Actions Prior to Initiating Legal Action 

Practitioners shall exhaust all the administrative remedies afforded by these by laws prior to 
initiating legal action against the hospital or its agents. 

7.8 Conflict with Law or Regulation 

In the event of a conflict between this fair hearing plan and State or Federal law, the Medical 
Staff will abide by the law. 

Page 147 of 853



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 148 of 853



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS 

Part III:  Credentials Procedures Manual 
 

 

 
 

Page 149 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page i 
Part III:  Credentials Procedures Manual 

Part III: Credentials Procedures Manual – Table of Contents 

Section 1. Medical Staff Credentials Committee 1 

Section 2. Qualifications for Membership and/or Privileges 3 

Section 3. Initial Appointment Procedure 5 

Section 4. Reappointment 14 

Section 5. Clinical Privileges 17 

Section 6. Clinical Competency Evaluation 23 

Section 7. Reapplication after Modifications of Membership Status or Privileges and 
Exhaustion of Remedies 24 

Section 8. Leave of Absence 26 

Section 9. Practitioners Providing Contracted Services 27 

Section 10. Medical Administrative Officers 28 
 

Page 150 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 1 
Part III:  Credentials Procedures Manual 

Section 1. Medical Staff Credentials Committee 

 Composition 

Membership of the Medical Staff Credentials Committee shall consist of at least seven (7) 
members of the Active Medical Staff who are experienced leaders that are not currently 
Department Chiefs. The members should represent the major specialties of the Medical Staff. The 
Chief of Staff will appoint the Chair and other members. Members will be appointed for three (3) 
year terms with the initial terms staggered such that approximately one third of the members will 
be appointed each year. The Credentials Chair shall have at least three (3) years’ experience on 
the Credentials Committee and will be appointed for a three (3) year term. The Credentials Chair 
and members may be reappointed for additional terms without limit. The Director of the Office of 
Military Medicine is a non-voting member of the Credentials Committee. Any member, including 
the Chair, may be relieved of his/her committee membership by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the 
MEC. The Credentials Committee may also invite members such as representatives from hospital 
administration and the Board. 

 Meetings 

The Medical Staff Credentials Committee shall meet at least ten (10) times per year and on the 
call of the Credentials Chair or Chief of Staff. 

 Responsibilities 

1.3.1 To review and recommend action on all applications and reapplications for membership 
on the Medical Staff including assignments of Medical Staff category; 

1.3.2 To review and recommend action on all requests regarding privileges from eligible 
practitioners; 

1.3.3 To recommend eligibility criteria for the granting of Medical Staff membership and 
privileges; 

1.3.4 To develop, recommend, and consistently implement policy and procedures for all 
credentialing and privileging activities; 

1.3.5 To review, and where appropriate take action on, reports that are referred to it from other 
Medical Staff committees, Medical Staff or hospital leaders; 

1.3.6 To perform such other functions as requested by the MEC. 

 Confidentiality 

This committee shall function as a peer review committee consistent with federal and state law. 
All members of the committee shall, consistent with the Medical Staff and hospital confidentiality 
policies, keep in strict confidence all papers, reports, and information obtained by virtue of 
membership on the committee. 

1.4.1 The credentials file is the property of the hospital and will be maintained with strictest 
confidence and security. The files will be maintained by the designated agent of the 
hospital in locked file cabinets or in secure electronic format. Medical staff and 
administrative leaders may access credential files for appropriate peer review and 
institutional reasons. Files may be shown to accreditation and licensure agency 
representatives with permission of the Chief of Staff or designee. 

Page 151 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 2 
Part III:  Credentials Procedures Manual 

1.4.2 Individual practitioners may review their credentials file under the following 
circumstances: 

Only upon written request approved by the Chief of Staff, CEO, Credentials Chair or 
CMO. Review of such files will be conducted in the presence of the Medical Staff service 
professional, Medical Staff leader, or a designee of administration. Confidential letters of 
reference may not be reviewed by practitioners and will be sequestered in a separate file 
and removed from the formal credentials file prior to review by a practitioner. Nothing 
may be removed from or copied from the file other than material supplied by the 
practitioner or directly addressed to the practitioner. The practitioner may make notes for 
inclusion in the file. A written or electronic record will be made and placed in the file 
confirming the dates and circumstances of the review. 

Page 152 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 3 
Part III:  Credentials Procedures Manual 

Section 2. Qualifications for Membership and/or Privileges 

 No practitioner shall be entitled to membership on the Medical Staff or to privileges merely by 
virtue of licensure, membership in any professional organization, or privileges at any other 
healthcare organization. 

 The following qualifications must be met and continuously maintained by all applicants for 
Medical Staff appointment, reappointment, or clinical privileges: 

2.2.1 Demonstrate that s/he has successfully graduated from an approved school of medicine, 
osteopathy, dentistry, podiatry, clinical psychology, or applicable recognized course of 
training in a clinical profession eligible to hold privileges; 

2.2.2 Have a current state or federal license as a practitioner, applicable to his or her 
profession, and providing permission to practice within the state of Nevada; 

2.2.3 Have a record that is free from current Medicare/Medicaid sanctions and not be on the 
OIG List of Excluded Individuals/Entities; 

2.2.4 Have a record that shows the applicant has never been convicted of, or entered a plea of 
guilty or no contest to, any felony relating to controlled substances, illegal drugs, 
insurance or health care fraud or abuse, violence or abuse (physical, sexual, child or 
elder) in any jurisdiction; 

2.2.5 A physician applicant, MD, or DO, must have successfully completed an allopathic or 
osteopathic residency program, approved by the Accreditation Council for Graduate 
Medical Education (ACGME), Royal College of Physicians and Surgeons of Canada 
(RCPSC) or the American Osteopathic Association (AOA) and satisfy all eligibility 
criteria and applicable standards set forth in the Delineation of Privileges form of his or 
her Department; 

2.2.6 Dentists must have graduated from an American Dental Association approved school of 
dentistry accredited by the Commission of Dental Accreditation; 

2.2.7 Oral and maxillofacial surgeons must have graduated from an American Dental 
Association approved school of dentistry accredited by the Commission of Dental 
Accreditation and successfully completed an American Dental Association approved 
residency program and satisfy all eligibility criteria and applicable standards set forth in 
the Delineation of Privileges form of his or her Department; 

2.2.8 A podiatric physician, DPM, must have successfully completed a two-year (2) residency 
program in surgical, orthopedic, or podiatric medicine approved by the Council on 
Podiatric Medical Education of the American Podiatric Medical Association (APMA), 
and satisfy all eligibility criteria and applicable standards set forth in the Delineation of 
Privileges form of his or her Department; 

2.2.9 A psychologist must have an earned a doctorate degree, (PhD or PsyD, in psychology) 
from an educational institution accredited by the American Psychological Association 
and have completed at least two (2) years of clinical experience in an organized 
healthcare setting, supervised by a licensed psychologist, one (1) year of which must 
have been post doctorate, and have completed an internship endorsed by the American 
Psychological Association (APA), and satisfy all eligibility criteria and applicable 
standards set forth in the Delineation of Privileges form of his or her Department; 

2.2.10 Possess a current and valid drug enforcement administration (DEA) and Nevada 
Pharmacy Certificate of Registration number, if applicable; 

Page 153 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 4 
Part III:  Credentials Procedures Manual 

2.2.11 Have appropriate written and verbal communication skills; 

2.2.12 Have appropriate personal qualifications, including applicant’s consistent observance of 
ethical and professional standards in accordance with the ethical principles as defined by 
the professional organizations of their professions. These standards include, at a 
minimum: 

a. Abstinence from any participation in fee splitting or other illegal payment, receipt, 
or remuneration with respect to referral or patient service opportunities; and 

b. A history of consistently acting in a professional, appropriate, and collegial manner 
with others in previous clinical and professional settings. 

2.2.13 Demonstrate his/her background, experience, training, current competence, knowledge, 
judgment, and ability to perform all privileges requested; 

2.2.14 Upon request provide evidence of both physical and mental health that does not impair 
the fulfillment of his/her responsibilities of Medical Staff membership and/or the specific 
privileges requested by and granted to the applicant; 

2.2.15 Any practitioner granted privileges or Medical Staff appointment must demonstrate the 
capability to provide continuous and timely care to the satisfaction of the MEC and 
Board; 

2.2.16 Demonstrate recent clinical performance within the last twenty-four (24) months with an 
active clinical practice in the area in which clinical privileges are sought adequate to meet 
current clinical competence criteria; 

2.2.17 The applicant is requesting privileges for a service the Board has determined appropriate 
for performance at the hospital. There must also be a need for this service under any 
Board approved Medical Staff development plan; 

2.2.18 Provide evidence of professional liability insurance appropriate to all privileges requested 
and of a type and in an amount established by the Board after consultation with the MEC. 

 Exceptions 

2.3.1 In accordance with NRS 449.2455, 635.015, 630.047, 630A.090, 632.316, and 633.171, 
those applicants for Medical Staff appointment, reappointment, or clinical privileges 
serving in the Armed Forces and exempt from the requirements of a Nevada medical 
license and Nevada Pharmacy Certificate shall be exempt from such requirements 
instilled by these Bylaws. 

2.3.2 The Board may create additional exceptions but only after consultation with the MEC 
and if there is documented evidence that a practitioner demonstrates an equivalent 
competence in the areas of the requested privileges. 

Page 154 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 5 
Part III:  Credentials Procedures Manual 

Section 3. Initial Appointment Procedure 

 Completion of Application 

3.1.1 All requests for applications for appointment to the Medical Staff and requests for 
clinical privileges will be forwarded to the Medical Staff office. Upon receipt of the 
request, the Medical Staff office will provide the applicant an application package, which 
will include a complete set or overview of the Medical and Dental Staff Bylaws or 
reference to an electronic source for this information. This package will enumerate the 
eligibility requirements for Medical Staff membership and/or privileges and a list of 
expectations of performance for individuals granted Medical Staff membership or 
privileges (if such expectations have been adopted by the Medical Staff). 

A completed application includes, at a minimum: 

a. A completed, signed, dated application form; 

b. A completed privilege delineation form if requesting privileges; 

c. Copies of all requested documents and information necessary to confirm the 
applicant meets criteria for membership and/or privileges and to establish current 
competency; 

d. All applicable fees; 

e. A current picture ID card issued by a state or federal agency (e.g. driver’s license or 
passport); 

f. A passport sized photo; 

g. Receipt of all references; references shall come from peers knowledgeable about the 
applicant’s experience, ability, and current competence to perform the privileges 
being requested; 

h. ECFMG, if applicable; 

i. Curriculum vitae (CV);  

j. NPI number;  

k. Verification of current, active professional liability coverage with limits of at least 
$100,000/$300,000 and verification of last 10 years of professional liability 
coverage; 

l. Verification of TB testing within 12 months of the application acceptance for all 
practitioners excluding Telemedicine (For a positive TB test, the following are 
required: Completion of a Signs/Symptoms Screening Form and a CXR);  

m. Verification of influenza vaccination within the past year or a formal declination of 
influenza vaccination in accordance with hospital policy unless the practitioner is 
solely requesting telemedicine privileges (All practitioners with patient contact who 
decline the influenza vaccine will be required to wear a surgical mask during the 
influenza season when in a patient care areas or when within six (6) feet of any 
patients); 

Page 155 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 6 
Part III:  Credentials Procedures Manual 

n. Name of covering provider, who must be a member of the UMC Medical Staff that 
currently maintains like privileges and practices within the same specialty, for when 
the practitioner is unavailable unless the practitioner is solely requesting Refer and 
Follow privileges (In rare circumstances when there is only one practitioner in a 
specific specialty, the Department Chief may waive this requirement and 
recommend coverage by another qualified practitioner with appropriate training, 
skillset and privileges); 

o. Signed conflict of interest statement; 

p. Written acknowledgement of an agreement to comply with the Health Insurance 
Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA), UMC’s Privacy and Security 
Practices and UMC’s Corporate Compliance Handbook; 

q. For UMC employed physicians, a completed and approved UMC Certificate of 
Insurance and Statement of Indemnification from the Risk Management Department 
(this provision only applies if the physician is solely employed by UMC and has no 
outside practice); 

r. Relevant practitioner-specific data as compared to aggregate data, when available;  

s. Morbidity and mortality data, when available; 

t. Nevada State Collaborative Agreement, when applicable;  

u. Completed Permit List signed by Supervising /Collaborating Physician, when 
applicable; and 

v. Unless otherwise exempted from this specific requirement by the MEC, evidence of 
an office and residence within Clark County, Nevada. This requirement will not 
apply to licensed practitioners who solely request Telemedicine privileges. 

An application shall be deemed incomplete if any of the above items are missing or if the 
need arises for new, additional, or clarifying information in the course of reviewing an 
application. An incomplete application will not be processed and the applicant will not be 
entitled to a fair hearing. Anytime in the credentialing process it becomes apparent that 
an applicant does not meet all eligibility criteria for membership or privileges, the 
credentialing process will be terminated, no further action will be taken and the applicant 
will not be entitled to a fair hearing. 

3.1.2 The burden is on the applicant to provide all required information. It is the applicant’s 
responsibility to ensure that the Medical Staff office receives all required supporting 
documents verifying information on the application and to provide sufficient evidence, as 
required in the sole discretion of the hospital, that the applicant meets the requirements 
for Medical Staff membership and/or the privileges requested. If information is missing 
from the application, or new, additional, or clarifying information is required, a letter 
requesting such information will be sent to the applicant. If the requested information is 
not returned to the Medical Staff office within forty-five (45) calendar days of the receipt 
of the request letter, the application will be deemed to have been voluntarily withdrawn. 

3.1.3 Upon receipt of a completed application the Chief of Staff, CMO, Credentials Chair or 
their designees, in collaboration with the Medical Staff office, will determine if the 
requirements of sections 2.2 and 2.3 are met. In the event the requirements of sections 2.2 
and 2.3 are not met, the potential applicant will be notified that s/he is ineligible to apply 
for membership or privileges on the Medical Staff, the application will not be processed 
and the applicant will not be eligible for a fair hearing. If the requirements of sections 2.2 
and 2.3 are met, the application will be accepted for further processing. 

Page 156 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 7 
Part III:  Credentials Procedures Manual 

3.1.4 Individuals seeking appointment shall have the burden of producing information deemed 
adequate by the hospital for a proper evaluation of current competence, character, ethics, 
and other qualifications, and of resolving any doubts. 

3.1.5 Upon receipt of a completed application, the Medical Staff office will verify current 
licensure, education, relevant training, and current competence from the primary source 
whenever feasible. When it is not possible to obtain information from the primary source, 
reliable secondary sources may be used if there has been a documented attempt to contact 
the primary source. These sources may include American Medical Association (AMA) 
Physician Master File, American Board of Medical Specialties (ABMS), American 
Educational Commission for Foreign Medical Graduates (ECFMG), American 
Osteopathic Information Association (AOIA) Physician Database, Federation of State 
Medical Boards (FSMB), and American Academy of Physician Assistants (AAPA) 
Profile. In addition, the Medical Staff office will collect relevant additional information 
which may include: 

a. Information from all prior and current liability insurance carriers concerning claims, 
suits, settlements, and judgments, (if any) during the past ten (10) years; 

b. Verification of the applicant’s past clinical work experience for at least the past ten 
(10) years; 

c. Licensure status in all current or past states of licensure at the time of initial granting 
of membership or privileges; in addition, the Medical Staff office will primary 
source verify licensure at the time of renewal or revision of clinical privileges, 
whenever a new privilege is requested, and at the time of license expiration; 

d. Information from the AMA or AOA Physician Profile;  

e. OIG list of Excluded Individuals/Entities;   

f. Information from the National Commission on Certification of Physician Assistants, 
when applicable;  

g. Information from professional training programs including residency and fellowship 
programs; 

h. Information from the National Practitioner Data Bank (NPDB); in addition the 
NPDB will be queried at the time of renewal of privileges and whenever a new 
privilege(s) is requested; 

i. Other information about adverse credentialing and privileging decisions; 

j. Three peer recommendations chosen from practitioner(s) who have observed the 
applicant’s clinical and professional performance and can evaluate the applicant’s 
current medical/clinical knowledge, technical and clinical skills, clinical judgment, 
interpersonal skills, communication skills, and professionalism as well as the 
physical, mental, and emotional ability to perform requested privileges in the last 
two years; 

k. Information from a criminal background check; 

l. Information from any other sources relevant to the qualifications of the applicant to 
serve on the Medical Staff and/or hold privileges; and  

m. Morbidity and mortality data and relevant practitioner-specific data as compared to 
aggregate data, when available. 

Page 157 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 8 
Part III:  Credentials Procedures Manual 

Note:  In the event there is undue delay in obtaining required information, the Medical 
Staff office will request assistance from the applicant. During this time period, the “time 
periods for processing” the application will be appropriately modified. Failure of an 
applicant to adequately respond to a request for assistance after forty-five (45) calendar 
days will be deemed a withdrawal of the application. 

3.1.6 When the items identified in Section 3.1 above have been obtained, the file will be 
considered verified and complete and eligible for evaluation. 

 Applicant’s Attestation, Authorization, and Acknowledgement 

The applicant must complete and sign the application form. By signing this application the 
applicant: 

3.2.1 Attests to the accuracy and completeness of all information on the application or 
accompanying documents and agrees that any substantive inaccuracy, omission, or 
misrepresentation, whether intentional or not, may be grounds for termination of the 
application process without the right to a fair hearing or appeal. If the inaccuracy, 
omission, or misstatement is discovered after an individual has been granted appointment 
and/or clinical privileges, the individual’s appointment and privileges may lapse effective 
immediately upon notification of the individual without the right to a fair hearing or 
appeal. 

3.2.2 Consents to appear for any requested interviews in regard to his/her application. 

3.2.3 Authorizes the hospital and Medical Staff representatives to consult with prior and 
current associates and others who may have information bearing on his/her professional 
competence, character, ability to perform the privileges requested, ethical qualifications, 
ability to work cooperatively with others, and other qualifications for membership and 
the clinical privileges requested. 

3.2.4 Consents to hospital and Medical Staff representatives’ inspection of all records and 
documents that may be material to an evaluation of: 

a. Professional qualifications and competence to carry out the clinical privileges 
requested; 

b. Physical and mental/emotional health status to the extent relevant to safely perform 
requested privileges; 

c. Professional and ethical qualifications; 

d. Professional liability actions including currently pending claims involving the 
applicant; and 

e. Any other issue relevant to establishing the applicant’s suitability for membership 
and/or privileges. 

3.2.5 Releases from liability and promises not to sue, all individuals and organizations who 
provide information to the hospital or the Medical Staff, including otherwise privileged 
or confidential information to the hospital representatives concerning his/her background; 
experience; competence; professional ethics; character; physical and mental health to the 
extent relevant to the capacity to fulfill requested privileges; emotional stability; 
utilization practice patterns; and other qualifications for staff appointment and clinical 
privileges. 

Page 158 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 9 
Part III:  Credentials Procedures Manual 

3.2.6 Authorizes the hospital Medical Staff and administrative representatives to release any 
and all credentialing and peer review information to other hospitals, licensing boards, 
appropriate government bodies and other health care entities or to engage in any valid 
discussion relating to the past and present evaluation of the applicant’s training, 
experience, character, conduct, judgment, or other matters relevant to the determination 
of the applicant’s overall qualifications upon appropriately signed release of information 
document(s). Acknowledges and consents to agree to an absolute and unconditional 
release of liability and waiver of any and all claims, lawsuits, or challenges against any 
Medical Staff or hospital representative regarding the release of any requested 
information and further, that all such representatives shall have the full benefit of this 
release and absolute waiver as well as any legal protections afforded under the law. 

3.2.7 Acknowledges that the applicant has had access to the Medical and Dental Staff Bylaws, 
including all rules, regulations, policies and procedures of the Medical Staff, and agrees 
to abide by their provisions. 

Notwithstanding section 3.2.5 through 3.2.7, if an individual institutes legal action and 
does not prevail, s/he shall reimburse the hospital and any member of the Medical Staff 
named in the action for all costs incurred in defending such legal action, including 
reasonable attorney(s) fees. 

3.2.8 Agrees to provide accurate answers to all questions and information items contained 
within the application for clinical privileges and medical staff membership, and agrees to 
notify the Medical Staff Office in writing immediately, and in no case later than 30 days,  
should any of the information regarding such items change during processing of this 
application or the period of the applicant’s Medical Staff membership or privileges. If the 
applicant answers any of the questions or information items contained within the 
application affirmatively and/or provides information identifying a problem with any of 
the questions or information items, the applicant will be required to submit a written 
explanation of the circumstances involved. 

 Application Evaluation 

3.3.1 Credentialing Process:  An expedited review and approval process may be used for 
initial appointment or for reappointment. All initial applications for membership and/or 
privileges will be designated Category 1 or Category 2 as follows; 

Category 1:  A completed application that does not raise concerns as identified in the 
criteria for Category 2. Applicants in Category 1 will be granted Medical Staff 
membership and/or privileges after review and action by the following: Department 
Chief, Credentials Chair acting on behalf of the Credentials Committee, the MEC and a 
Board committee consisting of at least two individuals. 

Category 2:  If one or more of the following criteria are identified in the course of 
reviewing a completed and verified application, the application will be treated as 
Category 2. Applications in Category 2 must be reviewed and acted on by the 
Department Chief, Credentials Committee, MEC, and the Board. The Credentials 
Committee may request that an appropriate subject matter expert assess selected 
applications. At all stages in this review process, the burden is upon the applicant to 
provide evidence that s/he meets the criteria for membership on the Medical Staff and for 
the granting of requested privileges. Criteria for Category 2 applications include but are 
not necessarily limited to the following: 

a. The final recommendation of the MEC is adverse or with limitation; 

Page 159 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 10 
Part III:  Credentials Procedures Manual 

b. The applicant is found to have experienced an involuntary termination of Medical 
Staff membership or involuntary limitation, reduction, denial, or loss of clinical 
privileges at another organization or has a current challenge or a previously 
successful challenge to licensure or registration; 

c. Applicant is, or has been, under investigation by a state medical board or has prior 
disciplinary actions or legal sanctions; 

d. Applicant has had an unusual pattern of malpractice cases or excessive number of 
professional liability actions resulting in a judgment against the applicant filed 
within the past five (5) years;  

e. Applicant changed medical schools or residency programs due to adverse or 
corrective action or has unusual gaps in training or practice; 

f. Applicant has one or more reference responses that raise concerns or questions; 

g. Discrepancy is found between information received from the applicant and 
references or verified information; 

h. Applicant has an adverse National Practitioner Data Bank report related to behavior, 
licensure, and/or clinical privileges; 

i. The request for privileges are not reasonable based upon applicant’s experience, 
training, and demonstrated current competence, and/or is not in compliance with 
applicable criteria; 

j. Applicant has been removed from a managed care panel for reasons of professional 
conduct or quality; 

k. Applicant has potentially relevant physical, mental, and/or emotional health 
problems; 

l. Other reasons as determined by a Medical Staff leader or other representative of the 
hospital which raise questions about the qualifications, competency, 
professionalism, or appropriateness of the applicant for membership or privileges. 

3.3.2 Applicant Interview 

a. All applicants for appointment to the Medical Staff and/or the granting of clinical 
privileges may be required to participate in an interview at the discretion of the 
Department Chief, Credentials Committee, MEC, or Board. The interview may take 
place in person or by telephone at the discretion of the hospital or its agents. The 
applicant shall not be permitted to be accompanied or represented by counsel in any 
such interview. The interview may be used to solicit information required to 
complete the credentials file or clarify information previously provided, e.g., clinical 
knowledge and judgment, professional behavior, malpractice history, reasons for 
leaving past healthcare organizations, or other matters bearing on the applicant’s 
ability to render care at the generally recognized level for the community. The 
interview may also be used to communicate Medical Staff performance 
expectations. 

b. Procedure:  The applicant will be notified if an interview is requested. Failure of the 
applicant to appear for a scheduled interview will be deemed a withdrawal of the 
application. 

 

 

Page 160 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 11 
Part III:  Credentials Procedures Manual 

3.3.3 Department Chief Action 

a. All completed applications are presented to the Department Chief for review, and 
recommendation. The Department Chief reviews the application to ensure that it 
fulfills the established standards for membership and/or clinical privileges. The 
Department Chief, in consultation with the Medical Staff professional, determines 
whether the application is forwarded as a Category 1 or Category 2. The Department 
Chief may obtain input if necessary from an appropriate subject matter expert. If a 
Department Chief believes a conflict of interest exists that might preclude his/her 
ability to make an unbiased recommendation s/he will notify the Vice-Chief of the 
Department who will then be responsible for reviewing the application. Should both 
the Department Chief and Vice-Chief have an existing conflict of interest, the 
Department Chief will notify the Credentials Chair and forward the application 
without comment. 

b. The Department Chief forwards to the Medical Staff Credentials Committee the 
following: 

i. A recommendation as to whether the application should be acted on as Category 
1 or Category 2; 

ii. A recommendation to approve the applicant’s request for membership and/or 
privileges; to approve membership but modify the requested privileges; or deny 
membership and/or privileges; and 

iii. A recommendation to define those circumstances which require monitoring and 
evaluation of clinical performance after initial grant of clinical privileges. 

iv. Comments to support these recommendations. 

3.3.4 Medical Staff Credentials Committee Action 

If the application is designated Category 1, it is presented to the Credentials Chair, or 
designee, for review and recommendation. The Credentials Chair reviews the application 
to ensure that it fulfills the established standards for membership and/or clinical 
privileges. The Credentials Chair has the opportunity to determine whether the 
application is forwarded as a Category 1 or may change the designation to a Category 2. 
If forwarded as a Category 1, the Credentials Chair acts on behalf of the Medical Staff 
Credentials Committee and the application is presented to the MEC for review and 
recommendation. If designated Category 2, the Medical Staff Credentials Committee 
reviews the application and forwards the following to the MEC: 

a. A recommendation as to whether the application should be acted on as Category 1 
or Category 2; 

b. A recommendation to approve the applicant’s request for membership and/or 
privileges; to approve membership but modify the requested privileges; or deny 
membership and/or privileges; and 

c. A recommendation to define those circumstances which require monitoring and 
evaluation of clinical performance after initial grant of clinical privileges. 

d. Comments to support these recommendations. 

 

 

 

Page 161 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 12 
Part III:  Credentials Procedures Manual 

3.3.5 MEC Action 

If the application is designated Category 1, it is presented to the MEC which may meet in 
accordance with quorum requirements established for expedited credentialing. The Chief 
of Staff has the opportunity to determine whether the application is forwarded as a 
Category 1, or may change the designation to a Category 2. The application is reviewed 
to ensure that it fulfills the established standards for membership and/or clinical 
privileges. The MEC forwards the following to the Board: 

a. A recommendation as to whether the application should be acted on as Category 1 
or Category 2; 

b. A recommendation to approve the applicant’s request for membership and/or 
privileges; to approve membership but modify the requested privileges; or deny 
membership and/or privileges; and 

c. A recommendation to define those circumstances which require monitoring and 
evaluation of clinical performance after initial grant of clinical privileges. 

d. Comments to support these recommendations. 

Whenever the MEC makes an adverse recommendation, a special notice, containing the 
requirements outlined in Section 4.3 of Part II of these Bylaws, will be sent to the 
applicant who shall then be entitled to the procedural rights provided in Part II of these 
Bylaws (Investigation, Corrective Action, Hearing and Appeal Plan). 

3.3.6 Board Action: 

a. If the application is designated by the MEC as Category 1 it is presented to the 
Board or an appropriate subcommittee of at least two (2) members where the 
application is reviewed to ensure that it fulfills the established standards for 
membership and clinical privileges. If the Board or subcommittee agrees with the 
recommendations of the MEC, the application is approved and the requested 
membership and/or privileges are granted for a period not to exceed twenty-four 
(24) months. If a subcommittee takes the action, it is reported to the entire Board at 
its next scheduled meeting. If the Board or subcommittee disagrees with the 
recommendation, then the procedure for processing Category 2 applications will be 
followed. 

b. If the application is designated as a Category 2, the Board reviews the application 
and votes for one of the following actions: 

i. The Board may adopt or reject in whole or in part a recommendation of the MEC 
or refer the recommendation to the MEC for further consideration stating the 
reasons for such referral back and setting a time limit within which a subsequent 
recommendation must be made. If the Board concurs with the applicant’s request 
for membership and/or privileges it will grant the appropriate membership and/or 
privileges for a period not to exceed twenty-four (24) months; 

ii. If the board’s action is adverse to the applicant, a special notice, stating the 
reason, will be sent to the applicant who shall then be entitled to the procedural 
rights provided in Part II of these Bylaws (Investigation, Corrective Action, 
Hearing and Appeal Plan); or 

iii. The Board shall take final action in the matter as provided in Part II of these 
Bylaws (Investigation, Corrective Action, Hearing and Appeal Plan). 

Page 162 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 13 
Part III:  Credentials Procedures Manual 

3.3.7 Notice of final decision:  Notice of the Board’s final decision shall be given, through the 
Chief of Staff to the MEC and to the Chair of each Department concerned. The applicant 
shall receive written notice of appointment and special notice of any adverse final 
decisions in a timely manner. A decision and notice of appointment includes the staff 
category to which the applicant is appointed, the Department to which s/he is assigned, 
the clinical privileges s/he may exercise, the timeframe of the appointment, and any 
special conditions attached to the appointment. 

3.3.8 Time periods for processing:  All individual and groups acting on a complete 
application for staff appointment and/or clinical privileges must do so in a timely and 
good faith manner, and, except for good cause, each application will be processed within 
180 (one-hundred eighty) calendar days. 

These time periods are deemed guidelines and do not create any right to have an 
application processed within these precise periods. If the provisions of Part II of these 
Bylaws (Investigation, Corrective Action, Hearing and Appeal Plan) are activated, the 
time requirements provided therein govern the continued processing of the application. 

Page 163 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 14 
Part III:  Credentials Procedures Manual 

Section 4. Reappointment 

 Criteria for Reappointment 

4.1.1 It is the policy of the hospital to approve for reappointment and/or renewal of privileges 
only those practitioners who meet the criteria for initial appointment as identified in 
section 2. The MEC must also determine that the practitioner provides effective care that 
is consistent with the hospital standards regarding ongoing quality and the hospital 
performance improvement program. The practitioner must provide the information 
enumerated in Section 4.2 below. All reappointments and renewals of clinical privileges 
are for a period not to exceed twenty-four (24) months. The granting of new clinical 
privileges to existing Medical Staff members or other practitioners with privileges will 
follow the steps described in Section 3 above concerning the initial granting of new 
clinical privileges and Section 6.1 below concerning focused professional practice 
evaluation. The Chief of Staff, or Vice-Chief of Staff, shall substitute for the Department 
Chief in the evaluation of current competency of the Department Chief, and recommend 
appropriate action to the Credentials Committee. 

 Information Collection and Verification 

4.2.1 From appointee:  On or before four (4) months prior to the date of expiration of a 
Medical Staff appointment or grant of privileges, a representative from the Medical Staff 
office notifies the practitioner of the date of expiration and supplies him/her with an 
application for reappointment for membership and/or privileges. At least sixty (60) 
calendar days prior to this date the practitioner must return the following to the Medical 
Staff office: 

a. A completed reapplication form, which includes complete information to update 
his/her file on items listed in his/her original application, any required new, 
additional, or clarifying information, and any required fees or dues; 

b. Information concerning continuing training and education internal and external to 
the hospital during the preceding period; and 

c. By signing the reapplication form the appointee agrees to the same terms as 
identified in Section 3.2 above. 

4.2.2 From internal and/or external sources:  The Medical Staff office collects and verifies 
information regarding each practitioner’s professional and collegial activities to include 
those items and practitioner responses contained within the practitioner’s application. 

4.2.3 The following information is also collected and verified: 

a. A summary of clinical activity at this hospital for each practitioner due for 
reappointment; 

b. Performance and conduct in this hospital and other healthcare organizations in 
which the practitioner has provided substantial clinical care since the last 
reappointment, including patient care, medical/clinical knowledge, practice-based 
learning and improvement, interpersonal and communication skills, professionalism, 
and system-based practice; 

c. Documentation of any required hours of continuing medical education activity; 

d. Service on Medical Staff, Department, and hospital committees; 

e. Timely and accurate completion of medical records; 

Page 164 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 15 
Part III:  Credentials Procedures Manual 

f. Compliance with all applicable Bylaws, policies, rules, regulations, and procedures 
of the hospital and Medical Staff; 

g. Any gaps in employment, affiliation or practice since the previous appointment or 
reappointment; 

h. Any information and explanation for resignation or removal from staff at a hospital 
or other health care organization; 

i. Verification of current licensure, DEA certificate and Nevada Pharmacy license; 

j. National Practitioner Data Bank query and information from the OIG List of 
Excluded Individuals/Entities; 

k. When sufficient practitioner-specific data is not available to evaluate competency, 
one or more peer recommendations chosen from practitioner(s) who have observed 
the applicant’s clinical and professional performance and can evaluate the 
applicant’s current medical/clinical knowledge, technical and clinical skills, clinical 
judgment, interpersonal skills, communication skills, and professionalism as well as 
the physical, mental, and emotional ability to perform requested privileges;  

l. Malpractice history for the past two (2) years, which is primary source verified by 
the Medical Staff office with the practitioner’s malpractice carrier(s); and 

m. Other reasonable indicators of continuing competency or qualifications. 

4.2.4 Failure, without good cause, to provide any requested information in the timeframe 
necessary to complete processing and obtain approval prior to the expiration of 
appointment will result in automatic expiration of appointment when the appointment 
period is concluded. Once the information is received, the Medical Staff office verifies 
this additional information and notifies the practitioner of any additional information that 
may be needed to resolve any doubts about performance or material in the credentials 
file. 

 Evaluation of Application for Reappointment of Membership and/or Privileges 

4.3.1 Expedited review reappointment applications will be categorized as described in Section 
3.3.1 above. 

4.3.2 The reappointment application will be reviewed and acted upon as described in Sections 
3.3.3 through 3.3.8 above. For the purpose of reappointment an “adverse 
recommendation” by the Board as used in section 3 means a recommendation or action to 
deny reappointment, or to deny or restrict requested clinical privileges or any action that 
would entitle the applicant to a Fair Hearing under Part II of the Medical and Dental Staff 
Bylaws.  The terms “applicant” and “appointment” as used in these sections shall be read 
respectively, as “staff appointee” and “reappointment.” 

 Special Conditions for Advanced Practice Professionals 

4.4.1 In addition to the items outlined in Section 4.2 above, the following information is 
collected and verified at the time of reappointment for Advanced Practice Professionals: 

a. APP Evaluation completed by the APP’s Supervising/Collaborating Physician or 
Department Chief; 

Page 165 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 16 
Part III:  Credentials Procedures Manual 

b. At least one (1) peer reference chosen from the practitioners who have observed the 
applicant’s clinical and professional performance who can evaluate the applicant’s 
current medical/clinical knowledge, technical and clinical skills, clinical judgment, 
interpersonal skills, communication skills, and professionalism as well as the 
physical, mental, and emotional ability to perform privileges in the last two years; 

c. As applicable, Nevada State Supervision Agreement (Physician Assistant); 

d. As applicable, Certified Registered Nurse Anesthetists Statement of Sponsor;  

e. As applicable, current certification from the National Commission on Certification 
of Physician Assistants; 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 166 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 17 
Part III:  Credentials Procedures Manual 

Section 5. Clinical Privileges 

 Exercise of Privileges 

A practitioner providing clinical services at the hospital may exercise only those privileges 
granted to him/her by the Board or emergency or disaster privileges as described herein. 
Privileges may be granted by the Board, upon recommendation of the MEC, to practitioners 
having a license or other authorized credential authorizing the provision healthcare services, but 
who are not otherwise eligible for UMC Medical and Dental Staff Membership.  

 Practitioners Eligible to Apply For Privileges Without Membership 

The following categories of practitioners are eligible to apply for clinical privileges but do not 
otherwise qualify for membership to the UMC Medical and Dental Staff:  

a. Advanced Practice Professionals (APPs) subject to hospital or regulatory physician 
supervision requirements, including, without limitation, Physician Assistants- 
Certified (PA-Cs) and Certified Registered Nurse Anesthetists (CRNAs);  

b. Physicians serving short locum tenens positions;  

c. Telemedicine physicians;   

d. House staff such as residents moonlighting in the hospital;  

e. Clinical psychologists;  

f. ; or  

g. Other practitioners having been deemed appropriate by the MEC and Board. 

 Requests 

When applicable, each application for appointment or reappointment to the Medical Staff or for 
privileges must contain a request for the specific clinical privileges the applicant desires. Specific 
requests must also be submitted for temporary privileges and for modifications of privileges in 
the interim between reappointments and/or granting of privileges. 

 Basis for Privileges Determination 

5.4.1 Requests for clinical privileges will be considered only when accompanied by evidence 
of education, training, experience, and demonstrated current competence as specified by 
the hospital in its Board approved criteria for clinical privileges. 

5.4.2 Privileges for which no criteria have been established: 

In the event a request for a privilege is submitted for a new technology, a procedure new 
to the hospital, an existing procedure used in a significantly different manner, or 
involving a cross-specialty privilege for which no criteria have been established, the 
request will be tabled for a reasonable period of time, usually not to exceed sixty (60) 
calendar days. During this time the MEC will: 

a. Review the community, patient, and hospital need for the privilege and reach 
agreement with management and the Board that the privilege is approved to be 
exercised at the hospital; 

b. Review with members of the Credentials Committee the efficacy and clinical 
viability of the requested privilege and confirm that this privilege is approved for 
use in the setting-specific area of the hospital by appropriate regulatory agencies 
(FDA, OSHA, etc.); 

Page 167 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 18 
Part III:  Credentials Procedures Manual 

c. Meet with management to ensure that the new privilege is consistent with the 
hospital’s mission, values, strategic, operating, capital, information, and staffing 
plans; and 

d. Work with management to ensure that any/all exclusive contract issues, if applicable 
are resolved in such a way to allow the new or cross-specialty privileges in question 
to be provided without violating the existing contract. Upon recommendation from 
the Credentials Committee and appropriate Department or subject matter experts (as 
determined by the Credentials Committee), the MEC will formulate the necessary 
criteria and recommend these to the Board. Once objective criteria have been 
established, the original request will be processed as described herein: 

i. For the development of criteria, the Medical Staff service professional (or 
designee) will compile information relevant to the privileges requested which 
may include, but need not be limited to, position and opinion papers from 
specialty organizations, white papers as available, position and opinion 
statements from interested individuals or groups, and documentation from 
other hospitals in the region as appropriate; 

ii. Criteria to be established for the privilege(s) in question include education, 
training, board status, certification (if applicable), experience, and evidence of 
current competence. Proctoring requirements will be addressed including who 
may serve as proctor and how many proctored cases will be required. Hospital 
related issues such as exclusive contracts, equipment, clinical support staff and 
management will be referred to the appropriate hospital administrator and/or 
department director; and 

iii. If the privileges requested overlap two or more specialty disciplines, an ad hoc 
committee will be appointed by the Credentials Chair to recommend criteria for 
the privilege(s) in question. This committee will consist of at least one, but not 
more than two, members from each involved discipline. The chair of the ad hoc 
committee will be a member of the Credentials Committee who has no vested 
interest in the issue. 

5.4.3 Requests for clinical privileges will be consistently evaluated on the basis of prior and 
continuing education, training, experience, utilization practice patterns, current ability to 
perform the privileges requested, and demonstrated current competence, ability, and 
judgment. Additional factors that may be used in determining privileges are patient care 
needs and the hospital’s capability to support the type of privileges being requested and 
the availability of qualified coverage in the applicant’s absence. The basis for privileges 
determination to be made in connection with periodic reappointment or a requested 
change in privileges must include documented clinical performance and results of the 
practitioner’s performance improvement program activities. Privileges determinations 
will also be based on pertinent information from other sources, such as peers and/or 
faculty from other institutions and health care settings where the practitioner exercises 
clinical privileges. 

5.4.4 The procedure by which requests for clinical privileges are processed are as outlined in 
Section 3 above. 

Page 168 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 19 
Part III:  Credentials Procedures Manual 

 Special Conditions for Dental Privileges 

Requests for clinical privileges for dentists are processed in the same manner as all other 
privilege requests. Privileges for surgical procedures performed by dentists and/or oral and 
maxillofacial surgeons will require that all dental patients receive a basic medical evaluation 
(history and physical) by a physician member of the Medical Staff with privileges to perform 
such an evaluation, which will be recorded in the medical record.  

 Special Conditions for Podiatric Privileges 

Requests for clinical privileges for podiatrists are processed in the same manner as all other 
privilege requests. All podiatric patients will receive a basic medical evaluation (history and 
physical) by a physician member of the Medical Staff that will be recorded in the medical record.  

 Special Conditions for Privileges of Advanced Practice Registered Nurse 

Advanced Practice Registered Nurses shall include nurse practitioners, certified nurse-midwives, 
and clinical nurse specialists (CNS) having a license to practice as an advanced practice 
registered nurse under Chapter 632 of the Nevada Revised Statutes.  Requests for clinical 
privileges for advanced practice registered nurses are processed in the same manner as all other 
privilege requests.  Privileges for advanced practice registered nurses shall be limited to only 
perform acts authorized pursuant to NRS 632.237, within the scope of practice of the advanced 
practice registered nurse, and authorized under the Delineation of Privileges of the applicable 
clinical service department.  

 Special Conditions for Privileges of Medical Officers of the Armed Forces of the United 
States Providing Medical Care Within the Hospital 

Pursuant to NRS 449.2455, the Hospital may enter into an agreement with the Armed Forces of 
the United States to authorize a medical officer to provide medical care at the Hospital as part of a 
training or educational program to further the employment of the medical officer.  Except as 
otherwise specified in Part III, Section 2.3.1 of these Bylaws, requests for clinical privileges for 
medical officers of the Armed Forces of the United States to provide medical services within the 
hospital will be processed in the same manner as all other privilege requests.  All requests for 
clinical privileges for medical officers of the Armed Forces of the United States shall be 
coordinated through the Office of Military Medicine at the Hospital and such practitioners shall 
solely exercise privileges pursuant to an authorized agreement under NRS 449.2455 and any 
other applicable laws and regulations. 

  Special Conditions for Practitioners Eligible for Privileges without Membership 

5.9.1 Requests for privileges from such individuals are processed in the same manner as 
requests for clinical privileges by providers eligible for Medical Staff membership, with 
the exception that such individuals are not eligible for membership on the Medical Staff 
and do not have the rights and privileges of such membership. Only those categories of 
practitioners approved by the Board for providing services at the hospital are eligible to 
apply for privileges.  

Page 169 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 20 
Part III:  Credentials Procedures Manual 

5.9.2 Advance Practice Professionals (APPs) in this category may, subject to any licensure 
requirements or other limitations, exercise independent judgment only within the areas of 
their professional competence and participate directly in the medical management of 
patients under the collaboration or supervision of a physician who has been accorded 
privileges to provide such care.  The privileges of these APPs shall terminate 
immediately, without right to due process, in the event that the employment of the APP 
with the hospital is terminated for any reason or if the employment contract or 
sponsorship of the APP with a physician member of the Medical Staff organization is 
terminated for any reason.  

 Special Conditions for Residents or Fellows in Training 

5.10.1 Residents or fellows in training in the hospital shall not normally hold membership on the 
Medical Staff and shall not normally be granted specific clinical privileges. Rather, they 
shall be permitted to function clinically only in accordance with the written training 
protocols developed by the professional graduate education committee in conjunction 
with the residency training program. The protocols must delineate the roles, 
responsibilities, and patient care activities of residents and fellows including which types 
of residents may write patient care orders, under what circumstances why they may do so, 
and what entries a supervising physician must countersign. The protocol must also 
describe the mechanisms through which resident directors and supervisors make 
decisions about a resident’s progressive involvement and independence in delivering 
patient care and how these decisions will be communicated to appropriate Medical Staff 
and hospital leaders. 

5.10.2 The post-graduate education program director or committee must communicate 
periodically with the MEC and the Board about the performance of its residents, patient 
safety issues, and quality of patient care and must work with the MEC to assure that all 
supervising physicians possess clinical privileges commensurate with their supervising 
activities. 

 Telemedicine Privileges 

Requests for telemedicine privileges at the hospital that includes patient care, treatment, and 
services will be processed through one of the following mechanisms: 

a. The hospital fully privileges and credentials the practitioner; or 

b. The hospital privileges practitioners using credentialing information from the distant site if 
the distant site is a Joint Commission accredited hospital or telemedicine entity. 

 Temporary Privileges 

The CEO, or designee, acting on behalf of the Board and based on the recommendation of the 
Chief of Staff or designee, may grant temporary privileges. Temporary privileges may be granted 
only in two (2) circumstances:  1) to fulfill an important patient care, treatment, or service need, 
or 2) when an initial applicant with a complete application that raises no concerns is awaiting 
review and approval of the MEC and the Board. 

5.12.1 Important Patient Care, Treatment, or Service Need:  Temporary privileges may be 
granted on a case by case basis when an important patient care, treatment, or service need 
exists that mandates an immediate authorization to practice, for a limited period of time, 
not to exceed 120 calendar days. When granting such privileges the organized Medical 
Staff verifies current licensure and current competence. 

Page 170 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 21 
Part III:  Credentials Procedures Manual 

5.12.2 Clean Application Awaiting Approval:  Temporary privileges may be granted for up to 
one hundred and twenty (120) calendar days when the new applicant for Medical Staff 
membership and/or privileges is waiting for review and recommendation by the MEC and 
approval by the Board. Additionally, the application must meet the criteria for Category 
1, expedited credentialing consideration as noted in section 3 of this manual. 

5.12.3 Special requirements of consultation and reporting may be imposed as part of the 
granting of temporary privileges. Except in unusual circumstances, temporary privileges 
will not be granted unless the practitioner has agreed in writing to abide by the Bylaws, 
rules, and regulations and policies of the Medical Staff and hospital in all matters relating 
to his/her temporary privileges. Whether or not such written agreement is obtained, these 
Bylaws, rules, regulations, and policies control all matters relating to the exercise of 
clinical privileges. 

5.12.4 Termination of temporary privileges:  The CEO, acting on behalf of the Board and after 
consultation with the Chief of Staff, may terminate any or all of the practitioner’s 
privileges based upon the discovery of any information or the occurrence of any event of 
a nature which raises questions about a practitioner’s privileges. When a patient’s life or 
wellbeing is endangered, any person entitled to impose summary suspension under the 
Medical and Dental Staff Bylaws may affect the termination. In the event of any such 
termination, the practitioner’s patients then will be assigned to another practitioner by the 
Chief of Staff or his/her designee. The wishes of the patient shall be considered, when 
feasible, in choosing a substitute practitioner. 

5.12.5 Rights of the practitioner with temporary privileges:  A practitioner is not entitled to the 
procedural rights afforded in Part II of these Bylaws (Investigation, Corrective Action, 
Hearing and Appeal Plan) because his/her request for temporary privileges is refused or 
because all or any part of his/her temporary privileges are terminated or suspended unless 
the decision is based on clinical incompetence or unprofessional conduct. 

5.12.6 Emergency Privileges:  In the case of a medical emergency, any practitioner is authorized 
to do everything possible to save the patient’s life or to save the patient from serious 
harm, to the degree permitted by the practitioner’s license, regardless of Department 
affiliation, staff category, or level of privileges. A practitioner exercising emergency 
privileges is obligated to summon all consultative assistance deemed necessary and to 
arrange appropriate follow-up. 

5.12.7 Disaster Privileges: 

a. If the institution’s Disaster Plan has been activated and the organization is unable to 
meet immediate patient needs, the CEO and other individuals as identified in the 
institution’s Disaster Plan with similar authority, may, on a case by case basis 
consistent with medical licensing and other relevant state statutes, grant disaster 
privileges to selected  licensed practitioners. These practitioners must present a valid 
government-issued photo identification issued by a state or federal agency (e.g., 
driver’s license or passport) and at least one of the following: 

i. A current picture hospital ID card that clearly identifies professional 
designation; 

ii. A current license to practice; 

iii. Primary source verification of the license; 

Page 171 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 22 
Part III:  Credentials Procedures Manual 

iv. Identification indicating that the individual is a member of a Disaster Medical 
Assistance Team (DMAT), or Medical Reserve Corps (MRC), Emergency 
System for Advance Registration of Volunteer Health Professionals (ESAR-
VHP), or other recognized state or federal organizations or groups; 

v. Identification indicating that the individual has been granted authority to render 
patient care, treatment, and services in disaster circumstances (such authority 
having been granted by a federal, state, or municipal entity); or 

vi. Identification by a current hospital or Medical Staff member (s) who possesses 
personal knowledge regarding the volunteer’s ability to act as a licensed  
practitioner during a disaster. 

b. The Medical Staff has a mechanism (i.e., badging) to readily identify volunteer 
practitioners who have been granted disaster privileges. 

c. The Medical Staff oversees the professional performance of volunteer practitioners 
who have been granted disaster privileges by direct observation, mentoring, or 
clinical record review. The organization makes a decision (based on information 
obtained regarding the professional practice of the volunteer) within 72 hours 
whether disaster recovery privileges should be continued. 

d. Primary source verification of licensure begins as soon as the immediate situation is 
under control, and is completed within 72 hours from the time the volunteer 
practitioner presents to the organization. If primary source verification cannot be 
completed in 72 hours, there is documentation of the following:  1) why primary 
source verification could not be performed in 72 hours; 2) evidence of a 
demonstrated ability to continue to provide adequate care, treatment, and services; 
and 3) an attempt to rectify the situation as soon as possible. 

e. Once the immediate situation has passed and such determination has been made 
consistent with the institution’s Disaster Plan, the practitioner’s disaster privileges 
will terminate immediately. 

f. Any individual identified in the institution’s Disaster Plan with the authority to grant 
disaster privileges shall also have the authority to terminate disaster privileges. Such 
authority may be exercised in the sole discretion of the hospital and will not give 
rise to a right to a fair hearing or an appeal. 

Page 172 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 23 
Part III:  Credentials Procedures Manual 

Section 6. Clinical Competency Evaluation 

 Focused Professional Practice Evaluation (FPPE) 

Practitioners shall undergo a period of FPPE for all initial and additional requests for privileges 
and/or as needed to address clinical quality of care concerns. The Credentials Committee, after 
receiving a recommendation from the Department Chief, will define the circumstances that 
require monitoring and evaluation of the clinical performance of each practitioner following his 
or her initial grant of clinical privileges at the hospital. Such monitoring may utilize prospective, 
concurrent, or retrospective proctoring, including but not limited to:  chart review, the tracking of 
performance monitors/indicators, external peer review, simulations, morbidity and mortality 
reviews, and discussion with other healthcare individuals involved in the care of each patient. The 
Credentials Committee will also establish the duration for such FPPE and triggers that indicate 
the need for performance monitoring. 

 Ongoing Professional Practice Evaluation (OPPE) 

The Medical Staff will also engage in OPPE to identify professional practice trends that affect 
quality of care and patient safety. Information from this evaluation process will be factored into 
the decision to maintain existing privileges, to revise existing privileges, or to revoke an existing 
privilege prior to or at the time of reappointment. OPPE shall be undertaken as part of the 
Medical Staff’s evaluation, measurement, and improvement of practitioner’s current clinical 
competency. In addition, each practitioner may be subject to FPPE when issues affecting the 
provision of safe, high quality patient care are identified through the OPPE process. Decisions to 
assign a period of performance monitoring or evaluation to further assess current competence 
must be based on the evaluation of an individual’s current clinical competence, practice behavior, 
and ability to perform a specific privilege. 

Page 173 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 24 
Part III:  Credentials Procedures Manual 

Section 7. Reapplication after Modifications of Membership Status or Privileges and 
Exhaustion of Remedies 

 Reapplication after adverse credentials decision 

Except as otherwise determined by the MEC or Board, a practitioner who has received a final 
adverse decision or who has resigned or withdrawn an application for appointment or 
reappointment or clinical privileges while under investigation or to avoid an investigation is not 
eligible to reapply to the Medical Staff or for clinical privileges for a period of five (5) years from 
the date of the notice of the final adverse decision or the effective date of the resignation or 
application withdrawal. Any such application is processed in accordance with the procedures then 
in force. As part of the reapplication, the practitioner must submit such additional information as 
the Medical Staff and/or Board requires demonstrating that the basis of the earlier adverse action 
no longer exists. If such information is not provided, the reapplication will be considered 
incomplete and voluntarily withdrawn and will not be processed any further. 

 Request for modification of appointment status or privileges 

A practitioner, either in connection with reappointment or at any other time, may request 
modification of staff category, Department assignment, or clinical privileges by submitting a 
written request to the Medical Staff office. A modification request must be on the prescribed form 
and must contain all pertinent information supportive of the request. All requests for additional 
clinical privileges must be accompanied by information demonstrating additional education, 
training, and current clinical competence in the specific privileges requested. A modification 
application is processed in the same manner as a reappointment, which is outlined in Section 5 of 
this manual. A practitioner who determines that s/he no longer exercises, or wishes to restrict or 
limit the exercise of, particular privileges that s/he has been granted shall send written notice, 
through the Medical Staff office, to the Credentials Committee, and MEC. A copy of this notice 
shall be included in the practitioner’s credentials file. 

 Resignation of staff appointment or privileges 

A practitioner who wishes to resign his/her staff appointment and/or clinical privileges must 
provide written notice to the appropriate Department Chief of Staff. The resignation shall specify 
the reason for the resignation and the effective date. A practitioner who resigns his/her staff 
appointment and/or clinical privileges is obligated to fully and accurately complete all portions of 
all medical records for which s/he is responsible prior to the effective date of resignation. Failure 
to do so shall result in an entry in the practitioner’s credentials file acknowledging the resignation 
and indicating that it became effective under unfavorable circumstances. 

 Exhaustion of administrative remedies 

Every practitioner agrees that s/he will exhaust all the administrative remedies afforded in the 
various sections of this manual, the Governance and the Investigation, Corrective Action, Hearing 
and Appeal Plan before initiating legal action against the hospital or its agents. 

Page 174 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 25 
Part III:  Credentials Procedures Manual 

 Reporting requirements 

The Chief of Staff shall be responsible for assuring that the hospital satisfies its obligations under 
State law and the Health Care Quality Improvement Act of 1986 and its successor statutes. 
Whenever a practitioner’s privileges are limited, revoked, or in any way constrained, the hospital 
must, in accordance with State and Federal laws or regulations, report those constraints to the 
appropriate State and Federal authorities, registries, and/or data bases, such as the NPDB. Actions 
that must be reported include, but are not limited to, any negative professional review action 
against a physician or dentist related to clinical incompetence or misconduct that leads to a denial 
of appointment and/or reappointment; reduction in clinical privileges for greater than thirty (30) 
calendar days; resignation, surrender of privileges, or acceptance of privilege reduction either 
during an investigation or to avoid an investigation. 

 Reporting of Adverse Action 

The hospital shall report actions taken against a practitioner to the appropriate regulatory agencies 
in accordance with all applicable state and federal laws, including, without limitation: 

a. Any adverse action taken by the MEC and based upon the practitioner’s professional 
competence or conduct that adversely affects the clinical privileges of the practitioner for 
more than 30 days shall be reported to the National Practitioner’s Data Bank; 

b. Any surrender of a practitioner’s clinical privileges while under investigation for possible 
professional incompetence or improper professional conduct, or any surrender of privileges in 
return for not conducting an investigation or taking an otherwise reportable action shall be 
reported to the National Practitioner’s Data Bank. 

c. Any change in the practitioner’s privileges while the practitioner is under investigation and 
the outcome of any disciplinary action taken against the practitioner concerning patient care 
or practitioner competency shall be reported to the Board of Medical Examiners within thirty 
(30) days. 

d. Any change in privileges of the practitioner based on an investigation of the practitioner’s 
mental, medical or psychological competency, or upon suspected substance abuse shall be 
reported to the Board of Medical Examiners within five (5) days.   

 

Page 175 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 26 
Part III:  Credentials Procedures Manual 

Section 8. Leave of Absence 

 Leave Request 

A leave of absence must be requested for any absence from the Medical Staff and/or patient care 
responsibilities longer than sixty (60) days, except for instances of maternity or paternity leave, 
and whether such absence is related to the individual’s physical or mental health or to the ability 
to care for patients safely and competently. A practitioner who wishes to obtain a voluntary leave 
of absence must provide written notice to the Chief of Staff stating the reasons for the leave and 
approximate period of time of the leave, which may not exceed one year except for military 
service or express permission by the Board. Requests for leave must be forwarded with a 
recommendation from the MEC and affirmed by the Board. While on leave of absence, the 
practitioner may not exercise clinical privileges or prerogatives and must maintain all appropriate 
licenses and certification during the period of the leave. If the practitioner’s current grant of 
membership and /or privileges is due to expire during the leave of absence, the Practitioner must 
apply for reappointment, or his/her appointment and/or clinical privileges shall lapse at the end of 
the appointment period. In the event that a practitioner has not demonstrated good cause for a 
leave, or where a request for extension is not granted, the determination shall be final, with no 
recourse to a hearing and appeal.  

 Termination of Leave 

At least thirty (30) calendar days prior to the termination of the leave, or at any earlier time, the 
practitioner may request reinstatement by sending a written notice to the Chief of Staff. The 
practitioner must submit a written summary of relevant activities during the leave if the MEC or 
Board so requests. A practitioner returning from a leave of absence for health reasons must 
provide a report from his/her physician that answers any questions that the MEC or Board may 
have as part of considering the request for reinstatement. The MEC makes a recommendation to 
the Board concerning reinstatement, and the applicable procedures concerning the granting of 
privileges are followed.  

 Failure to Request Reinstatement 

Failure, without good cause, to request reinstatement on or before thirty (30) days of the leave of 
absence end date shall be deemed a voluntary resignation from the Medical Staff and shall result 
in automatic termination of membership, privileges, and prerogatives. A member whose 
membership is automatically terminated shall not be entitled to the procedural rights provided in 
Part II of these Bylaws unless the leave of absence was done during the time the practitioner was 
undergoing an investigation. A request for Medical Staff membership subsequently received from 
a member so terminated shall be submitted and processed in the manner specified for applications 
for initial appointments. 

Page 176 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 27 
Part III:  Credentials Procedures Manual 

Section 9. Practitioners Providing Contracted Services 

 Exclusivity Policy 

Whenever hospital policy specifies that certain hospital facilities or services may be provided on 
an exclusive basis in accordance with contracts or letters of agreement between the hospital and 
qualified practitioners, then other practitioners must, except in an emergency or life threatening 
situation, adhere to the exclusivity policy in arranging for or providing care. Application for 
initial appointment or for clinical privileges related to the hospital facilities or services covered by 
exclusive agreements will not be accepted or processed unless submitted in accordance with the 
existing contract or agreement with the hospital. Practitioners who have previously been granted 
privileges, which then become covered by an exclusive contract, will not be able to exercise those 
privileges unless they become a party to the contract. 

 Qualifications 

A practitioner who is or will be providing specified professional services pursuant to a contract or 
a letter of agreement with the hospital must meet the same qualifications, must be processed in 
the same manner, and must fulfill all the obligations of his/her appointment category as any other 
applicant or staff appointee. 

 Disciplinary Action 

The terms of the Medical and Dental Staff Bylaws will govern disciplinary action taken by or 
recommended by the MEC. 

 Effect of Contract or Employment Expiration or Termination 

The effect of expiration or other termination of a contract upon a practitioner’s staff appointment 
and clinical privileges will be governed solely by the terms of the practitioner’s contract with the 
hospital. If the contract or the employment agreement is silent on the matter, then contract 
expiration or other termination alone will not affect the practitioner’s staff appointment status or 
clinical privileges. 

Page 177 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF BYLAWS Page 28 
Part III:  Credentials Procedures Manual 

Section 10. Medical Administrative Officers 

 A medical administrative officer is a practitioner engaged by the hospital either full or part time 
in an administratively responsible capacity. They shall not have clinical privileges, hold office, or 
be eligible to vote.  

 Notwithstanding the preceding, if desired, each medical administrative officer may achieve and 
maintain Medical Staff appointment and clinical privileges appropriate to his/her training and 
discharge staff obligations appropriate to his/her staff category in the same manner applicable to 
all other staff members. 

 Effect of removal from office or adverse change in appointment status or clinical privileges: 

10.3.1 Where a contract exists between the officer and the hospital, its terms govern the effect of 
removal from the medical administrative office on the officer’s staff appointment and 
privileges and the effect an adverse change in the officer’s staff appointment or clinical 
privileges has on his remaining in office. 

10.3.2 In the absence of a contract or where the contract is silent on the matter, removal from 
office has no effect on appointment status or clinical privileges. The effect of an adverse 
change in appointment status or clinical privileges on continuance in office will be as 
determined by the Board. 

10.3.3 A medical administrative officer has the same procedural rights as all other staff 
members in the event of an adverse change in appointment status or clinical privileges 
unless the change is, by contract a consequence of removal from office.  

 

Page 178 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF RULES AND REGULATIONS i 
Part I: Medical Staff Rules & Regulations 

 

 

 

 

University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 179 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF RULES AND REGULATIONS ii 
Part I: Medical Staff Rules & Regulations 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 
Medical and Dental Staff Rules and Regulations 

 

Page 180 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF RULES AND REGULATIONS iii 
Part I: Medical Staff Rules & Regulations 

Table of Contents 

Part I: Medical and Dental Staff Rules and Regulations 

Section 1. Introduction 1 

Section 2. Admission and Discharge 2 

Section 3. Medical Records 7 

Section 4. Standards of Practice 17 

Section 5. Patient Rights 25 

Section 6. Surgical Care 26 

Section 7. Rules of Conduct 27 
Section 8.      Department Specific Rules and Regulations                                                                          28 

Part II: Organization and Functions Manual 

Section 1. Organization and Functions of the Staff 1 

Section 2. Medical Staff Committees 9 

Section 3. Confidentiality, Immunity, Releases, and Conflict of Interest 16 

Page 181 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF RULES AND REGULATIONS  
Part I: Medical Staff Rules & Regulations 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF RULES AND REGULATIONS 

Part I. Medical and Dental Staff Rules & 
Regulations 

 

 

 

Page 182 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF RULES AND REGULATIONS  
Part I: Medical Staff Rules & Regulations 

PART I: MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF RULES & REGULATIONS 

Section 1. Introduction 1 

Section 2. Admission and Discharge 2 

Section 3. Medical Records 7 

Section 4. Standards of Practice 17 

Section 5. Patient Rights 25 

Section 6. Surgical Care 26 

Section 7. Rules of Conduct 27 
Section 8.      Department Specific Rules and Regulations                                                                          28 

Page 183 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF RULES AND REGULATIONS Page 1 
Part I: Medical and Dental Staff Rules & Regulations 

Section 1. Introduction 

 
These Rules and Regulations are adopted by the Medical Executive Committee, and approved by the 
Board of Clark County Commissioners sitting as the Board of Trustees or its delegated authority, to 
further define the general policies contained in the Medical and Dental Staff Bylaws, and to govern the 
discharge of professional services within the Hospital. These Rules and Regulations are binding on all 
Medical Staff appointees and other individuals exercising clinical privileges. Hospital policies concerning 
the delivery of health care may not conflict with these Rules and Regulations, and these Rules and 
Regulations shall prevail in any area of conflict. These Rules and Regulations of the Medical Staff may be 
adopted, amended, or repealed only by the mechanism provided in the Medical and Dental Staff Bylaws. 
This article supersedes and replaces any and all other Medical and Dental Staff Rules and Regulations 
pertaining to the subject matter thereof. 
 
The specific responsibilities of each individual Practitioner are to render specific professional services at 
the level of quality and efficiency equal to, or greater than, that generally recognized and accepted among 
Practitioners of the same profession, in a manner consistent with licensure, education and expertise, and 
in an economically efficient manner, taking into account patient needs, available Hospital facilities and 
resources, adherence to the Code of Ethics as prescribed by his/her profession, and Case 
Management/utilization standards in effect in the Hospital.  

Page 184 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF RULES AND REGULATIONS Page 2 
Part I: Medical and Dental Staff Rules & Regulations 

Section 2. Admission and Discharge 

 

 ADMISSIONS 

2.1.1 General 

The hospital accepts short-term patients for care and treatment provided suitable facilities are 
available. 

a. Admitting Privileges: A patient may be admitted to the hospital only by a practitioner on 
the Medical Staff with admitting privileges. Emergency physicians may write admitting 
orders but cannot be the admitting physician of record. Podiatric surgeons and Dentists 
who do not have full History and Physical privileges will be required to co-admit. 

b. Admitting Diagnosis: Except in an emergency, no patient will be admitted to the 
hospital until a provisional diagnosis or valid reason for admission has been entered in 
the medical record. In the case of emergency, such statement will be recorded as soon as 
possible. 

c. Admission Procedure: Admissions must be scheduled with the Hospital’s Patient 
Access Services/Admitting Department. A bed will be assigned based upon the medical 
condition of the patient and the availability of hospital staff and services. Except in an 
emergency, the admitting practitioner or his designee shall contact the Hospital’s Patient 
Access Services/Admitting Department to ascertain whether there is an available bed. 

d. Admission to Pediatrics.  All individuals under the age of eighteen (18) must be 
admitted as a pediatric patient.  

 
2.1.2 Admission Priority 

Patient Access Services/Admitting personnel will admit patients on the basis of the following 
order of priorities: 

 
a. Emergency Admission: Emergency admissions are the most seriously ill patients. The 

condition of this patient is one of immediate and extreme risk. This patient requires 
immediate attention and is likely to expire without stabilization and treatment. The 
emergency admission patient will be admitted immediately to the first appropriate bed 
available. 

 
b. Urgent Admissions: Urgent admission patients meet the criteria for inpatient admission, 

however their condition is not life threatening. Urgent admission patients will be 
admitted as soon as an appropriate bed is available. Urgent admissions include 
admissions for observation as determined by Center for Medicare/Medicaid Services 
(CMS) criteria. 

 
c. Elective Admissions: Elective admission patients meet the medical necessity criteria for 

hospitalization but there is no element of urgency for his/her health’s sake. These patients 
may be admitted on a first-come, first-serve basis. A waiting list will be kept and each 
patient will be admitted as soon as a bed becomes available. 

 

Page 185 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF RULES AND REGULATIONS Page 3 
Part I: Medical and Dental Staff Rules & Regulations 

2.1.3 Assignment to Appropriate Service Areas 

Every effort will be made to assign patients to areas appropriate to their needs. Patients requiring 
emergency or critical care will be routed to the Emergency Department for stabilization and 
transfer to the appropriate treatment area. Patients in active labor will be admitted directly to the 
Family Birthing Center/Labor and Delivery area per hospital policy after determination that the 
patient is stable. All patients under the age of eighteen (18) shall be assigned to pediatric services. 

 

 UNASSIGNED EMERGENCY PATIENTS 

The Emergency Medical Treatment and Active Labor Act (EMTALA) requires that for all patients who 
present to the Emergency Department, the Hospital must provide for an appropriate medical screening 
examination within the capability of the hospital’s emergency department, including ancillary services 
routinely available to the emergency department, to determine whether or not an emergency medical 
condition exists. The Medical Screening Examination must be performed by a Qualified Medical Provider 
which is a Physician, Advanced Practice Registered Nurse, Physician Assistant, or a Labor and Delivery 
Nurse with Neonatal Resuscitation training.  Pregnant patients, greater than twenty (20) weeks gestation, 
with a primary obstetrical complaint can have their medical screening exam done in the Family Birthing 
Center/Labor and Delivery area.  
 

2.2.1 Definition of Unassigned Patient 

Patients who present to the Emergency Department and require admission and/or treatment shall 
have a practitioner assigned by the Emergency Department physician if one or more of the 
following criteria are met: 

 

a. the patient does not have a primary care practitioner or does not indicate a preference; 

b. the patient’s primary care practitioner does not have admitting privileges; or 

c. the patient’s injuries or condition fall outside the scope of the patient’s primary care 
practitioner. 

 
2.2.2 Unassigned Call Service 

a. Unassigned Call Schedule: The Hospital is required to maintain a list of physicians who 
are on call for duty after the initial examination to provide treatment necessary to 
stabilize an individual with an emergency medical condition.  Each Medical Staff 
Department Chief, or his/her designee, shall provide the Emergency Department and the 
Medical Staff Services Office with a list of physicians who are scheduled to take 
emergency call on a rotating basis. Practitioners shall comply with all obligations, duties, 
and responsibilities required by Hospital policy, or applicable Hospital-practitioner 
contract, which relate to the maintenance of the unassigned call schedule.   

 
b. Response Time: It is the responsibility of the on-call physician, or designee, to respond 

in an appropriate time frame.  The on-call physician, or designee, shall respond to calls 
from the Emergency Department within ten (10) minutes by telephone unless an earlier 
timeframe is stipulated by contract or other policy, and must arrive at the Hospital, if 
requested to see the patient, to evaluate the patient within thirty (30) minutes for 
emergent patients or within a time frame specified by the Emergency Department 
physician for non-emergent patients. If there is a difference of opinion on how quickly 
the on-call physician must respond, the emergency department practitioner (who has seen 
the patient) will determine the response time of the on-call physician. If the on-call 

Page 186 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF RULES AND REGULATIONS Page 4 
Part I: Medical and Dental Staff Rules & Regulations 

physician does not respond to being called or paged, the physician’s Department Chief 
will be contacted. Failure to respond in a timely manner may result in the initiation of 
disciplinary action. 
 

c. Substitute Coverage:  It is the On-Call physician’s responsibility to arrange for coverage 
and officially update the schedule if he/she is unavailable to take call when assigned.  If 
an On-Call Physician has an emergent case at another hospital or UMC they must provide 
the name of an alternate practitioner with equivalent privileges, to provide on-call 
coverage. Failure to notify the Medical Staff Department of alternate call coverage may 
result in the initiation of disciplinary action.  It is the On Call physician’s responsibility to 
provide a one (1) time and appropriate follow-up evaluation for the patient following the 
Emergency Department visit, regardless of the patient’s ability to pay.  

 
2.2.3 Patients Not Requiring Admission 

In cases where the Emergency Department consults with the unassigned call physician and no 
admission is deemed necessary, the Emergency Department physician shall implement the 
appropriate care/treatment and discharge the patient with arrangements made for appropriate 
follow-up care. It is the unassigned call physician’s responsibility to provide at least one (1) 
timely and appropriate follow-up evaluation for the patient following the Emergency Department 
visit, regardless of the patient’s ability to pay. 

 
2.2.4 Unassigned Patients Returning to the Hospital 

Unassigned patients who present to the Emergency Department will be referred to the practitioner 
taking unassigned call that day unless a patient-physician relationship has been developed and the 
patient is no longer considered “unassigned.” 

 
2.2.5 Guidelines for Unassigned Call 

Unassigned call will be performed in accordance with the “On Call Physician Policy”. 
 
2.2.6 Use of the Unassigned Call Roster 

The unassigned call roster may be used as default consultation coverage when a practitioner 
cannot obtain consultation on his/her patient on a voluntary basis.  The responsible on-call 
practitioner will be the practitioner who is on call when the consultation request is placed. 

 
2.2.7 Failure to Meet Unassigned Call Obligations 

All failures to meet unassigned call responsibilities shall be reported to the Department Chief and 
the Chief of Staff.  Recurrent failure to meet call obligations may result in corrective action per 
the Medical and Dental Staff Bylaws. 

 TRANSFERS 

2.3.1 Transfers from Other Acute Care Facilities 

Transfers from other acute care facilities shall comply with NRS Chapter 439B and EMTALA 
guidelines and must meet the following criteria: 

a. The patient must be medically stable for transfer; 

b. The patient’s condition must meet medical necessity criteria; 

Page 187 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF RULES AND REGULATIONS Page 5 
Part I: Medical and Dental Staff Rules & Regulations 

c. The patient must require, and this Hospital must be able to provide, a higher level of care 
or a specific inpatient service not available at the transferring facility OR it is requested 
by the patient or patient’s family; and  

d. Responsibility for the patient must be accepted by an emergency physician, within 
EMTALA guidelines.  

 
2.3.2 Transfers Within the Hospital 

Patients may be transferred from one patient care unit to another in accordance with the priority 
established by the Hospital. All practitioners actively providing care to the patient will be notified 
of all transfers per the methods noted in hospital policy. 

 
2.3.3 Transfers to Another Hospital 

Patients who are transferred to another hospital must follow the Hospital policy on patient 
transfers to ensure compliance with NRS Chapter 439B and EMTALA. 

 

 PATIENTS WHO ARE A DANGER TO THEMSELVES AND OTHERS 

The admitting practitioner, or designee, is responsible for providing the Hospital with necessary 
information to assure the protection of the patient from self-harm and to assure the protection of others.  
 
The admitting practitioner is responsible for providing the Hospital with necessary information to assure 
the protection of the patient from self-harm and to assure the protection of others. Practitioners who have 
patients who are a danger to themselves and/or others should follow the hospital “Suicide Precautions” 
policy. 
 

 PROMPT ASSESSMENT 

All new admissions must be personally assessed by the attending physician or his/her designated covering 
practitioner within twelve (12) hours and have a history and physical examination completed and on the 
record within twenty-four (24) hours. Patients admitted to intermediate care units must be seen within 
four (4) hours.  Patients admitted to critical care units must be seen within two (2) hours.  Unstable 
patients must be seen as soon as possible in a time period dictated by the acuity of their illness. 
 

 DISCHARGE ORDERS AND INSTRUCTIONS  

Patients will be discharged or transferred only upon the authenticated order of the attending physician or 
his or her privileged designee who shall provide, or assist Hospital personnel in providing, written 
discharge instructions in a form that can be understood by all individuals and organizations responsible 
for the patient’s care. These instructions should include, if appropriate: 

a. A list of all medications the patient is to take post-discharge; 

b. Dietary instructions and modifications; 

c. Medical equipment and supplies; 

d. Instructions for pain management; 

e. Any restrictions or modification of activity; 

f. Follow up appointments and continuing care instructions; 

g. Referrals to rehabilitation, physical therapy, and home health services; and 

Page 188 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF RULES AND REGULATIONS Page 6 
Part I: Medical and Dental Staff Rules & Regulations 

h. Recommended lifestyle changes, such as smoking cessation. 
 

 DISCHARGE AGAINST MEDICAL ADVICE 

Should a patient leave the hospital against the advice of the attending physician, or without a discharge 
order, Hospital policy shall be followed. The attending physician shall be notified that the patient has left 
against medical advice. 
 

 DISCHARGE PLANNING 

Discharge planning is a formalized process through which follow-up care is planned and carried out for 
each patient. Discharge planning is undertaken to ensure that a patient remains in the hospital only for as 
long as medically necessary. All practitioners are expected to participate in the discharge planning 
activities established by the Hospital and approved by the Medical Executive Committee.  
 

Page 189 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF RULES AND REGULATIONS Page 7 
Part I: Medical and Dental Staff Rules & Regulations 

Section 3. Medical Records 

 

 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

The medical record provides data and information to facilitate patient care, serves as a financial and legal 
record, aids in clinical research, supports decision analysis, and guides professional and organizational 
performance improvement. The medical record must contain information to justify admission or medical 
treatment, to support the diagnosis, to validate and document the course and results of treatment, and to 
facilitate continuity of care. Only authorized individuals may have access to and make entries into the 
medical record. The attending physician is responsible for the preparation of the physician components to 
ensure a complete and legible medical record for each patient.  At a minimum, the completed medical 
record must contain the following:  
 

a. Evidence of patient history and physical examination completed in accordance with Hospital 
policy. 

b. Patient diagnosis at the time of admission. 
c. The results of all consultative evaluations of the patient and the appropriate findings by clinical and 

other staff involved in caring for the patient. 
d. Documentation of any complications suffered by the patient, infections acquired by the patient 

while in the hospital and unfavorable reactions by the patient to drugs and anesthesia administered 
to the patient. 

e. Properly executed informed consent for all procedures and treatments specified by the Medical 
Staff, or federal or state law, as requiring written patient consent. 

f. All orders of practitioners, nursing notes, reports of treatment, records of medication, radiology and 
laboratory reports, vital signs and other information necessary to monitor the condition of the 
patient. 

g. A discharge summary that includes a description of the outcome of the hospitalization, disposition 
of the case and the provisions for follow-up care that have been provided to the patient. 

h. The final diagnosis of the patient. 
 
In order to practice medicine, all healthcare practitioners who exercise privileges in the facility are 
required to utilize the electronic health record (EHR) in order to meet regulatory requirements and 
provide efficiencies in delivering healthcare to the community. All healthcare practitioners will undergo 
appropriate EHR training, and comply with security guidelines, per the Hospital’s policy on use of the 
EHR. Practitioners who fail to utilize the EHR system, or who otherwise fail to comply with Hospital 
policy on the use of EHR, shall be subject to corrective action.   

 

 AUTHENTICATION  

All clinical entries in the patient’s medical record will be accurately dated, timed, and authenticated 
(signed) with the practitioner’s legible signature or by approved electronic means.  
 

 CLARITY, LEGIBILITY, AND COMPLETENESS 

All healthcare practitioners who exercise privileges at UMC are required to utilize the electronic 
healthcare record. Use of other modes of documentation (i.e., paper) shall only occur during designated 
system downtime or where such use has otherwise been pre-approved.  In such circumstances, all 
handwritten entries in the medical record shall be made in ink and shall be clear, complete, and legible. 
Orders which are, in the opinion of the authorized individual, as noted in the “Provision for Patient Care” 

Page 190 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF RULES AND REGULATIONS Page 8 
Part I: Medical and Dental Staff Rules & Regulations 

policy, responsible for executing the order, illegible, unclear, incomplete, or improperly documented 
(such as those containing prohibited abbreviation and symbols) will not be implemented. Improper orders 
shall be called to the attention of the ordering practitioner timely. The authorized individual will contact 
the practitioner, request a verbal order for clarification, read back the order, and document the 
clarification in the medical record. This verbal order must be signed by the ordering practitioner as 
described in Subsection 4.4.2. 
 

 ABBREVIATIONS AND SYMBOLS 

The use of abbreviations can be confusing and may be a source of medical errors. However, the Medical 
Staff recognizes that abbreviations may be acceptable to avoid repetition of words and phrases in written 
documents. The use of abbreviations and symbols in the medical record must be consistent with the 
following rules: 
 

3.4.1 Prohibited Abbreviations, Acronyms, and Symbols: The Medical Executive 
Committee shall adopt a list of prohibited abbreviations and symbols that may not be 
used in medical record entries or orders. All practitioners shall comply with the Hospital 
“Abbreviations” policy.   

3.4.2 Situations Where Abbreviations Are Not Allowed: Abbreviations, acronyms, and 
symbols may not be used in recording the final diagnoses and procedures on the face 
sheet of the medical record. 

 

 ADMISSION HISTORY AND PHYSICAL EXAMINATION 

3.5.1 Time Limits 

a. For all inpatients, patients under observation, or patients receiving anesthesia:  A 
complete history and physical should be completed no more than seven (7) days before or 
twenty-four (24) hours after admission or registration, but prior to surgery or a procedure 
requiring anesthesia services.  An updated examination of the patient, including any 
changes in the patient’s condition, shall be completed and documented within twenty-
four (24) hours after admission or registration, but prior to surgery or a procedure 
requiring anesthesia services.  
 

b. For outpatient procedures requiring only moderate sedation: A focused history and 
physical shall be completed no more than thirty (30) days before or  24 hours after 
admission or registration, but prior to surgery or procedure.  An updated examination of 
the patient, including any changes in the patient's condition, is to be completed and 
documented within twenty-four (24) hours after admission or registration, but prior to the 
surgery or a procedure requiring moderate sedation. 
 

c. For outpatient procedures that do not require anesthesia or moderate sedation:  In 
accordance with a policy established by the medical staff, an assessment of a patient, in 
lieu of a history and physical examination, may be completed and documented after 
registration, but prior to surgery or a procedure, when the patient is receiving specific 
outpatient surgical or procedural services that do not require moderate sedation or 
anesthesia.   

 

Page 191 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF RULES AND REGULATIONS Page 9 
Part I: Medical and Dental Staff Rules & Regulations 

3.5.2 Who May Perform and Document the Admission History and Physical Examination 

All medical history and physical examinations, or updates thereto, must be completed and 
documented by a physician, an oral and maxillofacial surgeon, advanced practice registered nurse 
or Advanced Practice Professional in accordance with State law and hospital policy. 

 
3.5.3 Compliance with Documentation Guidelines 

The documentation of the admission history and physical examination shall be consistent with the 
current guidelines for the documentation of evaluation and management services as promulgated 
by the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services or comparable regulatory authority.  
 
A complete history and physical examination is required for all admissions, all surgeries 
requiring anesthesia (general, regional, monitored anesthesia care (MAC), or deep sedation), and 
all observation patients. A complete history and physical examination report must include the 
following information: 

a. Chief complaint or reason for the admission or procedure; 

b. A description of the present illness; 

c. Past medical history, including current medications, allergies, past and present diagnoses, 
illnesses, operations, injuries, treatment, and health risk factors; 

d. An age-appropriate social history; 

e. A pertinent family history; 

f. A review of systems; 

g. Cardiorespiratory exams and other relevant physical findings; 

h. Documentation of medical decision-making including a review of diagnostic test results; 
response to prior treatment; assessment, clinical impression or diagnosis; plan of care; 
evidence of medical necessity and appropriateness of diagnostic and/or therapeutic 
services; counseling provided, and coordination of care. 

A focused history and physical examination report is used for outpatient procedures that do not 
require anesthesia (general, regional, MAC, or deep sedation).  A focused history and physical is 
required to be done for all outpatient procedures using moderate sedation. A focused history and 
physical should include the following information: 

a. Chief complaint or reason for the admission or procedure; 

b. A description of the present illness; 

c. Past medical history, including current medications, allergies, and current diagnoses; 

d. A review of systems relative to the procedure planned; 

e. Relevant physical findings, including an evaluation of the cardiac and respiratory systems 
and the affected body area; 

f. Documentation of medical decision-making including a review of diagnostic test results; 
response to prior treatment; assessment, clinical impression or diagnosis; plan of care; 
evidence of medical necessity and appropriateness of diagnostic and/or therapeutic 
services; counseling provided, and coordination of care. 

 In accordance with an established policy of the medical staff, an assessment, in lieu of a 
complete or focused history and physical examination, may be used when the patient is receiving 

Page 192 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF RULES AND REGULATIONS Page 10 
Part I: Medical and Dental Staff Rules & Regulations 

specific outpatient surgical or procedural services not requiring anesthesia or moderate sedation.  
The policy established by the medical staff which allows for the performance of an assessment in 
lieu of a history and physical examination must apply only to those patients receiving specific 
outpatient procedural services and be based upon the following:  

a. Patient age, diagnoses, the type and number of surgeries and procedures to be performed, 
comorbidities, and the level of anesthesia required for the surgery or procedure;  

b. Nationally recognized guidelines and standards of practice for assessment of specific 
types of patients prior to specific outpatient surgeries and procedures; and 

c. Applicable State and local health and safety laws. 
 

3.5.4 Admitting Physician is Responsible for the Admission History and Physical 
Examination 

Completion of the patient’s admission history and physical examination is the responsibility of 
the admitting physician or his/her designee. 

 

 PREOPERATIVE DOCUMENTATION  

3.6.1 Policy 

Except in an emergency, a current medical history and appropriate physical examination will be 
documented in the medical record prior to: 

a. all invasive procedures performed in the Hospital’s surgical suites; 

b. certain procedures performed in the Radiology Department and Catheterization Lab 
(angiography, angioplasty, myelograms, abdominal and intrathoracic biopsy or 
aspiration, pacemaker and defibrillator implantation, electrophysiological studies, and 
ablations); and 

c. certain procedures performed in other treatment areas (bronchoscopy, gastrointestinal 
endoscopy, transesophageal echocardiography, therapeutic nerve blocks, central arterial 
line insertions, and elective electrical cardioversion). 

In accordance with a policy established by the medical staff pursuant to Section 3.5.3 above, an 
assessment may be completed, in lieu of an otherwise required history and physical, when the 
patient is receiving specific outpatient surgical or procedural services not requiring moderate 
sedation or anesthesia.   

When a history and physical examination is required prior to a procedure, and the procedure is 
not deemed an emergency, the procedure will be cancelled if an H&P is not completed. In cases 
of procedures performed by podiatrists and dentists who are not privileged to perform the 
complete H&P, another practitioner privileged to perform the complete H&P or the pre-
anesthesia evaluation may suffice for the update to the history and physical examination. 

 

 PROGRESS NOTES 

3.7.1 Daily Progress Notes 

The attending physician, or Advanced Practice Professional (APP), will record a progress note 
each day for each significant patient encounter on all hospitalized (inpatient, observation, and 
boarded) patients excluding the day of admission and the day of discharge. A physician must do 
the progress note on postoperative day #1 for all patients undergoing a procedure. ICU patients 

Page 193 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF RULES AND REGULATIONS Page 11 
Part I: Medical and Dental Staff Rules & Regulations 

must be seen daily by a physician with documentation of a progress note. All progress notes must 
document the reason for continued hospitalization.   

 
3.7.2 Co-signature of Progress Notes 

Progress notes documented by APPs do not need co-signature by the physician but should include 
attestation from the APP that the physician is involved in the care of the patient when applicable.  
Progress notes documented by residents or fellows do require co-signature by the physician 
within one (1) day, unless the attending physician documents their own note. 
 

 OPERATIVE / PROCEDURE REPORTS 

Operative/Procedure reports will be entered or dictated immediately after surgery, and in no case, later 
than twenty-four (24) hours after the end of the procedure, and the report promptly signed by the 
surgeon/proceduralist and made a part of the patient’s current medical record.  Operative/procedure 
reports will include (as applicable): 

a. the name of the licensed  practitioner(s) who performed the procedure and any assistants and a 
description of their tasks,  

b. the pre-operative diagnosis, 

c. the name of the procedure performed, 

d. a description of the procedure performed, 

e. the type of anesthesia administered,  

f. findings of the procedure, 

g. complications, if any, 

h. any estimated blood loss, 

i. any specimen(s) removed,  

j. any prosthetic devices, transplants, grafts, or tissues implanted, and 

k. the postoperative diagnosis. 
 

 IMMEDIATE OPERATIVE/PROCEDURAL NOTES 

If there is a delay in getting the operative/procedure report in the medical record, an immediate operative / 
procedural note is recorded in the medical record, prior to transfer to the next level of care, outlining the 
procedure performed. Immediate operative/procedural notes will include (as applicable): 

a. the name of the licensed  practitioner(s) who performed the procedure and any assistants,  

b. the name of the procedure performed, 

c. findings of the procedure, 

d. any estimated blood loss, 

e. any specimen(s) removed, and  

f. the post-operative/procedure diagnosis. 
 

Page 194 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF RULES AND REGULATIONS Page 12 
Part I: Medical and Dental Staff Rules & Regulations 

 ANESTHESIA NOTES 

Practitioners must document a pre-anesthesia assessment, an intraoperative record, and a post-anesthesia 
assessment for all patients undergoing anesthesia. A pre-anesthesia evaluation must be completed by a 
practitioner qualified to administer anesthesia at least forty-eight (48) hours before surgery. A post-
anesthesia evaluation shall be placed in the record within forty-eight (48) hours after the completion of a 
procedure involving anesthesia or deep sedation in accordance with CMS and Joint Commission 
guidelines.  The note shall be entered by an anesthesia practitioner or by the physician who administered 
the deep sedation.  This note should contain the following information: 

a. Respiratory function, including respiratory rate, airway patency, and oxygen saturation; 
b. Cardiovascular function, including pulse rate and blood pressure; 
c. Mental status; 
d. Temperature; 
e. Pain;  
f. Nausea and vomiting; and  
g. Postoperative hydration. 

 

 CONSULTATION REPORTS 

The documentation in the consultation report shall be consistent with the current guidelines for the 
documentation of evaluation and management services as promulgated by the Centers for Medicare and 
Medicaid Services or comparable regulatory authority. Consultation reports will demonstrate evidence of 
review of the patient’s record by the consultant, pertinent findings on examination of the patient, the 
consultant’s opinion and recommendations. This report will be made part of the patient’s record. The 
Consultation Report should be completed and entered in the patient’s chart within the time frame 
specified by the physician ordering the consult and no later than twenty-four (24) hours after receipt of 
notification of the consult request, unless the attending ordering the consultation agrees to a longer 
timeframe.  If there is a difference of opinion on how quickly the consulting physician must respond, the 
attending physician or designee (who has seen the patient) will determine the response time of the 
consultant.  If a full consult note is not immediately available after the consultation, a note should be 
documented in the record containing the consultant’s assessment and plan for the care of the patient.  If a 
consultation is performed by an APP other than an APRN the consulting physician must cosign the 
consultation.  
 
If the report is not in the record within the prescribed time, an explanatory note should be recorded in the 
record. When operative procedures are involved, the consultation note, except in emergency situations so 
verified on the record, will be recorded prior to the operation/procedure.  
 

 OBSTETRICAL RECORD 

The obstetrical record must include a medical history, including a complete prenatal record if available, 
and an appropriate physical examination. A copy of the practitioner’s office prenatal record may serve as 
the history and physical for uncomplicated vaginal deliveries if it is legible and complete and the last 
prenatal visit was within seven (7) days of admission. If the office prenatal record is used as the history 
and physical examination, an update must be performed as described in the bylaws.   
 

 FINAL DIAGNOSES 

The final diagnoses will be recorded in full, without the use of symbols or abbreviations dated and signed 
by the discharging physician in the discharge summary, transfer note, or death summary of the patient. In 

Page 195 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF RULES AND REGULATIONS Page 13 
Part I: Medical and Dental Staff Rules & Regulations 

the event that pertinent diagnostic information has not been received at the time the patient is discharged, 
the practitioner will be required to document such in the patient’s record.   
 

 DISCHARGE SUMMARIES 

The content of the medical record will be sufficient to justify the diagnosis, treatment, and outcome. The 
discharge summary should be completed no later than forty-eight (48) hours after discharge. All discharge 
summaries should be written and signed by the individual completing the discharge and in accordance with UMC 
EHR policy. The discharge summary should be a meaningful synopsis of the care rendered during the 
hospitalization. 
 

3.14.1 Content: A discharge summary will be entered or dictated upon the discharge or transfer 
of hospitalized patients. The discharge summary is the responsibility of the discharging 
physician and will contain: 

a. Reason for hospitalization; 

b. Summary of hospital course, including significant findings, the procedures 
performed, and treatment rendered; 

c. Condition of the patient at discharge; 

d. Instructions given to the patient and family, including medications, referrals, and 
follow-up appointments; and  

e. Final diagnoses. 

3.14.2 Deaths: A discharge summary is required on all patients who have expired and will 
include: 

a. Reason for admission; 

b. Summary of hospital course; and 

c. Final diagnoses. 

3.14.3 Timing: A Discharge Summary is to be completed no case later than forty-eight (48) 
hours after discharge, transfer, or death. 

 

 DIAGNOSTIC REPORTS 

Inpatient diagnostic reports (including but not limited to inpatient EEGs, EKGs, echocardiograms, stress 
tests, Doppler studies) must be read by the physician scheduled to provide the interpretation service 
within twenty-four (24) hours of availability of the test. Failure to provide prompt interpretation of 
diagnostic tests may result in removal from the reading list.  Outpatient diagnostic reports should be read 
by the physician in the timeframe stipulated by contract. 
 

 ADVANCED PRACTICE PROFESSIONALS (APPs) 

The attending or supervising/collaborating physician will review and authenticate all history and physical 
examinations, consultations and discharge summaries prepared by the Advanced Practice Professional. 
The signature signifies that the attending or supervising/collaborating physician has reviewed the patient’s 
medical record and approved the care rendered by the Advanced Practice Professional. An advanced 
practice registered nurse having been granted medical staff membership and clinical privileges may 
independently complete appropriate medical record documentation, without the need of physician co-
signature, provided that the act has been authorized within the APRN’s delineation of privileges, is 

Page 196 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF RULES AND REGULATIONS Page 14 
Part I: Medical and Dental Staff Rules & Regulations 

authorized pursuant to NRS 632.237 and NAC 632.255, and within his or her authorized scope of 
practice. 

 

 RESIDENTS AND FELLOWS IN TRAINING 

Residents and fellows in training, who are not moonlighting outside of their training program, must have 
their history and physical examinations, progress notes, and operative/procedure reports cosigned within 
one calendar day by the attending physician. They must also have their discharge summaries cosigned by 
the discharging physician,  within forty-eight (48) hours after discharge of the patient. . 
 
 

 MEDICAL RECORD ACCESS AND CONFIDENTIALITY 

A patient’s medical record is the property of the Hospital. If requested, the record will be made available 
to any member of the Medical Staff attending the patient and to members of medical staffs of other 
hospitals upon written consent of the patient or by the appropriate Hospital authority in an emergency 
situation. Medical records will otherwise be disclosed only pursuant to court order, subpoena, or in 
accordance with state or federal law and regulation. Records will not be removed from the Hospital’s 
jurisdiction or safekeeping except in compliance with a court order, subpoena, or in accordance with state 
or federal law and regulation. 
 

3.18.1 Access to Old Records: In case of readmission of a patient, all previous records will be 
made available to the admitting practitioner whether the patient was attended by the same 
practitioner or by another practitioner. 

3.18.2 Unauthorized Removal of Records: Unauthorized removal of charts from their 
designated space(s) is grounds for corrective action of privileges of the practitioner for a 
period to be determined by the Medical Executive Committee. 

3.18.3 Access for Medical Research: Access to the medical records of all patients will be 
afforded to members of the Medical Staff for bona fide study and research consistent with 
preserving the confidentiality of personal information concerning the individual patient. 
All such projects must have prior approval of the Institutional Review Board. The written 
request will include: (1) The topic of study; (2) the goals and objectives of the study; and 
(3) the method of record selection. All approved written requests will be presented to the 
Director of the Health Information Management Department. 

3.18.4 Access for Former Members: Provided that the use or disclosure of the information 
would comply with applicable federal and state law and regulation, former members of 
the Medical Staff will be permitted access to information from the medical records of 
their patients covering all periods during which they attended such patients in the 
Hospital.  

 

 MEDICAL RECORD COMPLETION  

A medical record will not be permanently filed until it is completed by the responsible practitioner or is 
ordered filed by the Medical Executive Committee. 
 

Page 197 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF RULES AND REGULATIONS Page 15 
Part I: Medical and Dental Staff Rules & Regulations 

3.19.1 Requirements for Timely Completion of Medical Records 

Medical records must be completed in accordance with the following standards: 

a. An Admission History and Physical Examination or Updated History and Physical 
Examination must be entered in the medical record in the timeframes noted in the bylaws, 
Part I, Section 2.6.8.  A privileged physician must co-sign the H&P performed by a 
resident/fellow or APP within one (1) calendar day; 

b. A Preoperative History and Physical Examination or Focused Preoperative History and 
Physical Examination must be entered in the medical record prior to the surgery or 
procedure; 

c. An Admission Prenatal Record must be entered in the medical record by the attending 
physician or designated covering practitioner within twenty-four (24) hours after an 
obstetrical admission and prior to the delivery of the infant; 

d. An Operative/Procedure Report must be entered in the medical record by the performing 
practitioner immediately, but in no case, later than twenty-four (24) hours following the 
surgery or procedure; 

e. If the Operative Report is not immediately available, an Immediate Post-
Operative/Procedure Note must be entered in the medical record by the performing 
practitioner prior to transfer of the patient to the next level of care. 

f. An Inpatient Progress Note must be recorded each day for each significant patient 
encounter on all hospitalized patients.  A privileged physician must see the patient on the 
first post-operative day (if applicable).  A privileged physician must see the patient daily 
in an intensive care unit; 

g. An Emergency Department/Ambulatory Services Record must be completed by the 
responsible practitioner prior to the patient leaving the Emergency Department for 
patients transferred outside the facility.  For all other patients, an Emergency Department 
Record must be completed by the responsible practitioner by the end of the practitioner’s 
shift of work; 

h. A Consultation Note must be completed by the consulting physician within twenty-four 
(24) hours of notification of the consult request; 

i. Inpatient Diagnostic Reports must be completed by the interpreting physician within 
twenty-four (24) hours after availability of the test for review or an earlier time as noted 
in the contract; 

j. A Discharge Summary must be entered in the medical record by the discharging 
physician or his/her designee no case later than forty-eight (48) hours after an inpatient or 
observation discharge, transfer, or death; and  

k. The Inpatient or Observation Medical Record must be completed within forty-eight (48) 
hours of discharge, including the authentication of all progress notes, consultation notes, 
operative reports, and verbal and entered orders, final diagnoses, and discharge summary.  

 
3.19.2 Policy on Incomplete Records 

All practitioners will be held to the HIM policy on “Delinquent Medical Records Policy”.  If a 
practitioner is delinquent in their medical records completion, s/he will be unable to schedule 
admissions or procedures and cannot have a colleague admit/schedule for them while they are 
delinquent with their records. 

Page 198 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF RULES AND REGULATIONS Page 16 
Part I: Medical and Dental Staff Rules & Regulations 

 ELECTRONIC RECORDS AND SIGNATURES 

“Electronic signature” means any identifier or authentication technique attached to or logically associated 
with an electronic record that is intended by the party using it to have the same force and effect as a 
manual signature. Pursuant to state and federal law, electronic documents and signatures shall have the 
same effect, validity, and enforceability as manually generated records and signatures. 
 

 ORGANIZED HEALTH CARE ARRANGEMENT 

For the purposes of complying with provisions of the federal Health Insurance Portability and 
Accountability Act (“HIPAA”), the Medical Staff of this Hospital are deemed to be members of, and a 
part of, an Organized Health Care Arrangement (“OHCA”) as that term is defined within HIPAA. This 
designation is intended to comply with the privacy regulations promulgated pursuant to HIPAA based 
upon the fact that the members of the OHCA operate in a "clinically integrated care setting." As such, 
members of Medical Staff shall, upon acceptance to membership, become part of the OHCA with the 
Hospital and the hospital’s medical staff. Except for non-compliance remedies set forth in the HIPAA 
regulations, no member shall be liable for any actions, inactions, or liabilities of any other member. Each 
member of the OHCA shall be responsible for its own HIPAA compliance requirements related to 
services and activities performed outside the clinical setting of the OHCA.  
 
The members hereby adopt the Hospital Joint Notice of Privacy Practices that will be distributed by the 
Hospital to all patients of the Hospital, and agree to comply with all requirements contained in the Joint 
Notice of Privacy Practices.  

 
The members of the Medical Staff shall have access to protected health information of the patients of 
other members of the OHCA for purposes of treatment, payments and healthcare operations, as those 
terms are defined by HIPAA and the HIPAA Privacy Regulations; Provided that any member of the 
Medical Staff that downloads, saves or otherwise stores any protected health information, or has access to 
any Hospital electronic data systems, though any portal that is not solely operated by the Hospital, shall 
enter into a Colleague Agreement, which shall require that member of the Medical Staff to observe 
certain requirements, and to assume responsibility for anyone who accesses any Hospital  information 
through a portal maintained by the member. 

 
Members of the Medical Staff shall be entitled to disclose protected health information of a patient to 
other members of the OHCA for authorized health care operations of the OHCA, including peer review, 
mortality and morbidity meetings, tumor board, and other similar authorized health care operations of the 
OHCA, as permitted in the HIPAA Privacy Regulations. 

Page 199 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF RULES AND REGULATIONS Page 17 
Part I: Medical and Dental Staff Rules & Regulations 

Section 4. Standards of Practice 

 

 ADMITTING/ATTENDING PHYSICIAN 

4.1.1 Responsibilities 

Each patient admitted to the Hospital shall have an admitting physician who is an appointee of the 
Medical Staff with admitting privileges. The admitting physician, or authorized designee, is 
responsible for completion of the history and physical examination.  

 
The attending physician, or authorized designee, will be responsible for: 

a. the medical care and treatment of each patient in the Hospital; 

b. making daily rounds; 

c. the prompt, complete, and accurate preparation of the medical record; and 

d. necessary special instructions regarding the care of the patient. 
 

4.1.2 Identification of Attending Physician 

At all times during a patient’s hospitalization, the identity of the attending physician shall be 
clearly documented in the medical record. 

 
4.1.3 Transferring Attending Responsibilities 

Whenever the responsibilities of the attending physician are transferred to another Medical 
Service, a note covering the transfer of responsibility will be entered in the medical record by the 
attending physician. 

 

 COVERAGE AND CALL SCHEDULES 

Each physician shall provide the Medical Staff Services Office with a list of designated Medical Staff 
appointees (usually the members of his/her group practice who are members of the same clinical 
department and have equivalent clinical and procedure privileges) who shall be responsible for the care of 
their patients in the Hospital when the physician is not available.  
 

 RESPONDING TO CALLS AND PAGES 

4.3.1 Telephonic Response. Practitioners are expected to respond within ten (10) minutes to 
calls from the Hospital’s patient care staff regarding their patient. 

4.3.2 Physical Response. Practitioners are expected to respond in person within thirty (30) 
minutes to evaluate patients in the emergency department.   

 

 ORDERS 

4.4.1 General Principles 

a. All orders for treatment will be entered into the medical record. 

Page 200 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF RULES AND REGULATIONS Page 18 
Part I: Medical and Dental Staff Rules & Regulations 

b. All orders must be specifically given by a practitioner who is privileged by the Medical 
Staff. 

c. Vague or “blanket” orders (such as “continue home medication” or “resume previous 
orders”) will not be accepted. 

d. Instructions should be written out in plain English. Prohibited abbreviations may not be 
used.  

e. All orders for treatment shall be recorded in the medical record and authenticated by the 
ordering practitioner with his/her legible or electronic signature, date, and time.  

 
4.4.2 Non-Privileged Physician Orders 

Physicians who are not UMC Medical and Dental Staff members and are ordering outpatient 
ancillary services by writing an order or prescription must provide the following 
information: 

a. Physician name and address 

b. Physician contact number-telephone and/or cell 

c. Name of a qualified representative who can take a message if physician is unavailable 

d. Current Nevada Medical License number 

 
4.4.3 Verbal/Telephone Orders  

Verbal/telephone orders are discouraged and should be reserved for those situations when it is 
impossible or impractical for the practitioner to write the order or enter it in a computer. 
Verbal/telephone orders must comply with Hospital policy “Verbal/Telephone Orders”. All 
telephone orders must be signed by the ordering practitioner or another practitioner involved in 
the patient’s care within forty-eight (48) hours after discharge of the patient or in an earlier 
timeframe as prescribed by state law. All verbal orders must be signed by the ordering 
practitioner before leaving the area. 

 
4.4.4 Facsimile Orders 

Orders transmitted by facsimile shall be considered properly authenticated and executable 
provided that: 

a. The facsimile is legible and received as it was originally transmitted by facsimile or 
computer; 

b. The order is legible, clear, and complete; 

c. The identity of the patient is clearly documented; 

d. The facsimile contains the name of the ordering practitioner, his/her address and a 
telephone number for verbal confirmation, the time and date of transmission, and the 
name of the intended recipient of the order, as well as any other information required by 
federal or state law; 

e. The original order, as transmitted, is signed, dated, and timed; and  

Page 201 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF RULES AND REGULATIONS Page 19 
Part I: Medical and Dental Staff Rules & Regulations 

f. The facsimile, as received, is signed by the attending physician or ordering practitioner 
within forty-eight (48) hours of discharge. 

 
4.4.5 Cancellation of Orders Following Surgery or Transfer 

All previous medication orders are canceled when the patient: 

a. goes to surgery, 

b. is transferred to or from a critical care area, or 

c. is transferred to, and readmitted from, another hospital or health care facility.   

New orders shall be specifically entered following surgery or the aforementioned transfers. 
Instructions to “resume previous orders” will not be accepted. 

 
4.4.6 Drugs and Medications 

 
Orders for drugs and medications must follow Hospital Pharmacy policy. 

 
4.4.7 Radiologic Testing 

 
Orders for radiologic testing should include the name of the test requested and the reason for the 
test; rule out diagnosis are not allowed to be used. Relevant pertinent history and exam findings 
are recommended to be included with the request for the test.  
 

 CONSULTATION 

4.5.1 Consultation Requests. Any qualified practitioner with clinical privileges may be 
requested for consultation within his/her area of expertise. The attending physician is 
responsible for obtaining consultation whenever patients in his/her care require services 
that fall outside his/her scope of delineated clinical privileges. The attending physician 
will provide written authorization requesting the consultation, and permitting the 
consulting practitioner to attend or examine his/her patient. This request shall become 
part of the patient’s medical record and must specify:  

a. the reason for the consultation, and 

b. the urgency of the consultation (emergent/urgent – within a timeframe acceptable 
to the referring physician based on communication with the consultant; routine – 
within 24 hours; delayed – within a timeframe acceptable to the referring 
physician as long as it does not delay the discharge planning process). 

 
Consultation and Treatment. All consultations will be for “consultation and treatment” 
unless specified otherwise.  It is recommended that the consultant not initiate new orders 
on patients on the teaching service until they have discussed their recommendation with 
the resident or fellow on the service. 
 

4.5.2 Communication. All consultations should be communicated practitioner-to-practitioner.  
APPs may initiate the consultation with the knowledge of their supervising/collaborating 
physician. 

Page 202 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF RULES AND REGULATIONS Page 20 
Part I: Medical and Dental Staff Rules & Regulations 

4.5.3 Notice. Consultants should not order consultations with other specialties without 
informing the attending physician unless the need is urgent/emergent.  

4.5.4 APP Consult. APPs may perform the consultation with the knowledge and collaboration 
of their supervising/collaborating physician.  If the practitioner requesting the consult 
requests that the consulting physician perform the consultation, that request will be 
honored.  

4.5.5 Addressing Concerns. If a nurse has any reason to question the care provided to any 
patient, or believes that appropriate consultation is needed, the nurse will bring this 
concern to her manager to be addressed through the chain of command. All practitioners 
should be receptive to obtaining consultation when requested by patients, their families, 
and hospital personnel. 

4.5.6 Suicide Precautions. Requirements for consultation pertaining to patients deemed at 
high-risk for suicide should be handled in accordance with the Hospital’s “Suicide 
Precautions” policy.  

 

 CRITICAL CARE UNITS 

4.6.1 Critical Care Unit Privileges 

The privilege to admit patients to, and manage patients in, critical care units shall be specifically 
delineated.  When there are concerns regarding the continued stay within a critical care unit, 
consultation with the medical director of the unit will be obtained. 

 
4.6.2 Prompt Evaluation of Critical Care Patients 

Each patient admitted or transferred to a critical care unit shall be examined by a physician, or 
designee, within two (2) hours following admission or transfer.  

 
4.6.3 Critical Care Services 

Certain services and procedures may be provided to patients only in critical care units. The 
Medical Executive Committee shall establish policies that specify which services may be 
provided only in a critical care unit. 

 

 DEATH IN HOSPITAL 

4.7.1 Pronouncing of Death  

In the event of a hospital death, the deceased will be pronounced by a physician, resident, or 
Advanced Practice Registered Nurse within a reasonable time in accordance with Nevada laws 
and regulations. Physician Assistants (PAs), and registered nurses may be authorized to make a 
pronouncement of death in accordance with Nevada laws and regulations. A physician who 
anticipates the death of a patient because of an illness, infirmity, or disease may authorize a 
Physician Assistant or Registered Nurse to make a pronouncement of death if they attend the 
death of the patient.  The attending physician’s authorization must be a written order entered on 
the chart of the patient, state the personnel authorized to make the pronouncement of death, and 
be signed and dated by the physician. If the pronouncement of death is made by a registered nurse 
or Physician Assistant, the physician who authorized that action must sign the medical certificate 
of death within 24 hours of being presented with the certificate.  

 

Page 203 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF RULES AND REGULATIONS Page 21 
Part I: Medical and Dental Staff Rules & Regulations 

4.7.2 Certifying the Cause of Death 

 
The attending physician or Advanced Practice Registered Nurse is responsible for certifying the 
cause of death, and authenticating the Death Certificate within forty-eight (48) hours of death per 
Nevada law. If the attending physician or Advanced Practice Registered Nurse will not be 
available within forty-eight (48) hours of death, the certificate shall be completed by  an associate 
physician who has access to the deceased patient’s medical records, the Department Chief, or the 
Chief of Staff. In cases of death within the emergency department, the emergency physician will 
be responsible for certifying the cause of death and completing the Death Certificate in 
accordance with Nevada laws and regulations. 

 
4.7.3 Brain Death 

Determinations of brain death shall be completed in accordance with the Hospital policy “Brain 
Death (Pediatric)” or “Determination of Brain Death in Adults.”   

 
4.7.4 Organ Procurement  

When death is imminent, physicians should assist the Hospital in making a referral to its 
designated organ procurement organization before a potential donor is removed from a ventilator 
and while the potential organs are still viable. The Hospital policy “Organ/Tissue Donation 
Procurement” should be followed. 

 

 AUTOPSY 

It is the responsibility of the attending physician to attempt to secure consent for an autopsy in all cases of 
unusual deaths, and in cases of medico-legal or educational interest. All practitioners shall comply with 
the Hospital’s “Autopsy” policy. 
 

 ADVANCED PRACTICE REGISTERED NURSES 

An advanced practice registered nurse may independently perform and complete only those acts of 
clinical practice that have been authorized within the APRN’s delineation of privileges, are authorized 
pursuant to NRS 632.237 and NAC 632.255, and that are within his or her authorized scope of practice.  

 

 SUPERVISION OF/COLLABORATION WITH ADVANCED PRACTICE 
PROFESSIONALS 

4.10.1 Definition of Advanced Practice Professionals 

 
Advanced Practice Professionals are defined as those non-physician health care professionals 
having a license or other authorized credentialing, in accordance with applicable state and federal 
laws and regulations, to perform designated health care services within his or her scope of 
practice.  The qualification and prerogatives of Advanced Practice Professionals are defined in 
the Medical and Dental Staff Bylaws. With the exception of Advanced Practice Registered 
Nurses, Advanced Practice Professionals are not otherwise eligible for UMC Medical Staff 
membership.     
 
The following categories of practitioners are recognized by the UMC Medical and Dental Staff as 
Advanced Practice Professionals (APPs):  
 

Page 204 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF RULES AND REGULATIONS Page 22 
Part I: Medical and Dental Staff Rules & Regulations 

a. Advanced Practice Registered Nurses (nurse midwives, nurse practitioners, and 
clinical nurse specialists) maintaining an independent license to perform those acts of 
clinical practice authorized pursuant to NRS 632.237, NAC 632.255, and that are 
within his or her authorized scope of practice,  

b. Physician Assistants- Certified (PA-Cs) subject to hospital or regulatory physician 
supervision requirements; 

c. Certified Registered Nurse Anesthetists (CRNAs) subject to hospital or regulatory 
physician supervision requirements;  

d. Clinical psychologists;  

e. Allied health professionals (such as RNFAs or scrub techs providing a surgical level 
of care); or  

f. Other practitioners having been deemed appropriate by the MEC and Board. 

 
With the exception of Advanced Practice Registered Nurses, Advanced Practice Professionals are 
not otherwise eligible for UMC Medical Staff membership.     
 
4.10.2 Definition of Allied Health Professionals 

Allied Health Professionals are those healthcare professionals (including scrub techs and 
Registered Nurse First Assistants (RNFAs)) who provide a surgical level of care are privileged to 
work solely under the direct supervision of the physician.   

 
4.10.3 Guidelines for Supervising or Collaborating with Advanced Practice Professionals 

a. The physician(s) is (are) responsible for managing the health care of patients in all 
settings. 

b. Health care services delivered by physicians and by Advanced Practice Professionals, 
whether independently or under their supervision/collaboration, must be within the scope 
of each practitioner’s authorized practice, as defined by state law. 

c. The physician(s) is(are) ultimately responsible for coordinating and managing the care of 
patients and, with the appropriate input of the Advanced Practice Professional, ensuring 
the quality of health care provided to patients. 

d. When the Advanced Practice Professional is subject to hospital or regulatory physician 
supervision requirements in the delivery of care, the role of the Advanced Practice 
Professional shall be defined through a mutually agreed upon Supervision/Collaboration 
Agreement that is developed by the physician and the Advanced Practice Professional 
and Department Delineation of Privileges. 

e. The physician(s) must be available for consultation with the Advanced Practice 
Professional at all times, either in person or through telecommunication systems or other 
means.  A physician must be able to present to the hospital within thirty (30) minutes 
when needed by the Advanced Practice Professional. 

f. Patients should be made clearly aware at all times whether they are being cared for by a 
physician or an Advanced Practice Professional. 

Page 205 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF RULES AND REGULATIONS Page 23 
Part I: Medical and Dental Staff Rules & Regulations 

g. The physician(s) and Advanced Practice Professional together should review all 
delegated patient services on a regular basis, as well as the mutually agreed upon the 
Supervision/Collaboration Agreement. 

h. Each Advanced Practice Professional subject to hospital or regulatory supervision 
requirements must document the identity of their supervising/ collaborating physician and 
one or more alternate supervising/collaborating physician(s) who practices medicine in 
the same specialty as the supervising assistant. 

 
4.10.4 Collaborative Practice Agreements 

Each Advanced Practice Professional subject to hospital or regulatory supervision requirements 
must have on file in the Medical Staff Services Office written Supervision/Collaboration 
Agreement. This document must be signed by the Advanced Practice Professional and the 
supervising/collaborating physician. An APP may not provide a medical service that exceeds the 
clinical privileges granted to the supervising/collaborating physician. 

 
The Supervision/Collaboration Agreement, if applicable, must include: 

a. the name, license number and addresses of all supervising/collaborating physicians; 

b. the name and practice address of the Advanced Practice Professional; and 

c. the date the guidelines of the Supervision/Collaboration Agreement were developed and 
dates they were reviewed and amended. 

 
4.10.5 Supervising/Collaborating Physician 

 
An Advanced Practice Professional may not provide services to patients if the 
supervising/collaborating physician is more than thirty (30) minutes travel time from the 
Hospital. A physician may not supervise/collaborate with more Advanced Practice Professionals 
than allowed by State law.  It is noted that Physician Assistants require in person supervision for 
the first thirty (30) days of the supervisory agreement with an osteopathic physician. 
 
A Medical Staff appointee who fails to fulfill the responsibilities defined in this section and/or in 
a sponsorship agreement for the supervision of or collaboration with an Advanced Practice 
Professional or other dependent health care professional shall be subject to appropriate corrective 
action as provided in the Medical and Dental Staff Bylaws. 

 
4.10.6 Medical Record Documentation 

 
Advanced Practice Professionals shall complete medical record documentation in accordance 
with applicable laws, regulations, and hospital policies.  All documentation requiring Physician 
co-signature will be signed within 1 or 2 calendar days in accordance with the EHR Policy. 

 
Advanced Practice Registered Nurses (APRN’s) maintaining an independent license may 
complete medical record documentation without the need for physician co-signature as authorized 
by their clinical scope of practice, including, the entry of notes, orders, and consultations.  

 

Page 206 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF RULES AND REGULATIONS Page 24 
Part I: Medical and Dental Staff Rules & Regulations 

 INFECTION CONTROL 

All practitioners are responsible for complying with Infection Prevention policies and procedures in the 
performance of their duties.  
 
 

 EVIDENCE-BASED ORDER SETS 

Evidence-based order sets provide a means to improve quality, and enhance the appropriate utilization 
and value of health care services. Evidence-based order sets assist practitioners and patients in making 
clinical decisions on prevention, diagnosis, treatment, and management of selected conditions. The 
Medical Executive Committee may adopt evidenced-based order sets upon the recommendation of 
multidisciplinary groups composed of Medical Staff leaders, senior administrative personnel, and those 
health care practitioners who are expected to implement the guidelines.  
 
 

 TREATMENT OF FAMILY MEMBERS 

Members of the Medical and Dental Staff may not serve as the Attending or Consulting Practitioner for 
any member of their own family.  Medical and Dental Staff members may not schedule or perform 
operations or procedures on members of their own families in the operating room, procedure rooms, or 
laboratories except in emergencies when no other qualified member of the Medical Staff is available. 
 

 MEDICAL RECORDS OF SELF AND FAMILY MEMBERS 

Practitioners shall only view their own medical records through the normal medical records release 
process available to patients. 
 
Practitioners cannot view family members records without either 1) receiving permission to do so via the 
medical records consent process, with the consent authorization being documented in the medical record, 
or 2) being the treating practitioner for the family member. 
 

 ABORTIONS 

Abortions may only be allowed in the Hospital when it is necessary, in appropriate medical judgment, for 
the preservation of the life or health of the mother. 
    
  

Page 207 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF RULES AND REGULATIONS Page 25 
Part I: Medical and Dental Staff Rules & Regulations 

Section 5. Patient Rights 

 

 PATIENT RIGHTS 

All practitioners shall respect patient rights in accordance with applicable state and federal law and 
regulation and as delineated in Hospital policy on “Patient Rights and Responsibilities.” 
 

 INFORMED CONSENT  

The patient’s right of self-decision can be effectively exercised only if the patient possesses enough 
information to enable an intelligent choice. The patient should make his or her own determination 
regarding medical treatment. The practitioner’s obligation is to present the medical facts accurately to the 
patient, or the patient’s surrogate decision-maker, and to make recommendations for management in 
accordance with good medical practice. The practitioner has an ethical obligation to help the patient make 
choices from among the therapeutic alternatives consistent with good medical practice. Informed consent 
is a process of communication between a patient and the practitioner that results in the patient’s 
authorization or agreement to undergo a specific medical intervention. Practitioners must obtain informed 
consent in accordance with applicable Hospital policies. 
 

 WITHDRAWING AND WITHHOLDING LIFE SUSTAINING TREATMENT 

Hospital policies on “Withdrawing and Withholding Life Sustaining Medical Treatment” delineate the 
responsibilities, procedure, and documentation that must occur when withdrawing or withholding life-
sustaining treatment. 
 

 DO-NOT-RESUSCITATE ORDERS 

The Hospital policy on “Categorization of Patients” delineates the responsibilities, procedure, and 
documentation that must occur when initiating or cancelling a Do Not Resuscitate order. 
 

 DISCLOSURE OF UNANTICIPATED OUTCOMES 

The Hospital policy on “Serious Reportable Events (SRE)/Sentinel Events” delineates the responsibilities, 
procedure, and documentation that must occur when an unanticipated outcome does occur. 
 

 RESTRAINTS AND SECLUSION  

The Hospital policy on “Restraints, Use of” delineates the responsibilities, procedure, and documentation 
that must occur when ordering restraints or seclusion. 
 

 ADVANCE DIRECTIVES      

The Hospital policy on “Advance Directives” delineates the responsibilities, procedure, and 
documentation that must occur regarding Advance Directives. 
 

 INVESTIGATIONAL STUDIES  

Investigational studies and clinical trials conducted at the Hospital must be approved in advance by the 
Institutional Review Board. When patients are asked to participate in investigational studies, Hospital 
policy “Human Subject Research and IRB Procedures” should be followed.  

Page 208 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF RULES AND REGULATIONS Page 26 
Part I: Medical and Dental Staff Rules & Regulations 

Section 6. Surgical Care 

 

 SURGICAL PRIVILEGES 

A member of the Medical Staff may perform surgical or other invasive procedures in the surgical suite or 
other approved locations within the Hospital as approved by the Medical Executive Committee. Surgical 
privileges will be delineated for all practitioners performing surgery in accordance with the competencies 
of each practitioner. The Medical Staff Services Office will maintain a roster of practitioners specifying 
the surgical privileges held by each practitioner.  
  

 SURGICAL POLICIES AND PROCEDURES  

All practitioners shall comply with the Hospital’s surgical policies and procedures. These policies and 
procedures will cover the following: The procedure for scheduling surgical and invasive procedures 
(including priority, loss of priority, change of schedule, and information necessary to make reservations); 
emergency procedures; requirements prior to anesthesia and operation; outpatient procedures; care and 
transport of patients; use of operating rooms; contaminated areas; conductivity and environmental control; 
and radiation safety procedures. 
 

 ANESTHESIA 

Moderate or deep sedation and anesthesia may only be provided by qualified practitioners who have been 
granted clinical privileges to perform these services. The anesthesiologist/anesthetist or physician 
privileged to perform deep sedation will maintain a complete anesthesia record (to include evidence of 
pre-anesthetic evaluation and post-anesthetic follow-up) of the patient’s condition for each patient 
receiving deep sedation and anesthesia. Moderate and deep sedation shall be administered following the 
Hospital sedation policy and any applicable law.  
 
The practitioner responsible for the ordering the administration of moderate sedation will document a pre-
sedation evaluation and post-sedation follow-up examination.   
 

 TISSUE SPECIMENS 

Specimens removed during the operation will be sent to the Hospital pathologist who will make such 
examination as may be considered necessary to obtain a tissue diagnosis. Certain specimens, as defined in 
the Hospital’s pathology policy, are exempt from pathology examination. The pathologist’s report will be 
made a part of the patient’s medical record. 
 

 VERIFICATION OF CORRECT PATIENT, SITE, AND PROCEDURE 

The physician/surgeon has the primary responsibility for verification of the patient, surgical site, and 
procedure to be performed. Patients requiring a procedure or surgical intervention will be identified by an 
ID with the patient’s name and a second identifier as chosen by the hospital. The Hospital policy on 
“Universal Protocol for Surgical and Nonsurgical Invasive Procedures” shall be followed. 

Page 209 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF RULES AND REGULATIONS Page 27 
Part I: Medical and Dental Staff Rules & Regulations 

Section 7. Rules of Conduct 

 

 DISRUPTIVE BEHAVIOR 

Members of the Medical Staff are expected to conduct themselves in a professional and cooperative 
manner in the Hospital. Disruptive behavior is behavior that is disruptive to the operations of the Hospital 
or could compromise the quality of patient care, either directly or by disrupting the ability of other 
professionals to provide quality patient care. Disruptive behavior includes, but is not limited to, behavior 
that interferes with the provision of quality patient care; intimidates professional staff; creates an 
environment of fear or distrust; or degrades teamwork, communication, or morale. The Hospital policy on 
“Medical Staff Professional Conduct” shall be followed. 
 

 REPORTING IMPAIRED PRACTITIONERS 

Reports and self-referrals concerning possible impairment or disability due to physical, mental, 
emotional, or personality disorders, deterioration through the aging process, loss of motor skill, or 
excessive use or abuse of drugs or alcohol shall follow the guidelines outlined in the Hospital policy 
“Physician and APP Health and Wellness Policy”. 
 

 HEALTH DOCUMENTATION 

All privileged practitioners shall follow the Hospital policies on “Tuberculin (TB) Testing for Medical & 
Dental Staff and Advanced Practice Professionals (APPs)” and vaccinations.  

Page 210 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF RULES AND REGULATIONS Page 28 
Part I: Medical and Dental Staff Rules & Regulations 

Section 8. Department-Specific Rules and Regulations 

 

 DEPARTMENT-SPECIFIC RULES AND REGULATIONS 

Subject to the approval of the Medical Executive Committee, Hospital Departments (Ambulatory Care, 
Anesthesiology, Emergency Medicine, Family Medicine, Hand Surgery, Medicine, Neurosurgery, 
Obstetrics & Gynecology, Orthopedic Surgery, Pathology, Pediatrics, Radiology, Surgery, and Trauma) 
may implement department-specific Rules and Regulations for the conduct of its affairs and the discharge 
of its responsibilities. Department-specific rules may supplement, but shall not conflict with the Medical 
and Dental Staff Bylaws, Medical and Dental Staff Rules and Regulations, or Hospital Policies and 
Procedures. To the extent department-specific rules regulations conflict with a provision of the Medical and 
Dental Staff Bylaws, Rules and Regulations, or Hospital policies and procedures, the departmental rule, 
regulation, policy, or procedure shall be deemed void. 

All Department-specific rules, regulations, policies, or procedures must be adopted via the procedures 
mandated by the Medical Executive Committee and shall only become effective upon the approval of the 
Medical Executive Committee. Amendments, changes, or additions to the department-specific Rules and 
Regulations may be proposed by a motion of any Active member of the Department at a Department 
meeting. If approved by the Department, the amendments, changes, or additions shall become effective 
upon approval by the Medical Executive Committee.  

8.1.1 Trauma Department Specific Rules & Regulations - Available in the Trauma Department

Page 211 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF RULES AND REGULATIONS  
Part II: Organization and Functions Manual 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF RULES AND REGULATIONS 

Part II. Organization and Functions Manual 
 

 

Page 212 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF RULES AND REGULATIONS  
Part II: Organization and Functions Manual 

PART II: ORGANIZATION AND FUNCTIONS MANUAL 

Section 1. Organization and Functions of the Staff 1 

Section 2. Medical Staff Committees 9 

Section 3. Confidentiality, Immunity, Releases, and Conflict of Interest 16 
 

Page 213 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF RULES AND REGULATIONS Page 1 
Part II: Organization and Functions Manual 

Section 1. Organization and Functions of the Staff 

 ORGANIZATION OF THE MEDICAL STAFF 

The Medical Staff shall be organized as a departmentalized staff including the following 
Departments and Subspecialties: 

1.1.1 Department of Ambulatory Care 

1.1.2 Department of Anesthesiology 

1.1.3 Department of Emergency Medicine 

a. Pediatric Emergency Medicine 

b. Adult Emergency Medicine 

1.1.4 Department of Family Medicine 

1.1.5 Department of Medicine 

a. Allergy/Immunology 

b. Cardiology  

c. Dermatology  

d. Endocrinology/Metabolic Diseases 

e. Gastroenterology 

f. Hematology/Oncology  

g. Infectious Disease  

h. Internal Medicine  

i. Nephrology  

j. Neurology  

k. Psychiatry  

l. Pulmonary Medicine/Respiratory Care 

m. Physical Medicine/Rehabilitation  

n. Rheumatology  

1.1.6 Department of Neurosurgery 

1.1.7 Department of Obstetrics & Gynecology 

1.1.8 Department of Orthopaedic Surgery 

a. Hand Surgery 

b. Orthopedics 

c. Podiatry 

1.1.9 Department of Pathology 

1.1.10 Department of Pediatrics 

Page 214 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF RULES AND REGULATIONS Page 2 
Part II: Organization and Functions Manual 

a. Neonatology 

b. Pediatric Critical Care 

1.1.11 Department of Radiology 

a. Nuclear Medicine 

1.1.12 Department of Surgery 

a. Bariatrics 

b. Cardiovascular/Thoracic Surgery  

c. General Surgery  

d. Ophthalmology  

e. Oral/Maxillofacial Surgery  

f. Otorhinolaryngology  

g. Pediatric Surgery 

h. Plastic Surgery  

i. Urology  

1.1.13 Department of Trauma 

a. Anesthesiology 

b. Burn Surgery 

c. Emergency Medicine 

d. General Surgery  

e. Neurosurgery 

f. Orthopaedics 

g. Pediatric Surgery 

h. Surgical Critical Care 

A Department Chief shall head each Department with overall responsibility for the supervision 
and satisfactory discharge of assigned functions under the MEC. 

 RESPONSIBILITIES FOR MEDICAL STAFF FUNCTIONS 

The organized Medical Staff is actively involved in the measurement, assessment, and 
improvement of the functions outlined in Section 1.3 with the ultimate responsibility lying with 
the MEC. The MEC may create committees to perform certain prescribed functions. The Medical 
Staff officers, Department Chiefs, hospital and Medical Staff committee chairs, are responsible 
for working collaboratively to accomplish required Medical Staff functions. This process may 
include periodic reports as appropriate to the appropriate Department or committee and elevating 
issues of concern to the MEC as needed to ensure adherence to regulatory and accreditation 
compliance and appropriate standards of medical care. 

Page 215 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF RULES AND REGULATIONS Page 3 
Part II: Organization and Functions Manual 

 DESCRIPTION OF MEDICAL STAFF FUNCTIONS 

The Medical Staff, acting as a whole or through committee, participates in or has oversight over 
the following activities: 

1.3.1 Governance, Direction, Coordination, and Action 

a. Receive, coordinate, and act upon, as necessary, the reports and recommendations 
from Departments, committees, other groups, and officers concerning the functions 
assigned to them and the discharge of their delegated administrative responsibilities; 

b. Account to the Board and to the staff with written recommendations for the overall 
quality and efficiency of patient care at the hospital; 

c. Take reasonable steps to maintain professional and ethical conduct and initiate 
investigations, and pursue corrective action of practitioners with privileges when 
warranted; 

d. Make recommendations on medical, administrative, and hospital clinical and 
operational matters; 

e. Inform the Medical Staff of the accreditation and state licensure status of the 
hospital; 

f. Act on all matters of Medical Staff business, and fulfill any state and federal 
reporting requirements; 

g. Oversee, develop, and plan continuing medical education (CME) plans, programs, 
and activities that are designed to keep the staff informed of significant new 
developments and new skills in medicine that are related to the findings of 
performance improvement activities; 

h. Provide education on current ethical issues, recommend ethics policies and 
procedures, develop criteria and guidelines for the consideration of cases having 
ethical implications, and arrange for consultation with concerned physicians when 
ethical conflicts occur in order to facilitate and provide a process for conflict 
resolution; 

i. Provide oversight concerning the quality of care provided by residents, interns, 
students, and ensure that the same act within approved guidelines established by the 
Medical Staff and governing body; and 

j. Ensure effective, timely, and adequate comprehensive communication between the 
members of the Medical Staff and Medical Staff leaders as well as between Medical 
Staff leaders and hospital administration and the board. 

1.3.2 Medical Care Evaluation/Performance Improvement/Patient Safety Activities 

a. Perform ongoing professional practice evaluations (OPPE) and focused professional 
practice evaluations (FPPE) when requesting initial or additional privileges, on a 
request from the Department or Chief of Staff, or concerns arise from OPPE based 
on the general competencies defined by the Medical Staff; 

b. Set expectations and define both individual and aggregate measures to assess current 
clinical competency, provide feedback to practitioners and develop plans for 
improving the quality of clinical care provided; 

Page 216 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF RULES AND REGULATIONS Page 4 
Part II: Organization and Functions Manual 

c. Actively be involved in the measurement, assessment, and improvement of activities 
of practitioner performance that may include, but are not limited to the following: 

i. Medical assessment and treatment of patients 

ii. Use of medications 

iii. Use of blood and blood components 

iv. Operative and other procedures 

v. Education of patients and families 

vi. Accurate, timely, and legible completion of patients’ medical records to 
include the quality of medical histories and physical examinations 

vii. Appropriateness of clinical practice patterns 

viii. Significant departures from established pattern of clinical performance 

ix. Use of developed criteria for autopsies 

x. Sentinel event data 

xi. Patient safety data 

xii. Coordination of care, treatment, and services with other practitioners and 
hospital personnel, as relevant to the care, treatment, and services of an 
individual patient 

xiii. Findings of the assessment process relevant to individual performance; and 

d. Communicate findings, conclusions, recommendations, and actions to improve the 
performance of practitioners to Medical Staff leaders and the Board, and define in 
writing the responsibility for acting on recommendations for practitioner 
improvement. 

1.3.3 Hospital Performance Improvement and Patient Safety Programs 

a. Understand the Medical Staff’s and administration’s approach to and methods of 
performance improvement; 

b. Assist the hospital to ensure that important processes and activities to improve 
performance and patient safety are measured, assessed, and spread systematically 
across all disciplines throughout the hospital; 

c. Participate as requested in identifying and managing sentinel events and events that 
warrant intensive analysis; and 

d. Participate as requested in the hospital’s patient safety program including 
measuring, analyzing, and managing variation in the processes that affect patient 
care to help reduce medical/healthcare errors. 

1.3.4 Credentials Review. See Part III:  Credentials Procedures Manual 

1.3.5 Information Management 

a. Review and evaluate medical records to determine that they: 

Page 217 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF RULES AND REGULATIONS Page 5 
Part II: Organization and Functions Manual 

i. Properly describe the condition and progress of the patient, the quality of medical 
histories and physical examinations, the therapy, and the tests provided along 
with the results thereof, and the identification of responsibility for all actions 
taken; and 

ii. Are sufficiently complete at all times so as to facilitate continuity of care and 
communication between all those providing patient care services in the hospital. 

b. Develop, review, enforce, and maintain surveillance over enforcement of Medical 
Staff and hospital policies and rules relating to medical records including 
completion, preparation, forms, and format and recommend methods of enforcement 
thereof and changes therein; and 

c. Provide liaison with hospital administration, nursing service, and medical records 
professionals in the utilization of the hospital on matters relating to medical records 
practices and information management planning. 

1.3.6 Emergency Preparedness 

a. Assist the hospital administration in developing, periodically reviewing, and 
implementing an emergency preparedness program that addresses disasters both 
external and internal to the hospital. 

b. Assist in developing and periodically reviewing, in cooperation with Hospital 
Administration, a written plan for the care, reception and mass evacuation of the 
hospital, that adequately relates to other available resources in the community and 
coordinates the hospital's role with other agencies in the event of disasters in the 
hospital or nearby communities, and that is rehearsed by all personnel involved.    

1.3.7 Strategic Planning 

a. Participate in evaluating existing programs, services, and facilities of the hospital 
and Medical Staff; and recommend continuation, expansion, abridgment, or 
termination of each; 

b. Participate in evaluating the financial, personnel, and other resource needs for 
beginning a new program or service, for constructing new facilities, or for acquiring 
new or replacement capital equipment; and assess the relative priorities or services 
and needs and allocation of present and future resources; and 

c. Communicate strategic, operational, capital, human resources, information 
management, and corporate compliance plans to Medical Staff members. 

1.3.8 Bylaws Review 

a. Conduct periodic review of the Medical and Dental Staff Bylaws, Rules and 
Regulations, and policies; and 

b. Submit written recommendations to the MEC and to the Board for amendments to 
the Medical and Dental Staff Bylaws, Rules and Regulations, and policies. 

1.3.9 Nominating 

a. Identify nominees for election to the officer positions and to other elected positions 
in the Medical Staff organizational structure; and 

Page 218 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF RULES AND REGULATIONS Page 6 
Part II: Organization and Functions Manual 

b. In identifying nominees, consult with members of the staff, the MEC, and 
administration concerning the qualifications and acceptability of prospective 
nominees. 

1.3.10 Infection Control Oversight 

a. The Medical Staff oversees the development and coordination of the hospital-wide 
program for surveillance, prevention, implementation, and control of infection; 

b. Develop and approve policies describing the type and scope of surveillance 
activities including: 

i. Review of cumulative microbiology recurrence and sensitivity reports; 
Determination of definitions and criteria for healthcare acquired infections; 

ii. Review of prevalence and incidence studies, as appropriate; and 

iii. Collection of additional data as needed. 

c. Approve infection prevention and control actions based on evaluation of 
surveillance reports and other information; 

d. Evaluate, develop, and revise a surveillance plan for all sampling of personnel and 
environments annually; 

e. Develop procedures and systems for identifying, reporting, and analyzing the 
incidence and causes of infections; 

f. Institute any surveillance, prevention, and control measures or studies when there is 
reason to believe any patient or personnel may be at risk; 

g. Report healthcare acquired infection findings to the attending physician and 
appropriate clinical or administrative leader; and 

h. Review all policies and procedures on infection prevention, surveillance, and control 
at least biannually. 

1.3.11 Pharmacy and Therapeutics Functions 

a. Maintain a formulary of drugs approved for use by the hospital; 

b. Create treatment guidelines and protocols in cooperation with medical and nursing 
staff including review of clinical and prophylactic use of antibiotics; 

c. Monitor and evaluate the efforts to minimize drug misadventures (adverse drug 
reactions, medication errors, drug/drug interactions, drug/food interactions, 
pharmacist interventions); 

d. Perform drug usage evaluation studies on selected topics; 

e. Perform medication usage evaluation studies as required by The Joint Commission; 

f. Perform practitioner analysis related to medication use; 

g. Approve policies and procedures related to The Joint Commission Patient Care 
Standards:  to include the review of nutrition policies and practices, including 
guidelines/protocols on the use of special diets and total parenteral nutrition; pain 
management; procurement; storage; distribution; use; safety procedures; and other 
matters relating to medication use within the hospital; 

Page 219 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF RULES AND REGULATIONS Page 7 
Part II: Organization and Functions Manual 

h. Develop and measure indicators for the following elements of the patient treatment 
functions: 

i. Prescribing/ordering of medications; 

ii. Preparing and dispensing of medications; 

iii. Administrating medications; and 

iv. Monitoring of the effects of medication. 

i. Analyze and profile data regarding the measurement of patient treatment functions 
by service and practitioner, where appropriate; 

j. Provide routine summaries of the above analyses and recommend process 
improvement when opportunities are identified; 

k. Serve as an advisory group to the hospital and Medical Staff pertaining to the choice 
of available medications; and 

l. Establish standards concerning the use and control of investigational medication and 
of research in the use of recognized medication. 

1.3.12 Practitioner Wellness 

a. Evaluate the credibility of a complaint, allegation, or concern and establish a 
program for identifying and contacting practitioners who have become 
professionally impaired, in varying degrees, because of drug dependence (including 
alcoholism) or because of mental, physical, or aging problems. Refer the practitioner 
to appropriate professional internal or external resources for evaluation, diagnosis, 
and treatment; 

b. Evaluate the credibility of a complaint, allegation, or concern and establish a 
program for managing instances of inappropriate professional conduct, disruptive 
behavior, and harassment.  

c. Establish programs for educating practitioners and staff to prevent substance 
dependence and recognize impairment; 

d. Notify the impaired practitioner’s Department Chief and the MEC whenever the 
impaired practitioner’s actions could endanger patients. The existence of the 
Professional Review Committee does not alter the primary responsibility of the 
Department Chief for clinical performance within that Chief’s Department; 

e. Create opportunities for referral (including self-referral) while maintaining 
confidentiality to the greatest extent possible; and 

f. Report to the MEC all practitioners providing unsafe treatment so that the 
practitioner can be monitored until his/her rehabilitation is complete and 
periodically thereafter. The hospital shall not reinstate a practitioner until it is 
established that the practitioner has successfully completed a rehabilitation program 
in which the hospital has confidence. 

1.3.13 Utilization Management 

a. Study recommendations from Medical Staff members, quality assessment 
coordinators and others to identify problems in utilization and the review program; 

Page 220 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF RULES AND REGULATIONS Page 8 
Part II: Organization and Functions Manual 

b. Monitor the effectiveness of the review program and perform retrospective review 
in cases identified through the utilization management process; 

c. Forward all unjustified cases in any review category to the appropriate Department 
or committee for review and action; 

d. Review case-mix financial data and any other internal/external statistical data; 

e. Upon review of any data, conduct further studies, perform education or refer the 
data to the Medical Staff peer review committee for their review and action; 

Page 221 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF RULES AND REGULATIONS Page 9 
Part II: Organization and Functions Manual 

Section 2. Medical Staff Committees 

2.1 MEDICAL STAFF COMMITTEES 

2.1.1 General. 

The following shall be the standing committees of the Medical Staff:  Medical Executive 
Committee, Credentials Committee, Professional Improvement Committee, Bylaws Committee, 
Professional Review Committee, and Nominating Committee. A committee shall meet as often as 
necessary to fulfill its responsibilities. Standing committees of the Medical Staff shall maintain a 
permanent record of its proceedings and actions and shall report its findings and 
recommendations ultimately to the MEC. The Chief of Staff may appoint additional ad hoc 
committees for specific purposes. Ad hoc committees will cease to meet when they have 
accomplished their appointed purpose or on a date set by the Chief of Staff when establishing the 
committee. The Chief of Staff and the CEO, or their designees, are ex officio members of all 
standing and ad hoc committees. 

Committee members may be removed from the committee by the Chief of Staff or by action of 
the MEC for failure to remain a member of the Medical Staff in good standing or for failure to 
adequately participate in the activities of the committee. Any vacancy in any committee shall be 
filled for the remaining portion of the term in the same manner in which the original appointment 
was made. 

Medical staff members may be appointed to hospital committees. Actions taken by hospital 
committees that affect the practice of practitioners with privileges must have those actions 
approved by the MEC prior to going into effect. 

2.1.2 Medical Executive Committee. See UMC Bylaws, Part I: Governance, Section 6.2. 

2.1.3 Credentials Committee. See UMC Bylaws, Part III: Credentials Procedures Manual, 
Section 1. 

2.1.4 Professional Improvement Committee 

a. Composition:   The Professional Improvement Committee shall consist of at least 
fourteen (14) voting members with each Medical Staff Department having one 
representative as set forth in the Professional Improvement Committee Charter. Current 
Department Chiefs are ineligible to simultaneously serve as voting PIC members. The 
Professional Improvement Committee shall include a Professional Improvement 
Committee Chair who shall be appointed by the Chief of Staff. The CEO (or designee), 
Chief of Staff (or designee), and the Hospital Quality Director/Support Staff are ex-
officio members of the Professional Improvement Committee without a vote.      

b. Responsibilities:  The committee shall be responsible for those functions described in 
section 1.3.2. 

2.1.5 Bylaws Committee  

a. Composition:  The Bylaws Committee shall consist of at least five (5) members.  These 
will be chosen from the Active Medical and Dental Staff membership, with no more than 
two (2) members from any department, inclusive of key hospital leadership personnel. 

Page 222 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF RULES AND REGULATIONS Page 10 
Part II: Organization and Functions Manual 

b. Responsibilities:  The Bylaws Committee shall meet at least twice a year and as often as 
necessary to review and to make recommendations concerning the Bylaws to the Medical 
Executive Committee and the General Staff. The committee shall be responsible for those 
functions described in section 1.3.8 above 

2.1.6 Professional Review Committee  

a. Composition:  The Professional Review Committee shall consist of the Chief of Staff (or 
Designee), PRC Chair or PRC Vice-Chair, Department Chief or Vice Chief of the 
relevant Medical Staff Department and up to three (3) additional members of the Active 
Medical Staff. The PRC Chair and Vice-Chair shall be appointed by the Chief of Staff for 
a two-year term. 
 

b. Responsibilities:  This committee shall be responsible for those functions described in 
section 1.3.12 above and issues involving professional conduct. 

2.1.7 Nominating Committee  

a. Composition:  The Nominating Committee shall be a special committee and shall consist 
of five (5) members of the Active Staff appointed by the Chief of Staff.  The Committee 
will meet in October of the election year and forward its recommendations for candidates 
for office to the Active Staff.  To avoid conflict of interest, members who desire to run 
for office shall not be appointed to the Nominating Committee. 
 

b. Responsibilities:  The committee shall: 

i. Develop criteria for leadership positions to include tenure, leadership training, 
previous experience in leadership positions and character; and 

ii. Provide an annual slate of nominees for the elected Medical Staff positions; 

2.1.8 Advanced Practice Professional (APP) Committee 

a. Composition: The APP committee shall consist of at least three (3) credentialed 
Advanced Practice Professionals who are Active Medical Staff where eligible. The APP 
chair will be appointed by the Chief of Staff for a period of two (2) years. Members shall 
be representative of the categories of APPs practicing in the hospital when possible 
(APRN, PA, CRNA, etc.), and adjunct members will be invited at the discretion of the 
Chair. 

 
b. Responsibilities: The APP committee is a multidisciplinary committee responsible for 

providing representation and coordination in all APP-related medical staff functions.  The 
APP committee will develop and update APP core and specialty delineation of privilege 
documents to be aligned with current practice and applicable legal and regulatory 
requirements. The APP committee will oversee hospital policies that uniquely address 
APP practice or scope of practice. The APP committee will advise MEC committees and 
actively participate when APP practice and/or scope of practice are addressed. This 
includes consultation on items pertaining to quality, behavior, or privileging where 
advocacy or clarification is needed pertaining to APP practice and/or scope of practice. 

Page 223 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF RULES AND REGULATIONS Page 11 
Part II: Organization and Functions Manual 

 HOSPITAL COMMITTEES  

2.2.1 General  

 In addition to the Medical Staff Committees enumerated in Section 2.1, the following Hospital 
committees involve certain responsibilities of the Medical Staff :  Burn Care Ad Hoc Committee, 
Cancer Committee, Center for Quality & Patient Safety Committee, Critical Care Committee, 
Education Committee, Ethics Committee, , Joint Conference Committee, Infection Control 
Committee, Institutional Review Board, P&T Committee, Point of Care Testing, Stroke 
Committee, Transfusion Care Committee, and Utilization Management Committee. 

2.2.2 Burn Care Ad Hoc Committee  

a. Composition:  The Burn Care Ad Hoc Committee shall consist of all Physicians or 
Dentists on the Burn Care call panel, unit manager, charge nurse, and representatives 
from Occupational Therapy, Dietary, Social Services, Pharmacy, and other hospital 
services as required. 

b. Responsibilities:  The purpose of the Burn Care Ad Hoc Committee is to assure access 
to a high level of care for all burn patient admitted to the hospital or outpatient clinic.  
Assurance of that care shall include education of patients and staff, maintenance of a burn 
care product formulary, coordination of multidisciplinary services, and audit of care. 

2.2.3 Cancer Committee  

a. Composition:  The Cancer Committee shall consist of those physicians required by the 
Commission on Cancer who are members of the Medical and Dental Staff. They will be 
appointed by the Chair or Cancer Liaison Physician according to the requirements of the 
Commission on Cancer. The Chair of the Cancer Committee shall be appointed by the 
Chief of Staff in consultation with the CEO. Other ex-officio members without vote shall 
include a representative from Administration, Nursing, Social Service/hospice, 
Performance Improvement, Cancer Registry, and Rehabilitation. When necessary, 
committee composition may be adjusted as appropriate to maintain certification by the 
American College of Surgeons Commission on Cancer as a Hospital Cancer Program. 

b. Responsibilities:  The purpose of the Cancer Committee is to assure access to a high 
level of care for all cancer patients admitted to the hospital or outpatient clinic.  
Assurance of that care shall include education of patients and staff, clinical conferences, 
audit of care and maintenance, and review of a database.  It shall also provide for a 
Clinical Tumor Board for case evaluation and review. The committee provides program 
leadership with duties as described in the Standards of the Commission on Cancer. 

Page 224 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF RULES AND REGULATIONS Page 12 
Part II: Organization and Functions Manual 

2.2.4 Education Committee  

a. Composition:  The Education Committee shall consist of seven (7) or more members of 
the Medical & Dental Staff.  The members of the Medical Education Committee should 
be keenly interested in education and represent the major specialties and services.  The 
members shall be appointed by the Chief of Staff, in consultation with the CEO, with 
approval of the Medical Executive Committee.  The Administrative Director of Medical 
Education shall be a member, ex-officio, of the Education Committee, without vote.  
Voting members of the Education Committee shall serve a term of two (2) calendar 
years.  Voting members will be replaced as needed by the Chief of Staff, in consultation 
with the CEO.  One or more of the members will serve on The Center for Quality & 
Patient Safety Committee.  The Chair of the Education Committee shall be appointed by 
the CEO, in consultation with the Chief of Staff. 

b. Responsibilities:  The Education Committee shall be concerned with the planning and 
recommendation of all aspects of the Continuing Medical Education programs at 
University Medical Center.  The Administrative Director of Medical Education, in 
collegial consultation with the Education Committee, is responsible for the coordination 
and execution of said programs.  The Education Committee will ensure that all Physician 
or Dentist programs presented at University Medical Center adhere to the accreditation 
guidelines as set forth by the Nevada State Medical Association as established by the 
Accreditation Council for Continuing Medical Education of the American Medical 
Association, as well as meet program goals and objectives. The Education Committee 
shall plan and develop educational programs based on audit studies, Medical & Dental 
Staff survey of perceived educational needs, new advances in knowledge, new techniques 
and equipment, hospital statistics, recommendation of departmental chairs and needs 
apparent from Committee reports. 

2.2.5 Ethics Committee  

a. Composition:  The Ethics Committee will be appointed by the Chief of Staff, in 
consultation with the CEO, to serve a two (2) year term consisting of the following voting 
Members: Six (6) members of the active staff, one (1) member of the resident/fellow staff 
from the program relevant to the case will be appointed on a case by case basis, two (2) 
lay representatives from the community, one (1) from clergy, and two (2) members of the 
Nursing staff. The Committee will meet on an ad hoc basis to address specific situations 
concerning ethical matters and questions regarding patients' rights. 

b. Responsibilities:  Ethical questions and concerns which arise in the hospital may be 
brought before this Committee by any member of the Medical & Dental Staff, Nursing 
staff, Advanced Practice Professional staff of this hospital, a patient or family member of 
the patient, a person having durable power of attorney for the patient, or other committees 
of the Medical and Nursing staffs of the hospital.  The Committee can be contacted 
through the Medical Staff Office during regular business hours or through the On Duty 
Administrator during non-business hours. The Committee shall have the final 
determination as to the appropriateness of the request.  Requests accepted by the 
Committee will be finalized with a written consultation that is included in the patient's 
chart.  Copies of this consultation are available for the patient's Physician or Dentist and 
the Medical Executive Committee. 

2.2.6 Infection Control Committee  

Page 225 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF RULES AND REGULATIONS Page 13 
Part II: Organization and Functions Manual 

a. Composition:  The Infection Control Committee shall include attendance by 
representatives from the Medical & Dental Staff, Administration, Nurse Epidemiologist, 
Employee Health Nurse, Director of Cardiology, Clinical Manager of 
MICU/SICU/NSCU and Director of Maternal Child Health with attendance, as needed by 
Director of Human Resources, Director of Environmental Services, Microbiology, Sterile 
Processing, Director of Food and Nutritional Services, Director of Plant Operations, 
Director of Pharmaceutical Services, Operating Room Coordinator, Chief Respiratory 
Therapist, and the Clark County Health District will be requested. 

b. Responsibilities:  The purpose of the Infection Control Committee is to develop 
recommendations to insure there shall be an effective Infection Control Program within 
the hospital.  The Committee is delegated by the Medical and Dental Staff to conduct 
continuous, ongoing review of antibiotic and drug monitoring which is in conformance 
with the standard of the Joint Commission on Accreditation of Hospitals for infection 
control, and which meets the need of the hospital.  The Committee shall meet as needed, 
but at least in accordance with Joint Commission, State, and other regulatory agency 
requirements, and is responsible to the Medical Executive Committee. 

2.2.7 Institutional Review Board  

a. Composition:  Membership must be comprised of at least five members with varying 
backgrounds to promote complete and adequate review of research activities commonly 
conducted at University Medical Center.  Membership will consist of at least one member 
whose primary concerns are in the scientific area and at least one member whose primary 
concerns are in non-scientific areas.  The IRB may not consist entirely of members of one 
profession or gender.  There will be at least one member who is not affiliated with the 
hospital and is not part of the immediate family of a person who is affiliated with the 
hospital.  Physician or Dentist members of the IRB must maintain Active status on the 
Medical and Dental Staff of University Medical Center, unless specifically exempted by 
the Board Chairperson. 

b. Responsibilities:  The Institutional Review Board reviews, approves, monitors and 
evaluates research projects and clinical investigations to be conducted and/or in progress, 
at the Hospital, following written procedures and criteria for reviewing and monitoring 
studies and observing all requirements of appropriately empowered regulatory 
authorities.  It meets at least six times per year, and may meet monthly or at other times 
as deemed necessary by the Board Chairperson.  Board minutes will be made available to 
the Joint Conference and the Medical Executive Committee. 

2.2.8 Point of Care Testing Committee  

a. Composition:  The Point of Care Committee shall consist of members of the Medical & 
Dental Staff, Allied Health Professionals, and employees of UMC, selected by the 
Chairman, that are stakeholder representatives. 

b. Responsibilities:  The Point of Care Committee is a multidisciplinary committee 
established to govern all Point of Care Testing activities at UMC. The Committee is 
responsible to approve point of care devices and monitor regulatory compliance to ensure 
the highest level of care to all patients receiving services at any UMC facility.  It shall 
meet quarterly, and is responsible to the Medical Executive Committee. 

2.2.9 Quality & Patient Safety Committee  

Page 226 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF RULES AND REGULATIONS Page 14 
Part II: Organization and Functions Manual 

a. Composition:  Quality & Patient Safety Committee consist of representatives from 
various departments including:  Administration, Clinical Quality and Patient Safety, 
Nursing Quality, Infection Control, Pharmacy, HIM, Medical Staff Nursing 
Administration, Nursing Units, Laboratory, Clinical Engineering, Food Services, Imaging 
Services, Primary Care and Urgent Care, Transplant Services, Human Resources and 
Disease Specific Services.  The CEO, in consultation with the Chief of Staff, will appoint 
a Physician Representative and Chair to the Quality and Patient Safety Committee.  Other 
members of the medical staff may participate as deemed necessary.  

b. Responsibilities:  The Quality and Patient Safety program is responsible to monitor, 
evaluate and improve the quality of care provided throughout the organization in 
accordance with the annual Quality and Patient Safety Plan.  Objectives, scope of service, 
responsibilities, evaluation, prioritization and performance improvement will be 
conducted in accordance with the annual Quality and Patient Safety Plan.  The Quality 
and Patient Safety Committee will evaluate the effectiveness of the Quality program 
annually and will present its results to the Quality and Patient Safety Committee, the 
Medical Executive Committee and the Governing Board.    

2.2.10 Stroke Committee  

a. Composition:  The Stroke Committee shall be multidisciplinary and chaired by the 
Stroke Medical Director. The Committee shall meet a minimum of every other month or 
more frequently as determined by the Medical Director. All participants will be eligible 
to vote on all issues. 

b. Responsibilities:  The Stroke Committee is responsible for the development, 
implementation and monitoring of the Stroke Program. Committee functions include 
establishing policies and procedures, reviewing process and system issues, review and 
analysis of process and outcome indicators. The Committee will strive to ensure that 
Stroke Care provided at University Medical Center meets standards of care as defined by 
current evidence and literature. 

2.2.11 Trauma Committee  

a. Composition:  The trauma committee shall consist of at least five (5) members of the 
Medical Staff. It shall also have hospital representatives as appointed by the CEO to 
fulfill requirements of the American College of Surgeons to comply with the guidelines 
for an ACS Verified trauma center and any State of Nevada Trauma Center designation 
guidelines. 

b. Responsibilities:  The committee develops policies and procedures for the trauma 
service, oversees the on-call schedule, develops trauma-related educational programs 
based on the results of its evaluation of trauma care and programs on trauma prevention 
for the community, evaluates human and equipment resources and makes 
recommendations for capital expenditures, reviews the trauma registry, and reviews, 
evaluates, and discusses the quality of care in cases of adverse outcomes (complications 
and deaths) particularly focusing on those deaths statistically expected to survive, which 
were identified using outcome norms. Reviews monthly statistics based on injury severity 
score and revised trauma score as they relate to outcomes and provides a trend analysis of 
complications. 

2.2.12 Utilization Management Committee  

Page 227 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF RULES AND REGULATIONS Page 15 
Part II: Organization and Functions Manual 

a. Composition:  The UMC Utilization Management Committee shall consist of two or 
more practitioners that carry out the utilization review function.  At least two of these 
members of the committee must be doctors of medicine or osteopathy and one must be a 
staff member of the institution.  The other members may be any of the other types of 
practitioners and can include other Leadership members.   

b. Responsibilities:  This committee shall be responsible for the functions described in 
section 1.3.13 above.  

 

 

Page 228 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF RULES AND REGULATIONS Page 16 
Part II: Organization and Functions Manual 

Section 3. Confidentiality, Immunity, Releases, and Conflict of Interest 

 Confidentiality of Information 

To the fullest extent permitted by law, the following shall be kept confidential: 

a. Information submitted, collected, or prepared by any representative of this or any 
other healthcare facility or organization or Medical Staff for the purposes of 
assessing, reviewing, evaluating, monitoring, or improving the quality and 
efficiency of healthcare provided; 

b. Evaluations of current clinical competence and qualifications for staff 
appointment/affiliation and/or clinical privileges or specified services; and 

c. Contributions to teaching or clinical research; and 

d. Determinations that healthcare services were indicated or performed in 
compliance with an applicable standard of care. 

This information will not be disseminated to anyone other than a representative of the hospital or 
to other healthcare facilities or organizations of health professionals engaged in official, 
authorized activities for which the information is needed. Such confidentiality shall also extend to 
information provided by third parties. Each practitioner expressly acknowledges that violations of 
confidentiality provided here are grounds for revocation of staff appointment/affiliation and/or 
clinical privileges or specified services. 

 Immunity from Liability 

No representative of this healthcare organization shall be liable to a practitioner for damages or 
other relief for any decision, opinion, action, statement, or recommendation made within the 
scope of his/her duties as an official representative of the hospital or Medical Staff when done in 
good faith and without malice. No representative of this healthcare organization shall be liable for 
providing information, opinion, counsel, or services to a representative or to any healthcare 
facility or organization of health professionals concerning said practitioner. The immunity 
protections afforded in these Bylaws are in addition to those prescribed by applicable state and 
federal law. 

 Covered Activities 

The confidentiality and immunity provided by this article apply to all information or disclosures 
performed or made in connection with this or any other healthcare facilities or organization’s 
activities concerning, but not limited to: 

a. Applications for appointment/affiliation, clinical privileges, or specified services; 

b. Periodic reappraisals for renewed appointments/affiliations, clinical privileges, or 
specified services; 

c. Corrective or disciplinary actions; 

d. Hearings and appellate reviews; 

e. Quality assessment and performance improvement/peer review activities; 

f. Utilization review and improvement activities; 

Page 229 of 853



 

MEDICAL AND DENTAL STAFF RULES AND REGULATIONS Page 17 
Part II: Organization and Functions Manual 

g. Claims reviews; 

h. Risk management and liability prevention activities; and 

i. Other hospital, committee, Department, or staff activities related to monitoring and 
maintaining quality and efficient patient care and appropriate professional conduct. 

 Releases 

When requested by the Chief of Staff or designee, each practitioner shall execute general and 
specific releases. Failure to execute such releases shall result in an application for appointment, 
reappointment, or clinical privileges being deemed voluntarily withdrawn and not processed 
further. 

 Conflict of Interest 

A member of the Medical Staff requested to perform a board designated Medical Staff 
responsibility (such as credentialing, peer review or corrective action) may have a conflict of 
interest if they may not be able to render an unbiased opinion. An absolute conflict of interest 
would result if the physician is the practitioner under review, his/her spouse, or his/her first 
degree relative (parent, sibling, or child). Potential conflicts of interest are either due to a 
provider’s involvement in the patient’s care not related to the issues under review or because of a 
relationship with the physician involved as a direct competitor, partner, or key referral source. It 
is the obligation of the individual physician to disclose to the affected committee the potential 
conflict. It is the responsibility of the committee to determine on a case-by-case basis if a 
potential conflict is substantial enough to prevent the individual from participating. When a 
potential conflict is identified, the committee chair will be informed in advance and make the 
determination if a substantial conflict exists. When either an absolute or substantial potential 
conflict is determined to exist, the individual may not participate or be present during the 
discussions or decisions other than to provide specific information requested. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 230 of 853



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
February 28, 2024 

 
 

 

Agenda Item #  

8 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD  

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Issue: Fifth Amendment to the CEO’s Employment Agreement  

 
Back-up: 
      

 
Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer 

 
Clerk Ref. # 
      

 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Governing Board the Fifth Amendment to the CEO’s Employment Agreement as 
recommended by the Human Resources and Executive Compensation Committee; and 
take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action)  
 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
No increase to current base compensation.  Merit and incentive compensation will be made pursuant 
to annual evaluation as determined by the Governing Board.  Funds to cover the costs of wages, 
benefits, and any increases will be budgeted.  The fiscal impact for the scheduled PERS service 
credit purchase on the CEO’s behalf for March 1, 2024 was previously budgeted, and the estimated 
cost of twelve (12) months of PERS service credit will be approximately $125,000 for future 
purchases. 
 

BACKGROUND: 
 
On December 17, 2014, the Governing Board approved the CEO’s Employment Agreement setting 
forth the length of employment, as well as the compensation and benefits of Mason Van Houweling.  
Subsequently, on June 24, 2015, the First Amendment to the CEO’s Employment Agreement was 
effective, and deleted and replaced Schedule B to the Employment Agreement to allow for a new set 
of performance objectives and related timeframes for evaluation. 
 
On August 23, 2017, the Second Amendment to the CEO’s Employment Agreement was effective 
and extended the length of the Employment Agreement to June 30, 2022.  The Second Amendment 
resulted in no increase to the current base salary other than annual merit increases for the duration of 
the contract period, along with changes to the time periods for evaluation and payment of any earned 
incentive compensation.  In addition, the process for the determination of annual goals was 
addressed.   
 
On January 27, 2021, the Third Amendment to the CEO’s Employment Agreement was effective and 
extended the length of the Employment Agreement to June 30, 2025.  In consideration for extension 
of the Employment Agreement, UMC agreed to purchase twenty-four (24) months of service credits 
in the Public Employee Retirement System of Nevada (“PERS”) on the CEO’s behalf. 

Page 231 of 853



Page Number 
2 

 
On March 30, 2022, the Fourth Amendment to the CEO’s Employment Agreement was effective and 
amended to incorporate the UMC Management Compensation Plan policy (the “M-Plan”) into the 
Employment Agreement. 
 
This Fifth Amendment to the CEO’s Employment Agreement would extend the length of the 
Employment Agreement to December 31, 2028.  The already scheduled PERS service credit 
purchase to be paid in FY24, will be paid on or about March 1, 2024.  In consideration for extension 
of the Employment Agreement to December 31, 2028, UMC will purchase an additional twenty-four 
(24) months of service credit in PERS on the CEO’s behalf, on or about April 1, 2026 and December 
1, 2028.  The CEO must be employed by UMC at the time the PERS credit is purchased on his behalf 
and any resulting taxes from the purchase of PERS credit shall be the sole responsibility of the CEO.   

Page 232 of 853



FIFTH AMENDMENT 
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 

 

THIS FIFTH AMENDMENT, effective March 1, 2024 (“Fifth Amendment”), is made by and 
between, W. Mason Van Houweling, (hereinafter referred to as “VANHOUWELING”), and 
University Medical Center of Southern Nevada, acting by and through its Governing Board 
(hereinafter referred to as “UMC”). 
 
WHEREAS, the parties entered into the Employment Agreement effective on December 5, 2014 
(hereinafter “Agreement”). 
 
WHEREAS, the parties executed the First Amendment to the Agreement to amend provisions 
related to employee performance objectives and the evaluation process, effective June 24, 2015. 
  
WHEREAS, the parties entered in the Second Amendment to the Agreement to extend the term 
of the Agreement and amend incentive compensation and other terms related to annual goals, 
effective August 23, 2017. 
 
WHEREAS, the parties executed the Third Amendment to the Agreement to extend the term of 
the Agreement and provide for twenty-four (24) months of PERS Service Credits as consideration 
for employee retention, effective January 27, 2021. 
 
WHEREAS, the parties executed the Fourth Amendment to the Agreement to incorporate certain 
Management Plan (the “M-Plan”) changes, effective March 30, 2022. 
 
WHEREAS, the parties hereto desire to further amend the Agreement to extend the term of the 
Agreement and to purchase two additional years of PERS service credits as consideration for 
VANHOUWELING’s retention as set forth herein. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements contained herein 
and in the Agreement, the parties agree as follows: 
 

1. Delete Section 1 in its entirety and replace it with the following: 

Section 1.  TERM.  The term of the Agreement shall commence as of December 5, 2014 
and, unless earlier terminated pursuant to this Agreement or by operation of law, shall 
terminate as of December 31, 2028. 
 

2. Delete Section 2.01 in its entirety and replace it with the following: 
 
Section 2.01.  SERVICES.  VANHOUWELING shall provide administrative and 
management services for the HOSPITAL.  VANHOUWELING’s services shall be in 
conformity with all applicable Federal laws and regulations, Nevada Revised Statutes, 

Page 233 of 853



Clark County Code Chapter 3.74, and with the standards for an accredited HOSPITAL as 
provided in Section 2.02 below, including activities which are customary and usual in 
connection herewith, including but not limited to the services specifically set forth herein 
below, and with the bylaws, policies and procedures, and decisions UMC adopts from time 
to time.  Those duties shall include the administration and management of all of the 
HOSPITAL’s departments, inclusive of clinical and non-clinical services and the 
employment and/or contracting of services necessary for the proper operations thereof in 
accordance with all requirements set forth in this Agreement. Except as expressly limited 
hereunder and consistent with UMC’s status as licensee pursuant to NRS Chapter 449, an 
accredited provider with the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS), and 
subject to UMC’s budgetary approval pursuant to Section 2.12, VAHOUWELING’s 
supervisory responsibilities include recommendation of charges for the HOSPITAL daily 
room rate and other services, the development and implementation of labor policies, 
including wage rates, the hiring and discharging of employees, the installation of employee 
compensation and benefits plans, the development and implementation of operating 
business and administrative policies, and recommendations with respect to Hospital 
Bylaws and rules and regulations, all for the approval of UMC, the UMC Governing Board 
or the UMC Board of Hospital Trustees, as applicable and as consistent with County Code 
Chapter 3.74.  VANHOUWELING shall devote his full time and effort to the performance 
of these duties, and in doing so, shall comply with all Federal and State laws applicable 
thereto. 
 

3. Delete Section 2.05 in its entirety. 
 

4. Delete the last two sentences of Section 4.03 and replace it with the following: 
 
VANHOUWELING must be employed by UMC at the time the bonus is paid pursuant to 
this Section 4.03; provided however, in the event this Agreement did not terminate earlier 
and upon the expiration of the term of the Agreement, this Section 4.03 will survive such 
expiration for purposes of processing the incentive bonus to VANHOUWELING for Fiscal 
Year 2028.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, no incentive bonus will be due 
VANHOUWELING for Fiscal Year 2029 to the extent this Agreement expires prior to the 
end of Fiscal Year 2029.   The parties acknowledge and agree that in the event of any 
conflict between the M-Plan document and VANHOUWELING’s Employment 
Agreement, the terms of this Employment Agreement shall control. 
 

5. Delete Section 4.04 in its entirety and replace it with the following: 

Section 4.04 PERS SERVICE CREDIT.  As further consideration for the ongoing 
retention of VANHOUWELING’s employment over the term of the Agreement, UMC 
agrees to purchase certain service credits in the Public Employees Retirement System of 
Nevada (“PERS” or “System”) on VANHOUWLING’s behalf.  The PERS service credits 
shall total no more than forty-eight (48) months of PERS service credit upon the following 

Page 234 of 853



schedule (as calculated by the System’s actuary based upon the rates and terms in effect at 
the time of purchase): (a) twelve (12) months of PERS service credit on or about April 1, 
2021; (b) twelve (12) months of PERS service credit on or about March 1, 2024; (c) twelve 
(12) months of PERS service credit on or about April 1, 2026; and (d) twelve (12) months 
of PERS service credit on or about December 1, 2028.  VANHOUWELING must be 
employed by UMC at the time the PERS service credit is purchased on his behalf.  Any 
resulting taxes from the purchase of PERS service credit shall be the sole responsibility of 
VANHOUWELING.  Notwithstanding anything in this Section 4.04 all payments made 
pursuant to this Section 4.04 must not exceed that which is allowable under applicable law, 
including but not limited to NRS Chapter 286.  

6. Except as expressly amended in this Fifth Amendment, the Agreement shall remain in full 
force and effect. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Fifth Amendment to be executed. 

Employee        Hospital Governing Board, University Medical 
         Center of Southern Nevada 

 

_________________________  _________________________________ 

W. Mason Van Houweling   John F. O’Reilly, Chairman 

Page 235 of 853



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

Issue: Remote Work Policy 
 

Back-up: 

Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer 
 

Clerk Ref. # 

Recommendation: 

That the Governing Board approve the new Remote Work Policy; or take action 
as deemed appropriate. (For possible action)  

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None 

BACKGROUND: 
 

UMC is creating a Remote Work Policy that will set forth the structure for remote work when and if a decision is made 
to allow it within a classification or department. 

 
The policy was reviewed by the Governing Board Human Resources and Executive Compensation Committee at their 
February 26, 2024 special meeting and recommended for approval by the Governing Board. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
February 28, 2024 

 
Agenda Item # 

9 

Page 236 of 853



 
 

 

 
 

POLICY /GUIDELINE TITLE: Remote 
Work Program 

 
 

 

 
MANUAL: Human Resources 

 
POLICY OWNER: CHRO or designee 

 
ORIGINATION DATE: M a r c h  2 0 2 4  

 
FINAL APPROVAL DATE:  

 

SCOPE 

All University Medical Center Southern Nevada (UMC) employees who are in a pre-approved Remote Work 
eligible classification. 

 
PURPOSE 
UMC considers remote work to be a viable, flexible workplace location option when both the employee and the 
position are identified as being an efficient and effective way of conducting business. Remote Work does not 
alter the terms and conditions of employment with UMC, including at-will status as applicable. 

 
POLICY 
Remote Work is the assignment of an alternative workplace location based on business needs (Remote Work 
Program). The Remote Work Program is only permitted in pre-approved classifications and is not universally 
available to all classifications or employees. Remote Workers are still expected to come into an office for team 
meetings, project work, new team onboarding, etc. as requested by their leaders. 
  
Employees who work remotely must comply with all federal, state, and local laws, including wage and hour laws, 
as well as UMC’s policies and procedures. Any violation of this Policy or any other UMC policy, procedure, 
practices, etc., may result in disciplinary action, including without limitation, ineligibility to participate in the 
Remote Work Program or termination of employment. 
  
UMC may, in its sole discretion, alter, modify, terminate or re-evaluate an employee's or classification’s 
participation in the Remote Work Program at any time. When such changes are implemented, and when 
possible, UMC will endeavor to provide thirty (30) days' advance notice to impacted employees of any such 
change; however, there is no guarantee any advance notice will be provided 
  
Short-Term or Temporary Remote Work Arrangements 
At its sole discretion, UMC senior leadership may approve Short-Term or Temporary remote work arrangements 
for reasons such as inclement weather, special projects, business travel, or other appropriate circumstances. 
Short-Term and Temporary remote work arrangements are intended to be finite for short durations and may 
be approved only on an as-needed basis. All Information Technology (IT) security requirements apply to Short-
Term or Temporary remote work arrangements. 

Page 237 of 853



 
 

 

 
 

POLICY /GUIDELINE TITLE: Remote 
Work Program 

 
 

 

 
REMOTE WORK PROGRAM PARTICIPATION REQUIREMENTS 
  
Remote Workspace 
Participants in the Remote Work Program are required to provide, at their own cost, a remote workspace that 
is: 

 Suitable for performing the essential functions of the position;  
 Suitable for placement or installation of UMC business equipment. Employee's assigned UMC business 

equipment must maintain it in a safe and reasonable manner free from hazards and other dangers; and 
 UMC retains all rights to determine whether the proposed remote workspace is suitable for Remote 

Work Program participation. 

Guidelines for the set-up of a safe, comfortable remote workspace will be offered to Remote Work Program 
participants. 

All Remote Work Program participants must complete a remote workspace self-evaluation assessment for their 
remote workspace, and provide to their direct supervisor prior to participating in the program. A new 
assessment is recommended whenever the remote workspace location changes. 

Once set up, Remote Work Program participants must notify their manager immediately when experiencing 
significant computer or other connectivity downtime. Management will determine if the employee should work 
from a UMC office on-site location until any such issues are resolved. 

Permanent office space may not be provided to full Remote Work Program participants. UMC will offer, based 
on availability, "Hotel" workspace or other "flex spaces" for Remote Work Program participants' use when 
visiting UMC offices.  

Meetings and UMC Office On-Site Work 

Even when approved as a Remote Work Program participant, management may require UMC office on-site work 
at any of its locations at any time. Travel to UMC's facilities other than the employee's Primary UMC office 
location (if less than 100% remote work) for other purposes shall be pre-authorized by the employees 
department head. 

Consistent with applicable law, non-exempt fully Remote Work Program participants (100% remote) who are 
asked to work at a UMC office on-site location will be paid for reasonable travel time to and from the remote 
workspace location. Fully Remote Work participants unable to work at home because of a power or internet 
outage, or other non-related UMC reason, will not be paid for reasonable travel time in these instances. 

Page 238 of 853



 
 

 

 
 

POLICY /GUIDELINE TITLE: Remote 
Work Program 

 
 

 

 RESOURCES 

Technology & Equipment 

Technological equipment will be issued according to UMC's IT Department standard policies. Replacement of 
stolen or damaged UMC-owned equipment due to Remote Work Program participant negligence is the 
responsibility of the participant, as determined by UMC in its sole and reasonable discretion. Printers will NOT 
be provided to Remote Work Participants. Additionally, printing of any UMC work product at the Remote Work 
Program space is prohibited without express approval from UMC Senior Leadership. 

Utilities 

Remote Work Program participants are solely responsible for arranging the installation of necessary internet 
and telephone line access (if required) in their remote workspace. Reimbursement for Remote Work Program 
participants for business-related internet and phone expenses will be considered on a case-by-case basis. Any 
such approval will be subject to the existing UMC policies and procedures.  

 EXPENSES 

Supervisors/Managers of Remote Work Program participants are required to budget, approve, allocate and 
procure supplies and equipment necessary for these direct reports. All approved expenses incurred that are 
covered by other UMC policies, will be charged to the Remote Work Program participant's department. 

Reimbursable Expenses 

UMC may supply or reimburse Remote Work Program participants for business-related expenses that are pre-
approved, which may include the following: 

 Mileage for travel to and from a UMC office on-site location for an approved work-related purpose in 
accordance with the Travel & Expense Policy. 

 Any other business-related expense approved by the organization. 

Remote Work Program participants who believe that the amount they have been reimbursed does not represent 
a complete reimbursement for all business-related expenses should work with their leadership to submit 
appropriate documentation for appropriate and complete reimbursement. 

 

 

Page 239 of 853



 
 

 

 
 

POLICY /GUIDELINE TITLE: Remote 
Work Program 

 
 

 

Ordering Supplies 

With prior authorization from the participant's supervisor, a participant may utilize their department's regular 
ordering process to order supplies. Utilizing this process, supplies may be shipped directly to the participant's 
remote workspace or picked up at the participant's local facility. Supplies refer to any item that is needed to 
complete the employees work, including but not limited to paper, pens, folders, etc. Employees should confirm 
supply availability with their order designee prior to incurring an expense.  

Mobile Phone and Internet Service Allowance 

Based on job responsibilities, eligible Remote Work Program participants may qualify for a UMC issued mobile 
phone. An internet service allowance may be provided on a case-by-case basis. Any such approval of an internet 
service allowance, including the amount and frequency of distribution, is at the sole discretion of UMC.  

Non-Reimbursable Expenses 

UMC will neither supply nor reimburse Remote Work Program participants for the following: 

 Unapproved technological equipment - Only IT Department approved technological equipment may be 
used for business purposes. Any use of personal technological equipment for business purposes must be 
approved and the Remote Work Program participant assumes all responsibility for use of any such 
equipment, including the costs related to maintenance, servicing, repairs or replacement. 

 Non-business-related travel, including travel to any UMC location for celebrations or activities that has 
not been approved or requested by leadership. 

 Food or beverages consumed in the designated remote workspace. 
 Household utilities including but not limited to electricity, water, sewage, etc.  

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT 

All performance management standards, expectations, and objectives apply to Remote Work Program 
participants. The department head (or designee) of any Remote Work Program participant(s) will develop and 
communicate standards, processes, mechanisms, etc., to ensure productivity and workplace expectations are 
met or exceeded. 

 PROFESSIONALISM 

All professionalism expectations apply to Remote Work Program participants. 

 Voice and Electronic Communication: UMC expects all communication to occur in a professional 
manner. 

Page 240 of 853



 
 

 

 
 

POLICY /GUIDELINE TITLE: Remote 
Work Program 

 
 

 

 Dependability: Remote Workers are expected to commit to a standard schedule during core business 
hours and attend scheduled meetings. Scheduled work hours, including changes to scheduled work 
hours, must be approved by the participant's leader. 

 Responsiveness: Remote Workers will respond to work-related emails, voicemails, text messages, and 
communications in a timely manner, but in no event shall a response exceed 48 business hours. 

 Home Office Environment: UMC recognizes that there may be infrequent, unanticipated events that 
occur, out of the Remote Work Program participant's direct control that may present a temporary 
interruption to business work. However, UMC expects that the participant's remote workspace 
environment will mimic a professional business environment, free from unnecessary interruptions. 

 Dependent Care: Remote Work is not a substitute for dependent care. Remote Work Program 
participants are expected to offer their full attention and efforts to their job duties during scheduled 
work hours. 

 Camera: Remote Workers will be expected to use UMC provided camera for all WebEx (or similar) 
meetings, and adhere to the existing UMC dress code policy. 

CONFIDENTIALITY 

Confidentiality expectations remain unaltered by Remote Work Program participation. Employees are and 
remain obligated to comply with all policies, procedures, rules, and regulations on confidentiality, including 
HIPAA requirements, while working at a remote workspace. Violation of confidentiality or any policy related to 
this subject matter will result in appropriate discipline, up to and including termination of employment. 

INCOME TAX 

All tax obligations related to Remote Work or the use of the Remote Work Program participant's remote 
workspace rest solely with the participant. UMC does not provide tax guidance, nor will UMC assume any 
additional tax liabilities. UMC encourages all Remote Work Program participants to consult with a qualified tax 
professional on income tax implications. 

 WORKERS' COMPENSATION 

Occupational injuries sustained by an employee while at their remote workspace, while on business travel, or 
in a UMC office location, must be reported in accordance with current policy. All notice and other policy 
requirements remain in effect, regardless of the employee's participation in the Remote Work Program. 

 

 

Page 241 of 853



 
 

 

 
 

POLICY /GUIDELINE TITLE: Remote 
Work Program 

 
 

 

Residency & Vehicle Registration Requirements 

Unless an exception has been granted to a specific UMC classification by the Clark County Board of 
Commissioners, all Remote Workers must abide by the Clark County Ordinance No. 3881. Specifically, Remote 
Workers must establish and maintain Clark County Nevada Residency; and Register in Nevada any vehicle owned 
and operated within Nevada. 

TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT – RETURN OF EQUIPMENT 

Unless other arrangements are approved by management and Human Resources, UMC property and 
confidential information must be returned immediately to UMC upon termination of employment. Departing 
employees who fail to comply with this requirement may be deemed ineligible for rehire within UMC. The fair 
market value of unreturned equipment may be deducted from the employee’s final paycheck or invoiced to the 
extent allowable under law. 

PROCEDURE 
• The Chief Executive Officer (or designee(s)) in conjunction with the senior leadership of the department, 

will determine which UMC classifications and employees are eligible to participate in the Remote Work 
program; and whether such approval is for Fully Remote Work or Partial Remote Work. 

• An employee within an approved Remote Work classification may submit a written request to their 
department head requesting to participate in the program.  

• The department head and human resources will review the request, including but not limited to whether 
granting the request is consistent with business needs, if performance expectations can be met, and the 
employee can reasonably perform the essential functions of the position, and determine collectively if 
the request will be approved.  

• In certain circumstances, Remote Work requests may be approved with the sole consent of Human 
Resources.  

• UMC reserves the right to alter, modify or terminate all remote work arrangements based on business 
needs, employee performance, or for any other reason.  

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

Page 242 of 853



 
 

 

 
 

POLICY /GUIDELINE TITLE: Remote 
Work Program 

 
 

 

DEFINITIONS 

1. Remote Work: Is the partial or full assignment of an alternative workplace location based on 
business needs. UMC has sole authority in determining if an employee (or classification) is partial or full 
assignment to Remote Work. Full assignment means that the employee will no longer have a dedicated 
space at a UMC facility, and will work primarily from the Remote Work assigned office space. Partial 
Remote Work is when an employee maintains a dedicated space at a UMC facility, but works at a Remote 
Work assignment less than full-time. The frequency of any partial Remote Work assignment (e.g., two 
days a pay period, one-week a month, etc.), is at the sole discretion of UMC leadership. Approval or 
remote work is not guaranteed, and may be canceled or modified at any time. 

2. Remote Worker: It is an employee whose primary work location is outside of a UMC building 
because the essential duties of their role can be successfully completed remotely for the majority of the 
time on an average week. 

3. Hotel Workspace: Is a location (cube, office, etc.) that a fully Remote Worker (100%) may schedule and 
use when the business needs require onsite UMC attendance.  

 
 

 

 

REFERENCES 
 

Review  Date: By: Description: 

   

   

 
 

Page 243 of 853



 
 

 

 
 

POLICY /GUIDELINE TITLE: Remote 
Work Program 

 
 

 

UMC REMOTE WORKER AGREEMENT 
 

Employee Name  
 

PRNR #  

Job Title  
 

Dept.  

Designated Remote Work 
workspace address: 

 

 
The employee agrees to the following conditions: 
 

• Remain accessible and productive during scheduled work hours. 
• Nonexempt employees 

o Will record all hours worked in accordance with regular timekeeping practices. 
o Will observe and record meal periods in accordance with applicable law, CBA, or UMC policy. 
o Will obtain supervisor approval prior to working unscheduled overtime hours. 
o Will not perform work outside of scheduled work hours, or modify shift start or end times, 

without prior leadership approval. 
• The employee will report to UMCs work location at the request of their supervisor. 
• The employee will communicate regularly with their supervisor and co-workers. 
• The employee will comply with all UMC rules, policies, procedures, practices, instructions, and CBA and 

acknowledges that the same apply to employee’s work-related activities regardless of the employees 
work location. 

• The employee will maintain satisfactory performance standards. 
• The employee will make arrangements for regular dependent care and understands that the Remote 

Work program is not a substitute for dependent care. 
• The employee will maintain a safe and secure work environment at all times. 
• The employee will allow UMC access to their workspace area in their home where company equipment 

is set up and maintained and where job duties are performed, as may be needed, for purpose of 
accessing safety and security, equipment maintenance, ergonomic evaluations, or other employment-
related assessments. UMC will provide reasonable notice of any required or necessary visit, and the visit 
will be coordinated with the employee taking into account his/her regular schedule. 

• The employee will report work-related injuries to their manager as soon as practicable, complete 
appropriate paperwork (e.g., C-1) and submit it within the same timeframe. 

• The employee agrees that UMC equipment will only be used for UMC business-related work. 
• All equipment, tools, resources, intellectual property, medical records, etc., provided by UMC belong to 

and shall remain the property of UMC at all times. 
• The employee agrees to protect UMC equipment, tools, and resources from theft or damage and to 

report theft or damage to their supervisor immediately. 
• The employee agrees to comply with all UMC IT policies and expectations regarding information security. 

Page 244 of 853



 
 

 

 
 

POLICY /GUIDELINE TITLE: Remote 
Work Program 

 
 

 

• The employee will ensure the protection of proprietary company, HIPAA related information, customer 
information, or other confidential information that is accessible from their remote workspace. 

• The employee understands that all terms and conditions of employment at UMC, including any 
applicable at-will status, remain unchanged. 

• The employee understands that UMC retains the right to end or modify this program, including who may 
participate in the program, for any reason and at any time.  

• Printing of Protected Health Information is prohibited without express consent of the department 
leader. If printing is authorized, the same privacy and security measures applicable at an UMC worksite 
must be implemented at the remote workers home. 

 
 
 

Employee signature  
 

Date  
 

 

Page 245 of 853



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

Issue: Disciplinary Hearing Policy 
 

Back-up: 

Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer 
 

Clerk Ref. # 

Recommendation: 

That the Governing Board approve the HR Procedure for Disciplinary Hearing 
Process; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action)  

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None 

BACKGROUND: 
 

UMC is making changes to the HR procedure for Disciplinary Hearing Process for non-represented employees, 
effective on or around March 1, 2024 – the substantive changes are:  
•  Remove language regarding Suspension Hearing  
•  Replace gender specific language with gender neutral language  
•  Change hearing office from County Manager (or designee) to UMC CEO (or designee)  

 
These revisions were reviewed by the Governing Board Human Resources and Executive Compensation Committee at 
their February 26, 2024 special meeting and recommended for approval by the Governing Board. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
February 28, 2024 

 
Agenda Item # 

10 

Page 246 of 853



 
 

 

 
 
POLICY /GUIDELINE TITLE:  
Disciplinary Hearing Process  

 

 

 

 
MANUAL: Human Resources 

 
POLICY OWNER: HR   

EFFECTIVE DATE:  
07/05/95 
 

 
FINAL APPROVAL DATE:  

 
PURPOSE 
 
To set forth the procedure for administering pre- termination hearings and post-termination hearings for those 
eligible employees not covered by a collective bargaining agreement 
 
 ORGANIZATIONS AFFECTED:  
  
All departments  
 
PROCEDURE 
 
 
 A.  Pre-Termination Hearing  
  
1. An eligible employee who has been suspended pending termination shall have up to three (3) business 
days (business days are defined as Monday through Friday, excluding UMC recognized holidays) to submit a 
written request for a hearing to Human Resources at hr@umcsn.com or via handwritten notice to the front desk 
at human resources. Failure to request a hearing within the deadline will result in a waiver of the employee’s 
right to appeal the disciplinary action  
  
2. Human Resources will select a managerial employee outside the employee’s chain of command, who will 
function as the hearing officer.  
  
3. No hearing officer shall hear a case in which they has specific personal knowledge of the incident.  
  
4. The employee shall be given at least ten (10) business days notice of the time and location of the pre-
termination hearing.  
  
5. The hearing will be conducted in an informal manner and shall not follow formal rules of evidence. The 
employee may represent themselves or be represented by another employee at or above their classification 
level. The employee shall be given an explanation of the evidence against their, and shall be given an opportunity 
to respond to all specified charges. The hearing officer shall admit all presented evidence and provide it the 

Page 247 of 853

mailto:hr@umcsn.com


 
 

 

 
 
POLICY /GUIDELINE TITLE:  
Disciplinary Hearing Process  

 

 

 

weight they believe the evidence deserves in rendering his/her decision. There will not be witnesses called as a 
general rule, however, the hearing officer has the right to call a particular witness and ask the witness questions. 
Neither the manager nor the employee (or their representative) will be allowed to question any witnesses. A 
representative from Human Resources will be present in the hearing to ensure the process is followed and to 
act in an advisory capacity for both the employee and the manager.  
  
6. The hearing officer shall forward to the employee, management representative, department head and 
Human Resources his/her written decision within five (5) business days of the close of the pre-termination 
hearing. The hearing officer may uphold, modify or reverse the issued disciplinary action. If the suspension 
pending termination is reduced or reversed, Human Resources will provide Payroll with a copy of the hearing 
officer’s decision and request any monetary award be paid in accordance with the decision.  
  
7. If a proposed termination is upheld, the employee shall be separated from UMC service and, if eligible, 
may request a post-termination hearing.  
 
 
 
 b.  Post-Termination Hearing  
  
1. An eligible employee who has been terminated shall have up to three (3) business days (business days 
are defined as Monday through Friday, excluding UMC recognized holidays) from receipt of the pre-termination 
hearing officer's decision to appeal the decision. The employee or their representative shall make the request, 
in writing, to the Chief Human Resources Officer at hr@umcsn.com or via handwritten notice tp the front desk 
at human resources. Failure to request a post termination hearing within the deadline, or attend the post 
termination hearing on the scheduled date will result in a waiver of the employee’s right to appeal the disciplinary 
action.  
  
2. A member of the human resources team shall notify the UMC CEO, or designee, to serve as the hearing 
officer, and request dates of availability. These dates shall be provided to the employee to select the date of the 
hearing.  
  
3. As a general rule, the hearing officer will conduct the post termination hearing within fifteen (15) business 
days from the date of such request.  
  
4. The employee and management may be represented by counsel at their expense. The hearing will not 
follow any formal rules of evidence. The employee shall be given an explanation of the evidence against him/her, 
and shall be given an opportunity to respond to all specified charges. A representative of Human Resources will 
be present in the hearing to ensure the process is followed.  
  
5. The hearing officer shall file a written decision within five (5) working days from the conclusion of the 
hearing, with the Chief Human Resources Officer, department head and the employee. The hearing officer may 
uphold, modify or reverse the issued disciplinary action. If the employee is reinstated as a result of the appeal, 
the employee may be granted back pay and allowances as identified in the hearing decision.   

 

Page 248 of 853

mailto:hr@umcsn.com


 
 

 

 
 
POLICY /GUIDELINE TITLE:  
Disciplinary Hearing Process  

 

 

 

The decision of the hearing officer shall be final and binding. 
 
Review Date: By: Description: 

July 29, 2022 Ricky Russell Formatting changes. Reviewed. No content change. 

February 1, 2024 Ricky Russell Change references from County Manager to CEO; remove 
suspension hearing process 

   

   

   

 

Page 249 of 853



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

Issue: HR Policies and Procedures 
 

Back-up: 

Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer 
 

Clerk Ref. # 

Recommendation: 

That the Governing Board approve the revisions to various HR Policies and 
Procedures regarding references to Administrative Leave Days and Compensation 
Plans; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action)  

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None 

BACKGROUND: 
 

 
  UMC is making modest changes to the following HR policies and procedures, effective on or around March 1, 2024:  

• HR Policy: Employee Leave Program  
•     HR Policy: Payroll and Salary Reduction Policy for Non-Union Exempt  
• HR Procedure: Payroll and Salary Reduction for Non-Union Exempt Employee  
• HR Policy: Performance Review Program  
• HR Procedure: Performance Evaluation Program  
• HR Policy: Position Classification & Compensation Plans  

 
These revisions were reviewed by the Governing Board Human Resources and Executive Compensation Committee at 
their February 26, 2024 special meeting and recommended for approval by the Governing Board. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
February 28, 2024 

 
Agenda Item # 

11 
Page 250 of 853



 
 

 

 
 
POLICY /GUIDELINE TITLE:   
HR Policy Employee Leave Program 

 

 

 
MANUAL: Human Resources 

 
POLICY OWNER:  HR 

 
ORIGINATION DATE: 4/2019 

 
FINAL APPROVAL DATE: 2/2024 

 
POLICY 
 
UMC shall provide eligible employees with paid and unpaid leave benefits. Employees not covered by any 
collective bargaining agreement shall, at a minimum, accrue benefits, maintain benefit balances and follow the 
same administrative procedures for the above benefits as represented in the SEIU and UMC collective bargaining 
agreement unless specified in this policy or another UMC compensation plan, agreement, or policy.  
  
Section A. Consolidated Annual Leave (CAL) & Administrative Leave Days (ALD) 
  
Employees may be compensated for existing balances of their CAL by submitting a written request to Payroll. 
Payment will be made on the employee’s paycheck on or before the second full pay period following receipt of 
the employee’s request and taxed at the current supplemental tax rate.  
  
Employees must have sufficient CAL accrued at the time of both the request and payment processing. Requests 
exceeding the employees CAL balance will not be processed. Donor CAL will not be eligible for sellback purposes. 
It is the employee’s responsibility to be aware of CAL available to them and communicate with management 
necessary adjustments to upcoming leave as a result of the withdrawal process.  
 
Employees who are eligible to receive ALDs should refer to their applicable compensation plan or agreement to 
determine eligibility, balance/accrual, uses, etc.  
  
  
Section B. Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA)  
  

1. FMLA information shall be posted in the hospital and be available to employees on the UMC 
intranet.  

  
2. To be eligible, the employee must have been employed for at least 12 months, worked at least 

1,250 hours in the 12-month period immediately preceding the commencement of leave, have 
his/her FMLA allotment available in the rolling 12-month period, and have a qualifying event as 
listed below in Paragraph 3.  

  
3. An eligible employee’s FMLA leave entitlement is limited to a total of 12 work weeks of leave 

during any 12-month period for any one or more of the following reasons:  
  

a. The birth of an employee’s son or daughter, and to care for newborn child;  
  

Page 251 of 853



 
 

 

 
 
POLICY /GUIDELINE TITLE:   
HR Policy Employee Leave Program 

 

 

b. The placement with the employee of a son or daughter for adoption or foster care, and 
to care for the newly placed child;  

  
c. To care for the employee’s spouse, son, daughter, or parent with a serious health 

condition (defined in the FMLA regulations).  
 

d. Because of a serious health condition that makes the employee unable to perform one or 
more of the essential functions of his or her job  

 
e. Because of any qualifying urgent or unforeseen situation arising out of the fact that that 

the employee’s spouse, son, daughter or parent is a covered military member on active 
duty (or has been notified of an impending call or order to active duty) in support of a 
contingency operation. Qualifying situations may include attending certain military 
events, addressing certain financial and legal arrangements, and attending post-
deployment reintegration briefings.  

  
UMC uses the rolling 12-month period measured backward from the date an employee uses any FMLA leave to 
determine the “12-month period.” For example, each time an employee takes any approved FMLA leave, the 
remaining leave entitlement for any/all approvals is the balance of the 12 work weeks, which has not been used 
during the immediately preceding 12 months.  
  

4. An eligible employee’s leave entitlement is limited to a total of 26 work weeks during a “single 
12-month period” to care for a covered service member with a serious injury or illness. The 
“single 12-month period” is measured forward from the first date that leave is taken for the 
covered service member.  

  
5. Refer to Human Resources Procedure “Family and Medical Leave” for the process of applying for 

and using FMLA leave.  
  

6. Benefitted employees will not be eligible for the catastrophic or 30 and/or 60 day extensions 
beyond the expiration of the FMLA hours.  

  
Section C. American’ with Disabilities Act, as amended (ADA)  
  
Time off work may be a reasonable accommodation for an employee who is determined to be a qualified 
individual with a disability within the meaning of the ADA. Hospital staff will work with the Equal Opportunity 
Program Manager in all matters relating to the application of the ADA.  
  
Section D. Military Leave  
  
Military leave and reinstatement shall be granted in accordance with applicable state and federal laws. Any 
permanent full or part-time employee who is a member of the organized U.S. Army, Navy, Air Force, Coast 
Guard, Nevada National Guard or Marine Corps Reserves shall be released from his/her duties, upon presentation 
of the appropriate orders, and shall continue to receive his/her regular rate of pay from UMC as prescribed by 

Page 252 of 853



 
 

 

 
 
POLICY /GUIDELINE TITLE:   
HR Policy Employee Leave Program 

 

 

NRS 281.145, and any pay and benefits as provided in the Uniformed Services Employment and Re-employment 
Rights Act of 1994, for a period of not more than fifteen (15) working days per any one (1) calendar year.  
 
PROCEDURE 
N/A 
 
DEFINITIONS 
N/A 
 
REFERENCES 
N/A 
 
Review Date: By: Description: 

July 25, 2022 Ricky Russell Formatting changes. Reviewed. No content changes. 

January 29, 2024 Ricky Russell Insert ALD language 

   

   

   

 
 

Page 253 of 853



 
 

 

 
 
POLICY /GUIDELINE TITLE:   
Payroll and Salary Reduction Policy for 
Non-Union Exempt Employees 

 

 

 
MANUAL: Human Resources 

 
POLICY OWNER:  HR 

 
ORIGINATION DATE: 4/2019 

 
FINAL APPROVAL DATE: 2/2024 

 
PURPOSE 
 
This policy applies solely to non-bargaining unit covered exempt employees at UMC. Exempt employees may 
include, without limitation, administrative employees, executive employees, professional employees, computer 
professionals, and highly compensated employees. Exempt employees are paid on a salary basis and are not 
eligible for overtime compensation 
 
POLICY 
This policy applies solely to non-bargaining unit covered exempt employees at UMC. Exempt employees may 
include, without limitation, administrative employees, executive employees, professional employees, computer 
professionals, and highly compensated employees. Exempt employees are paid on a salary basis and are not 
eligible for overtime compensation.  
  

1. This Policy defines the payroll and wage deduction practices of University Medical Center of Southern 
Nevada (“UMC”) regarding those salaried employees exempt from the minimum wage and overtime pay 
requirements of the Fair Labor Standards Act (“FLSA”) and not covered under an applicable collective 
bargaining agreement (“Exempt Employees”). UMC’s policy is to make deductions from exempt employees’ 
pay only as authorized by, and in accordance with, applicable state and federal laws and regulations.  

  
2. UMC exempt employees accrue personal leave and sick leave via UMC’s established systems of 
Consolidated Annual Leave (“CAL”), Administrative Leave Days (“ALD”) (as applicable), and the Extended 
Illness Bank (“EIB”). An exempt employee’s accrued leave may be utilized for hours that the employee is 
absent from work (e.g. absences due to personal reasons, illness, disability, holidays). This Policy seeks to 
establish the policy and procedures for the management of an exempt employee’s accrued CAL or ALD when 
the exempt employee fails to maintain a sufficient balance to cover his or her absence.  

  
3. Refer to Human Resources Procedure “Payroll and Salary Reduction Policy for Exempt Employees” for 
the application process of this policy.  

 
 
PROCEDURE 
N/A 
 
DEFINITIONS 
N/A 
 
 

Page 254 of 853



 
 

 

 
 
POLICY /GUIDELINE TITLE:   
Payroll and Salary Reduction Policy for 
Non-Union Exempt Employees 

 

 

 
REFERENCES 
N/A 
 
Review Date: By: Description: 

July 25, 2022 Ricky Russell Formatting changes. Reviewed. No content changes. 

January 29, 2024 Ricky Russell Include Administrative Leave Days 

   

   

   

 
 
 

Page 255 of 853



 
 

 

 
 
POLICY /GUIDELINE TITLE:   
HR Procedure - Payroll and Salary Reduction for 
Non-Union Exempt Employees 

 
 

 

 
MANUAL: Human Resources 

 
POLICY OWNER:  HR 

 
ORIGINATION DATE: 4/2019 

 
FINAL APPROVAL DATE: 2/24 

 
PURPOSE 
This procedure defines the payroll and wage deduction practices of University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 
(“UMC”) regarding those salaried employees exempt from the minimum wage and overtime pay requirements 
of the Fair Labor Standards Act (“FLSA”) and not covered under an applicable collective bargaining agreement 
(“Exempt Employees”). UMC’s policy is to make deductions from Exempt Employees’ pay only as authorized by, 
and in accordance with, applicable state and federal laws and regulations.  
  
UMC Exempt Employees accrue personal leave and sick leave via UMC’s established systems of Consolidated 
Annual Leave (“CAL”), Administrative Leave Days (“ALD”) (as applicable), and the Extended Illness Bank (“EIB”). 
An Exempt Employee’s accrued leave may be utilized for hours that the employee is absent from work (e.g. 
absences due to personal reasons, illness, disability, holidays). This Policy seeks to establish the policy and 
procedures for the management of an Exempt Employee’s accrued CAL, ALD, when the Exempt Employee fails 
to maintain a sufficient balance to cover his or her absence.  
 
ORGANIZATIONS AFFECTED:  
  
All departments.  
 
 
PROCEDURE 
 
A. Permissible Reductions of Salary for Exempt Employees  
  
UMC shall not reduce an Exempt Employee’s salary because of variations in the quality or quantity of the Exempt 
Employee’s work. Subject to the exceptions outlined within this Policy, or as otherwise permitted by state or 
federal law and regulation, an Exempt Employee shall receive his or her full salary for any workweek in which 
he or she performs any work, regardless of the number of days or hours worked.  However, nothing in this 
Policy shall be deemed to otherwise prohibit UMC from reducing or deducting from an Exempt Employee’s salary 
in a manner permitted by state or federal laws and regulations.  
  
Unless otherwise prohibited by law, UMC may deduct from an Exempt Employee’s regular salary in the following 
circumstances:  
  
1. UMC shall not pay an Exempt Employee for any workweek in which no work is performed.  

  
2. UMC shall deduct from an Exempt Employee’s salary, in full-day increments, if the Exempt Employee is 
absent from work for one or more full days for personal reasons other than disability or sickness.  

Page 256 of 853



 
 

 

 
 
POLICY /GUIDELINE TITLE:   
HR Procedure - Payroll and Salary Reduction for 
Non-Union Exempt Employees 

 
 

 

  
3. UMC shall deduct from an Exempt Employee’s salary, in full-day increments, if the Exempt Employee is 
absent for one or more full days due to sickness or disability (including work related accidents), provided that 
the deduction is made in accordance with UMC’s leave usage policies.  

  
4. UMC shall deduct from an Exempt Employee’s salary an amount proportionate to the amount of Family 
and Medical Leave Act (“FMLA”) leave taken in a workweek. For example, if an employee who normally works 
40 hours per week uses four hours of unpaid leave under the FMLA, UMC may deduct the four hours from the 
employees’ normal weekly salary. In accordance with UMC’s CAL, ALD, andEIB policies and practices, such 
leave may be used to compensate the employee on FMLA.  

  
5. UMC shall proportionally reduce an Exempt Employee’s salary in the first and last week of employment 
based upon the time actually worked in those workweeks.  

  
6. UMC shall deduct from an Exempt Employee’s salary for penalties imposed in good faith for infractions 
of safety rules of major significance. CAL, ALD, and EIB shall not be used to offset hours not worked when such 
penalties are imposed.  

  
7. UMC shall deduct from an Exempt Employee’s salary, in full-day increments, for unpaid disciplinary 
suspensions imposed in good faith for infractions of workplace conduct rules, provided that the discipline is 
imposed under a written policy applicable to all employees. CAL and EIB shall not be used to offset hours not 
worked when such penalties are imposed.  

  
8. UMC shall offset amounts received by an Exempt Employee as part jury duty fees, witness fees, or 
military pay for the particular workweek against the salary due for that week.  

  
9. UMC may withhold from an Exempt Employee’s salary those voluntary deductions requested by the 
exempt employee and any mandatory deductions required by federal, state, or local law and regulation. 
Voluntary deductions may include, without limitation, insurance premiums, wage assignments, pension plan 
contributions, and retirement contributions.  Mandatory deductions may include, without limitation, deductions 
for federal income taxes, Federal Insurance Contribution Act taxes, court-ordered wage garnishments, other 
federal and state taxes.  

  
B. Required Use of Accrued Leave Prior to Reduction of Salary  
  
Except as otherwise specified set forth within this Policy and in accordance with UMC policies and precoedures 
governing CAL, ALD, and/or EIB, an Exempt Employee shall use accrued CAL, ALD, and/or EIB hours for any 
hours not worked prior to having his or her salary reduced. In the event that an Exempt Employee has exhausted 
his or her applicable CAL, ALD, and/or EIB leave, or where the Exempt Employee has not yet qualified for such 
leave, the Exempt Employee’s salary may only be reduced in accordance with the permissible deductions outlined 
within Section 3.A. of this Policy.  
  
  
 

Page 257 of 853



 
 

 

 
 
POLICY /GUIDELINE TITLE:   
HR Procedure - Payroll and Salary Reduction for 
Non-Union Exempt Employees 

 
 

 

C. Employee Absences Occasioned by University Medical Center of Southern Nevada  
  
An Exempt Employee’s salary shall not be reduced for any absences occasioned by UMC or UMC operating 
requirements. However, UMC requires Exempt Employees to use accrued CAL or ALD when Exempt Employee’s 
absence is occasioned by UMC, such as when no work is available or the office is closed for a holiday. In the 
event that an Exempt Employee does not have sufficient CAL, ALD, or EIB leave available to cover for an absence 
occasioned by UMC, the employee shall be charged into a negative leave balance. In the event that an employee 
enters into a negative CAL balance, all future CAL accrued by the employee shall be automatically allocated 
towards any remaining negative balance.  
  
D. Reporting of Improper Deduction  
  
In the event that an Exempt Employee believes that UMC has improperly deducted from his or her salary, the 
Exempt Employee should immediately submit a request to the UMC Human Resources Department for a case 
review. UMC shall promptly review all requests to determine if a proper deduction was made. Should UMC 
determine, in its sole discretion, that the Exempt Employee’s salary was improperly reduced, UMC shall reimburse 
the Exempt Employee’s salary for the deduction. UMC encourages all employees to report improper deductions 
and strictly prohibits retaliation against any employee who reports an improper deduction. 
 
 
Review Date: By: Description: 

July 29, 2022 Ricky Russell Formatting changes. Reviewed. No content change. 

January 29, 2024 Ricky Russell Insert information related to Administrative Leave Days (ALDs) 

   

   

   

 

Page 258 of 853



 
 

 

 
 
POLICY /GUIDELINE TITLE:   

HR Policy Performance 
Review Program 

 

 

 
MANUAL: Human Resources 

 
POLICY OWNER:  HR 

 
ORIGINATION DATE:  

 
FINAL APPROVAL DATE:  

 
POLICY 
 

1. Human Resources shall administer a Performance Evaluation Program to appraise competency, 
assess skill development, reward meritorious performance, and outline a plan for performance 
development and improvement. Supervisors shall complete an annual performance evaluation by 
an employee’s performance evaluation date (see Human Resources “Performance Evaluation 
Process”). An evaluation may be completed on other occasions as determined by the supervisor in 
compliance with these policies or as required by the applicable collective bargaining agreement.  

  
2. An employee’s performance evaluation date is normally the date of hire, except for employees 

covered by a compensation plan or employment agreement, who may have a common review date. 
Adjustments to the evaluation date shall be made when an employee is promoted, demoted, 
transferred, reinstated or reassigned.  

  
3. Salary adjustments shall not be awarded until the complete performance evaluation is submitted to 

Human Resources indicating the employee demonstrated meritorious service for the appraisal 
period. If a salary adjustment is not to be awarded due to an unacceptable rating on the 
performance evaluation, the employee is not eligible to be considered for a salary adjustment until 
their next performance evaluation date.  

  
4. If the awarding of a salary adjustment is to be deferred pending further evaluation, the performance 

evaluation report shall be submitted to Human Resources indicating the employee is not 
recommended for a salary adjustment now, and must also specify a date or time period to 
reevaluate the employee. This deferral period shall not be extended beyond nine (9) months. 
Deferring a salary adjustment does not change the employee’s annual performance evaluation date, 
and the employee will be eligible for consideration for a salary adjustment on his/her next 
performance evaluation date regardless of the date the extended review is awarded. Deferred salary 
adjustments cannot be made retroactively to the performance evaluation date.  

  
5. Any merit increase or salary adjustment greater than the reviewer’s signature authority requires 

pre-approval from the appropriate signature authority prior to discussing the review with the 
employee.  

 
Review Date: By: Description: 

July 25, 2022 Ricky Russell Formatting changes. Reviewed. No content changes. 

Page 259 of 853



 
 

 

 
 
POLICY /GUIDELINE TITLE:   

HR Policy Performance 
Review Program 

 

 

February 1, 2024 Ricky Russell Added language for compensation plans, employment 
agreements, etc.  

   

   

   

 
 

Page 260 of 853



 
 

 

 
 
POLICY /GUIDELINE TITLE:  
HR Procedure Performance Evaluation Program  

 

 

 

 
MANUAL: Human Resources 

 
POLICY OWNER:  HR 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 
 07/05/95 
 

FINAL APPROVAL DATE:  

 
PURPOSE 
  
To establish the procedure for the administration of employee performance evaluations. 
 
ORGANIZATIONS AFFECTED:  
  
All departments  
 
PROCEDURE 
 
A. Employees shall receive a performance evaluation, including employee competency and performance 
criteria upon completion of probationary/ qualifying period and at their annual review date thereafter. The home 
department of the employee will be responsible for maintaining the completed original copies of the evaluation.  
  
  
B. The performance evaluation report is used to evaluate employees on the following four (4) point rating 
scale:  
  

1. Rating of 1: Exceeds Standards  
Consistently exceeds identified standards of performance and output.  

2. Rating of 2: Meets Standards  
Meets standards of acceptable performance. The employee is dependable, competent, 
knowledgeable, and meets or occasionally exceeds expectations.  

3. Rating of 3: Partial Standard Compliance  
Falls below acceptable levels for performance and output at times. Performance-related 
concerns should be addressed in the corresponding goals for that factor. A training or 
improvement plan may be appropriate to address identified deficiencies.  

4. Rating of 4: Does Not Meet Standard  
Performance is consistently below standards. This rating is for performance deficiencies that 
are not due to a lack of experience or training. An action plan for improvement and regular 
reviews between manager and employee are required.  

Page 261 of 853



 
 

 

 
 
POLICY /GUIDELINE TITLE:  
HR Procedure Performance Evaluation Program  

 

 

 

  
  
C. Salary increases based on an employee’s overall performance rating are consistent with the rating scale 
found in the SEIU, Local 1107 collective bargaining agreement “Salary Upon Status Change” except for those 
employees covered by a compensation plan, employment agreement, or a non-union represented classifications 
as approved by the CEO (or designee). Recommendations for an overall score of 1.0 - 1.6 must be approved by 
their Division Chief or his/her designee prior to review with the employee  
  
  
D. Except for those employees covered by a compensation plan, employment agreement, or a non-union 
represented classifications as approved by the CEO (or designee) employees that receive an acceptable rating 
in attendance and tardiness will receive an extra .5% increase in addition to the increase as determined by the 
evaluation process. To receive an acceptable rating, the employee must have completed the appraisal period 
without verbal counseling or disciplinary actions.  
  
  
E. The performance evaluation must be submitted to Human Resources no later 30 days after the review 
date. Late evaluations may result in disciplinary action. Human Resources must be notified of any mitigating 
circumstances (circumstances beyond the control of the manager or employee) prior to the review date in order 
for the evaluation not to be considered late.  
  
  
F. Performance evaluations may be completed by a manager or supervisor for periods other than the annual 
or probationary/qualifying performance review date.  
  
  
G. If the decision to award an employee’s salary increase is to be deferred, or the overall evaluation is equal 
to, or greater than, 3.0 the manager or supervisor must submit a completed performance evaluation to Human 
Resources documenting the deficiencies in the employee’s performance and designating a time frame as to when 
the next review will be conducted. The deferral must also be accompanied by a Performance Improvement Plan 
(or competency assessment plan), signed by the employee and manager/supervisor. Failure of the employee to 
satisfactorily complete the Performance Improvement Plan may result in disciplinary action, up to and including 
suspension pending termination.  
 
H. Performance evaluations are required for the following:  
  

1. Annual- Employees shall be reviewed each year on their annual review date. Merit increases are given 
based on the overall performance rating, not to exceed the maximum of the salary grade to which the 
classification is assigned.  

  
2. Probation/Qualifying Period- Employees shall be reviewed to complete probation and qualifying periods. 
No merit increase is generally associated with the completion of probationary or qualifying periods.  

  
3. Promotion- An annual evaluation shall be completed by the employee’s department prior to the date of 

Page 262 of 853



 
 

 

 
 
POLICY /GUIDELINE TITLE:  
HR Procedure Performance Evaluation Program  

 

 

 

promotion if the employee has an annual evaluation due within thirty (30) days prior, or following, the 
effective date in the new position. The annual evaluation will be submitted prior to the employee being 
processed into the new position. The promotion rate will be added after the annual evaluation merit increase 
is applied.  

  
4. Demotion- In the event the employee is either voluntarily or involuntarily demoted, the employee will 
receive a new review date.  

  
5. Reclassification- A reclassification shall result in a new performance/merit review date. An annual 
evaluation shall be completed by the employee’s department prior to the date of reclassification if the 
employee has an annual evaluation due within thirty (30) days prior, or following, the effective date in the 
reclassified position. The annual evaluation will be submitted prior to the employee being processed into 
the new position. Any promotional increase, if applicable, will be applied after the annual evaluation merit 
increase is applied. Additionally, the employee shall be reviewed within six (6) months of the date of 
reclassification (qualifying evaluation).  

  
I. Human Resources shall maintain the performance evaluations, accessible to management on the 
Intranet. Management level employee’s performance evaluation format shall be determined annually by the 
Chief Executive Officer.  
  
J. An employee may request to meet with the evaluator’s supervisor to discuss the performance evaluation 
by notating such on the evaluation. The decision of the evaluator’s supervisor shall be final and binding. The 
employee wishing to meet with the evaluator’s supervisor is responsible for calling the evaluator’s supervisor 
within five (5) business days of the evaluation to schedule the meeting. The annual performance evaluation will 
not be processed by the evaluator’s supervisor until after the meeting between the employee and the evaluator’s 
supervisor has occurred and a decision on any changes are communicated to the evaluator and the affected 
employee.  
 
 
 
Review Date: By: Description: 

July 29, 2022 Ricky Russell Formatting changes. Reviewed. No content change. 

February 1, 2024 Ricky Russell Included language regarding compensation plans, employment 
agreements, etc.  

 

Page 263 of 853



 
 

 

 
 
POLICY /GUIDELINE TITLE:   

HR Policy No 3 – Position 
Classification and 
Compensation Plans 

 

 

 
MANUAL: Human Resources 

 
POLICY OWNER:  HR 

 
ORIGINATION DATE:  

 
FINAL APPROVAL DATE:  

 
SCOPE 
All UMC employees. 
 
POLICY 
 
Human Resources shall administer a Position Classification and Compensation Plan to provide a fair, equitable, 
and competitive pay program, and to attract and retain a highly qualified and diverse workforce.  
  
  
Section A. Position Classification Plan:  
  

1. Human Resources shall develop and maintain a Position Classification Plan consisting of 
specifications describing all positions in the UMC service.  

  
2. Each classification description shall include:  

  
a. The official title of the classification to be used by UMC in all official records, payrolls, and 

communications. The title shall be indicative of the general nature of the work performed 
by employees in that classification.  

  
b. A general definition of the type of work performed by employees in the classification, the 

level of supervision received, and extent of supervision exercised over other employees, 
when applicable.  

  
c. Standards and criteria–based evaluations regarding job performance with specific 

examples of work performed by employees in the classification (it is not to be assumed 
that each example listed shall be performed by all employees nor that any one employee 
shall perform only the examples listed. Department managers or supervisors retain the 
right to assign employees duties not included in the examples, provided such duties are 
similar in nature to those enumerated).  

  
d. The employment standards – minimum qualifications an applicant should possess to be 

considered for the classification. These standards shall serve as a guide for rejecting or 
admitting applicants to recruitment examinations.  

  
 
 

Page 264 of 853



 
 

 

 
 
POLICY /GUIDELINE TITLE:   

HR Policy No 3 – Position 
Classification and 
Compensation Plans 

 

 

 
Section B. Job Evaluation:  
  

1. Human Resources may conduct a job evaluation when a new job is developed or when the scope 
of an existing job has changed.  

  
a. Human Resources shall conduct audits and make recommendations regarding requests 
for classifying new and existing positions. (See Human Resources Procedure “Classification 
Audits”)  

  
b. Human Resources shall conduct audits and determine if pay grade adjustments or 
reclassifications are warranted. (See Human Resources Procedure “Classification Audits”)  

 
Section C. Salary Ranges and Grades:  
  
Human Resources shall maintain a Position Compensation Plan of designated salary ranges and grades for all of 
the classifications in the UMC service.  
  

1. The minimum of a salary range is normally the lowest rate paid to an employee in a given pay 
grade. The maximum of a salary range is the highest rate normally paid to an employee in a given 
pay grade.  

  
2. The Compensation Plan shall be adjusted, when necessary, to comply with provisions of applicable 
collective bargaining agreements and/or as approved by the appropriate UMC governing body.  

  
3. Human Resources will develop alternative salary ranges when they are necessitated by market 
conditions or other circumstances. These ranges may be approved by Hospital Administration, and 
submitted to the appropriate bargaining unit or appropriate UMC governing body (whichever is 
applicable) for final approval.  

  
Section D. Overtime:  
  

1. Eligible employees shall be compensated for overtime worked in accordance with applicable 
federal and state laws and collective bargaining agreements. Employees exempt from overtime 
compensation under the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) shall not be eligible for overtime or 
compensatory time.  

  
2. All overtime must be approved in advance of its use. Failure to comply with advance approval 
may result in disciplinary action. Overtime compensation may be through cash payment or 
compensatory time at UMC’s discretion.  

  
 
 
 

Page 265 of 853



 
 

 

 
 
POLICY /GUIDELINE TITLE:   

HR Policy No 3 – Position 
Classification and 
Compensation Plans 

 

 

Section E. Benefits Provision:  
  

1. The Hospital may implement employee incentive, compensation, employee suggestions, and 
performance bonus programs.  

  
2. Except as otherwise identified in these policies and procedures or modified by some other 
approved agreement, compensation plan, etc., non-probationary UMC employees not covered by 
any collective bargaining agreement shall be granted at a minimum those economic benefits 
provided for in the current SEIU Agreement which do not relate to employee discipline, discharge or 
grievance procedures. Economic benefits may include, but are not limited to salary, paid and unpaid 
leaves, retirement, overtime, longevity, shift differential and acting pay.  

 
 
Section F. Employment Actions:  
  
Employees not covered by any collective bargaining agreement shall, at a minimum, receive the same 
administrative procedures and benefits represented in the SEIU agreement unless modified by this policy, an 
approved compensation plan, or an employment agreement.  
  

1. Promotion: The promotional rate of pay will be commensurate with the employee’s years of 
experience in the new pay range following current hire-in rate pay practices. The employee shall 
receive no less than 4% above their current rate, provided the new rate of pay does not exceed the 
maximum of the new pay range. Any exception requires a form to be submitted and approved by 
Human Resources.  

  
2. The employee’s salary review date will change to the date of the employee’s promotion and the 
employee may be eligible for a salary increase upon completion of one (1) year of service in the new 
position or classification.  

  
3. Demotion: Demotions may be implemented as part of a reorganization or reduction in force, at 
the request of the employee as the result of a position reclassification, or for cause. Both voluntary 
and involuntary demotions may be made only upon the recommendation of the department head 
and approval by Human Resources.  

  
a. Any full-time or part-time employee who, during the qualifying period, either voluntarily 

or involuntarily is demoted to the classification previously held, shall have his/her salary 
reduced to the salary the employee would have received if the employee had remained 
in the lower classification. However, the lower rate will be inclusive of any across the 
board adjustment the employee would have been entitled to, if he/she had remained in 
the lower classification. The employee’s eligibility date for future salary increases shall 
be based on the previous review date. However, if that date has passed, the employee 
is not eligible for a salary increase until that date in the following year.  

  
 

Page 266 of 853



 
 

 

 
 
POLICY /GUIDELINE TITLE:   

HR Policy No 3 – Position 
Classification and 
Compensation Plans 

 

 

 
b. A full-time or part-time employee who has completed the probationary and/or 

qualifying period and is later demoted involuntarily to a position in a classification with 
a lower pay grade shall have his/her salary reduced by four percent (4%), unless that 
reduction would result in the employee being paid in excess of the pay grade demoted 
into, in which case, the rate shall be reduced to the maximum of the demoted pay 
grade. The employee’s eligibility for salary increase shall be based on the date of the 
demotion.  

 
c. A full-time or part-time employee who has completed the probationary and/or 

qualifying period and later demotes voluntarily to a position in a classification with a 
lower pay grade shall have his/her salary reduced only to prevent being paid in excess 
of the maximum of the lower pay grade. If the employee’s salary is within the pay 
grade of the classification demoted into, the employee shall not receive a reduction in 
his/her rate of pay. The employee’s eligibility for future salary increases shall be based 
on the date the employee voluntarily demoted into the lower classification.  

 
d. An employee whose position is reclassified to a lower pay grade will be demoted to the 

appropriate title and pay grade on a date as specified by the Chief Human Resources 
Officer. If an employee’s pay rate exceeds the maximum rate of the new pay grade, it 
shall be reduced to the maximum level of the new pay grade. No change in the salary 
review date will occur.  

  
4. Reclassification: A reclassification is made when it has been determined that the duties and 
responsibilities assigned to the position have significantly changed from the parameters of the 
original job classification. It is the purpose of a reclassification to ensure that job classifications are 
compensated equitably in relation to similar levels of responsibility and duties. An employee selected 
to fill a reclassified position shall be promoted or voluntarily demoted into the new classification.  

  
a. Promotional opportunities created by the reclassification will be filled by a competitive 

recruitment in accordance with established competitive recruitment actions, except for 
non-competitive promotions as delineated below.  

  
b. A non-competitive promotion of an employee whose position has been reclassified to a 

higher pay grade because of the addition of duties or responsibilities may be made when 
it is determined open competition is not warranted. All of the following circumstances 
must be met in order to exempt the promotion from competitive procedures:  

  
i. There are no other employees in the department, supervised by the selecting 
official, who are in the same classification and performing identical duties to those 
performed by the employee prior to the addition of the new duties and 
responsibilities.  

  
 

Page 267 of 853



 
 

 

 
 
POLICY /GUIDELINE TITLE:   

HR Policy No 3 – Position 
Classification and 
Compensation Plans 

 

 

 
ii. The employee continues to perform the same basic function(s) as in the former 
position and the duties of the former position are administratively absorbed into the 
new position.  

  
iii. The addition of the duties and responsibilities does not result in an adverse 
impact on another incumbent position.  

  
iv. The selecting official desires the position to be filled non-competitively, or Human 
Resources determine that the position should be filled non- competitively given the 
circumstances outlined previously.  

  
5. Transfer: A full-time or part-time employee who transfers from one allocated position in a cost 
center to another allocated position in a different cost center, but in the same classification or in 
another classification assigned to the same pay grade, shall continue to receive the same salary rate. 
The employee’s salary review date will remain the same if the classification remains the same. The 
employee’s salary review date will change to the date of the transfer if the classification title is 
changed.  

  
6. Management Reassignments: A department head may reassign employees from one position 
to another position if:  

  
a. The positions have the same salary range; and  

  
b. The employee is determined by Human Resources to meet minimum qualifications for 
the classification under consideration.  

  
7. Position Titles: New titles may be established when it has been determined that the new title 
is more descriptive of the nature of the work being performed. New titles may be established when 
new or additional functions are undertaken by UMC. No change in the salary review date or 
compensation level will occur when only a position’s title and job code are changed.  

  
8. Salary Grade Adjustments: A salary grade adjustment is made when it has been determined 
that a classification is either under or over compensated in relationship to comparable positions in 
the job market. In addition, grade adjustments are required to ensure equity between positions 
within UMC. The purpose for adjusting the salary is to remain competitive in hiring and retaining the 
best qualified employees in a classification. Salary grade adjustments result in the assigned 
employee’s salary grade being changed. The salary review date will not change as a result of the 
grade adjustment. Employees affected by an adjustment may be eligible for a merit increase on their 
next salary review date. Employee pay rates that equal or exceed the maximum rate of the new 
grade will not receive salary adjustments until their actual pay rate falls below the highest rate of 
the new pay grade, or upon CEO (or designee) approval.  

  
 

Page 268 of 853



 
 

 

 
 
POLICY /GUIDELINE TITLE:   

HR Policy No 3 – Position 
Classification and 
Compensation Plans 

 

 

 
 

9. Training Under-Fill: An employee who is hired into a training under-fill position (see Human 
Resources “Recruitment and Selection Program”) will receive an adjustment to their salary at the 
following time(s):  

  
a. Upon hire into the training under-fill position (if the position is at a higher pay grade than 
the pay grade the employee is changing from)  

  
b. Upon completion of training under-fill.  

  
c. The amount of the promotional increase upon completion of the training under-fill 
requirements will follow the outlined promotional pay practice in Section F. 

 
 
 

Section G. License/Certification:  
  
All staff in positions that require a state of Nevada provider license/certification/registration will be responsible 
to maintain a current license/certification/registration when hired and when renewed.  
  

1. Failure of the employee to show verification of a renewed license/certification/registration as of 
12:00 midnight of the 7th day before expiration shall result in suspension pending confirmation of 
renewal or termination after 30 days.  

  
2. An exemption from suspension can be made for employees who provide proof of registration for 
a renewal course within that seven (7) day window and proof of renewal prior to the actual expiration 
date.  

  
3. When an employee has not renewed and primary source verification is not available, the employee 
will be suspended without pay. Per diem employees will not be scheduled to work.  

  
 Section H. Working Out of Classification:  
  

1. Managers should make every effort to fill assignments without the need for working an employee outside 
his/her classification. In those rare incidents where it becomes necessary, for the good of the hospital, 
to work an employee out of his/her classification, the following procedure must be followed:  

  
a. Working out of classification in a different classification outside an employee’s normal 

work schedule is strictly prohibited without the advance written approval of the CEO or 
designee.  

  
b. Only non-probationary full and part-time employees in classifications established at pay 

grade A13 or below are eligible to work out of classification as a Patient Attendant (per 

Page 269 of 853



 
 

 

 
 
POLICY /GUIDELINE TITLE:   

HR Policy No 3 – Position 
Classification and 
Compensation Plans 

 

 

diem employees are not eligible).  
  

c. The manager of the employee’s home cost center and the manager making the request 
both must agree to allow the employee to work out of classification. The home cost 
center manager should consider the performance and conduct of the employee and any 
operational issues before granting approval.  

  
d. The employee working out of classification must voluntarily agree to work extra shifts 

on a date and time that he/she is not scheduled to work in his/her home cost center. 
Employees are prohibited from calling off or using leave time to work in another 
classification. In addition, working in another classification cannot impact his/her 
regularly scheduled shifts in his/her home cost center. Such conduct will result in severe 
disciplinary action including suspension pending termination.  

  
e. Working out of classification must be at a time that does not create a double back 

situation.  
 

f. The receiving department leader must ensure all applicable federal, state, local, 
regulatory, and job description requirements are met at the time of the employee 
working out of classification. 

  
2. All expenses incurred for working an employee out of classification will be paid by the cost center where 

the employee worked. The employee is to be compensated at the regular rate of pay of his/her 
permanent classification including any differential (based on the hours worked) or overtime premiums, 
if applicable.   

 
PROCEDURE 
N/A 
DEFINITIONS 
N/A 
REFERENCES 
N/A 
 
Review Date: By: Description: 

July 25, 2022 Ricky Russell Reviewed. Formatting changes. Added H(f) 

February 1, 2024 Ricky Russell Clarified language in regards to compensation plans, 
employment contracts. Added ability for CEO to adjust salaries 
for topped out or over top employees. 

   

 

Page 270 of 853



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
February 28, 2024 

 
 

 

Agenda Item #  

12 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD  

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Issue: Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Agreement with Essential 

Associates Holdings, LLC 
 

 
Back-up: 
      

 
Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer 

 
Clerk Ref. # 
      

 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Governing Board ratify the Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services 
Agreement with Essential Associates Holdings, LLC for radiology clinical services; 
authorize the Chief Executive Officer to exercise renewal options within his delegation of 
authority; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
Fund Number:  5420.000     Fund Name:  UMC Operating Fund 
Fund Center:  3000861000     Funded Pgm/Grant:  N/A 
Description:  Radiology Clinical Services 
Bid/RFP/CBE:  NRS 332.115(1)(b) – Professional Services 
Term:  Amendment 1 – same term 
Amount: Amendment 1 – additional $240,000  
Out Clause:  180 days w/o cause after the first year 
 

BACKGROUND: 
 
On September 27, 2023, the Governing Board approved the Professional Services Agreement (“Agreement”) 
with Essential Associates Holdings, LLC (“Provider”) to provide Radiological interpretation services in the 
specialty of radiology performed for the diagnosis, prevention or treatment of disease, and assessment of a 
medical condition, including but not limited to, the delivery to UMC’s Radiology Department and Hospital 
certain services to patients. UMC agreed to compensate the Provider an estimated payment of $2,616,912 per 
year or potential aggregate NTE $13,084,560 if both renewal options are exercised.  This amount may 
increase if volume of interpretations increase. Either party may terminate this Agreement without cause with a 
180-day written notice to the other after the first year of the Agreement. 
  
This request is to ratify of the Amendment No. 1 to increase the funding by an additional $240,000, and 
replaces Exhibit A Services Pricing with a revised pricing list that increases the rate per interpretation for CTA 
and XR reads. Staff also requests authorization for the Hospital CEO to exercise renewal options within his 
delegation of authority if deemed beneficial to UMC.  
 
UMC’s Support Services Executive Director has reviewed and recommends ratification of this Amendment.  
This Amendment has been approved as to form by UMC’s Office of General Counsel. 

Page 271 of 853



Page Number 
2 

 
 
This Amendment was reviewed by the Governing Board Audit and Finance Committee at their February 21, 
2024 meeting and recommended for ratification by the Governing Board. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 272 of 853



Page 273 of 853



Page 274 of 853



REVISED 7/25/2014 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING THE  
DISCLOSURE OF OWNERSHIP/PRINCIPALS FORM 

Purpose of the Form 
 
The purpose of the Disclosure of Ownership/Principals Form is to gather ownership information pertaining to the business entity for use by the University Medical 
Center of Southern Nevada Governing Board (“GB”) in determining whether members of the GB should exclude themselves from voting on agenda items where 
they have, or may be perceived as having a conflict of interest, and to determine compliance with Nevada Revised Statute 281A.430, contracts in which a public 
officer or employee has interest is prohibited. 
 

General Instructions 
 

Completion and submission of this Form is a condition of approval or renewal of a contract or lease and/or release of monetary funding between the disclosing entity 
and University Medical Center of Southern Nevada.  Failure to submit the requested information may result in a refusal by the GB to enter into an agreement/contract 
and/or release monetary funding to such disclosing entity. 
 

Detailed Instructions 
 

All sections of the Disclosure of Ownership form must be completed.  If not applicable, write in N/A. 
 

Business Entity Type – Indicate if the entity is an Individual, Partnership, Limited Liability Company, Corporation, Trust, Non-profit Organization, or Other.  When 
selecting ‘Other’, provide a description of the legal entity. 
 

Non-Profit Organization (NPO) - Any non-profit corporation, group, association, or corporation duly filed and registered as required by state law. 
 

Business Designation Group – Indicate if the entity is a Minority Owned Business Enterprise (MBE), Women-Owned Business Enterprise (WBE), Small Business 
Enterprise (SBE), Physically-Challenged Business Enterprise (PBE), Veteran Owned Business (VET),  Disabled Veteran Owned Business (DVET), or Emerging 
Small Business (ESB) . This is needed in order to provide utilization statistics to the Legislative Council Bureau, and will be used only for such purpose.   
 

 Minority Owned Business Enterprise (MBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function and 
is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more minority persons of Black American, Hispanic American, Asian-Pacific American or Native 
American ethnicity. 

 Women Owned Business Enterprise (WBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function and 
is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more women. 

 Physically-Challenged Business Enterprise (PBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function 
and is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more disabled individuals pursuant to the federal Americans with Disabilities Act. 

 Small Business Enterprise (SBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function, is not owned and 
controlled by individuals designated as minority, women, or physically-challenged, and where gross annual sales does not exceed $2,000,000. 

 Veteran Owned Business Enterprise (VET): An independent and continuing Nevada business for profit which performs a commercially useful function 
and is at least 51 percent owned and controlled by one or more U.S. Veterans. 

 Disabled Veteran Owned Business Enterprise (DVET):  A Nevada business at least 51 percent owned/controlled by a disabled veteran. 
 Emerging Small Business (ESB): Certified by the Nevada Governor's Office of Economic Development effective January, 2014. Approved into Nevada 

law during the 77th Legislative session as a result of AB294. 
 

Business Name (include d.b.a., if applicable) – Enter the legal name of the business entity and enter the “Doing Business As” (d.b.a.) name, if applicable.   
 

Corporate/Business Address, Business Telephone, Business Fax, and Email – Enter the street address, telephone and fax numbers, and email of the named business 
entity.   
 

Nevada Local Business Address, Local Business Telephone, Local Business Fax, and Email – If business entity is out-of-state, but operates the business from a 
location in Nevada, enter the Nevada street address, telephone and fax numbers, point of contact and email of the local office. Please note that the local address must 
be an address from which the business is operating from that location. Please do not include a P.O. Box number, unless required by the U.S. Postal Service, or a 
business license hanging address. 
 

Number of Clark County Nevada Residents employed by this firm. (Do not leave blank. If none or zero, put the number 0 in the space provided.) 
 

List of Owners/Officers – Include the full name, title and percentage of ownership of each person who has ownership or financial interest in the business entity.  If 
the business is a publicly-traded corporation or non-profit organization, list all Corporate Officers and Directors only.   
 

For All Contracts – (Not required for publicly-traded corporations) 
1) Indicate if any individual members, partners, owners or principals involved in the business entity are a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 

full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s).  If yes, the following paragraph applies. 
 
In accordance with NRS 281A.430.1, a public officer or employee shall not bid on or enter into a contract between a government agency and any private 
business in which he has a significant financial interest, except as provided for in subsections 2, 3, and 4. 
 

2) Indicate if any individual members, partners, owners or principals involved in the business entity have a second degree of consanguinity or affinity 
relation to a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s) (reference form on Page 2 for 
definition).  If YES, complete the Disclosure of Relationship Form.  

 

A professional service is defined as a business entity that offers business/financial consulting, legal, physician, architect, engineer or other professional services. 
 

Signature and Print Name – Requires signature of an authorized representative and the date signed. 
 

Disclosure of Relationship Form – If any individual members, partners, owners or principals of the business entity is presently a University Medical Center of 
Southern Nevada employee, public officer or official, or has a second degree of consanguinity or affinity relationship to a University Medical Center of Southern 
Nevada employee, public officer or official, this section must be completed in its entirety.   
 

Page 275 of 853



DISCLOSURE OF OWNERSHIP/PRINCIPALS 

1 
REVISED 7/25/2014 

 

Business Entity Type (Please select one) 

 Sole 
Proprietorship 

Partnership 
X  Limited 
Liability Company  

 Corporation  Trust 
 Non-Profit   

Organization 
  Other 

Business Designation Group (Please select all that apply) 

 MBE  WBE  SBE  PBE  VET DVET  ESB 

Minority Business 
Enterprise 

Women-Owned 
Business 
Enterprise 

Small Business 
Enterprise 

Physically Challenged 
Business Enterprise 

Veteran Owned 
Business 

Disabled Veteran 
Owned Business 

Emerging 
Small 

Business 

 

Number of Clark County Nevada Residents Employed:

  

Corporate/Business Entity Name:  Essential Associates Holdings, LLC 

(Include d.b.a., if applicable) Essential Radiology 

Street Address: 101 S. Tryon St   Suite 2700 Website:   https://essentialradiology.com/ 

City, State and Zip Code: 
Charlotte, NC 28280 POC Name:  Howard Asch 

Email:    howard@essentialradiology.com 

Telephone No: 443-255-9008 Fax No: 

Nevada Local Street Address: 

(If different from above) 

 Website: 

 City, State and Zip Code:  Local Fax No: 

Local Telephone No: 
 Local POC Name: 

Email: 

All entities, with the exception of publicly-traded and non-profit organizations, must list the names of individuals holding more than five percent (5%) ownership or 
financial interest in the business entity appearing before the Board. 
 
Publicly-traded entities and non-profit organizations shall list all Corporate Officers and Directors in lieu of disclosing the names of individuals with ownership or 
financial interest. The disclosure requirement, as applied to land-use applications, extends to the applicant and the landowner(s). 

Entities include all business associations organized under or governed by Title 7 of the Nevada Revised Statutes, including but not limited to private corporations, close 
corporations, foreign corporations, limited liability companies, partnerships, limited partnerships, and professional corporations. 
 

 

  Full Name  Title  % Owned 
(Not required for Publicly Traded 

Corporations/Non-profit organizations) 

 

Howard Asch  Co-Founder , Chief Business Officer  34%  

Michael Rabern  Co-Founder , Chief Executive Officer  36%  

      

      

This section is not required for publicly-traded corporations.  Are you a publicly-traded corporation?             Yes     x  No 

1. Are any individual members, partners, owners or principals, involved in the business entity, a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time 
employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s)? 

  Yes   No (If yes, please note that University Medical Center of Southern Nevada employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s) may not 
perform any work on professional service contracts, or other contracts, which are not subject to competitive bid.) 

 

2. Do any individual members, partners, owners or principals have a spouse, registered domestic partner, child, parent, in-law or brother/sister, half-brother/half-
sister, grandchild, grandparent,  related to a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s)? 

  Yes   No (If yes, please complete the Disclosure of Relationship form on Page 2.  If no, please print N/A on Page 2.)  

I certify under penalty of perjury, that all of the information provided herein is current, complete, and accurate. I also understand that the University Medical Center of 
Southern Nevada Governing Board will not take action on land-use approvals, contract approvals, land sales, leases or exchanges without the completed disclosure 
form. 

 

 
 

 

  
 
Howard Asch 

 

Signature 
 

 Print Name  

Co-Founder, Chief Business Officer  9.19.2023  

Title  Date  

Page 276 of 853



DISCLOSURE OF RELATIONSHIP 

2 
REVISED 7/25/2014 

 

 
List any disclosures below: 
(Mark N/A, if not applicable.) 
 

NAME OF BUSINESS 
OWNER/PRINCIPAL 

NAME OF UMC* 
EMPLOYEE/OFFICIAL 

AND JOB TITLE 

RELATIONSHIP TO 
 UMC* 

EMPLOYEE/OFFICIAL 

UMC* 
EMPLOYEE’S/OFFICIAL’S 

DEPARTMENT 
 
Howard Asch 

N/A N/A N/A 

 
Michael Rabern 

N/A N/A N/A 

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 
* UMC employee means an employee of University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 
 
“Consanguinity” is a relationship by blood.  “Affinity” is a relationship by marriage. 
 
“To the second degree of consanguinity” applies to the candidate’s first and second degree of blood relatives as follows: 
 

 Spouse – Registered Domestic Partners – Children – Parents – In-laws (first degree) 
 

 Brothers/Sisters – Half-Brothers/Half-Sisters – Grandchildren – Grandparents – In-laws (second degree) 
 
 

 
For UMC Use Only: 

 
If any Disclosure of Relationship is noted above, please complete the following:     
 

  Yes     No   Is the UMC employee(s) noted above involved in the contracting/selection process for this particular agenda item? 
 

  Yes     No   Is the UMC employee(s) noted above involved in any way with the business in performance of the contract? 
 
Notes/Comments: 
 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Signature  
 
____________________________________ 
Print Name  
Authorized Department Representative 

 
 

 

Page 277 of 853



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
February 28, 2024 

 
 

 

Agenda Item #  

13 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD  

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Issue: Award RFP No. 2023-03, Comprehensive Background Checks Services to 

AccuSourceHR, Inc. 
 

 
Back-up: 
      

 
Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer 

 
Clerk Ref. # 
      

 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Governing Board award the RFP 2023-03, Comprehensive Background Checks 
Services to AccuSourceHR, Inc.; authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the 
Agreement for Comprehensive Background Checks; execute extensions and amendments; 
or take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
Fund Number:  5420.000     Fund Name:  UMC Operating Fund 
Fund Center:  3000865000     Funded Pgm/Grant:  N/A 
Description:  Comprehensive Background Checks Services  
Bid/RFP/CBE:  RFP 2023-03 
Term:  3 years from Effective date with two, one-year options  
Amount:  NTE $850,000.00 
Out Clause:  15 days for convenience 
 

BACKGROUND: 
 
On June 12, 2023, a notice for RFP 2023-03, Comprehensive Background Check Services was published in 
the Las Vegas Review Journal and posted on the Nevada Government eMarketplace (NGEM) Portal. On 
August 3, 2023, responses were received from: 
  
 A Xeration Service  

AccuSourceHR, Inc. 
Applicant Insight dba aINSIGHT 
Certiphi Screening, Inc. 
DISA Global Solutions, Inc.   

 Sterling Infosystems Inc. 
 
An ad hoc committee reviewed the proposals independently and anonymously, and recommends the selection 
of, and contract approval with AccuSourceHR, Inc. (“AccuSource”).  
 
AccuSource will provide background check services that will provide information to help safeguard and 
maintain the integrity of UMC operations and will assist UMC in designing a comprehensive background 
check program to reduce the risks in establishing and maintaining a qualified healthcare team. The Agreement 

Page 278 of 853



Page Number 
2 

is for a NTE amount of $850,000.00 for three (3) years from the Effective date, with the option to extend for 
two 1-year periods. Either party may terminate this Agreement with a 15-day written notice to the other.  Staff 
also requests authorization for the Hospital CEO to execute extension options and amendments that are within 
his yearly delegation of authority.  
 
UMC’s Director of Human Resources Operations has reviewed and recommends award of this Agreement.  
This Agreement has been approved as to form by UMC’s Office of General Counsel. 
 
This Agreement was reviewed by the Governing Board Audit and Finance Committee at their February 21, 
2024 meeting and recommended for award by the Governing Board. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 279 of 853



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER 
OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 

AGREEMENT FOR  
 2023-03 COMPREHENSIVE BACKGROUND CHECKS 

ACCUSOURCEHR, INC. 

NAME OF FIRM 

Kristin Fehrenbacher 
DESIGNATED CONTACT, NAME AND TITLE 

(Please type or print) 

11811 N Tatum Blvd Suite 3090 
Phoenix, AZ 85028 

ADDRESS OF FIRM 
INCLUDING CITY, STATE AND ZIP CODE 

951-550-8438 
(AREA CODE) AND TELEPHONE NUMBER 

kfehrenbacher@accusourcehr.com 

E-MAIL ADDRESS 

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 1 of 84
Page 280 of 853

mailto:kfehrenbacher@accusourcehr.com


Page | 1  

 

AGREEMENT FOR COMPREHENSIVE BACKGROUND CHECKS 
 

This Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into as of the last date of signature set forth below (the “Effective Date”), 

by and between UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA, located at 1800 W. Charleston, Las Vegas, NV 89102 a 

publicly owned and operated hospital created by virtue of Chapter 450 of the Nevada Revised Statutes (hereinafter referred to as 

“HOSPITAL”), and ACCUSOURCE HR, INC. having an address at 11811 N Tatum Blvd. Phoenix, AZ 85028  (hereinafter referred to as 

“COMPANY”), for Comprehensive Background Check services (hereinafter referred to as “PROJECT”). 

 

W I T N E S S E T H: 

WHEREAS, COMPANY has the personnel and resources necessary to accomplish the PROJECT within the required schedule 

and with a budget allowance not to exceed $850,000.00 as further described herein; and 

WHEREAS, COMPANY has the required licenses and/or authorizations pursuant to all federal, State of Nevada and local laws 

in order to conduct business relative to this Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, HOSPITAL and COMPANY agree as follows: 

SECTION I: TERM OF AGREEMENT 

HOSPITAL agrees to retain COMPANY for a period of 3 years   (“Term”). Thereafter this Agreement may be renewed by amendment for 

up to two (2) one-year periods. During this period, COMPANY agrees to provide services as required by HOSPITAL within the scope of 

this Agreement.  

SECTION II: COMPENSATION AND TERMS OF PAYMENT 
A. Terms of Payments 

1. HOSPITAL agrees to pay COMPANY for the performance of services described in the Scope of Work (Exhibit A) and 

Fee Schedule A for the fees set forth on Schedule A not-to-exceed $850,000.00 during the Term. It is expressly 

understood that the entire Scope of Work defined in Exhibit A must be completed by COMPANY and it shall be 

COMPANY's responsibility to ensure that hours and tasks are properly budgeted so the entire PROJECT is completed 

for the said fee. 

2. Payment of invoices will be made within ninety (90) calendar days after receipt of an accurate invoice that has been 

reviewed and approved by HOSPITAL. 

3. HOSPITAL, at its discretion, may not approve or issue payment on invoices if COMPANY fails to provide the following 

information required on each invoice: 
a. The title of the PROJECT as stated in Exhibit A, Scope of Work, itemized description of products delivered 

or services rendered and amount due, Purchase Order Number, Invoice Date, Invoice Period, Invoice Number, 

and the Payment Remittance Address. The company shall invoice on a monthly basis. Invoices shall list the 

following: Date, order number, candidate name, last 4 digits of social security number, requestor (HOSPITAL 

employee), type of report, and fee for each fulfilled order. 
b. Expenses not defined in Exhibit A, Scope of Work will not be paid without prior written authorization by 

HOSPITAL. 

c. HOSPITAL’s representative shall notify COMPANY in writing within fourteen (14) calendar days of any 

disputed amount included on the invoice. COMPANY must submit a new invoice for the undisputed amount 

which will be paid in accordance with this paragraph A.2 above. Upon mutual resolution of the disputed 

amount, COMPANY will submit a new invoice for the agreed amount and payment will be made in accordance 

with this paragraph A.2 above. 

4. No penalty will be imposed on HOSPITAL if HOSPITAL fails to pay COMPANY within ninety (90) calendar days after 

receipt of a properly documented invoice, and HOSPITAL will receive no discount for payment within that period. 

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 2 of 84
Page 281 of 853



 

Page | 2  

 

5. HOSPITAL shall subtract from any payment made to COMPANY all damages, costs and expenses caused by 

COMPANY's negligence, resulting from or arising out of errors or omissions in COMPANY's work products, which have 

not been previously paid to COMPANY. 

6. HOSPITAL shall not provide payment on any invoice COMPANY submits after six (6) months from the date COMPANY 
performs services, provides deliverables, and/or meets milestones, as agreed upon in Exhibit A, Scope of Work. 

7. Invoices shall be submitted to:  University Medical Center of Southern Nevada, Attn:  Accounts Payable, 1800 W. 

Charleston Blvd., Las Vegas, NV 89102. 

B. HOSPITAL’s Fiscal Limitations 

1. The content of this section shall apply to the entire Agreement and shall take precedence over any conflicting terms 

and conditions, and shall limit HOSPITAL’s financial responsibility as indicated in Sections 2 and 3 below. 

2. In accordance with the Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS 354.626), the financial obligations under this Agreement 

between the parties shall not exceed those monies appropriated and approved by HOSPITAL for the then-current fiscal 

year under the Local Government Budget Act. This Agreement shall terminate and HOSPITAL's obligations under it 

shall be extinguished at the end of any of HOSPITAL's fiscal years in which HOSPITAL’s governing body fails to 

appropriate monies for the ensuing fiscal year sufficient for the payment of all amounts which could then become due 

under this Agreement. HOSPITAL agrees that this section shall not be utilized as a subterfuge or in a discriminatory 

fashion as it relates to this Agreement. In the event this section is invoked, this Agreement will expire on the 30th day 

of June of the then-current fiscal year. Termination under this section shall not relieve HOSPITAL of its obligations 

incurred through the 30th day of June of the fiscal year for which monies were appropriated. 

3. HOSPITAL’s total liability for all charges for services which may become due under this Agreement is limited to the 

total maximum expenditure(s) authorized in HOSPITAL’s purchase order(s) to COMPANY. 

SECTION III: SCOPE OF WORK 

Services to be performed by COMPANY for the PROJECT shall consist of the work described in the Scope of Work as set forth in 

Exhibit A and Fee Schedule A of this Agreement, attached hereto. In the event of a conflict between the terms of this Agreement and 

the terms in the Scope of Work, the terms of this Agreement shall prevail. 

SECTION IV: CHANGES TO SCOPE OF WORK 

A. HOSPITAL may at any time, by written order, make changes within the general scope of this Agreement and in the services or work 

to be performed.  If such changes cause an increase or decrease in COMPANY's cost or time required for performance of any 

services under this Agreement, an equitable adjustment limited to an amount within current unencumbered budgeted appropriations 

for the PROJECT shall be made and this Agreement shall be modified in writing accordingly. Any claim of COMPANY for the 

adjustment under this clause must be submitted in writing within thirty (30) calendar days from the date of receipt by COMPANY of 

notification of change unless HOSPITAL grants a further period of time before the date of final payment under this Agreement. 

B. No services for which an additional compensation will be charged by COMPANY shall be furnished without the written authorization 

of HOSPITAL. 

SECTION V: RESPONSIBILITY OF COMPANY  
A. It is understood that in the performance of the services herein provided for, COMPANY shall be, and is, an independent contractor, 

and is not an agent, representative or employee of HOSPITAL and shall furnish such services in its own manner and method except 

as required by this Agreement. Further, COMPANY has and shall retain the right to exercise full control over the employment, 

direction, compensation and discharge of all persons employed by COMPANY in the performance of the services hereunder. 

COMPANY shall be solely responsible for, and shall indemnify, defend and hold HOSPITAL harmless from all matters relating to the 

payment of its employees, including compliance with social security, withholding and all other wages, salaries, benefits, taxes, 

demands, and regulations of any nature whatsoever. 

B. COMPANY shall appoint a Manager, upon written acceptance by HOSPITAL, who will manage the performance of services.  All of 

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 3 of 84
Page 282 of 853



 

Page | 3  

 

the services specified by this Agreement shall be performed by the Manager, or by COMPANY's associates and employees under 

the personal supervision of the Manager. Should the Manager, or any employee of COMPANY be unable to complete his or her 

responsibility for any reason, COMPANY must obtain written approval by HOSPITAL prior to replacing him or her with another equally 

qualified person. If COMPANY fails to make a required replacement within fifteen (15) days, HOSPITAL may terminate this 

Agreement for default. 

C. COMPANY has, or will, retain such employees as it may need to perform the services required by this Agreement. Such employees 

shall not be employed by the HOSPITAL. 

D. COMPANY agrees that its officers and employees will cooperate with HOSPITAL in the performance of services under this 

Agreement and will be available for consultation with HOSPITAL at such reasonable times with advance notice as to not conflict with 

their other responsibilities. 

E. COMPANY will follow HOSPITAL's relevant compliance policies as followed by HOSPITAL's staff in regard to programming changes; 

testing; change control; and other similar activities, including its corporate compliance program, HOSPITAL’s Policy (Contracted 

Non-Employees/Allied Health Non-Credentialed /Dependent Allied Health / Temporary Staff / Construction/Third Party Equipment), 

and HOSPITAL’s Vaccine Policy as may be amended from time to time. HOSPITAL will provide a copy of said policy upon COMPANY 

request. COMPANY must register through HOSITAL’s vendor management/credentialing system prior to arriving onsite at any of 

HOSPITAL’s facilities.  Should the Project involve a continuous presence by COMPANY’s employees or agents onsite at 

HOSPITAL’s facilities, COMPANY may be required to complete HOSPITAL’s onboarding process and abide by onboarding 

requirements of HOSPITAL’s Human Resources Department.  COMPANY’s employees, agents, subcontractors and/or designees 

who do not abide by HOSPITAL’s policies may be barred from physical access to HOSPITAL’s premises 

F. COMPANY shall be responsible for the professional quality, technical accuracy, timely completion, and coordination of all services 

furnished by COMPANY, its subcontractors and its and their principals, officers, employees and agents under this Agreement. In 

performing the specified services, COMPANY shall follow practices consistent with generally accepted professional and technical 

standards. COMPANY further agree that for a period of one year following completion of its work, or such longer period as may be 

indicated in the specification, COMPANY will replace or repair any product it provides or installs because of defects in workmanship 

or materials, except to the extent the failure results from negligence of HOSPITAL. COMPANY expressly disclaims all other 

warranties, whether implied or statutory, including but not limited to, any warranty of merchantability or fitness for a particular purpose. 

G. It shall be the duty of COMPANY to assure that all products of its effort are technically sound and in conformance with all pertinent 

Federal, State and Local statutes, codes, ordinances, resolutions and other regulations. If applicable, COMPANY will not produce a 

work product which violates or infringes on any copyright or patent rights. COMPANY shall, without additional compensation, correct 

or revise any errors or omissions in its work products:   

1. Permitted or required approval by HOSPITAL of any products or services furnished by COMPANY shall not in any way 

relieve COMPANY of responsibility for the professional and technical accuracy and adequacy of its work.  

2. HOSPITAL’s review, approval, acceptance, or payment for any of COMPANY's services herein shall not be construed to 

operate as a waiver of any rights under this Agreement or of any cause of action arising out of the performance of this 

Agreement, and COMPANY shall be and remain liable in accordance with the terms of this Agreement and applicable law 

for all damages to HOSPITAL caused by COMPANY's performance or failures to perform under this Agreement. 

H. All materials, information, and documents, whether finished, unfinished, drafted, developed, prepared, completed, or acquired by 

COMPANY for HOSPITAL relating to the services to be performed hereunder and not otherwise used or useful in connection with 

services previously rendered, or services to be rendered, by COMPANY to parties other than HOSPITAL shall become the property 

of HOSPITAL and shall be delivered to HOSPITAL's representative upon completion or termination of this Agreement, whichever 

comes first. COMPANY shall not be liable for damages, claims, and losses arising out of any reuse of any work products on any 

other project conducted by HOSPITAL. HOSPITAL shall have the right to reproduce all documentation supplied pursuant to this 

Agreement. 

I. Drawings and specifications remain the property of COMPANY. Copies of the drawings and specifications retained by HOSPITAL 

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 4 of 84
Page 283 of 853



 

Page | 4  

 

may be utilized only for its use and for occupying the PROJECT for which they were prepared, and not for the construction of any 

other project. A copy of all materials, information and documents, whether finished, unfinished, or draft, developed, prepared, 

completed, or acquired by COMPANY during the performance of services for which it has been compensated under this Agreement, 

shall be delivered to HOSPITAL’s representative upon completion or termination of this Agreement, whichever occurs first. 

HOSPITAL shall have the right to reproduce all documentation supplied pursuant to this Agreement. COMPANY shall furnish 

Hospital’s representative copies of all correspondence to regulatory agencies for review prior to mailing such correspondence. 

J. The rights and remedies of HOSPITAL provided for under this section are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by 

law or under other sections of this Agreement. 

SECTION VI: SUBCONTRACTS 

A. Services specified by this Agreement shall not be subcontracted by COMPANY, without prior written approval of HOSPITAL. 

B. Approval by HOSPITAL of COMPANY's request to subcontract, or acceptance of, or payment for, subcontracted work by HOSPITAL 

shall not in any way relieve COMPANY of responsibility for the professional and technical accuracy and adequacy of the work. 

COMPANY shall be and remain liable for all damages to HOSPITAL caused by negligent performance or non-performance of work 

under this Agreement by COMPANY's subcontractor or its sub-subcontractor. 

C. The compensation due under Section II shall not be affected by HOSPITAL's approval of COMPANY's request to subcontract. 

SECTION VII: RESPONSIBILITY OF HOSPITAL 

A. HOSPITAL agrees that its officers and employees will cooperate with COMPANY in the performance of services under this 

Agreement and will be available for consultation with COMPANY at such reasonable times with advance notice as to not conflict with 

their other responsibilities. 

B. The services performed by COMPANY under this Agreement shall be subject to review for compliance with the terms of this 

Agreement by HOSPITAL's representative, Rosalind Bob, telephone number (702) 207-8267 or her designee. HOSPITAL's 

representative may delegate any or all of her responsibilities under this Agreement to appropriate staff members, and shall so inform 

COMPANY by written notice before the effective date of each such delegation. 

C. The review comments of HOSPITAL's representative may be reported in writing as needed to COMPANY. It is understood that 

HOSPITAL's representative’s review comments do not relieve COMPANY from the responsibility for the professional and technical 

accuracy of all work delivered under this Agreement. 

D. HOSPITAL shall assist COMPANY in obtaining data on documents from public officers or agencies, and from private citizens and/or 

business firms, whenever such material is necessary for the completion of the services specified by this Agreement. 

E. COMPANY will not be responsible for accuracy of information or data supplied by HOSPITAL or other sources to the extent such 

information or data would be relied upon by a reasonably prudent COMPANY. 

SECTION VIII: TIME SCHEDULE 

A. Time is of the essence of this Agreement. 

B. If COMPANY’s performance of services is delayed or if COMPANY’s sequence of tasks is changed, COMPANY shall notify 

HOSPITAL’s representative in writing of the reasons for the delay and prepare a revised schedule for performance of services.  The 

revised schedule is subject to HOSPITAL’s written approval. 

SECTION IX: SUSPENSION AND TERMINATION 

A. Suspension 

HOSPITAL may suspend performance by COMPANY under this Agreement for such period of time as HOSPITAL, at its sole 

discretion, may prescribe by providing written notice to COMPANY at least five (5) working days prior to the date on which HOSPITAL 

wishes to suspend. Upon such suspension, HOSPITAL shall pay COMPANY its compensation, based on the percentage of the 

PROJECT completed and earned until the effective date of suspension, less all previous payments. COMPANY shall not perform 

further work under this Agreement after the effective date of suspension until receipt of written notice from HOSPITAL to resume 

performance. In the event HOSPITAL suspends performance by COMPANY for any cause other than the error or omission of the 

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 5 of 84
Page 284 of 853



 

Page | 5  

 

COMPANY, for an aggregate period in excess of thirty (30) days, COMPANY shall be entitled to an equitable adjustment of the 

compensation payable to COMPANY under this Agreement to reimburse COMPANY for additional costs occasioned as a result of 

such suspension of performance by HOSPITAL based on appropriated funds and approval by HOSPITAL. 

B. Termination 

1. Termination for Cause 

This Agreement may be terminated in whole or in part by either party in the event of substantial failure or default of the other 

party to fulfill its obligations under this Agreement through no fault of the terminating party; but only after the other party is 

given: 

a. not less than ten (10) calendar days written notice of intent to terminate; and 

b. an opportunity for consultation with the terminating party prior to termination. 

2. Termination for Convenience 

a. This Agreement may be terminated in whole or in part by HOSPITAL for its convenience; but only after COMPANY is 

given not less than fifteen (15) calendar days written notice of intent to terminate; and 

b. If termination is for HOSPITAL’s convenience, HOSPITAL shall pay COMPANY that portion of the compensation which 

has been earned as of the effective date of termination but no amount shall be allowed for anticipated profit on 

performed or unperformed services or other work. 

3. Effect of Termination  

a. If termination for substantial failure or default is effected by HOSPITAL, HOSPITAL will pay COMPANY that portion of 

the compensation which has been earned as of the effective date of termination but: 

i. No amount shall be allowed for anticipated profit on performed or unperformed services or other work; and 

ii. Any payment due to COMPANY at the time of termination may be adjusted to the extent of any additional costs 

occasioned to HOSPITAL by reason of COMPANY's default. 

b. Upon receipt or delivery by COMPANY of a termination notice, COMPANY shall promptly discontinue all services 

affected (unless the notice directs otherwise) and deliver or otherwise make available to HOSPITAL’s representative, 

copies of all deliverables as provided in Section V, paragraph H.   Each Party shall return or destroy all originals and 

copies, except for those copies it may retain for archival purposes, of any confidential information of the other Party 

regarding the Project, including but not limited to protected health information (“PHI”), and shall certify in writing to the 

other Party, no later than thirty (30) days after termination, that is has done so. 

c. If after termination for failure of COMPANY to fulfill contractual obligations it is determined that COMPANY has not so 

failed, the termination shall be deemed to have been effected for the convenience of HOSPITAL. 

d.  Upon termination, HOSPITAL may take over the work and prosecute the same to completion by agreement with another 

party or otherwise.  In the event COMPANY shall cease conducting business, HOSPITAL shall have the right to make 

an unsolicited offer of employment to any employees of COMPANY assigned to the performance of this Agreement. 

4. The rights and remedies of HOSPITAL and COMPANY provided in this section are in addition to any other rights and 

remedies provided by law or under this Agreement. 

5. Neither party shall be considered in default in the performance of its obligations hereunder, nor any of them, to the extent 

that performance of such obligations, nor any of them, is prevented or delayed by any cause, existing or future, which is 

beyond the reasonable control of such party.  Delays arising from the actions or inactions of one or more of COMPANY's 

principals, officers, employees, agents, subcontractors, vendors or suppliers are expressly recognized to be within 

COMPANY's control. 

SECTION X: INSURANCE 

COMPANY shall obtain and maintain the insurance coverage required in Exhibit B incorporated herein by this reference. COMPANY 

shall comply with the terms and conditions set forth in Exhibit B and shall include the cost of the insurance coverage in their prices.  

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 6 of 84
Page 285 of 853



 

Page | 6  

 

SECTION XI: NOTICES 

Any notice required to be given hereunder shall be deemed to have been given when received by the party to whom it is directed by 

personal service, hand delivery, certified U.S. mail, return receipt requested or facsimile, at the following addresses, or such other address 

that a party may designate in writing: 

 

TO HOSPITAL: University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 
Attn: Legal Department 
1800 W. Charleston Blvd. 
Las Vegas, NV 89102 
 
 

TO COMPANY:  AccuSourceHR, Inc. 
 Attn: Legal Department 
 11811 N. Tatum Blvd., Suite 3090 
 Phoenix, AZ 85028 
  
  

SECTION XII: MISCELLANEOUS 

A. ADA Requirements 

All work performed or services rendered by COMPANY shall comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act standards adopted by 

Clark County.  All facilities built prior to January 26, 1992 must comply with the Uniform Federal Accessibility Standards; and all 

facilities completed after January 26, 1992 must comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act Accessibility Guidelines. 

B. Amendments  

No modifications or amendments to this Agreement shall be valid or enforceable unless mutually agreed to in writing by the parties. 

C. Assignment 

Any attempt by COMPANY to assign or otherwise transfer any interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of 

HOSPITAL shall be void. 

D. Audits 

The performance of this Agreement by COMPANY is subject to review by HOSPITAL to ensure Agreement compliance. COMPANY 

agrees to provide HOSPITAL any and all information requested that relates to the performance of this Agreement.  All requests for 

information will be in writing to COMPANY.  Time is of the essence during the audit process.  Failure to provide the information 

requested within the timeline provided in the written information request may be considered a material breach of Agreement and be 

cause for suspension and/or termination of the Agreement. The parties hereto further agree that except as otherwise required by 

law, any audit and inspection rights include only the rights to verify amounts invoiced by COMPANY and to verify the nature of the 

services being invoiced, but does not include the right to review personal information of COMPANY’s employees, or proprietary 

information of COMPANY, including but not limited to COMPANY’s underlying cost, markup or overhead rates. 

E. Clark County Business License / Registration 

COMPANY warrants that it is has a valid Clark County Business License and will maintain such licensure through the duration of this 

Agreement. 

F. Complete Agreement 

This Agreement, together with all exhibits, appendices or other attachments, which are incorporated herein by reference, is the sole 

and entire agreement between the parties relating to the subject matter hereof. This Agreement supersedes all prior understandings, 

representations, agreements and documentation relating to such subject matter. In the event of a conflict between the provisions of 

the main body of the Agreement and any attached exhibits, appendices or other materials, the Agreement shall take precedence.  

G. Confidential Treatment of Information 

COMPANY shall preserve in strict confidence any information obtained, assembled or prepared in connection with the performance 

of this Agreement and COMPANY represents and warrants that it shall not resell HOSPITAL confidential information. Confidential 

information does not include information that, under the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) as may be 

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 7 of 84
Page 286 of 853



 

Page | 7  

 

amended from time to time, is protected health information (PHI), in which case the parties agree to handle such health information in 

accordance with the terms of the Business Associate Agreement (BAA) which is attached to and incorporated into this Agreement as 

Exhibit D. 

H. Counterparts 

This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts. Each counterpart will be an original, and all such counterparts will 

constitute a single instrument. 

I. Covenant 

COMPANY covenants that it presently has no interest and that it will not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which would conflict 

in any manner or degree with the performance of services required to be performed under this Agreement. COMPANY further 

covenants, to its knowledge and ability, that in the performance of said services no person having any such interest shall be 

employed. 

J. Covenant Against Contingent Fees  

COMPANY warrants that no person or selling agency has been employed or retained to solicit or secure this Agreement upon an 

agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee, excepting bona fide permanent employees.  

For breach or violation of this warranty, HOSPITAL shall have the right to annul this Agreement without liability or in its discretion to 

deduct from the Agreement price or consideration or otherwise recover the full amount of such commission, percentage, brokerage, 

or contingent fee. 

K. Exclusion 

COMPANY represents and warrants that neither it, nor any of its employees or other contracted staff (collectively referred to in this 

paragraph as “employees”) has been or is about to be excluded from participation in any Federal Health Care Program (as defined 

herein). COMPANY agrees to notify HOSPITAL within five (5) business days of COMPANY’s receipt of notice of intent to exclude or 

actual notice of exclusion from any such program. The listing of COMPANY or any of its employees on the Office of Inspector 

General’s exclusion list (OIG website), the General Services Administration’s Lists of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement 

and Non-procurement Programs (GSA website) for excluded individuals or entities, any state Medicaid exclusion list, or the Office of 

Foreign Assets Control’s (OFAC’s) blocked list shall constitute “exclusion” for purposes of this paragraph. In the event that COMPANY 

or any of its employees is excluded from any Federal Health Care Program or placed on the OFAC’s blocked list, it shall be a material 

breach and this Agreement shall immediately terminate without penalty to HOSPITAL. For the purpose of this paragraph, the term 

“Federal Health Care Program” means the Medicare program, the Medicaid program, TRICARE, any health care program of the 

Department of Veterans Affairs, the Maternal and Child Health Services Block Grant program, any state social services block grant 

program, any state children’s health insurance program, or any similar program. 

L. Governing Law / Venue 

Nevada law shall govern the interpretation of this Agreement.  Venue shall be any court of competent jurisdiction in Las Vegas, 

Nevada. 

M. Gratuities 

1. HOSPITAL may, by written notice to COMPANY, terminate this Agreement if it is found after notice and hearing by 

HOSPITAL that gratuities (in the form of entertainment, gifts, or otherwise) were offered or given by COMPANY or any 

agent or representative of COMPANY to any officer or employee of HOSPITAL with a view toward securing a contract or 

securing favorable treatment with respect to the awarding or amending or making of any determinations with respect to the 

performance of this Agreement. 

2. In the event this Agreement is terminated as provided in paragraph 1 hereof, HOSPITAL shall be entitled: 

a. to pursue the same remedies against COMPANY as it could pursue in the event of a breach of this Agreement by 

COMPANY; and 

b. as a penalty in addition to any other damages to which it may be entitled by law, to exemplary damages in an amount 

(as determined by HOSPITAL) which shall be not less than three (3) nor more than ten (10) times the costs incurred 

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 8 of 84
Page 287 of 853



 

Page | 8  

 

by COMPANY in providing any such gratuities to any such officer or employee. 

3. The rights and remedies of HOSPITAL provided in this clause shall not be exclusive and are in addition to any other rights 

and remedies provided by law or under this Agreement. 

N. Immigration Reform and Control Act 

In accordance with the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, COMPANY agrees that it will not employ unauthorized aliens in 

the performance of this Agreement.  

O. Indemnity 

COMPANY does hereby agree to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless HOSPITAL and the employees, officers and agents of 

HOSPITAL from any liabilities, damages, losses, claims, actions or proceedings, including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys 

fees, that are caused by the negligence, errors, omissions, recklessness or intentional misconduct of COMPANY or the employees 

or agents of COMPANY in the performance of this Agreement. 

P. Independent Contractor 

COMPANY acknowledges that it, COMPANY, and any subcontractors, agents or employees employed by it shall not, under any 

circumstances, be considered employees of the HOSPITAL, and that they shall not be entitled to any of the benefits or rights afforded 

employees of HOSPITAL, including, but not limited to, sick leave, vacation leave, holiday pay, Public Employees Retirement System 

benefits, or health, life, dental, long-term disability or workers' compensation insurance benefits.  HOSPITAL will not provide or pay 

for any liability or medical insurance, retirement contributions or any other benefits for or on behalf of COMPANY or any of its officers, 

employees or other agents. 

Q. Prohibition Against Israel Boycott:   

In accordance with Nevada Revised Statute 332.065, COMPANY certifies that it is not refused to deal or to conduct business with, 

abstained from dealing or conducting business with, terminating business or business activities with or performing any other action 

that is intended to limit commercial relations with Israel or a person or entity doing business in Israel or in territories controlled by 

Israel. 

R. Public Funds / Non-Discrimination 

COMPANY acknowledges that the HOSPITAL has an obligation to ensure that public funds are not used to subsidize private 

discrimination. COMPANY recognizes that if they or their subcontractors are found guilty by an appropriate authority of refusing to 

hire or do business with an individual or company due to reasons of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity or 

gender expression, age, disability, handicapping condition (including AIDS or AIDS related conditions), national origin, or any other 

class protected by law or regulation, HOSPITAL may declare COMPANY in breach of the Agreement, terminate the Agreement, and 

designate COMPANY as non-responsible. 

S. Public Records 

COMPANY acknowledges that HOSPITAL is a public, county-owned hospital which is subject to the provisions of the Nevada Public 

Records Act, Nevada Revised Statutes Chapter 239, as may be amended from time to time. As such, its records are public 

documents available for copying and inspection by the public. If HOSPITAL receives a demand for the disclosure of any information 

related to this Agreement that COMPANY has claimed to be confidential and proprietary, HOSPITAL will immediately notify 

COMPANY of such demand and COMPANY shall immediately notify HOSPITAL of its intention to seek injunctive relief in a Nevada 

court for protective order. COMPANY shall indemnify and defend HOSPITAL from any claims or actions, including all associated 

costs and attorney’s fees, demanding the disclosure of COMPANY document in HOSPITAL’s custody and control in which 

COMPANY claims to be confidential and proprietary. 

T. Publicity   

Neither HOSPITAL nor COMPANY shall cause to be published or disseminated any advertising materials, either printed or 

electronically transmitted which identify the other party or its facilities with respect to this Agreement without the prior written consent 

of the other party. 

U. Subcontractor Information  

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 9 of 84
Page 288 of 853



 

Page | 9  

 

COMPANY shall provide a list of the Minority-Owned Business Enterprise (MBE), Women-Owned Business Enterprise (WBE), 

Physically-Challenged Business Enterprise (PBE), Small Business Enterprise (SBE), and Nevada Business Enterprise (NBE) 

subcontractors for this Agreement utilizing the attached format Exhibit C. The information provided in Exhibit C by COMPANY is 

for the HOSPITAL’s information only. 

V. Survival of Terms.  

Unless otherwise stated, all of HOSPITAL and COMPANY’s respective obligations, representations and warranties under this 

Agreement which are not, by the expressed terms of this Agreement, fully to be performed while this Agreement is in effect shall 

survive the termination of this Agreement. 

W. Travel Policy 

The following are the acceptable travel guidelines for reimbursement of travel costs:  

Reimbursement shall only be for the contract personnel. 

Transportation:  

- Domestic Airlines (Coach Ticket).  Number of trips must be approved by HOSPITAL. 

- Personal Vehicle: HOSPITAL will not pay costs associated to driving a personal vehicle in lieu of air travel. 

Meals: All meal charges will be paid up to and not to exceed $50 per day. This includes a 15% tip.  

Lodging: Lodging will either be booked by HOSPITAL or reimbursed for costs of a reasonable room rate plus taxes for Las 

Vegas, NV, not to exceed $150 per night.  

Rental Vehicles: One (1) automobile rental will be authorized per four (4) travelers. Rental must be mid-size or smaller.  

HOSPITAL will reimburse up to $150 per week.  Return re-fuel cap of $50 per vehicle. 

Each traveler shall submit the following documents in order to claim travel reimbursement. The documents shall be readable copies 

of the original itemized receipts with each traveler’s full name. Only actual costs (including all applicable sales tax) will be reimbursed. 

- Company’s Invoice 

o With copy of executed Agreement highlighting the allowable travel 

o List of travelers 

o Number of days in travel status 

- Hotel receipt 

- Meal receipts for each meal 

- Airline receipt 

- Car rental receipt (Identify driver and passengers) 

- Airport parking receipt (traveler’s Airport origin) 

- Gas re-fuel upon return of rental vehicle capped at $50 per vehicle 

- Airport long term parking (only for economy rate) 

The following are some of the charges that will NOT be allowable for reimbursement (not all inclusive): 

-  Personal vehicle (HOSPITAL will not pay costs associated to driving a personal vehicle in lieu of air travel) 

- Excess baggage fares 

 -  Upgrades for transportation, lodging, or vehicles 

-  Alcohol 

 -  Room service 

-  In-room movie rentals 

- In-room beverage/snacks 

- Gas for personal vehicles 

- Transportation to and from traveler’s home and the airport 

- Mileage 

- Travel time 

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 10 of 84
Page 289 of 853



Page | 10 

Travel expenses shall not exceed $_0.00____________ without prior written approval from HOSPITAL. 

X. Waiver; Severability  

No term or provision of this Agreement shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent is in writing 

and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented. If any provision of this Agreement is held invalid, void or unenforceable 

under any applicable statute or rule of law, it shall to that extent be deemed omitted, and the balance of this Agreement shall be 

enforceable in accordance with its remaining terms. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the Parties has caused this Agreement to be executed and effective as of the Effective Date. 

HOSPITAL: 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 

By: 

MASON VAN HOUWELING DATE 
Chief Executive Officer 

COMPANY: 

ACCUSOURCEHR, INC. 

By: 

Dan Filby DATE 

Chief Executive Officer 

02 / 06 / 2024

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 11 of 84
Page 290 of 853



 

 

 

Addendum 11/28/2022                                                                                                              
       

ADDENDUM 

 
This Addendum (“Addendum”) to the Agreement is entered into between COMPANY and HOSPITAL as of the Effective Date. 

This Addendum supplements the existing Agreement between COMPANY and HOSPITAL and does not modify, amend, or delete 

any existing term therein. This Addendum shall be interpreted with the Agreement to form one agreement. Capitalized terms will 

have the meaning ascribed to them in the Agreement. 

 
1. COMPANY SERVICES. COMPANY is a global provider of background screening services. In the United States, 

COMPANY is defined as a “consumer reporting agency” pursuant to the applicable jurisdiction of the Fair Credit Reporting 

Act, 15 U.S.C. §1681 et seq. (“FCRA”) and applicable state law, and any FCRA-regulated screening reports that 

COMPANY furnishes pursuant to the Agreement and this Addendum are defined by the FCRA and applicable state law 

as “consumer reports” and/or “investigative consumer reports.” All reports provided by COMPANY pursuant to the 

Agreement and this Addendum are collectively defined as “Screening Reports”, and all references to “Screening Report(s)” 

herein shall refer to an entire Screening Report(s) as well as any specific information contained within a Screening 

Report(s). Subject to the terms and conditions of this Addendum and the Agreement, and upon HOSPITAL’s request, 

COMPANY will furnish Screening Reports and the related services described in this Addendum and the Agreement in 

connection with HOSPITAL’s screening of employees or candidates for employment (including, without limitation, 

independent contractors, temporary workers/employees, vendors, and volunteers), volunteers and/or other individuals for 

legally permissible employment-related purposes (each, an “Applicant”); 
 

2. CERTIFICATIONS  
FCRA Certification 
HOSPITAL certifies to COMPANY as follows with respect to each FCRA-regulated Screening Report HOSPITAL orders 

and/or receives: 
1. Permissible Purpose. HOSPITAL shall procure and use Screening Reports only for the legally permissible 

employment purpose(s) as set forth in Section 1. 
 

2. Applicant Disclosure and Consent. HOSPITAL certifies that prior to its procurement of a Screening Report for 

employment purposes: (i) HOSPITAL has made a clear and conspicuous disclosure in writing to the consumer 

Applicant, in a document that consists solely of the disclosure, that a consumer report may be obtained for employment 

purposes; and (ii) the Applicant consumer has authorized in writing the procurement of the Screening Report by 

HOSPITAL. HOSPITAL understands that COMPANY will not initiate a report for employment purposes in the absence 

of a written authorization. HOSPITAL certifies that each time it orders a report, it is reaffirming the above certification.  
 

3. Pre-Adverse Action Disclosures. In using a Screening Report for employment purposes, before taking any adverse 

employment action based in whole or in part on the information in the Screening Report provided by COMPANY, 

HOSPITAL shall provide to the Applicant consumer to whom the Screening Report relates: (i) a copy of the Screening 

Report; and (ii) a description in writing of the rights of the Applicant consumer under the FCRA, as prescribed under 

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 12 of 84
Page 291 of 853



 

 

 

Addendum 11/28/2022                                                                                                              
       

FCRA §609 (“A Summary of Consumer Rights Under the Fair Credit Reporting Act”, a copy of which is currently 

available at: https://accusourcehr.com/resources/client-education/) and any other notices required by applicable Laws.  
 
4. Adverse Action Disclosures. After providing the consumer Applicant with the pre-adverse action disclosure described in 

paragraph 3 above (to the extent applicable), and after the appropriate waiting period, HOSPITAL will, if intending to take adverse 

action with respect to the consumer Applicant based in whole or in part on information contained in the Screening Report, send 

the consumer Applicant a follow-up notification that the HOSPITAL is taking adverse action (e.g., denying employment or 

promotion) based in whole or in part on the information contained in the Screening Report. Such notification will meet all applicable 

requirements set forth in FCRA §615 and any other notices required by applicable Laws.  
 
5. Equal Employment Opportunity Law Compliance. The information from the Screening Report will not be used in violation of 

any applicable federal or state equal employment opportunity law or regulation.  
 
6. HOSPITAL hereby acknowledges that it has received a copy of the Summary of Rights (16 C.F.R. Part 601) and Notice of 

Users of Consumer Reports (16 C.F.R. Part 601).  
 

California Client Compliance Certification7. California Screening Reports. HOSPITAL certifies that, under the 

Investigative Consumer Reporting Agencies Act (“ICRAA”), California Civil Code Sections 1786 et seq., and the Consumer 

Credit Reporting Agencies Act (“CCRAA”), California Civil Code Sections 1785.1 et seq., if HOSPITAL is located in the State 

of California, and/or the HOSPITAL’s request for and/or use of Screening Reports pertains to a California resident or worker, 

End User will do the following: 
i.   Request and use Screening Reports solely for permissible purpose(s) identified under California Civil Code Sections 

1785.11 and 1786.12. 
ii.   When, at any time, Screening Reports are sought for employment purposes other than suspicion of wrongdoing or 

misconduct by the consumer Applicant who is the subject of the investigation, provide a clear and conspicuous disclosure in 

writing to the consumer Applicant, which solely discloses: (1) that an investigative Screening Report may be obtained; (2) the 

permissible purpose of the investigative Screening Report; (3) that information on the consumer’s Applicant’s character, 

general reputation, personal characteristics and mode of living may be disclosed; (4) the name, address, telephone number, 

and website of COMPANY; and (5) the nature and scope of the investigation requested, including a summary of the provisions 

of California Civil Code Section 1786.22. 
iii.   When, at any time, Screening Reports are sought for employment purposes other than suspicion of wrongdoing or 

misconduct by the consumer Applicant who is the subject of the investigation, only request a Screening Report if the applicable 

consumer Applicant has authorized in writing the procurement of the Screening Report. 
iv.   When Screening Reports are sought in connection with the hiring of a dwelling unit, notify the consumer in writing that a 

Screening Report will be made regarding the consumer’s character, general reputation, personal characteristics.  The 

notification shall include the name and address of HOSPITAL as well as a summary of the provisions of California Civil Code 

Section 1786.22, no later than three days after the date on which the Screening Report was first requested. 
v.   When Screening Reports are sought in connection with the underwriting of insurance, clearly and accurately disclose in 

writing at the time the application form, medical form, binder, or similar document is signed by the consumer that a Screening 

Report regarding the consumer’s character, general reputation, personal characteristics, and mode of living may be made, or, 

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 13 of 84
Page 292 of 853

https://accusourcehr.com/resources/client-education


 

 

 

Addendum 11/28/2022                                                                                                              
       

if no signed application form, medical form, binder, or similar document is involved in the underwriting transaction, the 

disclosure shall be made to the consumer in writing and mailed or otherwise delivered to the consumer not later than three 

days after the report was first requested.  The disclosure shall include the name and address of HOSPITAL, the nature and 

scope of the investigation requested, and a summary of the provisions of California Civil Code Section 1786.22. 
vi.   Provide the consumer a means by which he/she may indicate on a written form, by means of a box to check, that the 

consumer wishes to receive a copy of any Screening Reports that are prepared. 
vii.   If the consumer wishes to receive a copy of the Screening Reports, the HOSPITAL shall send (or contract with another 

entity to send) a copy of the Screening Report to the consumer within three business days of the date that the Screening 

Report is provided to HOSPITAL. The copy of the Screening Report shall contain the name, address, and telephone number 

of the person at HOSPITAL who issued the report and how to contact him/her. 
viii.   Under all applicable circumstances, comply with California Civil Code Sections 1785.20 and 1786.40 if the taking of 

adverse action is a consideration, which shall include, but may not be limited to, advising the consumer against whom an 

adverse action has been taken that the adverse action was based in whole or in part upon information contained in the 

Screening Report, informing the consumer in writing of HOSPITAL’s name, address, and telephone number, and provide the 

consumer of a written notice of his/her rights under the ICRAA and the CCRAA. 
ix.  Comply with all other requirements under applicable California law, including, but, not limited to any statutes, regulations 

and rules governing the procurement, use and/or disclosure of any Screening Reports, including, but not limited to, the ICRAA 

and CCRAA. 
 

8. Investigative Consumer Reports. For each Investigative Consumer Report, as defined by the FCRA (e.g., professional 

reference check), that HOSPITAL requests from COMPANY, HOSPITAL has complied with its obligations under FCRA 

§606(a) and (b), including, without limitation, the following: 
i) clearly and accurately disclosing to the Applicant that an Investigative Consumer Report including information as to the 

Applicant’s character, general reputation, personal characteristics, and mode of living, whichever are applicable, may be 

made, and such disclosure: 
(1) is made in writing mailed, or otherwise delivered, to the Applicant not later than three days after the date on which 

the report was first requested; and  
(2) includes a statement informing the Applicant of his right to request the additional disclosures provided for under 

FCRA §606(b) as set forth in 2(ii) below, and a written Summary of Consumer Rights; and  
ii) upon written request made by the Applicant within a reasonable period of time after the Applicant’s receipt of the required 

disclosure referenced in paragraph 2(i) above, HOSPITAL will make a complete and accurate disclosure of the nature and 

scope of the investigation requested. The disclosure will be made in a writing mailed, or otherwise delivered, to the 

Applicant not later than five days after the date on which the request for such disclosure was received from the Applicant 

or such report was first requested, whichever is the later.  
 
3. HOSPITAL OBLIGATIONS  

(a) Compliance with Applicable Laws. HOSPITAL shall comply with all local, state, federal, and international laws and 

regulations, including, without limitation, and as applicable the FCRA (collectively, “Laws”), applicable to HOSPITAL in 

connection with its procurement and use of Screening Reports and other services provided pursuant to this Addendum. 

HOSPITAL acknowledges it has received, reviewed and will comply with its obligations in the Notice to Users of Consumer 

Reports: Obligations Of Users under the FCRA currently available at https://accusourcehr.com/resources/client-education. 

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 14 of 84
Page 293 of 853

https://accusourcehr.com/resources/client-education


 

 

 

Addendum 11/28/2022                                                                                                              
       

 
(b) Intentionally omitted.  

 
(c) HOSPITAL acknowledges that if it obtains services from COMPANY under this Addendum that fall outside the scope of 

the FCRA and similar United States laws (“Non-US Services”), then HOSPITAL may have additional or different legal 

obligations than those described in this Addendum, and HOSPITAL shall comply with all such Laws and obligations. 

HOSPITAL shall promptly notify COMPANY if HOSPITAL believes it has failed to fulfill any obligation in this Addendum, 

including, without limitation, those obligations related to confidentiality, consumer privacy, data protection, and compliance 

with Laws. 
 
(d) Account Credentialing, Access and Maintenance. Prior to obtaining services from COMPANY, HOSPITAL must satisfy 

COMPANY’s HOSPITAL credentialing requirements, which may include a physical on-site inspection. HOSPITAL shall 

cooperate with COMPANY’s HOSPITAL credentialing process HOSPITAL shall designate to COMPANY the name of a “Super 

User(s)” who shall be: (i) HOSPITAL’s main contact(s) for the services obtained under this Addendum, and (ii) responsible for 

the strict administration and control of HOSPITAL’s accounts users. The Super User(s) shall identify and authorize all 

HOSPITAL account users and their respective access privileges, and promptly notify COMPANY of any changes to 

HOSPITAL’s company name, physical address, account users and if any account login codes or passwords become invalid, 

inactive or compromised in any manner. In accordance with Section 5, a Super User may be an Outsourced Provider. 
 
(e) Data Privacy and Security. HOSPITAL shall maintain commercially reasonable and appropriate technical, physical, 

administrative and other organizational precautions and security measures to protect against unauthorized access to and/or 

misuse of the COMPANY system and Screening Reports. At a minimum, HOSPITAL shall comply with the HOSPITAL 

Compliance Certification with Information Access & Security Requirements set forth in Attachment A. COMPANY may, in its 

reasonable discretion and without penalty, suspend and, upon written notice, cancel HOSPITAL’s account if COMPANY 

reasonably suspects or identifies any misuse of or unauthorized access to its system and/or Screening Reports through 

HOSPITAL’s account. If applicable, the parties will execute appropriate addenda and/or data processing agreements for such 

services in accordance with Section XII: Miscellaneous (B) of the Service Agreement. 
 
(f) Audits and Record Retention. COMPANY may conduct reasonable periodic audits of HOSPITAL’s compliance with this 

Addendum. Unless otherwise prohibited or required by applicable Laws, HOSPITAL shall, for a minimum period of two (2) 

years and otherwise in compliance with HOSPITAL’s record retention policy, maintain copies of all Applicant screening 

disclosure/consent forms and, as applicable, all pre-adverse and adverse action notices. HOSPITAL shall, upon reasonable 

advance notice, during its normal business hours, and no more than once per year, make available to COMPANY such 

documentation reasonably requested to demonstrate HOSPITAL’s compliance with its obligations in this Addendum subject 

to Company’s compliance with the confidentiality provisions of the Agreement. If HOSPITAL becomes aware of an audit 

initiated by a third-party involving COMPANY’s Screening Reports or other services provided pursuant to this Addendum, 

HOSPITAL shall provide COMPANY prompt written notice of the audit. HOSPITAL shall not provide access to its COMPANY 

account or Screening Reports to any auditing party unless required to do so by applicable Laws and COMPANY expressly 

consents to such access request.  

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 15 of 84
Page 294 of 853



 

 

 

Addendum 11/28/2022                                                                                                              
       

 
(g) Prohibition on Resale or Reuse of Reports. HOSPITAL shall not, directly or indirectly, sell, transfer, disclose the contents 

of or distribute Screening Reports, in whole or in part, to any third-party (other than to the applicable Applicant or in conjunction 

with a Required Disclosure. HOSPITAL shall use Screening Reports solely as an end-user, for a single, one-time use.  
 
(h) Adjudication Details and Responsibility. This Section 3(h) is only applicable if HOSPITAL utilizes COMPANY’s Concierge 

Adjudication Services, as described below and subject to applicable product/service specifications. If HOSPITAL elects to 

obtain such services, HOSPITAL shall provide COMPANY with the criteria, guidelines and instructions established by 

HOSPITAL for determining whether the information in an Applicant’s Screening Report satisfies HOSPITAL’s eligibility criteria 

(“Adjudication Guidelines”). COMPANY will apply HOSPITAL’s Adjudication Guidelines to the Screening Report information 

reported by COMPANY and then provide to HOSPITAL a status that reflects the outcome of such application (“Concierge 

Adjudication Services”); provided, however, that COMPANY will not apply any “does not meet” or equivalent final adverse 

status, which ultimately must be determined and applied by HOSPITAL. If COMPANY performs Concierge Adjudication 

Services on behalf of HOSPITAL, COMPANY’s sole responsibility will be to perform such services accurately in accordance 

with applicable Laws and HOSPITAL’s then-current Adjudication Guidelines provided to COMPANY. HOSPITAL represents 

and warrants to COMPANY that the Adjudication Guidelines comply with all applicable Laws and acknowledges that 

HOSPITAL is solely responsible for the creation and content of the Adjudication Guidelines and for ensuring such compliance 

on an ongoing basis. HOSPITAL may update its Adjudication Guidelines from time to time by providing advance written notice 

to COMPANY, and such updated Adjudication Guidelines will be effective upon COMPANY’s written confirmation to 

HOSPITAL.  
 
(i) Compliance Responsibility; No Legal Advice. HOSPITAL acknowledges that COMPANY will not render any opinions 

regarding Screening Report content, and HOSPITAL shall base its screening processes, criteria, Adjudication Guidelines (if 

applicable) and decisions on its own policies, procedures and review of applicable Laws. Any consultation, training and/or 

sample forms (e.g., disclosure and authorization forms, and pre-adverse and adverse action notices) provided by COMPANY 

are provided for informational purposes only, and not for the purpose of providing legal advice and/or HOSPITAL’s reliance. 

HOSPITAL ACKNOWLEDGES THAT IT IS SOLELY RESPONSIBLE FOR, AND FOR CONSULTING ON AN ONGOING 

BASIS WITH, ITS OWN LEGAL COUNSEL FAMILIAR WITH HOSPITAL’S LEGAL/REGULATORY OBLIGATIONS RELATED 

TO THE COMPLIANT PROCUREMENT AND USE OF SCREENING REPORTS AND OTHER SERVICES OBTAINED 

PURSUANT TO THIS ADDENDUM INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION (AND COLLECTIVELY DEFINED AS “HOSPITAL 

COMPLIANCE OBLIGATIONS”): FULFILLING ITS COMPLIANCE OBLIGATIONS IN THIS ADDENDUM; ENSURING THAT 

ITS DISCLOSURE AND AUTHORIZATION FORMS AND PROCESSES, ADJUDICATION GUIDELINES AND PROCESSES, 

PROFESSIONAL REFERENCE QUESTIONS AS PREPARED OR REQUESTED BY HOSPITAL, PRE-ADVERSE ACTION 

AND ADVERSE ACTION NOTICE FORMS AND PROCESSES, AND ALL OTHER PAPERWORK AND FORMS UTILIZED 

BY OR ON BEHALF OF HOSPITAL IN ITS HIRING AND APPLICANT SCREENING PRACTICES ARE APPROPRIATE FOR 

ITS USE AND IN COMPLIANCE WITH ALL APPLICABLE LAWS. HOSPITAL SHALL NOT ASSERT ANY CLAIM AGAINST 

COMPANY FOR, AND WAIVES LIABILITY AGAINST COMPANY FOR, ANY CLAIMS REGARDING OR ARISING OUT OF 

THE HOSPITAL COMPLIANCE OBLIGATIONS.  
 

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 16 of 84
Page 295 of 853



 

 

 

Addendum 11/28/2022                                                                                                              
       

(j) Applicant Information and Identity Verification. HOSPITAL acknowledges that, in preparing Screening Reports, COMPANY 

relies on the Applicant identifying information (such as, without limitation, name, date of birth, social security number or 

applicable national ID, and address) provided to COMPANY by the Applicant and/or HOSPITAL, as applicable. HOSPITAL 

acknowledges that: (i) HOSPITAL is responsible for confirming that the Applicant is who they claim to be; and (ii) HOSPITAL 

is advised to review the completed Screening Report in comparison to the Applicant’s job application and I-9 information, if 

applicable, to ensure that the Applicant identifying information provided to and used by COMPANY to prepare the Screening 

Report, as well any additional identifying information obtained by COMPANY while preparing the Screening Report, matches 

the identifying information provided by the Applicant to HOSPITAL. HOSPITAL understands that: (i) erroneous or falsified 

Applicant identifying information may cause the Screening Report to be incomplete and/or inaccurate; and (ii) COMPANY is 

not responsible for determining whether the identifying information submitted about the Applicant is erroneous or falsified.  
 
(k) Intentionally Omitted.  
 
(l) Intentionally Omitted. 

 
(m)  Intentionally Omitted.   

 
4. COMPANY OBLIGATIONS.  
(a) Compliance with FCRA and Other Applicable Laws. COMPANY shall comply with all Laws applicable to COMPANY in its 

preparation and transmission of Screening Reports and other services provided pursuant to this Addendum. COMPANY shall 

promptly notify HOSPITAL if COMPANY believes it has failed to fulfill any obligation in this Addendum, including, without 

limitation, those obligations related to confidentiality, consumer privacy, data protection, and compliance with Laws. 
 
(b) Intentionally Omitted.  
(c) Intentionally Omitted.  
(d) Data Privacy and Security. AccuSourceHR shall maintain commercially reasonable and appropriate technical, physical, 

administrative and other organizational precautions and security measures to protect Applicant data against accidental or 

unlawful destruction and unauthorized disclosure or access.  
 
(e) Record Retention. Subject to Section 13(c), COMPANY shall maintain Screening Report information for three (3) years 

from the Screening Report completion date, unless otherwise required or prohibited by applicable Laws..  
 
(f) Service Standards; Disclaimer of Warranty. COMPANY’S SERVICES WILL BE PERFORMED IN A PROFESSIONAL 

MANNER IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE TERMS OF THIS ADDENDUM. COMPANY WILL MAINTAIN AND FOLLOW 

REASONABLE PROCEDURES TO ASSURE THE MAXIMUM POSSIBLE ACCURACY OF THE INFORMATION 

CONTAINED IN EACH SCREENING REPORT, AND COMPANY WILL RE-VERIFY ANY DISPUTED SCREENING REPORT 

INFORMATION IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS (COLLECTIVELY, “COMPANY COMPLIANCE 

OBLIGATIONS”).  
 

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 17 of 84
Page 296 of 853



 

 

 

Addendum 11/28/2022                                                                                                              
       

(g) Matching and Reporting Guidelines. HOSPITAL acknowledges that in performing its services under this Addendum, 

COMPANY follows certain internally developed and defined record matching and reporting guidelines designed for COMPANY 

to meet its accuracy and compliance obligations (collectively, “Reporting Guidelines”). The Reporting Guidelines shall remain 

consistent with compliance with applicable Laws, UMC reporting requirements set forth in the Scope of Work, and reporting 

standards provided in COMPANY’s proposal provided during the Solicitation process.  COMPANY will ensure any required 

changes or requests for changes to Reporting Guidelines are promptly provided to HOSPITAL.  The Reporting Guidelines 

constitute COMPANY’s Confidential Information and are made available to HOSPITAL only for its use in understanding 

COMPANY’s Reporting Guidelines. Any further distribution of the Reporting Guidelines by HOSPITAL is strictly prohibited.  
 
(h) Professional Reference Services. If HOSPITAL engages COMPANY to perform Investigative consumer reports, 

COMPANY’s sole responsibility in fulfilling such services will be to: (i) accurately convey to the party providing the reference 

(“Reference Provider”) the reference questions provided or selected by HOSPITAL; and (ii) accurately convey the Reference 

Provider’s responses to HOSPITAL’s reference questions, subject to adjustments COMPANY determines in good faith are 

necessary or advisable to ensure COMPANY’s and HOSPITAL’s compliance with applicable Laws in conveying such 

responses..  
 
5. Intentionally Omitted.  
6. Intentionally Omitted. 
7. I-9 & E-VERIFY VERIFICATION OBLIGATIONS AND SERVICES. Intentionally Omitted 
 
(a) HOSPITAL I-9 Obligations. Intentionally Omitted 
 
(b) COMPANY I-9 Obligations. Intentionally Omitted 
 
(c) HOSPITAL E-Verify Obligations. Intentionally Omitted 
 
(d) COMPANY E-Verify Obligations. Intentionally Omitted 
 
8. MOTOR VEHICLE REPORTS; MOTOR VEHICLE MONITORING; ALIAS/ADDRESS HISTORY SERVICES; DRUG AND 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES.  
 
(a) Motor Vehicle Reports. HOSPITAL acknowledges that motor vehicle reports (“MVRs”) and related information are 

considered Screening Reports for purposes of this Addendum. If HOSPITAL requests MVRs or related information from 

COMPANY under this Addendum, then HOSPITAL further represents and agrees that: (i) it is qualified to do business and 

validly holds all licenses required to operate HOSPITAL’s business in all states where HOSPITAL conducts business and/or 

has employees; (ii) it will comply with all applicable Laws related to the procurement and use of MVRs, including, without 

limitation, the FCRA and the Driver’s Privacy Protection Act, 18 U.S.C. §2721 et seq. (“DPPA”), and any related state laws; 

(iii) it will not use the MVRs to build its own database; (iv) it will, from time to time upon COMPANY’s reasonable request, 

execute paperwork required by applicable state Departments of Motor Vehicles for HOSPITAL’s access to MVRs; and (v) it 

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 18 of 84
Page 297 of 853



 

 

 

Addendum 11/28/2022                                                                                                              
       

will not transmit any data contained in any MVR via public internet, electronic mail, or any other unsecured means. HOSPITAL 

certifies that no MVRs shall be ordered without first obtaining the written consent of the consumer to obtain “driving records,” 

evidence of which shall be transmitted to COMPANY in the form of the consumer’s signed release authorization form. 

HOSPITAL also certifies that it will use this information only in the normal course of business to obtain lawful information 

relating to the holder of a commercial driver’s license or to verify information provided by an applicant or employee.    
 
(b) Intentionally Omitted. 
(c) Intentionally Omitted.  

(d) Intentionally Omitted. 

(e) Intentionally Omitted. 

(f) Intentionally Omitted. 

(g) Intentionally Omitted. 

(h) Intentionally Omitted. 
 

  

 
.  
9. INTENTIONALLY OMITTED. 
10. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT BY HOSPITAL.  COMPANY does not guarantee HOSPITAL’s compliance with all applicable laws 

in its use of reported information, and does not provide legal or other compliance related services upon which HOSPITAL may 

rely in connection with its furnishing of reports.  HOSPITAL understands that any documents, information, conversations or 

communication with COMPANY’s representatives regarding searches, verifications or other services offered by COMPANY are 

not to be considered a legal opinion regarding such use.  HOSPITAL agrees that (1) it will consult with its own legal or other 

counsel regarding the use of background screening information, including but not limited to, the legality of using or relying on 

reported information and to review any forms as well as the content of prescribed notices, adverse or pre-adverse action letters 

and any attachments to for compliance with all applicable laws and regulations and (2) the provision of such notices, pre-adverse 

or adverse action letters and the contents thereof is the sole responsibility of HOSPITAL, not COMPANY.  HOSPITAL 

acknowledges and agrees that it has no obligation to use, and is solely responsible for independently vetting the contents of, any 

sample forms that COMPANY has provided to HOSPITAL in connection with this Addendum.    
 
11.  ACCOUNT DEACTIVATION.  

(a) Access to Screening Reports. Following the expiration or termination of COMPANY and HOSPITAL’s executed 

Agreement and this Addendum, COMPANY will provide HOSPITAL with a reasonable time frame to: (i) download for its 

records copies of its Applicant Screening Reports, and/or (ii) obtain from COMPANY fee, copies of HOSPITAL’s Applicant 

Screening Reports. Thereafter, COMPANY shall have no further duty to maintain copies of Applicant Screening Reports 

for access by HOSPITAL. 
(b) Account Deactivation. HOSPITAL acknowledges that if HOSPITAL is determined at any time not to meet COMPANY’s 

standard HOSPITAL credentialing requirements and as a result HOSPITAL’s account is not activated, or is subsequently 

deactivated, then any prior charges incurred related to HOSPITAL’s account, whether for account set-up registration or 

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 19 of 84
Page 298 of 853



 

 

 

Addendum 11/28/2022                                                                                                              
       

for pending or completed orders, shall be promptly paid to COMPANY by HOSPITAL in accordance with SECTION II: 

COMPENSATION AND TERMS OF PAYMENT.  
 
12. INTENTIONALLY OMITTED.  
 
13. SIGNATURE AUTHORITY. Each party represents that this Addendum has been executed on its behalf by a representative 

authorized to bind such party with respect to the undertakings and obligations contained in this Addendum.  
 

[SIGNTURES ARE ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE] 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
AGREED: 
HOSPITAL 
Company Name*: University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 
 
Authorized Signature: __________________________________     
Name: Mason Van Houweling 
Title: Chief Executive Officer 
Date: __________________ 
 
ACCUSOURCEHR, INC.  
Authorized Signature: _________________________________     
Name: _____________________________________________  
Title: ______________________________________________ 
Date: ______________________________________________ 
 
 
 

 

 

Dan Filby
CEO

02 / 06 / 2024

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 20 of 84
Page 299 of 853



 

 

 

Addendum 11/28/2022                                                                                                              
       

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
- Remainder of Page Intentionally Left Blank - 

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 21 of 84
Page 300 of 853



 

 

 

Addendum 11/28/2022                                                                                                              
      Confidential 

Attachment A  

HOSPITAL Compliance Certification with Information Access & Security Requirements 

 
Information Access & Security Requirements  

1. HOSPITAL shall protect its COMPANY Account User identification number(s) and password(s) (“Account User IDs”) so 

that only key HOSPITAL personnel with an authorized need-to-know this sensitive information are given the ability to order 

and access Screening Reports. HOSPITAL shall not post or otherwise publicly display its Account User IDs. If a person 

who knows the Account User IDs leaves HOSPITAL’s company or no longer needs to have access due to a change in 

duties, HOSPITAL shall immediately change such Account IDs. 
 

2. HOSPITAL shall place all terminal devices or systems used to obtain Screening Reports in a secure location within 

HOSPITAL’s facility so that unauthorized persons cannot easily access them. After normal business hours or when left 

unattended, HOSPITAL shall turn off and/or lock all such devices or systems used to order and/or access Screening 

Reports.  
 

3. HOSPITAL shall not discuss COMPANY Account User identification number(s) and password(s) (“Account User IDs”) 

by telephone with any unknown caller, even if the caller claims to be an employee of COMPANY.  
 

4. HOSPITAL shall secure hard copies and electronic files of Screening Reports within HOSPITAL’s facility so that only 

authorized personnel can access them.  
 

5. HOSPITAL shall shred or otherwise permanently destroy all hard copy Screening Reports when no longer needed and 

when applicable Laws or regulation(s) permit destruction, to prevent the unauthorized access to and/or use of 

applicant/employee data and/or any other personally identifiable information of applicants/employees.  
 

6. HOSPITAL shall erase and overwrite or scramble electronic files containing Screening Reports and Applicant 

information when no longer needed and when applicable Laws or regulation(s) permit destruction, to prevent the 

unauthorized access to and/or use of applicant/employee data and/or any other personally identifiable information of 

applicants/employees.  
 

7. HOSPITAL shall make all appropriate HOSPITAL personnel aware that HOSPITAL and its authorized personnel are 

allowed to order and use Screening Reports only for the permissible purpose(s) set forth in the Addendum, and that 

HOSPITAL personnel shall not order or access their own reports nor order or access the report of a family member or 

friend unless it is approved for the permissible purposes authorized in, and conducted in accordance with the Addendum. 

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 22 of 84
Page 301 of 853



AccuSourceHR Response to Sec�on 3 – Project Approach / Work Plan 
Provide an explana�on of the Proposers work plan documen�ng the firm’s ability to perform the 
Scope of Services set forth in this RFP. The Proposer must include the following and will be evaluated 
on the demonstra�on of the factor and the quality its submission:  

a) Provide a descrip�on of your company’s capacity and availability to successfully manage a project of
this size
AccuSourceHR has reviewed the scope of work provided by the University Medical Center. Each of the
services requested are core searches common to many client screening programs we support. In
addi�on to employment screening, con�ngent labor screening, and vendor screening.

AccuSourceHR maintains accredita�on by the Professional Background Screening Associa�on (PBSA, 
formally NAPBS) and par�cipates in periodic third-party audits to ensure our security, data management, 
and training processes con�nuously exceed industry standards. Further, AccuSourceHR is dedicated to 
con�nuous investment in technology and process op�miza�on to ensure we remain abreast of industry 
trends and emerging technologies. Through this dedica�on to sustainable con�nued growth, we can 
easily onboard new clients with no nega�ve impact on the high standards of quality we have worked to 
establish. AccuSourceHR has the human and technical resources available through our current staff and 
systems to meet the scope of work and an�cipated processing volumes for the University Medical 
Center. Further, we have established proven processes to quickly scale to add addi�onal resources as our 
overall workload in each department increases as we grow our organiza�on. 

b) A proposed plan to accomplish the Scope of Services
All AccuSouceHR team members are cross-trained and can work in more than one func�onal area. This
allows us to scale up quickly when there is an increase in demand. Addi�onally, our processes are fully
documented with training guidelines for each service enabling us to quickly and consistently train new
staff as we con�nue to grow. These models are frequently u�lized when we engage in large projects with
our current client base and bring in new clients.

c) Proposed solu�on to Owner or Proposer iden�fied challenges
AccuSourceHR’s account management approach ensures the development, implementa�on and success
of our customized programs meet client screening requirements and provide a one-stop solu�on,
reducing client labor and improving overall compliance and risk-mi�ga�on. The University Medical
Center’s Account Manager provides account oversight and maintains regular contact (including quarterly
and/or annual business reviews) to ensure your account con�nues to process at op�mal levels and
provides exper�se in addressing any advanced service or repor�ng requirements. Further, our US-based
Customer Success staff provides addi�onal direct support to client account end users and screening
candidates Monday – Friday, 5:00 am to 5:00 pm PST to ensure standard, rou�ne service needs are
responded to and resolved quickly.

d) Explain your applicant valida�on process
AccuSourceHR offers numerous validations along the applicant information entry process. For example,
we ensure certain required fields are not blank (ex., middle name). We require birthdates not to equal
today's date or a date within this calendar year, validate the length of most documents, utilize OCR to
eliminate rekeying errors, and more.

EXHIBIT A
SCOPE OF WORK 

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 23 of 84
Page 302 of 853



e) Explain the process followed to discon�nue efforts to verify informa�on
Should AccuSourceHR discon�nue efforts to verify informa�on, we will document and provide previous
contact atempts (based on client-defined needs) for the University Medical Center’s review and close
the report. Further, we flag reports that have not been verified by the appropriate source to ensure our
clients have full transparency with their candidates’ results. If a response is received a�er a file has been
completed, AccuSourceHR will reopen the report and complete it with the updated informa�on.

f) Describe methods the company follows to ensure new regula�ons/industry trends
The laws and regulations governing the procurement and use of employment screening reports
continuously evolve in the background screening industry. In addition to new case law developments
involving the application of FCRA and EEOC regulations, individual states and municipalities are
continually enacting new employment law legislation, including Ban the Box laws, Pay Equity legislation,
and new regulations regarding medical and recreational marijuana use. To ensure ongoing compliance
with ever-changing regulation, AccuSourceHR subscribes to numerous information resources, including
PBSA news alerts, CRAHelpdesk, Mondaq newsletters, Lexology, and more to provide varied sources of
information and expert legal opinion on the impact of new case law, legislative changes, and new
regulations. Additionally, we consult with our external expert legal counsel at Seyfarth Shaw, LLP, in
addition to legal resources provided through our extensive network of partners, to remain abreast of
changing compliance requirements in the United States and abroad.

AccuSourceHR maintains a full compliance team headed by our experienced in-house counsel. Upon a 
change in legislation or regulations, they work with our internal teams to ensure they thoroughly 
understand all current compliance requirements. We implement new or updated employee guides and 
workbooks to include relevant information when necessary. In the event of significant change in 
compliance requirements, AccuSourceHR also orchestrates company-wide training to ensure full team 
conformity. 

g) Provide a descrip�on of all services your company provides along with a price list. Please include
services that are provided at no addi�onal cost, pricing for bundled packages (if applicable),
installa�on or start-up fees, pass thru charges including how the charge is accrued, and training costs)
AccuSourceHR provides domestic services in all 50 states and the District of Columbia and global
screening services in over 230 countries and territories worldwide. Global screening service options vary
by country based on local laws and customs. Our standard product offerings include but are not limited
to:
• Multi-Jurisdictional criminal record checks
• Sex offender registries
• County criminal records searches
• Federal criminal records searches
• Social security number traces/verifications/validations
• Motor vehicle searches
• Credit reports
• License/certification validations
• Employment and education verifications
• DOT employment verifications
• Reference verifications

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 24 of 84
Page 303 of 853



• County civil records searches
• Statewide repository criminal records searches
• Office inspector general
• Global homeland security searches
• Integrated national criminal database searches
• Social media searches
• I-9 employment eligibility verifications
• Electronic form I-9s
• Drug testing
• FACIS Level 3 searches
• Healthcare sanctions searches (federal level)
• Pre-adverse and adverse action letters
• Medical assessment testing and vaccination
• National practitioner data bank searches
• Federal civil records searches
• Criminal continuous record monitoring
• Social Security death master index searches

A la carte and bundled pricing can be found in section 11, Research Fees. Additionally, AccuSourceHR is 
waiving our standard setup fee for the University Medical Center. 

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 25 of 84
Page 304 of 853



AccuSourceHR Response to Sec�on 4 – Performance 
Provide the informa�on below and see Appendix B Other Pricing Offered, to fill in pricing for services 
that may not currently be provided but can be added as individual “al-a-carte”. 
The Proposer shall provide a descrip�on of the following:  
a) Company’s past performance on same/similar projects
AccuSourceHR boasts a wealth of exper�se gained with nearly 800 current healthcare organiza�ons. This
diverse spectrum of clients encompasses a wide range of services, including those that align with the
scope men�oned in this Request for Proposal. Our extensive experience within the healthcare sector
equips us with a comprehensive understanding of the industry's regula�ons.

b) Approach to 6-month requirement to implemen�ng the Scope of Services
AccuSourceHR has refined our implementa�on process to ensure efficiency. We proudly assure clients
that the scope of services outlined can effec�vely be delivered within the 6-month requirement. On
average, all services can be requested within a month or less.

c) Plan to work with current provider to transfer data (if necessary) no longer a requirement per
addenda

d) Integrate technology (this must include your firm's �meline required for full system integra�on)
AccuSourceHR has a wide breadth of experience implementing new clients ranging from centralized
single-account organizations to complex, decentralized multi-tier implementations executed with HCM/
ATS integrations. Each implementation project plan is specifically developed to meet individual client
needs based on information gathered during the sales process and the initial implementation planning
meeting. Upon competition of discovery, an implementation plan will be customized to facilitate the
exact timeline and requirements necessary to meet the needs of the University Medical Center. The
University Medical Center has indicated a need for integration with NeoGov. If the integration is desired
at the time of initial implementation, AccuSourceHR will incorporate the additional workflow for the
integration into the overall implementation plan.

Typically, the integration plan is broken down into a 5-step process which includes:
Determination of key contacts and stakeholders (AccuSourceHR platform developers and project 
manager, client staff, and ATS provider, if required)
Assessment of needs and task assignment

Development process - AccuSourceHR serves as the project manager to coordinate the technical 
team's tasks and ensures a smooth implementation and integration process

Integration testing - troubleshoot and resolve issues, if required

Go Live - Following the completion of the integration AccuSourceHR continues to monitor processing and 
workflows to ensure the integration operates optimally and meets end-user/client needs.

The overall implementation process, inclusive of integration can be accomplished over a 15-45 day time 
frame. The required timeline is usually driven by the development/scheduling needs of both the client 
and their ATS provider.

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 26 of 84
Page 305 of 853



e) Describe how your organization measures reports satisfaction and service success
AccuSourceHR measures and reports satisfaction and service success by offering numerous opportunities 
to provide direct feedback, such as cadence calls, surveys, testimonial videos, etc. 
AccuSourceHR engages in two client surveys annually to ensure we are gaining steady feedback from 
clients regarding the quality of the service we provide and overall client satisfaction. Our Net Promoter 
Score or NPS regularly trends at greater than 8 out of 10 based upon a question inquiring whether a client 
would refer a colleague or friend to AccuSourceHR.

f) Provide details on how clients can make comments on your company's performance
AccuSourceHR engages in monthly implementation surveys and two annual client surveys to ensure we 
are gaining steady feedback from clients regarding the quality of the service we provide and overall client 
satisfaction.
Further, AccuSourceHR's account management approach ensures the development, implementation, and 
success of our customized programs meet client screening requirements. UMCSN's Account Manager 
provides account oversight and maintains regular contact (including quarterly or annual business reviews, 
and strategic planning calls) to ensure your account continues to process at optimal levels and provides 
expertise in addressing any advanced service or reporting requirements. Additionally, AccuSourceHR 
maintains an account on G2.com. Clients are encouraged to provide feedback on this platform.

g) This process is cri�cal and temporary inaccessibility, for even a few days, will create a substan�al 
burden for our hiring team. Please provide a detailed descrip�on of your company’s system failure 
con�ngency plan to include backup protocols.
AccuSourceHR's system uptime over the past 12 months is at 99.9%, and no major outages occurred in 
this period. Water, power, telecommunica�ons, and internet connec�vity are designed with redundancy, 
so we can maintain con�nuous opera�ons in an emergency. Electrical power systems are designed to be 
fully redundant so that in the event of a disrup�on, uninterrup�ble power supply units can be engaged 
for certain func�ons, while generators can provide backup power for the en�re facility. People and 
systems monitor and control the temperature and humidity to prevent overhea�ng, further reducing 
possible service outages. The TazWorks pla�orm is a web-based applica�on and would require electricity 
to submit orders. If an unforeseen electronic failure does occur, AccuSourceHR will provide the 
University Medical Center with addi�onal steps that can be taken to transfer database informa�on. A 
copy of AccuSourceHR's emergency response plan is available to clients, upon request.

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 27 of 84
Page 306 of 853



AccuSourceHR Response to Sec�on 10 

A. Organiza�onal Informa�on: 
1. Provide your organiza�on’s name, address, internet URL (if any), telephone and fax numbers. 

Include the name, �tle, direct phone number, address, and email address of the individual who 
will serve as your organiza�on’s primary contact.  

AccuSourceHR, Inc. 
Corporate Address: 
11811 N. Tatum Blvd., Suite 3090 
Phoenix, AZ 85028 
htps://www.accusourcehr.com/ 
Phone #: 888-649-6272 
Primary Contact: Kris�n Fehrenbacher - kfehrenbacher@accusourcehr.com  
 

2. Provide a brief descrip�on of your organiza�on locally, statewide, and na�onally (if applicable). 
AccuSourceHR provides screening services in all 50 states and has access to court records on both a state 
and federal level in every county and district in the United States. We offer a complete suite of 
employment screening services on a na�onwide basis. Although most of our services are available in all 
50 states, some services, such as Statewide criminal database and repository searches, may be restricted 
due to an individual state not suppor�ng a quality resource. AccuSourceHR has developed a "best 
prac�ce" list of available state-specific criminal databases and repository searches to meet most clients' 
needs, ensuring consistent, �mely service delivery. 
 

3. Describe your organiza�on’s history and structure, including partner companies and subsidiary 
rela�onships. 
AccuSourceHR is an ever-expanding organization with sustained revenue growth of greater than 10% 
year over year for the past 5 years. In 2022, our organization grew by more than 450%.  Much of our 
growth has been the result of nurturing key relationships, referrals from satisfied clients, and developing 
trust with human resource professionals who seek out our compliance resources to increase their 
industry compliance knowledge. AccuSourceHR supports an organic growth model and additionally 
engages in acquisitions to the benefit of our overall client base. AccuSourceHR has not engaged in a 
merger in over 10 years. Historically, we have been featured in the Inc. 5000 list of Fastest Growing 
Private Companies in America.  
 
Much of client loyalty and growth is the result of ensuring each client and end-user receives superior 
customer care coupled with the most current, accurate, and legally reportable screening results. Every 
file we process is audited for quality control. We strictly adhere to regula�ons set forth by the Fair Credit 
Repor�ng Act (FCRA), Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC), and all applicable state/local 
laws and ordinances, as well as individual client-defined business rules. We believe taking extra care to 
ensure an individual, quality experience with AccuSourceHR is the key to building long-las�ng trust-
based partnerships with the clients we serve.  

4. Briefly outline your organiza�on’s Mission, Values, and Vision for the future. 
AccuSourceHR has four core values that drive the work that we do each day. These core values are:  
- All-In: We are always team players and put the needs of clients and the company before our own. We 
give 100 percent effort all the time. 

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 28 of 84
Page 307 of 853

https://www.accusourcehr.com/
mailto:kfehrenbacher@accusourcehr.com


- Solutions-Driven: We always strive to solve problems and resolve issues. We think outside of the box 
and are quick to adapt to change. 
- Customer Obsessed: We always listen to our customers and work continuously to personalize the client 
experience. If a client is ever dissatisfied, we engage every possible resource to find a solution. 
- Accountable: We do what we say we will do and uphold our promises and commitments. 

 

5. List any factor known to PROPOSER that could materially impair the ability of PROPOSER to carry 
out its du�es and obliga�ons under this RFP or that could materially affect OWNER’s decision. 
AccuSourceHR currently does not have any known factors that could significantly hinder our capacity to 
fulfill the responsibili�es and obliga�ons outlined in the Request for Proposal. AccuSourceHR is 
commited to carrying out our du�es effec�vely ensuring a posi�ve execu�on of the project as described 
in the RFP. 
6. PROPOSER(S) may indicate if they are a minority-owned business, women-owned business, 
physically challenged business, small business, or a Nevada business enterprise. 
AccuSourceHR is not a minority-owned business, women-owned business, physically challenged 
business, small business, or a Nevada business enterprise.  
7. List all firm demographics, including: 

a. Total number of employees; AccuSourceHR maintains a workforce of 100 employees based in the 
United States. 

b. Total number of women employed; A total of 66 employees within the company are women. 

c. Total number of minori�es employed; There are 24 employees at AccuSourceHR who are 
classified as belonging to minority groups. 

d. Total number of bilingual employees, indicate the language(s) spoken.  
AccuSourceHR has a team of six bilingual employees. Languages include Greek, Tamil, Telugu, 
German, and French, allowing us to facilitate effec�ve communica�on across diverse cultural and 
linguis�c landscapes.  

B. Experience: 
1. Include a brief resume of all similar projects your firm has performed for the past 3-5 years. Each 
project listed shall include the name and phone number of a contact person for the project for review 
purposes. This sec�on shall include documenta�on of PROPOSER’s history of adherence to budget and 
schedule constraints. All firms are encouraged to indicate their experience of performing related work 
within the State of Nevada. 

2. Document your organiza�on’s creden�als, experience, and involvement in the healthcare industry.  

Originally co-founded by a woman with 16 years in the healthcare industry and staffed throughout by 
professionals who have worked extensively in and for healthcare organiza�ons, AccuSourceHR brings 
first-hand knowledge of the University Medical College’s business model and unique needs. Our team 
understands healthcare issues and challenges from the inside perspec�ve and will provide that 
knowledge and skill daily in servicing your account. 

AccuSourceHR holds a strong market share in the $4.2B employment screening industry in the staffing, 
educa�on, healthcare, and general business services industries. We currently support over 800 staffing 
clients, many with applicant tracking system (ATS) integra�ons, complex program and billing support 
requirements, and extensive parent-child account structures. We provide white-glove concierge-level 

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 29 of 84
Page 308 of 853



services with opera�ons and account management staff dedicated to each enterprise-level client. Many 
leadership, management, and supervisory staff members have subject mater exper�se in highly 
regulated industries with an average screening tenure of over 10 years. 

3. List all professional or healthcare industry associa�ons PROPOSER is a member of.
AccuSourceHR is a founding member of the Professional Background Screening Associa�on (PBSA), is 
PBSA accredited, and all our produc�on and client support staff hold PBSA FCRA cer�fica�ons.  

4. Detail your organiza�on’s experience working with other large Medical Centers and/or Healthcare
Systems. 
In addi�on to the references provided, AccuSourceHR collaborates with medical centers of comparable 
size and scope across the healthcare industry. One notable instance can be found in our partnership with 
a healthcare client located in the central United States. This medical center conducts approximately 1900 
annual background screenings. This client has expressed genuine contentment with our services, serving 
as a testament to our ability to consistently meet and exceed expecta�ons.  

AccuSourceHR’s successful collabora�on with medical centers like UMC reflects the trust placed in us by 
our clients and our commitment to providing excep�onal support. 

5. Detail your experience with Joint Commission standards.
Through our collabora�on with numerous healthcare clients, including those subject to The Joint 
Commission's standards, AccuSourceHR has consistently demonstrated our exper�se in delivering 
comprehensive solu�ons that align with the commission's requirements. Our understanding of The Joint 
Commission's protocols, guidelines, and expecta�ons allows us to provide tailored services that 
contribute to the successful accredita�on and ongoing compliance of our healthcare partners. 

AccuSourceHR recognizes the importance of ensuring the necessary qualifica�ons meet the Joint 
Commission’s criteria. By offering specialized screening services, AccuSourceHR helps healthcare 
organiza�ons mi�gate risk and maintain compliance with the Joint Commission’s standards.  

6. References:

*Provide a list of three (3) healthcare client references, preferably of similar size and complexity of

OWNER. Include company name, key contact(s) name, contact phone number, and contact email 

address. 

1. Neighborhood Healthcare
Contact: Sean Campbell – Director, Talent Acquisi�on and HR Opera�ons
Phone: 858-727-9138
Email: Sean.Campbell@nhcare.org

2. Owens&Minor
Contact: Anne Wallace – Sr. Director of HR
Phone: 678-451-8085
Email: anne.wallace@owens-minor.com

3. The University of Texas Rio Grande
Contact: Aubrey Murray – Employee Rela�ons Manager
Phone: 956-665-2991

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 30 of 84
Page 309 of 853

mailto:Sean.Campbell@nhcare.org
mailto:anne.wallace@owens-minor.com


Email: Aubrey.murray@utrgv.edu 

C. Proposed Solu�on: 
1. Provide informa�on concerning the product and/or solu�on you are proposing and how your
solu�on would meet the requirements in Exhibit A. 

a. Discuss implementa�on and training strategies that will be u�lized with product selec�on including
a dra� conversion plan and �metable that would be used for implementa�on. The plan must cover the 
period from award of business through post implementa�on review.  

During the discovery call, we will delve into the details of how our solu�on aligns with the University 
Medical Center’s needs and objec�ves. We'll discuss not only the packages we offer but also how we 
plan to implement the solu�on and provide the necessary training to ensure successful integra�on.  

b. Detail the task responsibili�es and dis�nguish between PROPOSER and OWNER.
AccuSourceHR requests the University Medical Center’s key personnel be available during the ini�al 
setup phase, par�cularly for package configura�on and pla�orm permissions. This collabora�ve effort 
ensures a seamless and tailored experience that aligns with your specific needs and preferences. 

c. List any �me-saving features and benefits of service.
University Medical Center personnel have the op�on to submit background screening requests through 
the TazWorks pla�orm without the need for integra�on, providing a quicker pathway to process their 
tasks. Furthermore, AccuSourceHR offers the convenience of pre-account training, enabling users to 
familiarize themselves with the pla�orm before its full ac�va�on. 

Moreover, AccuSourceHR extends the opportunity for a preliminary mee�ng before the Master Service 
Agreement (MSA) is finalized. This proac�ve step ensures a comprehensive grasp of the available 
packages, enabling tailored account setup well in advance of MSA execu�on. This strategic approach 
streamlines the process and ensures a well-informed and efficient onboarding experience for all par�es 
involved. 

d. List any assump�ons
There are no exis�ng hindrances or assump�ons that would impede our ability to promptly establish and 
implement your account. Our team is fully prepared and equipped to ini�ate the process efficiently, 
working diligently to ensure a �mely and seamless setup. 

e. List any constraints
The integra�on of NeoGov can be a constraint. However, NeoGov integra�on is typically an efficient 
process.  

f. Please describe the top three (3) features and benefits that dis�nguish your service and company
from those of your compe�tors, clear sta�ng why the PROPOSER system is best suited to this RFP. 
What unique capabili�es does your organiza�on offer? How do you stay ahead of your compe��on? 
Our setup process is designed to be highly efficient, with the ability to get your account opera�onal in 
under 3 days, provided we receive the Master Service Agreement (MSA) and all required informa�on 

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 31 of 84
Page 310 of 853



from your end. Once these essen�als are in place, AccuSourceHR swi�ly ini�ates the setup process, 
ensuring seamless and expedited integra�on. 
Our pla�orm boasts robust repor�ng capabili�es, allowing you to access comprehensive insights and 
data analysis to support your decision-making processes. Addi�onally, our integra�on with NeoGov's 
Applicant Tracking System is characterized by its quick and efficient setup.  

D. Account Management:
1. How would your organiza�on service our account? What methods of communica�on would your 
company propose? How many staff members will be assigned to this account and what specifically will 
be their role in suppor�ng us?
During Implementation, AccuSourceHR will assign a dedicated team of professionals to analyze individual 
implementation needs and work closely with your staff to ensure a seamless transition into our easy and 
user-friendly web-based platform.
Key account personnel, including our Customer Success team, are available for live support during 
normal business hours via email, phone, and live chat. AccuSourceHR also supports a chat, applicant 
portal, and resource library on our website, capable of providing answers to many common questions 
24/7/365. AccuSourceHR consistently maintains an average of 95% of all incoming calls answered live by 
our Customer Success team during normal business hours.

2. What is your organiza�on’s implementa�on plan for onboarding our account?
 A full description of AccuSourceHR's implementation plan can be found in Section 8, Technology and 
System Capabilities, question e. 

3. Detail what components and how many complete background checks could be cleared on a daily
basis. What would be the expected turnaround �mes associated with your services? (Please
specify for both bundled packages and al-a-carte.)
AccuSourceHR's average turnaround �me for all services conducted is 1-3 days. This includes a-la-carte
and bundled packages. Our most recently published average turnaround �me company-wide is 2.67
days. AccuSourceHR always strives to complete each screening file in the shortest �me feasible while
maintaining quality and compliance standards.

4. Explain how the informa�on obtained on the applicant is validated?

AccuSourceHR utilizes a minimum of two (2) matching identifiers, including name (first and last name, 
including middle name as applicable), date of birth, driver’s license number, social security number, and 

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 32 of 84
Page 311 of 853



current or previous address history to validate if a record found is associated with the subject of the 
background screen.  
 
If an individual’s name is on the US Census Bureau List of Common Names, validation of the record for 
reporting requires three (3) matching identifiers. 
 

5. Specify how the informa�on on the candidate is acquired; what systems are used? 
Unless a service requested specifically (by service defini�on) requires a database search, AccuSourceHR 
will first atempt to complete the search or verifica�on through the direct record source. If a direct 
source is unavailable, AccuSourceHR will inves�gate other methods and sources available to facilitate the 
comple�on of the service. For example, suppose the direct contact for an employment verifica�on 
request outsources their employment verifica�ons to a third-party data provider. In that case, we will 
seek verifica�on from the data provider as it is the only available source of verifica�on. However, 
suppose the source for employment or educa�on verifica�on is unresponsive. In that case, we will 
review other poten�al sources of verifica�on by calling the corporate office or school district directly to 
complete the verifica�on. If we uncover a possible record on a criminal database product, we will work 
to confirm the record at the direct source (o�en the county or federal district court). In all instances, 
AccuSourceHR strictly adheres to FCRA guidelines in addi�on to any state or local repor�ng guidelines 
for all records contained in consumer reports. 
 
6. Specify at what point you discon�nue efforts in atemp�ng to verify informa�on? 
We generally make at least three (3) attempts to contact a reference, employer, etc. The number of 
attempts is negotiable based on client-defined business rules. 
 

7. How do you stay on top of new regula�ons/trends within the industry and how do you inform your 
clients?  
AccuSourceHR also strives to ensure ongoing compliance training and support is available to all client 
partners. We offer bi-annual compliance webinars to ensure the availability of training in new 
regulations and industry trends. Our webinars also provide client partners with complimentary Human 
Resources Certification Institute (HRCI) and Society of Human Resource Managers (SHRM) continuing 
education credits. Additionally, AccuSourceHR provides regular blog content on evolving compliance 
legislation and screening best practices. 
 

8. Advise if third-party vendors are used to conduct any aspect of the background? If so, please specify 
under what condi�ons they would be used. 
AccuSourceHR, Inc. will not subcontract any portion of the work specified in the scope of work 
requested by the University Medical Center. As needed, we utilize independent court researchers for 
direct court records searches unavailable online.  
 
9. Describe how your organiza�on measures and reports client sa�sfac�on and service success. How 
can clients make comments on your organiza�on’s service? 
AccuSourceHR assesses customer satisfaction through the following methods: 
Client survey 
Strategic account specialists 
Strategic planning calls 
Direct feedback from customers 

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 33 of 84
Page 312 of 853



 
Additionally, we proactively monitor accounts for changes in the number of requests and other more 
subtle communications that may hint at underlying difficulties or challenges. Ultimately, AccuSourceHR 
strives to maintain clean and transparent communication channels to ensure client satisfaction and will 
go above and beyond to support our clients and their needs. 

10. Provide a sample of invoice and report templates. Please provide a copy of a sample service level 
agreement. 
Atached AccuSourceHR has provided a copy of our standard invoice. The TazWorks pla�orm allows for 
extensive customiza�on of invoices.  
The atached sample reports are accessible through the TazWorks pla�orm. These comprehensive 
reports offer valuable insights into various aspects of pending and completed background screening 
requests.  
Included among these reports are: 
Hit Ra�o Report: This report provides a summary of the results from background screenings, specifically 
focusing on the occurrence of "hits" and "no hits" in the context of the informa�on being checked. 

Product U�liza�on Report: Track the usage and performance of products that have been ordered within 
the TazWorks pla�orm. 

Status Report: Stay informed about the current state of background screening reports, providing a 
snapshot of progress, and iden�fying areas that may require aten�on. 

Time Service Report: Monitor and evaluate the efficiency of service delivery. 

 

E. Services Provided and Fee Structure: 
a. Complete the Pricing Table listed on page 9 to indicate what type of services your organiza�on offers  
and pricing of such service.  
Please see atached pricing. 
 
b. Describe the products and services that are included in your organiza�on’s standard pricing? 
Provide sufficient levels of detail to iden�fy what service levels and what products are included in this 
pricing. 
AccuSourceHR’s pricing structure is designed to provide full transparency and easy iden�fica�on of 
service costs. Price adjustments (price increases) are very infrequent and are only implemented when 
processing costs (driven by market condi�ons) for a single service component or group of components 
rise significantly, crea�ng the need to increase the client cost for the service. An example is when a 
significant rise in overall na�onal healthcare service costs necessitated increased substance abuse 
tes�ng service costs to accommodate increases in laboratory processing and specimen collec�on fees. 
Each drug tes�ng component required a $3.00 increase in service rate. Clients were 
provided with a 30-day no�ce of the increase in wri�ng, and the $3.00 increase was applied evenly to 
each client’s base rate for each drug tes�ng component in their program, preserving any volume 
discount or coopera�ve agreement preferred pricing rates established for each affected client. 

Periodically, court data access fees, motor vehicle record access fees, third-party database access fees 
(for employers and educa�onal ins�tu�ons outsourcing record management), and other data access fees 
may increase with limited no�ce. These are levied by individual data sources (for example, a county 

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 34 of 84
Page 313 of 853



superior court or state department of motor vehicles) and are always billed to clients at pass-through 
cost without markup. Whenever possible, upon no�fica�on of a fee increase by the data provider, 
AccuSourceHR immediately no�fies clients of both the amount of the pass-through fee increase and the 
effec�ve date. Please note, an increase in pass-through fees normally has industry-wide and is not 
unique to AccuSourceHR. 

To the fullest extent possible, AccuSourceHR is commited to preserving nego�ated contract rates for 
coopera�ve agreements and preferred pricing contracts for the full term of the contract and generally 
only seek to increase a nego�ated service rate under the market condi�ons iden�fied above. 

AccuSourceHR can create infinite package op�ons based on client needs. Single services can be grouped 
for ease of selec�on and promo�on of compliance for end-users. Addi�onally, packages aligned with a 
specific search scope (i.e., 7 years of criminal history for all true names, 5 years of employment history) 
can be included in a single package for cost efficiency and ease of use. When a package based on specific 
search scopes is requested, AccuSourceHR relies on defined averages and single service base cost to 
iden�fy the price for each service in the package. 

c. Does your company offer bundled packages? If so, please list such packages, what is included and 
the pricing. 
AccuSourceHR works with each client to develop a program and scope of work specific to individual 
client needs. We can create custom screening packages and support an a la carte menu of single product 
search components. Clients may add additional search components to an existing package as needed. 
The client can define both individual product components and bundled service package needs during the 
onboarding and implementation process and further adjust to meet evolving requirements throughout 
the life of the account. We have the industry expertise to provide best practice recommendations to 
ensure compliance and meet your company's needs. 
 
d. Advise of any pass thru charges OWNER may experience; and specify under what condi�ons such 
charges may occur? 
AccuSourceHR includes contract pricing in the scope of work for each client. Additionally, the terms and 
conditions of each Client Master Services Agreement (or MSA addendum when client-owned contracts 
are required) clearly define contract pricing and any applicable cooperative agreement pricing. Should a 
client add additional services post-implementation, any pricing addendums further reference applicable 
cooperative agreement pricing as well as clearly define pricing for each added service. AccuSourceHR’s 
billing software and order processing platform (TazWorks) are integrated to ensure that client-specific 
pricing established in the TazWorks platform is reflected in each billing invoice. Invoices are configurated 
to show package or individual service component pricing and any applicable pass-through fees 
attributed to each screening file ordered, and billing detail is associated with each screening candidate’s 
name and file number. 
 

e. What products or services do you provide free of charge, if any? 
In the event of a consumer dispute, AccuSourceHR conducts a reasonable reinves�ga�on, free of charge, 
to determine if the dispute has merit and if correc�on is warranted in full compliance with FCRA 
requirements. We will complete the reinves�ga�on process and further correct and/or delete any 
inaccurate disputed informa�on within 30 days. Addi�onal value-add ons can be found in Sec�on F. 
 

f. Provide pricing for volunteer checks. 

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 35 of 84
Page 314 of 853



AccuSourceHR can assist UMCSN with volunteer checks. AccuSourceHR will work with UMCSN to 
customize and create a volunteer check package to meet your specific needs. An example volunteer 
package can be found on Atachment B, Scope of Services and Fee Schedule. 
 
g. What is the cost for semi-annual sanc�on checks for employees?  
AccuSourceHR offers various levels of op�ons for sanc�on checks to cater to diverse client needs, which 
are as follows:  

• Sanc�onSource Level 1 - federal exclusions sanc�ons and debarment databases including 
OIG/GSA/SAM, OFAC and state Medicaid sanc�on databases.  

o Primary name based on Social Security Trace semi-annual check is $2.50 per employee.  
o All true names based on Social Security Trace semi-annual check is $3.75 per employee.  

 
• Sanc�onSource Level 3 – federal exclusions sanc�ons and debarment databases including 

OIG/GSA/SAM, OFAC, and state Medicaid sanc�on databases. As well as state licensing and 
board disciplinary ac�on data for all 50 states.  

o Primary name based on Social Security Trace semi-annual check is $5.00 per employee. 
o All true names based on Social Security Trace semi-annual check is $7.50 per employee. 

 
h. Do you offer webinars to your clients? If so, is there an addi�onal fee? 
AccuSourceHR believes in crea�ng strong partnerships with each client and suppor�ng their training 
needs beyond system usage. We offer ongoing live and recorded webinars covering topics central to the 
needs of the human resources community to ensure they remain up to date on changing legal 
regula�ons and responsibili�es as well as industry best prac�ces. Many webinars are cer�fied for 
con�nuing educa�on credit by the Society of Human Resources Management (SHRM) and the Human 
Resources Cer�fica�on Ins�tute (HRCI.)  
All webinars are provided to clients free of charge. 

i. Does your services provide integra�on with Applica�on Management Systems? i.e., NeoGov. 
Yes, AccuSourceHR can provide integra�on with AMS such as NeoGov. There is a one-time fee for 
integration with the NeoGov platform. This fee is billed at the time of integration.  
 
j. Provide an outline of your Pass Through fees. 
Periodically, court data access fees, motor vehicle record access fees, third-party database access fees 
(for employers and educational institutions outsourcing record management), and other data access 
fees may increase with limited notice. These are levied by individual data sources (for example, a county 
superior court or state department of motor vehicles) and are always billed to clients at pass-through 
cost without markup. Whenever possible, upon notification of a fee increase by the data provider, 
AccuSourceHR immediately notifies clients of both the amount of the pass-through fee increase and the 
effective date. Please note, an increase in pass-through fees normally is industry-wide and is not unique 
to AccuSourceHR. 
 

F. Value Adds: 
Indicate in detail any value-added programs that will realized as a result of awarding this contract to 
your organiza�on. Provide examples where possible. 
AccuSourceHR includes a range of value-added services that enhance the experience, including:  

• Customer Success - Dedicated account manager with backup support 5:00 am – 5:00 pm PST. 
Telephone and email support.  

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 36 of 84
Page 315 of 853



• AccuSourceHR Proprietary Verifica�on Process - Daily verifica�on atempt on different days and 
�mes. Comple�on rate 98%.  

• Account Implementa�on - Customized account implementa�on.  
• Best Prac�ces  
Review of current screening program with best prac�ces recommenda�ons.  
Adjudica�on matrix consulta�on and assistance.  
Legal updates and development affec�ng the screening industry.  
• Training - Web-based system training for new users.  
• TazWorks 
Secure 24/7 online account management, report ordering, and retrieval.  
Unlimited system users, controlled permissions based upon user rights, and customized packages.  
Online compliance report tools.  
Single-click pre-adverse/adverse ac�on leters.  
Duplicate order checking.  
Automa�c e-mail alerts upon report comple�on.  
Customizable order entry required fields to ensure required data capturing for specific situa�ons.  
• QuickApp - With this tool, recruiters can minimize their workload by transferring all the data 

entry transac�ons to the applica�ons. QuickApp helps you avoid order-entry errors and liabili�es 
by having the applicant complete all the data entry necessary for the requested background 
checks services as well as all the required consent forms.   

• Quality Control & Compliance - Review every report by our Q/C team for accuracy and 
compliance per FCRA and other federal, state, and local requirements.  

• User-friendly Management Reports - You can access a variety of self-service reports in real-�me 
that allows you to keep track of the various aspects of your screening program such as 
turnaround �me, previous orders, costs, invoices, etc.  

• E-Signature Feature - This feature saves you �me and reduces the recruiter's workload 
substan�ally when it comes to processing and storing the paper release forms.  

• Integrated Drug and Background Screening Reports - All drug screening results are integrated 
with our easy-to-read background screening reports. You can review the results of the drug test 
and background check simultaneously in one loca�on. 

G. Other 
Other factors PROPOSER determines appropriate which would indicate to OWNER that PROPOSER has 
the necessary capability, competence, and performance record to accomplish the project in a �mely 
and cost-effec�ve manner. 
AccuSourceHR gives the technology and best people support. Since our incep�on in 1999, we’ve 
balanced offering the latest in technology resources with providing direct, consistent, and suppor�ve 
client care because we understand your business is unique and you deserve a customized solu�on 
tailored to your needs.  
 

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 37 of 84
Page 316 of 853



 
 

Service Level Agreements 

1 | P a g e  
 

Customer Service 
KPI Benchmark Commitment Impact Remedy 

Availability and 
Administrative Support 

AccuSourceHR will be available to Client 
with administrative support 6am-5pm 
PST. 

• AccuSourceHR will provide single point 
of contact for Administrative Support. 

• AccuSourceHR must respond to Client 
telephone or email inquiries within 2 
hours (during hours of operation). 

High 

• AccuSourceHR will resolve any repeated issue 
users raise that Client deems critical to meet 
commitment within 30 days. 

• Client will have the right to request removal of 
any associate from Client account. 

Invoicing 100% of monthly invoices submitted will 
be accurate to rate. 

• AccuSourceHR will submit to bi-annual 
audit 

 
 

High • AccuSourceHR will refund any discrepancy 
proved to be within invoicing system. 

Timely Invoicing Invoices will be submitted to Client by 
___ each month. 

• AccuSourceHR will provide monthly 
invoice. 

• AccuSourceHR will submit to audit at 
the discretion of Client. 

High • AccuSourceHR will remedy any late invoicing 
immediately. 

Customer Satisfaction AccuSourceHR will meet customer 
satisfaction rate. 

• If requested, AccuSourceHR and Client 
will jointly create customer satisfaction 
survey and will survey end users on a 
mutually agreed upon time frame and 
provide Client reports on data 
collected. 

• AccuSourceHR will achieve a customer 
satisfaction rate of 90% or higher 
(customer is defined as a Client’ end 
user). 

High 
• AccuSourceHR will resolve any repeated issue 

that users raise that Client deems critical to 
meet commitment within 30 days. 

Delivery of End Product AccuSourceHR will deliver reports 
according to defined commitment. 

• 80% of reports will be returned in 24-
72 hours from investigation start date.  
Exceptions: (factors outside of 
AccuSourceHR’s control, including but 
not limited to, holidays, court closures, 
natural disasters or other 
governmental procedures limiting 
AccuSourceHR’s performance). If a 
report is delayed, AccuSourceHR will 
provide for notification to client 
through the SourceDirect platform. 

High 

• AccuSourceHR will provide a monthly analysis 
of why SLA was not met, submit a plan for 
improvement and will implement the plan 
within 30 days. 

User Maintenance New users will be set up within 24 hours 
of initial request. 

• User will have platform access within 1 
hour of set up. 

Medium 
• AccuSourceHR will provide plan to improve 

turnaround time and will implement within 30 
days. 

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 38 of 84
Page 317 of 853



 
 

Service Level Agreements 

2 | P a g e  
 

KPI Benchmark Commitment Impact Remedy 
• AccuSourceHR will allocate staff to ensure 

technical support personnel are sufficient to 
meet SLA. See Footnote 1. 

 

Process 
KPI Benchmark Commitment Impact Remedy 

Receipt of new request 
from Client 

• All requests submitted to 
AccuSourceHR by 12:00 noon PST 
will enter into the AccuSourceHR 
system and start the same business 
day; requests submitted after 12:00 
pm PST will enter AccuSourceHR 
system the same day but may start 
the following business day. 

• If request is reviewed by 
AccuSourceHR, and there is missing 
information, AccuSourceHR will 
notify Client requestor within 2 
hours. 

• As recorded in the Web site. Medium 

• AccuSourceHR will provide analysis of why SLA 
was not met, plan for improvement and will 
implement plan within 30 days. 

• AccuSourceHR will staff to ensure that this SLA 
is met. See Footnote 1. 

Authorization of services 
provided 

• AccuSourceHR will only provide 
services identified and authorized on 
request form or submitted through 
SourceDirect platform. 

 

• Client will monitor services provided by 
AccuSourceHR, to ensure compliant 
with policies and authorized by Client. 

• Client will provide monthly report of 
service errors identified by Client to 
AccuSourceHR. 

Medium 

• AccuSourceHR will credit Client for cost 
incurred for services not authorized by Client.  

• AccuSourceHR will provide analysis of why SLA 
was not met, plan for improvement and will 
implement plan within 30 days. 

Ad Hoc Reporting, and 
Customized Reporting 
Tool for Client 

• AccuSourceHR will investigate and 
respond to Client within one week (5 
business days) for any reporting 
requests. 

• AccuSourceHR will agree to make 
any changes that Client deems 
business critical. 

• AccuSourceHR will advise as to the 
impact of implementation of a 
feature that will prohibit future 
upgrades. 

• Client will maintain a prioritized list of 
reporting requests and review this list 
monthly with AccuSourceHR. 

• AccuSourceHR will provide quarterly 
report identifying the requests in 
process and implementation time 
frames. 

• AccuSourceHR will provide analysis of 
any requested change with respect to 
future upgradability. 

Medium 

• AccuSourceHR will provide analysis of why SLA 
was not met and will provide plan for future 
improvement. AccuSourceHR will implement 
plan within 30 days. 

• AccuSourceHR will staff to ensure that this SLA 
is met. See Footnote 1. 

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 39 of 84
Page 318 of 853



 
 

Service Level Agreements 

3 | P a g e  
 

 
Hosting 

KPI Benchmark Commitment Impact Remedy 

Availability 

99.9% uptime (excluding scheduled 
maintenance windows) 7 days a week, 
24 hours per day 
 
 

• AccuSourceHR will provide monthly 
report on request. 

Critical 

• AccuSourceHR will provide analysis of why SLA 
was not met, plan for improvement and will 
implement the plan within 30 days.   

• AccuSourceHR will upgrade server, and any 
required equipment, at own expense. 

Concurrent Users 
Application will support unlimited 
concurrent users without any 
degradation of speed, functionality, etc. 

• AccuSourceHR will provide reports to 
Client as requested showing 
concurrent users.  

High 

• AccuSourceHR will upgrade server(s) to level 
that can accommodate user load. 

• AccuSourceHR will provide detailed 
documentation within 48 hours on planning for 
load support when new user additions are 
planned/scheduled or there has been a 
degradation of speed as it relates to Client 
customers. 

Notification 

AccuSourceHR will contact Client by 
email or other acceptable means within 
15 minutes when it has been 
determined that the application will be 
unavailable for more than 15 minutes, 
24 x 7. 

• AccuSourceHR will provide notification 
following an incident defining cause 
and remedy. 

High 
• AccuSourceHR will provide analysis of why SLA 

was not met, plan for improvement and will 
implement plan within 30 days. 

 

Application 
KPI Benchmark Commitment Impact Remedy 

Future Enhancements 

• AccuSourceHR will investigate and 
respond to Client within one week (5 
business days) for any requested 
changes to the application.  
AccuSourceHR will agree to make 
any changes that Client deems 
business critical. 

• AccuSourceHR will advise as to the 
impact of implementation of a 
feature that will prohibit future 
upgrades. 

• Client will keep list of requested 
business critical changes; 
AccuSourceHR will provide quarterly 
report of those changes and 
implementation time frames. 

• AccuSourceHR will provide analysis of 
any requested change with respect to 
future upgradability. 

High 

• AccuSourceHR will provide analysis of why SLA 
was not met and will provide plan for future 
improvement. AccuSourceHR will implement 
plan within 30 days. 

• Changes that are software driven, must adhere 
to a mutually agreed upon timeline by 
AccuSourceHR and Client. 

• AccuSourceHR will staff to ensure that this SLA 
is met. See Footnote 1. 

1. Volume - Fluctuation in monthly volume of greater than 50% may have an impact on certain aspects of the SLA. Failure to provide prior notification of substantial changes in volume 
may void certain elements of the SLA. 

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 40 of 84
Page 319 of 853



AccuSourceHR’s Response to Sec�on 6 – Staffing / Project Team  
Provide an explana�on of the Proposer’s project management structure and key personnel, and/or 
subconsultants, for the services. It should include the following: 
a) An iden�fica�on of the proposed Project Manager and other key personnel (project staff) who will 
be responsible, with resumes (limited to one page per person) describing their qualifica�ons for each 
posi�on. 
The University Medical Center will be provided with a National Account Manager, Shelly Reeder. Shelly 
will be a dedicated point of contact for client program administration personnel and advanced client 
end-user needs. Our US-based customer service team supports the account manager for standard client 
end-user and applicant support needs. AccuSourceHR logs all customer service requests through our 
CRM, which allows all information to be stored and tracked in one location. Shelly will be responsible for 
regular auditing of support request tickets to identify patterns that need process improvement or 
additional end-user training. She also maintains a direct partnership with the primary contact(s) at the 
University Medical Center to ensure each account continues to operate at optimal efficiency. Clients are 
engaged in quarterly and annual account reviews to ensure any challenges are identified quickly and 
corrective action is taken to ensure resolution. 
 
Shelly Reeder, National Account Manager  
Shelly Reeder has over 10 years of employment screening industry account management experience. 
Shelly is a dedicated professional with a passion for client success. She plays a key role in client 
fulfillment, senior-level account management, and overall client satisfaction in the portfolio of accounts 
she manages. at a high level to ensure satisfaction and retention while clearly and concisely 
communicating the client's needs to assist in the growth not only of the customer but of our 
partnership. 
 
The University Medical Center’s dedicated sales manager is Kristin Fehrenbacher. Should the University 
Medical Center want to discuss any aspect of our services, Kristin will be readily available to aid and 
address your needs.  
 
Kristin Fehrenbacher, Regional Sales Manager  
Kristin joined AccuSourceHR in November 2021. She has over 22 years of sales and customer support 
experience, including 12 years of experience in the background screening industry. Kristin is well-versed 
in a broad variety of screening products and services and has extensive knowledge of best-practice 
solutions for a wide array of industries. She holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Business 
Administration from California State University, Sacramento, and maintains a basic FCRA certification 
through PBSA. 
 
b) Indica�on of the present workload of the project staff to demonstrate their ability to devote 
sufficient �me to meet the proposed schedule.  
AccuSourceHR is a growing organiza�on, and we con�nuously expand our client base yearly by double 
digit growth. We maintain dedicated processes to recruit and onboard new staff members. Each new 
team member undergoes a rigorous training program to ensure our high-quality standards are achieved 
in each service we provide. Addi�onally, all team members are cross-trained into more than one 
func�onal role to ensure we can adjust staff as needed to meet the needs of special projects and/or 
significant growth in client screening volume.   
 
c) A descrip�on of the role and responsibili�es of each of the key personnel (or sub-consultant) 

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 41 of 84
Page 320 of 853



UNC’s Account Manager also monitors turn-around-�me (TAT) trends, enabling her to provide insigh�ul 
analysis and recommenda�ons for op�miza�on. They stay abreast of emerging industry trends and 
innova�ons. As an integral part of our commitment to ongoing learning and improvement, they ac�vely 
par�cipate in regular webinars and training sessions. 
Addi�onally, each client's Account Manager is assisted by the Customer Success team members who 
directly support all common end user and candidate needs. The Customer Success team elevates any 
specialized needs to the Account Manager for �mely support and/or resolu�on. 
 
The Customer Success team will receive training on the established Scope of Work for your program and 
will support the University Medical Center end users on issues including login concerns, status updates, 
technical issues, requests for rush orders, and general ques�ons concerning individual screening reports. 
Addi�onally, this team is available to the University Medical Center applicants to assist with any 
ques�ons related to comple�ng their profile, technical issues, or dispute concerns. 
 
d) A descrip�on of the project team’s experience in working together on similar work. 
Over 60% of AccuSourceHR staff have greater than 3 years of longevity with AccuSourceHR, and our 
leadership team has an average industry tenure of 17 years. Many of our team members have worked 
together for numerous years crea�ng a great dynamic and synergy of dedicated individuals jointly 
focused on providing best-in-class care and results. 
 

 

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 42 of 84
Page 321 of 853



AccuSourceHR’s Response to Sec�on 8 – Technology and System 
Capabili�es 
UMC seeks a technology-based solu�on in the performance of background checks for applicants. Once 
the system has been implemented, it is expected that the program will undergo an audit of 25 (files, 
records, invoices, etc.) no less than Quarterly (monthly, quarterly, semi-annually, or annually) to 
determine effec�veness, needs for upda�ng or changes, poten�al need for termina�on, or other 
circumstances.  
a) Provide an overview of your company’s system, infrastructure, ability to integrate with UMC
systems, and so�ware capabili�es. Include details on how each are applies as a proposed solu�on. 
AccuSourceHR maintains advanced technological capabili�es through our TazCloud™ pla�orm and our  
ATS integra�ons. For the submission and receipt of reports, UMC can u�lize our  
TazCloud™ pla�orm, or an integra�on such as NeoGov. More informa�on about TazCloud™ can be  
found below.  
TazCloud™ is an easy-to-use system designed to accommodate a wide variety of client requirements. The 
intui�ve online system contains features that help manage complex needs of large organiza�ons, as well  
as the simple requirements of smaller companies. Upon system login, UMC will only be a  
few clicks away from u�lizing a world-class screening solu�on that will afford you an amazing user  
experience. Some of the most impressive features of our extremely configurable and fully customizable  
system include:  
• Jurisdic�on look-up and selec�on tools
• Duplicate order checking
• Controlled permissions based upon user rights
• Automa�c email alerts upon report comple�on
• Customizable required fields for order entry
• Electronic acknowledgment and capture of disclosure and consent documents
• Integrated adverse ac�on

b) Explain system constraints. Include throughput, response �me, and CPU u�liza�on, etc.
TazCloud™ maintains a 99% up�me record. When network maintenance is scheduled, TazCloud 
announces them in advance. Whenever possible, all system maintenance occurs on weekends and 
evenings a�er hours to ensure minimal disrup�on to clients. TazCloud has incident response and 
escala�on procedures in place to address and manage unexpected incidents. Addi�onal informa�on can 
be found in TazCloud’s SOC2 report.  

c) Provide a high-level overview and technical summary of system implementa�on and integra�on
with exis�ng UMC systems 
AccuSourceHR has an exis�ng NeoGov integra�on with the TazCloud™ pla�orm. Addi�onally, we have 
technology resources available through our technology partners for supported integra�on projects. 
AccuSourceHR has a dedicated implementa�on team that oversees implementa�on and integra�on 
projects.  

d) Specify network requirements
The machines hos�ng the services are protected inside a private network and password protected. 
Access to these machines is limited to users, and access is limited to very few IP/Mac addresses. The end 
users opera�ng the TazWorks pla�orm to carry out services are protected in a private network at the 

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 43 of 84
Page 322 of 853



office. They might be connected to personal networks while working remotely, but their data protec�on 
consists of NGAV and Cloud filtering services to prevent access to unauthorized or malicious websites. 
 
e) Provide a �meline from No�ce of Award to “Go-live”  
The following is the project plan outlined for University Medical Center. 
 
Week 1 - Ini�al Planning Mee�ng 
• The intent of this mee�ng is to review project scope, determine specific client needs supported 
through the integra�on and evalua�on of account structure requirements (decentralized or centralized 
• Obtain account-specific detail – company structure, loca�on informa�on, and user hierarchy 
• Iden�fy specific product availability to system users (any restric�ons in service package(s) and a la carte 
services for a specific user or user group) 
• Determine all required ordering processes and processes for returning screening results. 
• Iden�fy invoicing needs and billing requirements including the addi�on of any cost center codes 
• Review integra�on needs in prepara�on for ini�a�ng the integra�on process 
• Establish service goals and define expecta�ons 
• Introduc�on of a dedicated Senior Na�onal Account Manager 
• Determine end-user training requirements 
• Establish a Defini�ve plan for the following: 
• Tasks to facilitate the implementa�on plan 
• Assign Responsibility and deadline assignments based on the tasks required. 
• If integra�on will be facilitated in tandem with implementa�on, determine stakeholders and set 
integra�on �meline and develop a project plan 
• Set go-live date and document training needs 
• Success planning and client agreement on both implementa�on and integra�on project plans 
 
Weekly Milestone Calls 
Following the assignment of tasks determined during the implementa�on planning mee�ng 
AccuSourceHR will host a series of milestone calls to ensure both the implementa�on and integra�on, if 
required, remain on schedule. 
If an integra�on is facilitated in tandem with the implementa�on plan, then AccuSourceHR will manage 
required integra�on status calls simultaneously to the implementa�on process and will combine the calls 
when appropriate. 
• Defini�ve Plan for milestone check-ins 
• Set agenda and review assigned tasks 
• Determine unresolved tasks and �melines for comple�on managing back to the established go-live 
date 
• Assign addi�onal tasks as needed and track progress on task lists 
• Iden�fy incomplete tasks and establish a �meline for comple�on 
 
Cri�cal Ac�on Mee�ng 
A few weeks prior to the comple�on of the implementa�on project, AccuSourceHR will host a call to 
ensure all tasks are scheduled for comple�on in support of the established go-live date. 
• Cri�cal ac�on topics 
• Review any implementa�on tasks pending comple�on and establish a plan for comple�on 
• Account implementa�on status review 

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 44 of 84
Page 323 of 853



Review and execu�on of training plan, and establish the schedule for makeup training, if required. Post 
Cri�cal ac�on mee�ng, AccuSourceHR will meet with our internal teams to provide an account briefing 
on client-specific processes and account business rules. 
 
Go-Live 
Shortly before the go-live date, AccuSourceHR will coordinate a call with key University Medical Center 
contacts to review processes and ensure all tasks were completed as defined. AccuSourceHR’s 
implementa�on and account management teams will coordinate efforts for an internal hand-off from 
implementa�on management to pos�mplementa�on. 
account management. The University Medical Center’s dedicated Na�onal Account Manager will provide 
strategic partnership support to ensure the facilita�on of an efficient screening program. 
 
f) Provide an overview of system training op�ons 
Before start-up, all users will be trained on our web-based system during implementa�on. Post-
implementa�on, AccuSourceHR will provide ongoing web-based training, webinars, and consulta�ons 
upon client request at no addi�onal charge. In addi�on to the training men�oned above and educa�on 
opportuni�es, AccuSourceHR also maintains numerous resources, such as industry-specific blog posts 
and webinars, to keep clients informed and engaged. 
 
g) Describe any specialized hardware or so�ware requirements that must be purchased or upgraded 
prior to implementa�on 
Any change to major business processes or processing so�ware must be reviewed by the AccuSourceHR 
leadership team and approved by AccuSourceHR’s CEO. Changes to processing so�ware must be tested 
in a controlled test environment with errors iden�fied and corrected before going live. All integra�ons 
with client ATS/HRIS pla�orms undergo a similar tes�ng process prior to going live. Only IT development 
personnel and integra�ons staff have access to implement upgrades and changes in the produc�on 
environment. 
 
h) Iden�fy in-house IT staff requirements 
AccuSourceHR’s Security Policy has been the subject of numerous third-party audits measuring 
standards to prevent external threat penetra�on, protec�on of sensi�ve data (including PII and health 
records), and security of confiden�ality and privacy. This includes audits by independent TransUnion, 
Equifax, and PBSA auditors. AccuSourceHR has never failed an audit, and any auditor recommenda�ons 
will always be addressed with high priority. Further, AccuSource’s IT network meets HIPAA compliance as 
we use Microso� E3 Enterprise with advanced threat protec�on and ac�ve directory premium. All 
outgoing emails with sensi�ve or confiden�al data are encrypted, and incoming emails containing the 
same are subject to advanced security protec�on, mee�ng defined HIPAA standards. 
AccuSourceHR maintains both Business Partner and confidentiality agreements with any vendor who 
may access consumer Personally Identifiable Information (PII) or client data. The very nature of the 
screening process requires certain parties to have access to consumer PII to successfully provide quality 
research results. Consumer and client protection is strictly supported by ensuring clear agreement on 
the use and handling of PII and other sensitive data is communicated and ensured by every person who 
touches the data including AccuSourceHR staff and vendors. Third-party vendors and contractors may 
include collection facilities, credit bureaus, clinics, court researchers, our platform provider, TazWorks, 
and more. Each third-party agrees to support clearly defined, commercially acceptable practices and 
system protections in an overall effort to ensure end-to-end protection of PII and sensitive healthcare 
records. 
 

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 45 of 84
Page 324 of 853



I) Process for implemen�ng system upgrades and changes
Requests for system upgrades and changes should be submited to AccuSourceHR by Account Manager 
or Customer Success. Those requests will be submited to TazWorks, a MeridianLink Company, which 
owns the InstaScreen pla�orm.  

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 46 of 84
Page 325 of 853



AccuSourceHR Response to Sec�on 9 – Invoicing, Repor�ng, and 
Record Keeping 
1. INVOICING 

A. The company shall invoice UMC on a Monthly basis. The invoice shall list the following: 

• Date, order number, candidate name, last 4 digits of social security number, requestor (UMC 
employee), type of report, and fee for each fulfilled order. 

• Invoice date, number of reports month-to-date, number of reports year-to-date, total due 
Billing is generated monthly following the placement of screening orders. At the close of each month, 
AccuSourceHR generates invoices based on the orders that have been placed. Invoices may be mailed or 
sent to clients electronically. Most clients elect to receive invoices via an electronic format. Invoices 
contain a listing of all fees and services processed in addition to the candidate's name, along with the 
requestor on the file. If desired, department or reference codes may be utilized to segment costs for 
easy allocation to specific cost centers. AccuSourceHR has the capability to include the date, order 
number, candidate name, last 4 digits of social security number, requestor, type of report, and fee for 
each fulfilled order. Invoices can be exported to Excel for easy sorting and departmental allocation by 
the client. 
  
AccuSourceHR has extensive invoicing capabilities and can customize our invoicing/billing processes to 
meet client needs. This will be established/noted during the Account Implementation phase if a client 
requires a specific invoice type. We can customize invoice processes according to invoice type, 
frequency, distribution locations, and other unique factors defined by individual client need. 
Additionally, we can provide individual invoices to each department/location with a master bill to 
accounting or bill accounts payable directly with a single invoice segmenting each department 
subaccount. AccuSourceHR strives to ensure the support of client processes. 
 
B. Provide a sample of your company’s invoice  
AccuSourceHR has atached a sample of our invoice for your reference. Our invoicing capabili�es are 
highly adaptable to meet the unique needs of our clients. Whether you require specific modifica�ons, 
addi�onal details, we have the exper�se to tailor our invoicing system to align with the University 
Medical Center’s requirements.  
 

2. REPORTING 

A. Provide templates of reports your company will provide  
Atached are several of our standard reports that are available through the TazWorks pla�orm including 
a Hit Ra�o Report, Product U�liza�on Report, Status Report, and Time Service Report. Addi�onal 
informa�on regarding these reports can be found in Sec�on D of this RFP. 
 
B. Provide a template of your company’s standard service Agreement AccuSourceHR has atached a 
copy of our Master Service Agreement. AccuSourceHR requires all clients to sign a Master Service 
Agreement to ensure agreement on the terms and condi�ons of our rela�onship and an understanding 
of required compliance and use standards. 

3. RECORD KEEPING 

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 47 of 84
Page 326 of 853



A. Provide a detailed explana�on of your company’s record keeping methods (ex: Length of �me 
records are maintained, Security procedures to safeguard informa�on, Technology based systems and 
capabili�es)
All files are purged three (3) years a�er the order comple�on date. Clients are provided access to the 
system for 90 days a�er they terminate service, allowing them to pull their reports from the system. 
Upon request, AccuSourceHR can accommodate client specific record retention policies.
AccuSourceHR places a high level of priority on data privacy and overall security. We con�nuously invest 
in resources to prevent high publicity threats such as viruses, denial of service atacks, and other 
malicious ac�vi�es over the internet, as well as to maintain the integrity and confiden�ality of sensi�ve 
applica�on data such as credit reports, social security numbers, and other iden�fying informa�on. The 
development staff uses industry-leading technology to secure TazWorks and its opera�ng environment, 
including client authen�ca�on (password-controlled access), Secure Sockets layer (SSL) protocol, 256-bit 
data encryp�on, public-private key pair, firewalls, intrusion detec�on, filtering routers, and data backups. 
Each component acts as a layer of protec�on to safeguard informa�on from unauthorized users, 
deliberate malfeasance, and inadvertent loss. 

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 48 of 84
Page 327 of 853



Doe, John $30.75 $18.00 $48.75PRO-2013-00000001 

PRO-2013-00000002 $30.75 $5.00 $35.75

# of Profiles:# of Profiles: 2 Retail Price:Retail Price: $61.50

Fees:Fees: $23.00

Invoice Total:Invoice Total: $84.50

Please RemitPlease Remit $84.50$84.50

For Profiles CompletedFor Profiles Completed
2021-04-01 00:00:00 - 2021-04-30 23:59:59

Invoice DateInvoice Date
05/01/2021

Invoice #Invoice #
17000

AccuSourceHR, Inc.
11811 N. Tatum Blvd., Suite 3090
Phoenix, AZ 85028

ACME General
1 Main Street
Purcellville, VA 20132

InvoiceInvoice
SummarySummary

Accounting CodeAccounting Code ApplicantApplicant Profile NumberProfile Number Retail PriceRetail Price FeesFees Total CostTotal Cost

Page 1 of 1

Acme, Jane

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 49 of 84
Page 328 of 853



Hit Ratio Report
Search Centric Report for Investigative Searches Grouped By Client (ACME Test Company).  
Start Date: 9/1/2020 End Date: 9/30/2020

Applicant Client Name Referred By Date Completed Jurisdiction Search Type Hit File Number Date Ordered Order Type
SAMPLE, JOE ACME Test Company 9/5/2020 NATIONWIDE Sex Offender Records Search NO 632683 9/5/2020 employment
SAMPLE, JOE ACME Test Company 9/6/2020 IL-MADISON County Criminal Records Search NO 632683 9/5/2020 employment
SAMPLE, JOE ACME Test Company 9/6/2020 IL-SAINT CLAIR County Criminal Records Search NO 632683 9/5/2020 employment
SAMPLE, JOE ACME Test Company 9/6/2020 ILLINOIS SOUTHERN Federal Criminal Records Search NO 632683 9/5/2020 employment
SAMPLE, JOE ACME Test Company 9/5/2020 NATIONWIDE National Criminal Database Search NO 632683 9/5/2020 employment
MODEL, MICHAEL ACME Test Company 9/20/2020 NATIONWIDE Sex Offender Records Search NO 636527 9/20/2020 employment
MODEL, MICHAEL ACME Test Company 9/20/2020 NATIONWIDE National Criminal Database Search NO 636527 9/20/2020 employment
MODEL, MICHAEL ACME Test Company 9/20/2020 MO-JEFFERSON County Criminal Records Search NO 636527 9/20/2020 employment
MODEL, MICHAEL ACME Test Company 9/20/2020 MISSOURI EASTERN Federal Criminal Records Search NO 636527 9/20/2020 employment
TRIAL, THERESA  ACME Test Company 9/24/2020 IL-SAINT CLAIR County Criminal Records Search NO 636871 9/21/2020 employment
TRIAL, THERESA  ACME Test Company 9/21/2020 ILLINOIS SOUTHERN Federal Criminal Records Search NO 636871 9/21/2020 employment
TRIAL, THERESA  ACME Test Company 9/21/2020 NATIONWIDE National Criminal Database Search NO 636871 9/21/2020 employment
TRIAL, THERESA  ACME Test Company 9/21/2020 NATIONWIDE Sex Offender Records Search NO 636871 9/21/2020 employment
TRIAL, THERESA  ACME Test Company 9/21/2020 MO-SAINT LOUIS County Criminal Records Search NO 636871 9/21/2020 employment
TRIAL, THERESA  ACME Test Company 9/24/2020 IL-MADISON County Criminal Records Search NO 636871 9/21/2020 employment
TRIAL, THERESA  ACME Test Company 9/21/2020 MISSOURI EASTERN Federal Criminal Records Search NO 636871 9/21/2020 employment
TEST, TOMMY ACME Test Company 9/14/2020 MISSOURI EASTERN Federal Criminal Records Search NO 635252 9/14/2020 employment
TEST, TOMMY ACME Test Company 9/20/2020 NATIONWIDE National Criminal Database Search YES 635252 9/14/2020 employment
TEST, TOMMY ACME Test Company 9/14/2020 NATIONWIDE Sex Offender Records Search NO 635252 9/14/2020 employment
TEST, TOMMY ACME Test Company 9/14/2020 MO-SAINT LOUIS County Criminal Records Search NO 635252 9/14/2020 employment
TEST, TOMMY ACME Test Company 9/20/2020 MO-SAINT LOUIS CITY County Criminal Records Search YES 635252 9/14/2020 employment
TEST, TOMMY ACME Test Company 9/18/2020 IL-MADISON County Criminal Records Search YES 635252 9/14/2020 employment
TEST, TOMMY ACME Test Company 9/14/2020 ILLINOIS SOUTHERN Federal Criminal Records Search NO 635252 9/14/2020 employment
MOCKUP, MICHAEL ACME Test Company 9/5/2020 NATIONWIDE National Criminal Database Search NO 632664 9/5/2020 employment
MOCKUP, MICHAEL ACME Test Company 9/5/2020 MISSOURI EASTERN Federal Criminal Records Search NO 632664 9/5/2020 employment
MOCKUP, MICHAEL ACME Test Company 9/5/2020 MO-SAINT LOUIS County Criminal Records Search NO 632664 9/5/2020 employment
MOCKUP, MICHAEL ACME Test Company 9/5/2020 NATIONWIDE Sex Offender Records Search NO 632664 9/5/2020 employment
MOCKUP, MICHAEL ACME Test Company 9/7/2020 GA-NEWTON County Criminal Records Search NO 632664 9/5/2020 employment
MOCKUP, MICHAEL ACME Test Company 9/5/2020 GEORGIA NORTHERN Federal Criminal Records Search NO 632664 9/5/2020 employment
MOCKUP, MICHAEL ACME Test Company 9/5/2020 MO-SAINT LOUIS CITY County Criminal Records Search NO 632664 9/5/2020 employment
WITNESS, WHITNEY LYNN ACME Test Company 9/21/2020 MISSOURI EASTERN Federal Criminal Records Search NO 636798 9/21/2020 employment
WITNESS, WHITNEY LYNN ACME Test Company 9/21/2020 NATIONWIDE Sex Offender Records Search NO 636798 9/21/2020 employment
WITNESS, WHITNEY LYNN ACME Test Company 9/21/2020 MO-SAINT LOUIS CITY County Criminal Records Search NO 636798 9/21/2020 employment
WITNESS, WHITNEY LYNN ACME Test Company 9/21/2020 NATIONWIDE National Criminal Database Search NO 636798 9/21/2020 employment
WITNESS, WHITNEY LYNN ACME Test Company 9/21/2020 MO-SAINT LOUIS County Criminal Records Search NO 636798 9/21/2020 employment
APPLICANT, AMY B. ACME Test Company 9/17/2020 MO-SAINT LOUIS County Criminal Records Search NO 635431 9/17/2020 employment
APPLICANT, AMY B. ACME Test Company 9/17/2020 NATIONWIDE Sex Offender Records Search NO 635431 9/17/2020 employment
APPLICANT, AMY B. ACME Test Company 9/17/2020 MISSOURI EASTERN Federal Criminal Records Search NO 635431 9/17/2020 employment
APPLICANT, AMY B. ACME Test Company 9/17/2020 NATIONWIDE National Criminal Database Search NO 635431 9/17/2020 employment
APPLICANT, AMY B. ACME Test Company 9/17/2020 MO-SAINT CHARLES County Criminal Records Search NO 635431 9/17/2020 employment
ANTHONY, SUSAN B. ACME Test Company 9/25/2020 IL-MADISON County Criminal Records Search NO 637185 9/24/2020 employment
ANTHONY, SUSAN B. ACME Test Company 9/24/2020 NATIONWIDE National Criminal Database Search NO 637185 9/24/2020 employment
ANTHONY, SUSAN B. ACME Test Company 9/24/2020 NATIONWIDE Sex Offender Records Search NO 637185 9/24/2020 employment
ANTHONY, SUSAN B. ACME Test Company 9/24/2020 ILLINOIS SOUTHERN Federal Criminal Records Search NO 637185 9/24/2020 employment
CANDIDATE, CASEY ACME Test Company 9/20/2020 MO-SAINT LOUIS County Criminal Records Search NO 636545 9/20/2020 employment
CANDIDATE, CASEY ACME Test Company 9/20/2020 NATIONWIDE National Criminal Database Search NO 636545 9/20/2020 employment

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 50 of 84
Page 329 of 853



PROBATION, PENELOPE ACME Test Company 9/5/2020 NATIONWIDE Sex Offender Records Search NO 632458 9/5/2020 employment
PROBATION, PENELOPE ACME Test Company 9/5/2020 MISSOURI EASTERN Federal Criminal Records Search NO 632458 9/5/2020 employment
PROBATION, PENELOPE ACME Test Company 9/5/2020 MO-SAINT LOUIS CITY County Criminal Records Search NO 632458 9/5/2020 employment
PROBATION, PENELOPE ACME Test Company 9/5/2020 NATIONWIDE National Criminal Database Search NO 632458 9/5/2020 employment
EXHIBIT, ELENA ACME Test Company 9/6/2020 IL-SAINT CLAIR County Criminal Records Search NO 632427 9/5/2020 employment
EXHIBIT, ELENA ACME Test Company 9/5/2020 NATIONWIDE Sex Offender Records Search NO 632427 9/5/2020 employment
EXHIBIT, ELENA ACME Test Company 9/5/2020 ILLINOIS SOUTHERN Federal Criminal Records Search NO 632427 9/5/2020 employment
EXHIBIT, ELENA ACME Test Company 9/5/2020 NATIONWIDE National Criminal Database Search NO 632427 9/5/2020 employment
EXHIBIT, ELENA ACME Test Company 9/5/2020 MO-SAINT LOUIS CITY County Criminal Records Search NO 632427 9/5/2020 employment
EXHIBIT, ELENA ACME Test Company 9/5/2020 MISSOURI EASTERN Federal Criminal Records Search NO 632427 9/5/2020 employment
SUBPOENA, SANDRA LEE ACME Test Company 9/24/2020 MO-SAINT LOUIS CITY County Criminal Records Search NO 637231 9/24/2020 employment
SUBPOENA, SANDRA LEE ACME Test Company 9/24/2020 MISSOURI EASTERN Federal Criminal Records Search NO 637231 9/24/2020 employment
SUBPOENA, SANDRA LEE ACME Test Company 9/24/2020 MO-SAINT LOUIS County Criminal Records Search NO 637231 9/24/2020 employment
SUBPOENA, SANDRA LEE ACME Test Company 9/24/2020 NATIONWIDE National Criminal Database Search NO 637231 9/24/2020 employment
SUBPOENA, SANDRA LEE ACME Test Company 9/24/2020 NATIONWIDE Sex Offender Records Search NO 637231 9/24/2020 employment
SUB TOTAL     Records: 163   Yes Records (Hits): 4   No Records: 159

Total Subjects: 163 Yes Records: 4 Hit Ratio: 2.45%
No Records: 159

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 51 of 84
Page 330 of 853



Product Utilization Report
Report Type: Search
Start Date: 9/1/2020

Client Code Person Search
County Criminal 
Records Search

State Criminal 
Court Search

Federal Criminal 
Records Search

International 
Criminal Records 

Search

State Criminal 
Database Search

National Criminal 
Database Search

Sex Offender 
Records Search

Employment 
Verification

DOT Drug, 
Alcohol & Safety 

History 
Verification

Education 
Verification

Instant Driving 
Records

Quality Assured

ACME Test Company 1-ACME 15 27 0 27 0 0 27 27 15 1 12 3 1
ACME Test Company - Midwest 7 15 1 16 1 1 15 15 10 2 8 2 0
ACME Test Company - New York/East 4 8 0 10 0 0 10 10 12 0 6 1 2
ACME Test Company - Texas 3 9 2 9 2 2 9 9 9 0 7 2 0
Totals 29 59 3 39 3 3 61 61 46 3 33 8 3

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 52 of 84
Page 331 of 853



Status Reporting
Client Name: ACME Test Company 
Including Sub-Clients
Incomplete Reports

Client Name Ordered File Name DOB Reference Processor Status Days Client Code Client Create Date Optional Field 1 Optional Field 2 Optional Field 3 Notes
ACME Test Company 9/15/2020 621126 SAMPLE, JOE 2/9/1995 926 Sally Staff QA Review 7 1-ACME 2/17/2015
ACME Test Company 9/28/2020 624051 MODEL, MICAHEL 9/12/1996 214 Sally Staff Pending 6.75 1-ACME 2/17/2015
ACME Test Company 9/28/2020 625206 TRIAL, THERESA 10/1/1979 1595 Sally Staff Pending 9.75 1-ACME 2/17/2015
ACME Test Company 9/28/2020 625587 TEST, TOMMY 2/24/1997 336 Sally Staff Pending 8.5 1-ACME 2/17/2015
ACME Test Company 10/3/2020 626371 MOCKUP, MICHAEL 1/21/1995 259 Sally Staff Pending 5.75 1-ACME 2/17/2015
ACME Test Company 10/3/2020 626447 WITNESS, WHITNEY LYNN 4/5/1963 907 Sally Staff Pending 5 1-ACME 2/17/2015
ACME Test Company 10/3/2020 626504 APPLICANT , AMY B. 5/23/1973 846 Sally Staff QA Review 4.5 1-ACME 2/17/2015
ACME Test Company 10/3/2020 626556 ANOTHONY, SUSAN B. 3/10/1977 1533 Sally Staff Pending 4 1-ACME 2/17/2015
ACME Test Company 10/3/2020 627377 CANDIDATE, CASEY 6/9/1980 923 Sally Staff Pending 4 1-ACME 2/17/2015
ACME Test Company 10/3/2020 627834 MISFORTUNE, MATTHEW 10/8/1963 930 Steve Staff QA Review 4 1-ACME 2/17/2015
ACME Test Company 10/4/2020 627957 DEFENDANT, DANIEL T. 7/23/1993 82 Steve Staff Pending 4 1-ACME 2/17/2015
ACME Test Company 10/4/2020 628025 RECORDS, ROBERT 6/11/1961 37 Sally Staff Pending 3.75 1-ACME 2/17/2015
ACME Test Company 10/5/2020 628092 SUBJECT, STACY LANE 11/25/1991 709 Steve Staff Pending 3.75 1-ACME 2/17/2015
ACME Test Company 10/5/2020 628331 DOCKET, DEBORAH 2/25/1999 931 Sally Staff QA Review 3 1-ACME 2/17/2015
ACME Test Company 10/5/2020 628686 VENUE, VALERIE ANN 5/3/1963 100 Sally Staff Pending 3 1-ACME 2/17/2015
ACME Test Company 10/6/2020 628750 JURY, JESSICA M. 2/4/1977 1832 Sally Staff Pending 2.75 1-ACME 2/17/2015
ACME Test Company 10/7/2020 628859 BAIL, BARBARA 3/26/1991 614 Steve Staff Pending 2 1-ACME 2/17/2015
ACME Test Company 10/8/2020 628938 PAROLE, PATRICIA 8/3/1990 18043 Sally Staff Pending 2 1-ACME 2/17/2015
ACME Test Company 10/9/2020 629134 AFFIDAVIT, ALEXANDER P. 9/19/1992 1531 Steve Staff Pending 1.75 1-ACME 2/17/2015
ACME Test Company 10/9/2020 629258 CLAIM, COREY JOHN 12/6/1977 808 Sally Staff QA Review 1.75 1-ACME 2/17/2015
ACME Test Company 10/10/2020 629633 DISMISSAL, DAVID 5/3/1999 480 Sally Staff Pending 1.5 1-ACME 2/17/2015
ACME Test Company 10/10/2020 629784 REGISTAR, RYAN A. 7/3/1985 66 Sally Staff Pending 1.5 1-ACME 2/17/2015
ACME Test Company 10/10/2020 629787 EMPLOYMENT, EMMA 7/13/1965 18053 Sally Staff Pending 3.25 1-ACME 2/17/2015
ACME Test Company 10/10/2020 629964 OUTLAW, OLIVIA 12/19/1992 926 Sally Staff Pending 3 1-ACME 2/17/2015
ACME Test Company 10/10/2020 629978 JUDGE, JUDITH LEAH 6/23/1992 160 Sally Staff Pending 3 1-ACME 2/17/2015
ACME Test Company 10/10/2020 630008 PROSECUTION, PAUL 5/28/1963 1587 Sally Staff Pending 3 1-ACME 2/17/2015
ACME Test Company 10/11/2020 630034 SUMMONS, SAVANNAH SUE 2/22/1995 1435 Steve Staff Pending 3 1-ACME 2/17/2015
ACME Test Company 10/11/2020 630209 TRANSCRIPT, TIMOTHY 2/2/1978 185 Steve Staff Pending 2.75 1-ACME 2/17/2015
ACME Test Company 10/11/2020 630284 VERDICT, VERONCIA 5/23/1990 1610 Sally Staff Pending 2.5 1-ACME 2/17/2015
ACME Test Company 10/11/2020 630323 HEARING, HEATHER Z. 4/2/1994 336 Sally Staff Pending 2.5 1-ACME 2/17/2015
ACME Test Company 10/12/2020 630384 PROBATION, PENELOPE 1/23/1992 63 Sally Staff Pending 2 1-ACME 2/17/2015
ACME Test Company 10/12/2020 630389 EXHIBIT, ELENA 5/12/1998 479 New 2 1-ACME 2/17/2015
ACME Test Company 10/12/2020 630398 SUBPOENA, SANDRA LEE 1/19/1985 1777 New 2 1-ACME 2/17/2015
ACME Test Company 10/12/2020 642314 ACQUITTAL, AMBER 6/30/1994 419 Sally Staff Pending 1.75 1-ACME 2/17/2015
ACME Test Company 10/12/2020 642322 ADMISSIBLE, ANDREW DAVID 2/4/1960 112 Steve Staff Pending 1.75 1-ACME 2/17/2015
ACME Test Company 10/12/2020 642325 CAPITAL, CHARLES 7/28/1994 1055 Sally Staff Pending 1 1-ACME 2/17/2015
ACME Test Company 10/12/2020 642326 LAW, LARRY 12/17/1993 63 New 1 1-ACME 2/17/2015
ACME Test Company 10/12/2020 642327 COLLATERAL, CYNTHIA RAE 1/17/1973 143 Sally Staff Pending 1 1-ACME 2/17/2015
ACME Test Company 10/12/2020 642334 DEBTOR, DEBBIE 11/25/1981 496 Sally Staff Pending 1 1-ACME 2/17/2015
ACME Test Company 10/12/2020 642335 EQUITY, EDWARD 1/16/1965 262 Sally Staff Pending 1.75 1-ACME 2/17/2015
ACME Test Company 10/12/2020 642364 APPEAL, ARTHUR A. 9/23/1982 1801 Client Message 1.75 1-ACME 2/17/2015 PENDING: Additional information is needed from the applicant in order to proceed with this service.
ACME Test Company 10/12/2020 642366 LIEN, LAWRENCE 2/6/1990 129 Sally Staff Pending 1.75 1-ACME 2/17/2015
ACME Test Company 10/12/2020 642369 SETTLEMENT, SALLY 7/18/1989 21 Sally Staff Pending 1.75 1-ACME 2/17/2015
ACME Test Company 10/12/2020 642371 TORT, THOMAS PETER 10/31/1988 830 Sally Staff Pending 1.75 1-ACME 2/17/2015
ACME Test Company 10/12/2020 642387 UPHOLD, URSELA 7/31/1995 74 Sally Staff Pending 1.75 1-ACME 2/17/2015
ACME Test Company 10/12/2020 642496 CREDIT, KARMA JANE 12/31/1985 64 Sally Staff Pending 1.75 1-ACME 2/17/2015
ACME Test Company 10/12/2020 642497 MISDEMEANOR, MARY ROSE 11/14/1980 774 Sally Staff Pending 0.75 1-ACME 2/17/2015
ACME Test Company 10/12/2020 642509 FRAUDULENT, FRANK S. 6/27/1993 719 Sally Staff Pending 0.75 1-ACME 2/17/2015
ACME Test Company 10/13/2020 642510 IMPEACHMENT, ISSAC 9/24/1957 10105 Sally Staff Pending 0.75 1-ACME 2/17/2015
ACME Test Company 10/13/2020 642521 JURISPRUDENCE, JANICE 5/11/1988 105 Sally Staff Pending Review (Vendor) 0.75 1-ACME 2/17/2015
ACME Test Company 10/13/2020 642530 MISTRIAL, MARVON 1/10/1985 768 Sally Staff New 0.75 1-ACME 2/17/2015
ACME Test Company 10/13/2020 642545 OPINION, OSCAR 11/26/1997 1832 Sally Staff Pending 0.75 1-ACME 2/17/2015
ACME Test Company 10/13/2020 642552 PETITION, PATRICA IVY 7/20/1999 374 Sally Staff Pending 0.75 1-ACME 2/17/2015
ACME Test Company 10/13/2020 642640 SANCTION, SAUL 3/17/1991 1610 Sally Staff Pending 0.5 1-ACME 2/17/2015
ACME Test Company 10/13/2020 642666 TRUSTEE, TAYLOR 12/5/1981 566 Sally Staff QA Review 0.5 1-ACME 2/17/2015
ACME Test Company 10/13/2020 642668 LIQUIDATION, LAURA C. 12/30/1975 37 Sally Staff Pending 0.5 1-ACME 2/17/2015
ACME Test Company 10/13/2020 642677 MOOT, MICHAEL LEE 11/20/1988 803 Sally Staff Pending 0.5 1-ACME 2/17/2015
ACME Test Company 10/13/2020 642679 HEARSAY, HERSHEL K. 6/21/1981 1590 Sally Staff Pending 0.5 1-ACME 2/17/2015
ACME Test Company 10/13/2020 642686 EVIDENCE, EVIE GRACE 10/29/1995 186 Sally Staff Pending 0.5 1-ACME 2/17/2015
ACME Test Company 10/13/2020 642690 EXECUTORY, EDMOND ALAN 6/5/1966 1803 Sally Staff QA Review 0.5 1-ACME 2/17/2015
ACME Test Company 10/13/2020 642696 INJUCTION, IMELDA Q. 4/8/1992 840 Sally Staff Pending 0.5 1-ACME 2/17/2015
Sub-Total Reports: 61

Total Reports: 116

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 53 of 84
Page 332 of 853



Time Service Report - Completed by Report
Start Date: 9/1/2020 End Date: 9/30/2020 Include Subclients: Yes Exclude Weekends: Yes
Client Name Product File Number Applicant Invite Date XML or Applicant Ready Date Started Processed out of Queue Pending Review Date Complete Date Expired Date Add to Order Date QA Review Date Referred By Monthly Income Monthly Debt Monthly Rent Desired Unit Proposed Position Proposed Salary Billable Cost Code Job Code Job Location Employment State Applicant Time App Ready Time Agency Time QA Time Total Time Optional Field 1 Optional Field 2 Optional Field 3
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Basic Package: United States 631942 9/1/2020 5:04 9/1/2020 5:04 9/1/2020 5:04 9/5/2020 15:38 9/5/2020 15:13 N/A 0.00 days 2.65 days 0.02 days 2.65 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 631943 9/1/2020 8:06 9/1/2020 8:06 9/1/2020 8:06 9/14/2020 9:36 9/5/2020 11:53 9/14/2020 8:06 N/A 0.00 days 9.40 days 0.06 days 9.40 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 631944 9/1/2020 8:57 9/1/2020 8:57 9/1/2020 8:57 9/4/2020 17:09 9/4/2020 11:50 N/A 0.00 days 1.71 days N/A 1.71 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 631946 9/1/2020 9:17 9/1/2020 9:17 9/1/2020 9:17 9/5/2020 15:07 9/5/2020 11:20 N/A 0.00 days 2.63 days N/A 2.63 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 631947 9/1/2020 9:33 9/1/2020 9:33 9/1/2020 9:33 9/5/2020 9:21 9/4/2020 9:21 9/5/2020 9:17 N/A 0.00 days 2.39 days 0.00 days 2.39 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 631949 9/1/2020 11:24 9/1/2020 11:24 9/1/2020 11:24 9/6/2020 14:56 9/4/2020 9:21 N/A 0.00 days 3.62 days N/A 3.62 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 631950 9/1/2020 11:40 9/1/2020 11:40 9/1/2020 11:40 9/4/2020 17:12 9/4/2020 11:46 N/A 0.00 days 1.72 days N/A 1.72 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 631953 9/1/2020 12:15 9/1/2020 12:15 9/1/2020 12:15 9/6/2020 7:03 9/5/2020 11:56 N/A 0.00 days 3.29 days N/A 3.29 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 631954 9/1/2020 13:06 9/1/2020 13:06 9/1/2020 13:06 9/26/2020 10:32 9/4/2020 11:43 9/26/2020 10:30 N/A 0.00 days 17.44 days 0.00 days 17.44 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 631955 9/1/2020 13:46 9/1/2020 13:46 9/1/2020 13:46 9/4/2020 17:06 9/4/2020 9:36 N/A 0.00 days 1.71 days N/A 1.71 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 631957 9/1/2020 14:12 9/1/2020 14:12 9/1/2020 14:12 9/4/2020 17:06 9/4/2020 9:18 N/A 0.00 days 1.71 days N/A 1.71 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 631958 9/1/2020 14:12 9/1/2020 14:12 9/1/2020 14:12 9/4/2020 17:19 9/4/2020 11:25 N/A 0.00 days 1.72 days N/A 1.72 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 631959 9/1/2020 14:17 9/1/2020 14:17 9/1/2020 14:17 9/5/2020 15:07 9/5/2020 11:21 N/A 0.00 days 2.63 days N/A 2.63 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 631960 9/1/2020 14:22 9/1/2020 14:22 9/1/2020 14:22 9/4/2020 17:17 9/4/2020 11:31 N/A 0.00 days 1.72 days N/A 1.72 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 631961 9/1/2020 15:18 9/1/2020 15:18 9/1/2020 15:18 9/10/2020 9:41 N/A 0.00 days 5.40 days N/A 5.40 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 631965 9/1/2020 16:14 9/1/2020 16:14 9/1/2020 16:14 9/4/2020 21:15 9/4/2020 9:33 N/A 0.00 days 1.89 days N/A 1.89 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Pre-Promotion Package: United States 631969 9/1/2020 19:57 9/1/2020 19:57 9/1/2020 19:57 9/5/2020 18:40 N/A 0.00 days 2.78 days N/A 2.78 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 631971 9/1/2020 20:18 9/1/2020 20:18 9/1/2020 20:18 9/5/2020 21:48 9/4/2020 12:02 N/A 0.00 days 2.91 days N/A 2.91 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 631973 9/1/2020 20:53 9/1/2020 20:53 9/1/2020 20:53 9/4/2020 17:13 9/4/2020 9:16 N/A 0.00 days 1.72 days N/A 1.72 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 631975 9/2/2020 6:50 9/2/2020 6:50 9/2/2020 6:50 9/5/2020 4:33 9/4/2020 9:16 N/A 0.00 days 2.19 days N/A 2.19 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 631977 9/2/2020 10:49 9/2/2020 10:49 9/2/2020 10:49 9/4/2020 17:19 9/4/2020 9:15 N/A 0.00 days 1.72 days N/A 1.72 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 631979 9/2/2020 11:09 9/2/2020 11:09 9/2/2020 11:09 9/4/2020 17:13 9/4/2020 9:14 N/A 0.00 days 1.72 days N/A 1.72 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Full + MVR Package: United States 631981 9/2/2020 11:34 9/2/2020 11:34 9/2/2020 11:34 9/10/2020 12:13 9/10/2020 11:49 N/A 0.00 days 5.51 days 0.02 days 5.51 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 631983 9/2/2020 13:15 9/2/2020 13:16 9/2/2020 13:16 9/4/2020 17:09 9/4/2020 9:13 N/A 0.00 days 1.71 days N/A 1.71 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 631987 9/2/2020 18:25 9/2/2020 18:25 9/2/2020 18:25 9/5/2020 11:15 9/4/2020 11:04 N/A 0.00 days 2.47 days N/A 2.47 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Full + MVR Package: United States 631991 9/3/2020 8:59 9/3/2020 8:59 9/3/2020 8:59 9/7/2020 10:42 9/4/2020 9:28 9/7/2020 10:37 N/A 0.00 days 4.07 days 0.00 days 4.07 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 631992 9/3/2020 9:34 9/3/2020 9:34 9/3/2020 9:34 9/4/2020 17:17 9/4/2020 11:42 N/A 0.00 days 1.32 days N/A 1.32 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Pre-Promotion Package: United States 631996 9/3/2020 11:16 9/3/2020 11:16 9/3/2020 11:16 9/6/2020 14:56 9/4/2020 14:39 N/A 0.00 days 3.15 days N/A 3.15 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632006 9/3/2020 13:58 9/3/2020 13:58 9/3/2020 13:58 9/6/2020 16:38 9/4/2020 9:12 9/6/2020 16:02 N/A 0.00 days 3.11 days 0.02 days 3.11 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632007 9/3/2020 14:08 9/3/2020 14:08 9/3/2020 14:08 9/5/2020 9:33 9/4/2020 9:12 N/A 0.00 days 1.81 days N/A 1.81 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632012 9/3/2020 16:46 9/3/2020 16:46 9/3/2020 16:46 9/4/2020 21:12 9/4/2020 9:11 N/A 0.00 days 1.18 days N/A 1.18 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Basic Package: United States 632013 9/3/2020 17:22 9/3/2020 17:22 9/3/2020 17:22 9/4/2020 17:19 N/A 0.00 days 1.00 days N/A 1.00 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632014 9/3/2020 18:02 9/3/2020 18:02 9/3/2020 18:02 9/4/2020 17:34 9/4/2020 10:53 N/A 0.00 days 0.98 days N/A 0.98 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632015 9/3/2020 19:43 9/3/2020 19:43 9/3/2020 19:43 9/4/2020 16:09 9/4/2020 9:09 N/A 0.00 days 0.85 days N/A 0.85 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632016 9/3/2020 19:54 9/3/2020 19:54 9/3/2020 19:54 9/6/2020 10:22 9/5/2020 12:00 9/6/2020 10:09 N/A 0.00 days 2.60 days 0.01 days 2.60 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632017 9/3/2020 20:04 9/3/2020 20:04 9/3/2020 20:04 9/11/2020 11:19 9/6/2020 13:29 N/A 0.00 days 5.64 days N/A 5.64 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632045 9/4/2020 7:17 9/4/2020 7:17 9/4/2020 7:17 9/5/2020 20:00 9/4/2020 10:47 N/A 0.00 days 1.53 days N/A 1.53 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632059 9/4/2020 7:59 9/4/2020 7:59 9/4/2020 7:59 9/5/2020 8:29 9/4/2020 10:45 N/A 0.00 days 1.02 days N/A 1.02 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632068 9/4/2020 8:15 9/4/2020 8:15 9/4/2020 8:15 9/5/2020 18:35 9/4/2020 10:42 N/A 0.00 days 1.43 days N/A 1.43 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632069 9/4/2020 8:15 9/4/2020 8:15 9/4/2020 8:15 9/5/2020 15:40 9/5/2020 11:22 9/5/2020 15:24 N/A 0.00 days 1.31 days 0.01 days 1.31 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632077 9/4/2020 8:57 9/4/2020 8:57 9/4/2020 8:57 9/4/2020 16:32 9/4/2020 9:04 N/A 0.00 days 0.32 days N/A 0.32 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632080 9/4/2020 9:03 9/4/2020 9:03 9/4/2020 9:03 9/5/2020 15:07 9/5/2020 11:22 N/A 0.00 days 1.25 days N/A 1.25 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: Puerto Rico 632082 9/4/2020 9:08 9/4/2020 9:08 9/4/2020 9:08 9/13/2020 16:38 9/5/2020 17:02 N/A 0.00 days 7.31 days N/A 7.31 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632083 9/4/2020 9:13 9/4/2020 9:13 9/4/2020 9:13 9/5/2020 10:58 9/4/2020 9:31 N/A 0.00 days 1.07 days N/A 1.07 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632084 9/4/2020 9:13 9/4/2020 9:13 9/4/2020 9:13 9/5/2020 8:39 9/4/2020 12:46 N/A 0.00 days 0.98 days N/A 0.98 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632091 9/4/2020 9:34 9/4/2020 9:34 9/4/2020 9:34 9/10/2020 9:39 N/A 0.00 days 4.00 days N/A 4.00 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Basic Package: United States 632096 9/4/2020 9:44 9/4/2020 9:44 9/4/2020 9:44 9/4/2020 17:12 N/A 0.00 days 0.31 days N/A 0.31 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632105 9/4/2020 9:54 9/4/2020 9:54 9/4/2020 9:54 9/4/2020 17:25 9/4/2020 11:19 N/A 0.00 days 0.31 days N/A 0.31 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632106 9/4/2020 9:54 9/4/2020 9:54 9/4/2020 9:54 9/5/2020 18:40 9/4/2020 12:48 N/A 0.00 days 1.37 days N/A 1.37 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Basic Package: United States 632107 9/4/2020 9:55 9/4/2020 9:55 9/4/2020 9:55 9/9/2020 14:09 9/4/2020 10:38 N/A 0.00 days 3.59 days N/A 3.59 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632112 9/4/2020 10:16 9/4/2020 10:16 9/4/2020 10:16 9/6/2020 8:36 9/4/2020 12:43 N/A 0.00 days 1.93 days N/A 1.93 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632113 9/4/2020 10:16 9/4/2020 10:16 9/4/2020 10:16 9/4/2020 17:15 9/4/2020 11:17 N/A 0.00 days 0.29 days N/A 0.29 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632114 9/4/2020 10:21 9/4/2020 10:21 9/4/2020 10:21 9/4/2020 17:03 9/4/2020 11:16 N/A 0.00 days 0.28 days N/A 0.28 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632120 9/4/2020 10:32 9/4/2020 10:32 9/4/2020 10:32 9/6/2020 9:25 9/4/2020 15:14 N/A 0.00 days 1.95 days N/A 1.95 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632121 9/4/2020 10:32 9/4/2020 10:32 9/4/2020 10:32 9/19/2020 14:06 9/4/2020 12:25 9/19/2020 13:12 N/A 0.00 days 11.15 days 0.04 days 11.15 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632148 9/4/2020 11:08 9/4/2020 11:08 9/4/2020 11:08 9/10/2020 12:25 9/4/2020 11:14 N/A 0.00 days 4.05 days N/A 4.05 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632155 9/4/2020 11:19 9/4/2020 11:19 9/4/2020 11:19 9/6/2020 14:13 9/5/2020 11:11 9/6/2020 13:37 N/A 0.00 days 2.12 days 0.02 days 2.12 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632163 9/4/2020 11:44 9/4/2020 11:45 9/4/2020 11:45 9/5/2020 8:45 9/4/2020 14:01 N/A 0.00 days 0.88 days N/A 0.88 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632164 9/4/2020 11:45 9/4/2020 11:45 9/4/2020 11:45 9/5/2020 8:45 9/4/2020 12:22 N/A 0.00 days 0.88 days N/A 0.88 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Full + MVR Package B: United States 632175 9/4/2020 12:16 9/4/2020 12:16 9/4/2020 12:16 9/6/2020 12:53 9/4/2020 13:55 9/6/2020 12:27 N/A 0.00 days 2.03 days 0.02 days 2.03 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632190 9/4/2020 12:42 9/4/2020 12:42 9/4/2020 12:42 9/4/2020 17:25 9/4/2020 16:20 N/A 0.00 days 0.20 days N/A 0.20 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632200 9/4/2020 13:03 9/4/2020 13:03 9/4/2020 13:03 9/6/2020 19:15 9/4/2020 14:33 N/A 0.00 days 2.26 days N/A 2.26 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Basic Package: United States 632207 9/4/2020 13:24 9/4/2020 13:24 9/4/2020 13:24 9/4/2020 17:09 N/A 0.00 days 0.16 days N/A 0.16 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632218 9/4/2020 13:44 9/4/2020 13:44 9/4/2020 13:44 9/5/2020 15:20 9/4/2020 15:09 N/A 0.00 days 1.07 days N/A 1.07 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632219 9/4/2020 13:44 9/4/2020 13:44 9/4/2020 13:44 9/5/2020 13:19 9/4/2020 15:06 N/A 0.00 days 0.98 days N/A 0.98 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632222 9/4/2020 13:49 9/4/2020 13:49 9/4/2020 13:49 9/5/2020 15:07 9/5/2020 11:22 N/A 0.00 days 1.05 days N/A 1.05 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632225 9/4/2020 13:50 9/4/2020 13:50 9/4/2020 13:50 9/9/2020 14:09 9/4/2020 15:05 N/A 0.00 days 3.42 days N/A 3.42 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632245 9/4/2020 14:21 9/4/2020 14:21 9/4/2020 14:21 9/6/2020 10:30 9/5/2020 11:23 N/A 0.00 days 1.84 days N/A 1.84 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632255 9/4/2020 14:26 9/4/2020 14:26 9/4/2020 14:26 9/5/2020 18:41 9/4/2020 15:08 N/A 0.00 days 1.18 days N/A 1.18 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632263 9/4/2020 14:31 9/4/2020 14:31 9/4/2020 14:31 9/4/2020 17:25 9/4/2020 15:07 N/A 0.00 days 0.12 days N/A 0.12 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Pre-Promotion Package: United States 632274 9/4/2020 14:47 9/4/2020 14:47 9/4/2020 14:47 9/4/2020 17:34 N/A 0.00 days 0.12 days N/A 0.12 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632275 9/4/2020 14:47 9/4/2020 14:47 9/4/2020 14:47 9/6/2020 9:18 N/A 0.00 days 1.77 days N/A 1.77 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Full + MVR Package B: United States 632277 9/4/2020 14:52 9/4/2020 14:52 9/4/2020 14:52 9/5/2020 16:32 N/A 0.00 days 1.07 days N/A 1.07 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632304 9/4/2020 15:28 9/4/2020 15:28 9/4/2020 15:28 9/5/2020 9:06 9/4/2020 15:54 N/A 0.00 days 0.73 days N/A 0.73 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632314 9/4/2020 15:39 9/4/2020 15:39 9/4/2020 15:39 9/5/2020 15:07 9/5/2020 10:55 N/A 0.00 days 0.98 days N/A 0.98 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Basic Package: United States 632322 9/4/2020 16:00 9/4/2020 16:00 9/4/2020 16:00 9/7/2020 15:39 9/4/2020 16:10 N/A 0.00 days 2.98 days N/A 2.98 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632323 9/4/2020 16:01 9/4/2020 16:01 9/4/2020 16:01 9/4/2020 17:38 9/4/2020 16:19 N/A 0.00 days 0.07 days N/A 0.07 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632331 9/4/2020 16:16 9/4/2020 16:16 9/4/2020 16:16 9/6/2020 3:36 9/4/2020 16:22 N/A 0.00 days 1.47 days N/A 1.47 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632333 9/4/2020 16:27 9/4/2020 16:27 9/4/2020 16:27 9/4/2020 17:33 9/4/2020 16:32 N/A 0.00 days 0.05 days N/A 0.05 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632334 9/4/2020 16:32 9/4/2020 16:32 9/4/2020 16:32 9/5/2020 8:39 9/4/2020 16:39 N/A 0.00 days 0.67 days N/A 0.67 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632348 9/4/2020 17:04 9/4/2020 17:04 9/4/2020 17:04 9/7/2020 10:36 9/4/2020 17:11 N/A 0.00 days 2.73 days N/A 2.73 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632354 9/4/2020 17:14 9/4/2020 17:14 9/4/2020 17:14 9/14/2020 10:52 9/4/2020 17:45 N/A 0.00 days 7.73 days N/A 7.73 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632355 9/4/2020 17:19 9/4/2020 17:19 9/4/2020 17:19 9/9/2020 14:09 9/4/2020 17:33 N/A 0.00 days 3.28 days N/A 3.28 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632356 9/4/2020 17:24 9/4/2020 17:25 9/4/2020 17:25 9/10/2020 9:41 N/A 0.00 days 3.68 days N/A 3.68 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632357 9/4/2020 17:25 9/4/2020 17:25 9/4/2020 17:25 9/6/2020 11:19 9/5/2020 13:32 9/6/2020 11:10 N/A 0.00 days 1.75 days 0.01 days 1.75 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632359 9/4/2020 17:30 9/4/2020 17:30 9/4/2020 17:30 9/5/2020 15:45 9/5/2020 12:17 9/5/2020 15:20 N/A 0.00 days 0.93 days 0.02 days 0.93 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632362 9/4/2020 17:50 9/4/2020 17:50 9/4/2020 17:50 9/5/2020 15:40 9/5/2020 10:54 N/A 0.00 days 0.91 days N/A 0.91 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632363 9/4/2020 18:11 9/4/2020 18:11 9/4/2020 18:11 9/7/2020 9:31 9/5/2020 9:15 9/7/2020 8:20 N/A 0.00 days 2.64 days 0.05 days 2.64 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632365 9/4/2020 18:26 9/4/2020 18:26 9/4/2020 18:26 9/6/2020 7:03 9/5/2020 10:10 N/A 0.00 days 1.53 days N/A 1.53 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632366 9/4/2020 18:52 9/4/2020 18:52 9/4/2020 18:52 9/6/2020 14:43 9/5/2020 10:24 N/A 0.00 days 1.83 days N/A 1.83 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632367 9/4/2020 19:07 9/4/2020 19:07 9/4/2020 19:07 9/6/2020 7:03 9/5/2020 10:21 N/A 0.00 days 1.50 days N/A 1.50 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632368 9/4/2020 20:23 9/4/2020 20:23 9/4/2020 20:23 9/5/2020 15:07 9/5/2020 12:19 N/A 0.00 days 0.78 days N/A 0.78 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632369 9/4/2020 20:44 9/4/2020 20:44 9/4/2020 20:44 9/13/2020 7:48 9/5/2020 10:17 N/A 0.00 days 6.46 days N/A 6.46 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632371 9/4/2020 21:39 9/4/2020 21:39 9/4/2020 21:39 9/11/2020 11:18 9/6/2020 13:31 N/A 0.00 days 4.57 days N/A 4.57 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632372 9/4/2020 22:05 9/4/2020 22:05 9/4/2020 22:05 9/5/2020 13:38 9/5/2020 10:10 N/A 0.00 days 0.65 days N/A 0.65 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Full + MVR Package B: United States 632385 9/5/2020 5:05 9/5/2020 5:05 9/5/2020 5:05 9/17/2020 14:32 9/14/2020 14:50 9/17/2020 13:50 N/A 0.00 days 8.39 days 0.03 days 8.39 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632387 9/5/2020 5:26 9/5/2020 5:26 9/5/2020 5:26 9/6/2020 7:06 9/5/2020 10:06 N/A 0.00 days 1.07 days N/A 1.07 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632388 9/5/2020 5:51 9/5/2020 5:51 9/5/2020 5:51 9/7/2020 8:21 9/5/2020 9:06 N/A 0.00 days 2.10 days N/A 2.10 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632435 9/5/2020 8:47 9/5/2020 8:47 9/5/2020 8:47 9/5/2020 15:40 9/5/2020 9:03 N/A 0.00 days 0.29 days N/A 0.29 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632443 9/5/2020 8:57 9/5/2020 8:57 9/5/2020 8:57 9/5/2020 13:24 9/5/2020 9:51 N/A 0.00 days 0.19 days N/A 0.19 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632446 9/5/2020 9:02 9/5/2020 9:02 9/5/2020 9:02 9/7/2020 13:20 9/5/2020 9:45 9/7/2020 13:09 N/A 0.00 days 2.18 days 0.01 days 2.18 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632451 9/5/2020 9:12 9/5/2020 9:13 9/5/2020 9:13 9/6/2020 11:42 9/5/2020 9:16 N/A 0.00 days 1.10 days N/A 1.10 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632476 9/5/2020 9:49 9/5/2020 9:49 9/5/2020 9:49 9/5/2020 15:07 9/5/2020 12:09 N/A 0.00 days 0.22 days N/A 0.22 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632481 9/5/2020 10:00 9/5/2020 10:00 9/5/2020 10:00 9/10/2020 16:31 9/6/2020 9:13 9/10/2020 16:10 N/A 0.00 days 3.27 days 0.01 days 3.27 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632499 9/5/2020 10:35 9/5/2020 10:35 9/5/2020 10:35 9/7/2020 13:48 9/5/2020 11:43 N/A 0.00 days 2.13 days N/A 2.13 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632509 9/5/2020 10:51 9/5/2020 10:51 9/5/2020 10:51 9/6/2020 9:17 9/5/2020 12:55 N/A 0.00 days 0.94 days N/A 0.94 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632514 9/5/2020 11:01 9/5/2020 11:01 9/5/2020 11:01 9/5/2020 15:40 9/5/2020 11:13 N/A 0.00 days 0.19 days N/A 0.19 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632517 9/5/2020 11:06 9/5/2020 11:06 9/5/2020 11:06 9/6/2020 15:41 9/5/2020 11:13 N/A 0.00 days 1.19 days N/A 1.19 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632518 9/5/2020 11:06 9/5/2020 11:06 9/5/2020 11:06 9/6/2020 15:00 9/6/2020 9:51 N/A 0.00 days 1.16 days N/A 1.16 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Basic Package: United States 632519 9/5/2020 11:06 9/5/2020 11:06 9/5/2020 11:06 9/5/2020 15:40 9/5/2020 12:06 N/A 0.00 days 0.19 days N/A 0.19 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632527 9/5/2020 11:23 9/5/2020 11:23 9/5/2020 11:23 9/6/2020 17:29 9/6/2020 9:46 N/A 0.00 days 1.25 days N/A 1.25 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Basic Package: United States 632531 9/5/2020 11:28 9/5/2020 11:28 9/5/2020 11:28 9/5/2020 15:07 N/A 0.00 days 0.15 days N/A 0.15 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632532 9/5/2020 11:28 9/5/2020 11:28 9/5/2020 11:28 9/12/2020 11:30 9/10/2020 17:19 9/12/2020 11:22 N/A 0.00 days 5.00 days 0.01 days 5.00 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632533 9/5/2020 11:33 9/5/2020 11:33 9/5/2020 11:33 9/10/2020 9:38 N/A 0.00 days 2.92 days N/A 2.92 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632547 9/5/2020 11:55 9/5/2020 11:55 9/5/2020 11:55 9/6/2020 17:31 9/6/2020 9:54 N/A 0.00 days 1.23 days N/A 1.23 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632548 9/5/2020 11:55 9/5/2020 11:55 9/5/2020 11:55 9/17/2020 14:49 9/17/2020 15:45 9/17/2020 14:49 N/A 0.00 days 8.16 days N/A 8.16 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632550 9/5/2020 12:00 9/5/2020 12:00 9/5/2020 12:00 9/10/2020 9:40 N/A 0.00 days 2.90 days N/A 2.90 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632573 9/5/2020 12:28 9/5/2020 12:28 9/5/2020 12:28 9/5/2020 15:07 9/5/2020 12:37 N/A 0.00 days 0.11 days N/A 0.11 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Full + MVR Package B: United States 632576 9/5/2020 12:33 9/5/2020 12:33 9/5/2020 12:33 9/6/2020 9:21 9/5/2020 13:24 N/A 0.00 days 0.87 days N/A 0.87 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632577 9/5/2020 12:33 9/5/2020 12:33 9/5/2020 12:33 9/13/2020 20:24 9/5/2020 15:11 N/A 0.00 days 6.33 days N/A 6.33 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632587 9/5/2020 12:52 9/5/2020 12:52 9/5/2020 12:52 9/6/2020 7:03 9/5/2020 14:18 N/A 0.00 days 0.76 days N/A 0.76 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632596 9/5/2020 13:09 9/5/2020 13:09 9/5/2020 13:09 9/6/2020 9:19 9/5/2020 14:05 N/A 0.00 days 0.84 days N/A 0.84 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 632597 9/5/2020 13:09 9/5/2020 13:09 9/5/2020 13:09 9/10/2020 10:15 9/7/2020 9:50 N/A 0.00 days 2.88 days N/A 2.88 days

Page 1 of 12

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 54 of 84
Page 333 of 853



ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 638912 9/29/2020 14:49 9/29/2020 14:49 9/29/2020 14:49 10/2/2020 12:52 10/1/2020 10:06 10/2/2020 10:26 N/A 0.00 days 1.54 days 0.10 days 1.54 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 638913 9/29/2020 15:10 9/29/2020 15:10 9/29/2020 15:10 10/1/2020 17:28 10/1/2020 9:24 10/1/2020 17:19 N/A 0.00 days 0.73 days 0.01 days 0.73 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 638914 9/29/2020 15:56 9/29/2020 15:56 9/29/2020 15:56 10/8/2020 14:37 10/8/2020 12:55 N/A 0.00 days 5.61 days 0.07 days 5.61 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 638915 9/29/2020 17:02 9/29/2020 17:02 9/29/2020 17:02 10/8/2020 14:38 10/8/2020 12:49 N/A 0.00 days 5.61 days 0.08 days 5.61 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 638916 9/29/2020 17:43 9/29/2020 17:43 9/29/2020 17:43 10/1/2020 17:29 10/1/2020 9:25 10/1/2020 17:19 N/A 0.00 days 0.73 days 0.01 days 0.73 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 638917 9/29/2020 18:39 9/29/2020 18:39 9/29/2020 18:39 10/2/2020 12:53 10/1/2020 9:26 10/2/2020 9:18 N/A 0.00 days 1.54 days 0.15 days 1.54 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 638920 9/30/2020 11:09 9/30/2020 11:09 9/30/2020 11:09 10/8/2020 14:38 10/8/2020 12:54 N/A 0.00 days 5.61 days 0.07 days 5.61 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 638923 9/30/2020 14:53 9/30/2020 14:53 9/30/2020 14:53 10/8/2020 14:39 10/8/2020 12:49 N/A 0.00 days 5.61 days 0.08 days 5.61 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 638925 9/30/2020 16:09 9/30/2020 16:09 9/30/2020 16:09 10/2/2020 12:54 10/1/2020 9:27 10/2/2020 9:18 N/A 0.00 days 1.54 days 0.15 days 1.54 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 638928 9/30/2020 17:10 9/30/2020 17:10 9/30/2020 17:10 10/8/2020 14:39 10/8/2020 12:54 N/A 0.00 days 5.61 days 0.07 days 5.61 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Driver Package: United States 638929 9/30/2020 18:42 9/30/2020 18:42 9/30/2020 18:42 10/1/2020 17:30 10/1/2020 9:28 10/1/2020 17:19 N/A 0.00 days 0.73 days 0.01 days 0.73 days
ACME Test Company ACME Test Company - Full Package: United States 638930 9/30/2020 18:42 9/30/2020 18:42 9/30/2020 18:42 10/2/2020 12:55 10/1/2020 8:27 10/1/2020 19:12 N/A 0.00 days 1.54 days 0.74 days 1.54 days

Agency Time Service: 2.10 days
App Ready Time Service: 0.00 days
Applicant Time Service: 1.79 days
QA Time Service: 0.24 days
Total Time Service: 2.11 days

Page 12 of 12

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 55 of 84
Page 334 of 853



ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

INSR ADDL SUBR
LTR INSD WVD

PRODUCER CONTACT
NAME:

FAXPHONE
(A/C, No):(A/C, No, Ext):

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURER A :

INSURED INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

POLICY NUMBER POLICY EFF POLICY EXPTYPE OF INSURANCE LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

EACH OCCURRENCE $
DAMAGE TO RENTEDCLAIMS-MADE OCCUR $PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE $
PRO-POLICY LOC PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGGJECT 

OTHER: $
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

$(Ea accident)

ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $
OWNED SCHEDULED

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $AUTOS ONLY AUTOS
HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE

$AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY (Per accident)

$

OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE
CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $

DED RETENTION $
PER OTH-
STATUTE ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $
If yes, describe under

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMITDESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

Y / N
N / A

(Mandatory in NH)

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE    EXPIRATION    DATE    THEREOF,    NOTICE   WILL   BE   DELIVERED   IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

THIS  IS  TO  CERTIFY  THAT  THE  POLICIES  OF  INSURANCE  LISTED  BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.    NOTWITHSTANDING  ANY  REQUIREMENT,  TERM  OR  CONDITION  OF  ANY  CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE  MAY  BE  ISSUED  OR  MAY  PERTAIN,  THE  INSURANCE  AFFORDED  BY  THE  POLICIES  DESCRIBED  HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

THIS  CERTIFICATE  IS  ISSUED  AS  A  MATTER  OF  INFORMATION  ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE  DOES  NOT  AFFIRMATIVELY  OR  NEGATIVELY  AMEND,  EXTEND  OR  ALTER  THE  COVERAGE  AFFORDED  BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.    THIS  CERTIFICATE  OF  INSURANCE  DOES  NOT  CONSTITUTE  A  CONTRACT  BETWEEN  THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT:    If  the  certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If  SUBROGATION  IS  WAIVED,  subject  to  the  terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.ACORD 25 (2016/03)

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

$

$

$

$

$

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

1/4/2024

(918) 878-3356 (918) 420-9926

13056

AccuSourceHR, Inc.
11811 N. Tatum Blvd, Suite 3090
Phoenix, AZ 85028

36420

A 2,000,000

PMB0001414 1/14/2024 1/14/2025 1,000,000
10,000

Included
4,000,000
4,000,000

1,000,000A
PMA0001025 1/14/2024 1/14/2025

5,000,000A
PME0001047 1/14/2024 1/14/2025 5,000,000

5,000,000
A

PMW0001093 1/14/2024 1/14/2025 1,000,000
1,000,000
1,000,000

A Professional Liab. RTP0028395 2/7/2023 Each Claim/Aggregate 2,000,000
B Cyber Liability C4LPT154539CYBER2024 1/8/2024 1/14/2025 Limit/Aggregate 2,000,000

Additional Named Insureds on BOP/Auto/Work Comp/Umbrella/EPL Policies:
LFL Enterprises, LLC DBA Proforma Screening Solutions
PeopleG2
Five Diamond Screening, LLC

Project Number: RFP 2023-03 / Project Name: Comprehensive Background Checks

SEE ATTACHED ACORD 101

University Medical Center of Southern Nevada
C/O Contracts Management
1800 W. Charleston Blvd
Las Vegas, NV 89102

ACCUINC-01 ALHILL

Rooney Insurance Agency, Inc.
5100 E Skelly Drive, Ste 1010
Tulsa, OK 74135

Alexis Hill

alexis.hill@rooneyinsurance.com

RLI Insurance Company
Allianz Underwriters Insurance Company

Prod/CompOpsAgg
X

2/7/2024

X
X

X

X X

X X

EXHIBIT B

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 56 of 84
Page 335 of 853



FORM NUMBER:

EFFECTIVE DATE:

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

ADDITIONAL REMARKS

ADDITIONAL REMARKS SCHEDULE

FORM TITLE:

Page           of

THIS ADDITIONAL REMARKS FORM IS A SCHEDULE TO ACORD FORM,

ACORD 101 (2008/01)

AGENCY CUSTOMER ID:
LOC #:

AGENCY NAMED INSURED

POLICY NUMBER

CARRIER NAIC CODE

© 2008 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.

Rooney Insurance Agency, Inc.

ACCUINC-01

SEE PAGE 1

1

SEE PAGE 1

ACORD 25 Certificate of Liability Insurance

1

SEE P 1

AccuSourceHR, Inc.
11811 N. Tatum Blvd, Suite 3090
Phoenix, AZ 85028

SEE PAGE 1

ALHILL

1

Description of Operations/Locations/Vehicles:
As required by written contract and subject to the terms and conditions of the policies, the certificate holder shown below is 
additional insured as their interest may appear with regard to General Liability.

AccuSourceHR, Inc.
11811 N. Tatum Blvd, Suite 3090
Phoenix, AZ  85028
(888) 649-6272 phone
(888) 649-6244 fax

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 57 of 84
Page 336 of 853



Policy Number:  RLI Insurance Company
Named Insured: 

PPB 304G 04 13 Page 1 of 1

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

RLIPack® FOR PROFESSIONALS
BLANKET ADDITIONAL INSURED ENDORSEMENT

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

BUSINESSOWNERS COVERAGE FORM - SECTION II – LIABILITY

1. C. WHO IS AN INSURED is amended to include as 
an additional insured any person or organization that 
you agree in a contract or agreement requiring 
insurance  to include as an additional insured on this 
policy, but only with respect to liability for "bodily 
injury", "property damage" or "personal and 
advertising injury" caused in whole or in part by you 
or those acting on your behalf:

a. In the performance of your ongoing operations;

b. In connection with premises owned by or rented 
to you; or

c. In connection with “your work” and included 
within the “product-completed operations 
hazard”.

2. The insurance provided to the additional insured by 
this endorsement is limited as follows:

a. This insurance does not apply on any basis to 
any person or organization for which coverage 
as an additional insured specifically is added by 
another endorsement to this policy.

b. This insurance does not apply to the rendering 
of or failure to render any professional services.

c. This endorsement does not increase any of the 
limits of insurance stated in D. Liability And 
Medical Expenses Limits of Insurance.

3. The following is added to SECTION III H.2. Other 
Insurance – COMMON POLICY CONDITIONS 
(BUT APPLICABLE ONLY TO SECTION II –
LIABILITY)
However, if you specifically agree in a contract or 
agreement that the insurance provided to an 

additional insured under this policy must apply on a 
primary basis, or a primary and non-contributory 
basis, this insurance is primary to other insurance 
that is available to such additional insured which 
covers such additional insured as a named insured, 
and we will not share with that other insurance, 
provided that:

a. The "bodily injury" or "property damage" for 
which coverage is sought occurs after you have 
entered into that contract or agreement; or 

b. The "personal and advertising injury" for which 
coverage is sought arises out of an offense 
committed after you have entered into that 
contract or agreement. 

4. The following is added to SECTION III K. 2. 
Transfer of Rights of Recovery Against Others to 
Us – COMMON POLICY CONDITIONS (BUT 
APPLICABLE TO ONLY TO SECTION II –
LIABILITY)
We waive any rights of recovery we may have 
against any person or organization because of 
payments we make for "bodily injury", "property 
damage" or "personal and advertising injury" arising 
out of "your work" performed by you, or on your 
behalf, under a contract or agreement with that 
person or organization. We waive these rights only 
where you have agreed to do so as part of a 
contract or agreement with such person or 
organization entered into by you before the "bodily 
injury" or "property damage" occurs, or the "personal 
and advertising injury" offense is committed.

ALL OTHER TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THIS POLICY REMAIN UNCHANGED.

PMB0001414
AccuSourceHR, Inc.

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 58 of 84
Page 337 of 853



EXHIBIT C 
SUBCONTRACTOR INFORMATION

DEFINITIONS: 

MINORITY OWNED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (MBE): An independent and continuing Nevada business for profit which performs a 
commercially useful function and is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more minority persons of Black American, Hispanic 
American, Asian-Pacific American or Native American ethnicity. 

WOMEN OWNED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (WBE): An independent and continuing Nevada business for profit which performs a 
commercially useful function and is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more women. 

PHYSICALLY-CHALLENGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (PBE): An independent and continuing Nevada business for profit which 
performs a commercially useful function and is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more disabled individuals pursuant to the 
federal Americans with Disabilities Act. 

SMALL BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (SBE): An independent and continuing Nevada business for profit which performs a commercially 
useful function, is not owned and controlled by individuals designated as minority, women, or physically-challenged, and where gross 
annual sales does not exceed $2,000,000. 

NEVADA BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (NBE): Any Nevada business which has the resources necessary to sufficiently perform identified 
County projects, and is owned or controlled by individuals that are not designated as socially or economically disadvantaged. 

VETERAN OWNED ENTERPRISE (VET): A Nevada business at least 51% owned/controlled by a veteran. 

DISABLED VETERAN OWNED ENTERPRISE (DVET): A Nevada business at least 51% owned/controlled by a disabled veteran. 

It is our intent to utilize the following MBE, WBE, PBE, SBE, NBE, VET and DVET subcontractors in association with this Agreement 
(you may add additional pages if needed): 

1. Subcontractor Name:
Contact Person: Telephone Number: 
Description of Work:

Estimated Percentage of Total Dollars: 
Business Type:  ___ MBE ___ WBE ___ PBE ___ SBE ___ NBE ___ VET ___ DVET 

2. Subcontractor Name:
Contact Person: Telephone Number: 
Description of Work:

Estimated Percentage of Total Dollars: 
Business Type:  ___ MBE ___ WBE ___ PBE ___ SBE ___ NBE ___ VET ___ DVET 

3. Subcontractor Name:
Contact Person: Telephone Number: 
Description of Work:

Estimated Percentage of Total Dollars: 
Business Type:  ___ MBE ___ WBE ___ PBE ___ SBE ___ NBE ___ VET ___ DVET 

4. Subcontractor Name:
Contact Person: Telephone Number: 
Description of Work:

Estimated Percentage of Total Dollars: 
Business Type:  ___ MBE ___ WBE ___ PBE ___ SBE ___ NBE ___ VET ___ DVET 

No MBE, WBE, PBE, SBE, or NBE subcontractors will be used. X

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 59 of 84
Page 338 of 853



EXHIBIT C 
SUBCONTRACTOR INFORMATION

DEFINITIONS: 
MINORITY OWNED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (MBE): An independent and continuing Nevada business for profit which 
performs a commercially useful function and is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more minority persons of Black 
American, Hispanic American, Asian-Pacific American or Native American ethnicity. 

WOMEN OWNED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (WBE): An independent and continuing Nevada business for profit which performs 
a commercially useful function and is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more women. 

PHYSICALLY-CHALLENGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (PBE): An independent and continuing Nevada business for profit 
which performs a commercially useful function and is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more disabled individuals 
pursuant to the federal Americans with Disabilities Act. 

SMALL BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (SBE): An independent and continuing Nevada business for profit which performs a 
commercially useful function, is not owned and controlled by individuals designated as minority, women, or physically-
challenged, and where gross annual sales does not exceed $2,000,000. 

NEVADA BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (NBE): Any Nevada business which has the resources necessary to sufficiently perform 
identified County projects, and is owned or controlled by individuals that are not designated as socially or economically 
disadvantaged. 

VETERAN OWNED ENTERPRISE (VET): A Nevada business at least 51% owned/controlled by a veteran. 

DISABLED VETERAN OWNED ENTERPRISE (DVET): A Nevada business at least 51% owned/controlled by a disabled 
veteran.  

It is our intent to utilize the following MBE, WBE, PBE, SBE, and NBE subcontractors in association with this Agreement: 

1. Subcontractor Name:
Contact Person: Telephone Number: 
Description of Work:

Estimated Percentage of Total Dollars: 
Business Type:  ___ MBE ___ WBE ___ PBE ___ SBE ___ NBE 

2. Subcontractor Name:
Contact Person: Telephone Number: 
Description of Work:

Estimated Percentage of Total Dollars: 
Business Type:  ___ MBE ___ WBE ___ PBE ___ SBE ___ NBE 

3. Subcontractor Name:
Contact Person: Telephone Number: 
Description of Work:

Estimated Percentage of Total Dollars: 
Business Type:  ___ MBE ___ WBE ___ PBE ___ SBE ___ NBE 

4. Subcontractor Name:
Contact Person: Telephone Number: 
Description of Work:

Estimated Percentage of Total Dollars: 
Business Type:  ___ MBE ___ WBE ___ PBE ___ SBE ___ NBE 

□ No MBE, WBE, PBE, SBE, or NBE subcontractors will be used

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 60 of 84
Page 339 of 853



Page 1 of 5 Version 08/2016 

Business Associate Agreement 

This Agreement is made effective as of the date of last signature, by and between University 
Medical Center of Southern Nevada (hereinafter referred to as “Covered Entity”), a county hospital duly 
organized pursuant to Chapter 450 of the Nevada Revised Statutes, with its principal place of business at 
1800 West Charleston Boulevard, Las Vegas, Nevada, 89102, and ___________________, hereinafter 
referred to as “Business Associate”, (individually, a “Party” and collectively, the “Parties”).   

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, Sections 261 through 264 of the federal Health Insurance Portability and 
Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law 104-191, known as “the Administrative Simplification provisions,” 
direct the Department of Health and Human Services to develop standards to protect the security, 
confidentiality and integrity of health information; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Administrative Simplification provisions, the Secretary of Health and 
Human Services issued regulations modifying 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164 (the “HIPAA Rules”); and 

WHEREAS, the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (Pub. L. 111-5), pursuant to 
Title XIII of Division A and Title IV of Division B, called the “Health Information Technology for Economic 
and Clinical Health” (“HITECH”) Act, as well as the Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act of 2008 
(“GINA,” Pub. L. 110-233), provide for modifications to the HIPAA Rules; and  

WHEREAS, the Secretary, U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, published 
modifications to 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164 under HITECH and GINA, and other modifications on January 
25, 2013, the “Final Rule,” and 

WHEREAS, the Parties wish to enter into or have entered into an arrangement whereby Business 
Associate will provide certain services to Covered Entity, and, pursuant to such arrangement, Business 
Associate may be considered a “Business Associate” of Covered Entity as defined in the HIPAA Rules (the 
agreement evidencing such arrangement is entitled “Underlying Agreement”); and  

WHEREAS, Business Associate will have access to Protected Health Information (as defined 
below) in fulfilling its responsibilities under such arrangement.  

THEREFORE, in consideration of the Parties’ continuing obligations under the Underlying 
Agreement, compliance with the HIPAA Rules, and for other good and valuable consideration, the 
receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, and intending to be legally bound, the Parties 
agree to the provisions of this Agreement in order to address the requirements of the HIPAA Rules and 
to protect the interests of both Parties.   

I. DEFINITIONS

“HIPAA Rules” means the Privacy, Security, Breach Notification, and Enforcement Rules at 45 CFR Part 
160 and Part 164. 

“Protected Health Information” means individually identifiable health information created, received, 
maintained, or transmitted in any medium, including, without limitation, all information, data, 
documentation, and materials, including without limitation, demographic, medical and financial 
information, that relates to the past, present, or future physical or mental health or condition of an 

AccuSourceHR, Inc.

Document Ref: 7YEAW-THANH-IHQSJ-D6CCF Page 9 of 13Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 61 of 84
Page 340 of 853



Page 2 of 5 Version 08/2016 

individual; the provision of health care to an individual; or the past, present, or future payment for the 
provision of health care to an individual; and that identifies the individual or with respect to which there 
is a reasonable basis to believe the information can be used to identify the individual.  “Protected Health 
Information” includes without limitation “Electronic Protected Health Information” as defined below. 

“Electronic Protected Health Information” means Protected Health Information which is transmitted by 
Electronic Media (as defined in the HIPAA Rules) or maintained in Electronic Media. 

The following terms used in this Agreement shall have the same meaning as defined in the HIPAA Rules:  
Administrative Safeguards, Breach, Business Associate, Business Associate Agreement, Covered Entity, 
Individually Identifiable Health Information, Minimum Necessary, Physical Safeguards, Security Incident, 
and Technical Safeguards.  

II. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

Business Associate and Covered Entity acknowledge and agree that in the event of an inconsistency 
between the provisions of this Agreement and mandatory provisions of the HIPAA Rules, the HIPAA 
Rules shall control.  Where provisions of this Agreement are different than those mandated in the HIPAA 
Rules, but are nonetheless permitted by the HIPAA Rules, the provisions of this Agreement shall control.  

Business Associate acknowledges and agrees that all Protected Health Information that is disclosed or 
made available in any form (including paper, oral, audio recording or electronic media) by Covered 
Entity to Business Associate or is created or received by Business Associate on Covered Entity’s behalf 
shall be subject to this Agreement.  

Business Associate has read, acknowledges, and agrees that the Secretary, U.S. Department of Health 
and Human Services, published modifications to 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164 under HITECH and GINA, and 
other modifications on January 25, 2013, the “Final Rule,” and the Final Rule significantly impacted and 
expanded Business Associates’ requirements to adhere to the HIPAA Rules.   

III. USE AND DISCLOSURE OF PROTECTED HEALTH INFORMATION

(a) Business Associate agrees that all uses and disclosures of Protected Health information
shall be subject to the limits set forth in 45 CFR 164.514 regarding Minimum Necessary
requirements and limited data sets.

(b) Business Associate agrees to use or disclose Protected Health Information solely:

(i) For meeting its business obligations as set forth in any agreements between the
Parties evidencing their business relationship; or

(ii) as required by applicable law, rule or regulation, or by accrediting or
credentialing organization to whom Covered Entity is required to disclose such
information or as otherwise permitted under this Agreement or the Underlying
Agreement (if consistent with this Agreement and the HIPAA Rules).

(c) Where Business Associate is permitted to use Subcontractors that create, receive,
maintain, or transmit Protected Health Information; Business Associate agrees to execute a
“Business Associate Agreement” with Subcontractor as defined in the HIPAA Rules that includes
the same covenants for using and disclosing, safeguarding, auditing, and otherwise

Document Ref: 7YEAW-THANH-IHQSJ-D6CCF Page 10 of 13Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 62 of 84
Page 341 of 853



Page 3 of 5 Version 08/2016 

administering Protected Health Information as outlined in Sections I through VII of this 
Agreement (45 CFR 164.314). 

(d) Business Associate will acquire written authorization in the form of an update or
amendment to this Agreement and Underlying Agreement prior to:

(i) Directly or indirectly receiving any remuneration for the sale or exchange of any
Protected Health Information; or

(ii) Utilizing Protected Health Information for any activity that might be deemed
“Marketing” under the HIPAA rules.

IV. SAFEGUARDING PROTECTED HEALTH INFORMATION

(a) Business Associate agrees:

(i) To implement appropriate safeguards and internal controls to prevent the use
or disclosure of Protected Health Information other than as permitted in this Agreement
or by the HIPAA Rules.

(ii) To implement “Administrative Safeguards,” “Physical Safeguards,” and
“Technical Safeguards” as defined in the HIPAA Rules to protect and secure the
confidentiality, integrity, and availability of Electronic Protected Health Information (45
CFR 164.308, 164.310, 164.312).  Business Associate shall document policies and
procedures for safeguarding Electronic Protected Health Information in accordance with
45 CFR 164.316.

(iii) To notify Covered Entity of any attempted or successful unauthorized access,
use, disclosure, modification, or destruction of information or interference with system
operations in an information system (“Security Incident”) upon discovery of the Security
Incident.

(b) When an impermissible acquisition, access, use, or disclosure of Protected Health
Information (“Breach”) occurs, Business Associate agrees:

(i) To notify Covered Entity’s Chief Privacy Officer immediately upon discovery of
the Breach, and

(ii) Within 15 business days of the discovery of the Breach, provide Covered Entity
with all required content of notification in accordance with 45 CFR 164.410 and 45 CFR
164.404, and

(iii) To fully cooperate with Covered Entity’s analysis and final determination on
whether to notify affected individuals, media, or Secretary of the U.S. Department of
Health and Human Services, and

(iv) To pay all costs associated with the notification of affected individuals and costs
associated with mitigating potential harmful effects to affected individuals.

Document Ref: 7YEAW-THANH-IHQSJ-D6CCF Page 11 of 13Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 63 of 84
Page 342 of 853



Page 4 of 5 Version 08/2016 

V. RIGHT TO AUDIT

(a) Business Associate agrees:

(i) To provide Covered Entity with timely and appropriate access to records,
electronic records, HIPAA assessment questionnaires provided by Covered Entity,
personnel, or facilities sufficient for Covered Entity to gain reasonable assurance that
Business Associate is in compliance with the HIPAA Rules and the provisions of this
Agreement.

(ii) That in accordance with the HIPAA Rules, the Secretary of the U.S. Department
of Health and Human Services has the right to review, audit, or investigate Business
Associate’s records, electronic records, facilities, systems, and practices related to
safeguarding, use, and disclosure of Protected Health Information to ensure Covered
Entity’s or Business Associate’s compliance with the HIPAA Rules.

VI. COVERED ENTITY REQUESTS AND ACCOUNTING FOR DISCLOSURES

(a) At the Covered Entity’s Request, Business Associate agrees:

(i) To comply with any requests for restrictions on certain disclosures of Protected
Health Information pursuant to Section 164.522 of the HIPAA Rules to which Covered
Entity has agreed and of which Business Associate is notified by Covered Entity.

(ii) To make available Protected Health Information to the extent and in the
manner required by Section 164.524 of the HIPAA Rules.  If Business Associate maintains
Protected Health Information electronically, it agrees to make such Protected Health
Information electronically available to the Covered Entity.

(iii) To make Protected Health Information available for amendment and
incorporate any amendments to Protected Health Information in accordance with the
requirements of Section 164.526 of the HIPAA Rules.

(iv) To account for disclosures of Protected Health Information and make an
accounting of such disclosures available to Covered Entity as required by Section
164.528 of the HIPAA Rules.  Business Associate shall provide any accounting required
within 15 business days of request from Covered Entity.

VII. TERMINATION

Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, Covered Entity shall have the right to 
terminate this Agreement and the Underlying Agreement immediately if Covered Entity determines that 
Business Associate has violated any material term of this Agreement.  If Covered Entity reasonably 
believes that Business Associate will violate a material term of this Agreement and, where practicable, 
Covered Entity gives written notice to Business Associate of such belief within a reasonable time after 
forming such belief, and Business Associate fails to provide adequate written assurances to Covered 
Entity that it will not breach the cited term of this Agreement within a reasonable period of time given 
the specific circumstances, but in any event, before the threatened breach is to occur, then Covered 
Entity shall have the right to terminate this Agreement and the Underlying Agreement immediately.    

Document Ref: 7YEAW-THANH-IHQSJ-D6CCF Page 12 of 13Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 64 of 84
Page 343 of 853



Page 5 of 5 Version 08/2016 

At termination of this Agreement, the Underlying Agreement (or any similar documentation of the 
business relationship of the Parties), or upon request of Covered Entity, whichever occurs first, if 
feasible, Business Associate will return or destroy all Protected Health Information received from or 
created or received by Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity that Business Associate still 
maintains in any form, provide a written certification to Covered Entity that such information has been 
returned or destroyed, and retain no copies of such information, or if such return or destruction is not 
feasible, Business Associate will extend the protections of this Agreement to the information and limit 
further uses and disclosures to those purposes that make the return or destruction of the information 
not feasible. 

VIII. MISCELLANEOUS

Except as expressly stated herein or the HIPAA Rules, the Parties to this Agreement do not intend to 
create any rights in any third parties. The obligations of Business Associate under this Section shall 
survive the expiration, termination, or cancellation of this Agreement, the Underlying Agreement and/or 
the business relationship of the Parties, and shall continue to bind Business Associate, its agents, 
employees, contractors, successors, and assigns as set forth herein. 

This Agreement may be amended or modified only in a writing signed by the Parties.  No Party may 
assign its respective rights and obligations under this Agreement without the prior written consent of 
the other Party. None of the provisions of this Agreement are intended to create, nor will they be 
deemed to create any relationship between the Parties other than that of independent parties 
contracting with each other solely for the purposes of effecting the provisions of this Agreement and 
any other agreements between the Parties evidencing their business relationship.  This Agreement will 
be governed by the laws of the State of Nevada.  No change, waiver or discharge of any liability or 
obligation hereunder on any one or more occasions shall be deemed a waiver of performance of any 
continuing or other obligation, or shall prohibit enforcement of any obligation, on any other occasion. 

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be 
invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of the provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and 
effect.  In addition, in the event a Party believes in good faith that any provision of this Agreement fails 
to comply with the HIPAA Rules, such Party shall notify the other Party in writing.  For a period of up to 
thirty days, the Parties shall address in good faith such concern and amend the terms of this Agreement, 
if necessary to bring it into compliance.  If, after such thirty-day period, the Agreement fails to comply 
with the HIPAA Rules, then either Party has the right to terminate upon written notice to the other 
Party. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the day and year written above. 

COVERED ENTITY: BUSINESS ASSOCIATE: 

By:___________________________  By:___________________________ 

      Mason Van Houweling Name:________________________ 

Title: CEO Title:_________________________ 

Date:__________________________ Date:_________________________ 

Dan Filby

CEO

08 / 12 / 2023

Document Ref: 7YEAW-THANH-IHQSJ-D6CCF Page 13 of 13Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 65 of 84
Page 344 of 853



1 

University Medical Center 
1800 W. Charleston Blvd 
Las Vegas, NV 89102 

ATTESTATION OF PHYSICIAN OWNERSHIP 

I, _________________________________________________, hereby attest as an authorized officer of 

______________________________________________________________________(“Supplier”) that: 

I have read the University Medical Center of Southern Nevada (“UMC”) Policy entitled “Physician-Owned 
Distributorship (POD) Policy” I understand that it is my responsibility to read and understand the Policy or seek 
guidance should I require clarification about the standards and requirements set forth in the Policy.  

Please choose one option: 

⃝ I hereby certify that Supplier does meet the definition of a Physician- Owned Entity as described in the 
Policy. 

The applicable Physician(s) is/are noted below: 

_________________________ 

Printed Name 

------------------------------------------ 

Address 

⃝ I hereby certify that Supplier does not meet the definition of a Physician-Owned Entity as described in the 
Policy. 

If at any time Supplier becomes a Physician-Owned Entity, I agree to report that change within five (5) working 
days to the University Medical Center Corporate Compliance Department or Contracts Management 
Department 

Dan Filby

AccuSourceHR, Inc.

x

Document Ref: 7YEAW-THANH-IHQSJ-D6CCF Page 2 of 13Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 66 of 84
Page 345 of 853



2 

I understand and acknowledge that failure to complete this Attestation truthfully and accurately or to update 
this Attestation, as required, constitutes a breach of Suppliers agreement with UMC, and may also subject its 
physician owners to disciplinary review and action. 

I have read this Attestation of Physician Ownership and do hereby demonstrate my understanding and 
agreement to abide by its terms by affixing my signature on the date indicated below.  

Company Name:  ____________________________________ 

Signature: _________________________________________ Date: _______________________ 

Name: ____________________________________________ 

Title: ______________________________________________ 

Please return a signed copy electronically to melannie.bledsoe@umcsn.com, UMC Contracts Specialist, and the 
signed original to: 

University Medical Center 
Attn: Contracts Management Department 
1800 W. Charleston Blvd. 
Las Vegas, NV 89102 

AccuSourceHR, Inc.

Dan Filby

CEO

08 / 12 / 2023

Document Ref: 7YEAW-THANH-IHQSJ-D6CCF Page 3 of 13Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 67 of 84
Page 346 of 853

mailto:Lauretta.Kehoe@umcsn.com


University Medical Center of Southern Nevada (UMC) 
Technology Requirements 

(Ver. 1/2022) 

Page | 1 

The following UMC technology and information security standards must be met by all vendors and 
partners unless explicitly approved in writing by the UMC Chief Information Officer (CIO) or other 

authorized UMC representative. 

*Please note that all RPF responses marked with the word “yes” are in acknowledgement of
UMCSN’s request and AccuSourceHR agrees to meet the requirements. 

1. Client
1.1. Vendor software must be compatible with Microsoft Windows 10 or higher. Yes
1.2. Application packages must be deployable using Microsoft SCCM. Yes
1.3. Client software must use DNS for hostname resolution and be capable of finding server

resources in either forward or reverse-lookup. Yes 
1.4. Client applications must not require local administrator access on the workstation 

computer. Yes 
1.5. Applications must operate without disabling or reducing security settings. Yes 
1.6. Cloud or browser-based applications will run in standard browsers with standard 

configurations. Yes 
1.7. No part of vendor software will use deprecated dependencies such as Flash or old 

versions of Java. Yes 

2. Configuration Management
2.1. Vendor must provide the following:

2.1.1. technical specifications for all hardware and/or software included with their 
solution.    

Software: MeridianLink’s products are developed in-house and follow appropriate Change 
Management and secure Software Development Life Cycle (SDLC) guidelines. This ensures 
appropriate updates are made in alignment with the appropriate Policies and Procedures. 
To ensure and maintain the security and integrity of programs and data, program changes 
are performed utilizing separate environments for testing and production. MeridianLink 
utilizes a source code management tool to centralize, manage, and maintain the integrity 
of the source code.  
Programming and software version control is also enforced through the application. Each 
time a project is modified, the source code management tool ensures that proper version 
control is maintained by archiving the previous version and creating a new version. 
MeridianLink’s policy requires that all updates or enhancements to any program code 
include documentation of any change within the management tool. This practice helps 
reduce the time it takes for a new programmer to gain an understanding and/or history of 
any changes made to the code. Changes can be made only in the development 
environment. Furthermore, only authorized, designated personnel can update and migrate 
the system changes to production under IT supervision.  

2.1.2. network and system connectivity diagrams, if applicable.  
Infrastructure: MeridianLink’s web-based information systems are hosted at data centers 
in Costa Mesa, California, Atlanta, Georgia, Microsoft Azure Cloud, and AWS Cloud. The 

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 68 of 84
Page 347 of 853



University Medical Center of Southern Nevada (UMC) 
Technology Requirements 

(Ver. 1/2022) 

Page | 2 

network consists of multiple Internet Service Providers (ISP,) as well as numerous 
business-class servers supported by a high-performance infrastructure. Combined, these 
provide industrial security protection standards, and full redundancy services, to 
MeridianLink’s many clients. Additionally, the IT infrastructure includes:  

• Network firewalls
• Intrusion Prevention Systems (IPS)
• Authentication servers
• Routers
• Network switches
• Network load balancers
• Web application firewalls
• Storage Area Network (SAN)
• Enterprise-level DDoS protections
• Anti-malware systems
• Systems, security, and network performance monitoring
• Electronic key access system
• Surveillance system
• Enterprise UPS systems
• Redundant diesel generators

2.1.3. data flow diagrams, if applicable. Please see attached Network Diagram.
2.1.4. regulatory compliance certifications and/or attestations, as applicable.

AccuSourceHR undergoes SOC2 assessments. A copy of the most recent SOC2 report can be 
obtained if an NDA is signed with MeridianLink.  

3. Data Backups
3.1. All vendor systems must support installation of an agent to facilitate data backup and

restoration. Yes 
3.2. Hosted/cloud data must be encrypted and maintain current data backups. Yes 

4. Data Management
4.1. Applications storing, processing or transmitting regulated data (PHI, PII, payment card,

etc.) must utilize test data for development and testing/training purposes. Yes 
4.2. Production data is reserved for production use only. Yes
4.3. Data transfers containing regulated information (PHI, PII, payment card, etc.) from

UMC to a non-UMC site must be approved by the UMC CIO and UMC Privacy Officer. 
Yes 

4.4. Payment card information is not allowed on the UMC network. Yes 
4.5. PCI compliance is required for any exposure to Payment Card Data (PCD). Yes 
4.6. If vendor will use or otherwise have access to UMC sensitive, regulated or confidential 

information, additional security and regulatory requirements may be imposed. Yes 

4.7. Hosted/cloud data should be compliant with all applicable privacy and security 

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 69 of 84
Page 348 of 853



University Medical Center of Southern Nevada (UMC) 
Technology Requirements 

(Ver. 1/2022) 

Page | 3 

regulations. Yes 
4.8. Ownership of data and metadata that are part of SaaS (software as a service) or part of 

any hosted/cloud applications shall be with UMC, and the data shall be provided to UMC 
in a fully usable format. Yes 

4.9. Data exchange/transfers between systems both within and outside the UMC network 
must comply with UMC approved standards and protocols. Yes 

5. Databases
5.1. Databases must be developed on a supported version of Microsoft SQL. Any version

slated for End of Support within (1) calendar year of execution of the agreement in 
question will not be accepted. Yes 

5.2. SQL Databases must be capable of running in an active/passive clustered environment. 
If not feasible, vendor must provide licensing for a dedicated database instance. Yes 

5.3. Vendor must include recommendations for support, integrity maintenance, backup 
schemes, space considerations, etc. for any databases they provide Yes  

5.4. For hosted/cloud databases, administration and management access, tools, and training 
will be provided to UMC authorized users by the vendor. Yes 

5.5. Conversion or migration of data must be coordinated with UMC IT, the UMC business 
stakeholder(s) and the vendor PRIOR TO execution of the agreement in question. 
Yes 

6. Development
6.1. If direct interfacing is required, the vendor system must use Health Level Seven (HL7)

standard interfaces. Yes 
6.2. Deployment of any solution/application that is hosted on a UMC web site must be

developed in Microsoft .Net Framework 4.5 or higher running on IIS Web Server. 
Yes 

6.3. Deployment of any solution/application that is hosted on the UMC Intranet must be 
developed in Microsoft .Net Framework 4.5 or higher running on IIS 10 or higher Web 
Server. Yes 

7. Email
7.1. SMTP servers other than UMCSN SMTP servers are prohibited. Yes
7.2. Outbound email must be authenticated through Microsoft Active Directory. Yes
7.3. Email must not be the system of record for any application or process. Yes

8. Network
8.1. Solutions must support a routed, segmented IP v4 network. Yes
8.2. IPv6 is not supported and must not be enabled. Yes
8.3. Use of a VLAN, firewall and/or other measures may be employed to isolate vendor

solutions that do not comply with industry standard security and network 
requirements. Yes

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 70 of 84
Page 349 of 853



University Medical Center of Southern Nevada (UMC) 
Technology Requirements 

(Ver. 1/2022) 

Page | 4 

 

 

8.4. Wireless devices will meet the following requirements:  
8.4.1. WPA2 PSK AES encryption scheme with minimum 128-bit passkey. Yes 
8.4.2. function effectively with a minimum 70 db RSSI with a 0 to 25 db signal to noise 

level. Yes 
8.4.3. function effectively on channels 802.11.G.N channels 1, 6 or 11. Yes 

8.5. Systems must be compatible with SNMP version 3. Yes 
8.6. For Windows-based operating systems, WMI must be installed and enabled. Yes 
8.7. Vendor must provide minimum and maximum data transmission rates and quantities. 

Yes 
 

9. Remote Access 
9.1. Only remote access solutions directly managed by UMC IT are authorized to be used 

by vendors to remotely connect to the UMC computing environment and systems, 
regardless if the system is owned by the vendor. Yes 

9.2. Control of remote access into the UMC computing environment is at the sole 
discretion of UMC IT. Yes 

9.3. Remote access can be revoked or suspended at any time without notice. Yes 
 

10. Security 
10.1. All applications and systems must be Microsoft Active Directory-integrated using 

standard LDAP configurations. Single sign-on is not currently supported. 
However, it is in the roadmap for future development.  

10.2. All applications must be compliant with UMC’s password policy for all account types 
(user, service account, support, etc.). Yes 

10.3. Passwords must be encrypted and cannot be stored in plain text or reversible 
encryption/encoding within the application. Yes 

10.4. Vendors will not share passwords or access to accounts, and will not create additional 
accounts. Yes 

10.5. Service Accounts must be domain accounts. Yes 
10.6. Service accounts are non-interactive and will not be used to manually log in to a 

workstation or server. Yes 
10.7. Vendor will not have access to service account passwords. Yes 
10.8. Vendor must shut down all non-secure or unused services/ports. Yes 
10.9. Any web-based feature or function must fully run in SSL mode, with valid public or 

domain certificates, and must not rely on deprecated encryption or protocols. Yes 
10.10. Web-enabled applications must be compliant with Internet Explorer 11 or higher, or 

Microsoft Edge. Applications should not require ActiveX components or other ad-hoc 
components not supplied during initial install. Yes 

10.11. Solutions connected to the UMC network must be members of the UMC domain and 
able to accept UMC Microsoft Active Directory Group Policies. Yes 

10.12. Vendor systems must be compatible with UMC’s end point solution. Documented file 
exceptions must be provided by vendor. Yes 

10.13. Audit logs must be generated and be able to be imported into a standard SIEM. Yes 

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 71 of 84
Page 350 of 853



University Medical Center of Southern Nevada (UMC) 
Technology Requirements 

(Ver. 1/2022) 

Page | 5 

 

 

10.14. User access logging must be provided to support user audit trail. Yes 

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 72 of 84
Page 351 of 853



University Medical Center of Southern Nevada (UMC) 
Technology Requirements 

(Ver. 1/2022) 

Page | 6 

10.15. The use of default passwords are strictly prohibited. Yes 

11. Systems and Operations
11.1. VMWare is the standard hypervisor. Yes
11.2. Virtualized server systems are preferred. The guest operating system will run on a

VMWare ESX 6.7 Hyper-converged environment. Yes 
11.3. Vendor-provided solutions must be developed on current and supported industry 

standard operating systems. Yes 
11.4. UMC IT will manage all installed computer hardware unless otherwise documented 

and contractually agreed to by UMC and the vendor. Yes 
11.5. UMC IT will manage operating systems software, including operating system updates, 

asset management agents, backup agents, and anti-virus protection installed on all 
UMC devices unless otherwise documented and contractually agreed to by UMC and 
the vendor. Yes 

11.6. Vendor software must not interfere or invalidate any operational function of UMC 
software or agents Yes 

11.7. Upgrades, enhancements, feature changes, or maintenance to vendor systems or 
software will be performed in coordination with UMC IT. Yes 

11.8. Turn-key solutions that provide hardware and software must use industry standard 
hardware platforms and include appropriate Intelligent Platform Management 
Interfaces (IPMI) for side-band management, and ILO/DRAC that is to be kept current 
for security and features. Yes 

11.9. Hardware supplied by the vendor will be rack mountable, server class, with redundant 
power supplies and storage. Yes 

11.10. UMC will have full administrative rights with respective Administrator, Local 
Administrator and Root accounts. Yes 

11.11. For Fiber Channel SAN-attached storage, the application must be capable of running 
on RAID-DP. Yes 

11.12. Local storage configuration should be capable of RAID 5, other configurations will be 
considered on a case-by-case basis. Yes 

11.13. Virtual machine configurations will have at least 50 GB OS partition; 
application/data/binaries must reside on separate partition(s). Yes 

11.14. Vendor is responsible for remaining up-to-date with operating systems, database 
engines, hardware, interfaced systems, etc. Yes 

11.15. UNIX/Linux-based application will not be installed into the system volume group/root 
file system. Yes 

11.16. Vendor must accommodate and support both standard and emergency operating 
system and application patching. Yes 

11.17. UNIX/Linux-based systems must use SUDO or SU accounts. Yes 

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 73 of 84
Page 352 of 853



TazWorks Network Diagram 

 

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 74 of 84
Page 353 of 853



REPRESENTATIONS AND CERTIFICATIONS 

(TERMS & CONDITIONS HEREIN ARE NON-NEGOTIABLE) 

The prospective proposer, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that 
it and its principals: 

1. That neither it nor any of its subcontractors, or affiliates:
a. Are excluded from participation in any federal health care program, as defined under 42 U.S.C. §1320a-

7b (f), for the provision of items or services for which payment may be made under such federal health
care programs; and

b. Has arranged or contracted (by employment or otherwise) with any employee, contractor or agent that
such party or its affiliates know or should know are excluded from participation in any federal health care
program, to provide items or services hereunder. PROPOSER represents and warrants to UMC that no final
adverse action, as such term is defined under 42 U.S.C. §1320a-7e (g), has occurred or is pending or
threatened against PROPOSER or its affiliates or to their knowledge against any employee, contractor or
agent engaged to provide items or services under this Agreement (collectively “Exclusions / Adverse Actions”).

2. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from
covered transactions by any federal department or agency.

3. Have not within a three (3) year period preceding this Agreement been convicted of or had a civil judgment
rendered against them for commission of fraud or criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or
performing a public (federal, state, or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of federal or
state antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records,
making false statements, or receiving stolen property.

4. Have not within a five (5) year period preceding this proposal been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered
against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or
performing a public (federal, state, or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of federal or
state antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property.

5. Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a government entity (federal, state, or local)
with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph three (3) of this certification.

6. That it has not refused to deal or to conduct business with, abstained from dealing or conducting business with,
terminating business or business activities with or performing any other action that is intended to limit
commercial relations with Israel or a person or entity doing business in Israel or in territories controlled by Israel, in
accordance with Nevada Revised Statute 332.065.

I understand that a false statement on this certification may be grounds for rejection of this proposal or termination of the award. In 
addition, under 18 USC Sec. 1001, a false statement may result in a fine of up to $10,000 or imprisonment for up to five (5) years, or 
both. 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Printed Name & Title of Authorized Representative SOQ Number 

______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Signature of Authorized Representative Date 

I am unable to certify to the above statement.  My explanation is attached. 

Signature  Date  SOQ Number________________

AccuSourceHR, Inc.

Dan Filby, CEO N/A

08 / 12 / 2023

Document Ref: 7YEAW-THANH-IHQSJ-D6CCF Page 6 of 13Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 75 of 84
Page 354 of 853



Phone: +1 (888) 649-6272 
Fax: +1 (888) 649-6244 
Web: www.accusourcehr.com 

08 / 01 / 2023 CW 

 
Scope of Services and Fee Schedule 

Company Name:  University Medical Center of Southern 

Nevada (UMCSN)

Date:  08 / 01 / 2023

Sales Rep:  Kristin Fehrenbacher Email:  kfehrenbacher@accusourcehr.com

Contact Phone:  951-550-8438 Annual Volume:  1800

Packaged Services Price

UMCSN - Basic Package (Volunteers/Students)
Social Security Trace (SST)
County Criminal Direct Search – 7-year search, primary name and all counties based on the Social Security 
Trace (SST)  
Integrated National Criminal Database- 7-year search, primary name based on the Social Security Trace 
(SST)  Includes: 

• National Wants and Warrants
• Multi-State/National Database Criminal Search
• Nationwide Sex Offender Search
• OFAC and additional government databases

SanctionSource Level 1 -Healthcare Compliance Search Basic (Level 1) search - 7-year search, primary 
name based on Social Security Trace (SST) includes:

• Federal exclusions sanctions and debarment databases including OIG/GSA/SAM. Also includes
OFAC as well as medicade saction databases.

$17.25

UMCSN - Basic Package Plus
Social Security Trace (SST)
County Criminal Direct Search – 7-year search, all true names and counties based on the Social Security 
Trace (SST)
Integrated National Criminal Database - 7-year search, all true names based on Social Security Trace 
(SST) Includes: 

• National Wants and Warrants
• Multi-State/National Database Criminal Search
• Nationwide Sex Offender Search
• OFAC and additional government databases

SanctionSource Level 3 - Healthcare Compliance Search Premium (Level 3) Search - 7-year search, all 
true names based on Social Security Trace (SST) includes:

• Federal exclusions sanctions and debarment databases including OIG/GSA/SAM, OFAC as well as
medicade sanction databases. Also includes state licensing and board disciplinary actions data for
all 50 states. Built-in real-time validation against direct source.

$26.25

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 76 of 84
Page 355 of 853

http://www.accusourcehr.com/


Phone: +1 (888) 649-6272 
Fax: +1 (888) 649-6244 
Web: www.accusourcehr.com 

08 / 01 / 2023 CW 

UMCSN - Standard Package - Option 1 + Employment - 7 years, up to 3 employers
Social Security Trace (SST)
County Criminal Direct Search – 7-year search, all true names and counties based on the Social Security 
Trace (SST)
Integrated National Criminal Database - 7-year search, all true names based on Social Security Trace 
(SST) Includes: 

• National Wants and Warrants
• Multi-State/National Database Criminal Search
• Nationwide Sex Offender Search
• OFAC and additional government databases

SanctionSource Level 3 - Healthcare Compliance Search Premium (Level 3) Search - 7-year search, all 
true names based on Social Security Trace (SST) includes:

• Federal exclusions sanctions and debarment databases including OIG/GSA/SAM, OFAC as well as 
medicade sanction databases. Also includes state licensing and board disciplinary actions data for 
all 50 states. Built-in real-time validation against direct source.

Employment Verification - 7 years, up to 3 employers

$42.50

UMCSN - Standard Package - Option 2 + Employment - 7 years, up to 2 employers
Social Security Trace (SST)
County Criminal Direct Search – 7-year search, all true names and counties based on the Social Security 
Trace (SST)
Integrated National Criminal Database - 7-year search, all true names based on Social Security Trace 
(SST) Includes: 

• National Wants and Warrants
• Multi-State/National Database Criminal Search
• Nationwide Sex Offender Search
• OFAC and additional government databases

SanctionSource Level 3 - Healthcare Compliance Search Premium (Level 3) Search - 7-year search, all 
true names based on Social Security Trace (SST) includes:

• Federal exclusions sanctions and debarment databases including OIG/GSA/SAM, OFAC as well as 
medicade sanction databases. Also includes state licensing and board disciplinary actions data for 
all 50 states. Built-in real-time validation against direct source.

Employment Verification - 7 years, up to 2 employers

$39.25

UMCSN - Standard Package - Option 3 + Employment - 7 years, up to 1 employer
Social Security Trace (SST)
County Criminal Direct Search – 7-year search, all true names and counties based on the Social Security 
Trace (SST)
Integrated National Criminal Database - 7-year search, all true names based on Social Security Trace 
(SST) Includes: 

• National Wants and Warrants
• Multi-State/National Database Criminal Search
• Nationwide Sex Offender Search
• OFAC and additional government databases

SanctionSource Level 3 - Healthcare Compliance Search Premium (Level 3) Search - 7-year search, all 
true names based on Social Security Trace (SST) includes:

• Federal exclusions sanctions and debarment databases including OIG/GSA/SAM, OFAC as well as 
medicade sanction databases. Also includes state licensing and board disciplinary actions data for 
all 50 states. Built-in real-time validation against direct source.

Employment Verification - includes (1) employment verification 

$32.75

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 77 of 84
Page 356 of 853

http://www.accusourcehr.com/


Phone: +1 (888) 649-6272 
Fax: +1 (888) 649-6244 
Web: www.accusourcehr.com 

08 / 01 / 2023 CW 

UMCSN - Professional/Licensed Staff - Option 1 + Employment - 7 years, up to 3 employers
Social Security Trace (SST)
County Criminal Direct Search – 7-year search, all true names and counties based on the Social Security 
Trace (SST)
Integrated National Criminal Database - 7-year search, all true names based on Social Security Trace 
(SST) Includes: 

• National Wants and Warrants
• Multi-State/National Database Criminal Search
• Nationwide Sex Offender Search
• OFAC and additional government databases

SanctionSource Level 3 - Healthcare Compliance Search Premium (Level 3) Search - 7-year search, all 
true names based on Social Security Trace (SST) includes:

• Federal exclusions sanctions and debarment databases including OIG/GSA/SAM, OFAC as well as 
medicade sanction databases. Also includes state licensing and board disciplinary actions data for 
all 50 states. Built-in real-time validation against direct source.

Employment Verification - 7 years, up to 3 employers
Education Verification - Highest degree earned
Professional License Verification - includes (1) license verification 

$55.45

UMCSN - Professional/Licensed Staff - Option 2 + Employment - 7 years, up to 2 employers
Social Security Trace (SST)
County Criminal Direct Search – 7-year search, all true names and counties based on the Social Security 
Trace (SST)
Integrated National Criminal Database - 7-year search, all true names based on Social Security Trace 
(SST) Includes: 

• National Wants and Warrants
• Multi-State/National Database Criminal Search
• Nationwide Sex Offender Search
• OFAC and additional government databases

SanctionSource Level 3 - Healthcare Compliance Search Premium (Level 3) Search - 7-year search, all 
true names based on Social Security Trace (SST) includes:

• Federal exclusions sanctions and debarment databases including OIG/GSA/SAM, OFAC as well as 
medicade sanction databases. Also includes state licensing and board disciplinary actions data for 
all 50 states. Built-in real-time validation against direct source.

Employment Verification - 7 years, up to 2 employers
Education Verification - Highest degree earned
Professional License Verification - includes (1) license verification 

$52.20

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 78 of 84
Page 357 of 853

http://www.accusourcehr.com/


Phone: +1 (888) 649-6272 
Fax: +1 (888) 649-6244 
Web: www.accusourcehr.com 

08 / 01 / 2023 CW 

UMCSN - Professional/Licensed Staff - Option 3 + Employment - 7 years, up to 1 employer
Social Security Trace (SST)
County Criminal Direct Search – 7-year search, all true names and counties based on the Social Security 
Trace (SST)
Integrated National Criminal Database - 7-year search, all true names based on Social Security Trace 
(SST) Includes: 

• National Wants and Warrants
• Multi-State/National Database Criminal Search
• Nationwide Sex Offender Search
• OFAC and additional government databases

SanctionSource Level 3 - Healthcare Compliance Search Premium (Level 3) Search - 7-year search, all 
true names based on Social Security Trace (SST) includes:

• Federal exclusions sanctions and debarment databases including OIG/GSA/SAM, OFAC as well as 
medicade sanction databases. Also includes state licensing and board disciplinary actions data for 
all 50 states. Built-in real-time validation against direct source.

Employment Verification - includes (1) verification
Education Verification - Highest degree earned
Professional License Verification - includes (1) license verification 

$45.70

SanctionsSource Premium Monthly Monitoring (Level 3)
Federal exclusions sanctions and debarment databases including OIG/GSA/SAM, OFAC as well as 
medicade sanction databases. Also includes state licensing and board disciplinary actions data for all 50 
states. Built-in real-time validation against direct source.(price is per employee per month, billed monthly)

$1.00

Product 

Turn-Around Time
(Averages but vary based 
on service, location, court 

delays/closures, etc.)

 
 
 

Price
Court Record Searches 

County Criminal Direct Search
Service: A search for criminal convictions at the appropriate county courts. 
Records are available in each county throughout the United States.

Same day – 3 business 
days

$5.00

Federal Criminal Primary Records Search
Service: A search for criminal convictions at the appropriate federal district 
court. Records are available in all federal district throughout the United 
States.

Same day – 3 business 
days

$4.00

Database Record Searches 

Statewide Criminal Record Search
Service: A statewide search for criminal records at the state repository or 
direct court level. Records are available in most states throughout the United 
States.

Varies by state $3.50

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 79 of 84
Page 358 of 853

http://www.accusourcehr.com/


Phone: +1 (888) 649-6272 
Fax: +1 (888) 649-6244 
Web: www.accusourcehr.com 

08 / 01 / 2023 CW 

Global Watchlist
Service: A search of a database compiled from lists provided by U.S. and 
various international governmental agencies of individuals who may be 
involved in terrorist activities, money laundering, illegal imports, fraud 
against government agencies, violations of federal banking regulations, and 
fugitives from justice.

Instant $2.50

Integrated National Criminal Database
Service: Search of National Wants and Warrants, Multi-State/National 
Database Criminal Search, Nationwide Sex Offender Search, OFAC and 
additional government databases

Instant $3.00

Nationwide Sex Offender Registry
Service: A nationwide search of sex offender records

A few Hours - Same Day  
(No hits)

$2.50

National Practitioner Data Bank (NPDB) and Healthcare Integrity 
Protection Data Bank (HIPDB)

 $6.25

SanctionSource Level 1 -Healthcare Compliance Search Basic 
(Level 1) Search 
Service: A search of a government-maintained database of individuals 
disbarred from participation in government-funded programs searches are 
conducted. Searches conducted are for federal exclusions databases.

Instant $2.50

SanctionSource Level 3 - Healthcare Compliance Search 
Premium (Level 3) Search 
Service: A search of a government maintained database of individuals 
disbarred from participation in government-funded programs searches are 
conducted. Searches conducted are for federal and for all fifty (50) states.

A few Hours - Same Day  
(No hits)

$5.00

Healthcare Compliance Search Premium Monthly Monitoring 
(Level 3) Search
Service: A search of a government-maintained database of individuals 
disbarred from participation in government-funded programs searches are 
conducted. Searches conducted are for federal and for all fifty (50) states. 
Built-in real-time validation against direct source. (*Pricing is per 
employee/per month. Billed monthly.)

N/A $1.00

Verification Searches 

Education Verification (Highest Degree Earned)
Service: Verifies a person’s educational history which can help eliminate 
falsified or overstated credentials.

1-3 business days $6.50

Employment Verification (Per Employer)
Service: Verifies a person’s past and/or present work experience (including 
military verification)

1-3 business days $6.50

Professional References (Per Reference)
Service: Surveying an applicant’s professional references with pre-formatted 
questions regarding their professional character and work performance.

1-3 business days $7.45

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 80 of 84
Page 359 of 853

http://www.accusourcehr.com/


Phone: +1 (888) 649-6272 
Fax: +1 (888) 649-6244 
Web: www.accusourcehr.com 

08 / 01 / 2023 CW 

License Verification (Per License)
Service: Verifies status of professional license or certification.

1-3 business days $6.45

MVR Services

Motor Vehicle Record (Per State)
Service: A search of the state Bureau of Motor Vehicle records for driver 
information.

Most states instant $2.00

Additional Services 

Social Security Number Trace (SST)
Service: A search of credit headers and other database sources to provide 
history of the applicant’s names and addresses as they originate from credit 
headers. SST is recommended as the search criterion identifier for criminal 
history searches.

A few Hours – Same Day $1.75

Credit History
Service: A search for credit bureau records to obtain a profile of the 
applicant’s financial seven-year history. Records may detail overdue or slow 
accounts, charge offs, collections, suits, tax liens, public records, 
judgements and bankruptcies. (this search should be reserved for positions 
with access to cash or other negotiable instruments or requiring financial or 
executive decision-making due to restrictions in several jurisdictions limiting 
use in employment)

A few Hours – Same Day $8.00

Federal Bankruptcy Search
Service: A search for bankruptcy records at appropriate federal district court. 
10-year history provided. Records are available in all federal district 
throughout the United States.

A few Hours – Same Day $4.00

Miscellaneous 

Database verification fee, if applicable
Verification of hits on criminal database at the appropriate jurisdiction. Does 
not include applicable court access fees. Per FCRA compliance, all hits on 
National Criminal Database MUST be verified at the actual court of 
jurisdiction.

N/A $5.00

Additional Research Fee
Additional fee for direct applicant contact or extended research beyond the 
standard product scope. Rate is applied per file (not individual component.)

N/A $7.50

Credit Credentialing Fee
If requesting initial set-up of credit history, please allow 5-7 business days 
for TransUnion to issue a subscriber code. Subscriber codes will be issued 
after all credit credentialing paperwork and site inspection is 
returned/completed. 

N/A $130.00

NeoGov Integration Fee
Additional fees from NeoGov may apply, please contact your NeoGov 
Representative for costs. 

Per Hour - Standard 
Integrations is averaged at 
2 hours 

$250.00

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 81 of 84
Page 360 of 853

http://www.accusourcehr.com/


Phone: +1 (888) 649-6272 
Fax: +1 (888) 649-6244 
Web: www.accusourcehr.com 

08 / 01 / 2023 CW 

Set-up Fee
If requesting initial set-up of Drug Screening services, please allow 7-10 
business days for laboratory account set-up. Set-up fee waived.

N/A $0.00

International Criminal Services are available with individual country/territory pricing provided upon request. 

Prices do not include court fees, third party veri�cation charge which may apply when an employer or educational institution

has outsourced management of their records or MVR state fees. All alias and or all address searches include all jurisdictions

and true alias names identi�ed on the Social Security Trace unless otherwise de�ned. Due to the name-based �ling system

used by the courts, all court research is conducted on a per-name basis. There is an additional charge for searching AKA’s or

alias names unless bundled in a package to include all true alias names. There is a $1.00 fee for a canceled �le. If any service

is processed prior to cancellation, the service is charged to the �le. “Hits” from criminal database searches must be veri�ed at

the court of jurisdiction to meet FCRA requirements, additional charges will apply (noted above under Miscellaneous,

database veri�cation fee)

Notes: 

* All court and data base searches are priced per name. Any additional name will be the same price as the searches 
requested. 

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 82 of 84
Page 361 of 853

http://www.accusourcehr.com/


COUNTY CRIMINAL COURT ACCESS FEES 
Subject to change without notice 

888.649.6272 accusourcehr.com 11811 N. Tatum Blvd. Suite 3090, Phoenix, AZ 85028 

State County Fee 
Alabama All Counties $1.65 

Alaska All Counties $1.25 
Arizona All Counties $1.25 

Arkansas 

All Counties $1.25 
Carroll & Howard $1.00 
Pope & Yell $3.00 
Craighead $3.80 
Mississippi $4.00 
Calhoun, Chicot, Cleburne, 
Conway, Desha, Franklin, 
Greene, Hempstead, Jefferson, 
Johnson, Lawrence, Miller, 
Perry, Phillips, Saint Francis & 
Washington 

$5.00 

Bradley, Izard, Nevada, 
Randolph & Sharp $6.00 

Clark & Grant $10.00 
Clay $12.00 
Lee $20.00 

California 

All Counties $1.25 
Colusa $1.55 
Siskiyou $2.65 
Kings $2.95 
Imperial $3.23 
Lassen $3.30 
Humboldt $4.25 
Sacramento $4.33 
Mariposa $4.50 
Los Angeles $5.00 
Alpine, Inyo, Medocino, Modoc, 
Mono, Sierra & Trinity $15.00 

Colorado 
All Counties $2.45 
Denver $5.35 

Connecticut All Counties $1.25 
Delaware All Counties $1.25 
District of 
Columbia All Counties $1.25 

All Counties $1.25 

State County Fee 
Suwannee, Taylor, Union, 
Walton & Washington $2.00 

Hawaii All Counties $3.50 
Idaho All Counties $2.00 

Illinois 
All Counties $2.25 
Fulton $5.00 

Indiana All Counties $1.25 
Iowa All Counties $1.25 

Kansas 
All Counties $1.25 
Douglas & Shawnee $3.00 

Kentucky All Counties $1.25 

Louisiana 
All Counties $1.25 
Evangeline $5.00 
Tensas $20.00 

Maine All Counties $31.00 
Maryland All Counties $1.25 

Massachusetts All Counties $1.25 

Michigan 

All Counties $1.25 
Benzie $3.00 
Chippewa, Crawford, Emmet, 
Kalkaska, Mainstee, Midland, 
Missaukee, Montmorency, 
Otsego & Presque Isle 

$5.00 

Barry, Charlevoix, Huron, 
Lenawee, Mackinac, Mescosta, 
Oceana, Ogemaw, Osceola, 
Ottawa, Rosscommon, Tuscola & 
Van Buren 

$10.00 

Ionia $12.00 
Baraga & Menominee $15.00 
Clare $16.00 
Montcalm $17.00 
Baraga, Charlevoix & 
Menominee $15.00 

Gladwin $19.00 
Alcona, Alger, Arenac, Berrien, 
Branch, Dickinson, Hillsdale, 
Iosco, Keweenaw, Marquette, 
Oscoda, Sanilac & Schoolcraft 

$20.00 

Ontonagon $30.00 

Florida 

Florida 

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 83 of 84
Page 362 of 853



COUNTY CRIMINAL COURT ACCESS FEES 
Subject to change without notice 

888.649.6272 accusourcehr.com 11811 N. Tatum Blvd. Suite 3090, Phoenix, AZ 85028 

State County Fee 
Delta & Iron $40.00 
Gogebic $50.00 

Minnesota All Counties $1.25 

Mississippi 

All Counties $1.25 
Jackson & Pearl River $1.00 
Mississippi $2.50 
Warren $5.00 
Greene & Hancock $10.00 
George $12.50 
Perry $15.00 

Missouri All Counties $0.50 

Montana 

All Counties $1.25 
Lake $10.00 
Phillips $14.00 
Yellowstone $17.00 
Pondera & Teton $17.50 
Deer Lodge, Prairie, Ravalli & 
Roosevelt $19.00 

Granite $21.00 
Beaverhead, Carbon, Cascade, 
Missoula, Rosebud & Silver Bow $24.00 

Blaine, Broadwater, Carter, 
Chouteau, Daniels, Dawson, 
Glacier, Judith Basin, Lewis and 
Clark, Liberty, Lincoln, Madison, 
Meager, Petroleum, Sanders, 
Sheridan, Stillwater, Sweet 
Grass, Valley, Wheatland & 
Wibaux 

$28.00 

Fergus & Toole $29.00 
Jefferson $34.00 
Big Horn, Custer, Fallon, 
Flathead, Gallatin, Garfield, 
Golden Valley, Hill, Mccone, 
Mineral, Mussselshell, Park, 
Powder River, Powell, Richland 
& Treasure 

$39.00 

Nebraska All Counties $1.25 
Nevada All Counties $1.25 

State County Fee 
Carson City, Churchill, Douglas, 
Elko, Eureka, Lander, Lincoln, 
Lyon, Mineral, Storey & White 
Plain 

$0.50 

Washoe 
Nye 

New 
Hampshire 

All Counties $10.00 
Hillsborough $20.00 

New Jersey All Counties $5.00 
New Mexico All Counties $1.25 

New York All Counties $98.00 
North Carolina All Counties $1.60 
North Dakota All Counties $1.25 

Ohio All Counties $1.25 
Oklahoma All Counties $1.25 

Oregon All Counties $1.25 
Pennsylvania All Counties $1.25 
Rhode Island All Counties $1.25 

South Carolina All Counties $1.25 
South Dakota All Counties $20.00 

Tennessee 

All Counties $1.25 
Marion $3.00 
Benton & Bledsoe $5.00 
Huston & Humphreys $7.00 
Johnson $10.00 
Knox $15.00 

Texas 
All Counties $1.25 
Lubbock & Parmer $5.00 
Refugio $10.00 

Utah All Counties $0.20 
Vermont All Counties $1.25 
Virginia All Counties $1.25 

Washington All Counties $5.00 
West Virginia All Counties $1.25 

Wisconsin All Counties $1.25 
Wyoming All Counties $20.00 

AccuSourceHR_TW_County Criminal Access Fees_11.09.2023 

Michigan 

Nevada 

$1.00 
$1.50 

Document Ref: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO Page 84 of 84
Page 363 of 853



Signature Certificate
Reference number: VPGGV-TXXAZ-325DZ-GTCMO

Document completed by all parties on:
06 Feb 2024 08:34:01 UTC

Page 1 of 1

Signer Timestamp Signature

Dan Filby
Email: dfilby@accusourcehr.com

Recipient Verification:

Sent: 05 Feb 2024 23:35:06 UTC
Viewed: 06 Feb 2024 08:32:15 UTC
Signed: 06 Feb 2024 08:34:01 UTC

✔Email verified 06 Feb 2024 08:32:15 UTC IP address: 166.205.147.111

Signed with PandaDoc

PandaDoc is a document workflow and certified eSignature
solution trusted by 50,000+ companies worldwide.

Page 364 of 853



DISCLOSURE OF OWNERSHIP/PRINCIPALS

Business Entity Type (Please select one)

Sole 
Proprietorship

Partnership Corporation Trust
Non-Profit  

Organization
Other

Business Designation Group (Please select all that apply)

MBE WBE SBE PBE VET DVET ESB
Minority Business 
Enterprise

Women-Owned 
Business Enterprise

Small Business 
Enterprise

Physically Challenged 
Business Enterprise

Veteran Owned 
Business

Disabled Veteran 
Owned Business

Emerging Small 
Business

Number of Clark County Nevada Residents Employed:

Corporate/Business Entity Name:

(Include d.b.a., if applicable)

Street Address: Website:

City, State and Zip Code:
POC Name:

Email:

Telephone No: Fax No:

Nevada Local Street Address:

(If different from above)

Website:

City, State and Zip Code: Local Fax No:

Local Telephone No:
Local POC Name:

Email:

All entities, with the exception of publicly-traded and non-profit organizations, must list the names of individuals holding more than five percent (5%) ownership or 
financial interest in the business entity appearing before the Board.

Publicly-traded entities and non-profit organizations shall list all Corporate Officers and Directors in lieu of disclosing the names of individuals with ownership or 
financial interest. The disclosure requirement, as applied to land-use applications, extends to the applicant and the landowner(s).

Entities include all business associations organized under or governed by Title 7 of the Nevada Revised Statutes, including but not limited to private corporations, close 
corporations, foreign corporations, limited liability companies, partnerships, limited partnerships, and professional corporations.

Full Name Title % Owned
(Not required for Publicly Traded 

Corporations/Non-profit organizations)

This section is not required for publicly-traded corporations. Are you a publicly-traded corporation?     Yes    No

1. Are any individual members, partners, owners or principals, involved in the business entity, a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time employee(s), or 
appointed/elected official(s)?

Yes No (If yes, please note that University Medical Center of Southern Nevada employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s) may not perform 
any work on professional service contracts, or other contracts, which are not subject to competitive bid.)

2. Do any individual members, partners, owners or principals have a spouse, registered domestic partner, child, parent, in-law or brother/sister, half-brother/half-sister,
grandchild, grandparent,  related to a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s)?

Yes No (If yes, please complete the Disclosure of Relationship form on Page 2.  If no, please print N/A on Page 2.)

I certify under penalty of perjury, that all of the information provided herein is current, complete, and accurate. I also understand that the University Medical Center of 
Southern Nevada Governing Board will not take action on land-use approvals, contract approvals, land sales, leases or exchanges without the completed disclosure form.

Signature Print Name

Title Date

List any disclosures below:
(Mark N/A, if not applicable.)

Limited Liability 
Company

Page 365 of 853



Page 366 of 853



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
February 28, 2024 

 
 

 

Agenda Item #  

14 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD  

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Issue: Award RFP No. 2023-08, FMLA Administrative and Other Related 

Leave Services to AbsencePlus Administrators 
 

 
Back-up: 
      

 
Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer 

 
Clerk Ref. # 
      

 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Governing Board award the RFP 2023-08, FMLA Administrative and Other 
Related Leave Services to AbsencePlus Administrators; authorize the Chief Executive 
Officer to sign the RFP No. 2023-08 Service Agreement; execute extensions and 
amendments; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
Fund Number:  5420.000     Fund Name:  UMC Operating Fund 
Fund Center:  3000854000     Funded Pgm/Grant:  N/A 
Description:  FMLA Administrative and Other Related Leave Services 
Bid/RFP/CBE:  RFP 2023-08 
Term:  5 years  
Amount:  NTE $1,835,567 
Out Clause:  15 days w/o cause 
 

BACKGROUND: 
 
On June 9, 2023, a notice for RFP 2023-08, FMLA Administrative and Other Related Leave Services was 
published in the Las Vegas Review Journal and posted on the Nevada Government eMarketplace (NGEM) 
Portal. On August 3, 2023, responses were received from: 
  
 AbsencePlus Administrators 

ComPsych   
 Total Administrative Services Corporation 
 
An ad hoc committee reviewed the proposals independently and anonymously, and recommends the selection 
of, and contract approval with AbsencePlus Administrators (“AbsencePlus”).  
 
AbsencePlus will act as an extension of the UMC Human Resources department in all FMLA and other leave 
processes and must be capable of managing the program in such a way that ensures all functions and tasks are 
completed on time, within budget, and in accordance with all applicable federal, state, and local requirements, 
statues, and regulations. AbsencePlus will be available to UMC to accommodate reporting requirements, staff 
meetings, and audits. Staff also requests authorization for the Hospital CEO to execute extension options and 

Page 367 of 853



Page Number 
2 

amendments that are within his yearly delegation of authority. The Agreement term is for five (5) years from 
the Effective date at a NTE cost of $1,835,567. Either party may terminate this Agreement with a 15-day 
written notice to the other. 
 
UMC’s Director of Human Resources Operations has reviewed and recommends award of this Agreement.  
This Agreement has been approved as to form by UMC’s Office of General Counsel. 
 
This Agreement was reviewed by the Governing Board Audit and Finance Committee at their February 21, 
2024 meeting and recommended for award by the Governing Board. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 368 of 853



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER 
OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 

AGREEMENT FOR  
2023-08 FMLA ADMINISTRATIVE AND OTHER RELATED LEAVE 

SERVICES 

COMPONE ADMINISTRATORS, INC. D/B/A ABSENCEPLUS 

NAME OF FIRM 

Robert Dewey, Chief Client Officer 

DESIGNATED CONTACT, NAME AND TITLE 
(Please type or print) 

39500 High Pointe Blvd. Ste. 400 
Novi, MI 49302 

ADDRESS OF FIRM 
INCLUDING CITY, STATE AND ZIP CODE 

(616) 334-7345 
(AREA CODE) AND TELEPHONE NUMBER 

rdewey@absenceplus.com 

E-MAIL ADDRESS 

Page 369 of 853



 

AGREEMENT FOR RFP 2023-08  
FMLA ADMINISTRATIVE AND OTHER RELATED LEAVE SERVICES 

 
This Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into as of the last date of signature set forth below (the 

“Effective Date”), by and between UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA, a publicly owned and 

operated hospital created by virtue of Chapter 450 of the Nevada Revised Statutes (hereinafter referred to as 

“HOSPITAL”), and COMPONE ADMINISTRATORS, INC. d/b/a ABSENCEPLUS. (hereinafter referred to as 

“COMPANY”), for FMLA Administrative and Other Related Leave Services (hereinafter referred to as “PROJECT”). 

 

W I T N E S S E T H: 

WHEREAS, COMPANY has the personnel and resources necessary to accomplish the PROJECT within the 

required schedule and with a budget allowance not to exceed $1,830,567.00 as further described herein; and 

WHEREAS, COMPANY has the required licenses and/or authorizations pursuant to all federal, State of Nevada 

and local laws in order to conduct business relative to this Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, HOSPITAL and COMPANY agree as follows: 

SECTION I: TERM OF AGREEMENT 

The term of this Agreement shall commence on the date of last signature by the Parties below (the “Effective Date”) and 

shall continue for a term of Five years (“Term”). During this period, COMPANY agrees to provide services as required by 

HOSPITAL within the scope of this Agreement.  

SECTION II: COMPENSATION AND TERMS OF PAYMENT 
A. Terms of Payments 

1. HOSPITAL agrees to pay COMPANY for the performance of services described in the Scope of Work 

(Exhibit A) for the fees set forth on Exhibit B not-to-exceed $1,830,567.00 during the Term. COMPANY 

may invoice monthly at the rates set forth in Exhibit B for the claims processed.  It is expressly understood 

that the entire Scope of Work defined in Exhibit A must be completed by COMPANY and it shall be 

COMPANY's responsibility to ensure that hours and tasks are properly budgeted so the entire PROJECT 

is completed for the said fee. 

2. Payment of invoices will be made within forty-five (45) calendar days after receipt of an accurate invoice 

that has been reviewed and approved by HOSPITAL. 

3. HOSPITAL, at its discretion, may not approve or issue payment on invoices if COMPANY fails to provide 

the following information required on each invoice: 

i. The title of the PROJECT as stated in Exhibit A, Scope of Work, itemized description of products 

delivered or services rendered and amount due, Purchase Order Number, Invoice Date, Invoice 

Period, Invoice Number, Approved a la carte services not included in monthly services, and the 

Payment Remittance Address  

ii. Expenses not defined in Exhibit A, Scope of Work will not be paid without prior written 

authorization by HOSPITAL. 

iii. HOSPITAL’s representative shall notify COMPANY in writing within fourteen (14) calendar days 

of any disputed amount included on the invoice. COMPANY must submit a new invoice for the 

Page 370 of 853



 

undisputed amount which will be paid in accordance with this paragraph A.2 above. Upon mutual 

resolution of the disputed amount, COMPANY will submit a new invoice for the agreed amount 

and payment will be made in accordance with this paragraph A.2 above. 

4. No penalty will be imposed on HOSPITAL if HOSPITAL fails to pay COMPANY within ninety (90) calendar 

days after receipt of a properly documented invoice, and HOSPITAL will receive no discount for payment 

within that period. 

5. HOSPITAL shall subtract from any payment made to COMPANY all damages, costs and expenses 

caused by COMPANY's negligence, resulting from or arising out of errors or omissions in COMPANY's 

work products, which have not been previously paid to COMPANY. 

6.         HOSPITAL shall not provide payment or be liable for any loss, liability, or cost whatsoever arising from 

any unauthorized performance of service.  

7. HOSPITAL shall not provide payment on any invoice COMPANY submits after six (6) months from the 

date COMPANY performs services, provides deliverables, and/or meets milestones, as agreed upon in 

Exhibit A, Scope of Work. 

8. Invoices shall be submitted to:  University Medical Center of Southern Nevada, Attn:  Accounts Payable, 

1800 W. Charleston Blvd., Las Vegas, NV 89102. 

B. HOSPITAL’s Fiscal Limitations 

1. The content of this section shall apply to the entire Agreement and shall take precedence over any 

conflicting terms and conditions, and shall limit HOSPITAL’s financial responsibility as indicated in 

Sections 2 and 3 below. 

2. In accordance with the Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS 354.626), the financial obligations under this 

Agreement between the parties shall not exceed those monies appropriated and approved by HOSPITAL 

for the then-current fiscal year under the Local Government Budget Act. This Agreement shall terminate 

and HOSPITAL's obligations under it shall be extinguished at the end of any of HOSPITAL's fiscal years 

in which HOSPITAL’s governing body fails to appropriate monies for the ensuing fiscal year sufficient for 

the payment of all amounts which could then become due under this Agreement. HOSPITAL agrees that 

this section shall not be utilized as a subterfuge or in a discriminatory fashion as it relates to this 

Agreement. In the event this section is invoked, this Agreement will expire on the 30th day of June of the 

then-current fiscal year. Termination under this section shall not relieve HOSPITAL of its obligations 

incurred through the 30th day of June of the fiscal year for which monies were appropriated. 

3. HOSPITAL’s total liability for all charges for services which may become due under this Agreement is 

limited to the total maximum expenditure(s) authorized in HOSPITAL’s purchase order(s) to COMPANY. 

SECTION III: SCOPE OF WORK 

Services to be performed by COMPANY for the PROJECT shall consist of the work described in the Scope of Work as 

set forth in Exhibit A of this Agreement, attached hereto. In the event of a conflict between the terms of this Agreement 

and the terms in the Scope of Work, the terms of this Agreement shall prevail. Company shall meet or exceed the 

guarantied metrics set forth on Exhibit A-2. 

SECTION IV: CHANGES TO SCOPE OF WORK 

A. HOSPITAL may at any time, by written order, make changes within the general scope of this Agreement and in the 

Page 371 of 853



 

services or work to be performed.  If such changes cause an increase or decrease in COMPANY's cost or time 

required for performance of any services under this Agreement, an equitable adjustment limited to an amount within 

current unencumbered budgeted appropriations for the PROJECT shall be made and this Agreement shall be 

modified in writing accordingly. Any claim of COMPANY for the adjustment under this clause must be submitted in 

writing within thirty (30) calendar days from the date of receipt by COMPANY of notification of change unless 

HOSPITAL grants a further period of time before the date of final payment under this Agreement. 

B. No services for which an additional compensation will be charged by COMPANY shall be furnished without the written 

authorization of HOSPITAL. 

SECTION V: RESPONSIBILITY OF COMPANY  
C. It is understood that in the performance of the services herein provided for, COMPANY shall be, and is, an 

independent contractor, and is not an agent, representative or employee of HOSPITAL and shall furnish such services 

in its own manner and method except as required by this Agreement. Further, COMPANY has and shall retain the 

right to exercise full control over the employment, direction, compensation and discharge of all persons employed by 

COMPANY in the performance of the services hereunder. COMPANY shall be solely responsible for, and shall 

indemnify, defend and hold HOSPITAL harmless from all matters relating to the payment of its employees, including 

compliance with social security, withholding and all other wages, salaries, benefits, taxes, demands, and regulations 

of any nature whatsoever. 

B. COMPANY shall appoint a dedicated account executive (project manager), dedicated implementation and system 

configuration specialist, four leave specialists, operations supervisor, day to day contact for HR team and employees, 

and legal and policy review professional for which eight hours is provided. All of the services specified by this 

Agreement shall be performed by the Manager, or by COMPANY's associates and employees under the personal 

supervision of the Manager. Should the Manager, or any employee of COMPANY be unable to complete his or her 

responsibility for any reason, COMPANY must obtain written approval by HOSPITAL prior to replacing him or her with 

another equally qualified person. If COMPANY fails to make a required replacement within fifteen (15) days, 

HOSPITAL may terminate this Agreement for default. 

C. COMPANY has, or will, retain such employees as it may need to perform the services required by this Agreement. 

Such employees shall not be employed by the HOSPITAL. 

D. COMPANY agrees that its officers and employees will cooperate with HOSPITAL in the performance of services 

under this Agreement and will be available for consultation with HOSPITAL at such reasonable times with advance 

notice as to not conflict with their other responsibilities. 

E. COMPANY will follow HOSPITAL's relevant compliance policies as followed by HOSPITAL's staff in regard to 

programming changes; testing; change control; and other similar activities, including its corporate compliance 

program, HOSPITAL’s Policy (Contracted Non-Employees/Allied Health Non- Credentialed /Dependent Allied Health 

/ Temporary Staff / Construction/Third Party Equipment), and HOSPITAL’s Vaccine Policy as may be amended from 

time to time. HOSPITAL will provide a copy of said policy upon COMPANY request. COMPANY must register through 

HOSITAL’s vendor management/credentialing system prior to arriving onsite at any of HOSPITAL’s facilities.  Should 

the Project involve a continuous presence by COMPANY’s employees or agents onsite at HOSPITAL’s facilities, 

COMPANY may be required to complete HOSPITAL’s onboarding process and abide by onboarding requirements of 

HOSPITAL’s Human Resources Department.  COMPANY’s employees, agents, subcontractors and/or designees 

Page 372 of 853



 

who do not abide by HOSPITAL’s policies may be barred from physical access to HOSPITAL’s premises 

F. COMPANY shall be responsible for the professional quality, technical accuracy, timely completion, and coordination 

of all services furnished by COMPANY, its subcontractors and its and their principals, officers, employees and agents 

under this Agreement. In performing the specified services, COMPANY shall follow practices consistent with generally 

accepted professional and technical standards. COMPANY further agree that for a period of one year following 

completion of its work, or such longer period as may be indicated in the specification, COMPANY will replace or repair 

any product it provides or installs because of defects in workmanship or materials, except to the extent the failure 

results from negligence of HOSPITAL. COMPANY expressly disclaims all other warranties, whether implied or 

statutory, including but not limited to, any warranty of merchantability or fitness for a particular purpose. 

G. It shall be the duty of COMPANY to assure that all products of its effort are technically sound and in conformance 

with all pertinent Federal, State and Local statutes, codes, ordinances, resolutions and other regulations. If applicable, 

COMPANY will not produce a work product which violates or infringes on any copyright or patent rights. COMPANY 

shall, without additional compensation, correct or revise any errors or omissions in its work products:   

1. Permitted or required approval by HOSPITAL of any products or services furnished by COMPANY shall not 

in any way relieve COMPANY of responsibility for the professional and technical accuracy and adequacy of 

its work.  

2. HOSPITAL’s review, approval, acceptance, or payment for any of COMPANY's services herein shall not be 

construed to operate as a waiver of any rights under this Agreement or of any cause of action arising out of 

the performance of this Agreement, and COMPANY shall be and remain liable in accordance with the terms 

of this Agreement and applicable law for all damages to HOSPITAL caused by COMPANY's performance or 

failures to perform under this Agreement. 

H. All materials, information, and documents, whether finished, unfinished, drafted, developed, prepared, completed, or 

acquired by COMPANY for HOSPITAL relating to the services to be performed hereunder and not otherwise used or 

useful in connection with services previously rendered, or services to be rendered, by COMPANY to parties other 

than HOSPITAL shall become the property of HOSPITAL and shall be delivered to HOSPITAL's representative upon 

completion or termination of this Agreement, whichever comes first. COMPANY shall not be liable for damages, 

claims, and losses arising out of any reuse of any work products on any other project conducted by HOSPITAL. 

HOSPITAL shall have the right to reproduce all documentation supplied pursuant to this Agreement. 

I. Drawings and specifications remain the property of COMPANY. Copies of the drawings and specifications retained 

by HOSPITAL may be utilized only for its use and for occupying the PROJECT for which they were prepared, and not 

for the construction of any other project. A copy of all materials, information and documents, whether finished, 

unfinished, or draft, developed, prepared, completed, or acquired by COMPANY during the performance of services 

for which it has been compensated under this Agreement, shall be delivered to HOSPITAL’s representative upon 

completion or termination of this Agreement, whichever occurs first. HOSPITAL shall have the right to reproduce all 

documentation supplied pursuant to this Agreement. COMPANY shall furnish Hospital’s representative copies of all 

correspondence to regulatory agencies for review prior to mailing such correspondence. 

J. The rights and remedies of HOSPITAL provided for under this section are in addition to any other rights and remedies 

provided by law or under other sections of this Agreement. 

SECTION VI: SUBCONTRACTS 

Page 373 of 853



 

D. Services specified by this Agreement shall not be subcontracted by COMPANY, without prior written approval of 

HOSPITAL. 

B. Approval by HOSPITAL of COMPANY's request to subcontract, or acceptance of, or payment for, subcontracted work 

by HOSPITAL shall not in any way relieve COMPANY of responsibility for the professional and technical accuracy 

and adequacy of the work. COMPANY shall be and remain liable for all damages to HOSPITAL caused by negligent 

performance or non-performance of work under this Agreement by COMPANY's subcontractor or its 

sub-subcontractor. 

C. The compensation due under Section II shall not be affected by HOSPITAL's approval of COMPANY's request to 

subcontract. 

SECTION VII: RESPONSIBILITY OF HOSPITAL 

E. HOSPITAL agrees that its officers and employees will cooperate with COMPANY in the performance of services 

under this Agreement and will be available for consultation with COMPANY at such reasonable times with advance 

notice as to not conflict with their other responsibilities. 

B. The services performed by COMPANY under this Agreement shall be subject to review for compliance with the terms 

of this Agreement by HOSPITAL's representative, Daisy Markham, telephone number (702) 207-8238 or her 

designee. HOSPITAL's representative may delegate any or all of her responsibilities under this Agreement to 

appropriate staff members, and shall so inform COMPANY by written notice before the effective date of each such 

delegation. 

C. The review comments of HOSPITAL's representative may be reported in writing as needed to COMPANY.  It is 

understood that HOSPITAL's representative’s review comments do not relieve COMPANY from the responsibility for 

the professional and technical accuracy of all work delivered under this Agreement. 

D. HOSPITAL shall assist COMPANY in obtaining data on documents from public officers or agencies, and from private 

citizens and/or business firms, whenever such material is necessary for the completion of the services specified by 

this Agreement. 

E. COMPANY will not be responsible for accuracy of information or data supplied by HOSPITAL or other sources to the 

extent such information or data would be relied upon by a reasonably prudent COMPANY. 

SECTION VIII: TIME SCHEDULE 

A. Time is of the essence of this Agreement. 

B. If COMPANY’s performance of services is delayed or if COMPANY’s sequence of tasks is changed, COMPANY shall 

notify HOSPITAL’s representative in writing of the reasons for the delay and prepare a revised schedule for 

performance of services.  The revised schedule is subject to HOSPITAL’s written approval. 

SECTION IX: SUSPENSION AND TERMINATION 

A. Suspension 

HOSPITAL may suspend performance by COMPANY under this Agreement for such period of time as HOSPITAL, 

at its sole discretion, may prescribe by providing written notice to COMPANY at least five (5) working days prior to 

the date on which HOSPITAL wishes to suspend. Upon such suspension, HOSPITAL shall pay COMPANY its 

compensation, based on the percentage of the PROJECT completed and earned until the effective date of 

suspension, less all previous payments. COMPANY shall not perform further work under this Agreement after the 

effective date of suspension until receipt of written notice from HOSPITAL to resume performance. In the event 

Page 374 of 853



 

HOSPITAL suspends performance by COMPANY for any cause other than the error or omission of the COMPANY, 

for an aggregate period in excess of thirty (30) days, COMPANY shall be entitled to an equitable adjustment of the 

compensation payable to COMPANY under this Agreement to reimburse COMPANY for additional costs occasioned 

as a result of such suspension of performance by HOSPITAL based on appropriated funds and approval by 

HOSPITAL. 

B. Termination 

3. Termination for Cause 

This Agreement may be terminated in whole or in part by either party in the event of substantial failure or 

default of the other party to fulfill its obligations under this Agreement through no fault of the terminating party; 

but only after the other party is given: 

a. not less than ten (10) calendar days written notice of intent to terminate; and 

b.     an opportunity for consultation with the terminating party prior to termination. 

2. Termination for Convenience 

a. This Agreement may be terminated in whole or in part by HOSPITAL for its convenience; but only after 

COMPANY is given not less than fifteen (15) calendar days written notice of intent to terminate; and 

b. If termination is for HOSPITAL’s convenience, HOSPITAL shall pay COMPANY that portion of the 

compensation which has been earned as of the effective date of termination but no amount shall be 

allowed for anticipated profit on performed or unperformed services or other work. 

3. Effect of Termination  

a. If termination for substantial failure or default is effected by HOSPITAL, HOSPITAL will pay COMPANY 

that portion of the compensation which has been earned as of the effective date of termination but: 

i. No amount shall be allowed for anticipated profit on performed or unperformed services or other work; 

and 

ii. Any payment due to COMPANY at the time of termination may be adjusted to the extent of any 

additional costs occasioned to HOSPITAL by reason of COMPANY's default. 

b.  Upon receipt or delivery by COMPANY of a termination notice, COMPANY shall promptly discontinue all 

services affected (unless the notice directs otherwise) and deliver or otherwise make available to 

HOSPITAL’s representative, copies of all deliverables as provided in Section V, paragraph H.   Each 

Party shall return or destroy all originals and copies, except for those copies it may retain for archival 

purposes, of any confidential information of the other Party regarding the Project, including but not limited 

to protected health information (“PHI”), and shall certify in writing to the other Party, no later than thirty 

(30) days after termination, that is has done so. 

c.  If after termination for failure of COMPANY to fulfill contractual obligations it is determined that COMPANY 

has not so failed, the termination shall be deemed to have been effected for the convenience of 

HOSPITAL. 

d.  Upon termination, HOSPITAL may take over the work and prosecute the same to completion by 

agreement with another party or otherwise.  In the event COMPANY shall cease conducting business, 

HOSPITAL shall have the right to make an unsolicited offer of employment to any employees of 

COMPANY assigned to the performance of this Agreement. 

4. The rights and remedies of HOSPITAL and COMPANY provided in this section are in addition to any other 

Page 375 of 853



 

rights and remedies provided by law or under this Agreement. 

5. Neither party shall be considered in default in the performance of its obligations hereunder, nor any of them, 

to the extent that performance of such obligations, nor any of them, is prevented or delayed by any cause, 

existing or future, which is beyond the reasonable control of such party.  Delays arising from the actions or 

inactions of one or more of COMPANY's principals, officers, employees, agents, subcontractors, vendors or 

suppliers are expressly recognized to be within COMPANY's control. 

SECTION X: INSURANCE 

COMPANY shall obtain and maintain the insurance coverage required in Exhibit C incorporated herein by this reference. 

COMPANY shall comply with all terms and conditions set forth in Attachment A and shall include the cost of the insurance 

coverage in their prices. 

SECTION XI: NOTICES 

Any notice required to be given hereunder shall be deemed to have been given when received by the party to whom it is 

directed by personal service, hand delivery, certified U.S. mail, return receipt requested or facsimile, at the following 

addresses, or such other address that a party may designate in writing: 

 

TO HOSPITAL: University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 

Attn: Legal Department 

1800 W. Charleston Blvd. 

Las Vegas, NV 89102 

 

 

TO COMPANY:  AbsencePlus Administrators 

 Attn:  Ryan Churella 

 39500 High Pointe Blvd, Suite 400 

 Novi, MI 48375 

  

  

  

SECTION XII: MISCELLANEOUS 

B. ADA Requirements 

All work performed or services rendered by COMPANY shall comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act standards 

adopted by Clark County.  All facilities built prior to January 26, 1992 must comply with the Uniform Federal 

Accessibility Standards; and all facilities completed after January 26, 1992 must comply with the Americans with 

Disabilities Act Accessibility Guidelines. 

C. Amendments  

No modifications or amendments to this Agreement shall be valid or enforceable unless mutually agreed to in writing 

by the parties. 

C. Assignment 

Any attempt by COMPANY to assign or otherwise transfer any interest in this Agreement without the prior written 

Page 376 of 853



 

consent of HOSPITAL shall be void. 

D. Audits 

The performance of this Agreement by COMPANY is subject to review by HOSPITAL to ensure Agreement 

compliance. COMPANY agrees to provide HOSPITAL any and all information requested that relates to the 

performance of this Agreement.  All requests for information will be in writing to COMPANY.  Time is of the essence 

during the audit process.  Failure to provide the information requested within the timeline provided in the written 

information request may be considered a material breach of Agreement and be cause for suspension and/or 

termination of the Agreement. The parties hereto further agree that except as otherwise required by law, any audit 

and inspection rights include only the rights to verify amounts invoiced by COMPANY and to verify the nature of the 

services being invoiced, but does not include the right to review personal information of COMPANY’s employees, or 

proprietary information of COMPANY, including but not limited to COMPANY’s underlying cost, markup or overhead 

rates. 

E. Clark County Business License / Registration 

COMPANY warrants that it is has a valid Clark County Business License and will maintain such licensure through the 

duration of this Agreement. 

F. Complete Agreement 

This Agreement, together with all exhibits, appendices or other attachments, which are incorporated herein by 

reference, is the sole and entire agreement between the parties relating to the subject matter hereof. This Agreement 

supersedes all prior understandings, representations, agreements and documentation relating to such subject matter. 

In the event of a conflict between the provisions of the main body of the Agreement and any attached exhibits, 

appendices or other materials, the Agreement shall take precedence.  

G. Confidential Treatment of Information 

COMPANY shall preserve in strict confidence any information obtained, assembled or prepared in connection with 

the performance of this Agreement and COMPANY represents and warrants that it shall not resell HOSPITAL 

confidential information. Confidential information does not include information that, under the Health Insurance 

Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) as may be amended from time to time, is protected health information (PHI), 

in which case the parties agree to handle such health information in accordance with the terms of the Business Associate 

Agreement (BAA) which is attached to and incorporated into this Agreement as Exhibit G . 
H. Counterparts 

This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts. Each counterpart will be an original, and all such 

counterparts will constitute a single instrument. 

I. Covenant 

COMPANY covenants that it presently has no interest and that it will not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which 

would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of services required to be performed under this 

Agreement. COMPANY further covenants, to its knowledge and ability, that in the performance of said services no 

person having any such interest shall be employed. 

J. Covenant Against Contingent Fees  

COMPANY warrants that no person or selling agency has been employed or retained to solicit or secure this 

Agreement upon an agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee, 

excepting bona fide permanent employees.  For breach or violation of this warranty, HOSPITAL shall have the right 

Page 377 of 853



 

to annul this Agreement without liability or in its discretion to deduct from the Agreement price or consideration or 

otherwise recover the full amount of such commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee. 

K. Exclusion 

COMPANY represents and warrants that neither it, nor any of its employees or other contracted staff (collectively 

referred to in this paragraph as “employees”) has been or is about to be excluded from participation in any Federal 

Health Care Program (as defined herein). COMPANY agrees to notify HOSPITAL within five (5) business days of 

COMPANY’s receipt of notice of intent to exclude or actual notice of exclusion from any such program. The listing of 

COMPANY or any of its employees on the Office of Inspector General’s exclusion list (OIG website), the General 

Services Administration’s Lists of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement and Non-procurement Programs (GSA 

website) for excluded individuals or entities, any state Medicaid exclusion list, or the Office of Foreign Assets Control’s 

(OFAC’s) blocked list shall constitute “exclusion” for purposes of this paragraph. In the event that COMPANY or any 

of its employees is excluded from any Federal Health Care Program or placed on the OFAC’s blocked list, it shall be 

a material breach and this Agreement shall immediately terminate without penalty to HOSPITAL. For the purpose of 

this paragraph, the term “Federal Health Care Program” means the Medicare program, the Medicaid program, 

TRICARE, any health care program of the Department of Veterans Affairs, the Maternal and Child Health Services 

Block Grant program, any state social services block grant program, any state children’s health insurance program, 

or any similar program. 

L. Governing Law / Venue 

Nevada law shall govern the interpretation of this Agreement.  Venue shall be any court of competent jurisdiction in 

Las Vegas, Nevada. 

M.    Gratuities 

3. HOSPITAL may, by written notice to COMPANY, terminate this Agreement if it is found after notice and 

hearing by HOSPITAL that gratuities (in the form of entertainment, gifts, or otherwise) were offered or 

given by COMPANY or any agent or representative of COMPANY to any officer or employee of 

HOSPITAL with a view toward securing a contract or securing favorable treatment with respect to the 

awarding or amending or making of any determinations with respect to the performance of this 

Agreement. 

2.   In the event this Agreement is terminated as provided in paragraph 1 hereof, HOSPITAL shall be entitled: 

a. to pursue the same remedies against COMPANY as it could pursue in the event of a breach of this 

Agreement by COMPANY; and 

b. as a penalty in addition to any other damages to which it may be entitled by law, to exemplary damages 

in an amount (as determined by HOSPITAL) which shall be not less than three (3) nor more than ten (10) 

times the costs incurred by COMPANY in providing any such gratuities to any such officer or employee. 

3.  The rights and remedies of HOSPITAL provided in this clause shall not be exclusive and are in addition to 

any other rights and remedies provided by law or under this Agreement. 

N. Immigration Reform and Control Act 

In accordance with the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, COMPANY agrees that it will not employ 

unauthorized aliens in the performance of this Agreement.  

O. Indemnity 

COMPANY does hereby agree to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless HOSPITAL and the employees, officers and 

Page 378 of 853



 

agents of HOSPITAL from any liabilities, damages, losses, claims, actions or proceedings, including, without 

limitation, reasonable attorneys’ fees, that are caused by the negligence, errors, omissions, recklessness or 

intentional misconduct of COMPANY or the employees or agents of COMPANY in the performance of this Agreement. 

P. Independent Contractor 

COMPANY acknowledges that it, COMPANY, and any subcontractors, agents or employees employed by it shall not, 

under any circumstances, be considered employees of the HOSPITAL, and that they shall not be entitled to any of 

the benefits or rights afforded employees of HOSPITAL, including, but not limited to, sick leave, vacation leave, holiday 

pay, Public Employees Retirement System benefits, or health, life, dental, long-term disability or workers' 

compensation insurance benefits.  HOSPITAL will not provide or pay for any liability or medical insurance, retirement 

contributions or any other benefits for or on behalf of COMPANY or any of its officers, employees or other agents. 

Q. Prohibition Against Israel Boycott:   

In accordance with Nevada Revised Statute 332.065, COMPANY certifies that it is not refused to deal or to conduct 

business with, abstained from dealing or conducting business with, terminating business or business activities with or 

performing any other action that is intended to limit commercial relations with Israel or a person or entity doing 

business in Israel or in territories controlled by Israel. 

R. Public Funds / Non-Discrimination 

COMPANY acknowledges that the HOSPITAL has an obligation to ensure that public funds are not used to subsidize 

private discrimination. COMPANY recognizes that if they or their subcontractors are found guilty by an appropriate 

authority of refusing to hire or do business with an individual or company due to reasons of race, color, religion, sex, 

sexual orientation, gender identity or gender expression, age, disability, handicapping condition (including AIDS or 

AIDS related conditions), national origin, or any other class protected by law or regulation, HOSPITAL may declare 

COMPANY in breach of the Agreement, terminate the Agreement, and designate COMPANY as non-responsible. 

S. Public Records 

COMPANY acknowledges that HOSPITAL is a public, county-owned hospital which is subject to the provisions of the 

Nevada Public Records Act, Nevada Revised Statutes Chapter 239, as may be amended from time to time. As such, 

its records are public documents available for copying and inspection by the public. If HOSPITAL receives a demand 

for the disclosure of any information related to this Agreement that COMPANY has claimed to be confidential and 

proprietary, HOSPITAL will immediately notify COMPANY of such demand and COMPANY shall immediately notify 

HOSPITAL of its intention to seek injunctive relief in a Nevada court for protective order. COMPANY shall indemnify 

and defend HOSPITAL from any claims or actions, including all associated costs and attorney’s fees, demanding the 

disclosure of COMPANY document in HOSPITAL’s custody and control in which COMPANY claims to be confidential 

and proprietary. 

T. Publicity   

Neither HOSPITAL nor COMPANY shall cause to be published or disseminated any advertising materials, either 

printed or electronically transmitted which identify the other party or its facilities with respect to this Agreement without 

the prior written consent of the other party. 

U. Subcontractor Information  

COMPANY shall provide a list of the Minority-Owned Business Enterprise (MBE), Women-Owned Business 

Enterprise (WBE), Physically-Challenged Business Enterprise (PBE), Small Business Enterprise (SBE), and Nevada 

Business Enterprise (NBE) subcontractors for this Agreement utilizing the attached format Exhibit D.  The information 

Page 379 of 853



 

provided in Exhibit D by COMPANY is for the HOSPITAL’s information only. 

V. Survival of Terms.  

Unless otherwise stated, all of HOSPITAL and COMPANY’s respective obligations, representations and warranties 

under this Agreement which are not, by the expressed terms of this Agreement, fully to be performed while this 

Agreement is in effect shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 

W. Travel Policy 

The following are the acceptable travel guidelines for reimbursement of travel costs:  

Reimbursement shall only be for the contract personnel. 

Transportation:  

- Domestic Airlines (Coach Ticket).  Number of trips must be approved by HOSPITAL. 

- Personal Vehicle: HOSPITAL will not pay costs associated to driving a personal vehicle in lieu of air 

travel. 

Meals: All meal charges will be paid up to and not to exceed $50 per day. This includes a 15% tip.  

Lodging: Lodging will either be booked by HOSPITAL or reimbursed for costs of a reasonable room rate plus 

taxes for Las Vegas, NV, not to exceed $150 per night.  

Rental Vehicles: One (1) automobile rental will be authorized per four (4) travelers. Rental must be mid-size or 

smaller.  HOSPITAL will reimburse up to $150 per week.  Return re-fuel cap of $50 per vehicle. 

Each traveler shall submit the following documents in order to claim travel reimbursement. The documents shall be 

readable copies of the original itemized receipts with each traveler’s full name. Only actual costs (including all 

applicable sales tax) will be reimbursed. 

- Company’s Invoice 

o With copy of executed Agreement highlighting the allowable travel 

o List of travelers 

o Number of days in travel status 

- Hotel receipt 

- Meal receipts for each meal 

- Airline receipt 

- Car rental receipt (Identify driver and passengers) 

- Airport parking receipt (traveler’s Airport origin) 

- Gas re-fuel upon return of rental vehicle capped at $50 per vehicle 

- Airport long term parking (only for economy rate) 

The following are some of the charges that will NOT be allowable for reimbursement (not all inclusive): 

-  Personal vehicle (HOSPITAL will not pay costs associated to driving a personal vehicle in lieu of air travel) 

- Excess baggage fares 

 -  Upgrades for transportation, lodging, or vehicles 

-  Alcohol 

 -  Room service 

-  In-room movie rentals 

- In-room beverage/snacks 

- Gas for personal vehicles 

Page 380 of 853



 

- Transportation to and from traveler’s home and the airport 

- Mileage 

- Travel time 

Travel expenses shall not exceed $_0.00__________ without prior written approval from HOSPITAL. 

X.  Waiver; Severability  

No term or provision of this Agreement shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent 

is in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented. If any provision of this Agreement is held 

invalid, void or unenforceable under any applicable statute or rule of law, it shall to that extent be deemed omitted, 

and the balance of this Agreement shall be enforceable in accordance with its remaining terms. 

 

 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK. SIGNATURE PAGE IS BELOW] 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 381 of 853



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the Parties has caused this Agreement to be executed and effective as of the Effective 

Date. 

HOSPITAL: 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 

By: 

MASON VAN HOUWELING DATE 

Chief Executive Officer 

COMPANY: 

ABSENCEPLUS ADMIISTRATORS INC. 

By: 

ROBERT DEWEY DATE 

Chief Client Officer 

2/14/2024

Page 382 of 853



RFP 2023-08 
FMLA ADMINISTRATIVE AND OTHER RELATED LEAVE SERVICES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SCOPE OF WORK 

 

Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA) Administrative Services 

And Other Related Leave Services 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 383 of 853



 

EXHIBIT A 
SCOPE OF WORK 

A. Introduction 

B. Service Expectations and Performance Objectives 

C. Staffing and Resource Management 

D. Program and Task Management  

E. Transition Services 

F. Invoicing, Record Keeping, and Reporting 

SECTION 3: GENERAL PROVISIONS  

SECTION 4: INVOICING, RECORD KEEPING AND REPORTING  

SECTION 5: ALTERNATIVE PROGRAM OPERATION METHODS  

 

DEFINITIONS 

Contract – An individual, partnership, or corporation that is responsible for the performance of services under the contract 
awarded by the Government Body for UMC or its authorized representative. 

Deliverable – Any report, software, hardware, data, document, or other tangible item that the Service Provider is required 
to provide UMC under the terms of the Contract 

Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA) - entitles eligible employees of covered employers to take unpaid, job-protected leave 
for specified family and medical reasons with continuation of group health insurance coverage under the same terms and 
conditions as if the employee had not taken leave. 

Governing Body (“GB”) – The Governing Board which is the Governing Body of “Owner”.  

Intermittent Leave - when it is medically necessary, employees may take FMLA leave intermittently – taking leave in 
separate blocks of time for a single qualifying reason – or on a reduced leave schedule – reducing the employee’s usual 
weekly or daily work schedule. 

Leave of Absence (LOA) – other type of leaves not covered under FMLA. 

 

A. INTRODUCTION  

The primary purpose of the FMLA Administrative and Other Related Leave Services Request for Proposal is to support 
the Human Resources department at University Medical Center of Southern Nevada in evaluating and processing various 
types of leaves of absence and other tasks that fall within the scope of these services.  

The service provider will act as an extension of the UMC Human Resources department in all FMLA and other Leave 
processes and must be capable of managing the program in such a way that ensures all functions and tasks are completed 
on time, within budget, and in accordance with all applicable federal, state, and local requirements, statues, and 
regulations. 

The Service Provider will be available to UMC to accommodate reporting requirements, staff meetings, and audits. UMC 
will not be providing office space, and it is expected that the servicer maintains an office location that provides adequate 
security for the type of information being handled.  

UMC will maintain oversight of the project but it is understood that the service provider will augment the UMC HR staff 
and manage the day to day tasks in accordance with the tasks and requirements outlined in the scope of work and agreed 
upon in the final Service Agreement.   

Page 384 of 853



 

The UMC HR leadership will provide direction to the Service Provider through planning and staff meetings as required. A 
final work plan will be developed once a Service Provider is selected. The work plan will be first and foremost aligned with 
this scope of work, but also on par with the Service Providers capabilities and capacity. There will be an annual work plan 
provided to the Service Provider that will consist of tasks, deliverables, and staffing requirements. There will be no 
duplication of efforts between the Service Provider and UMC.  

B. SERVICE EXPECTATIONS AND PERFORMANCE OBJECTIVES:  

UMC is a county-owned, acute-care hospital, organized under Nevada Revised Statute Chapter 450.  The UMCSN 
Human Resources department is responsible for staffing a 541 bed hospital, currently operating a Level 1 Trauma Center, 
a Level 2 Pediatric Trauma Center, an active Cardiology Program, Organ Transplant Program, Burn Care Center and a 
Level 3 Intensive Care Nursery.  In addition, UMCSN operates seven (7) Quick Care facilities and six (6) Primary Care 
facilities. UMC strives to provide exemplary service to its patients, therefore, has high expectations of its business 
partners. It is expected that the business partner will provide quality products and service at the lowest price available in 
the market, but just as important is the expectation that these products and services are provided in a manner that exhibits 
the highest level of ethics and professionalism.  It is expected that, as a result of this relationship, the business partner 
will work with UMC to ensure that the agreement remains competitive with continual review of market conditions.  

In addition to procuring industry standard services, we are interested in forward thinking recommendations and best 
practices for absence management, innovative solutions that will help UMC reduce absence-related expenses, implement 
processes that fairly and consistently apply FMLA requirements. 

The service provider for this contract is expected to perform the following:  

o Contractor shall provide UMCSN with a full range of FMLA Administration and other LOA Services and 
Support. 

o Contractor will coordinate, manage and track employees out on leave of absence for FMLA and other 
LOA activities. 

o Provide a timely and efficient means for UMCSN employees to report FMLA and other LOA claims. The 
process shall include a customer service center, call center, and/or help desk.  

o Collect and process all necessary medical certification forms, verify documentation, and determine if 
the event falls under qualifying FMLA criteria. Contractor shall communicate to the employee whether 
or not the event qualifies under FMLA. 

o Vendor shall perform a policy and procedure analysis that will consist of: 

 An organization-wide assessment of processes, procedures, and data completed within 2-4 
weeks.  

 Addressing compliance, auditing, staffing, and risk reduction issues. 
 Interviews with key personnel to help determine the current culture, areas of strength, and 

areas of concern. 
 Analysis of the findings and strategy development. 
 Report of how the strategies directly benefit the organizations operational needs. 
 Formal report with recommended next steps. 

o Contractor will provide the following services: which may include but not limited to: 
 Intake. 
 Claim Administration (Eligibility, Claim Management, Claim Processing, Intermittent Leave, 

Recertification, Handling, Escalation, Communication, Tracking, Return to Work, Compliance, 
Potential leave abuse) 

 Contractor shall have the capability to administer workability and/or independent medical 
evaluations and/or a release to return to work, as appropriate. 

 Provide UMCSN Human Resource staff access to its data in order to track FMLA leave. 
Tracking shall include, but not be limited to: recertification, continuous, and intermittent leave 
absences. 

 Contractor shall have the ability to track FMLA leave concurrently with Worker’s Compensation 
claims. 

 Account Management and Dedicated Team of Customer Services 24/7. 

Page 385 of 853



 

 Training. 
 Implementation and Transition Services. 
 Records Management. 
 Contractor shall provide UMCSN complete documentation for each FMLA claim including 

documentation of communication with employees. 
 Documentation and Reports. 
 Assist UMCSN in preparing for administrative hearing. 

 
 
 
 
C. STAFFING AND RESOURCE MANAGEMENT 

• Service Provider is not required to be located onsite at UMC.  
• Must maintain a physical office but may also provide personnel the ability to work in a virtual / “from home” 

capacity. 
• Service provider must be able to provide a Customer Service Center. Hours of operation will be based on 

provider capabilities. Some after-hours tasks may be required for special projects, inspections, or audits. Ample 
time will be given to ensure adequate staffing. 

• Key personnel must be available for periodic travel. Travel will be in accordance with UMC Travel Policy.  
 
 

D. PROGRAM AND TASK MANAGEMENT 

D.1 FMLA Leave Request Processing:  

• Contractor will receive all requests for FMLA leave and contact the employee, department, and Human 
Resources department within the required time frames (preferably within 24 hours) stipulated in the 
FMLA regulations or hospital policy regarding proper notification for leave request, approval and denial 
notifications, submission/return of forms and other data relevant to the claim. This includes the type of 
leave requested and the qualifying event to determine eligibility based on but not limited to: diagnosis, 
appropriate medical findings supporting diagnosis, prognosis, treatment plan, and expected return to 
work date. FMLA leave will run concurrently with workers compensation, if applicable. 
 

D.2 FMLA Leave Medical Certification:  

• Contractor will collect all necessary medical certification and UMCSN required forms to determine if the 
event meets FMLA leave criteria and submit these forms to all applicable parties (employee, 
department, Human Resources,) indicating approved or denial of FMLA leave. Provide an appropriate 
FMLA certification and leave notification(s) letter or electronic notification to the hospital. The contractor 
will provide access to all correspondence and documentation regarding any FMLA Leave when 
requested by UMCSN. 

• Certified FMLA leave notifications shall be sent via email using the Contractor’s platform. 
 

D.3 FMLA Leave Tracking:  

• Contractor will provide a means of facilitating leave tracking. Provides daily reports and access to the 
SAME system used to track FMLA leave. Contractor will need to be able to correct and audit leave 
usage. 

• Tracking shall include, but not be limited to: absences, recertification, continuous and intermittent leave.   
 

D.4 FMLA Leave Re-certification:  

• Contractor will notify the employee, department and the Human Resources department when 
recertification of FMLA leave is required by the employees. 
 

D.5 FMLA Leave Return to Work:  

Page 386 of 853



 

• Contractor will notify employees and Human Resources Department on FMLA leave concerning the 
amount of leave used and available, their return or estimated return to work date, and options available 
to them in accordance with federal, state, local law and/or UMCSN policies and procedures if the 
employee is not able to return to work once FMLA leave has ended. Employees will be notified at a 
minimum every 30 days of their FMLA leave for leave granted in excess of 30 days until available leave 
balance reaches 30 days or less at which time the employee will be notified every two weeks and when 
leave has expired. 

 
 

 
D.6. FMLA Intermittent Leave: Contractor will manage intermittent leaves as follows: 

• Communications will be provided using Contractor's web platform for Participants and Contractor web 
platform for Customer. 

• The Contractor will monitor all for patterns indicating potential abuse and investigate such potential 
patterns of abuse. 

• The Contractor will conduct investigative activities such as surveillance of suspected fraudulent leaves; 
however, prior to conducting such surveillance, approval must be granted by the HR department. 

• The Contractor will ensure recertification of chronic conditions as appropriate. 
• The Contractor will review all absences that exceed frequency or duration and review for 

appropriateness and where not appropriate, request recertification. 
• Contractor will agree that all records, data, files, input materials, reports, forms and other data received, 

computed or developed, used and/or stored exclusively for UMCSN pursuant to their agreement with 
UMCSN are property of the hospital. 

• Immediately upon termination of the agreement, all such records and other data shall be furnished 
without additional charge to UMCSN using Contractor's standard software format to the extent 
practicable. 

• All historical data related to FMLA Leave is to be stored by contractor in their system and accessible to 
UMCSN Human Resources, Auditors and applicable department of the employee. 

• The Contractor must transmit intermittent leave requests and approvals to UMCSN on a daily basis. 
 

D.7 Account Management and Customers Services:  

• Contractor shall provide a dedicated and responsive account management and customer service team 
for responding to inquiries and resolving employee issues. 

• The Contractor shall assign a designated Account Manager with responsibility and authority to take all 
necessary steps to ensure that UMCSN’s expectations are met and to solve all professional 
performance, handling questions and resolve problems that arise, addressing issues related to the 
implementation and operation invoicing and other conflicts that may arise.  

• The Account Manager shall be trained in FMLA and hospital policies and procedures. 
• Account Manager will meet with UMCSN staff at least quarterly (as determined by the hospital) to 

review and resolve open items and to review all invoices prior to UMCSN approval of such invoices for 
payment. Meetings will be virtual. 

• Contractor will assign an implementation leader to manage the implementation process and to 
coordinate member communications with hospital personnel. 

• Contractor will provide to the hospital the appropriate member communication materials to ensure a 
successful communications campaign. 

• Contractor shall provide the hospital with communication tools and other materials to promote and 
advertise the service including posters, business cards and brochures customized to UMCSN for 
employees of the hospital. 

• Contractor will provide a process for billing administration that is flexible, simple and cost effective such 
that it meets hospital’s needs. 

• Meet and maintain federal and state compliance regulations in all handled cases. 
• Timely response to employees and/or department personnel as defined by federal regulations, State 

and Local law and hospital Policies and Procedures. 

Page 387 of 853



 

• Contractor shall provide a dedicated Customer Service Representatives (CSR) to be responsible for 
responding to the hospital. The CSRs must be available twenty-four (24) hours, seven (7) days a week, 
including weekends and holidays. CSR must be available via a toll free number and will return all calls 
within twenty-four (24) hours. 
 

D.8 FMLA Compliance: 

• Compliance with Federal and State of Nevada FMLA laws including, but not limited to, the Americans 
with Disabilities Act (ADA). 

• Investigate internal complaints filed by employees alleging violation of and/or interference with FMLA 
rights. 

• Compliance with HIPAA privacy requirements. 
• Security measures in place to ensure all data is protected during transmission and data storage. 
• Provide a customized policy & procedure review with training program which includes a legal and risk 

analysis to strengthen policies and reduce avoidable absenteeism or loss of workdays. 
 

D.9 FMLA and other LOA Leave Training: (This requirement will be specified in the work plan) 

• Contractor will provide web-based remote training to specified HR personnel and other authorized staff 
on the Service Providers processes, procedures and capabilities including proposed system and codes. 

• Develop a customized program for continuous education and training.  
• Provide online training materials provided for various levels of usage, (i.e., HR personal, employee, and 

supervisors/manager system user). 
• Provide user level specific training tools for vendor systems and processes. 

E. TRANSITION SERVICES: (Transition plan will be developed) 

• Upon termination or expiration of the contract, the Contractor shall work with any new service provider 
and the hospital on transferring all required data including but not limited to all open claims via 
electronic transmission. This will include but not limited to SAPs, all files (electronic or otherwise), 
contact information, and forms. 

 

F. INVOICING, RECORD KEEPING, AND REPORTING 

F.1 FMLA Leave Reporting and Communication: 

• Provide detailed reports on employee FMLA. 
• Provide real-time FMLA status report to Human Resources, Department Heads, Managers and 

Supervisors. 
• View a wide range of standard reports or generate custom reports that can be sorted by departments. 
• Provide repository for continuous, intermittent and reduced schedule FMLA activity. 
• Provide the capability to create reports that contain the FMLA data "on demand" that can be accessed 

by and exported to Human Resources personnel, and management staff. 
• Provide periodic reports to demonstrate program results, including hospital's return on investment. 
• Provide annual stewardship reports. 
• Provide benchmarking data 
• Provide claim cost analysis 

 
F.2 COMMUNICATION: 

Contractor shall provide the following standard FMLA Services reports and standard  
communication letters (but are not limited to the list below): 

• FMLA Services report on demand via web access. This report shall list active FMLA cases with the 
most recent administrative activity. 

Page 388 of 853



 

• FMLA Services report on a monthly basis. This report indicates the number of FMLA claims/cases that 
have been administered and finalized, the number of active Covered Employees, the number of 
Covered Employees that have returned to work, the length of FMLA leave time and demographics. 

• Notice of eligibility - FMLA Leave 
• Approval - FMLA Leave 
• Denial (insufficient length of service) FMLA Leave 
• Denial (insufficient hours worked) FMLA Leave 
• Request for Missing Medical Information - FMLA Leave 
• Continuous Leave Designation 
• Intermittent Leave Designation 
• Intermittent Absence Notification 
• Denial - Recertification Notice 
• Denial - FMLA Time Exhaust 
• Closed - Time Exhaust 
• Closed - Return to Work 
• FMLA Leave -- Military Leave approval  
• FMLA Leave Exhaust Leave at 10 weeks 
• First year leave exhaust letter 
• Contractor will provide real time notification to inform UMCSN when any changes in status occurs to or 

from leave of absence.  
 

F.3 RECORD KEEPING 

The Contractor will be the custodian of all FMLA and other LOA records and shall be required to provide 
information to UMCSN and outside entities upon request of the hospital. The Contractor will also comply with all 
federal, state, and local regulations regarding the maintenance and storage of all records associated with the 
hospital’s FMLA and other LOA programs. 

 

TECHNOLOGY / SYSTEM CAPABILITIES 

• The Contractor shall provide all software, including integration tools, necessary to integrate information with 
existing systems. Software shall interface with current programs used by the hospital. 

• A computer system that is able to integrate with the County ERP (SAP), Timekeeping (Kronos), Scheduling 
(Inovaln/SmartForce). 

• System is required in order to access the information needed to make the appropriate FMLA decision, and 
update employee record. 

• Software will need to capture basic employee demographic, compensation, leave eligibility information, 
scheduling, and absence information from the County ERP (SAP), Timekeeping, and Scheduling Systems. 

• System is able to communicate with limited manual activity in real time and/or quickly. 
• Web-based technology (preferred). 
• Historical data integration/migration. 
• Contractor shall provide the file layout requirements. 
• Standardized interface and compatible with the following systems:  

o Kronos Workforce Version 8.1.17 
o SAP Version 770 
o Inovalon (SMARTFORCE) Version 7.11 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 389 of 853



3

Section 3 - Project Approach and Work Plan

3.
Project
Approach & 
Work Plan

Page 390 of 853



Key Program Objectives

Conduct reviews to keep our focus on the program 
results and trends to continually measure new 
programs or process modifications we put into place.

QUARTERLY BUSINESS REVIEWS & 
CLAIM REVIEWS

Data Mining of Historical claim data for top 
drivers of claim costs and activity.

CLAIM COST ANALYSIS

Develop a point of reference for measuring 
performance by benchmarking historical data

BENCHMARKING DATA
Maximize the sharing of key data to support 
your operations and ours. 

DATA SHARE FOCUS

Legal and Risk Analysis for areas to strengthen policies 
to reduce avoidable absenteeism or loss of workdays. 

CUSTOMIZED POLICY & PROCEDURE REVIEW 
WITH TRAINING PROGRAMDevelop a comprehensive view of the UMCSN 

program in conjunction with client-specific 
metrics.

ANNUAL STEWARDSHIP REPORTS

15
Page 391 of 853



4
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL: University Medical Center of Southern Nevada

Section 3 – Project Approach / Work Plan Response

Provide an explanation of the Proposers work plan documenting the firm’s ability to perform 
the Scope of Work set forth in this RFP. The Proposer must include the following and will be 
evaluated on the demonstration of the factor and the quality its submission:

a. Provide a description of your company’s capacity and availability to successfully manage a 
project of this size

The project goal is to implement an FMLA and Leave administration service that adheres to the 
Scope of Work outlined by UMC in a timely, compliant, and seamless manner. UMC expects a 
partner who can support the Human Resources department in evaluating and processing various 
types of leaves of absence that fall within the scope of services. AbsencePlus Administrators, Inc. 
has a team of highly qualified, dedicated professionals. The AbsencePlus team brings decades of 
experience administering successful absence management programs for healthcare and public 
sector employers. These programs range from a few hundred employees to several thousand, 
including major public universities, school systems, and city and state governments. Our operations 
team brings years of experience administering leave of absence programs and years of program 
management experience from our aligned Account Executive.

b. A proposed plan to accomplish the Scope of Work

As an acute-care hospital that operates seven Quick Care and six Primary Care facilities, UMC’s 
Human Resources department is responsible for staffing the operation and maintaining “exemplary 
service to its patients.” AbsencePlus takes your responsibilities seriously and strives to do the 
heavy lifting regarding FMLA, Leave administration, and compliance. We offer the following plan to 
accomplish UMC’s  Scope of Work.

AbsencePlus offers end-to-end FMLA leave administration. Leave administration is provided by a 
professional staff dedicated to the success of your organization. Absence Specialists actively manage 
all leaves, monitoring the frequency and duration of intermittent claims and the employee’s progress 
toward return to work.  AbsencePlus’ call center is available 24/7, 365 days per year. We will provide 
a dedicated number specifically for UMC employees. Our call center, based in Nashville, TN, will 
use this dedicated number to identify the caller as your employee. We will ensure UMC employees 
receive personalized service.

AbsencePlus is experienced in building the service requirements to the needs and workflows of 
our clients. Utilizing experienced professionals, we will build the standing practices into the system 
business rules and workflows and provide you with comprehensive and custom service instructions 
published at go-live.

Our Director of Implementation will coordinate all aspects of the implementation project, from 
training, system setup, change management, and data feeds. Implementation will include a detailed 
project plan, weekly calls, custom claim kits, and establishing a dedicated concierge email/phone tree 
for UMC. System training is done onsite or via WebEx, and training materials are provided. Please 
see our attached Implementation Project Outline Sample in Section Four.

Page 392 of 853



5
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL: University Medical Center of Southern Nevada

Post-implementation, UMC will have a dedicated Sr. Account Executive responsible for adhering 
to and maintaining the UMC Service Handling Instructions (SHI) and coordinating all reporting. 
The Sr. Account Executive is responsible for continuous process improvement for UMC. Project 
management tools and reports track ongoing key performance indicators (KPI), benchmarks, and 
client service. The Sr. Account Executive will provide guidance on new industry trends and tools 
so that UMC remains on the cutting edge of best-in-class performance. Your Account Executive 
will meet with UMC at least quarterly. We will also provide our Quarterly Stewardship Report, 
demonstrating program results and return on investment.

Our award-winning FMLA claim system has extensive data tracking, monitoring, and reporting. 
This web-based platform has both a client interface, as well as an employee self-service portal. 
All continuous and intermittent FMLA absences are tracked, as well as utilization, requests for 
certification, and recertification. We provide an extensive dashboard to show real-time trends and 
benchmarking. Scheduled reports will provide the necessary data to support monthly, quarterly, and 
yearly performance guarantees. 

We have partnered with ClaimVantage, the industry-leading claim and absence management 
software. This software, built on the Salesforce platform, offers the highest level of data security.
The system and platform adhere to the highest cybersecurity, data integrity, and ISO/SOC 
certifications. Storing data in the cloud is more secure than hosting on our data servers.

Salesforce has heavily invested in the security and resilience of its infrastructure. Its data center 
operations maintain ISO 27001/17/18 and SOC 1/2 Type II certifications and are FedRAMP and 
GDPR compliant. Salesforce.com is a certified licensee of the TRUSTe Web Privacy Seal and TRUSTe 
Safe Harbor Seal and abides by the EU Safe Harbour Framework. They have a host of other 
certifications, standards, and regulations and detailed network and physical security mechanisms in 
place, which are outlined on their website.

While ClaimVantage maintains industry best practices for security, including compliance with the 
SOC2 framework, our partnership with Salesforce ensures that Salesforce indemnifies your data.

c. Proposed solution to Owner or Proposer identified challenges

Per the Integrated Benefits Institute’s (IBI) most recent industry report, UMC’s intermittent employee 
leave usage is at the 95th percentile compared to other like industries (hospitals). IBI also gathers 
State data on the number of lost workdays per leave. For Nevada, the average days lost per leave 
claim is 20.7. Per the addendum, UMC has had 4,640 leave submissions over the past two years. 
Theoretically, that equates to 96,000 lost workdays.  

Section 3 – Project Approach / Work Plan Response cont.

Page 393 of 853



6
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL: University Medical Center of Southern Nevada

Our solution would:

1. Track and validate the lost workdays to truly gauge the leave usage impact. 

2. Review policies, procedures, and claim trends to identify the root cause of excessive usage.

3. Implement channeling and control process to eliminate misuse, overuse, and improve 
efficiency and accuracy.

4. Implement Loss Prevention training to staff in key areas of impact. 

d. Describe a current workflow your company uses that has proven successful 

Leaves may be submitted via our portal, email, or telephone with a live intake specialist. The intake 
‘wizard’ guides the intake/employee with reflexive questioning to ensure the necessary information 
is collected to create a claim, enhancing standardization and efficiency. Once created, a leave is 
automatically assigned to the Specialist assigned to UMC. The 3-step claim wizard quickly gathers 
the most Critical information and provides instant notification to the employee, UMC rep, and the 
Leave team. Your Leave Specialist will contact the employee within one business day and provide 
a guided discussion to provide clear direction and answer any questions. Required documents are 
available on the portal and will be customized for UMC employees. Please see the AbsencePlus 
FMLA workflow attached for more detailed information. 

Easy leave submissions and a dedicated leave specialist who only works with UMC employees 
provide UMC’s most in-depth, responsive, and rewarding experience. 

e. Describe methods the company follows to ensure you are familiar with new regulations / 
industry trends

AbsencePlus ensures compliance with all federal and state unpaid leaves. Our software solutions 
partner provides continuous compliance and regulatory updates built directly into the system. At 
the same time, your aligned Account Executive will keep you updated with all changes as part of 
your regular program reviews. 
AbsencePlus attends compliance conferences and subscribes to legal and regulatory update 
services. This investment keeps us apprised about what regulations are being discussed, proposed, 
and in legislatures for potential enactment. 

We provide a quarterly notice to our clients on upcoming proposed new rules and laws.

Section 3 – Project Approach / Work Plan Response cont.

Page 394 of 853



7
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL: University Medical Center of Southern Nevada

f. Provide a list of all services your company provides along with a price list. Please include 
services that are provided at no additional cost, pricing for bundled packages (if applicable), 
installation or start up fees, pass thru charges, including how the charge is accrued, and 
training costs.

AbsencePlus operates in the leave of absence, disability, and ADA compliance spaces for employers, 
offering complete Integrated Disability Management.

Integrated Disability Management

• AbsencePlus Integrated Disability Management services include the following:
• Family Medical Leave Administration- Exhibit B
• Company-Specific and Miscellaneous Leaves - Exhibit B
• Paid State and Local Leave Plans - Exhibit B
• ADAAA Compliance - Additional cost
• COBRA Administration - Additional Cost
• Loss Prevention Consulting and Training- Additional cost
• Legal Policy Review and Policy Writing - 8 hours annually included. Additional cost thereafter.

Rate Reduction Program:

UMC is at the 95th percentile for Leave usage per employee, based on the Integrated Benefits 
Institutes’ benchmark study for Hospitals.  AbsencePlus is confident in our program and 
resources that we can improve the lost days and leave usage for UMC.  We are proposing a rate 
reduction as Leave usage and lost days reduce.  Please see exhibit B for an outline of tying our 
rate to annual leave submissions. 

AbsencePlus will charge a $20,000 Installation fee. This fee covers all required systems 
integration, employee training, change management materials (wallet cards, notices, custom 
communications, web link), and unlimited Portal licenses.

Service fee includes all leave administration services, including the listed company-specific, 
miscellaneous, and State Leaves. It also covers 8 hours of annual Legal-Professional Policy 
review, writing, and guidance. Additional Legal-Professional services are $175 per hour. A pre-
approved Statement of work will be provided before the onset of services for each project.

ADA compliance and Cobra Administration are charged at $.90 PEPM each. A 10% discount 
applies for bundling these services with leave administration.

g. Using Appendix “Other Pricing Offered,” fill in pricing for services that may not currently be 
provided but can be developed or customized and billed as an “al-a-carte” service.

See Exhibit B- Fee and Delivery Schedule

Section 3 – Project Approach / Work Plan Response cont.

Page 395 of 853



8
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL: University Medical Center of Southern Nevada

FMLA Workflow

FMLA Workflow

Receipt of FMLA Request Claim Built, Eligibility Evaluated
Employee contact, process explained & 
Initial Claim Packet sent with applicable 

forms/inserts (by end of next business day)

Receipt of Documentation 
(15 days)

Claim denied, employee receives 
notification call and letter - Employer 

notified

Documentation received, determination 
made within 5 days of receiptEmployer and Employee notified

Claim closed, denial letter 
sent. Employee and 
Employer notified.

Claim Closed
If documentation received, 
client specific policies will be 

followed.

Leave Management

Entitlement/Utilization Tracked, Medical Updated 
as Appropriate; Employee/Employer Notified as 

Appropriate

Return to work confirmation 1 day prior to end of 
approved leave.

Benefit Exhaustion

Vendor Coordination 
(as appropriate)

NO

Approved

Claim Closed

Return to Work Confirm 
Employee confirmed – not 
returning to work. Extension 
initiated, employer notified.

Notice is sent to employer, 
employee is confirmed to 

RTW w/ no Restrictions.

Claim ClosedClaim Managed through RTW 
Full Duty.

Employee remains off work.

Claim Managed through RTW Full 
Duty.

RTW Notice Sent to Employer

Employer Accommodation

Denied

Employer notified of New Claim Request (by 
end of next business day)

NO YES

YESNO

YES

Reminder is sent out 30 days prior to the 
end of intermittent period.

Continuous

Intermittent

Recertification Employee will need to request a 
recertification if necessary.

Are there Restrictions related to the 
employee returning to work NOYES

FMLA Workflow

Page 396 of 853



9

Section 4 - Performance

Performance
4.

Page 397 of 853



10
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL: University Medical Center of Southern Nevada

Section 4 – Performance Response

The Proposer shall provide a description of the following:

a. Company’s past performance on same / similar projects

AbsencePlus has multiple large employers, such as UMC, in the healthcare and public entity space. 
We have 100% successful implementation and a 100% client retention rate over the past five years. 
We put in place an annual plan for each client to drive continuous improvement. We go above and 
beyond for our clients. We encourage you to discuss our services with any of our client references. 

b. Approach to 6 month requirement to implementing the Scope of Work

The AbsencePlus Director of Client Implementations is a dedicated resource responsible for 
client setup, project management, process development, and system configuration. The typical 
implementation timeframe is 120 days and is tracked via Asana project management software. 
UMC would be provided access to the project’s schedule and status via our customer space on 
Confluence. UMC would be able to upload and download deliverables and materials directly to and 
from the Confluence to ensure timelines are met by all parties involved.

The Implementation process consists of six key milestones:

• Milestone 1: Contracts Signed
• Milestone 2: Kick-off Call
• Milestone 3: Discovery
• Milestone 4: System Setup
• Milestone 5: Training and Readiness
• Milestone 6: Go-live & Shadow Support

AbsencePlus will provide FAQs, absence ID Cards, and brochures that provide contact information 
for AbsencePlus and steps employees should take to initiate a leave request. All materials will be 
discussed and customized during implementation.

c. Plan to work with current provider to transfer data

Our claims solution allows us to easily download all claim history, including the data, files, and 
records, to administer the leaves on an ongoing basis. This will include 1-2 years of historical claim 
data. We will work with the UMC to confirm the method and format that the records require. 

Page 398 of 853



11
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL: University Medical Center of Southern Nevada

d. Describe how your organization measures and reports satisfaction and service success

We measure several key performance indicators to ensure the highest quality of service for our 
clients; these include but are not limited to internal claim audits, end-of-claim surveys for some 
clients, and regular program “touch bases” led by Client Services to ensure program performance 
and satisfaction. KPIs will vary depending on the client’s needs and the program, and AbsencePlus 
can track and report on these metrics to ensure continuous improvement and first-in-class client 
experience.

Our key measurement is the return on investment. We will track the reduction in leave usage and 
lost workdays to demonstrate that UMC chose the right service provider for a healthier workplace, 
workforce, and an improved balance sheet.

e. Provide details on how clients make comments on your company’s performance

Our clients have access to a dedicated Account Executive, Senior leadership, and our Owners. At any 
time, clients can directly communicate with the Executive team who you will meet. 

We provide an annual client engagement survey that is independently issued to obtain client 
feedback on our core values; Compliance, Convenience, and Caring. 

Additionally, we routinely solicit Client testimonials.

f. This process is critical and temporary inaccessibility, for even a few days will create a  
 substantial burden for our HR team and employees. Please provide a detailed description 
of your company’s system failure contingency plan to include backup protocols.

We have extensive data backup processes and security procedures. The data protection, storage, 
and disaster recovery are routinely tested by an independent 3rd party and are SSAE18 certified. 
These reports are available upon request. Our system is available 99.9% as a service requirement. 

Please see our exhibits on our data backup software and process. 

Section 4 – Performance Response cont.

Page 399 of 853



Review & Design 
Phase

Development & 
Configuration 

Phase

Deployment 
Phase

Post 
Implementation 

Phase

01 REVIEW & DESIGN
﹢Policy analysis and breakdown

﹢Requirements review 

﹢Establish a project schedule 

﹢Scheduling project status meetings

﹢Complete Custom Service 

Instruction Guide

02 DEVELOPMENT & CONFIGURATION
﹢System configuration and policy set up

﹢Test & Validate Eligibility Files and data

﹢Test & Validate H&T File data

﹢Preparing for client and operational training

03 DEPLOYMENT
﹢Correspondence configuration

﹢Operational Readiness & Training

﹢Client Training Delivered

﹢Load production ready Eligibility 

and H&T Files

﹢Load job descriptions & claims data

04 POST IMPLEMENTATION 
﹢Assist in post implementation transition

﹢Schedule post implementation status 

meetings

﹢Load H&T Gap File

﹢Support client services and operations with 

tracking open items log

Seamless Implementation

24
Page 400 of 853



12
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL: University Medical Center of Southern Nevada

STEP IMPLEMENTATION TASK PARTICIPANTS IMPLEMENTATION TIMELINE

Sales Hand-off to Implementation Sales

New Client Overview/Set Up for Implementation AbsencePlus - PM

PRE-IMPLEMENTATION    

1 Gather Requirements & Policy Information Broker 2 week before kick off

2 Client/Vendor Introductions Broker/AbsencePlus 1 week before kick off

3 Identify Key Stakeholders AbsencePlus - PM 1 week before kick off

SALES & CONTRACT   

4 Signed Business Agreement Client Before Kick Off

5 Review Statement of Work AbsencePlus - PM Day of project kick off

6 Schedule Kick Off Meeting AbsencePlus - PM Day of project kick off

7 Identify Billing Information/Contact AbsencePlus - PM Day of project kick off

8 Request Client Information: Logo, Handbook, Policies AbsencePlus - PM 5 days after kick off

MEETINGS AND CONFERENCE CALLS   

9 Kick off Meeting to begin Implementation AbsencePlus - PM 1 week before kick off

10 Schedule Weekly/Bi-weekly Status Meetings AbsencePlus - PM 1 day after kick off

REQUIREMENTS REVIEW & FILE FEEDS   

11 Policy Breakdown and Overview Client 1 week after kick off

12 Review and Sign-off on Eligibility File Requirements & Layout Client 2 weeks after kick off

13 Test Eligibility File Due Client 4 weeks after kick off

14 Production Ready Eligibility File Due Client 10 weeks after kick off

15 Review and Sign-off on  Historical & Takeover File 
Requirements & Layout Client 3 weeks after kick off

16 Test H&T File Due Client 5 weeks after kick off

17 Production Ready H&T File Due Client 12 weeks after kick off

18 Review and Sign-off on Custom Service Instructions Guide (CSI) Client 5 weeks after kick off

19 Updated H&T File - Reconcilliation File for Go Live Client 5 days after go live

CLIENT SET UP AND CONFIGURATION   

20 Secure Site Set Up AbsencePlus - PM 5 days after kick off

21 Change Management Materials AbsencePlus - PM 1 week after kick off

22 Workflow Overview AbsencePlus - PM 6 weeks after kick off

23 Correspondence Letter Review AbsencePlus - PM 7 weeks after kick off

24 System Set Up/Configuration of Employer and Policies AbsencePlus - PM 2 weeks after kick off

25 Client Training: HR Overview and Portal Training AbsencePlus - PM 3 weeks prior to go live

26 Load Client Documents: Certification Forms, Job Descriptions, 
Packet Inserts, etc. AbsencePlus - PM 3 weeks prior to go live

27 Operational Training on services and Custom Service 
Instructions Guide (CSI) AbsencePlus - PM 2 weeks prior to go live

Implementation Project Outline - Sample

Page 401 of 853



13
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL: University Medical Center of Southern Nevada

CONTRACT
RECEIVED

KICK-OFF
CALL

DISCOVERY

SYSTEM
SETUP

TRAINING
AND

READINESS

GO-LIVE & 
SHADOW
SUPPORT

Milestones

• Contract Review

• Contract Signed

• Team Notified of Completed Contract

• Review of Implementation Process

• Collect customer documentation and handbooks

• Define

• Review the customer documentation

• Define custom processes and correspondence

• Confirm Federal, State, and Company leave policies

• System setup and testing

• Review of customized letters and templates

• Eligibility File Setup and Testing

• Customer and Operations Team Training

• Production Eligibility and H&T File Loaded

• Final Go-live sign-off

• Go-live

• Gap Takeover Claim File

• Shadow Support

Implementation Milestones

1

2

3

4

5

6

Page 402 of 853



Own Backup Security Suite Secure One Pager

27.1 Own Backup Security Suite Description

ownbackup.com  •  info@ownbackup.com

As the Salesforce platform grows in complexity, so does the risk 
of exposing sensitive data internally within your organization — 
and to external parties.

Fortify Salesforce 
Data Security with 
OwnBackup Secure

• Identify security risks  
with confidence
Pinpoint misconfigurations, incorrect 
permissions, and data exposures 
wherever they may be in Salesforce.

• Strengthen security posture 
across Salesforce orgs
Quickly assess your current 
Salesforce implementation and 
how it aligns to your policies around 
data classification, access controls, 
Salesforce Shield Platform Encryption 
(encryption at rest), data retention, 
and compliance audits.

• Classify sensitive  
information with ease
Isolate exactly where sensitive 
information exists in Salesforce and 
apply classification categories without 
leaving the platform.

• Control access rights  
with precision
Stop Salesforce configuration creep 
with granular “Who Sees What” lenses, 
and trace individual, group or guest 
access rights down to the record level.

Benefits of OwnBackup Secure

With OwnBackup Secure, equip your CRM admins, InfoSec, Centers of Excellence, and 

Compliance teams to protect their Salesforce data. The ultimate goal: Making sure your 

SaaS data remains a valuable asset — not a costly liability. 

As a managed package built natively on the Salesforce platform, Secure delivers powerful 

data security insights to guide data classification, compliance requirements, encryption, 

and evidence-based reporting to give security leaders confidence in their SaaS data.

• Accelerate remediation  
with detailed blueprints
Proactively automate remediation of 
data vulnerabilities and encryption 
blind spots with detailed action plans 
and real-time alerts.

• Prove compliance with  
industry regulations
Deliver real-time, evidence-based 
reports and audits to satisfy internal 
policies and external regulations in 
highly regulated industries.

• Accelerate Salesforce  
Shield implementation
Implement and report on Shield 
Platform Encryption to understand 
why encryption is blocked and  what 
needs to be resolved down to the  
field level.

• Deploy Secure with our  
experts’ help
OwnBackup’s team of security analysts 
will guide you through data security 
exposures, risks, and roadblocks, 
ensuring your Salesforce data is safe 
from external data breaches or over-
privileged internal users.

Data security risks 
are on the rise

What customers 
are saying

• 88% of sensitive Salesforce 

data remains exposed to 

hacking and misuse  

by employees

• 84% of Salesforce customers 

who purchased Shield 

Platform Encryption still have 

sensitive data not encrypted 

• An average Salesforce 

production org contains 

2,300+ fields with sensitive 

and high-risk fields exposed

Source: The Salesforce Data Risk 
Report, OwnBackup, 2022

Not only did they 
deliver an application 
that simplifies a really 
complicated process, 
they provide a 
consultative approach 
with a wealth of 
experience..

Donna Heyvaert
5-star AppExchange reviewer  
and customer

14

Page 403 of 853



ownbackup.com  •  info@ownbackup.com

Strengthen your security posture by 
identifying data exposure risks and 
proactively taking action

Accelerate Salesforce Shield Platform 
Encryption (encryption at rest) by 80%

Ensure employees have the minimum 
access to data needed to do their jobs

Why OwnBackup Secure?

Our experts will help you identify risk exposure and advise how you can 

improve your Salesforce security posture.

partners@ownbackup.com

Request a free risk assessment

World’s fastest-growing data protection 
solution, protecting more than 4,000 
businesses and counting

400+ 5-star AppExchange reviews

Get started

AVAILABLE ON 
AppExchange

15 15

Page 404 of 853



Executive Summary - OwnBackup Disaster Recovery Plan

Executive Summary: OwnBackup Disaster

Recovery Plan

OwnBackup is an SSAE-16/18 SOC 2 Type II and an ISO 27001 audited company. As
part of our information  security program we maintain a backup policy and a disaster
recovery plan (DRP).

A leading cloud-to-cloud backup and restore vendor, OwnBackup provides secure,
automated, daily backups of SaaS and PaaS data, as well as sophisticated data compare,
restore,  replication and sandbox seeding tools for disaster recovery.

This document serves as a summary of OwnBackup’s Disaster Recovery Plan. The
complete  DRP is considered company confidential and cannot be shared.

OwnBackup uses Cloud Security Provider (CSP) Object Storage (AWS S3, Azure Blob) for
long-term encrypted data storage, and CSP Block stores (AWS EBS, Azure Block Storage
volumes), for the temporary storage of encrypted customer data during the backup process:

For data stored on S3, object versioning with automatic aging together are used to meet our
SLAs and comply with internal DRP (Disaster Recovery Policies) and backup policies. For these
objects, OwnBackup enables RPO of 0hrs (that is, the ability to restore to any version of any
object during a 14 day period). For legacy customer(s) data stored on EBS, OwnBackup uses
twice-daily snapshots of all the EBS data volumes. In the event of any internal data
loss/corruption or damage, the volumes can be quickly recreated from their snapshots (which
are stored on a separate infrastructure in the same physical region). With this approach,
OwnBackup enables RPO of 12hrs for data stored on these volumes.

Logical backups as well as twice-daily snapshots of the volumes in our supporting infrastructure
are implemented in order to enable RPO of 12 hours for these systems. Compute Instance
issues can be resolved by simply rebuilding a new instance of the same type and configuration.

OwnBackup's DRP is designed to enable 4hr RTO, and is exercised bi-annually.

For additional questions please contact support@ownbackup.com

Company Sensitive
Page 405 of 853



Revision History

Version Date of Change Responsible Summary Change

1.1 October 18, 2015 Ariel Berkman Created

1.1.1 June 20, 2016 Ariel Berkman Updated to account for SOC II audit.

1.2 July 2, 2016 Ira Abramov Added Azure details.

1.3 Nov 10th 2016 Ariel Berkman Minor changes to Azure information.

1.4 Oct 16 2017 Ariel Berkman Removed Azure datacenter in singapore
which  is not in use

1.5 Feb 20 2018 Lee Aber Upgraded language for 2018 and
enhanced  Azure coverage

1.6 June 7 2019 Lee Aber Added new AWS canada central region,
revised  config mgmt system

2.0 Sep 28 2020 Travis Howe Annual Review-Azure Disks vs.
Blobs – Standardized Document
Classification

3.0 January 17, 2022 Travis Howe Review for 2022. Added ISO the
certification. Reworded to align with
the current Disaster Recovery Plan.

Company Sensitive

Page 406 of 853



21

Staffing

Section 6 - Staffing

6.

Page 407 of 853



22
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL: University Medical Center of Southern Nevada

Section 6 – Staffing / Project Team Response

Provide an explanation of the Proposer’s project management structure and key personnel, 
and/or sub- consultants, for the services. It should include the following:

a. An identification of the proposed Project Manager and other key personnel (project staff) 
who will be responsible, with resumes (limited to one page per person), describing their 
qualifications for each position.

AbsencePlus has a full team ready to implement administration and move your program forward.

Gloria Peterson, Director of Client Implementation, will lead the implementation process. She 
has over 14 years of experience in the insurance and technology industries. She has experience 
in program management, client implementations, system enhancements, and disability and 
leave administration through her work with insurance carriers, employer groups, and technology 
companies. Gloria is a Certified Professional in Disability Management (CPDM) and Certified 
Leave Management Specialist (CLMS) responsible for Absence Management client onboarding, 
requirements gathering, and completing the system setup.

Gloria has experience in program management, client implementations, system enhancements, 
and disability and leave administration through her work with insurance carriers, employer groups, 
TPAs, and technology companies. She is a dedicated resource responsible for client setup, project 
management, and system configuration. Our implementation plan will guide the seamless transition 
with your prior TPA with minimal time commitment from the UMC.

The strategic team for UMC will be comprised of: 

Chief Client Officer – Robert Dewey
Director - Client Implementation – Gloria Peterson
Absence Supervisor – Cami Barker
Client Communications Director – Mylah Luper-Johnson
Legal Policy Professional – Jill Mulder

Please see the attached bios for Key Personnel on the following page.

b. Description of the present workload of the project staff to demonstrate their ability to 
devote sufficient time to meet the proposed schedule.

As a concierge service provider, we ensure our clients receive a customized and high-touch 
program. UMC would be a Platinum-level client and will be guided by our best resources to ensure 
you receive the best outcomes. Our team manages a lower-than-industry-normal caseload, so they 
have the time to be detailed, exact, and responsive to your employees.

Page 408 of 853



23
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL: University Medical Center of Southern Nevada

c. A description of the role and responsibilities of each of the key personnel                                
(or sub-consultant)

Below, we identify the key personnel for each functional area this contract requires and their roles 
and responsibilities. All key personnel are referenced in the organizational chart; their bios are 

attached. 

Section 6 – Staffing / Project Team Response cont.

Account Executive and Single Point of Contact

Key Personnel: Robert Dewey – Chief Client Officer

Job Functions: Robert will oversee your program’s high-level reporting, project management, and 
compliance updates. Robert holds an MBA and is a thought leader responsible for 
guiding inter- and intra-company teams to success.

Implementation 

Key Personnel: Gloria Peterson, Director – Client Implementation

Job Functions: Gloria will oversee implementation from start to finish. She works closely with all 
Key Personnel to ensure a smooth and efficient transition. Gloria will track the 
implementation checklist, providing timely progress updates back to UMC. She 
and her team will be responsible for ongoing updates to the Software solution, 
adding any additional configurations to match changes to the state’s policies, 
procedures, and user access.

Claims Management 

Key Personnel: Cami Barker, Supervisor – Leave and Disability Administration

Job Functions: Cami ensures the accuracy, consistency, and compliance of claim adjusting. 
She oversees the Absence Specialists, focusing on coverage analysis, timely 
investigation, benefit delivery, and resolution.

Client Communication

Key Personnel: Mylah Luper-Johnson – Claims Service Companies

Job Functions: Mylah provides client updates on services, solutions, and impactful information, 
such as legislative changes. She ensures the information is clear, concise, and 
enjoyable.

Legal Resource

Key Personnel: Jill Mulder, JM, CLMS – Human Resource Services

Job Functions: Jill is legal counsel that specializes in healthcare law and employer law. Jill will 
provide legal review and guidance on HR Policies, Compliance, and Strategy.

Page 409 of 853



24
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL: University Medical Center of Southern Nevada

d. A description of the project team’s experience in working together on similar work.

This team has worked on multiple projects together, as we are all long-tenured employees with 
AbsencePlus. Please see Section 5, project list. Each member worked together on each of those 
projects. 

Section 6 – Staffing / Project Team Response cont.

Page 410 of 853



25

Overview:
Rob brings over 25 years of experience to the AbsencePlus team, having led and grown Third Party 
Administration claim companies from Startup to National Prominence. A licensed Property & Casualty 
Insurance Producer and an Associate in Claims (AIC) Insurance Designation holder, Rob also has achieved 
the Executive MBA from the prestigious Eli Broad College of Business at Michigan State University.

Having been involved with Third Party Administration from Startup, to Large Regional, to National level 
services, Rob finds that while the size and complexity of the client may differ, the needs and problems are 
similar. It’s about delivering on promises made and being a partner during all phases of the business cycle.

Formal Education/Certification:
• Master of Business Administration – Eli Broad College, Michigan State University

• Associate in Claims- Insurance Institute of America

Professional Affiliations/Awards: 
• Licensed Property & Casualty Producer

Responsibilities include: 
• Guiding Inter and Intra Company - Teams to build unique solutions for our clients

• Thought Leader for the FDI Group of Companies on all things Claims Services

• Align resources and investment to ensure the AbsencePlus Business remains in the fore 
front of innovation, efficiency and quality service to our clients.

Chief Client Officer

Industry Experience: 25 years

Robert Dewey MBA, CPIA, AIC

25

Key Personnel Biographies

Page 411 of 853



26

Overview:
Gloria has over 14 years of experience in the insurance and technology industries. She has experience 
in program management, client implementations, system enhancements, and disability and leave 
administration through her work with insurance carriers, employer groups, and technology companies. 
Gloria is a Certified Professional in Disability Management (CPDM) and Certified Leave Management 
Specialist (CLMS). Gloria has a Master of Business Administration from University of Southern Maine and 
a B.S. in Business Management from the University of Maine. As the Manager of Client Implementation, 
Gloria is responsible for Absence Management client onboarding, requirements gathering, and completing 
the system setup. 

Formal Education/Certification:
• Bachelors of Business Management – Management & Change Management 
• Master’s in Business Administration – Health Management & Public Policy 
• Certified Leave Management Specialist (CLMS) – DMEC 
• Certified Professional in Disability Management (CPDM) – IEA
• Society of Human Resource Management – Certified Professional (SHRM-CP)

Professional Affiliations/Awards: 
• Disability Management Employer Coalition 
• Society for Human Resource Management 

Business Experience: 
• Program / Project Management 
• Client Implementations and System Enhancements 

Responsibilities include: 
• Client Onboarding Management  
• Requirements Gathering 

• System Setup and Enhancements
• Training  

Industry Expertise: 
• Banking 
• Customer Service 
• Healthcare 
• Insurance 
• Public Entities 

• Retail & Grocery  
• Third-Party Administration 
• Technology 
• Transportation – Air & Rail 
• Unions – Air, Retail, and Transportation

26

Director of Client Implementation Leave
and Absence Management 
Industry Experience: 14 years

Gloria Peterson    

Page 412 of 853



272727

Overview:
Cami has over 24 years of customer service experience, including four years of practicing in the insurance 
industry. Cami’s experience includes: managing Federal, State and Company leaves of absence as well as 
experience handling Short-Term and Long-Term Disability claims. Cami is experienced in claim investigations, 
new hire training, and process evaluation/improvement. Her focus is teamwork and providing exemplary 
customer service to both internal and external customers. 

Formal Education/Certification:
• ADA Coordinator- University of Missouri
• Certified Leave Management- CLMS

Professional Affiliations/Awards:

• Disability Management Employer Coalition

Responsibilities include: 
• Accurate, consistent claim adjusting 
• Compliance with customer requirements 
• Focus on:

 - Coverage analysis 
 - Timely Investigation 
 - Benefit Delivery
 - Resolution

Business Experience: 
• Non Occupational Injury Claims (LTD/STD)
• Leave Administration

Languages: 
• English

Supervisor Leave and Disability Administration

Industry Experience: 10 years

Cami Barker  

Page 413 of 853



28

Overview:
Mylah has over eight years of experience in corporate communications. From responding to requests for 
proposals, writing and editing white papers, and building social media campaigns, she manages the voice of 
the company. Mylah graduated from the University of California, Irvine, with a B.A. in English and Writing. 
She has managed internal and external communications for insurance, staffing, credit union, and gaming 
industries. Mylah is responsible for ensuring all communication reflects the company’s mission, vision, and 
voice.

Formal Education/Certification:
• Bachelor of Arts – English (writing emphasis)

Business Experience: 
• Proposal Writer
• Editor

• Marketing Analyst
• Content Library Manager

Responsibilities Include: 
• Proposal response process management and leadership
• Internal and external communications – writing and editing
• Content development

Industry Expertise: 
• Banking/Credit Union
• Financial Compliance
• Customer Service
• Insurance
• Staffing

28

Director- Client Communications and Content Creation
Industry Experience: 8 years

Mylah Luper-Johnson    

Page 414 of 853



29

Overview:
Jill has over 20 years of experience in c-suite and general counsel leadership for national and 
international insurance carriers, healthcare providers, and multi-billion-dollar companies. She 
has significant experience in complex and specialty insurance, health care risk, behavioral health, 
risk, and catastrophic event management. Jill is a strategic thought partner, risk consultant, court-
approved civil mediator, and expert witness. She also advocates for pro bono representation and 
mentors women leaders and entrepreneurs. 

Formal Education/Certification:
• Harvard Medical School Postgraduate Medical Education
• Master of Laws – LLM, Health Law – Purdue Global
• J.D., Law – Western Michigan University Cooley Law School
• Bachelor of Science – Pre-Law/Political Science – Calvin University

• Government
• Insurance/Insurance Law
• Workers’ Compensation
• Litigation Management
• Corporate Law
• Legal Compliance

• Principal Owner
• Expert Witness
• Civil Mediator
• Adjunct Assistant Professor
• SVP General Counsel

Industry Experience:

Business Experience:

Responsibilities include:
• Risk Management expert consulting attorney

of Counsel

Experience: 20+ years

Jill Mulder

Page 415 of 853



32

Section 8 - Technology & System 

Technology &
System
Capabilities

8.

Page 416 of 853



33
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL: University Medical Center of Southern Nevada

Section 8 – Technology & System Capabilities Response

a. Provide an overview of your company’s system, infrastructure, ability to integrate with 
UMC systems, and software capabilities. Include details on how each applies as a proposed 
solution.

Our award-winning FMLA claim system, ClaimVantage, has extensive data tracking, monitoring, 
and reporting capabilities. This 24/7, web-based platform has both a client Interface, as well as an 
employee self-service portal.

Integration
AbsencePlus currently accepts automated inbound file feeds from a client’s HRIS system. We will 
work with your payroll system to develop the required eligibility file needed for administration. Once 
the report is developed, it will be transmitted to AbsencePlus on a weekly cadence (preferred). When 
received, the claims system will upload the information to the employee record, ensuring eligibility 
determinations are made based on the current status.

Reporting: 

• Real-time data – no waiting for the overnight batch to see the claims/changes for the day 
in the reporting suite. As things change, the data in the reports can be refreshed and 
viewed immediately.

• All fields and objects in the solution are 100% reportable. This enables flexible reporting 
on all aspects of the claim as well as the employees on leave or disability, to meet your 
business needs.

• Reports are easily configurable. If reporting needs change, AbsencePlus can quickly 
support the changes.

• UMC can have access to view the reports in a dashboard, or AbsencePlus can schedule 
reports to be sent to your team on a yearly, quarterly, monthly, weekly, or daily cadence.

 
Real-time Decisions and Compliance:

• The system will make the eligibility and entitlement determination as soon as the claim is 
received in the system - either via the phone or portal. The eligibility rules are built into the 
system according to the latest regulatory requirements. Eligibility is accurately determined 
as soon as the claim is in the system, with no room for human error or miscalculations.

• The system is updated with the latest compliance and regulatory changes for federal, 
state, and local leave laws relieving the burden on UMC. 

• Entitlement (hours of leave available) is auto calculated based on past usage and the 
employee’s unique weekly schedule. The calculations built into the system will determine 
the replenishment rates without any complex calculations or errors. 

• Ability to configure complex employee work schedules in the solution. 
 

Page 417 of 853



34
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL: University Medical Center of Southern Nevada

Reliable, Stable, and Secure Platform

• Salesforce has a 99.9% uptime.
• The platform is updated with the latest security and compliance standards three times per 

year.
• Access to data is controlled with robust permissions rules - allowing only the right people 

to have access to the right data - including your team, for reporting.

Please see Sample Reports and the ClaimVantage screenshots on the following pages.

b. Explain system constraints. Include throughput, response time, and CPU utilization, etc.

The claims system is built on top of the Salesforce Platform. While the platform does have 
limitations, we have not hit any limitations due to the efficiency of our claims system code and 
configuration. For an overview of the overall Salesforce Platform limitations, please refer to the 
Salesforce Developer Limits and Allocations Quick Reference. 

c. Provide a high-level overview and technical summary of system implementation and 
integration with existing UMC systems:

• SAP Version 770
• Inovalon (SMARTFORCE) Version 7.11
• Kronos Workforce Version 8.1.17

Our claim solution is built on the Salesforce.com platform. Salesforce.com and your existing systems 
have available connectors for integration, as well as the ability to integrate with custom fields and 
objects identified during implementation. UMC will benefit from uniformity, efficiency, and ease of 
administration via this integration.

d. Specify network requirements

Our portal will perform adequately over high-speed, dial-up, and wireless internet connections and 
is designed to use very little bandwidth. The recommended requirements for best performance is:

• An Octane 2.0 score of 20,000 or greater
• Network latency of 200 ms or less
• Download speed of 1 Mbps or greater
• At least 5 GB of RAM, with 2 GB available for Salesforce browser tabs

Section 8 – Technology & System Capabilities
Response cont.

Page 418 of 853



35
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL: University Medical Center of Southern Nevada

e. Provide a timeline from Notice of Award to “Go-live.”

The AbsencePlus Director of Client Implementation is a dedicated resource responsible for client 
setup, project management, and system configuration. Our typical implementation timeframe is 120 
days. A project schedule “Smartsheet” will be created and shared with UMC during implementation. 
All deliverables, project milestones, timelines, and open items/issues are captured on this 
Smartsheet. UMC will also be able to upload and download deliverables and materials directly 
to and from the Smartsheet to ensure timelines are met by all parties involved. AbsencePlus will 
provide FAQs, absence ID Cards, and brochures that provide contact information for AbsencePlus 
and steps employees should take to initiate a leave request. All materials will be discussed and 
customized during implementation.

Please see our Implementation Timeline Sample for our process and expectations during 
implementation.

f. Provide an overview of system training options

AbsencePlus provides our customers with portal training and guides that explain the plan, policy, 
reporting, and process. The training provided to your team will be completed before go-live and will 
include a detailed overview of the portal and any read-only access to the system. The training will 
go over the reporting and dashboard functionality to ensure your team is able to pull the necessary 

data. The training is provided at no additional cost.

g. Describe any specialized hardware or software requirements that must be purchased or 
upgraded prior to implementation

UMC would not be required to purchase or upgrade any hardware or software prior to the 

implementation. 

h. Identify in-house IT staff requirements (include transition, implementation,                         
and maintenance)

During implementation, UMC would need to provide a system resource that would support the 
creation of the employee eligibility (demographic) file that would pass on a weekly cadence from 
UMC to AbsencePlus. Post-implementation it is possible we would need to re-engage the resource if 
a new leave or service is added to the contract. 

i. Process for implementing system upgrades and changes

At a minimum, we upgrade our system three times per year. We maintain multiple “sandboxes” for 
acceptance testing prior to production. Additionally, we maintain nightly, and on-demand backups 
prior to production environment upgrades. 

Section 8 – Technology & System Capabilities
Response cont.

Page 419 of 853



36
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL: University Medical Center of Southern Nevada

Report Title: New Leave by Month Report

New Leave by Month Report

Sample Reports

Page 420 of 853



37
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL: University Medical Center of Southern Nevada

Report Title: Intermittent Leave Pattern

Intermittent Leave Pattern

Sample Reports cont.

Page 421 of 853



38
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL: University Medical Center of Southern Nevada

Report Title: Closed Leave by Type

Closed Leave by Type

Sample Reports cont.

Page 422 of 853



39
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL: University Medical Center of Southern Nevada

Report Title: All Absence Claims

All Absence Claims

Sample Reports cont.

Page 423 of 853



40
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL: University Medical Center of Southern Nevada

Report Title: Absence Denials by Denial Reason

Absence Denials by Denial Reason

Sample Reports cont.

Page 424 of 853



Cornerstone - Technology

11

PLATFORM

• American cloud-based

• Automation, analytics, app

• Business to Business Data exchange

• Superior Security

SYSTEM-TO-SYSTEM INTERFACE

• Robust API (Application Programming Interface)

o Integrates with clicks, not code

• Allows for SSO Single Sign-On integration

Page 425 of 853



SOFTWARE
• Customized for AbsencePlus

• All lines of service- one place

• Highly Customizable/Flexible

• Real-time

• Continuous Compliance Updates built-in

Cornerstone- Technology

12

TRACKS LEAVE USAGE

BUSINESS RULES FLAGS
• Exceeding Freq/Duration

• Outside of acceptable guidelines for diagnosis

• Tracks trends at various levels to identify the root cause

Page 426 of 853



Levels of Access and Notifications

13

Employee

Supervisor

HR Overview

HR Audit Full Read-Only, Specialist Notes, Documents, 

Medical Certifications

Direct Employee Work Status Notifications, 

Reports, and Report New Events on Behalf

Submit New, Report Time, Upload Documentation, 

Receive Notifications

Divisional or All Employee Work Status Notifications, 

Reports, and Report New Events on Behalf

Page 427 of 853



49

Section 9 - Invoicing, Record Keeping, & Reporting

Invoicing,
Record Keeping,
& Reporting

9.

Page 428 of 853



50
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL: University Medical Center of Southern Nevada

Section 9 – Invoicing, Record Keeping
& Reporting Response

a. The company shall invoice UMC on a quarterly basis. The invoice shall list the following:
1. Title of the Project as stated in the Scope of Work
2. Itemized description of products delivered, or services render
3. Amount due
4. Purchase order number
5. Invoice Date
6. Approved a la carte services not included in monthly services
7. Payment Remittance Address

AbsencePlus agrees. Please see our Sample Invoice on the following pages.

b. Provide a sample of your company’s invoice.

Please see our Sample Invoice on the following pages.

c. Provide templates of reports your company will provide.

Our award-winning Leave, Disability, and Accommodation claim system puts reporting at your 
fingertips. It is a cloud-based platform that is SSAE18 certified. The platform has flexible and 
customizable real-time data tracking, monitoring, and reporting capabilities. All fields in the claims 
system are reportable. This flexibility results in a comprehensive reporting suite that shows real-time 
trends and benchmarking. The reports reflect the current state of the claims in the system with no 
delays or need to batch overnight. Employers are also provided access to a reporting dashboard 
available 24/7. 
AbsencePlus offers standard reporting, including open/closed leaves, time utilization, new leaves, 
denied leaves, and an intermittent leave report. UMC will also have the accessibility to run ad 
hoc reports. AbsencePlus can set up reports to run on a specific cadence if a particular report is 
frequently needed.

Please see our Sample Reports on the following pages.

d. If applicable, provide a template of your company’s standard service Agreement or Terms 
and Conditions

Please see our Sample Master Services Agreement on the following pages.

Page 429 of 853



51
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL: University Medical Center of Southern Nevada

51

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL: University Medical Center of Southern Nevada

e. Provide a detailed explanation of your company’s record keeping methods (ex: Length 
of time records are maintained, auditing and inspection process, Security procedures to 
safeguard information stored in technology-based systems) No more than 5 pages.

Record Keeping
AbsencePlus’ Record Retention Policy and Procedures contain a detailed schedule and frequency of 
record retention by record type/classification. The Policy also includes physical/virtual storage and 
destruction requirements. Upon termination of the contract, AbsencePlus clears the data within 30 
days of termination and will transfer all data and records necessary to administer leave back to UMC 
in a secure transfer.

Please see The Record Retention Policy and Procedure on the following pages.

System Audits
AbsencePlus maintains company, Federal, and state law compliance and utilizes an encrypted 
secure, and paperless claim system to ensure the confidentiality of records. Assigning a dedicated 
claim staff further reduces the number of individuals accessing the records, thus increasing 
confidentiality. We are audited annually by an independent 3rd party for security, compliance, and 
controls.

Security Measures
We have partnered with ClaimVantage, the industry-leading claim and absence management 
software. This software, built on the Salesforce platform, offers the highest level of data security.
The system and platform adhere to the highest cybersecurity, data integrity, and ISO/SOC 
certifications. Storing data in the cloud is more secure than hosting on our data servers.
Salesforce has heavily invested in the security and resilience of its infrastructure. Its data center 
operations maintain ISO 27001/17/18 and SOC 1/2 Type II certifications and are FedRAMP and 
GDPR compliant. Salesforce.com is a certified licensee of the TRUSTe Web Privacy Seal and TRUSTe 
Safe Harbor Seal and abides by the EU Safe Harbour Framework. They have a host of other 
certifications, standards, and regulations and detailed network and physical security mechanisms in 
place, which are outlined on their website.

While ClaimVantage maintains industry best practices for security, including compliance with the 
SOC2 framework, our partnership with Salesforce ensures that Salesforce indemnifies your data.

AbsencePlus stays abreast of all cyber security information. We are subscribed to Cybersecurity 
Advisories for Cybersecurity and Infrastructure Security Agency (CISA.GOV), Cybersecurity and 
Information Technology Advisories for National Institute of Standards and Technology (NIST.GOV), 
and are a member of the Information Systems Audit and Control Association (ISACA.ORG).

Section 9 – Invoicing, Record Keeping
& Reporting Response cont.

Page 430 of 853



52

Invoice
Date

6/28/2023

Invoice #

555

Bill To

Sample Client
555 3rd  Ave.
Anytown, MI  55555

AbsencePlus Administrators 
39500 High Pointe Blvd. 
Suite 400
Novi, MI  48375

P.O. No.

Total

Balance Due
Payments/Credits

Description Qty Rate Amount

Dept 1 2.50 2.50
Dept 11 2.50 27.50
Dept 169 2.50 422.50
Dept 52 2.50 130.00
Dept 5 2.50 12.50
Dept 18 2.50 45.00
Dept 44 2.50 110.00
Dept 44 2.50 110.00
Dept 56 2.50 140.00

Period: 6/27/23 - 7/26/23

Please contact Heather Bustillo at 1-888-298-9043 or hbustillo@absenceplus.com if you 
have any questions. Thank you. $3,250.00

$3,250.00

$0.00

123456

PEPM Rate 1000 1.00 1000.00
Risk Consulting 10 125.00 1250.00

Sample Invoice

Page 431 of 853



Propose Policy & Procedure Analysis

16

ANALYSIS:

• Our subject-matter experts provide an organization-wide assessment completed within 2-4 

weeks: our staff review processes, procedures, and data.

• As part of the evaluation process, we will address compliance, auditing, staffing, and risk 

reduction issues.

• We commonly conduct interviews with key personnel to help determine the current culture, 

areas of strength, and areas of concern.

RECOMMENDATIONS & REPORT:

• Rizikon will analyze the findings and develop strategies for you to consider moving 

forward.

• Findings will outline how they directly benefit the organizations’ operational needs.

• A formal report is provided for management’s review and recommended next steps for 

your consideration.

Rizikon does not operate as a 

service provider but rather as a 

partner who shares your goal of 

providing a safe productive work 

environment. The needs of the 

organization, the people, and the 

community are paramount to the 

decision-making process.

8 hours of expert consultation 
included in the proposal

Page 432 of 853



53

 

 

 

Record Retention 
Policy 

 
 
 

Record Retention Policy and Procedure

Page 433 of 853



54

 

 

Table of Contents 
 

1 Purpose .......................................................................................................................................... 1 

2 Scope ............................................................................................................................................. 1 

3 Policy .............................................................................................................................................. 1 

4 Procedure 

5 Revision History .............................................................................................................................. 4 

 

 

Page 434 of 853



55

 

 

Record Retention Policy 
 
 

1. Purpose 
 

The purpose of this policy is to provide FDI Group’s operating procedures for record 
retention and destruction of documents and data when such retention periods have passed.  If 
FDI Group’s retention period is not of sufficient duration for any state in which the company 
does business, this procedure will be superseded by state requirements.  

2. Scope 
 

Specific departments within FDI Group are responsible for the retention and destruction of 
the various records and are specified below.    

 
3. Policy 
 

Litigation Hold 

When FDI Group is involved in or anticipates that it may be involved in litigation, legal 
counsel will issue a litigation hold. This means that all documents relating to the litigation 
matter must be kept in order to preserve any potential evidence. If we fail to do so, FDI 
Group can be sanctioned by the court for destroying evidence. A court has broad authority to 
impose these sanctions, which may include anything from unfavorable procedural rulings 
during a trial to payment of monetary damages. 

In the event that legal counsel or company management announces a litigation hold on any or 
all FDI Group records as a result of pending or anticipated litigation, all records covered by 
such litigation hold MUST NOT be discarded, deleted or destroyed. Further, the IT 
department will suspend the automatic deletion of emails for all individuals covered by the 
litigation hold. Any questions about the litigation should be directed to legal counsel. 

Destruction of Records 

All paper records and confidential data by shredding after retention dates have passed; this 
procedure pertains to all records, including personnel records, not just those governed by the 
Fair and Accurate Credit Transactions Act (FACTA). 

Employment application materials submitted by applicants who were never employed are 
also to be shredded.  

Page 435 of 853



56

 

 

When a hardcopy confidential record must be discarded or destroyed, it shall be placed in a 
securely locked shredding container on the FDI Group premises or securely destroyed by 
FDI Group’s off-site storage contractor. 

In the case of remote employees, employees are discouraged from printing out or creating 
hard copies of confidential records where possible. If hard copies must be printed, created or 
kept, they should be stored in a locked cabinet, drawer or other secure location until they are 
no longer needed, or until the maximum retention period has ended. Remote employees must 
then destroy all confidential files by placing them in a locked shredding container on the FDI 
Group premises, or otherwise rendering the documents unusable or unreadable. 

Records include electronic as well as paper records. The responsible department will work 
with the Information Technology department periodically, but no less than annually to 
review and ensure that electronic records relating to employee information and compliance 
reports are properly purged. 

 

Page 436 of 853



We are confident in our ability to deliver the industry’s highest quality claims management services. 
We believe that the UMCSN is entitled to an assurance that it will receive the services promised. 
AbsencePlus is willing to demonstrate our commitment to quality by placing a portion of our fees at risk 
based on best practices and measurable standards. 

We are therefore pleased to offer you the following performance guarantee covering new claims reported 
during the contract period. 

 Performance Guarantee 

Sr. Leadership attends quarterly 
 inperson meeting. Presents Key  

Performance Indicator (KPI) results 

PERFORMANCE 
CATEGORY PERFORMANCE CRITERIA STANDARD WEIGHT

Customer 
Service

Telephone Response Time/Wait Time 95% Less than 1 minute 2%

Speed of answer Within 30 seconds

Abandonment rate <= 5%

Claim 
Processing

95% of all claims received in 
audit period. 2%

Benefit Packet issued within one 
business day from claim set up 95%

Benefit determination made within 
five business days from receipt of 

required documents.
95%

Client
Services

All specified reports required under 
this contract received within 14 days 
after the end of the reporting period

100% 1%

All service invoices and billings 
required under this contract 

will reflect correct and accurate 
information for the billing period.

100%

100%

EXHIBIT A-2

Page 437 of 853



AbsencePlus Performance Guarantee for UMCSN 
 
 
Overview: 
 
AbsencePlus proposes a unique Performance Guarantee for UMCSN. The reduction of 
your Leave of Absence Administrative costs is a collaborative effort on the part of many 
actors and as your claim administrator, we play a critical role.  
 
Performance Guarantee: 
 
The Performance Guarantee: Up to 5% of claim service fees earned in the period.  
(12 months from Go-Live.) 
 
Each Category is combined into one rating.  
 
Customer Service – Pass/Fail -  2% at risk 
Claim Processing- Pass/Fail-   2% at risk. 
Client Services- Pass/Fail -  1% at risk. 
 
Performance Audit Procedure: 
 
Metrics will be tracked monthly and reported quarterly. Upon the contract anniversary, 
any penalties will be applied to next month(s)’ invoice as a credit.  
 
 

Page 438 of 853



Description Estimated Quantity Unit of
Measure

Price Extended Total

Section 1: Cost per Claim see reduction plan

Year 1 3581 Per Employee Per Month  $ 8.45  $                  363,113.40 

Year 2 3581 Per Employee Per Month  $ 8.45  $                  363,113.40 

Year 3 3581 Per Employee Per Month  $ 8.45  $                  363,113.40 

Year 4 3581 Per Employee Per Month  $ 8.45  $                  363,113.40 

Year 5 3581 Per Employee Per Month  $ 8.45  $                  363,113.40 

Section 2: One-Time Charges

Training: Initial Training Included

Training: On-Going Training Included

Implementation / Installation  $ 7,500.00 

Integration - Develop/Build  $ 7,500.00 
Transition to New Provider after End of Contract Period or Contract Termination Included

Additional Services: ADA Accomodation

Additional Services: COBRA

Additional Services: Legal Policy Review 8 hours included, addl hours Per hour $175  $ -   

Additional Services: Loss Prevention Training 0 Per hour $125  $ -   

Annual Leaves Reported Price Reduction
Reduce by 200 0.75$  PEPM

400 1.50$  PEPM
600 2.25$  PEPM
800 3.00$  PEPM

AbsencePlus proposes as annual leave counts reduce, we will reduce our rates for the next period.  We offer the following schedule
Reduction Plan

Contingent upon  validation of data.  Reduction will be based on go live volume. RFP answer indicates 1880 annual leaves currently.

EXHIBIT B
FEE AND DELIVERY SCHEDULE

Page 439 of 853



EXHIBIT C 
INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

TO ENSURE COMPLIANCE WITH THE AGREEMENT DOCUMENT, COMPANY SHOULD FORWARD THE FOLLOWING 
INSURANCE CLAUSE AND SAMPLE INSURANCE FORM TO THEIR INSURANCE AGENT PRIOR TO PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL. 

A. Format/Time: COMPANY shall provide HOSPITAL with Certificates of Insurance, per the sample format (page B-3), for 
coverage as listed below, and endorsements affecting coverage required by this Agreement within ten (10) business days 
after the award by HOSPITAL. All policy certificates and endorsements shall be signed by a person authorized by that insurer 
and who is licensed by the State of Nevada in accordance with NRS 680A.300.  All required aggregate limits shall be disclosed 
and amounts entered on the Certificate of Insurance, and shall be maintained for the duration of the Agreement and any 
renewal periods. 

B. Best Key Rating: HOSPITAL requires insurance carriers to maintain during the Agreement term, a Best Key Rating of A.VII 
or higher, which shall be fully disclosed and entered on the Certificate of Insurance. 

C. HOSPITAL Coverage: HOSPITAL, its officers and employees must be expressly covered as additional insured’s except on 
Workers' Compensation. COMPANY's insurance shall be primary as respects HOSPITAL, its officers and employees. 

D. Endorsement/Cancellation: COMPANY's general liability and automobile liability insurance policy shall be endorsed to 
recognize specifically COMPANY’s contractual obligation of additional insured to HOSPITAL and must note that HOSPITAL 
will be given thirty (30) calendar days advance notice by certified mail “return receipt requested” of any policy changes, 
cancellations, or any erosion of insurance limits. Either a copy of the additional insured endorsement, or a copy of the policy 
language that gives HOSPITAL automatic additional insured status must be attached to any certificate of insurance. 

E. Deductibles: All deductibles and self-insured retentions shall be fully disclosed in the Certificates of Insurance and may not 
exceed $25,000. 

F. Aggregate Limits: If aggregate limits are imposed on bodily injury and property damage, then the amount of such limits must 
not be less than $2,000,000. 

G. Commercial General Liability: Subject to Paragraph 6 of this Exhibit, COMPANY shall maintain limits of no less than 
$1,000,000 combined single limit per occurrence for bodily injury (including death), personal injury and property damages. 
Commercial general liability coverage shall be on a “per occurrence” basis only, not “claims made,” and be provided either on 
a Commercial General Liability or a Broad Form Comprehensive General Liability (including a Broad Form CGL endorsement) 
insurance form. Policies must contain a primary and non-contributory clause and must contain a waiver of subrogation 
endorsement. 

H. Automobile Liability:  Subject to Paragraph 6 of this Exhibit, COMPANY shall maintain limits of no less than $1,000,000 
combined single limit per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage to include, but not be limited to, coverage against 
all insurance claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from services rendered by COMPANY 
and any auto used for the performance of services under this Agreement. 

I. Professional Liability: COMPANY shall maintain limits of no less than $1,000,000 aggregate. If the professional liability 
insurance provided is on a Claims Made Form, then the insurance coverage required must continue for a period of two (2) 
years beyond the completion or termination of this Agreement.  Any retroactive date must coincide with or predate the 
beginning of this and may not be advanced without the consent of HOSPITAL.  

J. Workers' Compensation: COMPANY shall obtain and maintain for the duration of this Agreement, a work certificate and/or 
a certificate issued by an insurer qualified to underwrite workers’ compensation insurance in the State of Nevada, in 
accordance with Nevada Revised Statutes Chapters 616A-616D, inclusive, provided, however, a COMPANY that is a Sole 
Proprietor shall be required to submit an affidavit (Attachment 1) indicating that COMPANY has elected not to be included in 
the terms, conditions and provisions of Chapters 616A-616D, inclusive, and is otherwise in compliance with those terms, 
conditions and provisions. 

K. Failure To Maintain Coverage:  If COMPANY fails to maintain any of the insurance coverage required herein, HOSPITAL 
may withhold payment, order COMPANY to stop the work, declare COMPANY in breach, suspend or terminate the Agreement, 
assess liquidated damages as defined herein, or may purchase replacement insurance or pay premiums due on existing 
policies.  HOSPITAL may collect any replacement insurance costs or premium payments made from COMPANY or deduct 
the amount paid from any sums due COMPANY under this Agreement. 

L. Additional Insurance: COMPANY is encouraged to purchase any such additional insurance as it deems necessary. 

M. Damages: COMPANY is required to remedy all injuries to persons and damage or loss to any property of HOSPITAL, caused 
in whole or in part by COMPANY, its subcontractors or anyone employed, directed or supervised by COMPANY. 

N. Cost: COMPANY shall pay all associated costs for the specified insurance.  The cost shall be included in the price(s). 

O. Insurance Submittal Address:  All Insurance Certificates requested shall be sent to University Medical Center, Attention: 
Contracts Management. See the Notice Clause in the Agreement for the appropriate mailing address. 

Page 440 of 853



P. Insurance Form Instructions: The following information must be filled in by COMPANY’s Insurance Company representative: 

1. Insurance Broker’s name, complete address, phone and fax numbers.

2. COMPANY’s name, complete address, phone and fax numbers.

3. Insurance Company’s Best Key Rating

4. Commercial General Liability (Per Occurrence)
(A) Policy Number 
(B) Policy Effective Date 
(C) Policy Expiration Date 
(D) Each Occurrence ($1,000,000) 
(E) Damage to Rented Premises ($50,000) 
(F) Medical Expenses ($5,000) 
(G) Personal & Advertising Injury ($1,000,000) 
(H) General Aggregate ($2,000,000) 
(I) Products - Completed Operations Aggregate ($2,000,000) 

5. Automobile Liability (Any Auto)
(J) Policy Number 
(K) Policy Effective Date 
(L) Policy Expiration Date 
(M) Combined Single Limit ($1,000,000) 

6. Worker’s Compensation: The COMPANY shall obtain and maintain for the duration of this Agreement, a work
certificate and/or a certificate issued by an insurer qualified to underwrite workers’ compensation insurance in the
State of Nevada, in accordance with Nevada Revised Statutes Chapters 616A-616D

7. Professional Liability
(N) Policy Number 
(O) Policy Effective Date 
(P) Policy Expiration Date 
(Q) Aggregate ($1,000,000) 

8. Description: Project (must be identified on the initial insurance form and each renewal form).

9. Certificate Holder:

University Medical Center of Southern Nevada
c/o Contracts Management
1800 W. Charleston Blvd.
Las Vegas, Nevada 89102

10. Appointed Agent Signature to include license number and issuing state.

11. Notwithstanding any other provision to the contrary herein, the parties hereto agree that (1) all coverage provided by
COMPANY hereunder shall be on a per policy basis; (2) COMPANY shall provide evidence of all such coverages
upon request; (3) COMPANY agrees to provide HOSPITAL with a written notice of cancellation in accordance with
COMPANY’S insurance policies; (4) all references herein to any ISO, Acord or other insurance form shall be read as
to include “or equivalent, at the discretion of COMPANY”; and (5) COMPANY reserves the right to meet
Excess/Umbrella Liability coverage requirements by increasing its Commercial General Liability, Business
Automobile Liability and Employer’s Liability Insurance limits.

Page 441 of 853



SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE

INSURER F :

INSURER E :

INSURER D :

INSURER C :

INSURER B :

INSURER A :

NAIC #

NAME:
CONTACT

(A/C, No):
FAX

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

PRODUCER

(A/C, No, Ext):
PHONE

INSURED

REVISION NUMBER:CERTIFICATE NUMBER:COVERAGES

IMPORTANT:  If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement.  A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW.  THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

OTHER:

(Per accident)

(Ea accident)

$

$

N / A

SUBR
WVD

ADDL
INSD

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.  NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

$

$

$

$PROPERTY DAMAGE
BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT

AUTOS ONLY

AUTOSAUTOS ONLY
NON-OWNED

SCHEDULEDOWNED

ANY AUTO

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

Y / N
WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH)

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below
If yes, describe under

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE

$

$

$

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

ER
OTH-

STATUTE
PER

LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EXP

(MM/DD/YYYY)
POLICY EFF

POLICY NUMBERTYPE OF INSURANCELTR
INSR

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES  (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)
RFP 2023-08 : FMLA Source Administrative Services and Other Related Services 

It is hereby understood and agreed that University Medical Center of Southern Nevada c/o Contracts Management are included as additional insured with 
respects to liability and above insured. Including Primary and Non-Contributory, waiver of subrogation and 30 days cancellation 

EXCESS LIAB

UMBRELLA LIAB $EACH OCCURRENCE

$AGGREGATE

$

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

DED RETENTION $

$PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

$GENERAL AGGREGATE

$PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

$MED EXP (Any one person)

$EACH OCCURRENCE
DAMAGE TO RENTED

$PREMISES (Ea occurrence)

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY
PRO-
JECT LOC

EXHIBIT C

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

CANCELLATION

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)
© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION.  All rights reserved.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

12/14/2023

George B. Ford Agency, Inc.
39500 High Pointe Blvd., #400
Novi MI 48375

Debbie Floyd-Snoek

248-348-8200

certificates@fdigroup.com

Frankenmuth Mutual Insurance Company 13986
COMPADM-01 TDC Specialty Insurance Co. 34487

CompOne Administrators Inc DBA AbsencePlus
39500 High Pointe Blvd #400
Novi MI 48375

Westchester Surplus Lines Ins 10172

1178525973

A X 1,000,000

X 500,000

X $0 Deductible 10,000

2,000,000

6700317 9/10/2023 9/10/2024

2,000,000

A 1,000,000

X X

6700317 9/10/2023 9/10/2024

A X X 4,000,0006700318 9/10/2023 9/10/2024

4,000,000

X
10,000

A 6700316 9/10/2023 9/10/2024

500,000

500,000

500,000

B
C

Professional Liability
Cyber Liability

MCP-00603-23-03
F14803622 005

6/1/2023
4/21/2023

6/1/2024
4/21/2024

Limit/Ded $50,000
Limit/Ded $10,000

5,000,000
3,000,000

University Medical Center of Southern Nevada c/o
Contracts Management
1800 W. Charleston Blvd.
Las Vegas NV 89102

Page 442 of 853



REVISED 7/25/2014

INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING THE 

DISCLOSURE OF OWNERSHIP/PRINCIPALS FORM Purpose of the Form 

The purpose of the Disclosure of Ownership/Principals Form is to gather ownership information pertaining to the business entity for use by the University Medical 

Center of Southern Nevada Governing Board (“GB”) in determining whether members of the GB should exclude themselves from voting on agenda items where 

they have, or may be perceived as having a conflict of interest, and to determine compliance with Nevada Revised Statute 281A.430, contracts in which a public 

officer or employee has interest is prohibited. 

General Instructions 

Completion and submission of this Form is a condition of approval or renewal of a contract or lease and/or release of monetary funding between the disclosing 

entity and University Medical Center of Southern Nevada.  Failure to submit the requested information may result in a refusal by the GB to enter into an 
agreement/contract and/or release monetary funding to such disclosing entity. 

Detailed Instructions 

All sections of the Disclosure of Ownership form must be completed.  If not applicable, write in N/A. 

Business Entity Type – Indicate if the entity is an Individual, Partnership, Limited Liability Company, Corporation, Trust, Non-profit Organization, or Other.  
When selecting ‘Other’, provide a description of the legal entity. 

Non-Profit Organization (NPO) - Any non-profit corporation, group, association, or corporation duly filed and registered as required by state law. 

Business Designation Group – Indicate if the entity is a Minority Owned Business Enterprise (MBE), Women-Owned Business Enterprise (WBE), Small 
Business Enterprise (SBE), Physically-Challenged Business Enterprise (PBE), Veteran Owned Business (VET),  Disabled Veteran Owned Business (DVET), or 

Emerging Small Business (ESB) . This is needed in order to provide utilization statistics to the Legislative Council Bureau, and will be used only for such 

purpose.   

 Minority Owned Business Enterprise (MBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function and 
is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more minority persons of Black American, Hispanic American, Asian-Pacific American or Native 

American ethnicity.

 Women Owned Business Enterprise (WBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function and 
is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more women.

 Physically-Challenged Business Enterprise (PBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful 
function and is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more disabled individuals pursuant to the federal Americans with Disabilities Act. 

 Small Business Enterprise (SBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function, is not owned
and controlled by individuals designated as minority, women, or physically-challenged, and where gross annual sales does not exceed $2,000,000.

 Veteran Owned Business Enterprise (VET): An independent and continuing Nevada business for profit which performs a commercially useful
function and is at least 51 percent owned and controlled by one or more U.S. Veterans.

 Disabled Veteran Owned Business Enterprise (DVET):  A Nevada business at least 51 percent owned/controlled by a disabled veteran.

 Emerging Small Business (ESB): Certified by the Nevada Governor's Office of Economic Development effective January, 2014. Approved into 

Nevada law during the 77th Legislative session as a result of AB294. 

Business Name (include d.b.a., if applicable) – Enter the legal name of the business entity and enter the “Doing Business As” (d.b.a.) name, if applicable. 

Corporate/Business Address, Business Telephone, Business Fax, and Email – Enter the street address, telephone and fax numbers, and email of the named 

business entity.   

Nevada Local Business Address, Local Business Telephone, Local Business Fax, and Email – If business entity is out-of-state, but operates the business from a 

location in Nevada, enter the Nevada street address, telephone and fax numbers, point of contact and email of the local office. Please note that the local address 
must be an address from which the business is operating from that location. Please do not include a P.O. Box number, unless required by the U.S. Postal Service, 

or a business license hanging address. 

Number of Clark County Nevada Residents employed by this firm. (Do not leave blank. If none or zero, put the number 0 in the space provided.) 

List of Owners/Officers – Include the full name, title and percentage of ownership of each person who has ownership or financial interest in the business entity.  If 

the business is a publicly-traded corporation or non-profit organization, list all Corporate Officers and Directors only.   

For All Contracts – (Not required for publicly-traded corporations) 

1) Indicate if any individual members, partners, owners or principals involved in the business entity are a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 
full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s).  If yes, the following paragraph applies. 

In accordance with NRS 281A.430.1, a public officer or employee shall not bid on or enter into a contract between a government agency and any 
private business in which he has a significant financial interest, except as provided for in subsections 2, 3, and 4. 

2) Indicate if any individual members, partners, owners or principals involved in the business entity have a second degree of consanguinity or affinity 
relation to a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s) (reference form on Page 2 for 

definition).  If YES, complete the Disclosure of Relationship Form. 

A professional service is defined as a business entity that offers business/financial consulting, legal, physician, architect, engineer or other professional services. 

Signature and Print Name – Requires signature of an authorized representative and the date signed. 

Disclosure of Relationship Form – If any individual members, partners, owners or principals of the business entity is presently a University Medical Center of 

Southern Nevada employee, public officer or official, or has a second degree of consanguinity or affinity relationship to a University Medical Center of Southern 

Nevada employee, public officer or official, this section must be completed in its entirety.   

EXHIBIT E 
Disclosure of Ownership

Page 443 of 853



DISCLOSURE OF OWNERSHIP/PRINCIPALS 

1
REVISED 7/25/2014 

Business Entity Type (Please select one) 

 Sole
Proprietorship Partnership Limited

Liability Company Corporation Trust Non-Profit
Organization Other

Business Designation Group (Please select all that apply)

 MBE WBE SBE PBE VET DVET ESB

Minority Business
Enterprise

Women-Owned
Business
Enterprise

Small Business
Enterprise

Physically Challenged
Business Enterprise

Veteran Owned
Business

Disabled Veteran
Owned Business

Emerging Small
Business

Number of Clark County Nevada Residents Employed:

Corporate/Business Entity Name:

(Include d.b.a., if applicable) 

Street Address: Website: 

City, State and Zip Code: 
Email: 

Telephone No: Fax No: 

Nevada Local Street Address: 

(If different from above) 

Website: 

 City, State and Zip Code: Local Fax No:   

Local Telephone No: 
Local POC Name: 

Email: 

All entities, with the exception of publicly-traded and non-profit organizations, must list the names of individuals holding more than five percent (5%) ownership or
financial interest in the business entity appearing before the Board.

Publicly-traded entities and non-profit organizations shall list all Corporate Officers and Directors in lieu of disclosing the names of individuals with
ownership or financial interest. The disclosure requirement, as applied to land-use applications, extends to the applicant and the landowner(s).

Entities include all business associations organized under or governed by Title 7 of the Nevada Revised Statutes, including but not limited to private corporations,
close corporations, foreign corporations, limited liability companies, partnerships, limited partnerships, and professional corporations.

Full Name Title % Owned
(Not required for Publicly Traded

Corporations/Non-profit organizations)

This section is not required for publicly-traded corporations.  Are you a publicly-traded corporation?  Yes No 

1. Are any individual members, partners, owners or principals, involved in the business entity, a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time
employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s)?

Yes No (If yes, please note that University Medical Center of Southern Nevada employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s) may not
perform any work on professional service contracts, or other contracts, which are not subject to competitive bid.)

2. Do any individual members, partners, owners or principals have a spouse, registered domestic partner, child, parent, in-law or brother/sister, half-brother/half-
sister, grandchild, grandparent,  related to a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s)?

Yes No (If yes, please complete the Disclosure of Relationship form on Page 2.  If no, please print N/A on Page 2.)

I certify under penalty of perjury, that all of the information provided herein is current, complete, and accurate. I also understand that the University Medical Center of
Southern Nevada Governing Board will not take action on land-use approvals, contract approvals, land sales, leases or exchanges without the completed disclosure
form.

Signature Print Name

Title Date

36

Markare

CompOne Administrators, Inc.
AbsencePlus Administrators

39500 High Point Blvd. Suite 400 AbsencePlus.com

Novi, MI 48375 rdewey@absenceplus.com

248-348-8200

Mark Churella
Mark Churella Jr; Ryan Churella
Josh Churella

Chairman
Co-Presidents
Secretary

25%
25%/25%
25%

✔

✔

✔

Chief Client Officer 2/14/2024

Robert Dewey

Page 444 of 853



DISCLOSURE OF RELATIONSHIP 

2
REVISED 7/25/2014 

List any disclosures below: 
(Mark N/A, if not applicable.) 

NAME OF BUSINESS 
OWNER/PRINCIPAL 

NAME OF UMC* 
EMPLOYEE/OFFICIAL 

AND JOB TITLE 

RELATIONSHIP TO 
 UMC* 

EMPLOYEE/OFFICIAL 

UMC* 
EMPLOYEE’S/OFFICIAL’S 

DEPARTMENT 

* UMC employee means an employee of University Medical Center of Southern Nevada

“Consanguinity” is a relationship by blood.  “Affinity” is a relationship by marriage.

“To the second degree of consanguinity” applies to the candidate’s first and second degree of blood relatives as 
follows:

 Spouse – Registered Domestic Partners – Children – Parents – In-laws (first degree)

 Brothers/Sisters – Half-Brothers/Half-Sisters – Grandchildren – Grandparents – In-laws (second degree)

For UMC Use Only:

If any Disclosure of Relationship is noted above, please complete the following:

Yes No   Is the UMC employee(s) noted above involved in the contracting/selection process for this particular agenda item?

Yes No   Is the UMC employee(s) noted above involved in any way with the business in performance of the contract?

Notes/Comments:

____________________________________
Signature

____________________________________
Print Name
Authorized Department Representative

None

Page 445 of 853



EXHIBIT F 
REPRESENTATIONS AND CERTIFICATIONS 

University Medical Center 1800 West Charleston Blvd. Las Vegas, NV 89102 

The prospective bidder/proposer, ____________________________________certifies to the best of its knowledge
and belief that it and its principals:

1. That neither it nor any of its subcontractors, or affiliates
a. Are excluded from participation in any federal health care program, as defined under 42 U.S.C.

§1320a-7b (f), for the provision of items or services for which payment may be made under such
federal health care programs and

b. Has arranged or contracted (by employment or otherwise) with any employee, contractor or agent
that such party or its affiliates know or should know are excluded from participation in any federal
health care program, to provide items or services hereunder.  COMPANY represents and warrants
to HOSPITAL that no final adverse action, as such term is defined under 42 U.S.C. §1320a-7e (g),
has occurred or is pending or threatened against such COMPANY or its affiliates or to their
knowledge against any employee, contractor or agent engaged to provide items or services under
this Agreement (collectively “Exclusions / Adverse Actions”).

2. Are presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from
covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

3. Have within a three (3)-year period preceding this agreement been convicted of or had a civil judgment
rendered against them for commission of fraud or criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to
obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State, or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction;
violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery,
falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

4. Have not within a five (5) -year period preceding this proposal been convicted of or had a civil judgment
rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting
to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State, or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction;
violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery,
falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

5. Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a government entity (Federal, State,
or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph three (3) of this certification; and,

6. That it is not refused to deal or to conduct business with, abstained from dealing or conducting business with,
terminating business or business activities with or performing any other action that is intended to limit
commercial relations with Israel or a person or entity doing business in Israel or in territories controlled by
Israel, in accordance with Nevada Revised Statute 332.065

I understand that a false statement on this certification may be grounds for rejection of this proposal or termination of
the award.  In addition, under 18 USC Sec. 1001, a false statement may result in a fine of up to $10,000 or imprisonment
for up to 5 years, or both.

Printed Name & Title of Authorized Representative       Bid Number 

Signature of Authorized Representative    Date 

I am unable to certify to the above statement.  My explanation is attached.

Signature____________________________________________Date____________Bid Number_______________ 

2023-08

2023-08

CompOne Administrators Inc. dba
AbsencePlus

Chief Client Officer

2/14/2024

Robert Dewey

Page 446 of 853



EXHIBIT G 
Business Associate Agreement 

This Agreement is made effective the date of last signature by and between University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 
(hereinafter referred to as “Covered Entity”), a county hospital duly organized pursuant to Chapter 450 of the Nevada Revised Statutes, 
with its principal place of business at 1800 West Charleston Boulevard, Las Vegas, Nevada, 89102, and CompOne Administrators, inc. 
dba AbsencePlus, hereinafter referred to as “Business Associate”, (individually, a “Party” and collectively, the “Parties”).   

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, Sections 261 through 264 of the federal Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law 
104-191, known as “the Administrative Simplification provisions,” direct the Department of Health and Human Services to develop 
standards to protect the security, confidentiality and integrity of health information; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Administrative Simplification provisions, the Secretary of Health and Human Services issued 
regulations modifying 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164 (the “HIPAA Rules”); and 

WHEREAS, the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (Pub. L. 111-5), pursuant to Title XIII of Division A and 
Title IV of Division B, called the “Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health” (“HITECH”) Act, as well as the 
Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act of 2008 (“GINA,” Pub. L. 110-233), provide for modifications to the HIPAA Rules; and  

WHEREAS, the Secretary, U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, published modifications to 45 CFR Parts 160 
and 164 under HITECH and GINA, and other modifications on January 25, 2013, the “Final Rule,” and 

WHEREAS, the Parties wish to enter into or have entered into an arrangement whereby Business Associate will provide 
certain services to Covered Entity, and, pursuant to such arrangement, Business Associate may be considered a “Business Associate” 
of Covered Entity as defined in the HIPAA Rules (the agreement evidencing such arrangement is entitled “Underlying Agreement”); 
and  

WHEREAS, Business Associate will have access to Protected Health Information (as defined below) in fulfilling its 
responsibilities under such arrangement;  

THEREFORE, in consideration of the Parties’ continuing obligations under the Underlying Agreement, compliance with the 
HIPAA Rules, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, and 
intending to be legally bound, the Parties agree to the provisions of this Agreement in order to address the requirements of the HIPAA 
Rules and to protect the interests of both Parties.   

I. DEFINITIONS 

“HIPAA Rules” means the Privacy, Security, Breach Notification, and Enforcement Rules at 45 CFR Part 160 and Part 164. 

“Protected Health Information” means individually identifiable health information created, received, maintained, or transmitted in any 
medium, including, without limitation, all information, data, documentation, and materials, including without limitation, demographic, 
medical and financial information, that relates to the past, present, or future physical or mental health or condition of an individual; the 
provision of health care to an individual; or the past, present, or future payment for the provision of health care to an individual; and 
that identifies the individual or with respect to which there is a reasonable basis to believe the information can be used to identify the 
individual.   

“Protected Health Information” includes without limitation “Electronic Protected Health Information” as defined below. 

“Electronic Protected Health Information” means Protected Health Information which is transmitted by Electronic Media (as defined in 
the HIPAA Rules) or maintained in Electronic Media. 

The following terms used in this Agreement shall have the same meaning as defined in the HIPAA Rules:  Administrative Safeguards, 
Breach, Business Associate, Business Associate Agreement, Covered Entity, Individually Identifiable Health Information, Minimum 
Necessary, Physical Safeguards, Security Incident, and Technical Safeguards.  

II. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

Business Associate and Covered Entity acknowledge and agree that in the event of an inconsistency between the provisions of this 
Agreement and mandatory provisions of the HIPAA Rules, the HIPAA Rules shall control.  Where provisions of this Agreement are 
different than those mandated in the HIPAA Rules, but are nonetheless permitted by the HIPAA Rules, the provisions of this Agreement 
shall control.   

Business Associate acknowledges and agrees that all Protected Health Information that is disclosed or made available in any form 

Page 447 of 853



(including paper, oral, audio recording or electronic media) by Covered Entity to Business Associate or is created or received by 
Business Associate on Covered Entity’s behalf shall be subject to this Agreement.  
Business Associate has read, acknowledges, and agrees that the Secretary, U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, published 
modifications to 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164 under HITECH and GINA, and other modifications on January 25, 2013, the “Final Rule,” 
and the Final Rule significantly impacted and expanded Business Associates’ requirements to adhere to the HIPAA Rules.   

III. USE AND DISCLOSURE OF PROTECTED HEALTH INFORMATION

(a) Business Associate agrees that all uses and disclosures of Protected Health information shall be subject to the limits 
set forth in 45 CFR 164.514 regarding Minimum Necessary requirements and limited data sets.

(b) Business Associate agrees to use or disclose Protected Health Information solely: 
(i)  For meeting its business obligations as set forth in any agreements between the Parties evidencing their 
business relationship; or  
(ii)  as required by applicable law, rule or regulation, or by accrediting or credentialing organization to whom 
Covered Entity is required to disclose such information or as otherwise permitted under this Agreement or the 
Underlying Agreement (if consistent with this Agreement and the HIPAA Rules). 

(c) Where Business Associate is permitted to use Subcontractors that create, receive, maintain, or transmit Protected 
Health Information; Business Associate agrees to execute a “Business Associate Agreement” with Subcontractor as defined 
in the HIPAA Rules that includes the same covenants for using and disclosing, safeguarding, auditing, and otherwise 
administering Protected Health Information as outlined in Sections I through VII of this Agreement (45 CFR 164.314). 

(d) Business Associate will acquire written authorization in the form of an update or amendment to this Agreement and 
Underlying Agreement prior to: 

(i) Directly or indirectly receiving any remuneration for the sale or exchange of any Protected Health 
Information; or 
(ii) Utilizing Protected Health Information for any activity that might be deemed “Marketing” under the HIPAA 
rules. 

IV. SAFEGUARDING PROTECTED HEALTH INFORMATION

(a) Business Associate agrees: 

(i)  To implement appropriate safeguards and internal controls to prevent the use or disclosure of Protected 
Health Information other than as permitted in this Agreement or by the HIPAA Rules.   
(ii)  To implement “Administrative Safeguards,” “Physical Safeguards,” and “Technical Safeguards” as defined 
in the HIPAA Rules to protect and secure the confidentiality, integrity, and availability of Electronic Protected Health 
Information (45 CFR 164.308, 164.310, 164.312).  Business Associate shall document policies and procedures for 
safeguarding Electronic Protected Health Information in accordance with 45 CFR 164.316. 
(iii)  To notify Covered Entity of any attempted or successful unauthorized access, use, disclosure, modification, 
or destruction of information or interference with system operations in an information system (“Security Incident”) 
upon discovery of the Security Incident. 

(b) When an impermissible acquisition, access, use, or disclosure of Protected Health Information (“Breach”) occurs, 
Business Associate agrees: 

(i) To notify Covered Entity’s Chief Privacy Officer immediately upon discovery of the Breach, and 
(ii) Within 15 business days of the discovery of the Breach, provide Covered Entity with all required content of 
notification in accordance with 45 CFR 164.410 and 45 CFR 164.404, and 
(iii) To fully cooperate with Covered Entity’s analysis and final determination on whether to notify affected 
individuals, media, or Secretary of the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, and 
(iv) To pay all costs associated with the notification of affected individuals and costs associated with mitigating 
potential harmful effects to affected individuals. 

V. RIGHT TO AUDIT 

(a) Business Associate agrees: 

(i)  To provide Covered Entity with timely and appropriate access to records, electronic records, HIPAA 
assessment questionnaires provided by Covered Entity, personnel, or facilities sufficient for Covered Entity to gain 
reasonable assurance that Business Associate is in compliance with the HIPAA Rules and the provisions of this 
Agreement. 
(ii)  That in accordance with the HIPAA Rules, the Secretary of the U.S. Department of Health and Human 
Services has the right to review, audit, or investigate Business Associate’s records, electronic records, facilities, 
systems, and practices related to safeguarding, use, and disclosure of Protected Health Information to ensure 

Page 448 of 853



Covered Entity’s or Business Associate’s compliance with the HIPAA Rules.  

VI. COVERED ENTITY REQUESTS AND ACCOUNTING FOR DISCLOSURES

(a) At the Covered Entity’s Request, Business Associate agrees: 

(i)  To comply with any requests for restrictions on certain disclosures of Protected Health Information pursuant 
to Section 164.522 of the HIPAA Rules to which Covered Entity has agreed and of which Business Associate is 
notified by Covered Entity.   
(ii)  To make available Protected Health Information to the extent and in the manner required by Section 164.524 
of the HIPAA Rules.  If Business Associate maintains Protected Health Information electronically, it agrees to make 
such Protected Health Information electronically available to the Covered Entity.   
(iii)  To make Protected Health Information available for amendment and incorporate any amendments to 
Protected Health Information in accordance with the requirements of Section 164.526 of the HIPAA Rules.   
(iv)  To account for disclosures of Protected Health Information and make an accounting of such disclosures 
available to Covered Entity as required by Section 164.528 of the HIPAA Rules.  Business Associate shall provide 
any accounting required within 15 business days of request from Covered Entity.  

VII. TERMINATION

Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, Covered Entity shall have the right to terminate this Agreement and the 
Underlying Agreement immediately if Covered Entity determines that Business Associate has violated any material term of this 
Agreement.  If Covered Entity reasonably believes that Business Associate will violate a material term of this Agreement and, where 
practicable, Covered Entity gives written notice to Business Associate of such belief within a reasonable time after forming such belief, 
and Business Associate fails to provide adequate written assurances to Covered Entity that it will not breach the cited term of this 
Agreement within a reasonable period of time given the specific circumstances, but in any event, before the threatened breach is to 
occur, then Covered Entity shall have the right to terminate this Agreement and the Underlying Agreement immediately.   

At termination of this Agreement, the Underlying Agreement (or any similar documentation of the business relationship of the Parties), 
or upon request of Covered Entity, whichever occurs first, Business Associate will destroy all Protected Health Information received 
from or created or received by Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity that Business Associate still maintains in any form and 
provide Covered Entity with written certification of same, or if such destruction is not feasible, Business Associate will provide written 
certification to Covered Entity of same and extend the protections of this Agreement to the information and limit further uses and 
disclosures to those purposes that make the return or destruction of the information not feasible.   

VIII. MISCELLANEOUS

Except as expressly stated herein or the HIPAA Rules, the Parties to this Agreement do not intend to create any rights in any third 
parties. The obligations of Business Associate under this Section shall survive the expiration, termination, or cancellation of this 
Agreement, the Underlying Agreement and/or the business relationship of the Parties, and shall continue to bind Business Associate, 
its agents, employees, contractors, successors, and assigns as set forth herein. 

This Agreement may be amended or modified only in a writing signed by the Parties.  No Party may assign its respective rights and 
obligations under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other Party. None of the provisions of this Agreement are 
intended to create, nor will they be deemed to create any relationship between the Parties other than that of independent parties 
contracting with each other solely for the purposes of effecting the provisions of this Agreement and any other agreements between 
the Parties evidencing their business relationship.  This Agreement will be governed by the laws of the State of Nevada.  No change, 
waiver or discharge of any liability or obligation hereunder on any one or more occasions shall be deemed a waiver of performance of 
any continuing or other obligation, or shall prohibit enforcement of any obligation, on any other occasion. 

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder 
of the provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.  In addition, in the event a Party believes in good faith that any 
provision of this Agreement fails to comply with the HIPAA Rules, such Party shall notify the other Party in writing.  For a period of up 
to thirty days, the Parties shall address in good faith such concern and amend the terms of this Agreement, if necessary to bring it into 
compliance.  If, after such thirty-day period, the Agreement fails to comply with the HIPAA Rules, then either Party has the right to 
terminate upon written notice to the other Party. 

[Signatures are on the next] 

Page 449 of 853



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the day and year written below. 

COVERED ENTITY:     BUSINESS ASSOCIATE: 

By:___________________________    By:__________________________ 
      Mason VanHouweling 
Title: CEO Title:________________________ 

Date:__________________________ Date:_________________________ 

Chief Client Officer

2/14/2024

Robert Dewey

Page 450 of 853



Page 451 of 853



Page 452 of 853



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
February 28, 2024 

 
 

 

Agenda Item #  

15 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD  

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Issue: Award of Bid No. 2023-15, UMC Southern Highlands PC/QC Expansion, 

to Monument Construction 
 

 
Back-up: 
      

 
Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer 

 
Clerk Ref. # 
      

 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Governing Board award Bid No. 2023-15, UMC Southern Highlands PC/QC 
Expansion, to Monument Construction, the lowest responsive and responsible bidder, 
contingent upon submission of the required bonds and insurance; authorize the Chief 
Executive Officer to execute change orders within his delegation of authority; or take 
action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
Fund Number:  5430.011   Fund Name:  Clark County Capital Equipment Transfer 
Fund Center:  3000999901   Funded Pgm/Grant:  N/A 
Description:  Award of Bid 2023-15 UMC Southern Highlands PC/QC Expansion  
Bid/RFP/CBE:  Formal bid pursuant to NRS 338.1385 
Term:  240 days from Notice to Proceed 
Amount:  $3,200,136.00 
Out Clause: 180 days w/o cause 
 

BACKGROUND: 
 
On November 30, 2023, Bid No. 2023-15 was published in the Las Vegas Review-Journal and posted on the 
Nevada Government eMarketplace (NGEM) Portal, soliciting bid proposals for UMC’s Southern Highlands 
PC/QC Expansion Project. The building is a 7,657 square foot single story building located at 11860 Southern 
Highlands Pkwy.  The project involves, among other things, RTU’s to be replaced, removal of existing roof 
membrane for the entire building, replacement of any damaged plywood substrate and insulation board as 
required, provision of new 4-ply built-up roof membrane, interior walls removed/rebuilt including new 
casework, flooring, ceilings, plumbing fixtures and surface finishes as shown on the drawings for the project. 
Finally, lead lined walls are required for a new imaging/x-ray room.  
 
On Thursday, January 18, 2024, UMC received responses from:
 
Bids Received 
SHF International LLC 
Monument Construction  

 
Total Base Bid Amount 
     $   3,045,215.00* 
     $   3,200,136.00 

Blueprint Construction           $   3,432,284.00* 

Page 453 of 853



Page Number 
2 

JMB Construction, Inc.          $   3,632,096.00 
KOR Building Group, LLC.         $   3,708,206.00 
Builders United           $   3,743,732.48 
*Bid is recommended for rejection    
 
All of the above bids were received and opened on January 18, 2024. The apparent low bid of $3,200,136.00 
was received from Monument Construction, who correctly submitted all required documentation within the 
relevant deadlines. The recommendation of award to Monument Construction is in accordance with NRS  
338.1385(5), a public body or its authorized representative shall award a contract to the lowest responsive and 
responsible bidder. 
 
The term of the agreement is 240 days from the date of the Notice to Proceed. UMC may terminate the 
Agreement without cause with a 180-day written notice to Monument Construction. 
 
UMC’s Director of Facilities Maintenance and Manager of Facilities Maintenance have reviewed the bid 
documents and recommends award by the Governing Board.  
 
The bid documents and notice of award have been approved as to form by UMC’s Office of General Counsel. 
 
Monument Construction currently holds a Clark County Business License. 
 
The bid documents and notice of award were reviewed by the Governing Board Audit and Finance Committee 
at their February 21, 2024 meeting and recommended for award by the Governing Board. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 454 of 853



 

 
NMU01062A 

 
NOTIFICATION OF INTENT TO AWARD 

 
February 8, 2023 

 
 

It is the intent of University Medical Center of Southern Nevada, Legal Department to 
recommend award of Bid No. 2023-15, UMC Southern Highlands PC/QC Expansion 
PWP-CL-2024-133, to the low responsive and responsible Bidder in accordance with 
NRS 338.147 to Monument Construction on or after February 28, 2024. 

 
BID SUMMARY 

 
 

BIDS RECEIVED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE 
INFORMATION 

BASE BID 

SHF International LLC Not Applicable $3,045,215.00 * 
Monument Construction Not Applicable $3,200,136.00 
Blueprint Construction 
(NOTAJO, LLC) 

MBE/WBE/PBE $3,432,284.00 * 

JMB Construction, Inc. Not Applicable $3,632,096.00 
KOR Building Group, LLC. WBE $3,708,206.00 
Builders United Not Applicable $3,743,732.48 

*Bid is recommended for rejection 
 

In accordance with the Protest Clause in the referenced bid document, all Bidders have 
five (5) business days from receipt of this notification to submit a formal written protest 
to the Contracts Specialist. The University Medical Center of Southern Nevada is not 
required to consider any protest that is not filed in accordance with the Protest Clause in 
the referenced bid document. 
 
If you have any questions concerning this notification, please contact Melannie Bledsoe, 
Contract Specialist, at (702) 765-7995 or melannie.bledsoe@umcsn.com 

 

Page 455 of 853



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER  

OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
INVITATION TO BID 

 
 

BID NO.  2023-15 
PWP# CL-2024-133 

UMC SOUTHERN HIGHLANDS PC_QC  
EXPANSION 

 

Page 456 of 853



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
ON-LINE BID SUBMITTAL CHECK LIST (NGEM) .......................................................................................ATTACHED 

INVITATION TO BID ....................................................................................................................................ATTACHED 
INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS ................................................................................................................................ 1-13 

GENERAL CONDITIONS .............................................................................................................................................. 1 

SECTION 1: GENERAL .............................................................................................................................................. 1 

SECTION 2: MATERIALS........................................................................................................................................... 4 

SECTION 3: LABOR ................................................................................................................................................... 6 

SECTION 4: SITE SAFETY AND SECURITY ........................................................................................................... 11 

SECTION 5: PROJECT COSTS AND WAGES ........................................................................................................ 12 

SECTION 6: PROJECT COMPLETION .................................................................................................................... 14 

SECTION 7: PROJECT CONFLICTS ....................................................................................................................... 16 

SECTION 8: FORCE MAJEURE .............................................................................................................................. 18 
SPECIAL CONDITIONS ................................................................................................................................................ 1 

  SCOPE OF WORK…………………………………………………………………………………………………… EXHIBIT A  
BID DOCUMENT ........................................................................................................................................................ 1-4 

BONDS AND INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS AND FORMS........................................................................EXHIBIT B 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS  ...............................................................................................................................B-1 

CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE FORM ................................................................................................................ B-4 

ENDORSEMENT FORM ........................................................................................................................................ B-5 

PERFORMANCE BOND FORM............................................................................................................................. B-6 

LABOR AND MATERIAL PAYMENT BOND FORM ............................................................................................... B-7 

GUARANTY BOND FORM..................................................................................................................................... B-8 
MEDIATOR AGREEMENT .............................................................................................................................EXHIBIT C 

CONFIDENTIALITY AGREEMENT ................................................................................................................EXHIBIT D 

PRIME CONTRACTOR ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF UMC PROCEDURES & PRACTICES………………...EXHIBIT E 
INFECTION CONTROL RISK ASSESSMENT FOR CONSTRUCTION………………………………………...EXHIBIT F 

PROGRESS REPORT………………………………………………………………………………………………...EXHIBIT G 
CLOSE-OUT DOCUMENTATION: SUMMARY REPORT OF SUBCONTRACTORS ...................................EXHIBIT H 

WORKERS EMPLOYED REPORT A AND B ................................................................................................EXHIBIT I 

NON-APPORTIONED VEHICLE REPORT ....................................................................................................EXHIBIT J 

MATERIALS PURCHASED REPORT........................................................................................................... EXHIBIT K 

NGEM ATTACHMENTS: …....................................................................................................................................NGEM 

BID ATTACHMENT 1 - BIDDER STATEMENT OF AUTHORITY TO SUBMIT BID.........................................NGEM 

BID ATTACHMENT 2 – INVITATION TO BID………………………………………………………………………...NGEM 

BID ATTACHMENT 3 – BID FORM …………………………………………………………………………………...NGEM 

BID ATTACHMENT 4 - BID BOND...................................................................................................................NGEM 

BID ATTACHMENT 5 - 1% DESIGNATION OF SUBCONTRACTORS............................................................NGEM 

BID ATTACHMENT 6 - 5% DESIGNATION OF SUBCONTRACTORS............................................................NGEM 

BID ATTACHMENT 7 - AFFIDAVIT PERTAINING TO PREFERENCE ELIGIBILITY…....................................NGEM 

BID ATTACHMENT 8 – APPRENTICE PROJECT WORKFORCE CHECKLIST - PRIME …...........................NGEM 

BID ATTACHMENT 9 - APPRENTICE PROJECT WORKFORCE CHECKLIST – SUBCONTRACTOR.….….NGEM 

BID ATTACHMENT 10 - OWNER REQUEST FOR WAIVER FORM................................................................NGEM 

BID ATTACHMENT 11 - SCHEDULE OF VALUES...……………………………………………….......................NGEM 

BID ATTACHMENT 12 - CONTRACTOR ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF UMC PROCEDURES….……………...NGEM 

BID ATTACHMENT 13 - REPRESENTATIONS AND CERTIFICATIONS.........................................................NGEM 

BID ATTACHMENT 14 - DISCLOSURE OF OWNERSHIP FORM....................................................................NGEM 

Page 457 of 853



  

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
CONSTRUCTION 

ON-LINE BID SUBMITTAL CHECK LIST (NGEM) 
This checklist is provided for your reference and use only.  This checklist should not be submitted with your bid.  Omission of, 
or failure to submit the correct required documents may be cause for rejection. 

All BIDDERS: Requirements Before Bid Open: ADDENDA 
 

 
ALL BIDDERS: Document(s) Due with Bid: 

 

❑ Completed BIDDER Statement of Authority to Submit Bid Form scanned into the Response Attachments tab. 

❑ Completed SUBCONTRACTORS EXCEEDING 5% OF BASE BID AMOUNT Form found in the Attachments tab 
and scanned into the Response Attachments tab. 

❑ Prime Contractor must include all Subcontractors’ names and description of work to be performed. 

❑ Prime Contractor must list their legal name and sign. 

❑ BID SECURITY in the amount of five percent (5%) of the Total Base Bid amount in the form of a Cashier’s Check, 
Certified Check, Money Order, or Bid Bond, scanned into the Response Attachments tab. 

❑ Valid CERTIFICATE OF ELIGIBILITY obtained from the Nevada Contractor’s Board scanned into the Response 
Attachments tab (if intending to utilize preference). 

❑ Prime/Bidders must submit their Project Workforce Checklist  Form found in the attachments tab and scanned into 
the Response Attachments tab. 

THREE APPARENT LOW BIDDERS: Document(s) Due After the Bid Opening: Email to 
melannie.bledsoe@umcsn.com 

 

❑ DESIGNATION OF SUBCONTRACTORS, SUBCONTRACTORS EXCEEDING 1% OF BASE BID AMOUNT 
(REQUIRED WITHIN TWO (2) HOURS AFTER BID OPENING). 
❑ Prime Contractors must include its name if they intend to perform work not being performed by a 

Subcontractor and include a description of the work OR a written statement that they are performing all 
work not being performed by a Subcontractor. 

❑ Prime Contractor must include all Subcontractors’ names and description of work to be performed. 

❑ Prime Contractor must list their legal name and sign. 

❑ AFFIDAVIT PERTAINING TO PREFERENCE ELIGIBILITY (REQUIRED WITHIN TWO (2) HOURS AFTER BID 
OPENING). 

❑ AFFIDAVIT must be signed by person with authority to complete affidavit and notarized for validation. 

❑ The THREE APPARENT LOWEST BIDDERS must submit the Project Workforce Checklist for all named (used) 
Subcontractors (REQUIRED BY 5:00 PM THE NEXT BUSINESS DAY AFTER BID OPENING). 

❑ The THREE APPARENT LOWEST BIDDERS must submit the SCHEDULE OF VALUES (REQUIRED BY 5:00 PM 
THE NEXT BUSINESS DAY AFTER BID OPENING). 

❑ The THREE APPARENT LOWEST BIDDERS must submit Request for Waiver form for the Prime Contractor and 
all named (used) Subcontractors (REQUIRED WITHIN TEN (10) BUSINESS DAYS AFTER BID OPENING). 

❑ Proof of Valid Clark County Business License or Vendor Registration or local jurisdiction or out-of-state 
Business License, whichever is required, upon request by OWNER. 

❑ Disclosure of Ownership/Principal Form, upon request by OWNER.  
 
AWARDED BIDDER(S): Documents Due After Recommendation of Award: 
❑ All Required Insurances and Bonds, if required, due ten (10) calendar days upon notice of Award. 

***ALL BIDDERS ARE SOLEY RESPONSIBLE TO MAKE SURE ALL CORRECT FORMS ARE COMPLETED AND 
SUBMITTED AS REQUIRED.*** 

 All Bidders must acknowledge receipt of ALL addendums issued prior to Bid submittal by checking all the 
boxes on the Attributes tab in NGEM. 

Page 458 of 853



Chapter  1   

 UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
 

INVITATION TO BID 
 

BID NO. 2023-15 
UMC SOUTHERN HIGHLANDS PC/QC EXPANSION 

PWP-CL-2024-133  
 
NEVADA STATE LABOR COMMISSION PWP NUMBER: CL-2024-133 

SCOPE OF WORK: Project is located at 11860 Southern Highlands Pkwy. The building is a single story 
building. All RTU’s to be replaced as shown on the drawings for this project. Remove existing roof 
membrane for the entire building. Replace any damaged plywood substrate and insulation board as 
required.  Provide new 4-ply built-up roof membrane. Interior walls will be removed/rebuilt including new 
casework, flooring, ceilings, plumbing fixtures and surface finishes as shown on the drawings for the project. 
Lead lined walls are required at new Imaging/X-ray room. 

The work will be performed in a phased approach beginning with the Primary Care. 

There will be 1 week pause on interior work between completion of Phase 1 and commencement of Phase 
2 to allow occupants to relocate from the Phase 2 area. 

Time of work will be during the normal business off shift hours Monday through Friday starting at 6:00pm. 
Project duration is scheduled to be 5 months from Notice to Proceed. 

 

ESTIMATED COST: $3,676,187 (90% of Plant Ops value) 
 
A MANDATORY Pre-Bid Conference and Site Walk will be held on December 7, 2023 at 1:00 p.m. in front of 
the job site located at 2231 W. Charleston Blvd., Las Vegas, Nevada 89102. Information regarding parking 
can be found on the activities tab in NGEM. 
 
Bid documents, specifications and drawings will be available on the NGEM System November 30, 2023.  
 
All questions/requests for clarification related to this Bid must be received in the NGEM system no later 
than 4:00 p.m. on Thursday, December 14 Wednesday January 10, 2024, 2023. OWNER will issue any 
necessary Addenda by close of business Thursday, December 21, 2023 Friday January 12, 2024 
 

Bids will be accepted electronically on the NGEM website at www.ngemnv.com before January 18, 2024 
at 2:30:00 p.m., based on the time clock on the NGEM website and will be opened immediately thereafter. 
Bidders and other interested parties are invited to attend the Bid opening via WebEx. WebEx information 
for the Bid opening is listed under the Event Details tab in NGEM. 

 

PUBLISHED: 
Las Vegas Review-Journal  
November 30, 2023 

Commented [MB1]: Correction made per answers 
provided during Q&A. 

Commented [MB2]: New Q&A period closes Wednesday 
January 10, 2024 @ 4:00pm 

Commented [MB3]: If necessary Addenda will be issued 
Friday January 12, 2024 by Close of Business 

Page 459 of 853

http://www.ngemnv.com/


Bid Number: 2023-15 
Project Name: UMC Southern Highlands PC/QC Expansion PWP-CL-2024-133 

 

Chapter  1   

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 
BID NO. 2023-15 

UMC SOUTHERN HIGHLANDS PC/QC EXPANSION PWP-CL-2024-133 
 

1. PROJECT SCOPE OF WORK 

Project is located at 11860 Southern Highlands Pkwy. The building is a single story building.  All RTU’s to be replaced 
as shown on the drawings for this project. Remove existing roof membrane for the entire building. Replace any 
damaged plywood substrate and insulation board as required.  Provide new 4-ply built-up roof membrane. Interior 
walls will be removed/rebuilt including new casework, flooring, ceilings, plumbing fixtures and surface finishes as 
shown on the drawings for the project. Lead lined walls are required at new Imaging/X-ray room. 

The work will be performed in a phased approach beginning with the Primary Care. 

There will be 1 week pause on interior work between completion of Phase 1 and commencement of Phase 2 to allow 
occupants to relocate from the Phase 2 area. 

Time of work will be during the normal business hours Monday through Friday. Project duration is scheduled to be 5 
months from Notice to Proceed. 

Access controls for the building are provided by Honeywell. New card readers will need to be integrated with the 
access controls system. 

EDS Statewide is the provider for Fire Alarm for the building. Statewide is familiar with the sprinkler system but is not 
a proprietary contractor for necessary sprinkler work. PRE-BID AND BID OPENING DATES 

MANDATORY Pre-Bid Meeting and Site Walk – Thursday, December 7, 2023: 1:00 p.m., in 

front of the job site located at 11860 Southern Highlands Pkwy., Las Vegas, Nevada 89141. 

Information regarding parking can be found on the activities tab in NGEM. 

Bid Opening – Thursday, January 18, 2024: 2:30 p.m., WebEx (access the link on the activities 
tab).  

2. DESIGNATED CONTACTS 

OWNER's authorized representative for the bid process is Melannie Bledsoe, Contracts Specialist, 
Contracts Management. All questions regarding this bid, including the selection process, must be directed 
to Melannie Bledsoe via email (melannie.bledsoe@umcsn.com) or by phone at 702-765-7995.  

3. CONTACT WITH OWNER DURING BIDDING PROCESS 

Communication between a BIDDER and a member of the Board of County Commissioners (BCC), Governing Board 
(GB), and/or between a BIDDER and a non-designated OWNER contact, regarding this Bid is prohibited from the 
time the Bid is advertised until the time it is posted on an agenda for award of the contract. Questions pertaining to 
this Invitation to Bid shall be addressed to the designated contact(s) specified above. Failure of a Bidder, or any 
of its representatives, to comply with this paragraph may result in its Bid being rejected. 

4. DEFINITIONS 

A. Architect: OWNER’S representative or other person designated by the Governing Body, acting directly or 
through their duly authorized representative. 

 
B. Addendum: A written document issued by OWNER, via the Contracts Management Department, prior to 

the submission of Bids which modifies or clarifies the Bid Documents by additions, deletions, clarifications, 
and/or corrections. 

C. Additive/Deductive Bid Items: An amount stated in the Bid to be added to or deducted from the contract 
amount for the corresponding change in the work, as described in the Bid Documents. The unit price (s) 
quoted shall remain firm throughout the contract term. Funding for the item(s) is provided in the Bid Form 
under the description of “Construction Conflicts and Additional Work,” or shall be funded through the 
issuance of a formal change order as described herein. BIDDER must quote all item(s) to be responsive 
and considered for award. 

 
D. Additive Alternate Bid Item: An amount stated in the Bid to be added to the amount of the Base Bid if 

the corresponding change in the work, as described in the Bid Documents, is accepted by OWNER. 
Additive Alternate Items may be exercised by OWNER with the award of the project, in sequential order 

Commented [MB4]: Correction made per answers 
provided during Q&A. 

Page 460 of 853

mailto:melannie.bledsoe@umcsn.com


Bid Number: 2023-15 
Project Name: UMC Southern Highlands PC/QC Expansion PWP-CL-2024-133 

 

Chapter 1   

only subject to the availability of funds. BIDDER must quote all items to be responsive and considered for 
award. 

 
E. Authorized Representative: A person designated by the Governing Body to be responsible for the 

development and award of the Contract for the public work. 
 

F. Bidder(s):  A Prime Contractor who submits a Bid to OWNER for a project. 
 

G. Bid Form(s): The Bid Form pages, Bid Security, and any attachments 
 

H. Bid Option Item: An Additive/Deductive Bid Item and/or an Additive Alternate Bid Item. 
 

I. Bid Documents: Include but are not limited to, the Invitation to Bid, Instructions to Bidders, General 
Conditions, Special Conditions, Contract Requirements and Forms, Bid Security/Attachments, Exhibits, 
Specifications/Special Provisions and Drawings, and any Addenda issued prior to the date designated 
for receipt of Bids, as applicable. The Checklist Form, BIDDER Statement of Authority to Submit Bid as 
well as all Stipulated Bid Attachments, and the Bid Security. 

 
J. Business Hours/Days: As referred to throughout the Contract documents is defined as OWNER office 

hours/business days.                                                                                                                 
K. Consulting Architect/Engineer: A licensed and registered professional contracted by OWNER to 

design the project's special provisions and drawings. 
 

L. Consulting Construction Manager: The Construction Management firm contracted by OWNER to 
manage the construction of the project. 

 
M. Construction Manager: Designated representative of OWNER to manage the construction of 

the project. 
 

N. Consulting Engineer: A professional engineering firm contracted by OWNER to design the project's 
specifications, special provisions and drawings. 

 
O. Contract: Contract documents include the Bid Documents, Prime Contractor’s Bid Form, all Addenda, 

Prime Contractor’s Bonds and Insurance, Subcontractor Notification letters and Notice of Award. 
 

P. Contractor: The person or entity identified as such in the Contract and is referred to throughout the Contract 
documents as Contractor or Successful Bidder or Prime Contractor. Contractor shall mean the Prime 
Contractor or its authorized representative as defined by Nevada Revised Statute 338.010(17). 

 
Q. Engineer: OWNER’S representative or other person designated by the Governing Body, acting directly 

or through their duly authorized representative. 
 

R. Governing Body: Used throughout these documents will mean the Clark County Board of Commissioners 
or University Medical Center of Southern Nevada's Governing Board. 

 
S. NGEM: Is the Nevada Gov eMarketplace. NGEM is an electronic bidding system that is used by a 

consortium of local government entities in Nevada for Supplier Registration and the submission of 
electronic bids and proposals. There is no cost for any BIDDER to use NGEM, however, all Bidders 
that choose to submit an electronic bid or proposal must register prior to gaining access to see the details 
of any solicitation or to submit a bid or proposal online. 

 
T. Owner: The entity identified as such in the Contract and is referred to throughout the Contract documents 

as Owner or OWNER. Owner shall mean University Medical Center of Southern Nevada. 
 

U. Planholders:  Prospective Bidder(s) who have viewed the Bid. 
 

V. Subcontractor/Independent Contractor: Any individual, agent, firm, sole proprietor, or corporation to 
whom the Prime Contractor subcontracts any part of the project. There is no contractual relationship 
between OWNER and the above-mentioned Subcontractor who perform work or services for the Prime 
Contractor. 

 
W. SUCCESSFUL BIDDER: The person or entity identified as such in the Contract and is referred to 

throughout the Contract documents as SUCCESSFUL BIDDER or Contractor or Prime Contractor. 
SUCCESSFUL BIDDER shall mean the Prime Contractor or its authorized representative as defined by 
Nevada Revised Statute 338.010(17). 

 

5. BIDDER’S REPRESENTATION AND CERTIFICATIONS  

Page 461 of 853



Bid Number: 2023-15 
Project Name: UMC Southern Highlands PC/QC Expansion PWP-CL-2024-133 

 

Chapter 1   

A. Each BIDDER by submitting their Bid represents that: 
 

1. BIDDER has read and understands the Bid Documents and asserts that its Bid is made in 
accordance therewith and shall be considered a firm offer for a period of 120 calendar days 
following the opening of bids. The Bidder’s offer may expire at the end of the 120 calendar day 
period. 

2. BIDDER has visited the project site and is familiar with the local conditions under which the work 
is to be performed. 

3. Prior to submission of the Bid, the BIDDER shall ascertain that it has received all Addenda issued. 
The BIDDER shall acknowledge receipt of each Addendum by completing the acknowledgment 
space provided on the Bid Form. 

4. The BIDDER(s), and the Prime Contractor(s), and their Subcontractor/Independent Contractors, 
shall comply with all provisions of Nevada Revised Statutes, Chapter 338.017, Section 1and 
Section 2, regarding Federal Debarment. 

Page 462 of 853



Bid Number: 2023-15 
Project Name: UMC Southern Highlands PC/QC Expansion PWP-CL-2024-133 

 

Chapter 1   

Nevada State Contractors’ Board Licensing 

1. BIDDER(s) for this work must be qualified and properly licensed to perform the particular work 
pursuant to the provisions of the Nevada Revised Statutes Chapter 624. Failure to comply 
shall result in rejection of the Bidder. Nevada Contractor's License number and dollar limit must 
be indicated on the Bid Form page. Should there be a protest regarding the applicability of 
the low BIDDER’S Contractor’s license to the scope of the project, it shall be the low BIDDER’S 
responsibility to obtain an opinion from the State Contractor’s Board at its next meeting. 
BIDDER(s)are reminded that, per NRS 624.3015, bidding on a contract for work in excess 
of its limits or beyond the scope of its license is grounds for disciplinary action by the 
State Contractors Board. 

2. The BIDDER(s), and the SUCCESSFUL BIDDERS(s), and their Subcontractor/Independent 
Contractors, shall comply with all provisions of Nevada Revised Statutes, Chapter 624, during 
the bidding phase and Nevada Administrative Code, Chapter 624, through completion of the 
project. 

B. Journeyman and Master Electrician and Plumbing Examination Program 

1. All electricians providing supervision of electrical work on this project are required to possess a 
valid Clark County Development Services card appropriate to the scope of work being 
performed. The categories are Master Electrician and Journeyman Electrician, which have 
passed the International Code Council (ICC) Contractor Examination Services testing at 
www2.ICCSAFE.org or by calling 1-888-422-7233. 

2. All plumbers providing supervision of the plumbing work on this project are required to possess a 
valid Clark County Development Services card appropriate to the scope of work being performed. 
The categories are Master Plumber and Journeyman Plumber. Tests are administered by the 
Nevada Board of Plumbing Examiners (NBOPE) at www.NBOPE.org or by calling 1-877-457-
6482. 

3. The general Contractor or specialty Contractor submitting a Bid to OWNER shall validate that their 
employee(s) or their Subcontractor’s employee(s) providing supervision for the scope performed 
maintain current valid cards throughout the term of this Contract. The BIDDER(s) and  t he  
subsequent awarded Contractor(s) agree to provide within twenty-four (24) hours of a request by 
OWNER, proof of current and valid cards for individuals planned or performing the supervision 
identified herein. Should any of these supervising employee’s cards expire, that employee shall 
be replaced immediately with another qualified valid cardholder without any additional cost to 
OWNER. 

4. OWNER staff, including but not limited to, Plant Operations, Contracts Management and/or their 
contracted staff may perform unscheduled site visits to validate that the workers performing the 
electrical and plumbing work are in compliance with these requirements. Employees found 
performing work without the proper proof of compliance (valid card) shall be immediately replaced 
as specified above without any additional cost or associated impacts to OWNER. 

 

C. Addenda and Interpretations 
 

1. If it becomes necessary to revise any part of this Bid, a written Addendum will be provided to 
all known Planholders. OWNER is not bound by any oral representations, clarifications, or 
changes made to the written specifications by OWNER'S employees, unless such clarification or 
change is provided to Planholders in written or electronic Addendum form from the Contracts 
Management Department. 

2. BIDDERS shall take no advantage of any apparent error or omission in the Bid Documents. In the 
event the BIDDERS discover such an error or omission, they shall immediately notify OWNER. 
OWNER will then make such corrections and interpretations as may be deemed necessary for 
fulfilling the intent of the Bid Documents through the issuance of an Addendum. 

3. Addenda shall be sent via NGEM to all prospective Bidders and will also be made available for pick 
up to all known Planholders. 

4. Copies of Bid Documents, including any Addenda, will be made available for inspection at 
OWNER’s Contracts Management office. 

5. Bidders shall verify receipt of all addenda issued by OWNER prior to submission of their Bid. 
 

7. REQUIRED ATTACHMENTS SUBMITTAL OF BID – REQUIRED DOCUMENTS  
 
The following documents, together, comprise a Bid Submission:  The NGEM Bid Form, Bidder Statement of Authority 
to Submit Bid, all Stipulated Bid Attachments, and the Bid Security. 

Page 463 of 853

http://www.nbope.org/


Bid Number: 2023-15 
Project Name: UMC Southern Highlands PC/QC Expansion PWP-CL-2024-133 

 

Chapter 1   

 

1. Submitted electronically through NGEM - BIDDER shall complete all line items in Bid Form 
and attributes required in NGEM for electronically submitted bids. Completion of these electronic 
forms, the BIDDER Statement of Authority to Submit Bid, all Stipulated Bid Attachments and the 
scanned Bid Security are required. 

2. Omission of, or failure by a BIDDER to complete or submit any portion of the required documents, 
may be cause to reject the Bid. 

 
3. Subcontractors/Independent Contractors Information 

 
a) BIDDER shall be bound by and comply with Nevada Revised Statute 338.141 to limit 

the practice of shopping for Bids and shall provide within its Bid proposal, the name of 
each Subcontractor which will be paid an amount exceeding five percent (5%) of the 
total base Bid amount. BIDDER must verify prior to submitting its Bid that all 
Subcontractors listed are properly licensed. 

 
 

Within 2 hours after the completion of the opening of the bids, the Bidders who 
submitted the three lowest bids must submit a list containing: 

 

(1) The name of each first tier subcontractor who will provide labor or a portion of 
the work on the public work to the Prime Contractor for which the first-tier 
subcontractor will be paid an amount exceeding $250,000. 

 
(2) If any one of the Bidders who submitted one of the three lowest bids will employ a 

first tier subcontractor who will provide labor or a portion of the work on the public 
work to the Prime Contractor for which the first tier subcontractor will not be paid 
an amount exceeding $250,000, the name of each first tier subcontractor who 
will provide labor or a portion of the work on the public work to the Prime 
Contractor for which the first tier subcontractor will be paid one  percent (1%)of the 
Prime Contractor’s total bid or $50,000, whichever is greater.  

 
(3) Following are detailed delivery instructions for 1% Subcontractors List (Bid 

Attachment 5): *Note: Subject line of the e-mail must provide the Bid No., 
Project Description, and Name of Attachment.  

 
b) A Bidder shall include his or her name on the lists required by subsection a). If the 

Prime Contractor will perform any work which is more than one percent (1%) of the 
Prime Contractor’s total bid and which is not being performed by a subcontractor, 
the Bidder shall also include on the list: 

 
(1) A description of the labor or portion of the work that the Prime Contractor will 

perform; or 
 

(2) A statement that the Prime Contractor will perform all work other than that 
being performed by a subcontractor listed. 

 
c) For each first tier subcontractor whose name is listed pursuant to subparagraph a), 

include on the list: the number of the license issued to the first tier subcontractor 
pursuant to chapter 624 of NRS. 
 

d) The list(s) required above must include a description of the labor or portion of the work 
which each Subcontractor named in the list will provide to the BIDDER (Prime 
Contractor), and when the BIDDER (Prime Contractor) will perform any of the 
labor or portions of the public work. 

 
e) If a Prime Contractor does not submit the list(s) required above, its Bid will be deemed 

not responsive pursuant to NRS 338.141. 
 

f) OWNER shall verify through the Nevada State Contractors’ Board only that information 
required pursuant to NRS 338.141 as provided by the Bidders. Any BIDDER or 
Subcontractor questioning licensing or utilization of any Subcontractor(s) shall direct 
their inquiries to the Nevada State Contractors’ Board with a copy of all 
correspondence to OWNER. OWNER will not conduct any investigations regarding the 
Bidders’ (Prime Contractor) relationships with Subcontractors. 

Page 464 of 853



Bid Number: 2023-15 
Project Name: UMC Southern Highlands PC/QC Expansion PWP-CL-2024-133 

 

Chapter 1   

 

g) Pursuant to NRS 338.13895 and 338.1475, a Subcontractor who is named in the Bid 
for the Contract as a Subcontractor who will provide a portion of the work on the 
public work pursuant to NRS 338.141, and is not properly licensed for that portion of 
the work shall be deemed unacceptable, and Contractor shall provide an acceptable 
Subcontractor. 

 

h) Prime Contractor shall not substitute any person for itself or a Subcontractor who is 
named on the required list(s) except as provided pursuant to NRS 338.141. 

 

i) If a Prime Contractor substitutes a Subcontractor for any Subcontractor who is named 
in the Bid without complying with the provisions of NRS 338.141; Prime Contractor 
shall forfeit, as a penalty to OWNER, an amount equal to one percent (1%) of the total 
amount of the contract. 

 

j) If a Prime Contractor indicated pursuant to NRS 338.141 that he or she would perform 
a portion of work on the public work and, after the submission of the Bid, substitutes a 
Subcontractor to perform such work; Prime Contractor shall forfeit as a penalty to 
OWNER, the lesser of, and excluding any amount of the contract attributable to change 
orders the following: 

 
(1) An amount equal to 2.5 percent (2.5%) of the total amount of the contract; or  

 
(2) An amount equal to 35 percent (35%) of the estimate by the engineer of the 

cost of the work Prime Contractor indicated pursuant to NRS 338.141 that 
he or she would perform on the public work. 

 

k) Prime Contractor agrees that it will assume responsibility for acts or omissions of 
its subcontractors and of persons either directly or indirectly employed by them, as 
they are responsible for the acts or omissions of persons directly employed by Prime 
Contractor. Nothing contained in the contract documents shall create any contractual 
relation between Subcontractor and OWNER. 

 

l) Per NRS 338.140.1.d, Prime Contractor agrees to provide, upon OWNER’S request, 
copies of any or all contracts that it may have with its Subcontractor(s), to be used to 
determine the price of additional work performed pursuant to change orders, to 
evaluate claims for costs incurred for the performance of additional work, and/or to 
prepare for potential mediation or litigation, and/or determine the validity of a protest. 

 
8. Non-Discrimination and Fair Employment Practices 

 
a. Discrimination: 
 
 The Board of County Commissioners and UMC’s Board of Directors are committed to promoting full and 

equal business opportunity for all persons doing business in Clark County. SUCCESSFUL BIDDER 
acknowledges that OWNER has an obligation to ensure that public funds are not used to subsidize private 
discrimination. SUCCESSFUL BIDDER recognizes that if Prime Contractor or their Subcontractors are 
found guilty by an appropriate authority of refusing to hire or do business with an individual or company 
due to reasons of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, age, disability, 
national origin, or any other protected status; OWNER may declare SUCCESSFUL BIDDER in breach of 
CONTRACT, terminate CONTRACT, and designate SUCCESSFUL BIDDER as non-responsible. 

 

b. Fair Employment Practices: 
 

 In connection with the performance of work under this contract, Prime Contractor agrees not to 
discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, creed, color, national 
origin, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, age, disability, national origin, or any other 
protected status. Such agreement shall include, but not be limited to, the following: employment; upgrading; 
demotion or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other 
forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. 

 

 Prime Contractor further agrees to insert this provision in all subcontracts hereunder. Any violation of such 
provision by a Prime Contractor shall constitute a material breach of this Contract. 

 

Page 465 of 853



Bid Number: 2023-15 
Project Name: UMC Southern Highlands PC/QC Expansion PWP-CL-2024-133 

 

Chapter 1   

c. Close-out Documentation 
 

 As a part of the required contract close-out documentation, Prime Contractor shall submit a Summary 
Report of Material Suppliers and Subcontractors listing the name of the Subcontractor, Bid Item or work 
performed, the Business Enterprise Group (BEG), Ethnicity Status, and Value of the contracts. The close-
out document shall be submitted in a manner that substantially meets the format and content of the form 
attached hereto as Close-out Documentation Summary Report of Subcontractors. See Exhibit H. 

 
d. The BIDDER’S Statement of Authority to Submit a Bid, requests information regarding the Prime 

Contractor’s, Subcontractor’s, and Material Supplier’s Business Enterprise Groups (BEG) and Ethnicity 
Status. The Business Enterprise Categories are defined as follows: 

 
i. MINORITY OWNED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (MBE): 

 
 An independent and continuing business for profit, which performs a commercially useful 

function and is at least 51 percent owned and controlled by one or more minority persons of African 
American (AA), Hispanic American (HA), Asian-Pacific American (AX) or Native American (NA) 
ethnicity. 

 

ii. WOMEN OWNED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (WBE): 
 
 An independent and continuing business for profit, which performs a commercially useful 

function and is at least 51 percent owned and controlled by one or more women 
 

iii. PHYSICALLY CHALLENGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (PBE): 
 
 An independent and continuing business for profit, which performs a commercially useful 

function and is at least 51 percent owned and controlled by one or more disabled individuals 
pursuant to the federal Americans with Disabilities Act. 

 
iv. SMALL BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (SBE): 

 
 An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful 

function, is not owned and controlled by individuals designated as minority, women, or 
physically challenged, and where gross annual sales does not exceed $2,000,000. 

 
v. VETERAN OWNED ENTERPRISE (VET): 

 
 A Nevada business at least 51% owned/controlled by a veteran. 
 

vi. DISABLED VETERAN OWNED ENTERPRISE (DVET): 
 
 A Nevada business at least 51% owned/controlled by a disabled veteran. 
 

vii. EMERGING SMALL BUSINESS (ESB): 
 
 Certified by the Nevada Governor’s Office of Economic Development effective January, 2014. 

Approved into Nevada Law during the 77th Legislative session as a result of AB294. 
 

The information provided by the BIDDER is for OWNER’S information only, as requested by the 
Board of County Commissioners. 

9. Bids submitted shall be on the forms provided by OWNER. All figures must be written in ink or typewritten. 
Figures written in pencil or erasures are not acceptable. Any interlineation or alteration must be initialed by a 
person authorized to bind the BIDDER to a contract. If the person making said interlineation, alteration or erasure 
is not the same person who signs the Bid Form, such person must be authorized by the person who signs the Bid 
Form. 
 

10. Bid Security 
 

a) Each Bid shall be accompanied by a Bid Security (in the form of, at BIDDER'S option, a Cashier's 
Check, Certified Check, Money Order, or Bid Bond in favor of OWNER) in the amount of five percent (5%) of 
the base Bid amount, pledging that the BIDDER will within ten (10) business days after OWNER’S 
written request for insurance, furnish the bonds and insurance as required herein, covering the faithful 
performance of Prime Contractor and the payment of all obligations arising hereunder. Bonds issued by a 
surety, who is an individual surety, are not acceptable to OWNER. Should the BIDDER refuse to or fail to 
furnish such bonds and insurance, the amount of the Bid security may be forfeited to OWNER. All checks 
and money orders must indicate the Payee as UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHER NEVADA 
as OWNER and reflect the complete Bid number. 

Page 466 of 853



Bid Number: 2023-15 
Project Name: UMC Southern Highlands PC/QC Expansion PWP-CL-2024-133 

 

Chapter 1   

 
Bidder’s may submit a scanned copy of the Bid security if their Bid is submitted electronically through NGEM. 
BIDDER must provide an original copy of the Bid Security within 24 business hours of request by OWNER. 

 
b) Surety companies executing bonds must be licensed to issue surety by the State of Nevada Insurance 

Division pursuant to Nevada Revised Statute Chapter 683A and bonds must be issued by an appointed 
producer of insurance pursuant to Nevada Revised Statute Chapter 683A. 

 
c) If submitting a Bid Bond it shall be written on either a standard Bid Bond form or the enclosed form (Bid 

Attachment 4), and the attorney-in-fact who executes the Bond on behalf of the surety shall affix to the Bond 
a certified and current copy of his/her power of attorney. 
 

d) OWNER will have the right to retain the Bid security of BIDDERS to whom an award is being 
considered until either (a) the bonds and insurance have been furnished, or (b) the specified time has 
elapsed so that Bids may be withdrawn, or (c) all Bids have been rejected. 

 
e) Should this Bid contain Lots, the BIDDER may choose to provide a Bid security in the form of a 

Cashier's Check, Certified Check or Money Order, a separate check or Money Order for EACH LOT 
submitted. If the BIDDER elects to provide a Bid security in the form of a Bid Bond, it may be issued for 
five percent (5%) of the aggregate amount of all Lots submitted. 

 
11. SUBMISSION OF BIDS 

 
Electronic submittal through NGEM 

www.ngemnv.com 
Registration must be completed prior to logging into the system. 

Bids must be submitted electronically no later than the Bid opening date and time. Per the Terms of Use of the Nevada 
Gov eMarketplace (NGEM), bids may not be submitted after the submission deadline, and the server clock will govern. 
Bids will be publicly opened and read aloud via WebEx immediately after the submission deadline. Bidders are solely 
responsible for the timely delivery of bids. 
 
The Bid Opening Summary will be posted after Bid opening in NGEM in the Awards Detail tab. 
 

12. WITHDRAWAL OF BID 
 

A. Before Bid Opening: 

Bidders may withdraw a bid submitted on NGEM by logging onto NGEM and retracting the Bid. 

B. After Bid Opening: 

OWNER may allow a BIDDER intended for award to withdraw its bid during the firm offer period due 
to a mistake of fact on the part of the BIDDER or its employee(s) in preparing its bid. Such BIDDER, upon 
discovery of the mistake, must immediately notify OWNER in writing of such mistake. The notice to 
OWNER must include: (1) a request to withdraw its bid, (2) a detailed description of the exact nature of 
the mistake, (3) an explanation of exactly how and why the mistake occurred, (4) and an explanation of 
the corrective action that was, or will be implemented by the BIDDER to eliminate the possibility of future 
mistakes. If the above requested information is not adequately provided to OWNER’S satisfaction, the 
BIDDER shall be prepared to meet with OWNER within 24 business hours of notification by OWNER 
to further review the BIDDER’S request for withdrawal of its bid. In any case of a withdrawal, OWNER 
may require that BIDDER forfeit its bid security to OWNER. 

13. TIE-BIDS 

A tie-bid is defined as an instance where bids are received from two or more BIDDERS who are the low BIDDERS, 
and their offers are identical. Bids must be identical in all evaluation areas; e.g., price, quality, delivery, terms, 
and ability to supply, etc. If any of these areas are not identical, it is not considered a tie-bid, and OWNER can 
justify awarding to the BIDDER with the lowest responsive and responsible bid. 

 

The procedure for tie-bids is to hold a public drawing and award the bid to the winner of the draw in accordance 
with the Method of Award clause in the Instructions to BIDDERS. When a drawing is necessary, the BIDDERS 
involved will be contacted with the time and place of the drawing. Attendance is not mandatory for the drawing. 
An impartial witness will be present at the drawing. 

 

Page 467 of 853

http://www.ngemnv.com/


Bid Number: 2023-15 
Project Name: UMC Southern Highlands PC/QC Expansion PWP-CL-2024-133 

 

Chapter 1   

14. EVALUATION OF BIDS AND AWARD 

A. Line Item Total Prices/Evaluation 

The BIDDER shall quote a total price for each line item; low bid will be defined as the lowest sum of these 
total prices. Mathematical errors in the line item Bid Schedule shall be corrected by OWNER. For 
purposes of progress payments and change orders, OWNER will divide the item total by the estimated 
quantity contained in the Bid Form to arrive at a unit price (rounded down to the truncated cent). If there is 
no cost for a line item, the BIDDER will enter a “0" or write the words “NO COST.” A BIDDER who fails 
to quote a total price for each line item or modifies/changes any elements within its Bid Form may be 
deemed non-responsive and their bid rejected. 

B. Intent to Award 

OWNER will issue a formal letter of Intent to Award to the low responsive responsible and/or best Bidder. 
The BIDDER shall utilize this letter to obtain the bonds required by NRS 339.025. This statute requires 
that before any Public Works contract is awarded and becomes binding, Prime Contractor shall 
furnish bonds and insurance. 

C. Award Determination 

All responsive and responsible bids received are considered firm offers for 120 calendar days after the date 
of bid opening and may be considered for award. Award shall be made to the lowest responsive, 
responsible and/or best bidder, based upon the Total Base Bid, plus the funding availability of Bid 
Option(s) One, Two, Three, etc. exercised in sequential order. BIDDERS must quote all items and agree 
to provide the bonds and insurance specified herein to be responsive and considered for award. OWNER 
reserves the right to accept or reject on a Package-by-Package basis including the election of Bid 
Options in sequential order depending on funding availability, whichever is in the best interest of OWNER. 

The determination of award may involve all or some of the following factors: price; BIDDER preference, 
if applicable; conformity to specifications; financial ability to meet the contract; previous performance; 
facilities and equipment; experience; and other objective and accountable factors which are 
reasonable and in accordance with the requirements of the Nevada Revised Statutes. 

Rejection of bid(s) may be recommended to the Governing Body for any of (but not limited to) the following 
causes: 

1. Failure to use the Bid Form(s) furnished by OWNER. 
2. Lack of signature by an authorized representative on the Bid Form(s). 
3. Failure to properly complete the Bid Form(s). 
4. Evidence of collusion among Bidders. 
5. Omission of Bid Security, in an acceptable form. 
6. Unauthorized alteration of Bid Form(s). 
7. Reports of poor performance on previous OWNER contracts. 
8. Breach of previous Owner contracts. 
9. Evidence of Federal Debarment in accordance with the provisions of Nevada Revised Statutes, 

Chapter 338.017, Sections 1and 2. 
 

OWNER reserves the right to waive any minor informality or irregularity. 

D. Determination of Bidder’s Responsibility 

1. In determining the responsibility of any bidder, the governing body or its authorized representative 
may consider, but is not limited to, the criteria set below: 

2. Whether a BIDDER or subcontractor possesses a valid contractor’s license of a class corresponding 
to the work required by OWNER in accordance with provisions of NRS Chapter 624; 

3. Whether a BIDDER has the ability to obtain the necessary bonding for the Work to be required by 
OWNER; 

4. Whether the principal personnel employed by the BIDDER have the necessary professional 
qualifications and experience for the work to be required by OWNER; 

5. Whether the BIDDER has breached any contracts with a public agency or person in this state or any 
other state; 

6. Whether the BIDDER has been disqualified from being awarded a contract pursuant to NRS 
338.017 or 338.13895; 

7. Whether the BIDDER has been convicted of a violation for discrimination in employment two 
years immediately preceding the date of submission of the Bid. 

Page 468 of 853



Bid Number: 2023-15 
Project Name: UMC Southern Highlands PC/QC Expansion PWP-CL-2024-133 

 

Chapter 1   

E. Temporary Prohibition/Disqualification of Contractor/Principals 

In accordance with NRS 338.017, if any administrative penalty is imposed under NRS chapter 338 against 
a person for the commission of an offense, that person, and the corporate officers, if any, of that person, 
may not be awarded a contract for a public work. 

1. For the first offense, for a period of 3 years after the date of the imposition of the administrative penalty. 

2. For the second offense or subsequent offense, for a period of 5 years after the date of the imposition 
of the administrative penalty. 

F. Disclosure of Ownership/Principals 

Any BIDDER recommended for award of a contract by the Governing Board and/or Board of County 
Commissioners is required to provide the information on BID ATTACHMENT 14 “Disclosure of 
Ownership/Principals” form. The form must be submitted to OWNER within 24 business hours after 
request. Failure to fill out the subject form by the BIDDER shall be cause for rejection of the bid. 

G. Award of Contract 

This bid will not be awarded or considered entered into, until the Governing Body or its authorized 
representative has authorized the award and SUCCESSFUL BIDDER has properly executed and 
submitted the required proof of insurance, the required bonds, and any other required submittals. Upon 
receipt of these required documents, in acceptable form, the Contract is considered binding, and the 
Contract Specialist or her designee will issue an Award Letter. The bid will then become a binding contract. 

 

15. BID OPTION ITEM(S) 

This document may contain Bid Option item(s) that is/are shown in the specifications and drawings under the 
appropriate sections but is/are not to be included in the Total Base Bid amount. Each item is identified by a number 
designation and description. It is the responsibility of each BIDDER to determine to its own satisfaction the limits 
and extent of the work for each item and quote a unit price and/or lump sum in the Bid Schedule. The amount(s) 
quoted shall remain firm through the contract period and include all labor and materials required to complete the 
work. 

16. BONDS AND INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

SUCCESSFUL BIDDER shall obtain the bonds and maintain through the contract term the insurance coverage 
required in Exhibit B, incorporated herein by this reference. SUCCESSFUL BIDDER shall comply with the terms 
and conditions set forth in Exhibit B. The cost of the insurance coverage shall be included in the bid amount. 

 
Bidders are strongly urged to fax the bonds, insurance, and insurance certificate to their respective agents 
before the bid opening. SUCCESSFUL BIDDER must provide these within ten (10) business days from 
date of Award. OWNER will assess the liquidated damages for submission of incorrect documents 
that are not corrected and returned by the tenth business day. 

 
A. Insurance and surety companies issuing certificates of insurance and bonds must be licensed by the State 

of Nevada Insurance Division and certificates of insurance and bonds must be issued by an appointed 
producer of insurance pursuant to Nevada Revised Statute Chapter 683A. 

B. Successful BIDDER shall provide all submittals requested in this section within ten (10) business days. 
If Successful BIDDER does not provide the submittals on or before the tenth business day, or fails to 
keep the bonds or insurance policies in effect or allows them to lapse, SUCCESSFUL BIDDER will 
pay to OWNER the amount of $100.00 per day as liquidated damages. 

 

17. SCHEDULE OF VALUES 

By 5:00 P.M the next working day after the bid opening, the three (3) lowest BIDDERs for the Total Base Bid amount 
must submit a Schedule of Values on the attached form, of the various portions of the work, aggregating the base 
bid amount, and shall be divided so as to facilitate payments in accordance with the contract documents.  
 
Following are detailed delivery instructions for Schedule of Values: 
 
*Note:  Subject line of the E-Mail must provide the Bid No., Project Description, and Name of Attachment 

 
 E-Mail DELIVERY 
 Melannie.bledsoe@umcsn.com 
 *reference above note 
  
  

Page 469 of 853



Bid Number: 2023-15 
Project Name: UMC Southern Highlands PC/QC Expansion PWP-CL-2024-133 

 

Chapter 1   

18. PROJECT WORKFORCE CHECKLIST 

All BIDDERS must submit with Bid a completed Project Workforce Checklist, Attachment 8. 

By 5:00 pm the next business day after bid-opening, the three (3) lowest BIDDERs must provide a completed Project 
Workforce Checklist, Attachment 9, for all named (used) subcontractors). 

Within 10 days of bid-opening, the apparent low Bidder must submit a Request for Waiver form, provided by the 
Department, for the PRIME/BIDDER and all named (used) subcontractors.  All supporting documentation for 
waiver(s), must be submitted with the Request for Waiver form.  The Request for Waiver form and supporting 
documentation may be sent via email, fax or delivered to the Department’s Contract Compliance Office.  If waivers 
are not needed, please indicate such on the Request for Waiver form, and submit as directed above. 

A request for waiver (for cause) can be submitted if: 

1. No Registered Apprentice Programs exist for the craft/type of work required by the project; or 

2. A request for Apprentices was denied, or not acted upon within 5 business days of submission; or 

3. The project requires the performance of uniquely complex or hazardous work.  
Failure to submit the workforce/apprentice utilization forms and supporting documentation described above, within 
the required time, may deem the bid non-responsive.   

Following are detailed delivery instructions for Progress Workforce Checklist: 

 
*Note:  Subject line of the E-Mail must provide the Bid No., Project Description, and Name of Attachment 

 
 E-Mail DELIVERY 
 Melannie.bledsoe@umcsn.com 
 *reference above note 
  
  

19. PROTESTS 
 

Any BIDDER who bids on a contract may file a written protest regarding the awarding of contract with the Contract 
Specialist within five (5) business days after the recommendation to award a contract is issued by OWNER or 
authorized representative. The protest must include a written statement setting forth the specific reasons the 
BIDDER submitting the protest believes the applicable provisions of the law were violated. The BIDDER filing the 
protest shall be required, at the time the protest is filed, to post a bond with a good and solvent surety authorized 
to do business in this state, or submit other security, defined as a cashier’s check, money order or certified check, 
to OWNER who shall hold the bond or other security until a determination is made on the protest. A bond posted 
or other security submitted with the protest must be in an amount equal to the lesser of: 

 
A. 25% of the total value of the base bid submitted by the BIDDER filing the protest; or  

B. $250,000. 
The protest filed in accordance with these provisions operates as a stay of action in relation to the award of this contract 
until a determination is made by the Governing Body on the protest. 

 
An unsuccessful BIDDER may not seek any type of judicial intervention until the Governing Body has made 
a determination on the protest and awarded the Contract. 

 
Neither the OWNER, Governing Body, nor the authorized representative is liable for any costs, expenses, attorney’s 
fees, loss of income or other damages sustained by a BIDDER, whether or not the person files the protest pursuant 
to this clause. 

 
If the protest is upheld, the bond posted or other security submitted with the protest must be returned to the BIDDER 
who submitted the protest. If the protest is rejected a claim may be made against the bond or other security by 
OWNER in an amount equal to the expenses incurred by OWNER because of the unsuccessful protest. Any 
money remaining after the claim has been satisfied must be returned to the BIDDER who posted the bond or 
submitted the security. 

20. REJECTION OF BID 
The OWNER reserves the right to waive any informality or irregularity in any bid received, to reject any and/or all 
bids, and to rebid. 
 
21. FEDERAL, STATE, LOCAL LAWS 
All Bidders, Prime Contractor, Subcontractors and any other person(s) who provides labor, equipment, materials, 
supplies or services for the public work, shall comply with the requirements of all applicable federal, state, and local 
laws relative to conducting business in Clark County including, without limitation, any applicable licensing 

Page 470 of 853



Bid Number: 2023-15 
Project Name: UMC Southern Highlands PC/QC Expansion PWP-CL-2024-133 

 

Chapter 1   

requirements, labor and health laws, requirements for the payment of sales and use taxes on equipment, materials 
and supplies provided for the public work, and including NRS 338 as amended, if applicable. The laws of the State 
of Nevada will govern as to the interpretation, validity, and effect of this bid, its award, and any contract entered into. 

 

22. COLLUSION AND ADVANCE DISCLOSURES 

Pursuant to 332.820 evidence of agreement or collusion among Bidders and prospective Bidders acting to 
illegally restrain freedom of competition by agreement to bid a fixed price, or otherwise, shall render the bids of 
such Bidders void. 

Advance disclosures of any information to any particular BIDDER which gives that particular BIDDER any advantage 
over any other interested Bidders, in advance of the bid opening, whether in response to advertising or an informal 
request for bids, made or permitted by a member of the governing body or an employee or representative thereof, 
shall operate to void all bids received in response to that particular request for bids. 
 

23. COVENANTS 
SUCCESSFUL BIDDER covenants that it presently has no interest and that it will not acquire any interest, direct or 
indirect, which would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of services required to be performed 
under this Agreement. SUCCESSFUL BIDDER further covenants, to its knowledge and ability, that in the 
performance of said services no person having any such interest shall be employed. 
 
24. RESPONSIBILITY OF PRIME CONTRACTOR 
It is understood that in the performance of the services herein provided for, Prime Contractor shall be, and is, an 
independent Contractor, and is not an agent, representative or employee of OWNER and shall furnish such services 
in its own manner and method except as required by this Contract. Further, Prime Contractor has and shall retain the 
right to exercise full control over the employment, direction, compensation and discharge of all persons employed by 
Prime Contractor in the performance of the services hereunder. Prime Contractor shall be solely responsible for, and 
shall indemnify, defend and hold OWNER harmless from all matters relating to the payment of its employees, 
including compliance with social security, withholding and all other wages, salaries, benefits, taxes, demands, and 
regulations of any nature whatsoever. 

 
A. Prime Contractor shall be fully and solely responsible for safety and health conditions for conducting all 

operations under this contract and at all times in such a manner as to avoid the risk of endangerment to 
health, bodily harm to persons, and damage to property. Prime Contractor shall continually and diligently 
inspect all equipment, materials and work to discover any conditions which might involve such risks and 
shall be solely responsible for discovery and correction of any such conditions Prime Contractor shall 
furnish all safety equipment, supplies and instructions required for the work and enforce the proper use of 
such by its employees, agents, subcontractors and any and all sub-tier levels and suppliers. Prime 
Contractor shall notify OWNER in writing of the name of their assign employee responsible for safety and 
health including a twenty-four (24) hour telephone number prior to commencement of work. Prime 
Contractor shall comply with all requirements of Nevada Revised Statute Chapter 618, Occupational 
Safety and Health, Nevada Administrative Code Chapter 618 and have established an active Safety 
Program in accordance therewith. 

 
B. Prime Contractor acknowledges that OWNER has an obligation to ensure that public funds are not used 

to subsidize private discrimination. Prime Contractor recognizes that if they or their subcontractors are 
found guilty by an appropriate authority of refusing to hire or do business with an individual or company 
due to reasons of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, age, disability, 
national origin, or any other protected status; OWNER may declare Prime Contractor in breach of the 
Contract, terminate the Contract, and designate Prime Contractor as non-responsible. 

 
C. Prime Contractor acknowledges that Prime Contractor and any Subcontractors, agents or employees 

employed by Prime Contractor shall not, under any circumstances, be considered employees of OWNER, 
and that they shall not be entitled to any of the benefits or rights afforded employees of OWNER, including, 
but not limited to, sick leave, vacation leave, holiday pay, Public Employees Retirement System benefits, 
or health, life, dental, long- term disability or workers' compensation insurance benefits. OWNER will not 
provide or pay for any liability or medical insurance, retirement contributions or any other benefits for or on 
behalf of Prime Contractor or any of its officers, employees or other agents. 

 
D. Prime Contractor shall be responsible for the professional quality, technical accuracy, timely completion, 

and coordination of all services furnished by Prime Contractor, their principals, officers, employees, agents, 
Subcontractors and suppliers required to complete this Contract. In performing the specified services, 
Prime Contractor shall follow practices consistent with generally accepted professional and technical 
standards. 

 
E. It shall be the duty of Prime Contractor to assure that all products of its effort are technically sound and in 

conformance with all pertinent Federal, State and Local statutes, codes, ordinances, resolutions and other 
regulations. Prime Contractor will not produce a work product that violates or infringes on any copyright or 

Page 471 of 853



Bid Number: 2023-15 
Project Name: UMC Southern Highlands PC/QC Expansion PWP-CL-2024-133 

 

Chapter 1   

patent rights. Prime Contractor shall, without additional compensation, correct or revise any errors or 
omissions in its work products. Permitted or required approval by OWNER of any products or services 
furnished by Prime Contractor shall not in any way relieve Prime Contractor of responsibility for the 
professional quality and technical accuracy and adequacy of its work. OWNER’S review, approval, 
acceptance, or payment for any of Prime Contractor's services herein shall not be construed to operate as 
a waiver of any rights under this Contract or of any cause of action arising out of the performance of this 
Contract, and Prime Contractor shall be and remain liable in accordance with the terms of this Contract 
and applicable law for all damages to OWNER caused by Prime Contractor's performance or failures to 
perform under this Contract. 

 

F. Prime Contractor shall appoint a qualified employee who will manage the performance of services, should 
this employee be unable to complete his or her responsibility for any reason, Prime Contractor will 
immediately replace him or her with a qualified person and inform OWNER in writing. 

 
G. As built drawings and related specifications shall become and remain the property of OWNER. Copies of 

the drawings and specifications retained by OWNER may be utilized only for its use and for occupying and 
maintaining the project for which they were prepared, and not for construction of any other project. A copy 
of all materials, information and documents, whether finished, unfinished, or draft, developed, prepared, 
completed, or acquired by Prime Contractor during the performance of services for which it has been 
compensated under this Contract, shall be delivered to OWNER’S representative upon completion or 
termination of this Contract, whichever occurs first. OWNER shall have the right to reproduce all non-copy 
write protected documentation supplied pursuant to this Contract. 

H. Prime Contractor agrees that its officers, employees, Subcontractors and suppliers will cooperate with 
OWNER in the performance of services under this Contract and will be available for consultation with 
OWNER at such reasonable times with advance notice as to not conflict with their other responsibilities. 

 
I. Prime Contractor agrees to provide the information on BID ATTACHMENT 14 “Disclosure of 

Ownership/Principals” form prior to any contract award by the Governing Board and/or Board of County 
Commissioners. 

 
J. The rights and remedies of OWNER provided for under this section are in addition to any other rights 

and remedies provided by law or under other sections of this Contract. 

25. RESPONSIBILITY OF OWNER 

A. OWNER agrees that its officers, employees, and contracted firms will cooperate with Prime Contractor in 
the performance of services under this Contract and will be available for consultation with Prime Contractor 
at such reasonable times with advance notice as to not conflict with their other responsibilities and in 
accordance with the communication methodology defined by OWNER. 

 
B. OWNER’S Departmental Responsibilities: 

 
1. OWNER'S Contracts Management Division will administer the bid solicitation, pre-bid conference, 

issue addenda, bid opening, bid protest, evaluation, Nevada State Contractors Board license 
compliance, no evidence of debarment in the Federal System of Award Management, bonds and 
insurance, Notice of Award of contract, prevailing wage rate compliance, and obtainment of 
governing body approval of fully executed change order(s), subcontractor substitutions,  
assignment of contractual rights, and any Notice to Remedy and Contract Termination. 
OWNER’S departmental representative assigned to administer the contract with the design 
professional (Architect/Engineer) shall review and approve all documents prior to presenting them 
to the Contracts Management Division for advertising a notice to bid and prior to release of a 
formal addenda. 

 
2. Upon the issuance of a written Notice of Award, the services performed by Prime Contractor 

under this Contract shall be subject to contract administration for compliance with the terms of 
this Contract by OWNER'S departmental representative assigned at the preconstruction meeting 
and/or as instructed in the written Notice to Proceed. OWNER'S departmental representative shall 
provide all contract administration including issuance of the written Notice to Proceed for 
commencement of work/services, substitutions (“or equal”), coordination with design professional 
and construction management firm, progress payment evaluation(s), invoice approval, payments 
and retainage, surety performance inquirers, negotiations and signature authority for change 
order(s), punch list(s), Notice of Substantial Completion, warranty inspections, corrective action 
notices, project conflicts, disputes, and/or mediation demands. Additionally, shall administer and 
coordinate OWNER'S design professional, construction management firm or other OWNER 
contracted firm(s). OWNER'S departmental representative responsibilities under this Contract 
may be delegated to appropriate staff members or a third-party firm and shall notify Prime 
Contractor in writing before the effective date of each such delegation. 

 

Page 472 of 853



Bid Number: 2023-15 
Project Name: UMC Southern Highlands PC/QC Expansion PWP-CL-2024-133 

 

Chapter 1   

C. The review comments of OWNER'S representative may be reported in writing as needed to Contractor. It 
is understood that OWNER'S representative’s review and oral comments do not relieve Contractor from 
the responsibility for the timely completion, professional quality and technical accuracy of all work delivered 
under this Contract unless modified through a formal written change order(s) approved by the governing 
body. 

 
D. OWNER staff (including but not limited to those) from Plant Operations, Public Works and/or their 

contracted staff will perform unscheduled site visits to validate that the workers performing the electrical 
and plumbing work are in compliance with requirements of the Building Administrative Code, Chapter 22.2. 

 

26. DISCLAIMER 

The prospective BIDDERs responsible for obtaining all addenda, correspondence, CD data, and any other 
documentation issued by OWNER. OWNER is not responsible for the accuracy or completeness of any 
documentation the BIDDER receives from any source other than OWNER’s Contracts Management Division. 

Page 473 of 853



                           Bid No. 2023-15 
UMC Southern Highlands PC/QC Expansion PWP-CL-2024-133  

General Conditions 1 
Chapter 2   

GENERAL CONDITIONS 
BID NO. 2023-14 

UMC SOUTHERN HIGHLANDS PC/QC EXPANSION PWP-CL-2024-133 
 

SECTION 1: GENERAL 
 

1.1 NOTICE(S) TO PROCEED 
 

A. Notice to Proceed (for Work) 
 

After receipt of all required post-bid bonds and proof of insurance, and any other required post-bid submittals, 
the Contracts Management Division will issue a Notice of Award which authorizes Prime Contractor to 
immediately execute the required contracts with equipment and material supplier(s), required Subcontractors, 
and apply for and obtain any necessary permits. The Plant Operations Department shall issue a Notice to 
Proceed to commence the work. 

 
B. Materials Notice to Proceed 

 
OWNER will issue a Materials Notice to Proceed to Prime Contractor authorizing the ordering of supplies, 
materials, equipment, etc. The supplies, materials, equipment, etc. must be received within 60 calendar days. 
During this period of time, OWNER may issue the Notice to Proceed for the work. 

 
1.2 TIME: COMPLETION OF PROJECT 

 

A. Time is of the essence and failure to meet the specified time to complete the work to be performed shall 
constitute a breach of the Contract and may result in termination of the Contract. 

 
B. Successful Bidder, upon becoming the awarded Prime Contractor, shall commence the work to be performed 

on the date set by OWNER’S departmental representative in the written Notice to Proceed, continuing the work 
in accordance with the approved schedule and shall complete the entire work within 160 calendar days from 
the date specified in the Notice to Proceed. Further, separable portions of the work may be subject to milestone 
or specific dates as established in this document. Prime Contractor shall complete all work or separable 
portions of work in accordance with specified milestones or specific dates and in accordance with these 
specifications. Any costs associated with the overtime, which may be required to complete the project in time, 
and/or milestones specified shall be solely the responsibility of Prime Contractor and shall have been included 
in the bid amount(s). 

 
1. In addition, where applicable, reference to time shall be in accordance with Section 108, "Prosecution 

and Progress" of the Uniform Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction Off-Site 
Improvements, Clark County Area, Nevada, Third Edition, and revisions thereto. 

 
2. The time specified above represents no overtime requirement. The scheduling of overtime for this 

project is solely the responsibility of Prime Contractor. OWNER is not responsible for any additional 
costs related to overtime work performed. 

 
C. Prime Contractor's Performance of Work 

 
Prime Contractor shall perform all work as may be necessary to complete the contract in a satisfactory and 
acceptable manner, and unless otherwise provided, shall furnish all transportation, materials, equipment, tools, 
labor or incidentals necessary to complete the work in the best possible and most expeditious manner. 

 
D. Liquidated Damages 

 
1. In case of failure on the part of Prime Contractor to complete the work within the time(s) specified in 

the Contract, or with such additional time(s) as may be granted by formal change order, or if Prime 
Contractor fails to perform the work, or any separable part thereof, with such diligence as will insure 
its completion within the time(s) specified in the contract or any extensions thereof, Prime Contractor 
shall pay to OWNER, as liquidated damages, the sum of $100.00 for each calendar day of delay 
until the work is complete, together with any increased costs incurred by OWNER in completing the 
work. 

 
2. OWNER’S Recovery of Bidder’s Preference Liquidated Damages 

 
If OWNER determines that Prime Contractor has failed to comply with a requirement certified in its 
Public Works Bidder’s Preference Affidavit, OWNER may seek to recover by civil action Liquidated 
Damages for material breach of the contract in the amount of one percent (1%) of the Contract price. 

  

Page 474 of 853



                           Bid No. 2023-15 
UMC Southern Highlands PC/QC Expansion PWP-CL-2024-133  

General Conditions 2 
Chapter 2   

1.3 PERMITS AND FEES 
 

Prime Contractor shall determine and secure and pay for all fees and permits which may include, but not be limited to 
the following: building permit; plan check fee; dust control permit; sanitation/sewer; storm water pollution, water; tortoise; 
and other permits, connection and governmental fees; licenses; and all special inspections necessary for proper 
execution and completion of the work, unless otherwise specified. Prime Contractors shall direct questions to the 
designated contacts specified in the Instructions to Bidders. 

 
1.4 UTILITIES 

 

Prime Contractor shall, at its expense, arrange for, develop and maintain all utilities in work areas to meet the 
requirements of the Contract. Such utilities shall be furnished by Prime Contractor at no additional cost to OWNER, 
unless otherwise specified in this bid document. 

 
1.5 STANDARDS AND CODES 

 

A. Wherever references are made in the Contract to standards or codes in accordance with which work is to be 
performed or tested, the edition or revision of the standards or codes current on the effective date of this 
Contract shall apply to the work of the project, unless otherwise expressly set forth. Unless otherwise specified, 
reference to such standards or codes is solely for implementation of the technical portions of such standards 
and codes. 

 
B. Where applicable, reference to the Uniform Standard Specifications shall mean the Uniform Standard 

Specifications for Public Works Construction, Off-Site Improvements, Clark County Area, Nevada, Third Edition 
and revisions thereof, excluding Sections 102 and 103 of Division One, and/or the latest adopted Editions of 
the Uniform Building Code, Plumbing Code, Electrical Code, Fire Code, and Mechanical Code. 

 
C. In case of conflict among any of the above referenced Specifications standards and codes, or between any 

referenced standards and codes and the Specifications, reference is made to Section 105, Subsection 105.04 
of the Uniform Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction, Off-Site Improvements, Clark County 
Area, Nevada, Current Edition, and revisions thereto, unless otherwise specified in the General Conditions. 

1.6 TAXES 
 

Prime Contractor shall pay all taxes, levies, duties and assessments of any nature that may be applicable to any work 
under this Contract. The contract amount and any approved change orders amounts shall include all taxes imposed by 
law. Prime Contractor shall make any and all payroll deductions required by law. Prime Contractor hereby indemnifies 
and holds OWNER harmless from any liability regarding any and all such taxes, levies, duties, assessments and 
deductions. 

 
1.7 ASSIGNMENT OF CONTRACTUAL RIGHTS 

 

It is agreed that Prime Contractor will not assign, transfer, convey or otherwise dispose of the contract or its right, title 
or interest in or to the same, or any part thereof, without prior written consent of OWNER and any sureties. 

 
1.8 GOVERNING ORDER OF BIDDING AND CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

 

A. The bidding and contract documents include various divisions, sections, and conditions, which are essential 
parts for the work to be provided by Prime Contractor. A requirement occurring in one is as binding as though 
occurring in all. They are intended to be complementary and to describe and provide for a complete work. In 
case of a discrepancy, the following precedence will govern: 

 
1. Permits required by law from other agencies, and/or OWNER, issued to Prime Contractor, and/or OWNER. 

2. Change orders, supplemental contracts and amended contracts. 

3. Instructions to Bidders, including any addenda. 

4. General Conditions, including any addenda. 

5. Specifications, including any addenda. 

6. Contract Drawings, including any addenda. 

7. Uniform Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction Off-Site Improvements, Clark County 
Area, Nevada, current edition, and all revisions through date of advertisement. 

8. Uniform Standard Drawings for Public Works Construction Off-Site Improvements, Clark County Area, 
Nevada, and all revisions through date of advertisement. 

 

B. Notwithstanding the above, if a permit provision conflicts with a provision in items 2-8, above, the more 
stringent provision controls. 

Page 475 of 853



                           Bid No. 2023-15 
UMC Southern Highlands PC/QC Expansion PWP-CL-2024-133  

General Conditions 3 
Chapter 2   

 
C. Notwithstanding the above, a change order, supplemental agreement or amended agreement takes 

precedence over a more stringent permit if the permitting agency approves in writing. 
 

D. Notwithstanding the above, in the event of a conflict between addenda, the more recent addendum controls. 
 

E. Notwithstanding the above, approved revisions to contract drawings, specifications and drawings will take 
precedence over items 5, 6, 7 and 8 respectively. Detailed contract drawings shall have precedence over 
general plans. 

 
F. Prime Contractor shall not take advantage of any apparent error or omission in the contract drawings or 

specifications. In the event Prime Contractor discovers such an error or omission, Prime Contractor shall 
immediately notify OWNER. OWNER will then make such corrections and interpretations as may be deemed 
necessary for fulfilling the intent of the plans and specifications. 

 
G. Section 105.04 of the Uniform Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction Off-Site Improvements, 

Clark County Area, Nevada, current edition and all revisions through date of advertisement, does not apply to 
this Contract. That section is overridden, replaced and controlled by this Section 1.8 of the General Conditions 
of this Contract. 

 
1.9 INDEMNITY 

 

A. Notwithstanding the insurance coverage required herein, Prime Contractor hereby indemnifies and shall defend 
and hold harmless OWNER, its officers, employees, agents and, if applicable, its construction manager,  its 
officers and employees from and against any and all suits, actions, legal or administrative proceedings, claims, 
demands, damages, liabilities, interest, attorney's fees, costs and expenses whatsoever of any kind or nature 
whether arising before or after completion of the work hereunder and in any manner directly and indirectly 
caused, occasioned or contributed to in whole or in part, by reason of any act, omission, fault or negligence 
whether active or passive by Prime Contractor, or anyone contracted with or acting under its direction or control, 
or in its behalf in connection with or incident to the performance of this Contract. 

 
Prime Contractor's aforesaid indemnity and hold harmless obligations, or portions or applications thereof, shall 
apply even in the event of the fault or negligence, whether active or passive, of the parties indemnified or held 
harmless to the fullest extent permitted by law, but in no event shall they apply to liability caused by the willful 
misconduct of the parties indemnified or held harmless. 

 
B. Prime Contractor agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless OWNER, its officers and employees, from 

any and all claims by Prime Contractor's employees or its subcontractors' employees, for work-related injuries 
arising out of the performance of the contract. 

 
1.10 ADA REQUIREMENTS 

 

All work performed or services rendered by Successful Prime Contractor must comply with the Americans with 
Disabilities Act standards adopted by Clark County. All facilities built prior to January 26, 1992 must comply with the 
Uniform Federal Accessibility Standards; and all facilities completed after January 26, 1992 must comply with the 
Americans with Disabilities Act Accessibility Guidelines. It shall be the responsibility of Successful Prime Contractor to 
advise OWNER should OWNER’S requirements not meet the appropriate accessibility standards. 

 
1.11 AUDITS 

 

The performance of this contract by Prime Contractor is subject to review by OWNER to ensure contract compliance. 
Prime Contractor agrees to provide OWNER any and all information requested that relates to the performance of this 
contract. All requests for information shall be in writing to Prime Contractor. Time is of the essence during the audit 
process. Failure to provide the information requested within the timeline provided in the written information request may 
be considered a material breach of contract and be cause for suspension and/or termination of the contract. 

 

SECTION 2: MATERIALS: 
 

2.1 PATENT INDEMNITY 
 

A. Prime Contractor hereby indemnifies and shall defend and hold harmless OWNER, its officers, employees, 
agents and, if applicable, its construction manager, its officers, and employees, respectively, from and against 
all claims, losses, costs, damages, and expenses, including attorney's fees, incurred by OWNER and its 
construction manager, respectively, as a result of or in connection with any claims or actions based upon 
infringement or alleged infringement of any patent and arising out of the use of the equipment or materials 
furnished under the contract by Prime Contractor, or out of the processes or actions employed by, or on behalf 
of Prime Contractor in connection with the performance of the contract. Prime Contractor shall, at its sole 
expense, promptly defend against any such claim or action unless directed otherwise by OWNER or its 
construction manager; provided that OWNER or its construction manager shall have notified Prime Contractor 
upon becoming aware of such claims or actions, and provided further that Prime Contractor's aforementioned 

Page 476 of 853



                           Bid No. 2023-15 
UMC Southern Highlands PC/QC Expansion PWP-CL-2024-133  

General Conditions 4 
Chapter 2   

obligations shall not apply to equipment, materials, or processes furnished or specified by OWNER or its 
construction manager. 

 
B. Prime Contractor shall have the right, in order to avoid such claims or actions, to substitute at its expense non 

infringing equipment, materials, or processes, or to modify such infringing equipment, materials and processes 
so they become non infringing, or obtain the necessary licenses to use the infringing equipment, material or 
processes, provided that such substituted and modified equipment, materials and processes shall meet all the 
requirements and be subject to all the provisions of this Contract. 

2.2  SUBSTITUTIONS (“OR EQUA L”)  
 

A. Policy 
 

1 Prior to proposing any substitute material, product, or service, Prime Contractor shall satisfy itself that 
the material, product, or service proposed is, in fact, equal to that specified. Prime Contractor may 
only request a substitution if a material or product will fit into the space allocated, affords comparable 
ease of operations, maintenance and service, that the appearance, and longevity is equal to or better 
than the material or product specified; or that the substitution of such material, product, or service by 
reason of cost savings, reduced construction time, or similar demonstrable benefit will be in OWNER'S 
interest. 

 
2 The burden of proof of equality of a proposed substitution for a specified material, product, or service 

shall be upon Prime Contractor. Prime Contractor shall support its request with sufficient test data 
and other means to permit OWNER to make a fair and equitable decision on the merits of the proposal. 
Prime Contractor shall submit drawings, samples, data and certificates for proposed substitute 
materials. Any material, product, or service by a manufacturer other than those specified or of brand 
name or model number or of generic species other than those specified will be considered a 
substitution. OWNER will be the sole judge of whether or not the substitution is equal in quality, utility 
and economy to that specified. 

 
3 Approval of a substitution shall not relieve Prime Contractor from responsibility for compliance with all 

requirements of the Contract. Prime Contractor shall bear the expense for any changes in other parts 
of the work caused by any substitutions. 

 
4 Materials, products or service proposed as substitutions for specified items shall be supported by 

certification of their approval for use by any or all governmental agencies having jurisdiction over use 
of the specific material, product or service. 

 
5 Substitutions will not be permitted in those instances where the product is intended to accommodate 

artistic design, specific function or economy of maintenance. 
 

B. Procedure 

Should Prime Contractor wish to use any material, product, or service other than those specified by brand or 
trade name, it shall, within 10 calendar days after award of the contract, submit to the Architect or Engineer, 
a written request for substitution accompanied by all data necessary for the Architect or Engineer to determine 
whether the requested substitution is equal to the specified material, product, or service. If Prime Contractor 
fails to submit written requests within 10 calendar days after the award of the contract, no substitutions will be 
allowed. The submission of a request to substitute a material, product, or service gives rise to no obligation on 
the part of OWNER to accept such substitute, or on the part of the Architect or Engineer to determine such 
substitute to be the equal of that specified. 

 

The Architect or Engineer will have a reasonable amount of time to review requests for substitution and make 
a recommendation to OWNER. Should the substitute be acceptable to OWNER, an authorization will be written 
allowing the provision of the substitute material, product, or service. No substitution will be allowed which will 
increase the Contract amount. 

2.3 DELIVERY, UNLOADING AND STORAGE 

Prime Contractor shall receive, unload, store in a secure place, and deliver from storage to the construction site all 
materials and equipment required for the performance of the Contract. The storage facilities and methods of storing 
shall meet OWNER'S approval. Materials and equipment subject to degradation by exposure shall be stored in a suitable 
enclosure provided by Prime Contractor. 

2.4 INVOICING 

Invoices are to be sent within thirty (30) calendar days of the completion of the work. Payment of invoices will be made 
within forty-five (45) calendar days, unless otherwise specified, after receipt of an accurate invoice that has been reviewed 
and approved by the applicable department’s authorized representative. 

In accordance with NRS 244.250 OWNER shall not provide payment on any invoice SUCCESSFUL BIDDER submits 
after six (6) months from the date Successful BIDDER performs services, provides deliverables, or milestones. 

Page 477 of 853



                           Bid No. 2023-15 
UMC Southern Highlands PC/QC Expansion PWP-CL-2024-133  

General Conditions 5 
Chapter 2   

All invoices should include the following information: 

A. OWNER’s Progress Billing form 

B. Company Name 

C. Complete Address (including street, city, state, and zip code) 

D. Telephone Number 

E. Contact Person 

F. OWNER Purchase Order Number 

G. Bid Number 

H. Itemized pricing per the Schedule of Values 

I. Company’s Invoice Number 

J. OWNER Project Number(s) 

SUCCESSFUL BIDDER is responsible to ensure that all invoices submitted for payment are in strict accordance 
with the price(s) offered on the Bid Form. 

2.5 PAYMENT OF MATERIAL 
 

A. At the discretion of OWNER, payment for materials on hand may be made when a paid invoice is presented 
to the Architect/Engineer for inclusion with the estimate, provided the materials meet the requirements of the 
plans and specifications, and are stored under acceptable storage conditions. Payment for materials on hand 
does not alter the responsibility of Prime Contractor for all materials until final acceptance of the work. 

 
B. If materials are not specifically purchased for the work, but are taken from Prime Contractor's stock, then in lieu 

of invoices, there shall be submitted to OWNER statements accompanied by an affidavit of Prime Contractor, 
certifying such materials were taken from its stock and the price and transportation claimed represent the actual 
cost to Prime Contractor. 

 
C. It is understood and agreed that the transfer of title to and OWNER’S payment of such stored or stockpiled 

material shall in no way relieve Prime Contractor of its responsibility for furnishing and placing such materials 
in accordance with the requirements of the Contract, plans, and specifications. 

 
2.6 WARRANTY 

A. Unless otherwise provided elsewhere in the Contract, all materials and equipment incorporated into any work 
covered by the contract shall be new, and where grade is not specified, shall be of the most suitable grade of 
their respective kinds for their intended use, and all workmanship shall be in accordance with construction 
practices acceptable to OWNER. Unless otherwise provided in the contract, Prime Contractor warrants all 
equipment, materials, and labor furnished or performed under this contract against defects in design, materials 
(unless furnished by OWNER), and workmanship for a period of 12 months (unless longer guarantees or 
warranties are provided for in the contract in which case the longer periods of time shall prevail) from the date 
of Substantial Completion, regardless of whether the same were furnished or performed by Prime Contractor 
or by any of its subcontractors of any tier. Upon receipt of written notice from OWNER of any defect in any 
such equipment, materials, or labor during the applicable warranty period, due to defective design, materials 
or workmanship, the affected item or parts thereof shall be redesigned, repaired or replaced by Prime 
Contractor at a time acceptable to OWNER. 

 
B. Prime Contractor shall perform such tests as OWNER may require verifying that such redesign, repairs and 

replacements comply with the requirements of this Contract. All costs incidental to such redesign, repair, 
replacement and testing, including the removal of any barrier, necessary to gain access, shall be borne by 
Prime Contractor. 

 
C. Prime Contractor warrants such redesigned, repaired or replaced work against defective design, materials and 

workmanship for a period of twelve (12) months from and after date of acceptance thereof. Should Prime 
Contractor fail to promptly make the necessary redesign, repair, replacement, and tests, OWNER may perform 
or cause to be performed the same at Prime Contractor's expense. Prime Contractor and its surety or sureties 
shall be liable for the satisfaction and full performance of the warranties as set forth herein. 

SECTION 3: LABOR 

3.1 PREVAILING WAGES 

A. Prime Contractor and Subcontractors shall be bound by and comply with all federal, state and local laws with 
regard to minimum wages, overtime work, hiring and discrimination, including NRS 338.020 through 338.090. 
Prime Contractor shall ensure that all employees on the work are paid in accordance with the CURRENT 
PREVAILING WAGE RATES AS APPROVED BY THE STATE LABOR COMMISSIONER, whenever the actual 
value of the contract totals $100,000 or more. Bidders are responsible to identify and use the correct prevailing 

Page 478 of 853



                           Bid No. 2023-15 
UMC Southern Highlands PC/QC Expansion PWP-CL-2024-133  

General Conditions 6 
Chapter 2   

wage rates, including any addenda, as well as all the forms needed to comply, as specified on the State of 
Nevada Labor Commissioner’s web site: www.Labor.NV.Gov, or by calling (702) 486-2650. Per NRS 338.030, 
after a contract has been awarded, the prevailing rates of wages in effect at the time of the opening of bids 
remains in effect for the duration of the project or thirty-six (36) months whichever is earlier. Please note that 
if a change order causes a contract to exceed $100,000, OWNER will audit the entire contract period. 

 
B. In accordance with NRS 338.013.3, Prime Contractor shall report to the Labor Commissioner and OWNER the 

name and address of each subcontractor performing work on the project within 10 days after the subcontractor 
commences work on the project and the identifying (PWP) number for the public work. 

 
C. In accordance with NRS 338.060 and 338.070, Prime Contractor shall forfeit as a penalty to OWNER, amounts 

specified in NRS 338.060, for each calendar day or portion thereof that each worker employed on OWNER’S 
project is paid less than the designated rate for any work done under the contract by Prime Contractor or any 
Subcontractor under it. If Prime Contractor or any Subcontractor on the project fails to submit the certified 
payroll reports to OWNER within 15 calendar days after the end of the month, Prime Contractor shall forfeit 
as a penalty to OWNER, amounts specified in NRS 338.060, for each calendar day or portion thereof for each 
worker employed on the project during the reporting period. The Labor Commissioner shall establish a sliding 
scale based on the size of Prime Contractor’s business to determine the amount per worker per day to be 
imposed. Any Prime Contractor or Subcontractor, or agent or representative thereof, performing work on the 
project, who neglects to comply with the prevailing wage, is guilty of a misdemeanor. If a penalty is imposed, 
in addition to any penalties allowed by NRS 338.060, the Prime Contractor shall reimburse OWNER for all 
costs associated with wage complaint investigations for the project, including but not limited to, actual staff 
time, materials used, and attorneys’ fees. 

 
D. In accordance with NRS 338.070 (5) (a) (b) and NRS 338.070 (6), Prime Contractor and each Subcontractor 

shall keep or cause to be kept: 
 

1. An accurate record showing for each worker employed by Prime Contractor or Subcontractor; 
 

a) The name of the worker; 

b) The occupation of the worker; 

c) The gender of the worker, if the worker voluntarily agreed to specify that information pursuant to 

subsection 4, or an entry indicating that the worker declined to specify such information; 

d) The ethnicity of the worker, if the worker voluntarily agreed to specify that information pursuant to 

subsection 4, or an entry indicating that the worker declined to specify such information; 

e) If the worker has a driver’s license or identification card, an indication of the state or other jurisdiction 

that issued the license or card; and 

f) The actual per diem, wages, and benefits paid to the worker. 
 

2. An additional accurate record showing for each worker employed by Prime Contractor or Subcontractor 
who has a driver’s license or identification card; 

 
a) The name of the worker; 

b) The driver’s license or identification card number of the worker; and 

c) The state or other jurisdiction that issued the license or card. 
 

The records maintained pursuant to the requirements indicated above must be open at all reasonable 
hours to inspection by OWNER. Prime Contractor, and all Subcontractors, shall ensure that a copy of each 
record for each calendar month, together with a cumulative summary of the percentage of workers that 
hold a valid driver’s license or identification card issued by the State of Nevada, is received by OWNER 
no later than 15 days after the end of the month. The copy of the record maintained pursuant to paragraph 
one (1) of this section must be open to public inspection, as provided in NRS 239.010. The copy of the 
record maintained pursuant to paragraph two (2) of this section is confidential and not open to public 
inspection. Prime Contractor, or any Subcontractor or agent or representative thereof, doing work on the 
Project who neglects to comply with the terms of this provision is guilty of a misdemeanor. A copy of the 
records of work performed on the Project by Prime Contractor and each Subcontractor shall be submitted 
to OWNER at the following address: 

 
University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 
Plant Operations Department 
Attn: Construction Manager 
1800 West Charleston Blvd. 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89102 

 
  

Page 479 of 853

http://www.labor.nv.gov/


                           Bid No. 2023-15 
UMC Southern Highlands PC/QC Expansion PWP-CL-2024-133  

General Conditions 7 
Chapter 2   

Attached are sample forms that may be used to document the above required information. See Exhibit 
I. 

 
Two years after Project’s final payment is made by OWNER; the records in OWNER’S possession may 
be destroyed. 

 
E. Prime Contractor shall comply with the requirements of NRS 338.020 and post on the site of the public 

work in a place generally visible place to the workers, the Nevada Prevailing Wage Rates and all 
addenda. The Nevada Prevailing Wage Rates in effect at the time of opening of the Bid are hereby 
incorporated into this Contract by reference. 

 
F. Certified Payroll Reports:  Pursuant to NRS 338.070, on any public work contract awarded for more than 

$100,000, Prime Contractor and each Subcontractor are required to keep an accurate record showing the name, 
the occupation and the actual per diem wages and benefits paid to each worker employed by it in connection 
with the public work. 

 
Each Prime Contractor and every lower-tier subcontractor will be required to submit certified payrolls and other 
labor compliance documentation at the discretion of and in the manner specified by OWNER. This requirement 
will be ‘flowed down’ to every lower-tier subcontractor and supplier/vendor required to provide labor compliance 
documentation.    

 
Prime Contractor and each Subcontractor are required to submit a copy of the record for each calendar month 
to OWNER no later than 15 calendar days after the end of the month for the purposes of public inspection. 
Prime Contractor shall be responsible for coordinating the submittal of all the certified payroll reports for the 
project, including its reports and the reports of all the subcontractors who are performing work on the project. 
A Prime Contractor shall not withhold from a subcontractor the sums necessary to cover any penalties withheld 
from Prime Contractor by the public body because Prime Contractor failed to submit certified payroll reports 
within 15 calendar days after the end of the month if the Subcontractor provided certified payroll reports to 
Prime Contractor within 10 calendar days after the end of the month or the date agreed upon by Prime 
Contractor and Subcontractor. Prime Contractor shall submit its certified payroll and the certified payroll of each 
of the subcontractors performing work on the project, utilizing LCPtracker or Prime Contractor shall submit 
paper copies if notified. 

 
Certified Payroll Reports will be available for public viewing. The Manager of Facility Maintenance may be 
contacted at (702) 383-2301 to view the reports. 
 
For Certified Payroll Submissions pertaining to this project please note contact information below: 

 
  Name: Tamera Hone 
  Email: tamera.hone@umcsn.com 

Phone: 702-610-6197 

3.2 USE OF APPRENTICES (Applicable to all projects advertised and awarded after January 1, 2020) 

By submitting a Bid on projects awarded after January 1, 2020, BIDDER represents that it and its subcontractors will 
comply with SB 207 (2019), NRS 338.01165 in regards to the hiring of apprentices from a valid Apprenticeship Program 
(recognized by the State Apprenticeship Council) for the applicable type of public work (as defined in NRS 338.010). 

  A Prime/Bidder and/or Subcontractor engaged in a Vertical Construction who employs a worker pursuant to NRS 338.040 
shall use one or more apprentices for at least 10 percent of total hours of labor in each apprenticed craft or type of work 
to be performed which more than three workers are employed on a public work.  

A Prime/BIDDER and/or Subcontractor engaged in a Horizontal Construction who employs a worker pursuant to NRS 
338.040 shall use one or more apprentices for at least 3 percent of total hours of labor in each apprenticed craft or type 
of work to be performed which more than three workers are employed on a public work. 

3.3 APPRENTICE FORMS AND WAIVERS 

1. All Prime/BIDDERS must submit with Bid a completed Project Workforce Checklist - Prime, provided by 
OWNER, BID ATTACHMENT 8.  All trade/craft shall be checked that will be applicable to the project. 

 
The required forms and supporting documentation noted in Subsection 2 and 3 below, may be sent via email 
to melannie.bledsoe@umcsn.com, or hand delivered to 901 Rancho Lane, Ste. 265, Las Vegas, NV 89106, 
attention to Contract Management Division. 

2. The three apparent lowest bidders must submit a completed and signed Project Workforce Checklist - 
Subcontractors, BID ATTACHMENT 9, for all named (used) subcontractors by 5:00 p.m. the next business day 
following the bid opening. All trade/craft shall be checked that will be applicable to the project. 

 
3. Within 10 business days after bid opening, the three apparent lowest bidders must submit BID ATTACHMENT 

10, Request for Waiver form, provided by OWNER, for the Prime/BIDDER and/or all named (used) 
subcontractors. All supporting documentation for waiver(s) must be submitted with the Request for Waiver 
form. If waivers are not needed, please indicate such on the Request for Waiver form, and submit as 

Page 480 of 853

mailto:melannie.bledsoe@umcsn.com,


                           Bid No. 2023-15 
UMC Southern Highlands PC/QC Expansion PWP-CL-2024-133  

General Conditions 8 
Chapter 2   

directed above. 
 

A Request for Waiver (for cause) can be submitted if: 

1. No Apprentices are available from an apprenticeship program with Clark County as recognized by the State 
Apprenticeship Council; or 

 
2. A request for Apprentices was denied, or not acted upon with five (5) business days of submission; or 

 
3. The project requires the performance of uniquely complex or hazardous work. 

 
Failure to submit the Workforce/Apprentice utilization forms and supporting documentation described above, within the 
required time, may deem the bid non-responsive. 

Any or all of these forms will be required for any additional subcontractors added during the course of construction. 
 

3.4 STATE OF NEVADA LEGAL HOLIDAYS 

Prime Contractor is advised that below there are 10 firm legal holidays and 11 when December 31st falls on Friday. 
 

Martin Luther King's Birthday 
Presidents’ Day 
Memorial Day 
Independence Day 
Labor Day 
Nevada Admission Day 
Veteran's Day 
Thanksgiving Day and the Friday After 
Christmas Day 
New Year's Day 

Prime Contractor is required to verify dates with OWNER’S representative prior to commencement of the Project. 

3.5 COPELAND ANTI-KICK BACK ACT 

Prime Contractor shall comply with the Copeland Anti-Kick Back Act (18 U.S.C. 874) as supplemented in the Department 
of Labor Regulations (29 CFR Part 3). This act provides that each Prime Contractor or Subcontractor shall be prohibited 
from inducing by any means, any person employed in the construction, completion or repair of public work, to give up 
any part of the compensation to which it is otherwise entitled. 

3.6 EMPLOYMENT OF UNAUTHORIZED ALIENS 

In accordance with the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, SUCCESSFUL BIDDER agrees that it will not 
employ unauthorized aliens in the performance of this contract. 

3.7 NON-DISCRIMINATION / FAIR EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES 

A. Discrimination: 

The BCC is committed to promoting full and equal business opportunity for all persons doing business in Clark 
County. SUCCESSFUL BIDDER acknowledges that OWNER has an obligation to ensure that public funds are 
not used to subsidize private discrimination. SUCCESSFUL BIDDER recognizes that if they or their 
subcontractors are found guilty by an appropriate authority of refusing to hire or do business with an individual 
or company due to reasons of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, 
age, disability, national origin, or any other protected status, OWNER may declare SUCCESSFUL BIDDER 
in breach of the contract, terminate the contract, and designate Successful BIDDER as non-responsible. 

B. Fair Employment Practices: 

In connection with the performance of work under this contract, Prime Contractor agrees not to discriminate 
against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, creed, color, national origin, sex sexual 
orientation, gender identity or expression, or age. Such agreement shall include, but not be limited to, 
the following: employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff or 
termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation, and selection for training, including apprenticeship. 

 
Prime Contractor further agrees to insert this provision in all subcontracts hereunder, except subcontracts 
for standard commercial supplies or raw materials. Any violation of such provision by a Prime Contractor shall 
constitute a material breach of this Contract. 

3.8 PREFERENTIAL EMPLOYMENT 

All contractors shall comply with the preferential employment provisions of NRS 338.130 for public works contracts. 
This law requires that, when the qualifications of applicants are equal, that preference be given: First, to honorably 
discharged soldiers, sailors, and marines of the United States who are citizens of the State of Nevada; second, to other 
citizens of the State of Nevada. If the provisions of NRS 338.130 are not complied with by Prime Contractor, this contract 
is void, and any failure or refusal to comply with any of the provisions of NRS 338.130 renders this contract void. 

Page 481 of 853



                           Bid No. 2023-15 
UMC Southern Highlands PC/QC Expansion PWP-CL-2024-133  

General Conditions 9 
Chapter 2   

3.9 SUBCONTRACTOR/INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

A. Prime Contractor represents that it is fully experienced and properly qualified to perform the class of work 
provided for herein, and that it is properly licensed, equipped, organized and financed to perform such work. 
Prime Contractor shall act as an independent Contractor and not as the agent of OWNER in performing 
the Contract. Prime Contractor shall maintain complete control over its employees and all of its Subcontractors. 
Nothing contained in this Contract or any subcontract awarded by Prime Contractor shall create any 
contractual relationship between any such Subcontractor and OWNER. Prime Contractor shall perform all 
work in accordance with its own methods subject to compliance with the Contract. 

 

B. Any subcontract entered into by Prime Contractor and its Subcontractor or Material Supplier shall not create 
any contractual relationship between OWNER and Subcontractor or Material Supplier. It is Prime Contractor’s 
responsibility to ensure all subcontract agreements and material supply contracts comply with the terms and 
conditions set forth in this Contract and applicable Statutes. If Prime Contractor submitted with its Bid a signed 
and notarized Affidavit, Prime Contractor must include in each contract between Prime Contractor and 
Subcontractor the apportionment of Bidder’s Preference Liquidated Damages assessed (General Conditions 
Section 1,1.2(D). 

 
Prime Contractor shall not substitute a subcontractor for any portion of the Work which was previously 
indicated would be performed by Prime Contractor unless such substitution meets the requirements of NRS 
Chapter 338. 

 
C. Bidders  are  encouraged  to  refer  to  the  following  website  for  information  regarding  sub-contractors: 

http://www.sumnumarketing.com/wp-content/uploads/2019/06/Local-Small-Business-DirectoryREVISED- 
053019.pdf 

 
3.10 REPORTING OF ALLEGED VIOLATIONS OF THE LAW 

Prime Contractor should have a written policy that protects employees from retaliation for reporting alleged violations of 
the law. 

3.11 LABOR STRIFE 

Prime Contractor shall not cause or condone labor strife that may jeopardize the timely and efficient completion of 
public construction projects. 

3.12 ELIGIBILITY FOR PREFERENCE IN BIDDING 

OWNER shall award the Contract to the BIDDER who submits the best Bid as defined by NRS 338.147 and, in doing 
so will consider the BIDDER’S eligibility for a bidding preference as defined by NRS 338.147. Eligibility for the preference 
will be established if the BIDDER, at the time of Bid: 1) submits a valid certificate of eligibility from the State Contractor’s 
Board; and 2) submits the “Affidavit Pertaining to Preference Eligibility” form, attached hereto as Bid Attachment 7, 
within two (2) hours after the completion of the opening of the Bid by OWNER, included as part of the Bid Documents and 
hereafter incorporated into the Contract. A person who submitted a bid on the public work or an entity who believes that 
Prime Contractor who was awarded the contract for the public work is not entitled to receive preference in bidding on 
public works under Nevada Law may: 1) challenge the validity of the certificate of eligibility by filing a written objection 
with OWNER in compliance with NRS 338.147 (13) within three (3) business days after the Bid opening; or 2) file a 
written objection with OWNER setting forth proof or substantiating evidence to support the belief that Prime Contractor 
has failed to comply with NRS 338.147. In evaluating an objection to the certificate of eligibility, OWNER shall comply 
with the requirements of NRS 338.147 (14). 

3.13 BIDDERS RECEIVING PREFERENCE 

A. If Prime Contractor submitted, within two (2) hours after the completion of the opening of the Bid, a signed 
and notarized “Affidavit Pertaining to Preference Eligibility” form, and fails to comply with any of the 
requirements certified in the Affidavit, such failure is a material breach of the Contract and entitles OWNER 
to liquidated damages in the amount of one percent (1%) of the Contract Price. 

 
B. A person who submitted a Bid who believes that Prime Contractor that obtained a preference bidding by 

submitting within two (2) hours after the completion of the opening of the bids a signed and notarized Affidavit 
has failed to comply with a requirement certified in the Affidavit, may file a “written objection” with OWNER 
that sets forth proof or substantiating evidence to support the belief of the person or entity that Prime Contractor 
has failed to comply. 

 
C. If OWNER receives a written objection from a person who submitted a Bid about a Prime Contractor who 

submitted an Affidavit within two (2) hours after the completion of the opening of the bids has failed to comply 
with a requirement certified in the Affidavit, OWNER shall determine whether the objection is accompanied by 
the required proof or substantiating evidence. If OWNER determines that the objection is not accompanied by 
the required proof or substantiating evidence, OWNER shall dismiss the objection. If OWNER determines that 
the objection is accompanied by the required proof or substantiating evidence or if OWNER on its own initiative 
determines that the required proof or substantiating evidence exists, OWNER shall determine that Prime 
Contractor has failed to comply with a requirement certified in his or her Affidavit, OWNER may seek to recover 
by civil action liquidated damages for material breach of the Contract in the amount of one percent (1%) of the 

Page 482 of 853

http://www.sumnumarketing.com/wp-content/uploads/2019/06/Local-Small-Business-DirectoryREVISED-
http://www.sumnumarketing.com/wp-content/uploads/2019/06/Local-Small-Business-DirectoryREVISED-


                           Bid No. 2023-15 
UMC Southern Highlands PC/QC Expansion PWP-CL-2024-133  

General Conditions 10 
Chapter 2   

Contract Price. 
 

D. If Prime Contractor submitted within two (2) hours after the completion of the bid opening of the Bid, a signed 
and notarized Affidavit, Prime Contractor must: 

 
1. Each Contract between Prime Contractor and a Subcontractor must provide for the apportionment of 

liquidated damages to be assessed if a person other than Prime Contractor is responsible for a breach of 
the Affidavit. The apportionment of liquidated damages must be in proportion to the responsibility of each 
party for the breach. 

 

2. Submit copies of the vehicle registration for all vehicles used primarily for the public work. For vehicles 
that are not registered in the State of Nevada, submit documentation confirming that the vehicle is 
registered and partially apportioned to Nevada pursuant to the International Registration Plan, as adopted 
by the DMV pursuant to NRS 706.826. The documentation required by this subparagraph shall be 
provided no later than 30 calendar days following the first use of a vehicle on the Site and shall be 
supplemented as necessary during the course of the work to comply with the requirements certified by 
the Affidavit. Attached is a sample form that may be used to submit the documentation. See Exhibit J. 

 
3. Submit a monthly report of all Suppliers of materials used for the Project with company name and address. 

Report shall be submitted no later than 15 calendar days following the end of each month during the 
course of the Work.  A report showing the information in cumulative summary form shall be provided as a 
condition of Final Completion. See Exhibit K. 

 
SECTION 4: SITE SAFETY AND SECURITY 

4.1 RESPONSIBILITY FOR WORK SECURITY 

A. Prime Contractor shall at all times conduct all operations under the Contract in a manner to avoid the risk of 
loss, theft, or damage by vandalism, sabotage or damage of other means to any property. Prime Contractor shall 
promptly take all reasonable precautions which are necessary and adequate against any conditions which 
involve a risk of loss, theft or damage to its property, OWNER'S property, and the work site. Prime 
Contractor shall continuously inspect all its work, materials, equipment, and facilities to discover and 
determine any such conditions and shall be solely responsible for discovery, determination, and correction of 
any such conditions. 

 
B. Prime Contractor shall comply with all applicable laws and regulations. Prime Contractor shall cooperate with 

OWNER on all security matters and shall promptly comply with any project security requirements established 
by OWNER. Such compliance with these security requirements shall not relieve Prime Contractor of its 
responsibility for maintaining proper security for the above-noted items, nor shall it be construed as limiting in 
any manner Prime Contractor's obligation to undertake reasonable action as required to establish and maintain 
secure conditions at the site. 

 
C. Prime Contractor shall prepare and maintain accurate reports of incidents of loss, theft or vandalism and shall 

furnish these reports to OWNER in a timely manner. 

4.2 CONTRACTOR SITE RESPONSIBILITIES 

A. Unless otherwise specifically provided in the Contract, Prime Contractor shall not do any work that would 
disrupt or otherwise interfere with the operation of any pipeline, telephone, electric transmission line, ditch or 
other structure, nor enter upon lands in their natural state until approved by OWNER. Before Prime Contractor 
begins such work, it shall give due notice to OWNER of its intention to start such work. Prime Contractor shall 
not be entitled to any extension of time, or any extra compensation on account of any postponement, 
interference or delay caused by any such line, ditch or structure on or adjacent to the site of work. 

 
B. Prime Contractor shall preserve and protect all cultivated and planted areas, and vegetation such as trees, 

plants, shrubs and grass on or adjacent to the premises, which, as determined by OWNER, do not 
unreasonably interfere with the performance of its work through operation of equipment or stockpiling of 
materials. All costs in connection with any repairs or restoration necessary or required by reason of any such 
damage shall be borne by Prime Contractor. 

 
C. OWNER reserves the right to permit access to the site by other contractors if necessary. Prime Contractor 

shall cooperate and coordinate with OWNER as needed. 

4.3 CONSTRUCTION SAFETY 

Neither OWNER nor its employees, agents, Architect/Engineer or construction management firm shall be responsible for 
safety on the project site, including but not limited to, providing or assuring a safe place for the performance of 
construction, methods of construction employed by any Prime Contractor, subcontractor, supplier or other entity, or 
their partners, officers, agents, employees or volunteers or access, visits, use work, travel or occupancy by any person. 

 
A. General 

 

1. Prime Contractor shall be responsible for initiating, maintaining and supervising all safety precautions and 

Page 483 of 853



                           Bid No. 2023-15 
UMC Southern Highlands PC/QC Expansion PWP-CL-2024-133  

General Conditions 11 
Chapter 2   

programs in connection with the Work. Prime Contractor shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, 
rules, regulations and lawful orders of any public authority bearing on the safety of persons or property or 
their protection from damage, injury or loss. 

 
2. In an emergency affecting the safety of life or of the Work or of adjoining property, Prime Contractor shall 

follow the instructions of OWNER or Consulting Architect or Engineer and, in the absence of such 
instruction, shall act at its discretion to prevent such threatened loss or injury. 

 

B. Protection of Persons 
 

1. Prime Contractor shall take all reasonable precautions for the safety of all employees on the Work and all 
other persons who may be affected thereby. Prime Contractor shall designate a responsible member of 
its organization at the Project site whose duty shall be prevention of accidents. 

 
2. Except as otherwise stated in the Contract Documents, if Prime Contractor encounters on the Project site 

material reasonably believed to be asbestos, lead, or polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB), that Prime 
Contractor shall immediately stop work in the area affected and give notice to OWNER and any other 
appropriate entity of the condition. Work in the affected area shall not be resumed without written direction 
by OWNER. 

4.4 CLEANING UP 

A. Prime Contractor shall, at all times, keep the work area in a neat, clean, and safe condition. Upon completion 
of any portion of the work, Prime Contractor shall promptly remove all of its equipment, construction plant, 
temporary structures and surplus materials not to be used at or near the same location during later stages of 
work. Upon completion of the work and before final payment is made, Prime Contractor shall, at its expense, 
satisfactorily dispose of all plant, buildings, rubbish, unused materials, and other equipment and materials 
belonging to it or used in the performance of the work, and Prime Contractor shall leave the premises and work 
site in a neat, clean, and safe condition. In the event of Prime Contractor's failure to comply with the above 
requirements may be accomplished by OWNER at Prime Contractor's expense. 

 
B. In the case of Public Works Off-Site Construction Reference to use of completed portions of the work, shall 

conform to Section 107 of the Uniform Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction, Off-Site 
Improvements, Clark County Area, Nevada, Third Edition, and revisions thereto. 

4.5 FIRE PREVENTION 

A. Prime Contractor shall comply with all Federal, State, and local laws and regulations pertaining to burning, fire 
prevention, and control within or adjacent to the project. Necessary precautions to avoid and eliminate fire 
hazards shall be the responsibility of Prime Contractor. 

 
B. All tarpaulins used for any purpose during construction of any work shall be made of material resistant to fire, 

water, and weather and shall bear UL labels. Lighting of any fires on premises is strictly forbidden. 

C. Prime Contractor shall provide portable fire extinguishers compatible with the hazard of each work area and 
shall instruct its personnel in their location and use. Wherever welding and burning are conducted, inflammable 
materials shall be protected, and a fire watch shall be provided by Prime Contractor to be present during the 
burning and welding operation to ensure that protective measures are taken and no fires result from such 
operation. The fire watch shall have fire extinguisher equipment readily available and must be knowledgeable 
regarding proper use. 

SECTION 5: PROJECT COSTS AND WAGES 

5.1 CHANGE ORDERS 
 

Prime Contractor shall comply with all provisions and conditions which are required by the Contract for change order(s) 
which increase the Contract amount. Prime Contractor represents that change order(s) will include all related costs prior 
to presentation to OWNER for consideration. Retroactive change order(s) will be rejected. Work which is specifically 
required by OWNER or its representative, and which is in addition to work required by the Contract, will be charged 
against a formal change order executed by both parties. Then the work defined shall commence as directed by 
OWNER's representative. The total of all change order(s) for the project may not exceed fifteen percent (15%) of the 
original Contract amount without prior approval by the Governing Body, with the following conditions: 

 
A. Prime Contractor shall submit proposals and/or billings for materials and/or labor for all additional work 

requested on the following basis, and in all cases, Prime Contractor shall conform to the following requirements, 
and costs shall be limited to those set forth below: 

 
1. Products and Materials 

 
a. The costs of products and materials to Prime Contractor or Subcontractor, less any applicable 

trade discounts. 
 

Page 484 of 853



                           Bid No. 2023-15 
UMC Southern Highlands PC/QC Expansion PWP-CL-2024-133  

General Conditions 12 
Chapter 2   

b. Where the Prime Contractor supplies products and materials to OWNER directly, the Prime Contractor 
will be allowed to add a maximum of ten percent (10%) overhead and profit in its billing to OWNER. 
Where the Subcontractor supplies products or materials to OWNER, through the Prime Contractor, 
the Prime Contractor will be allowed to add a maximum of ten percent (10%) overhead and profit for 
the Subcontractor, and above that, five percent (5%) overhead and profit for itself in its billing to 
OWNER. 

 
c. OWNER reserves the right to request copies of any invoice(s), including those from the originating 

supplier(s), Subcontractor(s), or manufacturer(s). 
 

d. No overhead and profit will be allowed on any applicable taxes. 

2. Labor 
 

a. Where the Prime Contractor supplies labor to OWNER directly, the Prime Contractor will be allowed to 
add a maximum of fifteen percent (15%) overhead and profit in its billing to OWNER. 

 
Labor costs shall be in compliance with the prevailing wage rates as specified in Section 3, Labor, 
3.1 Prevailing Wages. 

 
b. Where the Subcontractor supplies labor to OWNER, through the Prime Contractor, the Prime 

Contractor will be allowed to add a maximum of fifteen percent (15%) overhead and profit for the 
subcontractor; and above that, a maximum of ten percent (10%) overhead and profit for itself in its 
billing to OWNER. 

 
Labor costs shall be in compliance with the prevailing wage rates as specified in Section 3, Labor, 
3.1 Prevailing Wages. 

 
c. OWNER reserves the right to request copies of any invoice(s) or time sheet(s) relevant to labor 

charged. 
 

d. Should a contract originally awarded for less than $100,000 be increased over that amount through 
the issuance of change order(s), Prime Contractor shall then comply with all provisions and 
requirements of the Prevailing Wage Rates and represents that change order(s) will include labor and 
all related costs prior to presentation to OWNER for consideration. Retroactive change order(s) will 
be rejected. 

 
5.2 RELEASE OF RETENTION 

 

Not more than ninety-five percent (95%) of the amount of any progress payment must be paid until fifty percent (50%) 
of the work required by Prime Contractor has been performed. The amount of retention with respect to progress 
payments shall be five percent (5%) until the work is fifty percent (50%) complete. After the work is fifty percent (50%) 
complete, no further amount shall be retained from future progress payments, provided Prime Contractor is making 
satisfactory progress. In the event of unsatisfactory progress, OWNER shall retain five percent (5%) from any progress 
payments. OWNER, or OWNER representative shall determine when the work is fifty percent (50%) complete. 

 
The specified retention amount will be released following OWNER’S issuance/approval of the Notice of Completion, 
provided that the following conditions are met: 

 
A. All punch list items have been completed. 

 
B. A Certificate of Occupancy or temporary Certificate of Occupancy has been received (if applicable). 

 
C. Final record drawings and specifications have been submitted (if applicable). 

 
D. No known premium delinquency exists with Prime Contractor’s workers’ compensation insurer. 

 
E. All required documentation has been submitted to OWNER and no request has been made to OWNER by the 

Labor Commissioner, to hold retention. 
 

OWNER may at its discretion, withhold only the estimated portion of the retention monies needed to finish any of the 
five uncompleted conditions as specified above, and only with written notice to Prime Contractor. The difference of the 
retention may then be paid.  

SECTION 6: PROJECT COMPLETION 

6.1 USE OF COMPLETED PORTIONS OF WORK 
 

A. Whenever, as determined by OWNER, any portion of work performed by Prime Contractor is in a condition 
suitable for use, OWNER may initiate a certificate of substantial completion for that portion and take possession 
of or use such portion. 

Page 485 of 853



                           Bid No. 2023-15 
UMC Southern Highlands PC/QC Expansion PWP-CL-2024-133  

General Conditions 13 
Chapter 2   

 

B. Such use by OWNER shall in no case be construed as constituting final acceptance or acceptance of work not 
completed, and shall neither relieve Prime Contractor of any of its responsibilities under the Contract, nor act 
as a waiver by OWNER of any of the conditions thereof, provided that Prime Contractor shall not be liable for 
the cost of repairs, rework or renewals which may be required due to ordinary wear and tear resulting from 
such use. However, if such use increases the cost, or delays the completion of remaining portions of work, 
Prime Contractor shall be entitled to an equitable adjustment mutually agreed upon prior to OWNER taking 
possession. 

C. If, as a result of Prime Contractor's failure to comply with the provisions of the Contract, such use proves to be 
unsatisfactory to OWNER, OWNER shall have the right to continue such use until such portion of work can, 
without injury to OWNER, be taken out of service for correction of defects, errors, omissions, or replacement 
of unsatisfactory materials or equipment, as necessary for such work to comply with contract; provided that the 
period of such operation or use pending completion of appropriate remedial action shall not exceed twelve (12) 
months, unless otherwise mutually agreed upon in writing between the parties. 

 
D. Prime Contractor shall not use any permanently installed equipment unless such use is approved by OWNER 

in writing. Where Prime Contractor's written request is granted for the use of certain equipment, Prime 
Contractor shall properly use and maintain, and upon completion of its use, and at its expense, recondition 
such equipment to the satisfaction of OWNER. 

 
E. If OWNER furnished an operator for such equipment, such operator's services shall be performed under the 

complete direction and control of Prime Contractor and shall be considered Prime Contractor's employee for 
all purposes other than the payment of such operator's wages, workers' compensation or other benefits paid 
directly or indirectly by OWNER. 

 
F. Use of completed portions of off-site improvements shall be done in accordance with Section 107 of the 

Uniform Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction, Off-Site Improvements, Clark County Area, 
Nevada, Third Edition, and revisions thereto. 

6.2 Punchlist 

Inspections for substantial or final completion may be requested by the Contractor only after the status of completion has 
been reviewed with Owner and Owner agrees/concurs that the work is ready for inspection.  When the Contractor 
determines that the work, or a potion thereof which Owner agrees to accept separately, is substantially complete in 
accordance with the Contract, the Contractor shall prepare and submit to Owner and Architect a list of items to be 
completed or corrected from the comments provided at the inspection and establish a timeline for completion of items 
appearing on the “punch list”. The failure to include any items on the list does not alter the responsibility of the Contractor 
to complete all work in accordance with the Contract. Scheduled completion of the punch list shall not exceed thirty (30) 
calendar days from date of Owner’s receipt of the “punch list”. 

6.3 Correction of Work 

A. Covered Work. Covered work includes any work that is concealed by materials that prevent the work from being 
observed..  If any work should be covered prior to a specified or requested inspection, the Contractor shall 
uncover the work for observation and shall replace same at no cost to Owner. If any work has been covered 
which Owner has not specifically requested to observe prior to being covered, Owner may request to see such 
work and it shall be uncovered by the Contractor. If the uncovered work is found to be in accordance with the 
Contract, the cost of uncovering and replacement shall, by appropriate Change Order, be charged to Owner. If 
the uncovered work is not in accordance with the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall pay such costs. 

B. Rejected Work. The Contractor shall promptly correct all work rejected as defective or as failing to conform to 
the Contract, whether observed before or after final completion, and whether or not fabricated, installed, or 
completed. The Contractor shall bear all costs of correcting such rejected work, including the cost for additional 
services of the Architect when applicable. The Contractor shall bear the cost of making good all work of separate 
contractors destroyed or damaged by removal or correction. 

C. Self-Perform. If the Contractor does not remove defective or non-conforming work within a reasonable time, 
Owner may remove it and may store the materials or equipment at the expense of the Contractor. If the 
Contractor does not pay the cost of such removal and storage within ten (10) calendar days thereafter, Owner 
may upon ten (10) additional calendar days written  notice sell such work  at auction or at private sale and shall 
account for the net proceeds thereof, after deducting all costs that should have been borne by the Contractor 
including compensation for additional professional services. If such proceeds of sale do not cover all costs which 
the Contractor should have borne, the difference shall be charged to the Contractor and an appropriate Change 
Order shall be issued. If the payments then or thereafter due the Contractor are not sufficient to cover such 
amount the Contractor shall pay the difference to Owner. 

D. Acceptance. If Owner prefers to accept defective or non-conforming work, Owner may do so instead of requiring 
its removal or correction, in which case a Change Order will be issued to reflect an appropriate reduction in the 
Contract amount, or, if the amount is determined after final payment, it shall be paid to Owner by the Contractor. 

E. Damage. All damage or loss to any property caused in whole or in part by the Contractor, any Subcontractor, 
anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or by anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, 

Page 486 of 853



                           Bid No. 2023-15 
UMC Southern Highlands PC/QC Expansion PWP-CL-2024-133  

General Conditions 14 
Chapter 2   

shall be remedied by the Contractor, except damage or loss attributable to errors and/or omissions in the 
drawings or specifications. 

6.4 RECORD DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS 

A. Progress Records: During construction, Prime Contractor shall keep a marked-up, up-to-date set of drawings 
showing as-built conditions on the site as an accurate record of all deviations between work as shown and 
work as installed.  

B. Final Records: When specified or required upon completion of work, Prime Contractor shall furnish to OWNER 
a complete set of marked-up as-builts with “RECORD” clearly printed on each sheet. OWNER, at its expense, 
will furnish Prime Contractor with drawings for mark-up by Prime Contractor. Prime Contractor shall accurately 
and neatly transfer all deviations from progress as-builts, to final as-builts. 

6.5 TESTING, INSPECTIONS, AND FINAL ACCEPTANCE 

A. When Prime Contractor considers that all work under the Contract is complete and ready for final inspection, 
Prime Contractor shall inform OWNER in writing and Owner within a reasonable period of time shall make such 
inspection. When the results of inspection and testing satisfy OWNER that all work under the Contract is 
completed and in accordance with the requirements of this Contract, including any outstanding items after 
substantial completion, OWNER shall initiate the Notice of Completion process. Work will not be considered to 
meet the definition of final completion if any of the following conditions exist: 

1. Any final inspection by the Owner has not been passed. 

2. Any required final Certificate of Occupancy has not been received by Owner. 
 

B. Owner Right to Inspect. Owner and its authorized representatives shall be permitted to inspect the work 
materials, payrolls, records of personnel, invoices for materials and other relevant data and work of the 
Contractor and Subcontractors. Such inspection by Owner or his authorized representatives shall not be 
considered a warranty as to the fitness or acceptability of the work, materials, payrolls, records of personnel, 
invoices for materials and other relevant data and work, and shall not relieve the Contractor or his Subcontractors 
of their obligations or duties required by the Contract. 
 

C. The date of final acceptance of the project shall be the date upon which OWNER accepts and issues a Notice of 
Completion for the project. 

 
D. All warranties, guarantees and other applicable requirements designated in the Contract documents shall 

commence on the date of final acceptance of the project by OWNER as defined herein except that OWNER, 
upon written request, may approve earlier commencement dates for system, equipment, or other specific 
items of work. 

6.6 CONTRACT TERMINATION 

A. Termination by OWNER for Cause 
 

1. OWNER may terminate the Contract for Construction if Prime Contractor: 
 

a) Fails to maintain Bonding, Nevada State Contractor's Board License, Worker’s Compensation 
Insurance, insurance coverage for limits as defined in the contract documents; or 

 
b) Persistently or repeatedly refuses or fails to supply enough properly skilled workers or proper 

materials; or 
 

c) Persistently disregards laws, ordinances, or rules, regulations or order of a public authority having 
jurisdiction; or 

 
d) Has otherwise materially breached the Contract. 

 

2. When any of the above reasons exist, OWNER may without prejudice to any other rights or remedies of 
OWNER and after giving Prime Contractor and Prime Contractor's Surety, if any, 7 business days’ advance 
written notice, terminate the contract with Prime Contractor and may, subject to any prior rights of the 
Surety: 

 
a) Take possession of the site and of all materials, equipment, tools, and construction equipment and 

machinery thereon owned by Prime Contractor; 
 

b) Accept assignment of Subcontractors pursuant to this Contract (contingent assignment of 
subcontracts to OWNER if Contract is terminated); and, 

 
c) Finish the work by whatever reasonable method OWNER may deem expedient. 

 
3. When OWNER terminates the Contract for one of the reasons stated in this section “Termination by 

OWNER for Cause,” Prime Contractor shall be entitled to receive payment only on work completed 

Page 487 of 853



                           Bid No. 2023-15 
UMC Southern Highlands PC/QC Expansion PWP-CL-2024-133  

General Conditions 15 
Chapter 2   

and accepted by OWNER as of that termination date. 
 

4. If the costs of finishing the work, including expenses made necessary thereby, exceed the Contract 
amount, Prime Contractor shall pay the difference to OWNER. The amount to be paid to OWNER shall 
survive Termination of the Contract. 

 
B. Suspension by OWNER for Convenience 

 
1. OWNER may, without cause, order Prime Contractor in writing to suspend, delay or interrupt the work in 

whole or in part for such period of time as OWNER may determine. 
 

2. An adjustment shall be made for increase in the cost of performance of the requirements of the Contract 
documents, including profit on the increased cost of performance, caused by suspension, delay or 
interruption. No adjustment shall be made to the extent: 

 
a) That performance is, was or would have been so suspended, delayed or interrupted by another cause 

for which Prime Contractor is responsible; or 
 

b) That an equitable adjustment is made or denied under another provision of the Contract. 
 

3. Adjustments made in the cost of performance must have a mutually agreed fixed price. 
 

C. Termination for Convenience by OWNER 
 

Prior to, or during the performance of the work, OWNER reserves the right to terminate the contract for its 
convenience. Upon such an occurrence, the following procedures will be adhered to: 

 
1. OWNER will immediately notify the Architect/Engineer and/or Prime Contractor in writing specifying the 

effective termination date of the Contract. 
 

2. After receipt of the Notice of Termination, Prime Contractor shall immediately proceed with the 
following obligations, regardless of any delay in determining or adjusting any amounts due at the point 
in the Contract. 

 
a) Stop all work. 

 
b) Place no further subcontracts or orders for materials or services. 

 
c) Terminate all subcontracts. 

 
d) Cancel all material and equipment orders as applicable. 

 
e) Take action that is necessary to protect and preserve all property related to this Contract which is in 

the possession of Prime Contractor. 
 

3. Within 180 days of the date of the Notice of Termination, Prime Contractor shall submit a final termination 
settlement proposal to OWNER based upon costs incurred up to the date of termination, reasonable profit 
on work done only, and reasonable demobilization costs. If Prime Contractor fails to submit the proposal 
within the time allowed, OWNER may determine the amount due to Prime Contractor because of the 
termination and shall pay the determined amount to Prime Contractor. 

  
SECTION 7: PROJECT CONFLICTS 

7.1 DISPUTES 

All claims, disputes or other controversy that may arise between OWNER and Prime Contractor relating to any provisions 
of this Contract, or its performance, which have not been waived by the making and acceptance of final payment or any 
progress payment, must be attempted to be resolved by the parties by informal negotiations prior to the initiation of 
mediation. In the event such claim, dispute or controversy cannot be resolved by informal negotiations within forty-five 
(45) calendar days after either party made a written request for such informal negotiations, the parties shall, pursuant to 
NRS 338.150, attempt to resolve the claim, dispute or controversy by non-binding mediation prior to initiating judicial 
action. If the claim, dispute or controversy is not resolved by non-binding mediation, then the parties may proceed with 
judicial action in District Court. In no way is this Contract intended or to be interpreted to require arbitration. 

 
In the event Prime Contractor files a claim in District Court, pursuant to one or more provisions of NRS 338.640, and 
OWNER prevails in the Court’s decision, then Prime Contractor shall pay OWNER’S attorneys’ fees. Further, Prime 
Contractor acknowledges that NRS 338.640 is contained within Nevada’s Prompt Pay Act and, thus, fee-shifting 
provisions apply only to actions involving ordinary progress payments, and not claims for additional compensation or 
additional days beyond this contract. 

 
OWNER and Prime Contractor, in any legal proceeding, including this mediation, an arbitration or Court action, shall 
bear their own fees and costs. This specifically extends to any pass-through claims asserted by or on behalf of 

Page 488 of 853



                           Bid No. 2023-15 
UMC Southern Highlands PC/QC Expansion PWP-CL-2024-133  

General Conditions 16 
Chapter 2   

subcontractor. OWNER shall not be liable for fees or costs as an element of consequential damages. 

7.2 NOTICE OF NON-BINDING MEDIATION 

After the expiration of the forty-five (45) days for informal negotiations, as set forth in Item 7.1 above; either OWNER 
or Prime Contractor may initiate mediation by providing written notice to the other party against whom a claim, 
dispute or controversy is being made by submitting the following: 

 
A. A written demand by the party initiating the mediation that the claim, dispute, or other controversy be referred 

to a mediator; 

B. The names, addresses and telephone numbers of the parties; 

C. A reference to any contract provisions from which the claim, dispute or controversy arises; 

D. A complete description and a specific statement of the claim(s), dispute(s) or controversy(ies) and a showing 
of entitlement to relief; 

E. The relief or remedy sought and the amount of money claimed; 

F. If Prime Contractor is the initiating party, a copy of Prime Contractor’s documents generated in preparation or 
determination of prices included in the bid as required by NRS 338.140(1)(d); 

G. If Prime Contractor is the initiating party and if the claim, dispute or controversy is made by a subcontractor, a 
written statement by Prime Contractor that it agrees with the merits and the amount of the claim; 

H. If Prime Contractor submits a total cost or modified cost claim, dispute or controversy then Prime Contractor 
must submit documents showing: 1) that the nature of the particular losses make it impossible or highly 
impractical to determine the losses with a reasonable degree of accuracy; 2) that the bid was realistic; 3) 
that the actual costs are reasonable; 4) that Prime Contractor was not responsible for the added expenses; 
and 5) that OWNER, and not anyone else, is responsible for the additional cost; and 

I. If Prime Contractor is the initiating party, it must submit the written demand of mediation to OWNER in the 
time period set forth in the claim’s presentment statute of NRS 244.250. 

J. If Prime Contractor is the initiating party of the claim, dispute or controversy, Prime Contractor shall certify in 
writing that the claim is made in good faith, that the supporting data is accurate and complete to the best of 
Prime Contractor’s knowledge and belief, and that the amount requested accurately reflects the Contract 
adjustment for which Prime Contractor believes OWNER is liable. 

7.3 SELECTION OF MEDIATOR 

The mediator shall be chosen by mutual agreement of the parties. 

7.4 COST OF THE MEDIATION 

The fees and expenses of the independent private mediator shall be shared equally by OWNER and Prime Contractor. 
OWNER and Prime Contractor shall each pay their own costs and expenses, including, but not limited to, expert, and 
attorney fees incurred in the mediation of any claim, dispute, or controversy, including, but not limited to, their own costs 
of preparation of, and presentation of all claims prior to, and through the mediation period. Neither OWNER nor Prime 
Contractor shall be entitled to an award of interest. 

7.5 LOCATION OF THE MEDIATION 

The mediation shall take place at a location designated by OWNER at an OWNER-owned facility. 

7.6 MEDIATOR AGREEMENT 

The parties shall enter into an agreement with the mediator that will include, among other provisions, the mediator’s 
fees and costs, the mediator’s responsibilities, and the mediator’s model standards of conduct. The parties agree to 
propose that the mediator enter into an agreement in substantial form as that attached hereto as Exhibit C, prior to 
serving in any capacity as a mediator. 

7.7 MEDIATION PROCEEDING 

A. The parties and the mediator shall agree on the date of the mediation and time of the mediation. Unless the 
parties and the mediators mutually agree otherwise, the mediation shall take place within ninety (90) days 
after execution of the mediator agreement. 

B. Either party may be represented by an attorney. Representation is not required. Parties are expected to have 
present at the mediation an officer, partner, employee or other person authorized to make decisions regarding 
the resolution of the dispute, claim or controversy. Prime Contractor acknowledges that OWNER is a public 
body and any settlement agreed to by its authorized representatives is subject to approval by the Governing 
Board and/or Board of County Commissioners. 

C. The mediation shall consist of one or more sessions totaling no more than sixteen (16) hours, unless otherwise 
mutually agreed to by the parties and the mediator. Unless the parties otherwise mutually agree, it shall be 
an irrebuttable presumption that efforts beyond sixteen (16) hours would be futile. 

D. Prior to the mediation session, on a date mutually agreed upon by the mediator and the parties, as set forth 

Page 489 of 853



                           Bid No. 2023-15 
UMC Southern Highlands PC/QC Expansion PWP-CL-2024-133  

General Conditions 17 
Chapter 2   

in Section 7.7(a), above, each party shall provide the mediator with a written memoranda addressing the facts, 
issues, legal arguments and damages related to the claim, dispute or controversy. In addition to the written 
statement, the parties shall produce all relevant information reasonably required by the mediator to understand 
the issues and positions presented. Each party will provide the written statement and supporting documents to 
the mediator only. The parties will not exchange the written statement and supporting documents. The written 
statement shall be double spaced, no smaller than twelve (12) characters per inch and not to exceed thirty (30) 
pages, unless mutually agreed to otherwise by the mediator and the parties. The party initiating the mediation 
shall provide the mediator with the information set forth in Section 7.2 of this section. 

E. The mediation shall be confidential and, as a condition of the nonbinding mediation, the parties shall enter into a 
Confidentiality Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit D prior to the commencement of the mediation 
proceeding. 

F. The mediation session will be private. Persons other than the parties and their representatives may attend 
only with the permission of both parties and the consent of the mediator. Unless mutually agreed to by the 
parties, OWNER and Prime Contractor, along with its authorized representatives, shall be the only participants 
in the mediation.  There shall be no stenographic record of the mediation process. 

G. The parties agree to assert all claims, disputes and controversies known to the parties in their respective 
written statements submitted to the mediator. 

H. The parties agree that opinions, recommendations, proposals, suggestions made or written, or views 
expressed, by the mediator will not be introduced, used or relied upon in any arbitral, judicial or other 
proceedings. 

7.8 TERMINATION OF MEDIATION 

The mediation shall be terminated: 

A. by the execution and approval of a settlement agreement by the parties; 

B. by declaration of the mediator that further efforts at the mediation are no longer worthwhile; 

C. after the completion of the mediation session if the parties do not settle, by a written declaration of a party or 
parties to the effect that the mediation proceedings are terminated; 

D. a party gives written notice of withdrawal; or 

E. when there has been no communication between the mediator and a party or a party’s representative for 
fourteen (14) days, at no fault of the mediator, following the conclusion of the mediation session. 

7.9 WORK IN PROGRESS 

At all times while the informal negotiations or mediation action is pending, Prime Contractor shall carry on with the work 
set forth in this Contract and maintain its progress schedule in accordance with the requirements of the Contract, unless 
OWNER exercises its right to terminate, pursuant to Section 6 of this Contract, or otherwise mutually agreed upon in 
writing by the parties. 

 
7.10 SECTION 105.17(c) OF THE UNIFORM STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR PUBLIC WORKS CONSTRUCTION 

OFF-SITE IMPROVEMENTS DOES NOT APPLY 

Section 105.17(c) of the Uniform Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction Off-Site Improvements, Clark 
County Area, Nevada, current edition and all revisions through date of advertisement, does not apply to this Contract. 
That section is overridden and controlled by Section 7 of the General Conditions of this Contract. 

SECTION 8: FORCE MAJEURE 

8.1 FORCE MAJEURE 

Prime Contractor shall be excused from performance of the work during the time and to the extent that it is prevented 
from obtaining, delivering, or performing, by acts of God, pandemic, fire, war, loss, or shortage of transportation facilities, 
terms and conditions Specific lockout or commandeering of raw materials, products, plants or facilities by the 
government. Prime Contractor shall provide OWNER satisfactory evidence that non-performance is due to other than 
fault or negligence on its part. 
 

 

Page 490 of 853



 

Special Conditions 1  

SPECIAL CONDITIONS 
BID NO. 2023-15 

UMC SOUTHERN HIGHLANDS PC/QC EXPANSION PWP-CL-2024-133 
 

1. PRE-CONSTRUCTION CONFERENCE 
 

A. A Pre-Construction Conference shall be held after the award of the contract and SUCCESSFUL BIDDER 
has submitted all post award submittals. OWNER’S representative shall schedule this meeting. 

 
B. SUCCESSFUL BIDDER and all subcontractors are required to attend the Pre-Construction Conference to 

discuss this project, requirements, and all associated required documents. The Notice to Proceed will not be 
issued until all parties involved in the project have completed and returned the required forms. Successful 
BIDDER is responsible for attendance of all subcontractors at the Pre-Construction Conference and their 
submission of the required forms. 

 
C. Prime Contractor shall provide all submittals requested within five calendar days from the date of the 

Pre- Construction Conference. If Prime Contractor does not provide submittals on or before the 5th calendar 
day, it will pay over to OWNER the amount of $100.00 per day as liquidated damages. 

 
D. The Prime Contractor shall be able to provide the OWNER, at OWNER's request, evidence of successful 

experience in working in an operating Hospital environment and knowledge of ICRA's 
 

2. SPECIAL WORK CONSTRAINTS 
 

a) All work performed under the Contract will only be allowed under OWNER-approved work and safety plans. 
  
b) The SUCCESSFUL BIDDER is required to attend any progress meetings as well as any required Safety meetings, 

at time(s) to be mutually determined at the Pre-Construction Conference.  
 
c) The SUCCESSFUL BIDDER is to follow all Infection Control measures in the work areas; negative pressure, dust 

control, and constant housekeeping to prevent the spread of dust.  
 
d) Off-Site parking will be provided for the SUCCESSFUL BIDDER and Subcontractor(s). The parking is located at 

625 Shadow Lane, 89102 (Clark County Health District Facility). The Successful BIDDER and Subcontractor(s) will 
not be allowed to park any vehicles on site, other than for temporary loading and unloading. 

 
e) Site Access will be restricted to badged SUCCESSFUL BIDDER and Subcontractor employees ONLY. OWNER 

will provide badges based upon a continually updated (daily) list to be provided to OWNER weekly by the Successful 
BIDDER. 

 
f) Infection Control Requirements - at BIDDER’s sole cost and expense, all BIDDER and Subcontractor personnel 

working onsite on this project are required to adhere to OWNER’s Infection Control requirements as outlined as 
outlined in the Infection Control Risk Assessment for Construction document (See Exhibit E attached) and as 
outlined below: 

 
i. Evidence of annual TB testing (2 years), a current 2 step TB test, or a current IGRA blood 

test.  Individuals with a positive TB test must have proof of a past positive test, a negative sign and 
symptom review and a negative chest x-ray within the last year if applicable. 

 
ii.. Current seasons’ Influenza vaccine is required for all BIDDER/subcontractor personnel. However, 

OWNER’s Infection Control Department reserves the right to require this vaccine at any time.  All 
personnel will follow OWNER’s EH6.5 Influenza Policy, available upon request. 

  (Influenza season is generally November through March).

Page 491 of 853



 

 

EXHIBIT A 
UMC Scope of Work 

 
Project Name: Southern Highlands PC/QC Expansion 
Project Address:  11860 Southern Highlands Pkwy., Las Vegas NV, 89141 
Project Location:  11860 Southern Highlands 

 
 

1.0 Scope  
 
Project is located at 11860 Southern Highlands Pkwy. The building is a single story building.  All RTU’s to 
be replaced as shown on the drawings for this project. Remove existing roof membrane for the entire 
building. Replace any damaged plywood substrate and insulation board as required.  Provide new 4-ply 
built-up roof membrane. Interior walls will be removed/rebuilt including new casework, flooring, ceilings, 
plumbing fixtures and surface finishes as shown on the drawings for the project. Lead lined walls are 
required at new Imaging/X-ray room. 
The work will be performed in a phased approach beginning with the Primary Care. 
There will be 1 week pause on interior work between completion of Phase 1 and commencement of 
Phase 2 to allow occupants to relocate from the Phase 2 area. 
Time of work will be during the normal business off shift hours Monday through Friday starting at 6:00pm. 
Project duration is scheduled to be 5 months from Notice to Proceed. 
Access controls for the building are provided by Honeywell. New card readers will need to be integrated 
with the access controls system. 

Statewide EDS is the provider for Fire Alarm for the building. Statewide is familiar with the sprinkler 
system but is not a proprietary contractor for necessary sprinkler work. 

 
1.1 BIDDER should be able to demonstrate experience working in an operational 

clinic. 
1.2 BIDDER will work with UMC to develop the best approach and most cost 

effective means for accomplishing the work.  
1.3 Schedule/Milestones: BIDDER will present a schedule that minimizes impact 

to operations of the owner. 
 
2.0 INTENT OF PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS 

The true intent of these Specifications is to provide for the completion in every detail of the 
work described herein, and it is understood that the Contractor will furnish all labor, services, 
insurance, permits, licenses, materials, equipment, tools, transportation and necessary 
supplies, such as may reasonably be required to execute the Contract in a satisfactory and 
workmanlike manner and in accordance with the plans, specifications, and terms of the 
Contract. The specifications herein describe the work necessary to meet the performance 
requirements of UMC, and shall be considered the minimum requirements expected of the 
Contractor. The specifications are not intended to exclude potential Contractors. 

 
3.0 Definitions and Applicable Documents: 

  
3.1 Applicable Documents 

 
3.1.1 Nevada Revised Statutes, Chapter 338 – Public Works 
 
3.1.2 Nevada Revised Statutes, Chapter 624 – Contractors 

 
4.0 License(s) 
 

4.1 General Contractors shall possess a valid “B – General Building” license, in accordance 
with NRS, Chapter 624. 

 
4.2 All subcontractors shall possess the appropriate valid specialty license(s), in 

Commented [MB5]: Correction made per answers 
provided during Q&A. 
 

Commented [MB6]: Correction made per answers 
provided during Q&A. 
 

Page 492 of 853



 

 

accordance with NRS, Chapter 624. 
 
5.0 Contractor’s Responsibilities 
 

5.1 Performance 
5.1.1 Contractor is responsible for daily clean up and removal of refuse from areas 

of work.  All refuse will be transported in covered containers through the 
facility. 

 
5.1.2  Contractor will furnish and install proper floor and wall protection for 

existing finishes. 
 
5.1.3 Contractor will provide a dumpster for projects determined to generate 

more than 3 yards of refuse. 
 
5.1.4    Contractor is responsible for all area containment, and negative air filtration 

systems (if required) for the scope of work. 
 
5.1.5 Flu vaccinations are highly encouraged.  Any Workers without a flu 

vaccination will be required to follow standard Infection Control policy of 
wearing a mask while working at UMC property. 

 
5.1.6 Contractor will provide a copy of their current Safety Manual to UMC Safety 

Department. 
 
5.1.7 Contractor will follow and be compliant with Infection Control permit 

requirements. 
 
5.1.8 Contractor will follow and be compliant with any Interim Life Safety 

Management plans when deemed necessary. 
 
5.1.9 Contractor will secure all HVAC ducting when performance of work creates 

dust or smoke particulates as necessary to prevent contamination of 
existing duct systems. 

 
5.1.10 All personnel must wear a badge issued by the Engineering 

Department/Plant Operations at all times while on campus. 
 
5.1.11 Provide all management, supervision, labor, material, tools, equipment and 

disposal containers to complete the entire project. 
 
5.1.12 Provide all material, equipment, tools and labor to establish and maintain 

any/all required temporary containment areas and negative air ventilation 
(to the outside or as directed) systems. 

 
5.1.13 Contractor is responsible for sealing of all penetrations disturbed or created 

in performance of contract covered work. UL penetration details will be 
provided by contractor and followed when performing this work. No mixing 
of sealant types is allowed in any penetration location. 

5.2 Includes: 
 

5.2.1    Obtain any required permits and pay all applicable fees.  
 
5.2.3     Hot work permits issued at the Engineering Department are required when 

cutting or grinding, or when performing any work that requires an open 
flame. 

 
5.2.4    Construction waste to be contained within the construction area until 

transport. 
 
5.2.5     Construction waste will be transported in covered containers through the 

facility. 

Page 493 of 853



 

 

 
5.2.6     Secure/cover fire alarm smoke detectors in area of construction to avoid false 

alarms. 
 
5.2.7     All work to take place during hours of (6:00pm- 8:00am) Monday – Friday or 

any time Saturday/Sunday. 
 
5.2.8    Responsible for the replacement, patching or repair of any of the building 

materials or adjacent surfaces damaged while performing scope of work. 
 
5.2.9   Responsible for the security of all tools, materials, etc. while contractor 

physically present on the work site. 
 
5.2.10   Costs associated with any required third-party inspections. 
 

5.3 Excludes: 
 

5.3.1 Salvage or storage of any kind of contents from the building. 
 
5.3.2 Site security during work. 

 
6.0 Materials 
 

6.1 Provided by Owner – N/A 

 6.2 Provided by Contractor  
 

6.2.1 Includes: 
 

a. All materials and equipment necessary to properly establish and 
maintain all required containment areas, 

b. All personal protective materials/equipment, and 
c. All other materials necessary to successfully complete the entire 

project. 
 

7.0 Clarifications 
 

7.1        Schedule: 
   

7.1.1 All work to take place during hours of (6 p.m. – 8 a.m.), Monday – Friday or 
any time Saturday/Sunday, unless otherwise agreed upon by both parties. 

 
7.1.2 Schedule and phasing of project shall be mutually agreed upon, in writing, 

prior to commencement of the on-site work.  
 
7.1.3 All long lead materials shall be ordered for the project no more than two (2) 

weeks after issuance of Purchase Order. 
 
7.1.4 All project work shall be completed no later than twenty-four (24) weeks 

from issuance of Notice to Proceed. 
 
 7.2 Access: 
 

7.2.1 Contractor requires full access to the entire work area. Work area security 
and access to work area(s) will be arranged through UMC’s Plant 
Operations/Engineering department. 

 
7.3 Acceptance: 

 
7.3.1 Engineering representative will review all work performed.  Any deficiencies 

found will be corrected before final acceptance. 
 

8.0  Owner’s Responsibilities 
 

Page 494 of 853



 

 

 8.1 Disposal: 
 

8.1.1 Provide a staging area for disposal dumpster. Contractor shall secure the 
dumpster during non-working hours. Owner is not responsible if/when the 
dumpster is used by any other parties other than the contactor. 

 
8.1.2 Engineering representative will review all work performed. Any deficiencies 

found will be corrected before final acceptance. 
 

The above-referenced documents are incorporated herein by reference, and the specifications contained 
therein must be met by the lowest responsive and responsible bidder. 

 

  

Page 495 of 853



Page 496 of 853



Page 497 of 853



Page 498 of 853



Page 499 of 853



Page 500 of 853



Page 501 of 853



Page 502 of 853



Page 503 of 853



Page 504 of 853



Page 505 of 853



Page 506 of 853



Page 507 of 853



Page 508 of 853



Page 509 of 853



Page 510 of 853



Page 511 of 853



Page 512 of 853



Page 513 of 853



Page 514 of 853



Page 515 of 853



Page 516 of 853



Page 517 of 853



Page 518 of 853



Page 519 of 853



Page 520 of 853



Page 521 of 853



Page 522 of 853



Page 523 of 853



Page 524 of 853



Page 525 of 853



Page 526 of 853



Page 527 of 853



Page 528 of 853



Page 529 of 853



Page 530 of 853



Page 531 of 853



Page 532 of 853



Page 533 of 853



Page 534 of 853



Page 535 of 853



Page 536 of 853



Page 537 of 853



Page 538 of 853



Page 539 of 853



Page 540 of 853



 

 

EXHIBIT A 
UMC Scope of Work 

 
Project Name: Southern Highlands PC/QC Expansion 
Project Address:  11860 Southern Highlands Pkwy., Las Vegas NV, 89141 
Project Location:  11860 Southern Highlands 

 
 

1.0 Scope  
 
Project is located at 11860 Southern Highlands Pkwy. The building is a single story building.  All RTU’s to 
be replaced as shown on the drawings for this project. Remove existing roof membrane for the entire 
building. Replace any damaged plywood substrate and insulation board as required.  Provide new 4-ply 
built-up roof membrane. Interior walls will be removed/rebuilt including new casework, flooring, ceilings, 
plumbing fixtures and surface finishes as shown on the drawings for the project. Lead lined walls are 
required at new Imaging/X-ray room. 
The work will be performed in a phased approach beginning with the Primary Care. 
There will be 1 week pause on interior work between completion of Phase 1 and commencement of 
Phase 2 to allow occupants to relocate from the Phase 2 area. 
Time of work will be during the normal business hours Monday through Friday. Project duration is 
scheduled to be 5 months from Notice to Proceed. 
Access controls for the building are provided by Honeywell. New card readers will need to be integrated 
with the access controls system. 

EDS is the provider for Fire Alarm for the building. Statewide is familiar with the sprinkler system but is 
not a proprietary contractor for necessary sprinkler work. 

 
1.1 BIDDER should be able to demonstrate experience working in an operational 

clinic. 
1.2 BIDDER will work with UMC to develop the best approach and most cost 

effective means for accomplishing the work.  
1.3 Schedule/Milestones: BIDDER will present a schedule that minimizes impact 

to operations of the owner. 
 
2.0 INTENT OF PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS 

The true intent of these Specifications is to provide for the completion in every detail of the 
work described herein, and it is understood that the Contractor will furnish all labor, services, 
insurance, permits, licenses, materials, equipment, tools, transportation and necessary 
supplies, such as may reasonably be required to execute the Contract in a satisfactory and 
workmanlike manner and in accordance with the plans, specifications, and terms of the 
Contract. The specifications herein describe the work necessary to meet the performance 
requirements of UMC, and shall be considered the minimum requirements expected of the 
Contractor. The specifications are not intended to exclude potential Contractors. 

 
3.0 Definitions and Applicable Documents: 

  
3.1 Applicable Documents 

 
3.1.1 Nevada Revised Statutes, Chapter 338 – Public Works 
 
3.1.2 Nevada Revised Statutes, Chapter 624 – Contractors 

 
4.0 License(s) 
 

4.1 General Contractors shall possess a valid “B – General Building” license, in accordance 
with NRS, Chapter 624. 

 
4.2 All subcontractors shall possess the appropriate valid specialty license(s), in 

Page 541 of 853



 

 

accordance with NRS, Chapter 624. 
 
5.0 Contractor’s Responsibilities 
 

5.1 Performance 
5.1.1 Contractor is responsible for daily clean up and removal of refuse from areas 

of work.  All refuse will be transported in covered containers through the 
facility. 

 
5.1.2  Contractor will furnish and install proper floor and wall protection for 

existing finishes. 
 
5.1.3 Contractor will provide a dumpster for projects determined to generate 

more than 3 yards of refuse. 
 
5.1.4    Contractor is responsible for all area containment, and negative air filtration 

systems (if required) for the scope of work. 
 
5.1.5 Flu vaccinations are highly encouraged.  Any Workers without a flu 

vaccination will be required to follow standard Infection Control policy of 
wearing a mask while working at UMC property. 

 
5.1.6 Contractor will provide a copy of their current Safety Manual to UMC Safety 

Department. 
 
5.1.7 Contractor will follow and be compliant with Infection Control permit 

requirements. 
 
5.1.8 Contractor will follow and be compliant with any Interim Life Safety 

Management plans when deemed necessary. 
 
5.1.9 Contractor will secure all HVAC ducting when performance of work creates 

dust or smoke particulates as necessary to prevent contamination of 
existing duct systems. 

 
5.1.10 All personnel must wear a badge issued by the Engineering 

Department/Plant Operations at all times while on campus. 
 
5.1.11 Provide all management, supervision, labor, material, tools, equipment and 

disposal containers to complete the entire project. 
 
5.1.12 Provide all material, equipment, tools and labor to establish and maintain 

any/all required temporary containment areas and negative air ventilation 
(to the outside or as directed) systems. 

 
5.1.13 Contractor is responsible for sealing of all penetrations disturbed or created 

in performance of contract covered work. UL penetration details will be 
provided by contractor and followed when performing this work. No mixing 
of sealant types is allowed in any penetration location. 

5.2 Includes: 
 

5.2.1    Obtain any required permits and pay all applicable fees.  
 
5.2.3     Hot work permits issued at the Engineering Department are required when 

cutting or grinding, or when performing any work that requires an open 
flame. 

 
5.2.4    Construction waste to be contained within the construction area until 

transport. 
 
5.2.5     Construction waste will be transported in covered containers through the 

facility. 

Page 542 of 853



 

 

 
5.2.6     Secure/cover fire alarm smoke detectors in area of construction to avoid false 

alarms. 
 
5.2.7     All work to take place during hours of (6:00pm- 8:00am) Monday – Friday or 

any time Saturday/Sunday. 
 
5.2.8    Responsible for the replacement, patching or repair of any of the building 

materials or adjacent surfaces damaged while performing scope of work. 
 
5.2.9   Responsible for the security of all tools, materials, etc. while contractor 

physically present on the work site. 
 
5.2.10   Costs associated with any required third-party inspections. 
 

5.3 Excludes: 
 

5.3.1 Salvage or storage of any kind of contents from the building. 
 
5.3.2 Site security during work. 

 
6.0 Materials 
 

6.1 Provided by Owner – N/A 

 6.2 Provided by Contractor  
 

6.2.1 Includes: 
 

a. All materials and equipment necessary to properly establish and 
maintain all required containment areas, 

b. All personal protective materials/equipment, and 
c. All other materials necessary to successfully complete the entire 

project. 
 

7.0 Clarifications 
 

7.1        Schedule: 
   

7.1.1 All work to take place during hours of (6 p.m. – 8 a.m.), Monday – Friday or 
any time Saturday/Sunday, unless otherwise agreed upon by both parties. 

 
7.1.2 Schedule and phasing of project shall be mutually agreed upon, in writing, 

prior to commencement of the on-site work.  
 
7.1.3 All long lead materials shall be ordered for the project no more than two (2) 

weeks after issuance of Purchase Order. 
 
7.1.4 All project work shall be completed no later than twenty-four (24) weeks 

from issuance of Notice to Proceed. 
 
 7.2 Access: 
 

7.2.1 Contractor requires full access to the entire work area. Work area security 
and access to work area(s) will be arranged through UMC’s Plant 
Operations/Engineering department. 

 
7.3 Acceptance: 

 
7.3.1 Engineering representative will review all work performed.  Any deficiencies 

found will be corrected before final acceptance. 
 

8.0  Owner’s Responsibilities 
 

Page 543 of 853



 

 

 8.1 Disposal: 
 

8.1.1 Provide a staging area for disposal dumpster. Contractor shall secure the 
dumpster during non-working hours. Owner is not responsible if/when the 
dumpster is used by any other parties other than the contactor. 

 
8.1.2 Engineering representative will review all work performed. Any deficiencies 

found will be corrected before final acceptance. 
 

The above-referenced documents are incorporated herein by reference, and the specifications contained 
therein must be met by the lowest responsive and responsible bidder. 

 

  

Page 544 of 853



 

 

 
 

EXHIBIT B 
BONDS AND INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS AND FORMS 

 
1. BONDS 

 
A. Prime Contractor shall furnish bonds covering the faithful performance of the Contract, payment of all 

obligations arising thereunder and a Guaranty Bond to take effect upon substantial completion of the project, 
utilizing the bond forms. Bonds may be secured through Prime Contractor’s usual sources, provided that the 
surety is authorized and licensed to do business in the State of Nevada. All bonds specified shall indicate the 
State of Nevada Insurance Division license number, the surety company name, address, telephone number, 
and include the appointed agent of record who issued the bond. Surety Bonds issued by an individual are not 
acceptable to OWNER. 

 
B. Not later than ten (10) business days after OWNER’S written request for insurance, Prime Contractor shall 

furnish contract bonds to Contracts Management Division as follows: 
 

1. Labor and Material Payment Bond in the amount of 100% of the Contract price. 
 

2. Performance Bond in the amount of 100% of the Contract price. 
 

3. Guaranty Bond in the amount of 100% of the Contract price. The Guaranty Bond will go into effect from 
the date of Notice of Substantial Completion. 

 
Award will become final after the OWNER and/or Governing Body has authorized the award and Prime 
Contractor has submitted its required bonds utilizing OWNER’S Bond forms. 

 
C. Form of Bonds 

 
1. The bonds referred to herein shall be written on the Performance Bond, Labor and Material Payment 

Bond, and Guaranty Bond forms provided by OWNER. 
 

2. Prime Contractor shall require the attorney-in-fact who executes the required bonds on behalf of the 
surety to affix thereto a certified and current copy of his power of attorney. 

 
3. Any Performance Bond, Labor and Material Payment Bond, or Guaranty Bond prepared by an 

appointed agent must provide their license number and the issuing state. 
 

4. The bonds specified in this section must be issued by a certified surety which is listed in the Department 
of the Treasury, Fiscal Service, (Department Circular 570; Current Revision) companies holding 
certificates of authority as acceptable sureties on Federal Bonds and as acceptable reinsuring companies. 

 
2. INSURANCE 

 
A. Prime Contractor further agrees, as a precondition to the performance of any work under this contract and as 

a precondition to any obligation of OWNER to make any payment under this contract, to provide OWNER with 
a work certificate and/or a certificate issued by an insurer qualified to underwrite workers’ compensation 
insurance in the state of Nevada in accordance with Nevada Revised Statutes Chapters §616A through 616D, 
inclusive, whether or not Prime Contractor has employees. 

 
B. Prime Contractor agrees to maintain required workers’ compensation coverage throughout the entire term of 

the contract. If Prime Contractor does not maintain coverage throughout the entire term of the contract, Prime 
Contractor agrees that OWNER may, at any time the coverage is not maintained by Prime Contractor, order 
Prime Contractor to stop work, assess liquidated damages as defined herein, suspend the contract, or 
terminate the contract. 

 
C. Prime Contractor shall furnish not later than ten (10) business days after OWNER’S written request for 

insurance, the insurance as indicated below. The certificates for each insurance policy shall be signed by a 
person authorized by that insurer and licensed by the State of Nevada. 

 
D. As a condition precedent to receiving payments, Prime Contractor shall have on file with OWNER current 

certificates of insurance evidencing the required coverage. Insurance certificates for OWNER should contain 
the information shown on the sample certificates attached. 

Page 545 of 853



  

 

 

E. Each insurance company's rating as shown in the latest Best's Key Rating Guide shall be fully disclosed and 
entered on the required certificate of insurance. OWNER requires insurance carriers to maintain a Best's Key 
Rating of A.VII or higher (i.e., A.VII, A.VIII, A.IX, A.X, etc.). The adequacy of the insurance supplied by 
Prime Contractor, including the rating and financial health of each insurance company providing coverage, is 
subject to the approval of OWNER. 

F. Prime Contractor shall furnish renewal certificates to the OWNER for the required insurance during the period 
of coverage required by the contract. Prime Contractor will furnish renewal certificates for the same minimum 
coverage as required in this Contract. The request for updated renewal certificates will be sent by the OWNER 
to the Prime Contractor thirty (30) calendar days in advance of the expiration date shown on the certificate of 
insurance. A second request will be sent if the renewal certificate is not received from within seven business 
days. If within twenty (20) calendar days from the date of the request for an updated renewal certificate, the 
updated certificate has still not been provided, the OWNER may declare the Prime Contractor in default of its 
obligation under this paragraph 

G. OWNER, its officers, employees, agents, and volunteers, must be expressly covered as insured’s with respect 
to liability arising out of the activities by or on behalf of the named insured in connection with this project. 

1. Prime Contractor’s insurance shall be primary as respects OWNER, its officers, employees, agents, 
and volunteers. Any other coverage (insurance or otherwise) available to OWNER, its officers, 
employees and volunteers shall be excess over the insurance required of Prime Contractor and 
shall not contribute with it. 

H. Prime Contractor's commercial general liability and automobile liability insurance policy shall be endorsed to 
recognize specifically Prime Contractor’s contractual obligation of additional insured to OWNER. All policies 
must note that OWNER will be given thirty (30) calendar days’ advance notice by certified mail “return receipt 
requested” of any policy changes, cancellations, or any erosion of insurance limits. Separate copies of 
additional insured endorsements are required and must be attached to any certificate of insurance. 
Policy number must be referenced on endorsement or the form number must be referenced on 
certificate. 

I. All deductibles and self-insured retentions shall be fully disclosed in the Certificate of Insurance. No deductible 
or self-insured retention may exceed $25,000. If the deductible is “zero” it must still be referenced on the 
certificate. 

J. If aggregate limits are imposed on the insurance coverage, then the amount of such limits must not be less 
than $2,000,000 per occurrence or per accident. All aggregates must be fully disclosed, and the amount 
entered on the required certificate of insurance. Prime Contractor's insurer must notify OWNER of any erosion 
of the aggregate limits. The "per occurrence" limits of insurance required herein must be maintained in 
full, irrespective of any erosion of aggregate. 

K. Prime Contractor shall obtain and maintain, for the duration of the Contract or longer period if specified 
herein, insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in 
connection with the performance of the work hereunder by Prime Contractor, it agents, representatives, 
employees or subcontractors of any tier. The cost of such insurance shall be included in Prime Contractor's 
Bid. Prime Contractor is required to obtain and maintain the following coverage: 

1. Commercial General Liability: Commercial General Liability shall be on "occurrence" basis only and 
not "claims made." The coverage must be provided on either an ISO Commercial General Liability 
form or an ISO Broad Form Comprehensive General Liability (including a Broad Form CGL 
Endorsement) insurance form. Policies must contain a primary and non-contributory clause and must 
contain a waiver of subrogation endorsement. Any exceptions to coverage must be fully disclosed 
on the required certificates. If other than these forms are submitted as evidence of compliance, 
complete copies of such policy forms must be submitted to OWNER within ten (10) business days 
after OWNER’S written request of insurance. Policies must include, but need not be limited to, 
coverage for bodily injury, property damage, personal injury, Broad Form property damage, premises 
and operations, severability of interest, products and completed operations, contractual and 
independent contractors. Prime Contractor shall maintain limits of no less than $1,000,000 combined 
single limit per occurrence for bodily injury (including death), personal injury and property damages. 
A separate copy of the waiver of subrogation endorsement must be provided. A separate copy 
of the additional insured endorsement is required and must be provided for Commercial 
General Liability. Policy number must be referenced on endorsement or the form number 
must be referenced on certificate. 

2. Auto Liability: Auto Liability must provide coverage for claims for damage due to bodily injury or 
death of any person, or property damage arising out of the ownership, maintenance or use of any 
motor vehicles whether owned, hired or non-owned. Prime Contractor shall maintain limits of no 
less than $1,000,000 combined single limit "per accident" for bodily injury and property damage. 
A separate copy of the additional insured endorsement is required and must be provided 
for Automobile Liability policies. Policy number must be referenced on endorsement or the 
form number must be referenced on certificate. 

3.  Builders Risk / Course of Construction: Unless otherwise provided in the Contract 
Documents, the Prime Contractor shall purchase and maintain property insurance (builders’ 

Page 546 of 853



  

 

risk) upon the work at the site to the full insurable value. This insurance shall include the 
interests of University Medical Center of Southern Nevada, the OWNER, OWNER’s designated 
representative, Prime Contractor, Subcontractors, and Subcontractors of any tier. Coverage 
shall be written on forms to include Fire, Extended Coverage, and Special Form including 
theft. Prime Contractor is responsible for the deductible for any claim made against the policy. 

L. If Prime Contractor fails to maintain any of the insurance coverage required herein, then OWNER will have 
the option to declare Prime Contractor in breach, or may purchase replacement insurance or pay the premiums 
that are due on existing policies in order that the required coverage may be maintained. Prime Contractor is 
responsible for any expenses paid by OWNER to maintain such insurance and OWNER may collect the same 
from Prime Contractor or deduct the amount paid from any sums due Prime Contractor under the contract. 

 
M. The insurance requirements specified herein do not relieve Prime Contractor of its responsibility or limit the 

amount of their liability to OWNER or other persons and Prime Contractor is encouraged to purchase such 
additional insurance, as it deems necessary. 

 
N. Prime Contractor is responsible for and must remedy all damage or loss to any property, including property of 

OWNER, caused in whole or in part by Prime Contractor, any subcontractor or anyone employed, directed or 
supervised by Prime Contractor. Prime Contractor is responsible for initiating, maintaining and supervising all 
safety precautions and programs in connection with the work. 

 
O. Prime Contractor shall pay all premiums and costs of insurance. 

 
P. Regardless of the coverage provided by any insurance policy, Prime Contractor shall indemnify, defend and 

hold OWNER, harmless from any and all claims, demands, actions, attorneys' fees, costs, and expenses 
based upon or arising out of any acts, errors, omissions, fault or negligence of Prime Contractor or its 
principals, employees, subcontractors or other agents while performing services under this Contract. Prime 
Contractor shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless OWNER and others specified from any attorney's fees 
or other costs of defense, even if the allegations of the claim are groundless, false or fraudulent. 

 

Q. Prime Contractor agrees that its officers, employees, subcontractors at every tier and suppliers shall perform 
all work in accordance with any and all current and adopted local, state, and federal building, demolition, and 
fire codes as applicable to jurisdiction and shall be held liable for any actions, damages, or costs caused by or 
arising from non-conformance with this requirement. 

 
R. Any conflict between adopted codes and standards shell be resolved by using the more stringent requirement 

unless specifically directed otherwise by the applicable governments entity 
 
 

Page 547 of 853



BID NO. XXXX XX Proje ct Name  BID NO. XXXX-XX Proje ct Name   

C-1  

EXHIBIT C 
MEDIATOR AGREEMENT 

 

This Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered into this _____ day of ____________, by and between the 
University Medical Center of Southern Nevada (“OWNER”), _________________________ (“Prime Contractor”) and 
______________________ (“Mediator”).  OWNER and _________________ are collectively referred to as “Parties”. 

 
WHEREAS, ________________________was awarded the BID NO. 2023-15, UMC Southern Highlands PC/QC 
Expansion PWP-CL-2024-133, and the OWNER and    entered into a contract entitled    
(“Contract”); 

 
 WHEREAS, a claim, dispute or controversy relating to the Contract has arisen between the Parties; 
 
 WHEREAS, the Parties have haven been unsuccessful in resolving the claim, dispute or controversy by informal 

negotiations as required in section _________ of the Contract,  
 
 WHEREAS, ___________________ has submitted a demand to ___________ for non-binding informal mediation of 

the claim, dispute or controversy, pursuant to section __________ of the Contract;  
 
 WHEREAS, the Contract requires the Parties to mutually agree upon a private independent mediator to mediate the 

claim, dispute or controversy;  
 
 WHEREAS, the Parties have mutually agreed to hire Mediator in this matter;  
 
 WHEREAS, Mediator is willing to accept this appointment;  
 
 NOW THEREFORE, the County, Prime Contractor and Mediator agree as follows: 
 
1.    Scope of Services 

The Parties hereby retain and appoint Mediator to mediate the above-referenced claim, dispute or controversy arising 
out of the Contract.  Mediator agrees to conduct a mediation in accordance with section 7 of the General Conditions of 
the Contract and consistent with the most current version of “The Model Standards of Conduct for Mediators” as 
approved by the American Arbitration Association.    Additionally, Mediator agrees to conduct the mediation consistent 
with sections addressing “Mediator’s Impartiality and Duty to Disclose”, “Duties and Responsibilities of the Mediator” 
and “Confidentiality” of the current version of the “Construction Industry Mediation Procedures” as approved by the 
American Arbitration Association.     

2.   Mediator’s Fees and Expenses 
 Mediator will charge an hourly rate of $_______ for his services as a mediator.  The Parties are equally responsible for 

the cost of the Mediator.  The County is responsible for fifty-percent (50%) of the fees of Mediator and Prime 
Contractor is responsible for fifty-percent (50%) of the cost of Mediator. 
OWNER and Prime Contractor agree to reimburse Mediator for reasonable expenses including, but not limited to, long 
distance telephone calls, photocopying and mailing fees. 

3.   Billing 
 Mediator will provide, on a monthly basis, invoices to OWNER and Prime Contractor itemizing all services provided.  

Mediator agrees to bill OWNER for its fifty-percent (50%) share and Mediator agrees to bill the Prime Contractor for its 
fifty-percent (50%) share.  Mediator understands and agrees that the Parties are only responsible for their respective 
fifty-percent (50%) shares.  If the Prime Contractor does not pay Mediator its fifty-percent (50%) share of the fees, then 
OWNER is not responsible.  Likewise, if OWNER does not pay Mediator its fifty-percent (50%) share of the fees, then 
the Prime Contractor is not responsible. 
OWNER and Prime Contractor agree to make payment for Mediator’s fees and expenses within sixty (60) days after 
receipt of such billings.   

4. Term 
 The term of this Agreement shall commence on the date of this Agreement and shall continue until Mediator concludes 

the above-referenced matters on which he is serving as the Parties’ Mediator.  
 

Page 548 of 853



Bid No. 2023-14 PWP-CL-2024-133 
UMC Orthopedic Clinic Refresh Phase 2 PWP-CL-2024-133  

C-2  

5. Amendment and Modification 
 No provision of this Agreement will be deemed waived, amended or modified by either party unless such waiver, 

amendment or modification is in writing and signed by the authorized agents of both parties. 
6. Applicable Law 
 This Agreement shall be governed by and interpreted according to the laws of the State of Nevada. 
7. Exclusive Benefit of the Parties 
 Except as specifically provided in this section, this Agreement is not intended to create any rights, powers or interests 

in any third party and this Agreement is entered into for the exclusive benefit of OWNER, Prime Contractor, and 
Mediator. 

8. Notices 
 Any notice required or permitted to be given under this Agreement shall be deemed to have been given when received 

by the party to whom it is directed by personal service, hand delivery or United States Mail at the following addresses: 
 
  To OWNER:  ______________________________ 
     ______________________________ 
     ______________________________ 
     ______________________________ 
 
  To Prime Contractor: ______________________________ 
     ______________________________ 
     ______________________________ 
     ______________________________ 
 
  To Mediator:  ______________________________ 
     ______________________________ 
     ______________________________ 
     ______________________________ 
 
 Either party may, at any time and from time to time, change its address by written notice to the other party.  
  
9. Entire Agreement 
 
 This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties and may only be modified, supplemented or 

amended by a written agreement signed by both parties. 
 
 
 

 
(SIGNATURE ON NEXT PAGE) 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this contract to be signed and intend to be legally bound thereby. 
 
UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA     
 
 
By: ________________________________________   
 Mason Van Houweling, CEO     
 

By:  ________________________ ____ 

Name: ______________________ ____ 

Its: _________________________ ____ 
 PRIME CONTRACTOR 

 
STATE OF NEVADA  ) 
     )  ss. 

Page 549 of 853



Bid No. 2023-14 
UMC Orthopedic Clinic Refresh Phase 2 PWP-CL-2024-133 

 

C-2 
 

COUNTY OF CLARK) 
 
 On this _____ day of _______________, 20__, before me the undersigned, a Notary Public, in and for said County and 

State, personally appeared _____________________________, who acknowledged to me that ________ executed the above 

instrument for the purposes herein stated. 

 
WITNESS my hand and official seal. 
 
 
 ___________________________ ____ 
NOTARY PUBLIC 
In and for said County and State 
 
 
By: _________________________ ____ 

Name: ______________________ ____ 

Its: _________________________ ____ 
 MEDIATOR 

 
 
STATE OF NEVADA  ) 
     )  ss. 
COUNTY OF CLARK  ) 
 
 On this _____ day of _______________, 20__, before me the undersigned, a Notary Public, in and for said County and 

State, personally appeared _____________________________, who acknowledged to me that ________ executed the above 

instrument for the purposes herein stated. 

 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal.    
 
 
   
NOTARY PUBLIC  
In and for said County and State  
 

Page 550 of 853



 

D-1  

EXHIBIT D 

CONFIDENTIALITY AGREEMENT 
THIS CONFIDENTIALITY AGREEMENT (hereinafter referred to as ("Confidentiality Agreement") is made and entered 

into this ____ day of ______________, 20__ by and between the University Medical Center of Southern Nevada, a publicly owned 

and operated hospital created by virtue of Chapter 450 of the Nevada Revised Statutes (OWNER), and 

______________________________________________________________ (“______________”). OWNER and 

_________________ are collectively referred to as “Parties”.  

 
RECITALS 

 WHEREAS, ___________________________ was awarded BID NO. 2023-15 for the UMC Southern Highlands PC/QC 
Expansion PWP-CL-2024-133 Project, and OWNER and ________________entered into a contract entitled for the Project 

(“Contract”);  

 WHEREAS, a claim, dispute or controversy relating to the Contract has arisen between the Parties; 

 WHEREAS, the Parties have haven been unsuccessful in resolving the claim, dispute or controversy by informal 

negotiations as required in section _________ of the Contract,  

 WHEREAS, ___________________ has submitted a demand to ___________ for non-binding informal mediation of the 

claim, dispute or controversy, pursuant to section _________ of the Contract;  

 WHEREAS, pursuant to section __________ of the Contract, the Parties are required to enter into this Confidentiality 

Agreement as a condition of the informal nonbinding mediation prior to the commencement of the mediation;  

 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and covenants herein contained, it is mutually agreed by and 

between the parties hereto as follows: 

 
AGREEMENT 

 
 IT IS HEREBY AGREED by and between the Parties, their directors, officers, representatives and employees to maintain 

the confidentiality of the mediation and not disclose any statements, documents or information of merit or substance relating to the 

mediation. The Parties agree not to rely upon or introduce as evidence in any arbitral, judicial, or other proceedings the following:  

a) views expressed or suggestions or offers made by another party or the mediator in the course of the mediation 

proceedings, with respect to a possible settlement of a dispute, and with respect to negotiations that preceded the mediation;  

b) admissions made by another party in the course of the mediation proceedings and negotiations that preceded the 

mediation relating to the merits of the dispute;  

c) written and oral statements made or documents exchanged;  

d) proposals made or views expressed by the mediator; or  

e) the fact that another party had or had not indicated willingness to a proposal for settlement made by another party or 

the mediator.   

 The confidentiality of this provision is waived in the event the disclosure constitutes probative evidence in a pending action 

alleging negligence or willful misconduct of the mediator. 

 IT IS FURTHER AGREED by and between the Parties, their directors, officers, representatives and employees 

that no cause of action may be asserted based upon the manner in which the mediation is conducted or what transpires during 

the mediation proceeding. 

Page 551 of 853



 

D-2  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the date first above written. 
 
UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA      
 
 
By: ___________________________  
 Mason Van Houweling      
Chief Executive Officer 
 
 
By: _________________________________ 
 
Name: _________________________________ 
 
Its: _________________________________ 
 
STATE OF NEVADA  ) 
     )  ss. 
COUNTY OF CLARK  ) 
 
On this _____ day of _______________, 20__, before me the undersigned, a Notary Public, in and for said County and State, 

personally appeared _____________________________, who acknowledged to me that ____he ____ executed the above 

instrument for the purposes herein stated. 

 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 
 
 
___________________________ 
NOTARY PUBLIC 
 
 
  

Page 552 of 853



E-1 

EXHIBIT E
Contractor Acknowledgement of UMC Procedures & Practices

_____ Check In/Check Out Procedures
All outside contractors/vendors performing work at UMC are required to sign in upon entering the hospital and receive either a visitor’s badge or 
temporary sticker badge.  Prior to leaving the hospital, the contractor/vendor is required to sign out of the Vendor’s Log and, if issued, return the 
visitor’s badge.  All badges will be worn at eye level and be prominently displayed.  Failure to wear a badge could result in you being asked to 
leave the property immediately.

_____ Parking
Parking is to be in designated areas only.  You can, and will be towed if you park in any reserved parking spot. Parking in front of either loading 
docks is strictly prohibited unless prior arrangements have been made with receiving department personnel.  UMC is not responsible for any parking 
violations received (i.e. expired parking meter fines, fire lanes, etc.)  Vehicles are towed at owner’s expense.  Talk to any maintenance supervisor 
if special parking requirements are needed.

____ Noise and Vibration
Any portion of work anticipated to cause or result in elevated noise or vibration must be identified and arranged with the Engineering Department 
prior to commencement of work such as but not limited to jackhammer/chipping, saw cutting/core drilling, heavy equipment, power tools, powder 
actuated tools, high velocity fans. Engineering must be given appropriate notice to arrange this work with surrounding units.

_____ System/Utilities Shutdown Notification
Due to the nature of our business, any required interruptions of service to this facility, including but not limited to:  Water, Power, Medical Gas, 
Natural Gas, etc., with the exception of emergencies, and Fire Safety System outages longer than 4 hours, must be made at least 14 days prior to 
the start of the job.  Failure to notify us of interruptions could result in loss of patient life.  Engineering must be notified at least 1 hour in advance 
to have fire alarms, smoke detectors, or sprinkler systems temporarily disabled.

_____ Structural Fire Proofing
At no time will structural fireproofing (i.e. monokote) be removed from any I-beams or support braces without prior authorization from the Director 
of Engineering, or designee.

_____ Hot Work
A Hot Work Permit is required for all temporary operation involving open flame or producing heat and/or sparks.  This includes, but not limited 
to: Brazing, Cutting, Grinding, Soldering, Thawing Pipe, Torch Applied Roofing, Welding.  Permits are available in the Engineering Department 
office.  All requirements and guidelines listed on the Hot Work Permit shall be followed. UMC Safety Manager or designee will conduct an 
inspection of location prior to commencement of Hot Work. Fire watch shall be initiated upon completion of Hot Work. Contractor shall have fully 
charged and serviceable fire extinguisher at Hot Work location at all times when engaged in Hot Work. Flammables and combustibles shall be 
removed prior to work. Current Hot Work Permit is mandatory If performing any of the above-mentioned duties. If observed engaged in Hot Work 
without required permit work will be stopped immediately in addition to removal of offending contractor from property.   In the event that a fire 
alarm is activated do to negligence of the Contractor the City of Las Vegas will issue a $1,000.00 fine.  Contractor will be responsible for 
payment.

_____ Above the Ceiling Work
Contractor access for above ceiling must be arranged with and authorized by the Engineering Department prior to any work commencing.  
Engineering representative will issue a permit with counter signature by contractor. This permit must be displayed at the area of work. If permit is 
not obtained and/or prominently displayed, you will be told to stop all work and may be asked to leave the property immediately.

_____ Wall Penetrations
Any penetrations into a firewall must be reported to the Engineering Department.  Unless there are other arrangements made, it is your responsibility 
to ensure that any penetrations are properly patched using industry standard fire caulking material by certified installer in compliance with a UL 
listed penetration detail.  Upon completion of the work an Engineering Maintenance Supervisor, or designee, will inspect the area and sign off on 
the job.  If you are unsure whether the wall is a firewall, ask a supervisor.

_____ Accident Reporting
Accidents happen and are to be reported to the Engineering Department immediately.  Failure to notify the Engineering Department immediately 
can result in a contractor/vendor or contractor/vendor employee being permanently banned from working at this facility.  Any contractor/vendor or 
their employee found to be working in an unsafe manner can be asked to leave the property immediately.

_____ Infection Control
The contractor will adhere and enforce all measures identified on the ICRA permit issued for the project. Contractor will make immediate 

corrections when site inspection identifies any deficiencies. Failure to correct any identified deficiency in an appropriate timely manner, will 
result in work stoppage until all identified deficiencies have been corrected.

Page 553 of 853



Page 554 of 853



Page 555 of 853



Page 556 of 853



Page 557 of 853



 

F-4 
 

 
Step Four:  Identify the areas surrounding the project area, assessing potential impact. 
 

Unit Below Unit Above North South East  West 
      

Risk Group Risk Group Risk Group  Risk Group  Risk Group Risk Group 
 

Step Five:  Identify specific site of activity, e.g. Patient room, medication room, etc. 

Step Six:  Identify issues related to ventilation, plumbing, electrical – in terms of the possible/probable 
occurrences of outages:  

Step Seven:  Identify containment measures, using prior assessment.   

What types of barriers?  (e.g. solid wall barriers) Will HEPA filtration be required?  

(Note:  Renovation/construction area shall be isolated from the occupied areas during construction and shall be negative 
with respect to surrounding areas.) 

Step Eight:  Consider potential risk of water damage. Is there a risk due to compromising structural integrity? 
(e.g. wall, ceiling, roof)  

Step Nine:  Work hours:  Can or will the work be done during non-patient care hours?   

Step Ten:  Do plans allow for adequate number of isolation/negative airflow rooms?  

Step Eleven:  Do the plans allow for the required number & type of hand washing sinks?  

Step Twelve:  Does the infection control staff agree with the minimum number of sinks for this project?  

Step Thirteen:  Does the infection control staff agree with the plans relative to clean and soiled utility rooms?  

Step Fourteen:  Plan to discuss the following containment issues with the project team. (examples: traffic flow, 
housekeeping, debris removal (how & when)  
 
 

  

Note:  Identify and communicate the responsibility for project monitoring that includes infection 
control concerns and risks.  The ICRA may be modified throughout the project.  Revision must be 
communicated to the Project Manager. 

Page 558 of 853



 

G-1 
 

  

 

 Exhibit G  
Progress Billing   

 

   
 

   PO:________________ 

   
 

   Application:________________ 

   
 

   Date:______________ 

OWNER:  University Medical Center  
 Project Name    

 Attn:  
 Location   

 1800 W. Charleston Blvd  
 

   

 Las Vegas, NV 89102  
 

   
               
 

Application For Payment On Contract 
  

Contractor's Certification of Work 

 Original PO Contract Amount……….. 

 

   

The undersigned contractor certifies that, to the best of the contractor's  
knowledge, the work on the above named job has been completed in  
accordance with the plans and specifications to the level of completion 
 indicated on the attached schedule of completion. 

 Net Change by Change Order………… 
 

   

  Contract Sum…………………………………. 
 

   

 Total Complete to Date………………… 
 

   
      

 Total Retained………………………………. 
 

   Contractor:________________________________ Date:___________ 

 Total Earned Less Retained………….. 
 

     
        

 Less Previous Billings……………………. 
 

     
        

 Current Payment Due …………………… 
 

     

   
 

    

 Balance on Contract………………………. 
 

     
        
               

 Make Checks Payable to:          

 Address:          

           
 
 
 
 
  

 

       

Page 559 of 853



 

G-2 
 

 

 Progress Billing  
 

      PO:________________ 

   
 

      Application:_________  

   
 

      Date:______________ 

Schedule of Work Completed                  

   
 

       
Description of Work Contract  Changes Current Comp. Previous  Total Comp. % Balance Retained 

   
 

       

 
 These line items will come from our bid document…It will be job specific.      

                     

                     

                     

                     

                     

                     

                     

                     

                     

                     

                     

                     
                     

                     

                     

                     

  Totals:                  

   
 

  

  

   
 
 

Page 560 of 853



 

H-1 
 

Reference Instruction to Bidders for definitions.                          EXHIBIT H 
CLOSEOUT DOCUMENTATION SUMMARY REPORT OF SUBCONTRACTORS 

 
Project Number:            ______________________________________________ 
 

 
Date: __________________________________ 

Project Name:                ______________________________________________ PWP Number:   CL- 2024-133___________________ 
 

Prime Contractor:          ______________________________________________ 
  

Subcontractor:__________________________________ 

Prepared by:                  ______________________________________________ 
 

Contact Number: __________________________________ 
 

Email Address:              ______________________________________________ 
 

 Subcontractor Name *BEG Ethnicity Address Bid Item or Work 
Performed Value of Contract 

1       

2       

3       

4       

5       

6       

7       

8       

9       

10       

11       

12       

13       

14       

15       

16       

17       

18       

19       

Page 561 of 853



 

I-1 
 

EXHIBIT I 
Sample Form 

WORKERS EMPLOYED REPORT (A) (PER N.R.S. 338.070) 
 
Project Number:            _____________________________ 
 

 
Date: __________________________________ 

Project Name:                _____________________________ PWP Number:   CL-2024-133_______________ 
 

Prime Contractor:      _____________________________ 
 

Subcontractor:__________________________________ 

Prepared by:                  _____________________________ 
 

Contact Number: __________________________________ 
 

Email Address:              _____________________________ 

 Worker Name Workers Occupation Has a Driver’s License 
or Identification Card 

State 
Issued  Wages Per Diem Benefits 

1   YES or  NO     

2   YES or  NO     

3   YES or  NO     

4   YES or  NO     

5   YES or  NO     

6   YES or  NO     

7   YES or  NO     

8   YES or  NO     

9   YES or  NO     

10   YES or  NO     

11   YES or  NO     

12   YES or  NO     

13   YES or  NO     

14   YES or  NO     

15   YES or  NO     

16   YES or  NO     

17   YES or  NO     

18   YES or  NO     

19   YES or  NO     

20   YES or  NO     

Page 562 of 853



 

I-2 
 

EXHIBIT I 
Sample Form 

DO NOT INCLUDE ANY LICENSE OR I.D. NUMBERS 
WORKERS EMPLOYED REPORT (B) (PER N.R.S. 338.070) 

Project Number:            _____________________________ Date: __________________________________ 

Project Name:                _____________________________ PWP Number:  CL- 2024-133______________________ 
 

Prime Contractor:      _____________________________ 
 

Subcontractor:__________________________________ 

Prepared by:                  _____________________________ Contact Number: __________________________________ 

Email Address:              _____________________________ 

 Worker Name Driver’s License No. or 
Identification No. State Issued First day on Project Last day on Project 

1      

2      

3      

4      

5      

6      

7      

8      

9      

10      

11      

12      

13      

14      

15      

16      

17      

18      

19      

20      

Page 563 of 853



 

J-1 
 

EXHBIT J 
Sample Form 

NON-APPORTIONED VEHICLE REPORT CONFIDENTIAL 

 

 

 
Project Number:            _____________________________ 
 

 
Date: __________________________________ 

Project Name:                _____________________________ PWP Number:CL- 2024-133 ________________________ 
 

Prime Contractor:         _____________________________ Subcontractor:  __________________________________ 
 

Prepared by:                  _____________________________ Contact Number: __________________________________ 
 

Email Address:              _____________________________ 
 

 OWNER Name Vehicle Description License No. and State 

1    

2    

3    

4    

5    

6    

7    

8    

9    

10    

11    

12    

13    

14    

15    

16    

17    

Page 564 of 853



K-1 

 

 

EXHIBIT K 
Sample Forms 

MATERIALS PURCHASED REPORT 
 
Project Number:            ______________________________________________ 
 

 
Date: __________________________________ 

Project Name:                ______________________________________________ PWP Number:  CL- 2024-133______________________ 
 

Prime Contractor:          ______________________________________________ 
 

Subcontractor:__________________________________ 

Prepared by:                  ______________________________________________ 
 

Contact Number: __________________________________ 
 

Email Address:              ______________________________________________ 
 

 Material Supplier 
Name Address Materials Purchased 

1    

2    

3    

4    

5    

6    

7    

8    

9    

10    

11    

12    

13    

14    

15    

16    

17    

18    

19    

 

Page 565 of 853



REVISED 7/25/2014

INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING THE 
DISCLOSURE OF OWNERSHIP/PRINCIPALS FORM

Purpose of the Form

The purpose of the Disclosure of Ownership/Principals Form is to gather ownership information pertaining to the business entity for use by the University Medical 
Center of Southern Nevada Governing Board (“GB”) in determining whether members of the GB should exclude themselves from voting on agenda items where 
they have, or may be perceived as having a conflict of interest, and to determine compliance with Nevada Revised Statute 281A.430, contracts in which a public 
officer or employee has interest is prohibited.

General Instructions

Completion and submission of this Form is a condition of approval or renewal of a contract or lease and/or release of monetary funding between the disclosing entity 
and University Medical Center of Southern Nevada.  Failure to submit the requested information may result in a refusal by the GB to enter into an agreement/contract 
and/or release monetary funding to such disclosing entity.

Detailed Instructions

All sections of the Disclosure of Ownership form must be completed. If not applicable, write in N/A.

Business Entity Type – Indicate if the entity is an Individual, Partnership, Limited Liability Company, Corporation, Trust, Non-profit Organization, or Other.  When 
selecting ‘Other’, provide a description of the legal entity.

Non-Profit Organization (NPO) - Any non-profit corporation, group, association, or corporation duly filed and registered as required by state law.

Business Designation Group – Indicate if the entity is a Minority Owned Business Enterprise (MBE), Women-Owned Business Enterprise (WBE), Small Business 
Enterprise (SBE), Physically-Challenged Business Enterprise (PBE), Veteran Owned Business (VET),  Disabled Veteran Owned Business (DVET), or Emerging 
Small Business (ESB) . This is needed in order to provide utilization statistics to the Legislative Council Bureau, and will be used only for such purpose. 

Minority Owned Business Enterprise (MBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function and 
is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more minority persons of Black American, Hispanic American, Asian-Pacific American or Native 
American ethnicity.
Women Owned Business Enterprise (WBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function and 
is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more women.
Physically-Challenged Business Enterprise (PBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function 
and is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more disabled individuals pursuant to the federal Americans with Disabilities Act.
Small Business Enterprise (SBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function, is not owned and 
controlled by individuals designated as minority, women, or physically-challenged, and where gross annual sales does not exceed $2,000,000.
Veteran Owned Business Enterprise (VET): An independent and continuing Nevada business for profit which performs a commercially useful function 
and is at least 51 percent owned and controlled by one or more U.S. Veterans.
Disabled Veteran Owned Business Enterprise (DVET):  A Nevada business at least 51 percent owned/controlled by a disabled veteran.
Emerging Small Business (ESB): Certified by the Nevada Governor's Office of Economic Development effective January, 2014. Approved into Nevada 
law during the 77th Legislative session as a result of AB294.

Business Name (include d.b.a., if applicable) – Enter the legal name of the business entity and enter the “Doing Business As” (d.b.a.) name, if applicable.  

Corporate/Business Address, Business Telephone, Business Fax, and Email – Enter the street address, telephone and fax numbers, and email of the named business 
entity.

Nevada Local Business Address, Local Business Telephone, Local Business Fax, and Email – If business entity is out-of-state, but operates the business from a 
location in Nevada, enter the Nevada street address, telephone and fax numbers, point of contact and email of the local office. Please note that the local address must 
be an address from which the business is operating from that location. Please do not include a P.O. Box number, unless required by the U.S. Postal Service, or a 
business license hanging address.

Number of Clark County Nevada Residents employed by this firm. (Do not leave blank. If none or zero, put the number 0 in the space provided.)

List of Owners/Officers – Include the full name, title and percentage of ownership of each person who has ownership or financial interest in the business entity.  If 
the business is a publicly-traded corporation or non-profit organization, list all Corporate Officers and Directors only.

For All Contracts – (Not required for publicly-traded corporations)
1) Indicate if any individual members, partners, owners or principals involved in the business entity are a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada

full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s). If yes, the following paragraph applies.

In accordance with NRS 281A.430.1, a public officer or employee shall not bid on or enter into a contract between a government agency and any private 
business in which he has a significant financial interest, except as provided for in subsections 2, 3, and 4.

2) Indicate if any individual members, partners, owners or principals involved in the business entity have a second degree of consanguinity or affinity 
relation to a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s) (reference form on Page 2 for 
definition).  If YES, complete the Disclosure of Relationship Form.

A professional service is defined as a business entity that offers business/financial consulting, legal, physician, architect, engineer or other professional services.

Signature and Print Name – Requires signature of an authorized representative and the date signed.

Disclosure of Relationship Form – If any individual members, partners, owners or principals of the business entity is presently a University Medical Center of 
Southern Nevada employee, public officer or official, or has a second degree of consanguinity or affinity relationship to a University Medical Center of Southern 
Nevada employee, public officer or official, this section must be completed in its entirety.  

Page 566 of 853



BID ATTACHMENT 14
DISCLOSURE OF OWNERSHIP/PRINCIPALS

1
REVISED 7/25/2014

Business Entity Type (Please select one)

Sole 
Proprietorship

Partnership
Limited 

Liability Company 
Corporation Trust

Non-Profit   
Organization

Other

Business Designation Group (Please select all that apply)

MBE WBE SBE PBE VET DVET ESB

Minority Business 
Enterprise

Women-Owned 
Business 
Enterprise

Small Business 
Enterprise

Physically Challenged 
Business Enterprise

Veteran Owned 
Business

Disabled Veteran 
Owned Business

Emerging Small 
Business

Number of Clark County Nevada Residents Employed:

Corporate/Business Entity Name:

(Include d.b.a., if applicable)

Street Address: Website:

City, State and Zip Code:
POC Name:

Email:

Telephone No: Fax No:

Nevada Local Street Address:

(If different from above)

Website:

City, State and Zip Code: Local Fax No:

Local Telephone No:
Local POC Name:

Email:

All entities, with the exception of publicly-traded and non-profit organizations, must list the names of individuals holding more than five percent (5%) ownership or 
financial interest in the business entity appearing before the Board.

Publicly-traded entities and non-profit organizations shall list all Corporate Officers and Directors in lieu of disclosing the names of individuals with 
ownership or financial interest. The disclosure requirement, as applied to land-use applications, extends to the applicant and the landowner(s).

Entities include all business associations organized under or governed by Title 7 of the Nevada Revised Statutes, including but not limited to private corporations, 
close corporations, foreign corporations, limited liability companies, partnerships, limited partnerships, and professional corporations.

Full Name Title % Owned
(Not required for Publicly Traded 

Corporations/Non-profit organizations)

This section is not required for publicly-traded corporations. Are you a publicly-traded corporation?           Yes    No

1. Are any individual members, partners, owners or principals, involved in the business entity, a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time 
employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s)?

Yes No (If yes, please note that University Medical Center of Southern Nevada employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s) may not 
perform any work on professional service contracts, or other contracts, which are not subject to competitive bid.)

2. Do any individual members, partners, owners or principals have a spouse, registered domestic partner, child, parent, in-law or brother/sister, half-brother/half-
sister, grandchild, grandparent,  related to a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s)?

Yes No (If yes, please complete the Disclosure of Relationship form on Page 2.  If no, please print N/A on Page 2.) 

I certify under penalty of perjury, that all of the information provided herein is current, complete, and accurate. I also understand that the University Medical Center 
of Southern Nevada Governing Board will not take action on land-use approvals, contract approvals, land sales, leases or exchanges without the completed 
disclosure form.

Signature Print Name

Title Date

Page 567 of 853



BID ATTACHMENT 14 (page 2)
DISCLOSURE OF RELATIONSHIP

2
REVISED 7/25/2014

List any disclosures below:
(Mark N/A, if not applicable.)

NAME OF BUSINESS 
OWNER/PRINCIPAL

NAME OF UMC*
EMPLOYEE/OFFICIAL

AND JOB TITLE

RELATIONSHIP TO
UMC*

EMPLOYEE/OFFICIAL

UMC*
EMPLOYEE’S/OFFICIAL’S 

DEPARTMENT

* UMC employee means an employee of University Medical Center of Southern Nevada

“Consanguinity” is a relationship by blood.  “Affinity” is a relationship by marriage.

“To the second degree of consanguinity” applies to the candidate’s first and second degree of blood relatives as follows:

Spouse – Registered Domestic Partners – Children – Parents – In-laws (first degree)

Brothers/Sisters – Half-Brothers/Half-Sisters – Grandchildren – Grandparents – In-laws (second degree)

For UMC Use Only:

If any Disclosure of Relationship is noted above, please complete the following:    

Yes No   Is the UMC employee(s) noted above involved in the contracting/selection process for this particular agenda item?

Yes   No   Is the UMC employee(s) noted above involved in any way with the business in performance of the contract?

Notes/Comments:

____________________________________
Signature 

____________________________________
Print Name 
Authorized Department Representative

Page 568 of 853



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
February 28, 2024 

 
 

 

Agenda Item #  

16 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD  

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Issue: Master Services Agreement with EV&A Architects  

 
Back-up: 
      

 
Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer 

 
Clerk Ref. # 
      

 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Governing Board approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the 
Master Services Agreement with EV&A Architects for Architectural Design and 
Documents Service; authorize the Chief Executive Officer to execute extensions and 
amendments; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action)  

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
Fund Number: 5420.000      Fund Name:  UMC Operating Fund 
Fund Center: 3000848000     Funded Pgm/Grant: N/A 
Description: Architectural Design and Documents Service      
Bid/RFP/CBE: NRS 332.115(a)(b) – Professional Services 
Term: 1 year from Effective date with four 1-year options 
Amount: NTE $495,000     
Out Clause:  30 days w/o cause 
 

BACKGROUND: 
 
This request is to enter into a new Master Service Agreement for Architectural Design and Documents Service 
with EV&A Architects (“EV&A”). EV&A will provide various architectural design and documentation 
services for multiple areas of UMC’s campus. Staff also requests authorization for the Hospital CEO to 
execute extension options and amendments that are within his yearly delegation of authority if deemed 
beneficial to UMC. 
 
UMC will compensate EV&A a NTE amount of $495,000 for one (1) year from the Effective date, with the 
option to renew for four additional 1-year periods.  Either party may terminate this Agreement with a 30-day 
written notice to the other. 
 
UMC’s Director of Facilities Maintenance has reviewed and recommends approval of this Agreement.  This 
Agreement has been approved as to form by UMC’s Office of General Counsel. 
 
EV&A currently holds a Clark County business license. 
 
This Agreement was reviewed by the Governing Board Audit and Finance Committee at their February 21, 
2024 meeting and recommended for approval by the Governing Board. 
 

Page 569 of 853



 

 

 

 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER 
OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 

 
MASTER SERVICE AGREEMENT  

FOR  
ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN AND DOCUMENTATION SERVICES 

 
 
 
 
 

 

EV&A ARCHITECTS 

NAME OF FIRM 

 
Kellie Wanbaugh 

 

DESIGNATED CONTACT, NAME AND TITLE 
(Please type or print) 

 
1160 N. Town Center Dr., Ste. 170 

Las Vegas, NV 89144 
 

ADDRESS OF FIRM 
INCLUDING CITY, STATE AND ZIP CODE 

 
(702) 946-8195 

 

(AREA CODE) AND TELEPHONE NUMBER 

(702) 946-8196 
 
 

(AREA CODE) AND FAX NUMBER 

 
kwanbaugh@edvanceassociates.com  

E-MAIL ADDRESS 

Page 570 of 853



 

1 

MASTER SERVICE AGREEMENT FOR ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN AND DOCUMENTATION SERVICES 

This Master Service  Agreement for Architectural Design and Documentation Services (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into 

as of the date last signed by the parties below (“Effective Date”), by and between UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN 

NEVADA, a publicly owned and operated hospital created by virtue of Chapter 450 of the Nevada Revised Statutes (hereinafter referred to 

as “HOSPITAL”), and EV&A ARCHITECTS (hereinafter referred to as “COMPANY”), for architectural design and documentation services for 

the various areas of its campus (hereinafter referred to as “PROJECT”). 

 

W I T N E S S E T H: 

WHEREAS, HOSPITAL desires to obtain, from time-to-time, various architectural design and documentation services for multiple 

areas of its campus, as further described in the Scope of Work (Exhibit A). 

WHEREAS, the COMPANY has the personnel and resources necessary to accomplish the PROJECT within the required schedule 

and with a budget allowance not-to-exceed $495,000.00, including all travel, lodging, meals and miscellaneous expenses, as further 

described herein; and 

WHEREAS, the COMPANY has the required licenses and/or authorizations pursuant to all federal, State of Nevada and local laws 

in order to conduct business relative to this Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, HOSPITAL and COMPANY agree as follows: 

SECTION I: TERM OF AGREEMENT 

HOSPITAL agrees to retain COMPANY for the period for one (1) year from the Effective Date (“Initial Term”), with the option to renew for 

four (4) additional, one-year periods (“Renewal Term(s)”, collectively with Initial Term, the “Term”).  During the Term, COMPANY agrees to 

provide services as required by HOSPITAL within the scope of this Agreement.  

SECTION II: COMPENSATION AND TERMS OF PAYMENT 

A. Compensation 

HOSPITAL agrees to pay COMPANY for the performance of services described in the Scope of Work (Exhibit A) for the not-to-

exceed amount of $495,000.00 for the Initial Term.  HOSPITAL’s obligation to pay COMPANY cannot exceed the not-to-exceed 

amount. It is expressly understood that the entire Scope of Work defined in Exhibit A must be completed by the COMPANY and it 

shall be the COMPANY's responsibility to ensure that hours and tasks are properly budgeted so the entire PROJECT is completed 

for the said fee.   

B. Terms of Payments 

1. HOSPITAL agrees to pay COMPANY for the performance of services described in the Scope of Work (Exhibit A) for the 

not-to-exceed amount of $495,000.00 during the Initial Term of the Agreement.  HOSPITAL’s obligation to pay COMPANY 

cannot exceed the not-to-exceed amounts.  It is expressly understood that the entire Scope of Work defined in Exhibit A 

must be completed by the COMPANY and it shall be the COMPANY's responsibility to ensure that hours and tasks are 

properly budgeted so the entire PROJECT is completed for the said fee. 

2. COMPANY shall bill HOSPITAL per approved Task Order for work completed on a monthly basis.   

3. Each invoice received by HOSPITAL must include a Progress Report based on actual work performed to date in 

accordance with the completion of tasks indicated in Exhibit A - Scope of Work. 

4. Fees shall be payable monthly to COMPANY as specific tasks identified in the Scope of Work (Exhibit A) are finished. 

Payment of invoices will be made within thirty (30) calendar days of receipt of an accurate invoice that has been reviewed 

and approved by HOSPITAL. 

5. Payment of travel and other miscellaneous expenses such as building department submittal, mileage, plotting, 

blueprinting, drafting supplies, and long distance phone calls associated with the production of this agreement shall meet 

HOSPITAL’s Travel Reimbursement policy (Section XII(Q)), and will be made within sixty (60) calendar days upon receipt 

of an accurate invoice(s) with supporting documentation that has been reviewed and approved by HOSPITAL. 

Page 571 of 853



 

2 

 

6. HOSPITAL, at its discretion, may not approve or issue payment on invoices if COMPANY fails to provide the following 

information required on each invoice: 

a. The title of the PROJECT as stated in Exhibit A, Scope of Work, itemized description of products delivered or 

services rendered and amount due, HOSPITAL’s Contract Number, Project Number, Proposal Number, 

Purchase Order Number, Invoice Date, Invoice Period, Invoice Number, and the Payment Remittance Address. 

b. Expenses not defined in Exhibit A, Scope of Work, or expenses greater than the per diem rates will not be paid 

without prior written authorization by HOSPITAL. 

c. HOSPITAL’s representative shall notify the COMPANY in writing within 14 calendar days of any disputed 

amount included on the invoice.  The COMPANY must submit a new invoice for the undisputed amount which 

will be paid in accordance with paragraph D.2 above.  Upon mutual resolution of the disputed amount, the 

COMPANY will submit a new invoice for the agreed amount and payment will be made in accordance with 

paragraph B.4 above. 

7. No penalty will be imposed on HOSPITAL if HOSPITAL fails to pay COMPANY within 30 calendar days after receipt of a 

properly documented invoice, and HOSPITAL will receive no discount for payment within that period. 

8. HOSPITAL shall subtract from any payment made to COMPANY all damages, costs and expenses caused by 

COMPANY's negligence, resulting from or arising out of errors or omissions in COMPANY's work products, which have 

not been previously paid to COMPANY. 

9. HOSPITAL shall not provide payment on any invoice COMPANY submits after six (6) months from the date COMPANY 

performs services, provides deliverables, and/or meets milestones, as agreed upon in Exhibit A, Scope of Work. 

10. Invoices shall be submitted to:  University Medical Center of Southern Nevada, Attn:  Accounts Payable, 1800 W. 

Charleston Blvd., Las Vegas, NV 89102. 

C. HOSPITAL’s Fiscal Limitations 

1. The content of this section shall apply to the entire Agreement and shall take precedence over any conflicting terms and 

conditions, and shall limit HOSPITAL’s financial responsibility as indicated in Sections 2 and 3 below. 

2. In accordance with the Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS 354.626), the financial obligations under this Agreement between 

the parties shall not exceed those monies appropriated and approved by HOSPITAL for the then current fiscal year under 

the Local Government Budget Act.  This Agreement shall terminate and HOSPITAL's obligations under it shall be 

extinguished at the end of any of HOSPITAL's fiscal years in which HOSPITAL’s governing body fails to appropriate 

monies for the ensuing fiscal year sufficient for the payment of all amounts which could then become due under this 

Agreement.  HOSPITAL agrees that this section shall not be utilized as a subterfuge or in a discriminatory fashion as it 

relates to this Agreement.  In the event this section is invoked, this Agreement will expire on the 30th day of June of the 

current fiscal year.  Termination under this section shall not relieve HOSPITAL of its obligations incurred through the 30th 

day of June of the fiscal year for which monies were appropriated. 

3. HOSPITAL’s total liability for all charges for services which may become due under this Agreement is limited to the total 

maximum expenditure(s) authorized in HOSPITAL’s purchase order(s) to the COMPANY. 

SECTION III: SCOPE OF WORK 

Services to be performed by the COMPANY for the PROJECT shall consist of the work described in the Scope of Work as set forth in 

Exhibit A of this Agreement, attached hereto.  

SECTION IV: CHANGES TO SCOPE OF WORK 

A. HOSPITAL may at any time, by written order, make changes within the general scope of this Agreement and in the services or work to 

be performed.  If such changes cause an increase or decrease in the COMPANY's cost or time required for performance of any services 

under this Agreement, an equitable adjustment limited to an amount within current unencumbered budgeted appropriations for the 

PROJECT shall be made and this Agreement shall be modified in writing accordingly.  Any claim of the COMPANY for the adjustment 

under this clause must be submitted in writing within 30 calendar days from the date of receipt by the COMPANY of notification of 

Page 572 of 853



 

3 

 

change unless HOSPITAL grants a further period of time before the date of final payment under this Agreement. 

B. No services for which an additional compensation will be charged by the COMPANY shall be furnished without the written authorization 

of HOSPITAL. 

SECTION V: RESPONSIBILITY OF COMPANY 

A. It is understood that in the performance of the services herein provided for, COMPANY shall be, and is, an independent contractor, and 

is not an agent, representative or employee of HOSPITAL and shall furnish such services in its own manner and method except as 

required by this Agreement.  Further, COMPANY has and shall retain the right to exercise full control over the employment, direction, 

compensation and discharge of all persons employed by COMPANY in the performance of the services hereunder.  COMPANY shall be 

solely responsible for, and shall indemnify, defend and hold HOSPITAL harmless from all matters relating to the payment of its 

employees, including compliance with social security, withholding and all other wages, salaries, benefits, taxes, demands, and 

regulations of any nature whatsoever. 

B. Upon written acceptance by HOSPITAL, Edward A. Vance, Nevada Architect license #2683 (hereinafter referred to as “MANAGER”) will 

manage the performance of services.  All of the services specified by this Agreement shall be performed by MANAGER, or by 

COMPANY's associates and employees under the final supervision of MANAGER.  Should the MANAGER, or any employee of 

COMPANY be unable to complete his or her responsibility for any reason, the COMPANY must obtain written approval by HOSPITAL 

prior to replacing him or her with another equally qualified person.  If COMPANY fails to make a required replacement within 30 days, 

HOSPITAL may terminate this Agreement for default. 

C. COMPANY has, or will, retain such employees as it may need to perform the services required by this Agreement.  Such employees 

shall not be employed by the HOSPITAL. 

D. COMPANY agrees that its officers and employees will cooperate with HOSPITAL in the performance of services under this Agreement 

and will be available for consultation with HOSPITAL at such reasonable times with advance notice as to not conflict with their other 

responsibilities. 

E. COMPANY shall be responsible for the professional quality, technical accuracy, timely completion, and coordination of all services 

furnished by the COMPANY, its subcontractors and its and their principals, officers, employees and agents under this Agreement.  In 

performing the specified services, COMPANY shall follow practices consistent with generally accepted professional and technical 

standards. 

F. COMPANY will comply with all federal, state and local laws and/or regulations relative to its activities in Clark County, Nevada. 

Execution of this Agreement shall indicate that COMPANY is familiar with, and prepared to comply with, pertinent, governing and 

controlling regulations, guidelines, policies and requirements of all federal, state and local agencies regulating COMPANY’s conduct. If 

COMPANY fails to stay abreast of current federal, state and local laws and policies, COMPANY shall ensure that services are 

performed in accordance with said current laws at no additional cost to HOSPITAL. 

G. It shall be the duty of the COMPANY to assure that all services of its effort are technically sound and in conformance with all pertinent 

Federal, State and Local statutes, codes, ordinances, resolutions and other regulations. If applicable, COMPANY will not produce a 

work product which violates or infringes on any copyright or patent rights.  The COMPANY shall, without additional compensation, 

correct or revise any errors or omissions in its services:   

1. Permitted or required approval by HOSPITAL of any services furnished by COMPANY shall not in any way relieve the 

COMPANY of responsibility for the professional and technical accuracy and adequacy of its work.  

2. HOSPITAL’s review, approval, acceptance, or payment for any of COMPANY's services herein shall not be construed to 

operate as a waiver of any rights under this Agreement or of any cause of action arising out of the performance of this 

Agreement, and COMPANY shall be and remain liable in accordance with the terms of this Agreement and applicable law for 

all damages to HOSPITAL caused by COMPANY's performance or failures to perform under this Agreement. 

H. All materials, information, and documents, whether finished, unfinished, drafted, developed, prepared, completed, or acquired by 

COMPANY for HOSPITAL relating to the services to be performed hereunder and not otherwise used or useful in connection with 

services previously rendered, or services to be rendered, by COMPANY to parties other than HOSPITAL shall become the property of 

Page 573 of 853



 

4 

 

HOSPITAL and shall be delivered to HOSPITAL's representative upon completion or termination of this Agreement, whichever comes 

first.  COMPANY shall not be liable for damages, claims, and losses arising out of any reuse of any work products on any other project 

conducted by HOSPITAL.  HOSPITAL shall have the right to reproduce all documentation supplied pursuant to this Agreement. 

I. Reports, drawings, specifications, computer files, field dates, notes and other documents and instruments prepared by the COMPANY 

as instruments of service, shall remain the property of the COMPANY. COMPANY shall retain all common law, statutory and other 

reserved rights, including copyright thereto.  Copies of the drawings and specifications retained by HOSPITAL may be utilized only for 

its use and for occupying the PROJECT for which they were prepared, and not for the construction of any other project.  A copy of all 

CADD files, materials, information and documents, whether finished, unfinished, or draft, developed, prepared, completed, or acquired 

by COMPANY during the performance of services for which it has been compensated under this Agreement, shall be delivered to 

HOSPITAL’s representative upon completion or termination of this Agreement, whichever occurs first. HOSPITAL shall have the right to 

reproduce all documentation supplied pursuant to this Agreement. COMPANY shall furnish Hospital’s representative copies of all 

correspondence to regulatory agencies for review prior to mailing such correspondence. 

J. The rights and remedies of HOSPITAL provided for under this section are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law 

or under other sections of this Agreement. 

SECTION VI: SUBCONTRACTS 

A. Services specified by this Agreement shall not be subcontracted by the COMPANY, without prior written approval of HOSPITAL. 

B. Approval by HOSPITAL of COMPANY's request to subcontract, or acceptance of, or payment for, subcontracted work by HOSPITAL 

shall not in any way relieve COMPANY of responsibility for the professional and technical accuracy and adequacy of the work. 

COMPANY shall be and remain liable for all damages to HOSPITAL caused by negligent performance or non-performance of work 

under this Agreement by COMPANY's subcontractor or its sub-subcontractor. 

C. The compensation due under Section II shall not be affected by HOSPITAL's approval of COMPANY's request to subcontract. 

SECTION VII: RESPONSIBILITY OF HOSPITAL 

A. HOSPITAL agrees that its officers and employees will cooperate with COMPANY in the performance of services under this Agreement 

and will be available for consultation with COMPANY at such reasonable times with advance notice as to not conflict with their other 

responsibilities. 

B. The services performed by COMPANY under this Agreement shall be subject to review for compliance with the terms of this Agreement 

by HOSPITAL's representative, Tamera Hone, telephone number (702) 383-1092 or their designee.  HOSPITAL's representative may 

delegate any or all of his responsibilities under this Agreement to appropriate staff members, and shall so inform COMPANY by written 

notice before the effective date of each such delegation. 

C. The review comments of HOSPITAL's representative may be reported in writing as needed to COMPANY.  It is understood that 

HOSPITAL's representative’s review comments do not relieve COMPANY from the responsibility for the professional and technical 

accuracy of all work delivered under this Agreement. 

D. HOSPITAL shall assist COMPANY in obtaining data on documents from public officers or agencies, and from private citizens and/or 

business firms, whenever such material is necessary for the completion of the services specified by this Agreement. 

E. COMPANY will not be responsible for accuracy of information or data supplied by HOSPITAL or other sources to the extent such 

information or data would be relied upon by a reasonably prudent COMPANY. 

SECTION VIII: TIME SCHEDULE 

A. Time is of the essence of this Agreement. 

B. If the COMPANY’s performance of services is delayed or if the COMPANY’s sequence of tasks is changed, COMPANY shall notify 

HOSPITAL’s representative in writing of the reasons for the delay and prepare a revised schedule for performance of services.  The 

revised schedule is subject to HOSPITAL’s written approval. 

SECTION IX: SUSPENSION AND TERMINATION 

A. Suspension 

Page 574 of 853



 

5 

 

HOSPITAL may suspend performance by COMPANY under this Agreement for such period of time as HOSPITAL, at its sole discretion, 

may prescribe by providing written notice to COMPANY at least 10 working days prior to the date on which HOSPITAL wishes to 

suspend.  Upon such suspension, HOSPITAL shall pay COMPANY its compensation, based on the percentage of the PROJECT 

completed and earned until the effective date of suspension, less all previous payments.  COMPANY shall not perform further work 

under this Agreement after the effective date of suspension until receipt of written notice from HOSPITAL to resume performance.  In 

the event HOSPITAL suspends performance by COMPANY for any cause other than the error or omission of the COMPANY, for an 

aggregate period in excess of 30 days, COMPANY shall be entitled to an equitable adjustment of the compensation payable to 

COMPANY under this Agreement to reimburse COMPANY for additional costs occasioned as a result of such suspension of 

performance by HOSPITAL based on appropriated funds and approval by HOSPITAL. 

B. Termination 

1. Termination for Cause 

This Agreement may be terminated in whole or in part by either party in the event of substantial failure or default of the other 

party to fulfill its obligations under this Agreement through no fault of the terminating party; but only after the other party is 

given: 

a. not less than 10 calendar days written notice of intent to terminate; and 

b. an opportunity for consultation with the terminating party prior to termination. 

2. Termination for Convenience 

a. This Agreement may be terminated in whole or in part by HOSPITAL for its convenience; but only after the COMPANY is 

given not less than 30 calendar days written notice of intent to terminate; and 

b. If termination is for HOSPITAL’s convenience, HOSPITAL shall pay the COMPANY that portion of the compensation 

which has been earned as of the effective date of termination but no amount shall be allowed for anticipated profit on 

performed or unperformed services or other work. 

3. Effect of Termination  

a. If termination for substantial failure or default is effected by HOSPITAL, HOSPITAL will pay COMPANY that portion of the 

compensation which has been earned as of the effective date of termination but: 

i. No amount shall be allowed for anticipated profit on performed or unperformed services or other work; and 

ii. Any payment due to the COMPANY at the time of termination may be adjusted to the extent of any additional costs 

occasioned to HOSPITAL by reason of the COMPANY's default. 

b. Upon receipt or delivery by COMPANY of a termination notice, the COMPANY shall promptly discontinue all services 

affected (unless the notice directs otherwise) and deliver or otherwise make available to HOSPITAL’s representative, 

copies of all deliverables as provided in Section V paragraph H. 

c. If after termination for failure of the COMPANY to fulfill contractual obligations it is determined that the COMPANY has not 

so failed, the termination shall be deemed to have been effected for the convenience of HOSPITAL. 

d.  Upon termination, HOSPITAL may take over the work and prosecute the same to completion by agreement with another 

party or otherwise.  In the event the COMPANY shall cease conducting business, HOSPITAL shall have the right to make 

an unsolicited offer of employment to any employees of the COMPANY assigned to the performance of this Agreement. 

4. The rights and remedies of HOSPITAL and the COMPANY provided in this section are in addition to any other rights and 

remedies provided by law or under this Agreement. 

5. Neither party shall be considered in default in the performance of its obligations hereunder, nor any of them, to the extent that 

performance of such obligations, nor any of them, is prevented or delayed by any cause, existing or future, which is beyond the 

reasonable control of such party.  Delays arising from the actions or inactions of one or more of COMPANY's principals, 

officers, employees, agents, subcontractors, vendors or suppliers are expressly recognized to be within COMPANY's control. 

SECTION X: INSURANCE – Intentionally Omitted 

SECTION XI: NOTICES 

Page 575 of 853



 

6 

 

Any notice required to be given hereunder shall be deemed to have been given when received by the party to whom it is directed by personal 

service, hand delivery, certified U.S. mail, return receipt requested, at the following addresses: 

 

TO  HOSPITAL: University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 

Attn: Legal Department 

1800 W. Charleston Blvd. 

Las Vegas, NV 89102 

TO  COMPANY: EV&A Architects  

1160 North Town Center Dr., Suite 170 

Las Vegas, NV 89144 

SECTION XII: MISCELLANEOUS 

A. Amendments  

No modifications or amendments to this Agreement shall be valid or enforceable unless mutually agreed to in writing by the parties. 

B. Task Orders 

Task Orders shall include detailed scopes and all consultant proposals required to fully develop projects on an ongoing basis throughout 

the contract year. All Task Orders shall be treated as a part of this Agreement so long as the total amount, in aggregate, does not 

exceed $495,000.00 for the Initial Term. Individual Task Orders shall not require additional approval from the Chief Executive Officer so 

long as the total amount, in aggregate, does not exceed $495,000.00 for the Initial Term.  

C. Independent Contractor 

COMPANY acknowledges that COMPANY and any subcontractors, agents or employees employed by COMPANY shall not, under any 

circumstances, be considered employees of the HOSPITAL, and that they shall not be entitled to any of the benefits or rights afforded 

employees of HOSPITAL, including, but not limited to, sick leave, vacation leave, holiday pay, Public Employees Retirement System 

benefits, or health, life, dental, long-term disability or workers' compensation insurance benefits.  HOSPITAL will not provide or pay for 

any liability or medical insurance, retirement contributions or any other benefits for or on behalf of COMPANY or any of its officers, 

employees or other agents. 

D. Immigration Reform and Control Act 

In accordance with the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, the COMPANY agrees that it will not employ unauthorized aliens in 

the performance of this Agreement.  

E. Public Funds / Non-Discrimination 

COMPANY acknowledges that the HOSPITAL has an obligation to ensure that public funds are not used to subsidize private 

discrimination. COMPANY recognizes that if they or their subcontractors are found guilty by an appropriate authority of refusing to hire 

or do business with an individual or company due to reasons of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity or gender 

expression, age, disability, handicapping condition (including AIDS or AIDS related conditions), national origin, or any other class 

protected by law or regulation, HOSPITAL may declare the COMPANY in breach of the Agreement, terminate the Agreement, and 

designate the COMPANY as non-responsible. 

F. Assignment 

Any attempt by COMPANY to assign or otherwise transfer any interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of HOSPITAL 

shall be void. 

G. Indemnity 

The COMPANY does hereby agree to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless HOSPITAL and the employees, officers and agents of 

HOSPITAL from any liabilities, damages, losses, claims, actions or proceedings, including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys’ 

fees, that are caused by the negligence, errors, omissions, recklessness or intentional misconduct of the COMPANY or the employees 

or agents of the COMPANY in the performance of this Agreement. 

Page 576 of 853



 

7 

 

H. Governing Law 

Nevada law shall govern the interpretation of this Agreement. 

I. Covenant Against Contingent Fees  

The COMPANY warrants that no person or selling agency has been employed or retained to solicit or secure this Agreement upon an 

agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee, excepting bona fide permanent employees.  

For breach or violation of this warranty, HOSPITAL shall have the right to annul this Agreement without liability or in its discretion to 

deduct from the Agreement price or consideration or otherwise recover the full amount of such commission, percentage, brokerage, or 

contingent fee. 

J. Gratuities 

1. HOSPITAL may, by written notice to the COMPANY, terminate this Agreement if it is found after notice and hearing by 

HOSPITAL that gratuities (in the form of entertainment, gifts, or otherwise) were offered or given by the COMPANY or any 

agent or representative of the COMPANY to any officer or employee of HOSPITAL with a view toward securing a contract or 

securing favorable treatment with respect to the awarding or amending or making of any determinations with respect to the 

performance of this Agreement. 

2. In the event this Agreement is terminated as provided in paragraph 1 hereof, HOSPITAL shall be entitled: 

a. to pursue the same remedies against the COMPANY as it could pursue in the event of a breach of this Agreement by the 

COMPANY; and 

b. as a penalty in addition to any other damages to which it may be entitled by law, to exemplary damages in an amount (as 

determined by HOSPITAL) which shall be not less than three (3) nor more than ten (10) times the costs incurred by the 

COMPANY in providing any such gratuities to any such officer or employee. 

3. The rights and remedies of HOSPITAL provided in this clause shall not be exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and 

remedies provided by law or under this Agreement. 

K. Audits 

The performance of this Agreement by the COMPANY is subject to review by HOSPITAL to ensure Agreement compliance.  The 

COMPANY agrees to provide HOSPITAL any and all information requested that relates to the performance of this Agreement.  All 

request for information will be in writing to the COMPANY.  Time is of the essence during the audit process.  Failure to provide the 

information requested within the timeline provided in the written information request may be considered a material breach of Agreement 

and be cause for suspension and/or termination of the Agreement. 

L. Covenant 

The COMPANY covenants that it presently has no interest and that it will not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which would conflict 

in any manner or degree with the performance of services required to be performed under this Agreement.  COMPANY further 

covenants, to its knowledge and ability, that in the performance of said services no person having any such interest shall be employed. 

M. Confidential Treatment of Information 

COMPANY shall preserve in strict confidence any information obtained, assembled or prepared in connection with the performance of 

this Agreement. 

N. ADA Requirements 

All work performed or services rendered by COMPANY shall comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act standards adopted by Clark 

County.  All facilities built prior to January 26, 1992 must comply with the Uniform Federal Accessibility Standards; and all facilities 

completed after January 26, 1992 must comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act Accessibility Guidelines. 

O. Subcontractor Information  

The COMPANY shall provide a list of the Minority-Owned Business Enterprise (MBE), Women-Owned Business Enterprise (WBE), 

Physically-Challenged Business Enterprise (PBE), Small Business Enterprise (SBE), and Nevada Business Enterprise (NBE) 

subcontractors for this Agreement utilizing the attached format Exhibit B.  The information provided in Exhibit B by the COMPANY is 

for the HOSPITAL’s information only. 

Page 577 of 853



 

8 

 

P. Non-Excluded Healthcare Provider  

COMPANY represents and warrants to HOSPITAL that neither it nor any of its affiliates (a) are excluded from participation in any federal 

health care program, as defined under 42 U.S.C. §1320a-7b (f), for the provision of items or services for which payment may be made 

under such federal health care programs and (b) has arranged or contracted (by employment or otherwise) with any employee, 

contractor or agent that such party or its affiliates know or should know are excluded from participation in any federal health care 

program, to provide items or services hereunder.  COMPANY represents and warrants to HOSPITAL that no final adverse action, as 

such term is defined under 42 U.S.C. §1320a-7e (g), has occurred or is pending or threatened against such COMPANY or its affiliates 

or to their knowledge against any employee, contractor or agent engaged to provide items or services under this Agreement. 

Q. Public Records 

COMPANY acknowledges that HOSPITAL is a public county-owned hospital which is subject to the provisions of the Nevada Public 

Records Act, Nevada Revised Statutes Chapter 239, as may be amended from time to time, and as such its records are public 

documents available to copying and inspection by the public.  If HOSPITAL receives a demand for the disclosure of any information 

related to this Agreement which COMPANY has claimed to be confidential and proprietary, HOSPITAL will immediately notify 

COMPANY of such demand and COMPANY shall immediately notify HOSPITAL of its intention to seek injunctive relief in a Nevada 

court for protective order.  COMPANY shall indemnify and defend HOSPITAL from any claims or actions, including all associated costs 

and attorney’s fees, demanding the disclosure of COMPANY document in HOSPITAL’s custody and control in which COMPANY claims 

to be confidential and proprietary. 

R. Reimbursable Expenses 

Reimbursable expenses such as building department submittal, mileage, plotting, blueprinting, drafting supplies, travel expenses, and 

long-distance phone calls associated with the production of this project shall be billed with no additional markup. All reimbursable 

expenses shall meet UMC’s Travel Reimbursement policy, see Section XII(S). 

S. Travel Policy 

The following are the acceptable travel guidelines for reimbursement of travel costs:  

Reimbursement shall only be for the contract personnel. 

Transportation:  

- Domestic Airlines (Coach Ticket).  Number of trips must be approved by HOSPITAL. 

- Personal Vehicle: HOSPITAL will not pay costs associated to driving a personal vehicle in lieu of air travel. 

Meals: All meal charges will be paid up to and not to exceed $50 per day. This includes a 15% tip.  

Lodging: Lodging will either be booked by HOSPITAL or reimbursed for costs of a reasonable room rate plus taxes for Las Vegas, 

NV, not to exceed $150 per night.  

Rental Vehicles: One (1) automobile rental will be authorized per four (4) travelers. Rental must be mid-size or smaller.  HOSPITAL 

will reimburse up to $150 per week.  Return re-fuel cap of $50 per vehicle. 

Each traveler shall submit the following documents in order to claim travel reimbursement. The documents shall be readable copies of 

the original itemized receipts with each traveler’s full name. Only actual costs (including all applicable sales tax) will be reimbursed. 

- Company’s Invoice 
o With copy of executed Agreement highlighting the allowable travel 
o List of travelers 
o Number of days in travel status 

- Hotel receipt 
- Meal receipts for each meal 
- Airline receipt 
- Car rental receipt (Identify driver and passengers) 
- Airport parking receipt (traveler’s Airport origin) 
- Gas re-fuel upon return of rental vehicle capped at $50 per vehicle 
- Airport long term parking (only for economy rate) 

The following are some of the charges that will NOT be allowable for reimbursement (not all inclusive): 

-  Personal vehicle (HOSPITAL will not pay costs associated to driving a personal vehicle in lieu of air travel) 
- Excess baggage fares 

Page 578 of 853



 

9 

 

 -  Upgrades for transportation, lodging, or vehicles 
-  Alcohol 

 -  Room service 
-  In-room movie rentals 
- In-room beverage/snacks 
- Gas for personal vehicles 
- Transportation to and from traveler’s home and the airport 
- Mileage 
- Travel time 

T. Publicity   

Neither HOSPITAL nor COMPANY shall cause to be published or disseminated any advertising materials, either printed or electronically 

transmitted which identify the other party or its facilities with respect to this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other 

party. 

U. Disclosure of Ownership Form 

The COMPANY agrees to provide the information on the attached Disclosure of Ownership/Principals Form as set forth in Exhibit C 

and Disclosure of Relationship (Suppliers) Form as set forth in Exhibit D prior to any Agreement and/or Agreement amendment to be 

awarded by the Governing Board. 

V. Vendor Self-Identification Form 

The COMPANY agrees to complete and submit the attached Vendor/Supplier Self-Identification Form as set for in Exhibit E. 

W. Clark County Business License / Registration 

Prior to award of this Agreement, other than for the supply of goods being shipped directly to a UMC facility, the COMPANY may be 

required to obtain a Clark County business license or register annually as a limited vendor business with the Clark County Business 

License Department. 

a. Clark County Business License is required if: 

 i. Business is physically located in unincorporated Clark County, Nevada.  

 ii. The work to be performed is located in unincorporated Clark County, Nevada.  

b. Register as a Limited Vendor Business if:  

i. Business is physically located outside of unincorporated Clark County, Nevada 

ii. Business is physically located outside the state of Nevada. 

The Clark County Department of Business License can answer any questions concerning determination of which requirement is 

applicable to your company.  It is located at the Clark County Government Center, 500 South Grand Central Parkway, 3rd Floor, Las 

Vegas, NV or you can reach them via telephone at (702) 455-4252 or toll free at (800) 328-4813.   

You may also obtain information on line regarding Clark County Business Licenses by visiting the website at www.clarkcountynv.gov , 

go to “Business License Department” (http://www.clarkcountynv.gov/Depts/business_license/Pages/default.aspx) 

 

 

 

[signature page follows] 

 

Page 579 of 853



 

10 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed the day and year first above written.  

  

HOSPITAL: 

 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 

 

 

 

By:     

MASON VAN HOUWELING DATE 
Chief Executive Officer 

 

 

 

   COMPANY: 

 

EV&A ARCHITECTS 

 

 

By:     

EDWARD VANCE DATE 

Founder/Chief Executive Officer 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2/7/2024

Page 580 of 853



 

11 

 

EXHIBIT A 
SCOPE OF WORK 

 

Services to be performed by COMPANY under this Agreement shall be completed based on individual Task Orders. All Task Orders shall 

include detailed individual scopes and all consultant proposals required to fully develop projects on an ongoing basis throughout the contract 

year. Tasks shall include, but are not limited to drawings and documentation for the following: 

• Hourly space plans for staff relocations  

• Tenant improvements in existing facilities 

• Stand-alone buildings 

 

Task Orders shall include detailed scopes and all consultant proposals required to fully develop projects as discussed, on an ongoing basis 

throughout the year of the contract.  

 

Projects shall be billed on a monthly basis per approved Task Orders. 

 

The work performed will be under the final supervision of Edward A. Vance, Nevada Architect license #2683, and Kellie Wanbaugh, 

Registered Interior Designer license #240-ID. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT B 

Page 581 of 853



 

12 

 

SUBCONTRACTOR INFORMATION 

DEFINITIONS: 
 

MINORITY OWNED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (MBE): An independent and continuing Nevada business for profit which performs 
a commercially useful function and is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more minority persons of Black American, 
Hispanic American, Asian-Pacific American or Native American ethnicity. 

 
WOMEN OWNED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (WBE): An independent and continuing Nevada business for profit which performs a 
commercially useful function and is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more women. 

 
PHYSICALLY-CHALLENGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (PBE): An independent and continuing Nevada business for profit which 
performs a commercially useful function and is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more disabled individuals pursuant to 
the federal Americans with Disabilities Act. 

 
SMALL BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (SBE): An independent and continuing Nevada business for profit which performs a 
commercially useful function, is not owned and controlled by individuals designated as minority, women, or physically-challenged, 
and where gross annual sales does not exceed $2,000,000. 

 
NEVADA BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (NBE): Any Nevada business which has the resources necessary to sufficiently perform 
identified County projects, and is owned or controlled by individuals that are not designated as socially or economically 
disadvantaged. 
 
VETERAN OWNED ENTERPRISE (VET): A Nevada business at least 51% owned/controlled by a veteran.  
 
DISABLED VETERAN OWNED ENTERPRISE (DVET): A Nevada business at least 51% owned/controlled by a disabled veteran.  

 

It is our intent to utilize the following MBE, WBE, PBE, SBE, and NBE subcontractors in association with this Agreement: 
 
1. Subcontractor Name:  

Contact Person:      Telephone Number:  

Description of Work:  

  

Estimated Percentage of Total Dollars:  

Business Type:  ___ MBE ___ WBE ___ PBE ___ SBE ___ NBE 

 
2. Subcontractor Name:  

Contact Person:      Telephone Number:  

Description of Work:  

  

Estimated Percentage of Total Dollars:  

Business Type:  ___ MBE ___ WBE ___ PBE ___ SBE ___ NBE 

 
3. Subcontractor Name:  

Contact Person:      Telephone Number:  

Description of Work:  

  

Estimated Percentage of Total Dollars:  

Business Type:  ___ MBE ___ WBE ___ PBE ___ SBE ___ NBE 

 
4. Subcontractor Name:  

Contact Person:      Telephone Number:  

Description of Work:  

  

Estimated Percentage of Total Dollars:  

Business Type:  ___ MBE ___ WBE ___ PBE ___ SBE ___ NBE 

 
□  No MBE, WBE, PBE, SBE, or NBE subcontractors will be used. 

Page 582 of 853



 

13 

 

EXHIBIT C 
 INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING THE  

DISCLOSURE OF OWNERSHIP/PRINCIPALS FORM 
Purpose of the Form 
The purpose of the Disclosure of Ownership/Principals Form is to gather ownership information pertaining to the business entity for use by the University 
Medical Center of Southern Nevada Governing Board (“GB”) in determining whether members of the GB should exclude themselves from voting on agenda 
items where they have, or may be perceived as having a conflict of interest, and to determine compliance with Nevada Revised Statute 281A.430, contracts in 
which a public officer or employee has interest is prohibited. 
 
General Instructions 
Completion and submission of this Form is a condition of approval or renewal of a contract or lease and/or release of monetary funding between the disclosing 
entity and University Medical Center of Southern Nevada.  Failure to submit the requested information may result in a refusal by the GB to enter into an 
agreement/contract and/or release monetary funding to such disclosing entity. 
 
Detailed Instructions 
All sections of the Disclosure of Ownership form must be completed.  If not applicable, write in N/A. 
 

Business Entity Type – Indicate if the entity is an Individual, Partnership, Limited Liability Company, Corporation, Trust, Non-profit Organization, or Other.  
When selecting ‘Other’, provide a description of the legal entity. 
 

Non-Profit Organization (NPO) - Any non-profit corporation, group, association, or corporation duly filed and registered as required by state law. 
 

Business Designation Group – Indicate if the entity is a Minority Owned Business Enterprise (MBE), Women-Owned Business Enterprise (WBE), Small 
Business Enterprise (SBE), Physically-Challenged Business Enterprise (PBE), Veteran Owned Business (VET),  Disabled Veteran Owned Business (DVET), 
or Emerging Small Business (ESB) . This is needed in order to provide utilization statistics to the Legislative Council Bureau, and will be used only for such 
purpose.   
 

• Minority Owned Business Enterprise (MBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function 
and is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more minority persons of Black American, Hispanic American, Asian-Pacific American or Native 
American ethnicity. 

• Women Owned Business Enterprise (WBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function 
and is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more women. 

• Physically-Challenged Business Enterprise (PBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful 
function and is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more disabled individuals pursuant to the federal Americans with Disabilities Act. 

• Small Business Enterprise (SBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function, is not owned 
and controlled by individuals designated as minority, women, or physically-challenged, and where gross annual sales does not exceed $2,000,000. 

• Veteran Owned Business Enterprise (VET): An independent and continuing Nevada business for profit which performs a commercially useful 
function and is at least 51 percent owned and controlled by one or more U.S. Veterans. 

• Disabled Veteran Owned Business Enterprise (DVET):  A Nevada business at least 51 percent owned/controlled by a disabled veteran. 
• Emerging Small Business (ESB): Certified by the Nevada Governor's Office of Economic Development effective January, 2014. Approved into 

Nevada law during the 77th Legislative session as a result of AB294. 
 

Business Name (include d.b.a., if applicable) – Enter the legal name of the business entity and enter the “Doing Business As” (d.b.a.) name, if applicable.   
 

Corporate/Business Address, Business Telephone, Business Fax, and Email – Enter the street address, telephone and fax numbers, and email of the 
named business entity.   
 

Nevada Local Business Address, Local Business Telephone, Local Business Fax, and Email – If business entity is out-of-state, but operates the 
business from a location in Nevada, enter the Nevada street address, telephone and fax numbers, point of contact and email of the local office. Please note 
that the local address must be an address from which the business is operating from that location. Please do not include a P.O. Box number, unless required 
by the U.S. Postal Service, or a business license hanging address. 
 

Number of Clark County Nevada Residents employed by this firm. (Do not leave blank. If none or zero, put the number 0 in the space provided.) 
 

List of Owners/Officers – Include the full name, title and percentage of ownership of each person who has ownership or financial interest in the business 
entity.  If the business is a publicly-traded corporation or non-profit organization, list all Corporate Officers and Directors only.   
 

For All Contracts – (Not required for publicly-traded corporations) 
1) Indicate if any individual members, partners, owners or principals involved in the business entity are a University Medical Center of Southern 

Nevada full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s).  If yes, the following paragraph applies. 
 

In accordance with NRS 281A.430.1, a public officer or employee shall not bid on or enter into a contract between a government agency and any 
private business in which he has a significant financial interest, except as provided for in subsections 2, 3, and 4. 
 

2) Indicate if any individual members, partners, owners or principals involved in the business entity have a second degree of consanguinity or affinity 
relation to a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s) (reference form on Page 2 for 
definition).  If YES, complete the Disclosure of Relationship Form.  

 

A professional service is defined as a business entity that offers business/financial consulting, legal, physician, architect, engineer or other professional 
services. 
 

Signature and Print Name – Requires signature of an authorized representative and the date signed. 
 

Disclosure of Relationship Form – If any individual members, partners, owners or principals of the business entity is presently a University Medical Center 
of Southern Nevada employee, public officer or official, or has a second degree of consanguinity or affinity relationship to a University Medical Center of 
Southern Nevada employee, public officer or official, this section must be completed in its entirety.   

 
 
 

Page 583 of 853



 

14 

 

DISCLOSURE OF OWNERSHIP/PRINCIPALS 

Business Entity Type (Please select one) 

 Sole 
Proprietorship 

Partnership 
 Limited Liability 

Company  
 Corporation  Trust 

 Non-Profit   
Organization 

  Other 

Business Designation Group (Please select all that apply) 

 MBE  WBE  SBE  PBE  VET DVET  ESB 

Minority Business 
Enterprise 

Women-Owned 
Business Enterprise 

Small Business 
Enterprise 

Physically Challenged 
Business Enterprise 

Veteran Owned 
Business 

Disabled Veteran 
Owned Business 

Emerging Small 
Business 

 

Number of Clark County Nevada Residents Employed: 
  

Corporate/Business Entity Name:   

(Include d.b.a., if applicable)  

Street Address:  Website: www.edvanceassociates.com 

City, State and Zip Code: 
 POC Name: Kellie Wanbaugh 

Email: kwanbaugh@evaarch.com 

Telephone No:  Fax No: 

Nevada Local Street Address: 

(If different from above) 

 Website: 

 City, State and Zip Code:  Local Fax No: 

Local Telephone No: 
 Local POC Name: 

Email: 

All entities, with the exception of publicly-traded and non-profit organizations, must list the names of individuals holding more than five percent (5%) ownership or financial 
interest in the business entity appearing before the Board. 

Publicly-traded entities and non-profit organizations shall list all Corporate Officers and Directors in lieu of disclosing the names of individuals with ownership or financial 
interest. The disclosure requirement, as applied to land-use applications, extends to the applicant and the landowner(s). 

Entities include all business associations organized under or governed by Title 7 of the Nevada Revised Statutes, including but not limited to private corporations, close 
corporations, foreign corporations, limited liability companies, partnerships, limited partnerships, and professional corporations. 

 

 
Full Name 

 
 

  
Title 

 
 

  
% Owned 

(Not required for Publicly Traded 
Corporations/Non-profit organizations) 

 

     
 

     
 

     
 

     
 

This section is not required for publicly-traded corporations.  Are you a publicly-traded corporation?             Yes       No 

1. Are any individual members, partners, owners or principals, involved in the business entity, a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time employee(s), or 
appointed/elected official(s)? 

  Yes   No (If yes, please note that University Medical Center of Southern Nevada employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s) may not perform any 
work on professional service contracts, or other contracts, which are not subject to competitive bid.) 

 

2. Do any individual members, partners, owners or principals have a spouse, registered domestic partner, child, parent, in-law or brother/sister, half-brother/half-sister, 
grandchild, grandparent,  related to a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s)? 

  Yes   No (If yes, please complete the Disclosure of Relationship form on Page 2.  If no, please print N/A on Page 2.)  

I certify under penalty of perjury, that all of the information provided herein is current, complete, and accurate. I also understand that the University Medical Center of Southern 
Nevada Governing Board will not take action on land-use approvals, contract approvals, land sales, leases or exchanges without the completed disclosure form. 

 

    

Signature 

 

 Print Name  

    

Title  Date  

List any disclosures below: 

X

X

Ed Vance Associates, Architects

1160 N. Town Center Dr, Ste 170

Las Vegas, NV 89144

702-946-8195

Edward Vance

Matthew Burns

Kellie Wanbaugh

Founder/CEO

Executive Vice President

Vice President-Interiors

56.6%

28.3%

9.4%

X

X

X

Edward Vance

Founder/CEO 2/7/2024

Page 584 of 853



 

15 

 

(Mark N/A, if not applicable.) 

 

NAME OF BUSINESS 
OWNER/PRINCIPAL 

NAME OF UMC* 
EMPLOYEE/OFFICIAL 

AND JOB TITLE 

RELATIONSHIP TO 
 UMC* 

EMPLOYEE/OFFICIAL 

UMC* 
EMPLOYEE’S/OFFICIAL’S 

DEPARTMENT 
 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 

 

* UMC employee means an employee of University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 
 
“Consanguinity” is a relationship by blood.  “Affinity” is a relationship by marriage. 
 
“To the second degree of consanguinity” applies to the candidate’s first and second degree of blood relatives as follows: 
 

• Spouse – Registered Domestic Partners – Children – Parents – In-laws (first degree) 
 

• Brothers/Sisters – Half-Brothers/Half-Sisters – Grandchildren – Grandparents – In-laws (second degree) 
 
 

 
For UMC Use Only: 

 
If any Disclosure of Relationship is noted above, please complete the following:     
 

  Yes     No   Is the UMC employee(s) noted above involved in the contracting/selection process for this particular agenda item? 
 

  Yes     No   Is the UMC employee(s) noted above involved in any way with the business in performance of the contract? 
 
Notes/Comments: 
 

 

____________________________________ 

Signature  

 

____________________________________ 

Print Name  

Authorized Department Representative 
 

 

N/A

Page 585 of 853



 

16 

 

EXHIBIT D 
INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING THE 

DISCLOSURE OF RELATIONSHIP 
(Suppliers) 

 
Purpose of the Form 
 
The purpose of the Disclosure of Relationship Form is to gather information pertaining to the business entity for use by the Board of Hospital Trustees and 
Hospital Administration in determining whether a conflict of interest exists prior to awarding a contract. 
 
General Instructions 
 
Completion and submission of this Form is a condition of approval or renewal of a contract or lease and/or release of monetary funding between the disclosing 
entity and UMC.  Failure to submit the requested information may result in a refusal by the UMC to enter into an agreement/contract and/or release monetary 
funding to such disclosing entity. 
 
Detailed Instructions 
 
All sections of the Disclosure of Relationship form must be completed.  If not applicable, write in N/A. 
 
Business Name (include d.b.a., if applicable) – Enter the legal name of the business entity and enter the “Doing Business As” (d.b.a.) name, if applicable.   
 
Corporate/Business Address, Business Telephone, Business Fax, and Email – Enter the street address, telephone and fax numbers, and email of the 
named business entity.   
 
Local Business Address, Local Business Telephone, Local Business Fax, and Email – If business entity is out-of-state, but operates the business from a 
location in Nevada, enter the Nevada street address, telephone and fax numbers, point of contact and email of the local office. Please note that the local 
address must be an address from which the business is operating from that location. Please do not include a P.O. Box number, unless required by the U.S. 
Postal Service, or a business license hanging address. 
 
A professional service is defined as a business entity that offers business/financial consulting, legal, physician, architect, engineer or other professional 
services. 
 
Signature and Print Name – Requires signature of an authorized representative and the date signed. 

 
Definition 
An actual or potential conflict of interest is present when an actual or potential conflict exists between an individual’s duty to act in the best interests of UMC 
and the patients we serve and his or her desire to act in a way that will benefit only him or herself or another third party. Although it is impossible to list every 
circumstance giving rise to a conflict of interest, the following will serve as a guide to the types of activities that might cause conflict of interest and to which 
this policy applies.  
 

Key Definitions 
“Material financial interest” means 

• An employment, consulting, royalty, licensing, equipment or space lease, services arrangement or other financial relationship 
• An ownership interest 
• An interest that contributes more than 5% to a member’s annual income or the annual income of a family member 
• A position as a director, trustee, managing partner, officer or key employee, whether paid or unpaid 

 
“Family member” means a spouse or domestic partner, children and their spouses, grandchildren and their spouses, parents and their spouses, 
grandparents and their spouses, brothers and sisters and their spouses, nieces and nephews and their spouses, parents-in-law and their spouses.  Children 
include natural and adopted children.  Spouses include domestic partners. 
 
“Personal interests” mean those interests that arise out of a member’s personal activities or the activities of a family member. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DISCLOSURE OF RELATIONSHIP 

Page 586 of 853



 

17 

 

(Suppliers) 
 

Corporate/Business Entity Name:  
 

(Include d.b.a., if applicable) 
 

Street Address: 
 

City, State and Zip Code: 
 

Telephone No: 
 

Point of Contact Name: 
 

Email: 
 

 

1. COMPENSATION ARRANGEMENTS - Does a UMC employee or physician who is a member of UMC’s medical staff (or does a family member of 
either group) have an employment, consulting or other financial arrangement (including, without limitation, an office or space lease, royalty or 
licensing agreement, or sponsored research agreement) with the company? 

  Yes   No (If yes, complete following.)  
 

Name of Person 
(self or family member) 

Name of Company Describe the Compensation 
Arrangement 

Dollar Value of 
Compensation 

1.    

2.    

3.    

(Use additional sheets as necessary) 
 

2. BUSINESS POSITIONS - Is a UMC employee or physician who is a member of UMC’s medical staff (or does a family member of either group) an 
officer, director, trustee, managing partner, officer or key employee of the company? 

  Yes   No (If yes, complete following.)  
 

Name of Person 
(self or family member) 

Name of Company Business 
Position or Title 

Dollar Value of Compensation 
(include meeting stipends and 

travel reimbursement) 
1.    

2.    

3.    

 
(Use additional sheets as necessary) 

I certify under penalty of perjury, that all of the information provided herein is current, complete, and accurate. 
   

Signature   Print Name 
   

Title  Date 

 
For UMC Use Only: 

 

If any Disclosure of Relationship is noted above, please complete the following:     
 

  Yes     No Is the UMC employee or physician who is a member of UMC’s medical staff (or a family member of either group) noted above involved in 
the contracting/selection process? 

 
  Yes     No Is the UMC employee or physician who is a member of UMC’s medical staff (or a family member of either group) noted above involved in 

anyway with the business in performance of the contract? 
 

Notes/Comments: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Signature  
 
____________________________________ 
Print Name  
Authorized Department Representative 
 
 

Page 587 of 853



 

18 

 

EXHIBIT E  

VENDOR/SUPPLIER SELF-IDENTIFICATION 

FORM

 

 

 

Page 588 of 853



 

19 

 

 

 

Ed Vance and Associates, Architects
1160 N. Town Center Dr., Ste 170
Las Vegas
NV
89144
United States
Kellie Wanbaugh, VP-Interiors

kwanbaugh@evaarch.com
702-946-8195

Page 589 of 853



 

20 

 

 

 

Page 590 of 853



 

21 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 591 of 853



 

14 

 

DISCLOSURE OF OWNERSHIP/PRINCIPALS 

Business Entity Type (Please select one) 

 Sole 
Proprietorship 

Partnership 
 Limited Liability 

Company  
 Corporation  Trust 

 Non-Profit   
Organization 

  Other 

Business Designation Group (Please select all that apply) 

 MBE  WBE  SBE  PBE  VET DVET  ESB 

Minority Business 
Enterprise 

Women-Owned 
Business Enterprise 

Small Business 
Enterprise 

Physically Challenged 
Business Enterprise 

Veteran Owned 
Business 

Disabled Veteran 
Owned Business 

Emerging Small 
Business 

 

Number of Clark County Nevada Residents Employed: 
  

Corporate/Business Entity Name:   

(Include d.b.a., if applicable)  

Street Address:  Website: www.edvanceassociates.com 

City, State and Zip Code: 
 POC Name: Kellie Wanbaugh 

Email: kwanbaugh@evaarch.com 

Telephone No:  Fax No: 

Nevada Local Street Address: 

(If different from above) 

 Website: 

 City, State and Zip Code:  Local Fax No: 

Local Telephone No: 
 Local POC Name: 

Email: 

All entities, with the exception of publicly-traded and non-profit organizations, must list the names of individuals holding more than five percent (5%) ownership or financial 
interest in the business entity appearing before the Board. 

Publicly-traded entities and non-profit organizations shall list all Corporate Officers and Directors in lieu of disclosing the names of individuals with ownership or financial 
interest. The disclosure requirement, as applied to land-use applications, extends to the applicant and the landowner(s). 

Entities include all business associations organized under or governed by Title 7 of the Nevada Revised Statutes, including but not limited to private corporations, close 
corporations, foreign corporations, limited liability companies, partnerships, limited partnerships, and professional corporations. 

 

 
Full Name 

 
 

  
Title 

 
 

  
% Owned 

(Not required for Publicly Traded 
Corporations/Non-profit organizations) 

 

     
 

     
 

     
 

     
 

This section is not required for publicly-traded corporations.  Are you a publicly-traded corporation?             Yes       No 

1. Are any individual members, partners, owners or principals, involved in the business entity, a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time employee(s), or 
appointed/elected official(s)? 

  Yes   No (If yes, please note that University Medical Center of Southern Nevada employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s) may not perform any 
work on professional service contracts, or other contracts, which are not subject to competitive bid.) 

 

2. Do any individual members, partners, owners or principals have a spouse, registered domestic partner, child, parent, in-law or brother/sister, half-brother/half-sister, 
grandchild, grandparent,  related to a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s)? 

  Yes   No (If yes, please complete the Disclosure of Relationship form on Page 2.  If no, please print N/A on Page 2.)  

I certify under penalty of perjury, that all of the information provided herein is current, complete, and accurate. I also understand that the University Medical Center of Southern 
Nevada Governing Board will not take action on land-use approvals, contract approvals, land sales, leases or exchanges without the completed disclosure form. 

 

    

Signature 

 

 Print Name  

    

Title  Date  

List any disclosures below: 

X

X

Ed Vance Associates, Architects

1160 N. Town Center Dr, Ste 170

Las Vegas, NV 89144

702-946-8195

Edward Vance

Matthew Burns

Kellie Wanbaugh

Founder/CEO

Executive Vice President

Vice President-Interiors

56.6%

28.3%

9.4%

X

X

X

Edward Vance

Founder/CEO 2/7/2024

Page 592 of 853



 

15 

 

(Mark N/A, if not applicable.) 

 

NAME OF BUSINESS 
OWNER/PRINCIPAL 

NAME OF UMC* 
EMPLOYEE/OFFICIAL 

AND JOB TITLE 

RELATIONSHIP TO 
 UMC* 

EMPLOYEE/OFFICIAL 

UMC* 
EMPLOYEE’S/OFFICIAL’S 

DEPARTMENT 
 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 

 

* UMC employee means an employee of University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 
 
“Consanguinity” is a relationship by blood.  “Affinity” is a relationship by marriage. 
 
“To the second degree of consanguinity” applies to the candidate’s first and second degree of blood relatives as follows: 
 

• Spouse – Registered Domestic Partners – Children – Parents – In-laws (first degree) 
 

• Brothers/Sisters – Half-Brothers/Half-Sisters – Grandchildren – Grandparents – In-laws (second degree) 
 
 

 
For UMC Use Only: 

 
If any Disclosure of Relationship is noted above, please complete the following:     
 

  Yes     No   Is the UMC employee(s) noted above involved in the contracting/selection process for this particular agenda item? 
 

  Yes     No   Is the UMC employee(s) noted above involved in any way with the business in performance of the contract? 
 
Notes/Comments: 
 

 

____________________________________ 

Signature  

 

____________________________________ 

Print Name  

Authorized Department Representative 
 

 

N/A

Page 593 of 853



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
February 28, 2024 

 
 

 

Agenda Item #  

17 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD  

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Issue: Agreement with Getinge USA Sales, LLC 
 

 
Back-up: 
      

 
Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer 

 
Clerk Ref. # 
      

 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Governing Board approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the 
Agreement with Getinge USA Sales, LLC; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For 
possible action) 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
Fund Number: 5420.000      Fund Name:  UMC Operating Fund 
Fund Center: 3000999910     Funded Pgm/Grant: N/A 
Description: ECMO Cardiohelp Systems        
Bid/RFP/CBE: NRS 450.525 & 450.530 - GPO 
Term: One Time Purchase      
Amount: $624,029.19        
Out Clause:  30 days w/o cause 
 

BACKGROUND: 
 
This request is to enter into a new Agreement with Getinge USA, LLC (“Getinge”) for the purchase of four (4) 
Cardiohelp Systems (“ECMO Machines”) at a cost of $624,029.19. These ECMO machines are compact, 
highly portable and can be quickly deployed to transport patients within the hospital requiring respiratory and 
circulatory support. This purchase will also alleviate the need to lease ECMO machines.  
 
This Agreement is being entered into pursuant to UMC’s agreement with HealthTrust Purchasing Group 
(“HPG”).  HPG is a Group Purchasing Organization of which UMC is a member.  This request is in 
compliance with NRS 450.525 and NRS 450.530; attached is the bid summary sheet and a sworn statement 
from an HPG executive verifying that the pricing was obtained through a competitive bid process. 
 
UMC’s Assistant Chief Nursing Officer has reviewed and recommends approval of this Agreement.  This 
Agreement has been approved as to form by UMC’s Office of General Counsel. 
 
This Agreement was reviewed by the Governing Board Audit and Finance Committee at their February 21, 
2024 meeting and recommended for approval by the Governing Board. 
 
 
 
 

Page 594 of 853



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Acute Care Therapy 
Solutions 

 
 
 
 
 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF 
SOUTHERN NEVADA / 128130 

1800 W CHARLESTON BLVD 

LAS VEGAS, Nevada 89102 
 
 
 
 
 

Quote Date: 11/20/2023 
 

Follow Us! 

Page 595 of 853



 

 
 

Getinge USA Sales, LLC UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN 
NEVADA / 128130 
1 Geoffrey Way, Wayne NJ 07470 1800 W CHARLESTON BLVD, LAS VEGAS, Nevada 89102 
Maria Villanueva,  
maria.villanueva@getinge.com 

Quote Number: 000318100.1 
11/20/2023 

 
Getinge USA Sales, LLC (“Getinge”) is pleased to submit the following quotation for the products and services described herein at the stated prices and terms, 
subject to your acceptance of the terms and conditions as listed below and/or on all attached pages. This quotation is subject to final approval by Getinge and is 
not considered firm or binding until accepted by the corporate offices and an order acknowledgement is issued to you (“Customer”). 
This proposal and pricing terms are considered proprietary and confidential. This document cannot be shared or provided to any other 3rd party organization or 
personnel without the expressed written consent of Getinge. 

 
This quotation is in US dollars: 
Quotation will be governed by HPG Agreement 4718 / 4719 
Valid until 4/9/2024 
Proposal based on: HEALTHTRUST CP 4718 / 4719 
Shipping terms: FOB SHIPPING POINT – Freight Prepaid and Added 
Freight charges and applicable taxes, if any, are payable upon receipt of invoice. 
Delivery subject to availability 

 
 
 
 

UNLESS THIS QUOTATION HAS BEEN DESIGNATED BY GETINGE AS BEING GOVERNED BY AN APPLICABLE GROUP PURCHASING ORGANIZATION OR INTEGRATED 
DELIVERY NETWORK AGREEMENT, THIS QUOTATION WILL BE GOVERNED BY GETINGE’S STANDARD CONDITIONS OF SALE FOUND AT: 
getinge.com/salesandserviceterms. Any prior or collateral agreements, representations, promises or conditions, whether written or oral, in connection herewith, are superseded 
hereby. No modifications, waivers or termination of any provisions contained in this Agreement or any future agreements, representations, promises or conditions in connection with 
the subject matter hereof shall be binding upon Getinge unless made in writing and signed by an authorized officer thereof. Acceptance of any Customer’s purchase order does not 
operate as acceptance of any different or additional terms. None of Getinge’s terms may be rejected or revoked by Customer without the consent of Getinge’s Legal Team. If you 
have any questions about this Agreement, please contact your local Getinge Sales Representative. By signing this Quotation, you agree that you have reviewed and accepted 
Getinge’s Standard Conditions of Sale available at getinge.com/salesandserviceterms, and that you accept and agree to all of the terms hereof. 

 
 

PRESENTED BY: CUSTOMER'S ACCEPTANCE 
 

By:    
Name:  Maria Villanueva Name: Mason Van Houweling 
Title: Title: CEO 
Date: 11/20/2023 Date:    

Page 596 of 853

mailto:maria.villanueva@getinge.com
https://www.getinge.com/us/about-us/us-terms-and-conditions
https://www.getinge.com/us/about-us/us-terms-and-conditions


Getinge USA Sales, LLC 
1 Geoffrey Way, Wayne NJ 07470 
Maria Villanueva, 
maria.villanueva@getinge.com 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA / 
128130 1800 W CHARLESTON BLVD, LAS VEGAS, Nevada 

89102 

Quote Number: 000318100.1 
11/20/2023 

Page 3 of 9 

 

 

 

 GETINGE PRODUCT QUOTE SUMMARY  

Description  Total Price 
Cardiohelp Bundle   
Blender   
HLS Sets   
Freight Charge   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

GETINGE proposal total : $ 624,029.19 
 

 

 
Through Getinge Financial Services, we offer alternatives outside of a cash purchase. Our acquisition solutions can be tailored to meet the specific financial and strategic needs of your 
organization. If you would like to learn more, please reach out to your sales representative. 

Page 597 of 853

mailto:maria.villanueva@getinge.com


Getinge USA Sales, LLC 
1 Geoffrey Way, Wayne NJ 07470 
Maria Villanueva, 
maria.villanueva@getinge.com 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA / 
128130 1800 W CHARLESTON BLVD, LAS VEGAS, Nevada 

89102 

Quote Number: 000318100.1 
11/20/2023 

Page 4 of 9 

 

 

 

Cardiohelp Bundle 
Quote Line Items 

 

 
701072780 CARDIOHELP-i 4     

 

 
701054184 SPRINTER CART XL 4     

 

 
701053386 Top shelf kit for Cardiohelp (XL) 4     

 

 
701054144 Drawer slide for hyperthermia 

devices 
4     

 

 
701033599 INFUSION POLE 4     

 

 
701040809 GAS BOTTLE HOLDER 4     

 

 
701048006 CARDIOHELP Emergency Drive 

Holder, Mast 
4     

 

 

Part Number Description Qty 

Cardiohelp & Sprinter Cart Bundle 4 

Unit 
List Price 

 

Unit 
Contract Price 

 

Unit 
Discounted Price 

 

 
Discounted Price 

 

Description: 
CARDIOHELP-i incl. Emergency Drive, Flow-/bubble sensor, Venous Probe, Connection cable disposable 

Description: 
SPRINTER CART XL Base unit 

Description: 
TOP SHELF KIT FOR CARDIOHELP (SPRINTER CART XL) 

Description: 
SHELF KIT FOR HYPERTHERMIA DEVICES (SPRINTER CART XL) 

Description: 
Old Material Number: 1033599 

Description: 
Old Material Number: 1040809 

Description: 
CARDIOHELP Emergency Drive holder 
for mast system 

Page 598 of 853

mailto:maria.villanueva@getinge.com


Getinge USA Sales, LLC 
1 Geoffrey Way, Wayne NJ 07470 
Maria Villanueva, 
maria.villanueva@getinge.com 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA / 
128130 1800 W CHARLESTON BLVD, LAS VEGAS, Nevada 

89102 

Quote Number: 000318100.1 
11/20/2023 

Page 5 of 9 

 

 

 

701052902 70105.2902#CARDIOHELP Country 
Kit EnglUS 

4     

 

 
 

Total Price: $ 496,800.00 
 

Description: 
CARDIOHELP Country Kit English US incl. User's manual and Power supply cord 

Page 599 of 853

mailto:maria.villanueva@getinge.com


Getinge USA Sales, LLC 
1 Geoffrey Way, Wayne NJ 07470 
Maria Villanueva, 
maria.villanueva@getinge.com 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA / 
128130 1800 W CHARLESTON BLVD, LAS VEGAS, Nevada 

89102 

Quote Number: 000318100.1 
11/20/2023 

Page 6 of 9 

 

 

 
Blender 

Quote Line Items 
 

 
Description: 
Old Material Number: 0510119 

 

 

 

Total Price: $ 17,761.32 
 

Part Number Description Qty 

701010888 Air/Oxygen gas mixer "SGB 20-232" 4 

Unit 
List Price 

 

Unit 
Contract Price 

 

Unit 
Discounted Price 

 

 
Discounted Price 

 

Page 600 of 853

mailto:maria.villanueva@getinge.com


Getinge USA Sales, LLC 
1 Geoffrey Way, Wayne NJ 07470 
Maria Villanueva, 
maria.villanueva@getinge.com 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA / 
128130 1800 W CHARLESTON BLVD, LAS VEGAS, Nevada 

89102 

Quote Number: 000318100.1 
11/20/2023 

Page 7 of 9 

 

 

 
HLS Sets 

Quote Line Items 
 

 
Description: 
This replaces part # 701052794 

 

 

 

Total Price: $ 97,232.00 
 

Part Number Description Qty 

701069078 BEQ-HLS 7050 USA #SHLS Set 
Advanced 7.0 

8 

Unit 
List Price 

 

Unit 
Contract Price 

 

Unit 
Discounted Price 

 

 
Discounted Price 

 

Page 601 of 853

mailto:maria.villanueva@getinge.com


Getinge USA Sales, LLC 
1 Geoffrey Way, Wayne NJ 07470 
Maria Villanueva, 
maria.villanueva@getinge.com 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA / 
128130 1800 W CHARLESTON BLVD, LAS VEGAS, Nevada 

89102 

Quote Number: 000318100.1 
11/20/2023 

Page 8 of 9 

 

 

 

Page 602 of 853

mailto:maria.villanueva@getinge.com


 

 

 

Page 603 of 853



REVISED 7/25/2014 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING THE  

DISCLOSURE OF OWNERSHIP/PRINCIPALS FORM 

Purpose of the Form 

 

The purpose of the Disclosure of Ownership/Principals Form is to gather ownership information pertaining to the business entity for use by the University Medical 

Center of Southern Nevada Governing Board (“GB”) in determining whether members of the GB should exclude themselves from voting on agenda items where 

they have, or may be perceived as having a conflict of interest, and to determine compliance with Nevada Revised Statute 281A.430, contracts in which a public 
officer or employee has interest is prohibited. 
 

General Instructions 
 

Completion and submission of this Form is a condition of approval or renewal of a contract or lease and/or release of monetary funding between the disclosing 
entity and University Medical Center of Southern Nevada.  Failure to submit the requested information may result in a refusal by the GB to enter into an 

agreement/contract and/or release monetary funding to such disclosing entity. 
 

Detailed Instructions 
 

All sections of the Disclosure of Ownership form must be completed.  If not applicable, write in N/A. 
 

Business Entity Type – Indicate if the entity is an Individual, Partnership, Limited Liability Company, Corporation, Trust, Non-profit Organization, or Other.  

When selecting ‘Other’, provide a description of the legal entity. 
 

Non-Profit Organization (NPO) - Any non-profit corporation, group, association, or corporation duly filed and registered as required by state law. 
 

Business Designation Group – Indicate if the entity is a Minority Owned Business Enterprise (MBE), Women-Owned Business Enterprise (WBE), Small 

Business Enterprise (SBE), Physically-Challenged Business Enterprise (PBE), Veteran Owned Business (VET), Disabled Veteran Owned Business (DVET), or 

Emerging Small Business (ESB) . This is needed in order to provide utilization statistics to the Legislative Council Bureau, and will be used only for such 
purpose.   
 

 Minority Owned Business Enterprise (MBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function and 

is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more minority persons of Black American, Hispanic American, Asian-Pacific American or Native 

American ethnicity. 

 Women Owned Business Enterprise (WBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function and 

is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more women. 

 Physically-Challenged Business Enterprise (PBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful 

function and is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more disabled individuals pursuant to the federal Americans with Disabilities Act. 

 Small Business Enterprise (SBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function, is not owned 

and controlled by individuals designated as minority, women, or physically-challenged, and where gross annual sales does not exceed $2,000,000. 

 Veteran Owned Business Enterprise (VET): An independent and continuing Nevada business for profit which performs a commercially useful 

function and is at least 51 percent owned and controlled by one or more U.S. Veterans. 

 Disabled Veteran Owned Business Enterprise (DVET):  A Nevada business at least 51 percent owned/controlled by a disabled veteran. 

 Emerging Small Business (ESB): Certified by the Nevada Governor's Office of Economic Development effective January, 2014. Approved into 

Nevada law during the 77th Legislative session as a result of AB294. 
 

Business Name (include d.b.a., if applicable) – Enter the legal name of the business entity and enter the “Doing Business As” (d.b.a.) name, if applicable.   
 

Corporate/Business Address, Business Telephone, Business Fax, and Email – Enter the street address, telephone and fax numbers, and email of the named 

business entity.   
 

Nevada Local Business Address, Local Business Telephone, Local Business Fax, and Email – If business entity is out-of-state, but operates the business from a 
location in Nevada, enter the Nevada street address, telephone and fax numbers, point of contact and email of the local office. Please note that the local address 

must be an address from which the business is operating from that location. Please do not include a P.O. Box number, unless required by the U.S. Postal Service, 

or a business license hanging address. 
 

Number of Clark County Nevada Residents employed by this firm. (Do not leave blank. If none or zero, put the number 0 in the space provided.) 
 

List of Owners/Officers – Include the full name, title and percentage of ownership of each person who has ownership or financial interest in the business entity.  If 

the business is a publicly-traded corporation or non-profit organization, list all Corporate Officers and Directors only.   
 

For All Contracts – (Not required for publicly-traded corporations) 
1) Indicate if any individual members, partners, owners or principals involved in the business entity are a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 

full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s).  If yes, the following paragraph applies. 

 

In accordance with NRS 281A.430.1, a public officer or employee shall not bid on or enter into a contract between a government agency and any 

private business in which he has a significant financial interest, except as provided for in subsections 2, 3, and 4. 
 

2) Indicate if any individual members, partners, owners or principals involved in the business entity have a second degree of consanguinity or affinity 

relation to a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s) (reference form on Page 2 for 

definition).  If YES, complete the Disclosure of Relationship Form.  
 

A professional service is defined as a business entity that offers business/financial consulting, legal, physician, architect, engineer or other professional services. 
 

Signature and Print Name – Requires signature of an authorized representative and the date signed. 
 

Disclosure of Relationship Form – If any individual members, partners, owners or principals of the business entity is presently a University Medical Center of 

Southern Nevada employee, public officer or official, or has a second degree of consanguinity or affinity relationship to a University Medical Center of Southern 
Nevada employee, public officer or official, this section must be completed in its entirety.   

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FB233CB9-5BD5-4E77-9DDE-70B483BD485A

Page 604 of 853



DISCLOSURE OF OWNERSHIP/PRINCIPALS 

1 
REVISED 7/25/2014 

 

Business Entity Type (Please select one) 

 Sole 
Proprietorship 

Partnership 
x Limited Liability 
Company  

 Corporation  Trust 
 Non-Profit   

Organization 
  Other 

Business Designation Group (Please select all that apply) 

 MBE  WBE  SBE  PBE  VET DVET  ESB 

Minority Business 
Enterprise 

Women-Owned 
Business 
Enterprise 

Small Business 
Enterprise 

Physically Challenged 
Business Enterprise 

Veteran Owned 
Business 

Disabled Veteran 
Owned Business 

Emerging Small 
Business 

 

Number of Clark County Nevada Residents Employed: 

  

Corporate/Business Entity Name:  Getinge USA Sales LLC 

(Include d.b.a., if applicable)  

Street Address: 1 Geoffrey Way Website: https://www.getinge.com/us/ 

City, State and Zip Code: 
Wayne, NJ 07470  POC Name: 

Email: customercare-US@getinge.com 

Telephone No: 888-943-8872 Fax No: 

Nevada Local Street Address: 

(If different from above) 

 Website: 

 City, State and Zip Code:  Local Fax No: 

Local Telephone No: 
 Local POC Name: 

Email: 

All entities, with the exception of publicly-traded and non-profit organizations, must list the names of individuals holding more than five percent (5%) ownership or 
financial interest in the business entity appearing before the Board. 
 
Publicly-traded entities and non-profit organizations shall list all Corporate Officers and Directors in lieu of disclosing the names of individuals with 

ownership or financial interest. The disclosure requirement, as applied to land-use applications, extends to the applicant and the landowner(s). 

Entities include all business associations organized under or governed by Title 7 of the Nevada Revised Statutes, including but not limited to private corporations, 

close corporations, foreign corporations, limited liability companies, partnerships, limited partnerships, and professional corporations. 

 

  Full Name  Title  % Owned 
(Not required for Publicly Traded 

Corporations/Non-profit organizations) 

 

DataScope Corp  
  N/A                        100%  

      

      

      

This section is not required for publicly-traded corporations.  Are you a publicly-traded corporation?             Yes       No 

1. Are any individual members, partners, owners or principals, involved in the business entity, a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time 
employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s)? 

  Yes x  No (If yes, please note that University Medical Center of Southern Nevada employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s) may not 
perform any work on professional service contracts, or other contracts, which are not subject to competitive bid.) 

 

2. Do any individual members, partners, owners or principals have a spouse, registered domestic partner, child, parent, in-law or brother/sister, half-brother/half-
sister, grandchild, grandparent, related to a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s)? 

  Yes x  No (If yes, please complete the Disclosure of Relationship form on Page 2.  If no, please print N/A on Page 2.)  

 

I certify under penalty of perjury, that all of the information provided herein is current, complete, and accurate. I also understand that the University Medical Center of 
Southern Nevada Governing Board will not take action on land-use approvals, contract approvals, land sales, leases or exchanges without the completed disclosure 
form. 

 

    

Signature 
 

 Print Name  

    

Title  Date  

DocuSign Envelope ID: FB233CB9-5BD5-4E77-9DDE-70B483BD485A

1/2/2024

Vivian E. Marini

Senior Manager, Commercial Support

Page 605 of 853



DISCLOSURE OF RELATIONSHIP 

2 
REVISED 7/25/2014 

 

 
List any disclosures below: 
(Mark N/A, if not applicable.) 

 

NAME OF BUSINESS 
OWNER/PRINCIPAL 

NAME OF UMC* 
EMPLOYEE/OFFICIAL 

AND JOB TITLE 

RELATIONSHIP TO 
 UMC* 

EMPLOYEE/OFFICIAL 

UMC* 
EMPLOYEE’S/OFFICIAL’S 

DEPARTMENT 

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 
* UMC employee means an employee of University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 
 
“Consanguinity” is a relationship by blood.  “Affinity” is a relationship by marriage. 
 
“To the second degree of consanguinity” applies to the candidate’s first and second degree of blood relatives as 
follows: 
 

 Spouse – Registered Domestic Partners – Children – Parents – In-laws (first degree) 
 

 Brothers/Sisters – Half-Brothers/Half-Sisters – Grandchildren – Grandparents – In-laws (second degree) 
 
 

 
For UMC Use Only: 

 
If any Disclosure of Relationship is noted above, please complete the following:     
 

  Yes     No   Is the UMC employee(s) noted above involved in the contracting/selection process for this particular agenda item? 
 

  Yes     No   Is the UMC employee(s) noted above involved in any way with the business in performance of the contract? 
 
Notes/Comments: 
 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Signature  
 
____________________________________ 
Print Name  
Authorized Department Representative 

 
 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: FB233CB9-5BD5-4E77-9DDE-70B483BD485A

Page 606 of 853



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
February 28, 2024 

 
 

 

Agenda Item #  

18 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD  

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Issue: Agreement for Contingent Permanent Placement with Optimum 

Healthcare Solutions, LLC 
 

 
Back-up: 
      

 
Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer 

 
Clerk Ref. # 
      

 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Governing Board approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the 
Agreement for Contingent Permanent Placement with Optimum Healthcare Solutions, 
LLC; authorize the Chief Executive Officer to execute extensions and amendments; or 
take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
Fund Number: 5420.000      Fund Name:  UMC Operating Fund 
Fund Center: 3000714200                           Funded Pgm/Grant: N/A 
Description: Permanent Placement Services for Radiologists        
Bid/RFP/CBE: NRS 332.115(1)(b) – Professional Services  
Term: 2 years from Effective Date      
Amount: NTE $550,000        
Out Clause: Upon notice w/o cause 
 

BACKGROUND: 
 
This request is to enter into a new Agreement for Contingent Permanent Placement with Optimum Healthcare 
Solutions, LLC (“Optimum”) for recruitment of qualified physicians and/or advanced practitioners.  UMC 
intends to utilize this Agreement in its recruitment of Radiologists. UMC will compensate Optimum a 
placement fee of 16% of a candidate’s first year salary for every candidate referred that becomes employed. 
The Agreement includes a guarantee of 90 days of employment or UMC receives a refund of the placement 
fee or credit towards a replacement candidate. 
 
The Agreement is for a term of two (2) years from the effective date, unless terminated with written notice.  
Staff also requests authorization for the Hospital CEO to execute extension options and amendments that are 
within his yearly delegation of authority if deemed beneficial to UMC. 
 
UMC’s Executive Director of Support Services has reviewed and recommends approval of this Agreement.  
This Agreement has been approved as to form by UMC’s Office of General Counsel. 
 
 

Page 607 of 853



Page Number 
2 

This Agreement was reviewed by the Governing Board Audit and Finance Committee at their February 21, 
2024 meeting and recommended for approval by the Governing Board. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 608 of 853



1 

 

 

 
 

CONTINGENT PERMANENT PLACEMENT AGREEMENT 
 
This Contingent Permanent Placement Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered into by 
and between Optimum Healthcare Solutions, LLC (“Optimum”), located at 22 Roulston 
Road, Windham, New Hampshire 03087, and University Medical Center of Southern 
Nevada (“Client” or “UMC”), located at 1800 W. Charleston Blvd, Las Vegas, NV 89102 as 
of the last date signed below (the “Effective Date”). 

 

1. Optimum Responsibilities: Optimum shall extend its best efforts to identify and recruit 
qualified physicians and/or advanced practitioners (each a “Candidate”) for employment by 
Client who satisfies the criteria as established by Client. This includes screening, interviewing 
and presenting those Candidates that are interested in the Client’s position as well as assisting 
with the planning, coordination and follow up of all Candidate site visits. 

 
2. Client Responsibilities: Client shall provide Optimum with recruitment specifications and 
general contract terms. Client shall notify Optimum in writing within ten (10) business days of 
initial presentation of Candidate by Optimum if Candidate is already known to Client, otherwise 
Candidate shall be conclusively presumed to have been introduced by Optimum. Client shall 
assume financial responsibility for the travel and recruitment expenses for all Candidate visits 
(with prior written approval by Client and with compliance with Client’s travel policy). Client 
shall provide timely feedback to Optimum regarding Candidate on-site visits and the status of 
contract negotiations. Employment negotiations will be between Client and Candidate and all 
offers of employment will be tendered to Candidate directly. Client is responsible for reference 
checks, employment verifications, license verifications, reviewing credentials, and any other 
employment related verifications and documentation required by Client to employ Candidate. 

 
3. Fee: In consideration of such recruitment efforts, Client shall pay to Optimum a placement fee 

of 16% of each Candidates first years annual salary (“Placement Fee”) for every Candidate 
referred by Optimum that becomes employed by or independently contracted with Client or any 
other facility for which Client is recruiting excepting Excluded Candidates. One hundred percent 
of the Placement Fee is due net thirty receipt of invoice issued by Optimum following  the first 
date of Candidate’s employment. Client shall send Optimum a copy of the Candidate’s offer 
letter confirming the Candidate’s start date and Candidate’s first year’s annual salary. 
Additionally, should a Candidate except for Excluded Candidates presented for consideration by 
Optimum be recruited by Client or any other facility for which Client is recruiting for employment 
within one year of the date of the initial presentment, the entire Placement Fee shall be due and 
payable to Optimum. Invoices are due and payable net thirty (30) days of receipt.  Excluded 
Candidate means a Candidate (i) identified from another source such as another referral or 
recruitment agency; (ii) known to Client prior to the Effective Date (iii) responding to general 
advertisements, job fairs, or public solicitations prior to Optimum submitting Candidate; or (iv) 
submitting unsolicited resumes or applications for employment. 

 
Guarantee: Optimum shall warrant the Candidate’s placement for a period of ninety (90) days 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 48E4BD98-2837-4917-A53C-CC3FA06A0993

Page 609 of 853



2 

 

 

from Candidate’s employment start date with Client. If the hired Candidate’s employment is 
found unacceptable or terminated for any reason or the Candidate voluntarily leaves other than as 
a result of reorganization, elimination of position, takeover, or material change in job 
responsibility of Candidate within ninety (90) days from the start date, Optimum shall refund the 
Placement Fee paid or issue a credit for such amount in the event Optimum provides a 
replacement. Optimum will not be responsible for replacement candidates but will use 
reasonable efforts to provide additional candidates at Client’s request. If payment is not received 
within 30 days of invoice date, the guarantee described in this Section 4 is considered void. 

 
4. Termination: The term of this Agreement shall remain in effect for a period of two (2) years 
from the Effective Date unless earlier terminated in accordance with the provisions herein or 
amended by the parties in writing. Either party may terminate this Agreement upon written 
notice to the other party. In the event the Agreement is terminated, all provisions of this 
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect with respect to Candidate referrals and fees 
owed. 

 
5. BUDGET ACT AND FISCAL FUND OUT: In accordance with the Nevada Revised Statutes 

(NRS 354.626), the financial obligations under the Agreement between the parties shall not 
exceed those monies appropriated and approved by Client for the then current fiscal year under 
the Local Government Budget Act. The Agreement shall terminate and Client's obligations under 
it shall be extinguished at the end of any of Client's fiscal years in which Client’s governing body 
fails to appropriate monies for the ensuing fiscal year sufficient for the payment of all amounts 
which could then become due under the Agreement. Client agrees that this Section shall not be 
utilized as a subterfuge or in a discriminatory fashion as it relates to the Agreement. In the event 
this Section is invoked, the Agreement will expire on the 30th day of June of the then current 
fiscal year. Termination under this Section shall not relieve Client of its obligations incurred 
through the 30th day of June of the fiscal year for which monies were appropriated. 
 
6. Confidentiality: All information, whether written or oral which is requested from or 
voluntarily furnished by Client shall be held in the strictest of confidence and used only for the 
purposes specified in this Agreement. 
 
7. Public Records Act. Optimum acknowledges that Client is public county-owned Client 
which is subject to the provisions of the Nevada Public Records Act, Nevada Revised Statutes 
Chapter 239, as may be amended from time to time, and as such its contracts are public 
documents available to copying and inspection by the public.  If Client receives a demand for the 
disclosure of any information related to this Agreement which Optimum has claimed to be 
confidential and proprietary, such as Optimum’s pricing, programs, services, business practices or 
procedures, Client will immediately notify Optimum of such demand and Optimum shall 
immediately notify Client of its intention to seek injunctive relief in a Nevada court for a 
protective order or to provide a redacted version of the public record sought.  Optimum shall 
indemnify and defend Client from any claims or actions, including all associated costs and 
attorney’s fees, demanding the disclosure of Optimum document in Client’s custody and control 
in which Optimum claims to be confidential and proprietary. 

 
8. Release and Indemnity: Client agrees that the decision to hire, retain or otherwise enter into 
a working arrangement with any candidate identified by Optimum is made at the sole discretion 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 48E4BD98-2837-4917-A53C-CC3FA06A0993

Page 610 of 853



3 

 

 

of Client. 
 
9. Resolution of Disputes and Governing Law: Any dispute whether in tort, contract or 
otherwise arising out of or relating to this Agreement in any way shall be governed exclusively 
by the law of the State of Nevada without giving effect to its conflict of law principles. Each 
Party consents to the exclusive jurisdiction of the state and federal courts of the State of Nevada 
for the resolution of all disputes related to or arising out of this Agreement. This provision shall 
survive the termination of this Agreement. 

 
10. Entire Agreement: This Agreement contains the entire agreement between Client and 
Optimum and supersedes any and all prior agreements, contracts, and understandings, written or 
oral, between the parties relating to the subject matter hereof. Any modifications to this 
Agreement must be made in writing and signed both by Client and Optimum. 

 
 Counterparts: This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of 
which, so executed, shall be deemed to be an original and such counterpart shall together 
constitute one in the same agreement. 
 

11. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS. The parties shall comply with all applicable federal, state 
and local laws, regulations and rules. 
 

12. PUBLIC LAW:  In compliance with 42 USC 1935x (v)(1)(I), for a period of four years after 
the furnishing of the supplies, services, and/or equipment covered by this Agreement, 
OPTIMUM or any sub-contractor under this Agreement agree to make available to the 
Secretary of Health and Human Services, books, documents and records which relate to the 
cost of the items provided under this contract. This public law affects those sellers who 
anticipate our annual purchases to be $10,000.00 or more. 

 
13. NON-EXCLUDED HEALTHCARE PROVIDER:  OPTIMUM represents and warrants to 

Customer that neither it nor any of its affiliates (a) are excluded from participation in any 
federal health care program, as defined under 42 U.S.C. §1320a-7b (f), for the provision of 
goods or services for which payment may be made under such federal health care programs 
and (b) has arranged or contracted (by employment or otherwise) with any employee, 
contractor or agent that such party or its affiliates know or should know are excluded from 
participation in any federal health care program, to provide goods or services hereunder.  
OPTIMUM represents and warrants to Customer that no final adverse action, as such term is 
defined under 42 U.S.C. §1320a-7e (g), has occurred or is pending or threatened against 
such OPTIMUM or its affiliates or to their knowledge against any employee, contractor or 
agent engaged to provide goods or services under the Agreement. 

 
14. PROGRAM FRAUD AND FALSE OR FRAUDULENT STATEMENTS OR RELATED 

ACTS: OPTIMUM acknowledges that 31 U.S.C. Chap. 38 (Administrative Remedies for 
False Claims and Statements) applies to OPTIMUM’s actions pertaining to this contract. 

 
15. COMPLIANCE WITH THE COPELAND “ANTI-KICKBACK” ACT: OPTIMUM shall 

comply with 18 U.S.C. § 874, 40 U.S.C. § 3145, and the requirements of 29 C.F.R. pt. 3 as 
may be applicable, which are incorporated by reference into this contract. A breach of the 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 48E4BD98-2837-4917-A53C-CC3FA06A0993

Page 611 of 853



4 

contract clauses above may be grounds for termination of the contract, and for debarment as 
a contractor and subcontractor as provided in 29 C.F.R. § 5.12. 

16. Insurance. Optimum agrees to maintain appropriate general, and blanket contractual
liability insurance for its operations in the amount of not less than one million dollars
($1,000,000) per occurrence and two million dollars ($2,000,000) in the aggregate during the
term of this Agreement. Optimum agrees to maintain workers compensation insurance
within statutory limits during the term of this Agreement. Optimum shall provide a
certificate of insurance to Client evidencing such coverages. Client is owned and operated by
Clark County pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 450 of the Nevada Revised Statutes.
Clark County is a political subdivision of the State of Nevada. As such, Clark County and
Client are protected by the limited waiver of sovereign immunity in Chapter 41 of the
Nevada Revised Statutes. Client is self-insured as allowed by Chapter 41 of the Nevada
Revised Statutes. Upon request, Client will provide Optimum with a Certificate of Coverage
prepared by its Risk Management Department certifying such self-coverage.

17. Waiver. The failure of either party to enforce the strict terms of this Agreement shall not
constitute a waiver of these terms.

18. Notices. Any notices to be given hereunder by either party to the other shall be deemed to be
received by the intended recipient: (a) when delivered personally; (b) the day following delivery
to a nationally recognized overnight courier service with proof of delivery; or (c) three (3) days
after mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid with return receipt requested, in each case
addressed to the parties at the addresses set forth above or at any other address designated by the
parties in writing.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed by their 
duly authorized representatives as of the date written below. 

OPTIMUM: CLIENT: 

By: _____________________________ By: _________________________________ 

Name: _Heather Croke_____________ Name: _______________________________ 

Title: ___CPO____________________ Title: ________________________________ 

Date: ___________________________ Date: ________________________________ 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 48E4BD98-2837-4917-A53C-CC3FA06A0993

2/15/2024 | 9:26 AM EST

Page 612 of 853



Page 613 of 853



Page 614 of 853



Page 615 of 853



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
February 28, 2024 

 
 

 

Agenda Item #  

19 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD  

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Issue: Professional Services Agreement with Meena P. Vohra, M.D. dba Las 

Vegas Pediatric Critical Care Associates 
 

 
Back-up: 
      

 
Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer 

 
Clerk Ref. # 
      

 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Governing Board approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the 
Professional Services Agreement with Meena P. Vohra, M.D. dba Las Vegas Pediatric 
Critical Care Associates; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
Fund Number: 5420.000      Fund Name:  UMC Operating Fund 
Fund Center: 3000861000     Funded Pgm/Grant: N/A 
Description: Pediatric Critical Care Services      
Bid/RFP/CBE: NRS 332.115(1)(b) – Professional Services 
Term: 03/01/2024 – 02/28/2029 
Amount: Professional Services - $2,140,600 annual                                

  Medical Directorship - NTE $17,200 annual     
Out Clause:  365 days w/o cause 
 

BACKGROUND: 
 
This request is to enter into a new Professional Services Agreement (“Agreement”) for Clinical Services with 
Meena P. Vohra, M.D. dba Las Vegas Pediatric Critical Care Associates (“Provider”).  Provider will provide 
full-time pediatric critical care service coverage to patients within UMC’s pediatric trauma and emergency 
departments, to include examination, assessment, diagnosis, medical intervention, and follow-up inpatient care 
in a professional manner in the best interest of patients and in accordance with community standards. Provider 
will also provide clinical services for pediatric sedation for inpatients and outpatients, on a scheduled basis.  
 
UMC will compensate Provider $2,140,600 per year for professional services and $17,200 per year for 
medical directorship for five (5) years from March 1, 2024 through February 28, 2029, unless terminated with 
a 365-day written notice to the other. 
 
UMC’s Support Services Executive Director has reviewed and recommends approval of this Agreement.  This 
Agreement has been approved as to form by UMC’s Office of General Counsel. 
 
Provider currently holds a Clark County business license. 
 
 

Page 616 of 853



Page Number 
2 

This Agreement was reviewed by the Governing Board Audit and Finance Committee at their February 21, 
2024 meeting and recommended for approval by the Governing Board. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 617 of 853



Page 618 of 853



Page 619 of 853



Page 620 of 853



Page 621 of 853



Page 622 of 853



Page 623 of 853



Page 624 of 853



Page 625 of 853



Page 626 of 853



Page 627 of 853



Page 628 of 853



Page 629 of 853



Page 630 of 853



Page 631 of 853



Page 632 of 853



Page 633 of 853



Page 634 of 853



Page 635 of 853



Page 636 of 853



Page 637 of 853



Page 638 of 853



Page 639 of 853



Page 640 of 853



Page 641 of 853



Page 642 of 853



Page 643 of 853



Page 644 of 853



Page 645 of 853



Page 646 of 853



Page 647 of 853



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
February 28, 2024 

 
 

 

Agenda Item #  

20 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD  

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Issue: Report of an Emergency Contract Action for Chilled Water Line Repair 
 

 
Back-up: 
      

 
Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer 

 
Clerk Ref. # 
      

 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Governing Board approve the report on the emergency repairs of a chilled water 
line repair; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
Fund #:  5430.011                       Fund Name:  UMC Operating Fund 
Fund Center:  999901                       Funded Pgm/Grant:  N/A 
Amount:  $312,822.25 chilled water line repair 
Description: Report of Emergency Contract Actions 
 

BACKGROUND: 
 
On December 22, 2023, a primary chilled water line ruptured under the walk way that connects Trauma to the 
main campus. The rupture resulted in the campus losing all of its chilled water supply disrupting HVAC 
cooling for the main campus, as well as lifting the asphalt near the Adult ED ambulance parking area.  Clark 
Welding & Fabricating was called out immediately to address the leak and loss of cooling.  A rental chiller, 
generator and fuel service was obtained to return chilled water service to the North East Building while 
corrections were being completed.  The repair of the chilled water main leak and rental chiller resulted in a 
cost to UMC of $312,822.25.  
 
These circumstances meet the definition of an emergency as set forth in NRS 338.011: 
 

Awarded to meet an emergency which results from a natural or artificially 
created disaster and which threatens the health, safety or welfare of the 
public.  

 
In accordance with NRS 338.011 (2), if the public body or its authorized representative determines that an 
emergency exists, a contract or contracts necessary to contend with the emergency may be let without 
complying with the requirements of this chapter. If such emergency action was taken by the authorized 
representative, he or she shall report it to the public body at its next regularly scheduled meeting. 
 
This report was reviewed by the Governing Board Audit and Finance Committee at their February 21, 2024 
meeting and recommended for approval by the Governing Board. 
 
 

Page 648 of 853



Page 649 of 853



Page 650 of 853



Page 651 of 853



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
February 28, 2024 

 
 

 

Agenda Item #  

21 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD  

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Issue: Service Agreement with Stericycle, Inc. 
 

 
Back-up: 
      

 
Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer 

 
Clerk Ref. # 
      

 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Governing Board approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the 
Service Agreement with Stericycle, Inc. for Waste Disposal Services; or take action as 
deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
Fund Number: 5420.000       Fund Name:  UMC Operating Fund 
Fund Center: 3000846000                  Funded Pgm/Grant: N/A 
Description: Waste Disposal Services        
Bid/RFP/CBE: NRS 332.115(1)(b) – Professional services 
Term: 60 months      
Amount: $3,579,971.60        
Out Clause:  60-days with early termination fee / Budget Act and Fiscal Fund Out 
 

BACKGROUND: 
 
This request is to enter into a new Service Agreement (“Agreement”) with Stericycle, Inc. (“Stericycle”) for 
sharps pharmaceutical waste, hazardous waste, and controlled substance disposal.  Stericycle, Inc. will collect, 
transport, treat and dispose of all waste generated by UMC during the term of this Agreement. This 
Agreement will ensure that UMC is compliant with The Joint Commission Standards as well as EPA and DOT 
regulations.  
 
UMC will compensate Stericycle $3,579,971.60 for 60 months from the Effective date.  Either party may 
terminate this Agreement with a 60-day written notice to the other. 
 
This Agreement is being entered into pursuant to UMC’s agreement with HealthTrust Purchasing Group 
(“HPG”).  HPG is a Group Purchasing Organization of which UMC is a member.  This request is in 
compliance with NRS 450.525 and NRS 450.530; attached is the bid summary sheet and a sworn statement 
from an HPG executive verifying that the pricing was obtained through a competitive bid process. 
  
UMC’s Director of Environmental Services has reviewed and recommends approval of this Agreement. This 
Agreement has been approved as to form by UMC’s Office of General Counsel. 
 
This Agreement/Amendment was reviewed by the Governing Board Audit and Finance Committee at their 
February 21, 2024 meeting and recommended for approval by the Governing Board. 

Page 652 of 853



   
 

2023_HPG SMS, Rx, CsRx, Haz_V.3_ 2.16.24 jl   1 | P a g e  
 

                                       HealthTrust - HPG 2621 Exhibit C-1, C-2, C-3b, C-4 

                                    Master Service Agreement 

 
Customer Billing Information: 
Customer Name University Medical Center of Southern Nevada  Billing Attention  

Address 1 1800 W Charleston Boulevard Billing Name Portia Ealy 

Address 2  Contact Phone # 702-765-7930 

City/State/Zip Las Vegas, NV 89102 Contact Fax #  

Contact Title  Contact Email  

 
This Agreement is entered into as of March 1, 2024 between University Medical Center of Southern Nevada, a publicly owned and 
operated hospital created by virtue of Chapter 450 of the Nevada Revised Statutes, 1800 W. Charleston Blvd., Las Vegas, Nevada 
89102 (hereinafter referred to as "Customer"), and Stericycle, Inc., a  Delaware corporation, having a principal place of business a t 

2355 Waukegan Road, Bannockburn, Illinois 60015 (hereinafter referred to as "Stericycle”). 

 
Services to be Provided 

Regulated Medical Waste Disposal 

Treatment and disposal of medical and 
Bio-hazardous waste 

  Sharps Disposal Management  
Comprehensive proactive sharps disposal 

service with reusable containers 

Integrated Waste Stream Solutions  

All-encompassing on-site waste stream 
management services 

  Pharmaceutical Waste Disposal     
Help characterize, segregate, transport and 

properly dispose of pharmaceutical waste 

  Hazardous Waste Disposal 
Environmentally sound and flexible 

solution for all hazardous waste streams 

  Controlled Substance Disposal 
Full service solution for the proper 

disposal of controlled substances 

Service Details are referenced in Corresponding Attachments included herein.  

Agreement Effective Date: March 1, 2024   

Terms of Agreement: 60 Months  

Master Agreement ID: HealthTrust 2621 Exhibit C-1, C-2, C-3b, C-4 
 

This Waste Disposal  Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into in connection with that certain Purchasing Agreement, HPG -2621, dated July 1, 

2018  (the “Purchasing Agreement”) between HealthTrust Purchasing Group, L.P. (“HealthTrust”) and Stericycle, Inc. (“Stericycle” or “Ven dor”).  

The terms and provisions of the Purchasing Agreement are incorporated into this Agreement.  The terms and provisions of thi s Agreement are 

subject to and governed by the terms and provisions of the Purchasing Agreement.  In the event of a conflict between the terms of this Agreement 

and the Purchasing Agreement, the terms of this Agreement will control. Capitalized terms not defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed to 

such terms in the Purchasing Agreement. 
NOTE:  This Agreement contains obligations of mutual indemnification between Stericycle and you.  Reference is made to Sectio n 9 of this 

Agreement.    

By signing below, I acknowledge that I am Customer’s authorized officer or agent and that I have the authority to bind Customer to this Agreement.  

Each of Stericycle and  Customer agrees to be bound by the terms and conditions that appear in this Agreemen t and comply with Stericycle’s Waste 

Acceptance Policies, which are integral parts of this Agreement.  
 

 

Stericycle, Inc. Customer 

Service Provider Name: Stericycle, Inc. Customer Name: University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 

Representative Name:   Signee Name:  Mason Van Houweling 

Representative Title:   Signee Title:  CEO 

Date:   Date:   

Signature:   Signature:   

  GPO ID #: See Service Location Listing 

    

STERICYCLE USE ONLY 

Type of Agreement: Affiliation Code:_________ LQ Record #: 
Purchase Order #:_________ From:__/__/____ To: __/__/____ Segment Code:__________ LQ Contract #: 

Page 653 of 853



   
 

2023_HPG SMS, Rx, CsRx, Haz_V.3_ 2.16.24 jl   2 | P a g e  
 

GPO Agreement:  HPG-2621 (GPO Agreement):    

 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 
1. Description of Services.  

a. Sharps Management Services Stericycle, Inc. has obtained all necessary licenses, permits, insurance and authorizations required to perform 

services hereunder and, upon request, shall furnish copies thereof to customer. Stericycle, Inc. shall collect, trans port, treat and dispose of all 

Sharps Waste (except Non-conforming Waste) generated by Customer during the term of this Agreement. Stericycle employees may refuse 

containers that are determined to be Non-conforming Waste as identified in the Waste Acceptance Policy (WAP) attached hereto as 

Attachment B.  The term or “Sharps Waste” as used herein is defined, for the most part, in the context of existing federal and state regu lations 

governing the management of “Regulated Medical Waste” (“RMW”).  Specifically, for the purpose of this Agreement, “Sharps Wa ste” is 

defined as any object contaminated with a pathogen or that may become contaminated with a pathogen through handling or during  
transportation and also capable of cutting or penetrating skin or a packaging material. Sharps include needles, syringes, scalpels, broken 

glass, culture slides, culture dishes, broken capillary tubes, broken rigid plastic, and exposed ends of dental wires. Customer shall place only 

“Sharps Waste” into the containers provided.  Customer warrants that the waste presented for d isposal will not contain any “hazardous”, 

“toxic”, or “radioactive” wastes as defined by all applicable laws or regulations and shall be liable for any injury, loss or  damage resulting 

from non-conforming waste.  Further definitions are part of this contract under the current WAP.  Stericycle reserves the right to change the 

WAP at any time to ensure compliance with applicable laws or regulations.  A copy of Stericycle’s Waste Acceptance Policy may  also be 

obtained from your local Stericycle representative. Title to Sharps Waste (other than Non-Conforming Waste) shall transfer to and vest in 

Stericycle at such time as such waste is loaded onto Stericycle vehicles.  Customer shall have title to the Sharps Waste at a ll prior times.  

Customer shall hold title to any Non-Conforming Waste at all times, whether refused for collection, returned to the Customer for proper 

disposal after collection or otherwise disposed of in accordance with Customer’s instructions or arrangements.  Stericycle co mplies with the 

current NIOSH Optimal Installation Height recommendations for the installation of Sharps containers.  Customer may choose to select  

heights outside of the recommendations but must so notify Stericycle prior to installation.  

b. Controlled Substance Waste Services. Stericycle, Inc. has obtained all necessary licenses, permits, insurance and authorizations required 

to perform services hereunder and, upon request, shall furnish copies thereof to customer. “Controlled Substances” mea ns those drugs, 

substances and certain chemicals used to make drugs which are scheduled, listed and/or described by (i) the Drug Enforcement Agency of 
the United States Department of Justice (see, www.dea.gov) and/or (ii) any other applicable federal or state laws, rules and regulations.  

“Controlled Substance Waste” means Controlled Substances that have been rendered unavailable and unusable for all practical p urposes. 

Controlled Substance Waste does not include any hazardous or radioactive waste, cytotoxic drugs or antineoplastic agents, bulk blood or 

other material not falling within the definition of Controlled Substance Waste to the extent such regulations specify Control led Substance 

Waste “Non-Conforming Waste.”   Stericycle, Inc. shall collect, transport, treat and dispose of all Controlled Substance Waste (except N on-

Conforming Waste) generated by Customer during the term of this Agreement at the service locations listed on Attachment A hereto. The 

services hereunder are described in more detail in Exhibit B hereto. Stericycle employees may refuse containers that are determined to be 

Non-Conforming Waste as defined above and identified in the Waste Acceptance Policy (“WAP”), which is  attached hereto as Attachment 

B. Customer shall place only Controlled Substance Waste into the containers provided.  Customer warrants that the waste presen ted for 

disposal will contain only Controlled Substance Waste and shall be liable for any injury, loss or damage resulting from Non-Conforming 

Waste.  Further definitions are part of this contract under the current WAP.  Stericycle reserves the right to change the WAP at any time to 

ensure compliance with applicable laws or regulations.  A copy of Stericycle’s Waste Acceptance Policy may also be obtained from your 

local Stericycle representative. Title to Controlled Substance Waste (other than Non -Conforming Waste) shall transfer to and vest in 

Stericycle at such time as such waste is loaded onto Stericycle vehicles.  Customer shall have title to the Controlled Substance Waste at all 

prior times.  Customer shall hold title to any Non-Conforming Waste at all times, whether refused for collection, returned to the Customer 

for proper disposal after collection or otherwise disposed of in accordance with Customer’s instructions or arrangements . 
c. Pharmaceutical Waste Compliance Services Stericycle, Inc. has obtained all necessary licenses, permits, insurance and authorizations 

required to perform services hereunder and, upon request, shall furnish copies thereof to customer. Stericycle, Inc. shall provide 

pharmaceutical waste compliance services to Customer as described in detail in Attachment A hereto. The services shall include, the pick-

up, transportation and disposal of Pharmaceutical Waste, which is defined as waste listed under the “Accepted Waste Streams” section of the 

Waste Acceptance Policy(“WAP”) attached hereto  as Attachment B, as the WAP may be amended to ensure compliance with applicable 

laws or regulations. A copy of Stericycle’s Waste Acceptance Policy may also be obtained from your local Stericycle represent ative.  

Customer warrants that the waste presented for disposal will conform to the WAP. Title to Pharmaceutical Waste (other than waste that does 

not conform to the requirements of the WAP (“Non -Conforming Waste”)) shall transfer to and vest in Stericycle at such time as such waste 

is loaded onto Stericycle vehicles.  Customer shall have title to the Pharmaceutical Waste at all prior times.  Customer shall hold title to any 

Non-Conforming Waste at all times, whether refused for collection, returned to the Customer for proper disposal after collection or otherwise 

disposed of in accordance with Customer’s instructions or arrangements.   

d. Hazardous Waste Services and Customer Responsibilities  

(i)  Certain capitalized terms as used in this Agreement or any attachment hereto shall have the definitions given to them in Exhibit A 

hereto.  Stericycle, Inc. has obtained all necessary licenses, permits, insurance and authorizations required to perform serv ices hereunder 

and, upon request, shall furnish copies thereof to customer. Stericycle will manage Customer’s Waste that are Hazardous Waste and/or 

Universal Waste, as more fully described in Attachment B. Customer shall place only Conforming Waste into the containers provided.  
Customer warrants that the Waste presented for disposal will not contain any Non -Conforming Waste and Customer shall be liable for 

any injury, loss or damage resulting from Non-Conforming Waste. Stericycle employees may refuse containers that are determined to 

contain Non-Conforming Waste or otherwise do not comply with Stericycle’s Waste Acceptance Policy ( “WAP”).  Stericycle reserves 

the right to change the WAP at any time to ensure compliance with applicable laws or regulations.  A copy of Stericycle’s Was te 

Page 654 of 853

http://www.dea.gov/


   
 

2023_HPG SMS, Rx, CsRx, Haz_V.3_ 2.16.24 jl   3 | P a g e  
 

Acceptance Policy may also be obtained from your local Stericycle representative. Title to Conforming Waste shall transfer to and vest 

in Stericycle at such time as such Waste is loaded onto Stericycle vehicles.  Customer shall have title to the Conforming Was te at all 

prior times.  Customer shall hold title to any Non-Conforming Waste at all times, whether refused for collection, returned to the Customer 

for proper disposal after collection or otherwise disposed of in accordance with Customer’s instructions or arrangements.  

(ii)  Any Waste tendered to Stericycle by Customer or at Customer’s locations will conform fully with the applicable Waste 

Characterization Data for that Waste, be labelled by Customer in conformance with applicable laws and so as to communicate it s contents 

to Stericycle, and be segregated from other Wastes in accordance with the WAP. Customer will provide Stericycle with complete and 

accurate Profile Sheet(s), Waste Characterization Form(s), and other Waste Characterization Data to assure accurate Waste 

Characterizations.  Customer shall tender to Stericycle only fully Conforming Waste and follow all applicable Laws in storing, handl ing, 

treating, segregating, labelling, securing, manifesting, and inspecting such Waste and in preparing and maintaining records r elating to 

that Waste.  Customer agrees to comply with Stericycle’s Waste Acceptance Policy set forth in the attachment hereto.  Custome r will 

provide Stericycle advance notice of any changes in the ingredients of, character of, substances contained in or p rocesses involved in 

generating any Waste for which services are performed, and Customer shall conduct a new Waste Characterization and provide St ericycle 

with revised Waste Characterization Data before tendering such Waste to Stericycle for services.   

 
2.  Recordkeeping and Compliance with Laws  Stericycle and Customer shall keep and retain adequate books and records and other 

documentation including personnel records, correspondence, instructions, plans, receipts, vouchers, permits, required state r egistrations, copies of 

manifests and tracking records consistent with and for the periods required by applicable regulations and guidelines pertaining to generation, storage 

or handling of  Waste and the services to be performed under this Agreement.  

 

3.  Term and Pricing     The term (“Term”) of this Agreement is established on page one of this document, 60 months from the date of execution 

of this agreement. 

 (a) Customer shall pay Stericycle the prices set forth on the Attachment A of this Agreement.   Prices for Services may not be increased 

for at minimum the first eighteen (18) months of a 60-month term and for the first 12 months for any Term of less than 60 months.  Thereafter, 

prices may be increased annually, but by no more than the lesser of (i) three and a half percent (3.5%), or (ii) the percentage increase in Consumer 

Price Index for all Medical Services (CPI-Medical Services) for the U.S. City Average, 1982-84 = 100, during the then prior twelve (12) month 

period. Additionally, Stericycle may adjust the Rate Structure (i) to account for operational changes it implements to comply with changes i n law, 

regulatory changes, in the waste treatment location, or to otherwise cover unforeseen, significant cost escalation  

 (b) Stericycle has instituted a per invoice energy surcharge to manage and isolate the impact of Diesel fuel price fluctuations.  The  energy 

surcharge is based on the U.S. ‘On Highway’ Diesel Price Index.  A table outlining the Energy Surcharge can be found in Attachment C of this 

agreement. 
 

4.  Termination. (a)  Termination with cause for breach or non-performance: In the event a party materially fails to perform according to the terms 

and conditions outlined in this Agreement, or otherwise breaches a material term of this Agreement, the other party may terminate this Agreement 

upon sixty (60) days’ prior written notice, provided that this Agreement shall not terminate if the defaulting party remedies  such breach or failure 

to perform within the 60-day period after such notice.  Such written notice shall set forth in reasonable detail a description of the breach or failure 

to perform.  

 

(b)  Customer may terminate this Agreement immediately upon notice if Stericycle: (i) does not comply with all applicable laws and 

regulations in all material respects; (ii) becomes insolvent; (iii) voluntarily commences any proceeding or files any petition under the bankruptcy 

laws of the United States; (iv) becomes subject to any involuntary bankruptcy or insolvency proceedings und er the laws of the United States, which 

proceedings are not dismissed within sixty (60) days; (v) makes an assignment for the benefit of its creditors; or (vi) appoi nts a receiver, trustee, 

custodian or liquidator for a substantial portion of its property,  assets or business. 

 

(c)  The Services provided in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement may be suspended by Stericycle  upon written 

notice if Customer fails to comply with terms outlined in Sections 3 and 6 (Pricing and Billing) of this Agreement. Suspension of Service due to  

failure to comply with payment terms shall not relieve Customer of the obligation to pay any amounts due under the terms of this Agreement. 
 

 (d)   Customer shall have the right to terminate this Agreement prior to the end of the then -current Term without Cause, upon sixty (60) 

days prior written notice to Stericycle. If this Agreement is terminated by Customer, Stericycle shall be entitled to collect from Customer an amount 

in liquidated damages not to exceed (a) 50% if in first 12 to 36 months of agreement, or (b) 25% if past the initial 36 months of the agreement, of 

Customer’s average monthly charge on the 12 months’ billings immediately prior to the termination of this Agreement  (or based on any lesser 

period if the Agreement began less than twelve months earlier) multiplied by the number of months, including prorated partial  months, remaining 

until the expiration date of the then-current Term. This amount will not exceed $400,000 for months 12 through 36, and $175,000 for months 36 

through the end of the Term, over the course of the Agreement Term.  

 

(e)  In the event Customer in any other way breaches this Agreement such that Stericycle’s continued performance is rendered impossible 

or commercially impracticable, Stericycle provides written notice to Customer of such breach and Customer is unable to remedy within 60-days, 

then this Agreement shall terminate and Customer shall pay to Stericycle a termination fee not to exceed (a) 50% if in first 12 to 36 months of 

Term, or (b) 25% if past the initial 36 months of the Term, of Customer’s average monthly charge on the 12 months’ billings immediately prior to 

the termination of this Agreement  (or based on any lesser period if the Agreement began less than twelve months earlier) mul tiplied by the number 

of months, including prorated partial months, remaining until the expiration date of the then-current Term. This amount will not exceed $400,000 
for months 12 through 36, and $175,000 for months 36 through the end of the Term, over the course of the Agreement Term. This early termination 

fee shall be Stericycle’s sole remedy for an early termination.  Customer hereby acknowledges that Stericycle’s damages resulting from the 

Page 655 of 853



   
 

2023_HPG SMS, Rx, CsRx, Haz_V.3_ 2.16.24 jl   4 | P a g e  
 

premature termination of collections are impossible to estimate, and include lost profits, inefficiencies resulting fro m route changes and reduced 

treatment plant throughput, increased administrative overhead, unrecoverable sunk training/instruction costs, and other eleme nts of injury, and 

acknowledges further that the foregoing charge is reasonable and is not a penalty.  

 

(f) Upon 30 days’ notice to Stericycle, Customer shall have the right to add or delete mutually acceptable Customer facilities receiving 

services under this Agreement. The addition or exclusion of any facility participating under this Agreement shall have no eff ect on the services 

provided the other participating facilities.  

  

(g) Any terms or conditions contained in any Purchase Order, Purchase Order Agreement, Invoice or other invoice acknowledgment, 

Order by Customer or proposed at any time by either party in any manner, which vary from, or conflict with the terms and conditions in this 

Agreement shall be void and have no effect, unless specifically accepted by a party in writing.  Written acceptance or rejection by a party of any 

specific terms or conditions shall not constitute an acceptance of any other additional terms or conditions.  

 

(h) In accordance with the Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS 354.626), the financial obligations un der this Agreement between the parties 

shall not exceed those monies appropriated and approved by Customer for the then-current fiscal year under the Local Government Budget Act. 

This Agreement shall terminate and Customer’s obligations under it shall be extinguished at the end of any of  Customer’s fiscal years in which 

Customer’s  governing body fails to appropriate monies for the ensuing fiscal year sufficient for the payment of all amounts which could then 

become due under this Agreement, provided that Customer gives Stericycle at least one hundred and twenty (120) days' prior written notice 

termination. Customer agrees that this section shall not be utilized as a subterfuge or in a discriminatory fashion as it relates to this Agreement . In 

the event this section is invoked, this Agreement will expire on the 30th day of June of the then-current fiscal year. Termination under this section 

shall not relieve Customer of its obligations incurred through the 30th day of June of the fiscal year for which monies were appropriated or for 

items delivered for which Customer did not give notification of termination due to loss of appropriated funds.  

5.  Survival Any provision of this Agreement that is meant to survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement shall survive the ex piration 

or termination of this Agreement. This Agreement shall survive the expiration or termination of the GPO Agreement.  

 

6.  Billing  Stericycle shall provide Customer with monthly, quarterly, or annual invoices that are due within thirty (30) days of such invoice.  

Customer shall notify Stericycle as to any Customer dispute with such invoice within fifteen (15) days of receipt of the invoice. Customer shall 

pay the undisputed amount of an invoice in the event that a dispute arises from any portion of the total invo ice.  All invoices shall set forth in 

reasonable detail the fees and expenses described in Section 3.  Stericycle shall verify that invoices are accurate and that all Services invoiced have 

been properly and completely performed. Customer shall bear any costs that Stericycle may incur in collecting overdue amounts from Customer, 

including, but not limited to, reasonable attorneys’ fees and court costs, not to exceed 1% per month or $10,000 per year.   Should any amounts due 

pursuant to this Agreement remain unpaid for more than 30 days from the date of the debt’s first invoice, Stericycle shall have the option, without 

notice to Customer, to suspend service under this Agreement until the overdue amounts (plus late charges and collection fees)  are paid.  In the 

event that Stericycle suspends services under this Agreement for any reason, including the expiration or termination of this Agreement or 
Customer’s breach (see 2(c), above), Stericycle may remove all containers belonging to it from Customer’s premises.  Any non-compliant 

containers will be billed an additional container charge at the current container rate not to exceed 1.25% of Stericycle’s co st. Non-compliant 

containers include containers that are overweight under applicable laws or regulations or containers holding Non-Conforming Waste.  In addition 

to Stericycle’s charges for services and products under this Agreement, the Customer shall pay all applicable taxes imposed or levied by any 

governmental authority with respect to such services or products.   These taxes include all sales, use, excise, occupation, franchise and similar taxes 

and tax-like fees and charges (but do not include any taxes on Stericycle’s net income)  unless otherwise exempt.  Stericycle shall cooperate with 

the Customer to determine the applicability of any exemption certificates that the Customer provides to Stericycle in a timely manner.   

 

7.  Surcharge  Customer shall notify Stericycle within forty-eight (48) hours of any scheduled pick-up or Customer request to cancel services.  

Should Customer fail to meet such notification requirement,  Stericycle may impose a ‘no waste’ surcharge no greater than $75 in the event that 

Stericycle attempts to pick up Waste at a Customer location (on either a scheduled pick -up or in response to a Customer request) and, through no 

fault of Stericycle, either (a) there is no  Waste for Stericycle to pick up, (b) Waste is not ready for pick -up or (c) the Customer location is closed.   

 

8.  Liability for Equipment  Customer acknowledges that it has the care, custody and control of containers and other Products placed at its facilities 

that are equipment owned by Stericycle and accepts responsibility and liability for the equipment and its contents except whe n it is being physically 

handled by employees of Stericycle. The equipment to be provided by Stericycle in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreem ent 
shall remain the property of Stericycle throughout the term of this Agreement and thereafter.  Upon the expiration or termina tion of this Agreement 

for any reason, Customer shall make available for Stericycle’s retrieval, all equipment in good condition, reasonable wear and tear excepted.  

 

9.  Indemnification.  (a) Stericycle agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless Customer and its Affiliates, successors, assigns, directors, 

officers, agents and employees (“Customer Indemnitees”) from and against any and all liabilities, demands, losses, damages, costs, expenses, fines, 

amounts paid in settlements or judgments, and all other reasonable expenses and costs incident thereto, including reasonable attorneys’ fees 

(collectively referred to as “Damages”) arising out of or resulting from:  (i) any third party claim, lawsuit, investigation, proceedi ng, regulatory 

action, or other cause of action, arising out of or in connection with Stericycle’s performance of the Services  (“Injury”), except to the extent the 

Injury was caused by reason of a Customer Indemnitee’s negligence; (ii) the breach or alleged breach by Stericycle of the representations, warranties 

or covenants contained in the Purchasing Agreement or this Agreement or in materials furnished by Stericycle; or (iii) any infringement, 

misappropriation or alleged infringement or misappropriation of any patent, trademark, copyright, trade secret or other intel lectual property right 

resulting from the purchase of Services and/or Products provided hereunder (including Customer’s possession and use thereof).    

 

Page 656 of 853



   
 

2023_HPG SMS, Rx, CsRx, Haz_V.3_ 2.16.24 jl   5 | P a g e  
 

(b) Customer Indemnification.  To the extent expressly authorized by Nevada law, Customer agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless 

Stericycle, its Affiliates, successors, assigns, directors, officers, agents and employees (“Stericycle Indemnitees”) from an d against any and all 

Damages arising out of or resulting from (i) any claim, lawsuit, investigation, proceeding, regulatory action, or other cause of action, arising out of 

or in connection with its performance or its obligations under this Agreement (“Claim”), except to the extent such Claim was caused by reason of 

a Stericycle Indemnitee’s negligence; or (ii) the breach or alleged breach by Customer of the representations, warranties or covenants contained in 

this Agreement or in materials furnished by Customer.    

 

(c) If the Claim is caused by the negligence of both Stericycle and Customer, the apportionment of said Damages shall be shared between Stericycle 

and Customer based upon the comparative degree of each other’s negligence, and each shall be responsible for its own defense and costs , including 

but not limited to the costs of defense, attorneys’ fees, witnesses’ fees and expenses incident thereto , not to exceed three (3) times the value of the 

contract.  

 

(d)  Indemnification Process.  If any demand or claim is made or suit is commenced against a Customer Indemnitee or a Vendor Indemnitee, as 

applicable (each, an “Indemnitee”) for which a Party has an indemnity obligation hereunder, as applicable, written n otice of such shall be provided 

to the indemnifying Party, the indemnifying Party shall undertake the defense of any such suit, and such Indemnitee shall coo perate with the 
indemnifying Party in the defense of the demand, claim or suit to whatever reasonab le extent the indemnifying Party requires and at the 

indemnifying Party’s sole expense. The indemnifying Party shall have the right to compromise such claim at the indemnifying Party’s expense for 

the benefit of such Indemnitee; provided, however, the indemnifying Party shall not have the right to obligate an Indemnitee in any respect in 

connection with any such compromise without the written consent of such Indemnitee. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the ind emnifying Party 

fails to assume its obligation to defend, an Indemnitee may do so to protect its interest and seek reimbursement from the indemnifying Party.   

 

10.  Compliance with All Laws.  Each party shall comply in all material respects with all applicable laws and regulations in the performance of  

this Agreement.  

 

11.  Sole Provider  For any service locations awarded to Stericycle in this Agreement, Stericycle  shall be the sole provider of the services at such 

locations. 

 

12.  Force Majeure.  The parties’ obligations under this Agreement will be excused if and to the extent any delay or failure to perform such 

obligations is due to acts of war, terrorism or nature, including hurricanes, tornados, floods, and earthquakes, provided the  effects of such act or 

event would not have been substantially mitigated by implementation of a Disaster Recovery Plan (“Force Majeure Event”).  A party affected by 

a Force Majeure Event will notify the other party, within 48 hours of the Force Majeure Event, explaining the nature and expe cted duration thereof 
and such party shall use all efforts to remedy or mitigate such Force Majeure Event and the effects thereof.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, if 

Stericycle is unable to perform any of its obligations under this Agreement for a period of more than thirty (30) calendar days as a result of a Force 

Majeure Event, then Customer may terminate this Agreement upon written notice to Stericycle.  For purposes of this Section 21 , Stericycle 

represents and warrants to Customer that it has and shall maintain a business contin uity and disaster recovery plan to enable delivery of Services 

upon the occurrence of any event or circumstance beyond Stericycle’s reasonable control, including without limitation acts of  God, war or terrorist 

attack, pandemic, riot, fire, explosion, catastrophic weather event or natural disaster within Customer’s Services location(s) (“Disaster Recovery 

Plan”). 

 

13.  Independent Contractor   It is the intention of the parties that the relationship existing between the parties be that of independent contractors. 

Except as specifically stated herein, nothing contained herein or done pursuant hereto shall constitute either party acting a s the other party's agent 

or employee, or the legal representative for any purpose whatsoever and such individuals or entiti es shall have no right, power or authority to 

assume, create or incur, in writing or otherwise, any expense, liability or obligation in the name of or on behalf of the oth er party. 

 

14.  Amendment and Waiver  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Agreement, changes in the types, size and amount of 

equipment and the frequency of Service may be mutually agreed to orally or in writing by the parties, without affecting the v alidity of this 

Agreement, and consent to such oral changes shall be evidenced by the practices and actions of the parties.  All amendments to this Agreement 
(other than as provided in Section 3 and those described in the first sentence of this Section) shall be affected only by a written instrument executed 

by the parties.  Variations from the standard form of agreement, if any, are contained in the Addendum to Customer Service Agreement attached 

hereto. No waiver shall be effective unless submitted in writing by the party granting such waiver. No waiver of any provisio n of this Agreement 

shall be deemed a waiver of any other provision of this Agreement and no waiver of any breach or duty under this Agreement shall be deemed a 

waiver of any other breach or later instances of the same duty.  

 

15.  Severability  In case any one or more of the provisions contained in this Agreement shall, for any reason, be held to be invalid , illegal or 

unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability shall not affect any other provisions of this A greement; this Agreement 

shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision had never been contained herein, unless such finding shall impair the rights 

or increase the obligations of Stericycle hereunder, in which event, at Stericycle’s option, this Agreement may be terminated .       

    

16.  Entire Agreement  This Agreement (including any attachments, exhibits and amendments made in accordance with Paragraph 13) and the 

Purchasing Agreement constitutes the entire understanding and agreement of the parties and cancels and supersedes all prior n egotiations, 

representations, understandings or agreements, whether written or oral, with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement and the Purchasing 

Agreement. 
 

Page 657 of 853



   
 

2023_HPG SMS, Rx, CsRx, Haz_V.3_ 2.16.24 jl   6 | P a g e  
 

17.  Governing Law  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws in the state of where Customer is located 

without regard to the conflicts of laws rules of any jurisdiction.   Venue shall be any court of competent jurisdiction in Clark County, Nevada.  

 

18.  Notices  All notices required to be given to either party under this Agreement will be in writing and sent by  traceable carrier.  Notices to 

Customer shall be sent to UMC, Attn: Legal Department, 1800 W. Charleston Blvd., Las Vegas, NV 89102 .  Notices for Stericycle shall be sent to 

Stericycle LQ Sales Department, 2355 Waukegan Road, Bannockburn, IL 60015 . Either party may change its address for notice to such other 

address as a party may indicate by at least ten (10) days’ prior written notice to the other party.  Notices will be effectiv e upon receipt.  

 

19.  Assignment   Stericycle will provide prior written notice to the Customer in the event Stericycle  subcontracts any of the services provided 

herein and will remain primarily liable to the Customer for any acts or omissions of its subcontractors in the performance of the requirements under 

this Agreement. Stericycle may assign this Agreement and its rights and interests, in whole or in part, to any of its affiliates, any purchaser of all 

or substantially all of its assets, or to any successor corporation resulting from any merger or consolidation of Stericycle with or into such 

corporations. 

 

20.  Counterparts  This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original but all of which when 
taken together shall constitute one single Agreement between the parties. 

 

21.  No Brokers Stericycle reserves the right to deal solely with Customer and not with any third-party agents of Customer for all purposes relating 

to this Agreement.  Customer represents and warrants to Stericycle that it is acting for its own account and is not acting through a broker or agent.  

In the event that Customer engages or attempts to engage an agent or broker, Stericycle has no obligation to, and will not, recognize the agent or 

broker as Customer’s agent.  The parties’ respective rights and obligations under this Agreement shall remain unaffected by Customer’s engagement 

or purported engagement of an agent to act on its behalf.    

 

22. Proprietary Waste Characterization  Stericycle’s Waste Characterization software, processes, protocols data, reports, and other related 

intellectual property is proprietary and confidential and shall remain the property of Stericycle.  Customer agrees not to di sclose Stericycle’s 

proprietary and confidential waste characterization software, processes, protocols, reports, or data except on a need to know basis only for 

Customer’s employees whose job function requires access and use of the data.  Customer agrees that any disclosure by Custo mer or Customer’s 

employees of Stericycle’s proprietary and confidential Waste Characterization software, processes, protocols, data, reports a nd other related 

intellectual property is a breach of this Agreement and will cause Stericycle irreparable harm, and that in addition to any remedies Stericycle may 

have at law, Stericycle may seek an injunctive or other equitable relief in the event that Customer breaches the terms of thi s paragraph.  

Stericycle customers who require Stericycle employees, including in -service technicians, to wear customer-issued respirators when present at the 

customer’s facility shall follow the policy listed in Attachment D. 

23.  Limitation of Liability   NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING TO THE CONTRARY CONTAINED IN THIS AGREEMENT,  

EXCEPT FOR LIABILITY FOR GROSS NEGLIGENCE, WILLFUL MISCONDUCT, FRAUD ORVIOLATION OF APPLICABL E 
LAW OR REGULATION, INDEMNIFICATION AND CONFIDENTIALITY, NEITHER PARTY WILL BE LIABLE TO THE OTHER 

FOR ANY INDIRECT, SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, PUNITIVE, EXEMPLARY OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES OF ANY KIND 

(INCLUDING LOST PROFITS, CIVIL PENALTIES, FINES, GOODWILL, OR OTHER INTANGIBLE LOSSES) ARISING FROM 

OR RELATED TO THIS AGREEMENT, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO EITHER PARTY’S BREACH OR ALLEGED 

BREACH OF THIS AGREEMENT, REGARDLESS OF THE FORM OF ACTION, WHETHER IN CONTRACT, TORT (INCLUDING  

NEGLIGENCE), OR OTHERWISE, EVEN IF A PARTY HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES. EACH  

PARTY’S AGGREGATE LIABILITY TO THE OTHER PARTY, IF ANY, IS LIMITED TO THE GREATER OF, (A) FIVE (5) 

MILLION DOLLARS ($5,000,000); OR (B) THREE (3) TIMES THE TOTAL AMOUNT OF SERVICE FEES INVOICED BY 

STERICYCLE TO CUSTOMER UNDER THE AGREEMENT DURING THE PRECEDING TWELVE (12) MONTH PERIOD P RIOR 

TO THE ALLEGED LIABILITY. IN THE EVENT THE LIMITATION OF LIABILITY CAP IS MET OR EXCEEDED DURING ANY 

TWELVE (12) MONTH PERIOD DURING THE TERM OF THE AGREEMENT, CUSTOMER MAY TERMINATE THIS 

AGREEMENT WITHOUT LIABILITY TO STERICYCLE BY PROVIDING STERICYCLE WITH AT LEAST SIX (6) MONTH  

PRIOR WRITTEN NOTICE. For the avoidance of doubt, in the event Customer terminates this Agreement due to the limitation of liability 

cap being met, Customer shall not be liable to Vendor for the liquidated damages to Stericycle in Section 3(d). 

 

24. Onsite staff.  Stericycle’s employees, agents, subcontractors and designees shall abide by all of  the policies, rules, regulations, and security 
measures adopted by Customer for its onsite vendors and visitors, including bu t not limited to, Customer’s Vendor Access Policy  as may be 

amended from time to time, and may be required to register through Customer’s vendor management/credentialing system prior to  arriving onsite 

at any of Customer’s facilities.  Stericycle’s employees, agents, subcontractors and/or designees who do not abide by Customer policies may be 

barred from physical access to Customer’s premises.  

 

25. Public Records.  Stericycle acknowledges that Customer is a public, county-owned hospital which is subject to the provisions of the Nevada 

Public Records Act, Nevada Revised Statutes Chapter 239, as may be amended from time to time. As such, its documents and reco rds are available 

for copying and inspection by the public. If Customer receives a request for the disclosure of any information related to thi s agreement that 

Stericycle has claimed to be confidential and proprietary, Customer will immediately notify Stericycle  of such request and Stericycle shall 

immediately notify Customer of its intention to seek injunctive relief in a Nevada court for protective order. If Stericycle requires Customer to not 

release such records by filing an injunction for protective order, then Stericycle shall indemnify and defend and hold harmless Customer from any 

claims or actions, including all associated costs and attorney’s fees, demanding the disclosure of Stericycle document(s) in Customer’s custody and 

Page 658 of 853



   
 

2023_HPG SMS, Rx, CsRx, Haz_V.3_ 2.16.24 jl   7 | P a g e  
 

control that Stericycle claims to be confidential and proprietary.  For the avoidance of any doubt, Stericycle hereby consents to this Agreement 

being publicly posted for approval by Customer’s governing body.  

 
 

 

Exhibit A 

 

Definitions 
 
“Conforming Waste” means Waste that is tendered to Stericycle for Services under this Agreement in compliance with the terms of this Agreement 

and applicable Law and that: (a) fully conforms to correct and complete Waste Characterization Data; (b) conforms in its cont ent to any associated 

labelling or packaging; (c) is properly segregated from other types of Wastes; and (d) is properly packaged or containerized.   

“Hazardous Waste” means any waste containing hazardous  or toxic substances, as such terms are defined by applicable Laws, including any 

substance regulated by the Toxic Substances Control Act, 15 U.S.C. Section 2601 et seq., as amended, or any listed or characteristic hazardous 

waste under the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 U.S.C. Section 6901 et seq., as amended (“RCRA”) or under any comparable state 

or local laws, and any waste material that has been mixed with, derived from or came into contact with any of the foregoing, put shall not include 

pharmaceutical waste.   

 

“Nonconforming Waste” means any material tendered to Stericycle under this Agreement that is not a Conforming Waste.  

 

“Profile Sheet” or “Waste Characterization Data Form” means form(s) used to obtain Waste Characterization Data that may be made available 

to Customer by Stericycle on a case-by-case basis depending on the type of Waste managed. 

 

“Universal Waste” means specific hazardous wastes that the EPA has identified in 40 CFR part 273 (batteries, lamps, mercury -containing 

equipment, pesticides) and any other waste that individual states may have added to this list.  

 
“Waste” means Hazardous Waste or Universal Waste. 

 

“Waste Characterization” means the process of determining a Waste’s regulated status according to applicable laws. 

 

“Waste Characterization Data” means all information used for Waste Characterization, including but not limited to generator knowledge, 

descriptions of the processes generating the Waste, material safety data sheets, ingredient information, package inserts, ana lytical testing, and 

other information describing a Waste’s characteristics. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 659 of 853



   
 

2023_HPG SMS, Rx, CsRx, Haz_V.3_ 2.16.24 jl   8 | P a g e  
 

Exhibit B 

Scope of Work 

CSRX Full Service Scope of Work  

Ordering and Installation: 

• Customer will assist Stericycle in determining how many container locations will be required so that lockable brackets 
can be ordered. If applicable, non-acute care or self-service locations will perform a self-assessment.  

• An initial order will be placed by Stericycle on behalf of the customer.  

• Stericycle will perform a one-time bracket installation.  If applicable, non-acute care or self-service locations will be 

provided brackets and hardware for self-installation. 

• Customer will identify a hospital employee(s) in Material Management, EVS, or Pharmacy who, on scheduled service 
days, will assist the Stericycle Service Technician as witness for the water activation of the denaturant and sign the 

Controlled Substance Waste verification form.  The scheduled days and times a Customer employee will be made 
available will be coordinated in advance with Customer. Any unused CsRx containers will be returned at this time. 

 
Training: 

• Stericycle will provide implementation training. 

 
Initial Set-Up and Storage: 

• Customer is responsible for the security and management of the CsRx containers onsite at the facility.  

• Customer will identify a secure area, separate from other pharmaceutical waste and shipping boxes, to store spare CsRx 
containers. 

• Customer will identify a secure area to store shipping boxes (if applicable) and full CsRx containers.  
 

Service Process: 

• For full-service hospital locations, a  Stericycle Service Technician will observe CsRx containers frequently and monitor 
fill levels.   

o On scheduled service days, a  Stericycle Service Technician will identify CsRx containers that need to be 
exchanged and write the locations on a witness verification form.  Upon prior coordination of dates and times a 

Customer employee will be ma de available, Customer’s authorized employee will witness the Stericycle 
Service Technician adding water to the bottom fill line.  Customer will sign the verification form document 
outlining how many containers required service, where they are located and verify that water has been added to 

activate denaturant.   
o The Stericycle Service Technician will proceed to the locations needing CsRx container replacement and add a 

solidifier to the full container before removing from bracket.  The full container will then be swapped out for 

the new container and the bracket will be locked. 

• For non-acute care and self-service locations, a  Customer employee will prepare the CsRx container for disposal per 
Stericycle training. 

o Stericycle will automatically ship replacement containers on a preset schedule. 
o Upon receipt of replacement containers, Customer will exchange all containers, regardless of fill level, with a 

new CsRx container.    
 
Segregation & Preparation of Hazardous and Non-Hazardous Controlled Substance waste: 

• For non-hazardous Controlled Substance waste, each container will be packaged into a box labeled with the preprinted 
shipping address label or if prohibited, the non-RCRA Controlled Substance waste will be ‘over-classified’ and collected 
and managed as RCRA Hazardous waste  

o A Customer employee will ship full prepackaged CsRx boxes via small parcel shipment. 

• For hazardous Controlled Substance waste, a  Stericycle Service Technician or Customer employee will package it in the 
appropriate hazardous waste pharmaceutical container for final disposal.   

 
Completion: 

• At the end of service, the Stericycle Service Technician will hand off the witness verification form to the pharmacy 
department. 

• Customer would be responsible for changing any containers that fill in-between scheduled visits. 

 

Page 660 of 853



   
 

2023_HPG SMS, Rx, CsRx, Haz_V.3_ 2.16.24 jl   9 | P a g e  
 

Pharmaceutical Waste Scope of Work 

STERICYCLE PHARMACEUTICAL WASTE COMPLIANCE PROGRAM 

Stericycle shall provide pharmaceutical waste compliance services to Customer. These services shall include:  
 

Phase I: Rx Formulary Waste Characterization, Program Design & Start-Up 

  

Rx Formulary Waste Characterization 

The Formulary Waste Characterization will provide Customer with information necessary to be compliant with 

Federal EPA/RCRA and DOT regulations concerning identification, sorting, packaging, labeling, and 

documentation of RCRA hazardous and non-RCRA hazardous pharmaceutical waste.  

Stericycle will utilize its proprietary database – based on National Drug Codes (NDC numbers) to characterize 
your facilities formulary to identify: 

 

• EPA/RCRA defined hazardous pharmaceuticals 

• U.S. DOT waste class per NDC numbered pharmaceutical 
 

Typically, there are some NDC’s in the hospital formulary that are not found in Stericycle’s database (currently 

contains over 350,000 NDC’s).  These include NDC’s that are:  

• Not identified by an NDC number 

• Identified by a Customer designated NDC number 

• Compounded drugs 
 

These items will require research and analysis by Stericycle staff to complete the waste characterization.  This 
service is included with the waste characterization.  
 

 Pharmaceutical Waste Program Design & Start-Up 

Stericycle will assist Customer with designing the program elements needed for an effective Pharmaceutical Waste 

Compliance Program.  The program design, implementation, and training consist of up to 20 hours and includes:  
 

• Assistance in establishing the internal labeling system for pharmaceuticals dispensed from the pharmacy 

in order to allow hospital staff to properly identify waste streams 
 

• Identification and set-up of satellite accumulation areas / points of collection 

 

• Evaluation of Customer’s current centralized hazardous waste storage area and making of 
recommendations on the space requirements, material flow, and necessary equipment to establish a 

central accumulation area appropriate for the Customer’s Rx waste compliance needs  
 

• Assistance in establishing the internal logistics system for satellite container supply, transfer, and storage 

 

• Recommendations as to set of containers to be used in the satellite accumulation areas.   
 

• Provision of Pharmaceutical Waste Compliance Program training materials via CD include:  
 

o Clinicians & EVS Power Point Training Presentations (separate presentations)  

o Competency Quiz 
o Disposal Container Poster 

 

Phase II: On-site Segregation & Disposal 

 

Page 661 of 853



   
 

2023_HPG SMS, Rx, CsRx, Haz_V.3_ 2.16.24 jl   10 | P a g e  
 

Stericycle will provide on-site pharmaceutical waste labeling and packing services by a Field Technician trained in proper handling 

and safety procedures.  Customer is solely responsible for segregating non-hazardous waste, hazardous waste, non-compatible 
hazardous and dual waste. 

 
Stericycle will also provide internal transport of containers from the Satellite Accumulation Areas (SAA) to the Central 
Accumulation Area (CAA) for a fee noted on Exhibit. 

 
Transportation & Disposal services include: 

 

• Manifested pickup of pharmaceutical waste from Customer sites 

• DOT Waste disposal containers with labeling 

• Transport to a regulated destruction facility for disposal 

 
DOT compliant waste disposal containers are used for the segregation, transport, and disposal of pharmaceutical waste from the 
generator’s (Customer) designated hazardous waste accumulation area.  The initial supply of waste disposal containers will be 

shipped to the Customer based upon the number and type of DOT waste streams identified as a function of the initial Rx Formulary 

Waste Characterization and DOT Waste Stream Analysis.     

Phase III: On-going Rx Waste Characterization, Consulting, and Training  

 
In order to keep the hospital’s formulary waste characterization current, the hospital will be able to submit new NDC’s for waste 

characterization to Stericycle.  This will follow the same procedures as the initial waste characterization.  This service is included in 

the monthly fee.  

Customer will receive characterization report updates each time a characterization is completed.  A service fee will be 
charged for any additional reports requested by the Customer. 

 
A study research fee will be charged for wa ste characterization of Clinical Investigational compounds – including multi-

component blinded studies if requested by the Customer.   
 

Stericycle will keep the Customer up to date with regulations and training through Stericycle’s AfterCare program. AfterCare 

consists of on-going, hospital-wide service reviews by Stericycle’s trained Healthcare Compliance Specialists as follows:  

AfterCare includes an audit of the Satellite and Central Accumulation Areas, required regulatory paperwork, as well as waste disposal 

and segregation practices.  Stericycle will assist the Customer in improving any deficiencies found.  

AfterCare annual training will consist of regulatory updates and review, as well as program review (helpful for new employees).  
The hospital training staff is expected to attend the annual training class.  As in the start-up training class, clinicians are invited to 

attend to reduce the burden on the hospital training staff.   

If requested by the Customer, Stericycle will provide additional consulting and training services beyond what is included in the 

Phase 1 Start-up services or Phase 3 On-going Rx Waste Characterization, Consulting and Training.  This could include additional 
training for the Customer’s staff.  There will be a fee for any additional training, however, the annual training is intended to be a 

train-the-trainer session. 

 

 
  

Page 662 of 853



   
 

2023_HPG SMS, Rx, CsRx, Haz_V.3_ 2.16.24 jl   11 | P a g e  
 

Attachment A 

Pricing and Service Locations 

Sharps Disposal Management Pricing 

Hospital Price Structure See Exhibits/Attachments for Applicable Locations 

Recurring Rate Type Effective Rate Unit of Measure 

Monthly Fee (SMS)  Per Month 

Service Rate Type Effective Rate Unit of Measure 

Record Retention Fee  Per Shipping Document 

Service Cost Recovery Fee  % of Invoice 

Fuel/Energy Surcharge See Attachment C % of Invoice 

 

Container Adjustment Period.  Stericycle and Customer recognize that during the thirty (30) day period, the “Adjustment Perio d” following installation 

the number of containers on the premises or volume of containers at various locations may need modification due to a variety of factors. Stericycle fees 

may be increased or decreased in the event container locations and volumes vary from those originally contemplated. After the  adjustment period, 

additional container locations or volumes added to the Customer’s premises will result in increased monthly Service Fees  for each two (2), 

three (3) or four (4) gallon container, for each eight (8) gallon container and  for each sevente en (17) gallon container.  Additional 

container locations must be authorized by the Customer in writing and increases or decreases in the monthly fee will require a written amendment to 

this Agreement. 

Failure to Return Equipment 

All special function items including Funnel Tops, Traps, and Floor Dollies, will be supplied by Stericycle as needed.  Customer will be r esponsible for 

all replacement charges for equipment not returned to Stericycle in usable condition , reasonable wear and tear from use excepted, upon expiration or 

termination of this Sharps Management Services Agreement or for replacement of equipment destroyed, damaged, or discarded by Customer during 

any Term of this Sharps Management Services Agreement.  Replacement costs on the d ate of this Sharps Management Services Agreement are listed 

below:   

Cabinet for 3 Gallon Sharps Container .............................................................................  

Cabinet for 2 Gallon Sharps Container .............................................................................  

Cabinet for 4 Gallon Sharps Container .............................................................................  

Plastic, Wall Mount for 2, 3 & 4-gal Sharps Container .....................................................  

Wall Bracket for 8 Gallon Sharps Container.....................................................................  

Stability Base for 2- & 3-Gallon Sharps Container ...........................................................  

Wire Dolly for 8 Gallon Sharps Container........................................................................  

Wire, Step-On Dolly for 8 Gallon Sharps Container ........................................................  

Black Dolly for 17 Gallon Sharps Container ....................................................................  

Wire, Step-On Dolly (Slide Top) for 17 Gallon Sharps Container .....................................  

Wire, Step-On Dolly (Hamper Lid) for 17 Gallon Sharps Container..................................  

4 Gallon Sharps Container...............................................................................................  

3 Gallon Sharps Container...............................................................................................  

2 Gallon Sharps Container...............................................................................................  

8 Gallon Sharps Container...............................................................................................  

17 Gallon Sharps Container .............................................................................................  

Transport Carts .............................................................................................................  

Cart Cover ......................................................................................................................  

Page 663 of 853



   
 

2023_HPG SMS, Rx, CsRx, Haz_V.3_ 2.16.24 jl   12 | P a g e  
 

Sharps Disposal Management Service Locations 

Cust & 
Site # 

Pricing 
Structure 

Name Address City St Zip Frequency 

New Hospital 
Bio/Las Vegas 

UMC 
1800 W Charleston 

Boulevard 
Las Vegas NV 89102 Weekly 

Hours of Operation: 24/7  

Phone Number: 702-765-7930 

 

Pharmaceutical Waste Pricing 

Hospital Price Structure 
See Exhibits/ Attachments for 

Applicable Locations 
 Off-Site Price Structure 

See Exhibits/ Attachments for 

Applicable Locations 

Recurring Rate Type Effective Rate Unit of Measure  Recurring Rate Type 
Effective 

Rate 
Unit of Measure 

Monthly Program Fee 
See Service 

Locations 
Per Month  Monthly Program Fee 

See Service 

Locations 
Per Month 

Service Rate Type Effective Rate Unit of Measure  Service Rate Type 
Effective 

Rate 
Unit of Measure 

Record Retention Fee  
 

 
 Record Retention Fee  

 

 

Service Cost Recovery Fee    Service Cost Recovery Fee   

Fuel/Energy Surcharge 
See 

Attachment C 
% of Invoice  Fuel/Energy Surcharge 

See 

Attachment C 
% of Invoice 

 

Internal transport of containers from SAA to CAA     $ Included in Monthly Fee 

o Labor cost associated with moving containers inside hospital  

 
Pharmaceutical Waste Transactional Pricing 

Service Description  UOM  Process Code  TowerCode  Pricing  Minimums  

Pharm Waste:            

Non RCRA Only Pharmaceuticals  DM55  INC27-1  I2701      

Flammable Aerosols  DM55  INC01-1  I0101      

RCRA Pharmaceuticals  DM55  INC29  I2900      

RCRA pharmaceuticals containing HG for 
incineration  

DM55  INC29-1  I2901      

P-Listed RCRA pharmaceuticals Waste  DM55  INC29-2  I2902      

LP, oxidizer  DM55  INC29-5  I2905      

LP, Non-reactive  DM55  INC29-8  I2908      

Dual Waste  DM55  INC31-2  I3102      

 
Pharmaceutical Waste Offsite Affiliate Pricing 

Rx Waste Affiliate Compliance Pricing 

Stops Per Year Containers Per Year Monthly Fee 

1 1  

1 2  

2 2  

2 4  

3 6  

4 8  

Page 664 of 853



   
 

2023_HPG SMS, Rx, CsRx, Haz_V.3_ 2.16.24 jl   13 | P a g e  
 

6 12  

12 24  

Note 1: Each additional container beyond the annual allotment = $215.00  

Note 2: Each additional stop beyond the annual allotment = $450.00  

 

 
Pharmaceutical Waste Service Locations - Hospital 

Cust & 
Site # 

Pricing 
Structure 

Name Address Frequency 
Monthly 

Fee 
EPA ID# 

New Hospital 
Rx/Las Vegas 

UMC 

1800 W Charleston Boulevard 

Las Vegas, NV 89102 
OnCall 0  

Hours of Operation: 24/7  

Phone Number: 702-765-7930 

 

Pharmaceutical Waste Service Locations – Offsite Affiliate  
Cust & 

Site # 

Pricing 

Structure 
Name Address Hours Phone Frequency 

Monthly 

Fee 

EPA 

ID# 

New Offsite Blue Diamond 
4760 Blue Diamond Road 
#110 Las Vegas, NV 89139 

8:00a-8:00p 
SMTWRFS 

702-383-
2300 

OnCall   

New Offsite 
Centennial 

Hills 

5785 Centennial Center 
Boulevard #190 Las Vegas, 

NV 89149 

8:00a-8:00p 

SMTWRFS 

702-383-

6270 
OnCall   

New Offsite Nellis 
63 N. Nellis Boulevard Las 

Vegas, NV 89110 
8:00a-8:00p 
SMTWRFS 

702-383-
6240 

OnCall   

New Offsite Peccole Ranch 
9320 W. Sahara Avenue Las 

Vegas, NV 89117 

8:00a-8:00p 

SMTWRFS 

702-383-

3850 
OnCall   

New Offsite Rancho 
4233 N. Rancho Drive Las 

Vegas, NV 89130 
8:00a-8:00p 
SMTWRFS 

702-383-
3800 

OnCall   

New Offsite 
Southern 
Highlands 

11860 Southern Highlands 
Parkway #102 Las Vegas, NV 

89141 

8:00a-6:00p 
MTWRF 

 OnCall   

New Offsite Spring Valley 
4180 S. Rainbow Boulevard 
#810 Las Vegas, NV 89103 

8:00a-8:00p 
SMTWRFS 

702-383-
3645 

OnCall   

New Offsite Summerlin 
2031 N. Buffalo Drive Las 

Vegas, NV 89128 
8:00a-8:00p 
SMTWRFS 

702-383-
3750 

OnCall   

New Offsite Sunset 
525 Marks Street Henderson, 

NV 89014 

8:00a-8:00p 

SMTWRFS 

702-383-

6210 
OnCall   

New Offsite 
Aliante Quick 

Care 
5860 Losee Road N. Las 

Vegas, NV 89081 
8:00a-8:00p 
SMTWRFS 

702-383-
3910 

OnCall   

New Offsite 
Aliante 

Primary Care 

5860 Losee Road N. Las 

Vegas, NV 89081 

8:00a-8:00p 

SMTWRFS 

702-383-

2273 
OnCall   

New Offsite 
UMC Express 
Airport Clinic 

5757 Wayne Newton 
Boulevard Term 1 Las Vegas, 

NV 89119 

8:00a-8:00p 
SMTWRFS 

702-383-
2527 

OnCall   

New Offsite 

UMC 

Advanced 
Center for 

Health 

2231 W. Charleston Boulevard 
Las Vegas, NV 89102 

8:00a-4:30p 
MTWRF 

 OnCall   

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Page 665 of 853



   
 

2023_HPG SMS, Rx, CsRx, Haz_V.3_ 2.16.24 jl   14 | P a g e  
 

 

 

Controlled Substance Waste Pricing 
Hospital & Offsite Pricing Structure See Attachments for Applicable Locations 

Recurring Rate Type Effective Rate Unit of Measure 

Controlled Substance Waste See Service Locations Per Month 

Service Rate Type Effective Rate Unit of Measure 

Service Cost Recovery Fee   

Fuel/Energy Surcharge See Attachment C % of Invoice 

 

The CsRx Flat Monthly Fee covers the total quantity of containers listed on the Service Locations page of this Agreement. 

Additional container locations may be added at a  fee of $55.00/location/month. 

The additional container location fee will be added into the flat monthly fee via an amendment.  

 

Controlled Substance Waste Offsite Affiliate Pricing 

CsRx Waste Affiliate Pricing 

1.4 Quart Unit Price Per Location 1 Gallon Unit Price Per Location 

$35.00  

 

Controlled Substance Waste Service Locations - Hospital 
Cust & 

Site # 

Pricing 

Structure 
Name Address Frequency 

Monthly 

Fee 

EPA 

ID# 

New Hospital 
CsRx/Las 

Vegas UMC 
1800 W Charleston Boulevard Las Vegas, NV 89102 OnCall   

Hours of Operation: 24/7  

Phone Number: 702-765-7930 

 

Controlled Substance Waste Service Locations – Offsite Affiliate  
Cust & 

Site # 

Pricing 

Structure 
Name Address Hours Phone # Frequency 

Monthly 

Fee 

EPA 

ID# 

New Offsite 
Blue 

Diamond 

4760 Blue Diamond 
Road #110 Las Vegas, 

NV 89139 

8:00a-8:00p 
SMTWRFS 

702-383-2300 OnCall   

New Offsite 
Centennial 

Hills 

5785 Centennial Center 

Boulevard #190 Las 
Vegas, NV 89149 

8:00a-8:00p 
SMTWRFS 

702-383-6270 OnCall   

New Offsite Nellis 
63 N. Nellis Boulevard 

Las Vegas, NV 89110 

8:00a-8:00p 

SMTWRFS 
702-383-6240 OnCall   

New Offsite 
Peccole 
Ranch 

9320 W. Sahara 
Avenue Las Vegas, NV 

89117 

8:00a-8:00p 
SMTWRFS 

702-383-3850 OnCall   

New Offsite Rancho 
4233 N. Rancho Drive 

Las Vegas, NV 89130 

8:00a-8:00p 

SMTWRFS 
702-383-3800 OnCall   

New Offsite 
Southern 
Highlands 

11860 Southern 
Highlands Parkway 
#102 Las Vegas, NV 

89141 

8:00a-6:00p 
MTWRF 

 OnCall   

New Offsite Spring Valley 
4180 S. Rainbow 

Boulevard #810 Las 

Vegas, NV 89103 

8:00a-8:00p 
SMTWRFS 

702-383-3645 OnCall   

New Offsite Summerlin 
2031 N. Buffalo Drive 
Las Vegas, NV 89128 

8:00a-8:00p 
SMTWRFS 

702-383-3750 OnCall   

Page 666 of 853



   
 

2023_HPG SMS, Rx, CsRx, Haz_V.3_ 2.16.24 jl   15 | P a g e  
 

New Offsite Sunset 
525 Marks Street 

Henderson, NV 89014 
8:00a-8:00p 
SMTWRFS 

702-383-6210 OnCall   

New Offsite 
Aliante Quick 

Care 

5860 Losee Road N. 

Las Vegas, NV 89081 

8:00a-8:00p 

SMTWRFS 
702-383-3910 OnCall   

New Offsite 
Aliante 

Primary Care 
5860 Losee Road N. 

Las Vegas, NV 89081 
8:00a-8:00p 
SMTWRFS 

702-383-2273 OnCall   

New Offsite 

UMC 

Express 
Airport Clinic 

5757 Wayne Newton 

Boulevard Term 1 Las 
Vegas, NV 89119 

8:00a-8:00p 

SMTWRFS 
702-383-2527 OnCall   

 

Hazardous Waste Pricing  
Service Description  UOM  Process Code  TowerCode  Pricing  Minimums  
Lab Packs:            
Fuels for thermal treatment  DM55  AF07  A0700      
Oxidizer  DM55  INC14-E  LPI02      
Isocyanates  DM55  INC14-I  LPI03      
Reactive Metals (Li, Na, K - 1 lb. under oil)  Lb.  INC15-1  LPI05    Lab Pack Minimums Apply  
Dioxins (F027)  Lb.  INC15-F2  LPI06    Lab Pack Minimums Apply  
Landfill, Non-regulated  DM55  LF06  LPL01      
Non-reactive  DM55  INC14  I1400      
Treatment, corrosives  DM55  WAT16  LPW01      
Retort, Inorg Hg Cmpd/Soln  DM55  REC04-H1  LPR01      
Treatable oxidizers  DM55  STAB06-6  LPS01      
Stab, Characteristic Metal  DM55  STAB19  LPS02      
Containerized Waste Streams:            
Flammable liquid (xylene, methanol, ethanol, 

stains)  
DM55  AF01  A0100      

AF<1" Sludge 3-6%halo BTU > 5k  DM55  AF01-1  A0101      
AF<1" Sludge 6-10% halo BTU>5k  DM55  AF01-2  A0102      
AF<1" Sludge 20-25%halo BTU>5k  DM55  AF01-4  A0104      
High Water Solvents  DM55  AF01-9  A0109      
AF 0-25% sludge<3%halo BTU> 5k  DM55  AF02  A0200      
AF 25-50% sludge<3%halo BTU>8k  DM55  AF03  A0300      
AF >50% sludge<3% halo BTU>10k  DM55  AF04  A0400      
AF <3" sldge3% hal NR BTU > 50  DM55  AF05  A0500      
Waste paint - (oil based D001 code)  DM55  AF06  A0600      
Aerosols, cans of paints, solvents, for 
depressurization and fuel blending, RCRA  DM55  AF08  A0800      

AF solid/debris haz to kilns  DM55  AF09  A0900      
*Non DOT, Non-RCRA Hazardous Waste - (oily 

rags, sorbents, antifreeze)  DM55  AF12  A1200      

AF solid/debris haz to kilns   DM55  AF17  A1700      
Corr acidic neut & fuels blend  DM55  AF18  A1800      
Non RCRA pharma co-gen facilit  DM55  AF20  A2000      
CN LIQ 0-100k ppm  DM55  INC04  I0400      
LIQUIDS - PESTICIDE SOLUTIONS  DM55  INC08  I0800      
Liquids- Lean waters, < 5% chlorinated solvents , 

<2500 btu  DM55  INC09  I0900      

LP, oxidizer  Lb.  INC11  I1100    Common Container Minimums Apply  
LP, Non-reactive  Lb.  INC13  I1300    Common Container Minimums Apply  
Lab pack, Non-Reactive, for Incineration  DM55  INC14  I1400      
Lab Pack, Incineration, Organic Acids.  DM55  INC14-A  I140A      
Lab Pack, Incineration, Organic Bases   DM55  INC14-B  I140B      
Lab Pack, Incineration, Flammable Liquids   DM55  INC14-D  I140D      
Lab Pack, Incineration, Pesticides   DM55  INC14-F  I140F      
Lab Pack, Incineration, Organic Poisons   DM55  INC14-P  I140P      
Reactive  Lb.  INC15  I1500    Lab Pack Minimums Apply  
Lab Pack, Incineration, Reactive, Acidic  Lb.  INC15-A  I150A    Lab Pack Minimums Apply  
Lab Pack, Incineration, Reactive, Basic  Lb.  INC15-B  I150B    Lab Pack Minimums Apply  

Page 667 of 853



   
 

2023_HPG SMS, Rx, CsRx, Haz_V.3_ 2.16.24 jl   16 | P a g e  
 

Lab Pack, Incineration, Reactive, Flammable 

Liquids  Lb.  INC15-W  I150W    Lab Pack Minimums Apply  

Lab Pack, Incineration, Flammable Solids (DOT 

4.1)  Lb.  INC15-D1  I15D1    Lab Pack Minimums Apply  

Lab Pack, Incineration, Spontaneously 

Combustible (DOT 4.2)  
Lb.  INC15-D2  I15D2    Lab Pack Minimums Apply  

Lab Pack, Incineration, Reactive, Flammable 

Liquids  
Lb.  INC15-D3  I15D3    Lab Pack Minimums Apply  

Lab Pack, Incineration, Perchloric Acid, 

Hydrogen Peroxide  
Lb.  INC15-E1  I15E1    Lab Pack Minimums Apply  

Lab Pack, Incineration, Reactive, Organic 

Peroxides (DOT 5.2)  Lb.  INC15-E2  I15E2    Lab Pack Minimums Apply  

Debris for incin  Lb.  INC16  I1600    Lab Pack Minimums Apply  
Cont solid for incineration  Lb.  INC17  I1700    Common Container Minimums Apply  
Halo Liq >10% halogens- incin  DM55  INC18-2  I1802      
Non-comp for Direct Pump Incin  Lb.  INC19  I1900    Common Container Minimums Apply  
Reac non-comp LIQ INC19-3  Lb.  INC19-3  I1903    Common Container Minimums Apply  
BUTANE REFILL  Lb.  INC19-6  I1906    Common Container Minimums Apply  
Methanol, Glacial Acetic Acid  DM55  INC20  I2000      
INC Alk liq-incin/DIRincin  DM55  INC21  I2100      
ACID ALK <5000 BTU  Lb.  INC24  I2400    Common Container Minimums Apply  
Pest/Fert Solid INCIN  Lb.  INC25  I2500    Common Container Minimums Apply  
Formalin for RCRA incin  Lb.  INC27  I2700    Common Container Minimums Apply  
Biopsy Methanol Vials  DM55  INC27-2  I2702      
Formalin and Animal Parts for RCRA 

Incineration  
DM55  INC27-3  I2703      

Fuel LIQ>5k BTU<5% halo  Lb.  INC28  I2800    Common Container Minimums Apply  
Chemo Hood Filters  DM55  INC29-3  I2903      
RCRA/Non-RCRA DEA pharm INC30  DM55  INC30  I3000      
CSRX NonRetrievable DEA Materl  DM55  INC30-2  I3002      
Cat 1 cyl med  Each  INC03-1M  I310M      
Cat 1 cyl small  Each  INC03-1S  I310S      
Cat 1 cyl lecture  Each  INC03-1LE  I31LE      
Cat 2 cyl lecture  Each  INC03-2LE  I32LE      
Cat 3 cyl lecture  Each  INC03-3LE  I33LE      
Cat 4 cyl lecture INC03-4LE  Each  INC03-4LE  I34LE      
Reactive &/or Non-comp Liq  Lb.  INC19-8  I1908    Common Container Minimums Apply  
COVID-19 Decon Debris for Incineration  DM55  INC32-1  I3201      
LNDFL ready, non-reg  DM55  LF01  L0100      
Landfill, Crushed drums  DM55  LF04  L0400      
LNDFL ready reg meets UTS  DM55  LF07  L0700      
LNDFL wet SOLIDIFY CA st 90%FL  DM55  LF08  L0800      
Lead Aprons/ Lead Indicators   DM55  LF09  L0900      
X Ray Film  DM55  LF10  L1000      
Asbestos, double bagged and wetted, for landfill, 

regulated  DM55  LF11  L1100      

LP, Reactive  Lb.  INC11-1  LPI04    Common Container Minimums Apply  
Inorganic cyanides  DM55  WAT16-J  LPW03      
PCB Ballasts for incineration  Lb.  PCB01  PCB01      
PCB ball/caps for TSCA LNDFL  DM55  PCB09  PCB09      
Latex Paint for recycling  DM55  REC01  R0100      
Mercury Compounds, Mercury spill materials for 

waste disposal  DM55  REC04  R0400      

*Lead Acid  Lb.  REC05  R0500    $20 Minimum Applies  
Fluorescent Bulbs/Lamps: 4ft, 8ft, U-Shaped, and 

Circular  Lb.  REC06  R0600    $25 Minimum Applies  

Bulbs - U-Shaped/Circular Fluorescent  Lb.  REC06-1  R0601    $25 Minimum Applies  
Bulbs - 8 Ft Fluorescent  Lb.  REC06-2  R0602    $25 Minimum Applies  
Bulbs - Compact Fluorescent  Lb.  REC06-3  R0603    $25 Minimum Applies  
Bulbs - Incandescent  Lb.  REC06-4  R0604    $25 Minimum Applies  
Used Oil/Refrigerant Oil  DM55  REC07  R0700      

Page 668 of 853



   
 

2023_HPG SMS, Rx, CsRx, Haz_V.3_ 2.16.24 jl   17 | P a g e  
 

Antifreeze/Propylene Glycol  DM55  REC08  R0800      
*Lithium  Lb.  REC09  R0900    $75 Minimum Applies  
Lithium-Ion Batteries Recycle  Lb.  REC09-1  R0901    $75 Minimum Applies  
Oil filters, Non-regulated  DM55  REC10  R1000      
*Nickel Cadmium  Lb.  REC11  R1100    $50 Minimum Applies  
*Nickel Metal Hydride  Lb.  REC11-1  R1101    $50 Minimum Applies  
Devices containing Mercury (Recycle) 

(Amalgam)  
Lb.  REC14  R1400    Common Container Minimums Apply  

Crushed Fluorescents Lamps  Lb.  REC15  R1500    Common Container Minimums Apply  
*Alkaline  Lb.  REC24  R2400    $50 Minimum Applies  
RCRA empty drums, for reconditioning or scrap 

recycling  DM55  REC27  R2700      

Freon Refrigerant, Recycle  Each  REC38  R3800      
Pb Aprons/ Pb Indicators Rcyc  DM55  REC40  R4000      
Mixed Batteries  Lb.  REC41  R4100    Common Container Minimums Apply  
Bulbs: HID, Halogenated, and Incandescent  Lb.  REC42  R4200    $50 Minimum Applies  
Bulbs - Halogens  Lb.  REC42-3  R4203    $25 Minimum Applies  
*Non-PCB Ballasts  Lb.  REC45  R4500    Common Container Minimums Apply  
CRT intact-recycle  Lb.  REC50  R5000    $50 Minimum Applies  
Flat Screen Monitors  Lb.  REC50-L  R5002    $25 Minimum Applies  
X-ray Film for Recycle  Lb.  REC51-3  R5103    $10 Minimum Applies  
Electronic Devices  Lb.  REC55  R5500    $50 Minimum Applies  
Fire Extinguishers, For Recycle  Each  REC60  R6000      
Cylinders, flammable, propane-small, camp type, 

for recycle  
Each  REC61  R6100      

Flammable Cylinders - Small  Each  REC61-1  R6101      
Cylinders, Helium, for Recycle  Each  REC62  R6200      
Cyl CO2 for recycle  Each  REC63  R6300      
Cylinders, MAPP Gas, for Recycle  Each  REC64  R6400      
Cyl Oxygen for Recycle  Each  REC65  R6500      
Latex Paint for solidification  DM55  STAB01  S0100      
LNDFL wet SOLIDIFY CA st  DM55  STAB02  S0200      
Sludge pH<4 w/RCRA metal  DM55  STAB02-1  S0201      
ALK SOL/SLG/RCRA mtl  DM55  STAB02-2  S0202      
SLDG F6-F9 F19 CN<590  DM55  STAB03  S0300      
HAZ DEB Alk F6-F9 F19 CN <590  DM55  STAB03-2  S0302      
Treat Oxi LIQ Class A  DM55  STAB06-1  S0601      
Treatable Oxidizers - Brominated  DM55  STAB06-4  S0604      
Sludge pH7 w/RCRA metals  DM55  STAB07  S0700      
Acid D7 25-50% acid  DM55  STAB12  S1200      
NR shredble sol w/free liq-LF  DM55  STAB14  S1400      
HZ shredble sol w/free liq-LF  DM55  STAB15  S1500      
Acid aqueous no Cr/acid< 25%  DM55  WAT01-1  W0101      
Acid D7 25-50% acid  DM55  WAT01-2  W0102      
Acid LIQ Acid > 50%  DM55  WAT01-3  W0103      
Alkali waste water-Caustic<25%  DM55  WAT02-1  W0201      
AF<1" Sludge 6-10% halo BTU>5k  DM55  WAT02-2  W0202      
ALK LIQ <50% caustic  DM55  WAT02-3  W0203      
Acid chromic total Cr<5000 ppm  DM55  WAT04-1  W0401      
H2O,<10% floc NR treat&dschrge  DM55  WAT05  W0500      
H2O/Oil <10% floc NR  DM55  WAT05-1  W0501      
Fixer/Developer Containing Silver  DM55  WAT08  W0800      
LP, Treatment, Corr Poisons  DM55  WAT16-PA  W16PA      
CN Liq 5k-15k ppm  DM55  WAT20-2  W2002      

  
Hazardous Waste Non-Disposal Pricing  
Service Description  UOM  Process Code  Tower code  Pricing  Comments  
Transportation:            
Haz Stop Fee (West)  Each  TRSTOP1  TRSTOP1      
Demurrage  Hourly  TRADMDEM  TRADMDEM      

Page 669 of 853



   
 

2023_HPG SMS, Rx, CsRx, Haz_V.3_ 2.16.24 jl   18 | P a g e  
 

AK Surcharge Fee  Each  TRADMHM  TRADMHM      
HI Surcharge Fee  Each  TRADMHM  TRADMHM      
PR Surcharge Fee  Each  TRADMHM  TRADMHM      
Vehicle, Service  Each  EQVESERV  EQVESERV      
Insurance, Security & Environmental Fee  Per Invoice    ISEPCT      
Labor:            
Lab packing and sorting  Hourly  LBLABRST  LBLABRST    4 hour minimum (Portal to Portal)  
Field Tech - 1st Hour  Hourly  TRSTRDEMZ  TRSTRDEM    4 hour minimum (Portal to Portal)  
Field Tech  Hourly  LBFIELST  LBFIELST    4 hour minimum (Portal to Portal)  
Driver-operator  Hourly  LBDRIVST  LBDRIVST    4 hour minimum (Portal to Portal)  
Field Chemist, Straight Time  Hourly  LBCHEMST  LBCHEMST    4 hour minimum (Portal to Portal)  
Field Chemist, Over Time  Hourly  LBCHEMOT    $     
Project Manager, Straight Time  Hourly  LBPROJMST  LBPROJMS    4 hour minimum (Portal to Portal)  
Supplies:            
Analytical Test: pH  Each  LAB1001  LAB1001      
Analytical Test: Flash Point  Each  LAB3036  LAB3036      
Analysis - TCLP Semi-Volatiles  Each  LAB3047  LAB3047      
Analysis - TCLP Volatiles  Each  LAB3048  LAB3048      
Analytical Test: RCRA Metal TCLP  Each  LAB3051  LAB3051      
1.5 Quart Black Container (C)  Each  SP1.5QTRB  SP15QTRB      
12 gal black, hinged lid  Each  SP12BLKHI  SP12BKHI      
18 gal black, sliding lid  Each  SP18BLKSL  SP18BKSL      
2 gallon, black  Each  SP2GLBLK  SP2GLBLK      
8 gal black, hinged lid  Each  SP8BLKHIN  SP8BLKHN      
8 gal black, sliding lid  Each  SP8BLKSLI  SP8BLKSL      
8 gal liners clear  Each  SP8LNERCL  SP8LNRCL      
Pallet  Each  SPALLET  SPALLET      
Box, DOT E 9168  Each  SPBX9168  SPBX9168      
Box, DOT E 9168 PIH  Each  SPBX916P  SPBX916P      
Box (4 foot) Fluorescent Lamp Box  Each  SPBXBUB4  SPBXBUB4      
Box (8 foot) Fluorescent Lamp Box  Each  SPBXBUB8  SPBXBUB8      
Container, (4 Foot) Fluorescent Lamp 

Container  Each  SPBXBUC4  SPBXBUC4      

Container, (8 Foot) Fluorescent Lamp 

Container  Each  SPBXBUC8  SPBXBUC8      

Cubic Yard Box  Each  SPBXCYB  SPBXCYB      
Box, New Galaxy waste boxes  Each  SPBXGALX  SPBXGALX      
Box, Triwall Cardboard Box, Non-DOT  Each  SPBXTRI  SPBXTRI      
Drum, Fiber, 5 gallon, New, Closed Top  Each  SPDF05NC  SPDF05NC      
Drum, Fiber, 5 gallon, New, Open Top  Each  SPDF05NO  SPDF05NO      
Drum, Fiber, 5 gallon, Recon, Closed Top  Each  SPDF05UC  SPDF05UC      
Drum, Fiber, 5 gallon, Recon, Open Top  Each  SPDF05UO  SPDF05UO      
Drum, 15 gallon, RX  Each  SPDF15NC  SPDF15NC      
Drum, Fiber, 15 gallon, New, Open Top  Each  SPDF15NO  SPDF15NO      
Drum, Fiber, 15 gallon, Recon, Open Top  Each  SPDF15UO  SPDF15UO      
Drum, Fiber, 30 gallon, New, Closed Top  Each  SPDF30NC  SPDF30NC      
Drum, Fiber/Poly, 30 gallon, New, Open Top  Each  SPDF30NO  SPDF30NO      
Drum, Fiber, 30 gallon, Recon, Open Top  Each  SPDF30UO  SPDF30UO      
Drum, Fiber, 55 gallon, New, Closed Top  Each  SPDF55NC  SPDF55NC      
Drum, Fiber, 55 gallon, New, Open Top  Each  SPDF55NO  SPDF55NO      
Drum, Fiber, 55 gallon, Recon, Open Top  Each  SPDF55UO  SPDF55UO      
Poly Overpack - 85 gallon  Each  SPDF85NO  SPDF85NO      
Drum, Metal, 5 gallon, New, Closed Top  Each  SPDM05NC  SPDM05NC      
Steel Drum - 5 gallon  Each  SPDM05NO  SPDM05NO      
Drum, Metal, 15 gallon, New, Closed Top  Each  SPDM15NC  SPDM15NC      
Drum, Metal, 15 gallon, New, Open Top  Each  SPDM15NO  SPDM15NO      
Drum, Metal, 30 gallon, New, Closed Top  Each  SPDM30NC  SPDM30NC      
Drum, Metal, 30 gallon, New, Open Top  Each  SPDM30NO  SPDM30NO      
Drum, Metal, 55 gallon, New, Closed Top  Each  SPDM55NC  SPDM55NC      
Drum, Metal, 55 gallon, New, Open Top  Each  SPDM55NO  SPDM55NO      

Page 670 of 853



   
 

2023_HPG SMS, Rx, CsRx, Haz_V.3_ 2.16.24 jl   19 | P a g e  
 

Steel Overpack - 85 gallon  Each  SPDM85NO  SPDM85NO      
Drum, Poly, 5 gallon, New, Closed Top  Each  SPDP05NC  SPDP05NC      
Poly Drum - 5 gallon  Each  SPDP05NO  SPDP05NO      
Drum, Poly, 5 gallon, New, Open Top, Color  Each  SPDP05OC  SPDP05OC      
Drum, Poly, 5 gallon, Recon, Closed Top  Each  SPDP05UC  SPDP05UC      
Drum, Poly, 5 gallon, Recon, Closed Top  Each  SPDP05UO  SPDP05UO      
Drum, 10 gallon  Each  SPDP10NO  SPDP10NO      
Drum, 15 gallon  Each  SPDP15NC  SPDP15NC      
Drum, Poly, 15 gallon, New, Open Top  Each  SPDP15NO  SPDP15NO      
Drum, Poly, 15 gallon, Recon, Open Top  Each  SPDP15UO  SPDP15UO      
Drum, Poly, 20 gallon, New, Open Top  Each  SPDP20NO  SPDP20NO      
Drum, Poly, 20 gallon, Recon, Closed Top  Each  SPDP20UC  SPDP20NC      
Drum, Poly, 30 gallon, New, Closed Top  Each  SPDP30NC  SPDP30NC      
Drum, Poly, 30 gallon, New, Open Top  Each  SPDP30NO  SPDP30NO      
Drum, Poly, 30 gallon, Recon, Closed Top  Each  SPDP30UC  SPDP30UC      
Drum, Poly, 30 gallon, Recon, Open Top  Each  SPDP30UO  SPDP30UO      
Drum, Poly, 55 gallon, New, Closed Top  Each  SPDP55NC  SPDP55NC      
Drum, Poly, 55 gallon, New, Open Top  Each  SPDP55NO  SPDP55NO      
Drum, Poly, 55 gallon, Recon, Closed Top  Each  SPDP55UC  SPDP55UC      
Drum, Poly, 55 gallon, Recon, Open Top  Each  SPDP55UO  SPDP55UO      
Labels  Each  SPLABEL  SPLABEL      
Lab packer, 05 gallon  Each  SPLABPK05  SPLBPK05      
Lab packer, 10 gallon  Each  SPLABPK10  SPLBPK10      
Lab packer, 20 gallon  Each  SPLABPK20  SPLBPK20      
Lab packer, 30 gallon  Each  SPLABPK30  SPLBPK30      
Lab packer, 55 gallon  Each  SPLABPK55  SPLBPK55      
Liner, Liner for Cubic Yard Box  Each  SPLINECYB  SPLINECYB      
Liner, Drum, 2 mil  Each  SPLINED  SPLINED      
Poly Sheeting - roll  Each  SPLINELUG  SPLINLUG      
Personal Protective Equip (Lvl D)  Each  SPPED  SPPED      
Spill Pads - bale  Each  SPSORAL  SPSORAL      
Tote, 330 Plastic, New  Each  SPTOT330N  SPTOT330      
Vermiculite - bag  Each  SPVERM  SPVERM      
   

Minimums and Conversions  
Non-Specified Container 

Conversions  Conversion Table Notes    

Container Size  Conversion  •   

  
  

     

  
  

    
 

  
  

    
 

  
  

    

 

 

 

   

  

         
         

 

         

 

  
       

    

  

 

 

  

  

Per Pound Standard Minimums    Non-Standard Minimums    

Page 671 of 853



   
 

2023_HPG SMS, Rx, CsRx, Haz_V.3_ 2.16.24 jl   20 | P a g e  
 

   
Common 

Containers1  
Lab Pack  Light Weight 

Containers3  

        

Containers2          

Container (Gal)  |-----------------Minimums----------------|    Container 

Min.  
Process Code    

                 

          
    

  
  

                  
                  

         
  

   
 

 

  

  

 

  
        

       

Tote (<300 gal)  1950 lbs.   --   --          
1. Excludes Lab Pack and Light Weight items       
2. Includes: LF06, STAB06-6, series of codes for INC14, INC15 & 

WAT16  
  

3. Includes: AF17, INC01, INC02, INC16    
4. All other container sizes are case by case (CBC)    
Please Note: The greater of the disposal minimum or er container will be charged unless quoted otherwise     

  

Ancillary Charges  Item Code   UOM   Price   
Profiling Fees   
<24 Hour URGENT Profile Fee   ADMPRORU   Each      
Off Spec & Discrepancy Fees   
Rejection Fee   ADMREJECT   Each      
Manifest Discrepancy/Paperwork Error   ADMMAN   Each      
Off Spec/Discrepant – Storage Fee   ADMSTOR   Day      
Transportation, Labor, and Other Fees   
e-Manifest Administration Fee (per manifest)  EMANFSTF  Each      
Minimum Invoice Amount  ---  Per Invoice     
Scheduled Pickup Cancellation   ADMCAN   Each      
Repacking/Overpacking Fee   ADMREPK   Each      
Overpack Handling Fee   ADMOVPK   Each      
Technical Lab Pack Review "Flat Rate Fee -  The flat fee criteria:   

ADTECHRVW   Each      
(1.) Excel submitted inventories;   
(2.) Maximum of 500 inventory items;  
(3.) <5% of items with Trade Names"   
        
1.      The disposal pricing as listed above is based on the information provided and will be confirmed following receipt of a completed waste profile.  All pricing is 
pending profile approval and/or waste sample analysis.   
2.      For a complete list of process code specifications, visit:    
https://www.cleanearthinc.com/sites/default/files/Process-Specifications.pdf  
3.      A minimum charge of  applies to the invoice.  
4.      Transportation, labor and equipment is portal to portal, and requires a four-hour minimum unless otherwise specified.   
5.      Unless otherwise specified, transportation rates include one hour of loading at the customer facility .  Demurrage rates will apply after one hour and will be billed in 
15-minute increments.  
6.      All invoices are subject to applicable Federal, State, and local taxes & fees as well as an Energy & Insurance recovery charge tied to the National monthly average 
price for diesel fuel as published by the Department of Energy. https://www.cleanearthinc.com/energy-and-insurance-fees/  

 

Assumptions  
Standard Pricing Conditions:   

➢  This section and the terms and conditions apply to this quote unless superseded by a service agreement.   
➢  Pricing is based on the information provided and will be confirmed following receipt of a completed waste 

profile.  All pricing is pending profile approval and/or waste sample analysis.  
➢  Pricing is based on the volume assumptions provided. Stericycle reserves the right to adjust pricing if waste 

quantity differs from what was provided.  

Page 672 of 853

https://www.cleanearthinc.com/sites/default/files/Process-Specifications.pdf
https://www.cleanearthinc.com/energy-and-insurance-fees/
https://www.cleanearthinc.com/energy-and-insurance-fees/


   
 

2023_HPG SMS, Rx, CsRx, Haz_V.3_ 2.16.24 jl   21 | P a g e  
 

➢  A minimum charge of  applies to all invoices.  
➢  Transportation, labor and equipment is portal to portal, and requires a four hour minimum unless otherwise 

specified.    
➢  Unless otherwise specified, transportation rates include one hour of loading at the customer 

facility.  Demurrage rates will apply after one hour and will be billed in 15 minute increments.  
➢  All invoices are subject to applicable Federal, State, and local taxes & fees as well as an Energy & Insurance 

recovery charge tied to the National monthly average price for diesel fuel as published by the Department of Energy.    
➢  E-Manifest Fee's will be applied  
➢ In order to offer the safest and most complete services, we may need to apply price adjustments as necessary 

to cover costs that are beyond our control such as extraordinary or unexpected increases in disposal costs, regulatory change s, 
economic changes, war, etc.  

 

Waste Specific Conditions  
➢  Disposal prices for gas cylinders are for those with original label, operable valve and in acceptable DOT shipping 

condition.    
o      

     
 

  
     

  
   

   
  

General Disposal Terms and Conditions  
➢  Bulk waste is typically defined as tanker or roll-off loads.  

➢  Non-bulk waste means drums, boxes, totes, pails, bags, and cubic yard boxes and other containerized waste.  

➢  Electronic profiling is included in the price.  Paper profiles will be charged at $50 each.   

➢  Unless otherwise specified, prices quoted do not include the following:   
o    Radioactive Waste  

o    Biohazard or Infectious Waste  

o    Explosives of any type  
o    Liquid or free mercury  

o    Isocyanates  

o    Reactive materials (metals, solids, liquids)  
 

Hazardous Waste Service Locations 

Cust & Site # 
Pricing 

Structure 
Name Address City St Zip Frequency EPA ID# 

New Hospital 
Haz/Las Vegas 

UMC 

1800 W Charleston 

Boulevard 
Las Vegas NV 89102 OnCall  

Hours of Operation: 24/7  

Phone Number: 702-765-7930 

Page 673 of 853



   
 

2023_HPG SMS, Rx, CsRx, Haz_V.3_ 2.16.24 jl   22 | P a g e  
 

Attachment B 

Waste Acceptance Policy 

 

Page 674 of 853



   
 

2023_HPG SMS, Rx, CsRx, Haz_V.3_ 2.16.24 jl   23 | P a g e  
 

CsRx Program Waste Acceptance Policy 
 
INTRODUCTION 

Stericycle requires compliance with all applicable regulations regarding the collection, transportation and treatment of 

pharmaceutical waste. The purpose of this policy is to summarize the minimum requirements for preparing your controlled 

substance wastage for collection, transportation and disposal through Stericycle’s CsRx® program.  

DEFINITIONS 

Controlled Substance Waste: Stericycle accepts controlled substance waste from an institutional practitioner generated after 

the controlled substance has been administered to a patient on behalf of a registrant at the registrant’s location; this material 

is also known as controlled substance wastage. 

Non-RCRA (Non-Hazardous) Controlled Substance Waste: Means a liquid controlled substance waste that has been expunged 

from a syringe, vial or ampoule or solid controlled substance waste such as patches, pills, tablets or capsules. Wastes must be 

characterized and certified as non-hazardous (i.e. is not specifically listed or does not exhibit hazardous characteristics (ignitable, 

corrosive, reactive, toxic) specified by EPA/RCRA regulations) by the generator. 

RCRA (Hazardous) Controlled Substance Waste: Means a liquid controlled substance waste that has been expunged from a 

syringe, vial or ampule or solid controlled substance waste such as patches, pills, tablets or capsules. Theses wastes are hazardous 

waste due to being listed and/or exhibiting hazardous characteristics (ignitable, corrosive, reactive, toxic) specified by EPA/RCRA 

regulations. All hazardous controlled substance waste must be managed & disposed of as hazardous waste pharmaceuticals.  

DISPOSAL PROCEDURES 

Disposal of Non-Hazardous Controlled Substance Waste: In most states, non-hazardous controlled substance waste may be sent 

through the Commercial Common Carrier for disposal. 

In the following states, this material cannot be shipped via a common carrier and /or managed as non-hazardous controlled 

substance waste: Delaware, Illinois, Louisiana, Maine, Minnesota, North Dakota, New Hampshire, New Jersey, New 

Mexico, Rhode Island, and Washington. Follow instructions in next section, “Disposal of Hazardous Controlled Substance 

Waste” for management of non-hazardous controlled substance waste in these states. 

Disposal of Hazardous Controlled Substance Waste: This material is prohibited from shipping via  common carrier and 

requires a hazardous waste transporter and hazardous waste manifest for pickup and disposal. Non-hazardous controlled 

substance waste may also be collected with hazardous controlled substance waste; this type of program is referred to as 

“over-classification”. All containers must be labeled as hazardous waste in both satellite accumulation areas (SAA) and 

central accumulation areas (CAA). The CsRx container must be disposed onsite with other hazardous waste pharmaceuticals. 

PROHIBITED WASTE 

The following wastes are prohibited from being disposed in a CsRx container.  In the event of such an occurrence, additional 

charges may apply to the customer and/or customer may be asked to pick up their waste from the Stericycle facility. Proper 

segregation and packaging are essential to ensure compliant and safe handling, collection, transportation and treatment of 

controlled substance waste. 

•  Controlled Substances that are still part of registrant inventory 
•  Controlled Substances from ultimate users* (take-back program waste) 

•  Controlled Substances that are a Schedule I substance (i.e. Illicit drugs and contraband found on  patients) 

•  Chemical Wastes (Hazardous and Non-hazardous) Examples include but are not limited to acids, bases, alcohols, waste oil, 

solvents, reagents, fixers, developers, cleaning agents, and heavy metals. 

•  Regulated Medical Waste: Including sharps waste as defined by DOT, OSHA and/or State regulations 
•  Radioactive Waste 

MANAGEMENT OF NON-HAZARDOUS CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE WASTE CONTAINERS DAMAGED IN SHIPMENT 

As required by regulation and by company policy, Commercial Common Carrier services reserve the right and may refuse 

transport of any containers that appear to be damaged, leaking, or improperly packaged as these containers could create  a 

risk of exposure to employees or the public. 

 

Any damaged packages identified in route to or at a  Commercial Common Carrier location may be returned to the generator 

for proper packaging or disposal.  

 

Page 675 of 853



   
 

2023_HPG SMS, Rx, CsRx, Haz_V.3_ 2.16.24 jl   24 | P a g e  
 

Stericycle or customer may be required to pick-up damaged packages from a Commercial Common Carrier facility or a 

Stericycle facility. 

 

In the event of such an occurrence additional charges may apply to the customer. Proper segregation and packaging are 

essential to ensure compliant and safe handling, collection, transportation and treatment of controlled substance waste. 

 

*An ultimate user is defined by the Controlled Substances Act as a “person who has lawfully obtained, and who possesses, a 

controlled substance for his own use or for the use of a member of his household or for an animal owned by him or by a member 

of his household.” 21 U.S.C. 802(27). 

 

 

We protect what matters. 

© 2020 Stericycle, Inc. All rights reserved. STC_CSRXWAP_0120  
 

  

Page 676 of 853



   
 

2023_HPG SMS, Rx, CsRx, Haz_V.3_ 2.16.24 jl   25 | P a g e  
 

 

ATTACHMENT C - Per Invoice Energy Charge 

Percent of Invoice Fuel Surcharge 

 

  

Page 677 of 853



   
 

2023_HPG SMS, Rx, CsRx, Haz_V.3_ 2.16.24 jl   26 | P a g e  
 

Attachment D - Customer Respiratory Protection Policy 

 

 
 

 
  
 

 
Updated June 2021 

 
 
 

Customer Respiratory Protection Policy 
 
This policy applies to U.S.-based Stericycle customers who require Stericycle employees, including in-service technicians, to wear 
customer-issued respirators when present at the customer’s facility. 

 
“Respirator” as used in this policy refers to any device or face covering that is considered a “respirator” by the  U.S. Occupational 

Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) for purposes of its Respiratory Protection standard (29 C.F.R. 1910.134).  
 
When a customer requires Stericycle employees to wear customer-issued respirators, such customer shall, in accordance with 29 

C.F.R. 1910.134: 
1. Establish and implement a written, work-site specific respiratory protection program that covers contractors and visitors in 

addition to employees, a  copy of which must be made available to Stericycle upon request.  

2. Select and provide an appropriate respirator based on the hazards to which the Stericycle employee will be exposed. 
3. Conduct a fit test on each Stericycle employee using the same make, model, style and size of respirator that will be provided. 

4. Prepare, and retain for at least one (1) year from the date of test, a record of the fit tests administered to Stericycle employees, 
including: (A) the name of the employee tested; (B) the type of fit test performed; (C) the specific make, model, style and 
size of respirator tested; (D) the date of the test; and (E) the test results. 

5. Provide a copy of the record referenced in item (4), above, to the Stericycle employee immediately following the test.  
 
In accordance with 29 C.F.R. 1910.134, Stericycle trains in-service technicians on respiratory protection and conducts medical 

evaluations to confirm their ability to use a respirator.  Stericycle employees who believe that their safety has been compromised in 
any way have, and will exercise, stop work authority. 

 

 

 

 

Page 678 of 853



1100 Dr. Martin Luther King Blvd    I Nashville, TN 37203    I healthtrustpg.com 

 

 

H E A LT H T R U S T ------------------ 
 
 
 
 
 

February 14th, 2024  

Emelia Allen 

University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 

1800 W. Charleston Blvd. 

Las Vegas, NV 89102 
 

Re: Request for competitive bidding information regarding Integrated Waste Streams.  

 

Dear Ms. Allen: 
 

This letter is provided in response to the University Medical Center of Southern Nevada's ("UMC") request 

for information about HealthTrust Purchasing Group, L.P.'s ("HealthTrust") competitive bidding process for 

Integrated Waste Streams. We are pleased to provide this information to UMC in your capacity as a 

Participant of HealthTrust, as defined in and subject to the Participation Agreement between HealthTrust 

and UMC, effective August 3, 2016. 

 
HealthTrust's bid and award process is described in its Contracting Process Policy [HT.008] available on its 

public website {http://healthtrustpg.com/about-healthtrust/healthcare-code-of-ethics/).  As described in the 

policy, HealthTrust operates a member-driven contracting process. Advisory Boards are engaged to 

determine the clinical, technical, operational, conversion, business and other criteria important for each 

specific bid category. The boards are comprised of representatives from HealthTrust's membership who 

have appropriate experience, credentials/licensures, and decision-making authority within their respective 

health systems for the board on which they serve. 

 
HealthTrust's requirements for specific products and services are published on its Contract Schedule on its 

public website.  HealthTrust's requirements for vendors are outlined in its Supplier Criteria Policy [HT.010]. 

A listing of the minimum Supplier Criteria is also published on HealthTrust's public website, as well as an on-

line form for prospective vendor submission. 

 
The Contracting Process Policy includes criteria for the selection of contract products and services and 

documents and the procedures followed by HealthTrust's contracting team to select vendors for 

consideration. HealthTrust's Advisory Boards may provide additional requirements or other criteria that 

would be incorporated into the RFP (request for proposals) process, where appropriate. Vendor proposals 

submitted in response to RFPs are analyzed using an extensive clinical/technical review as described above, 

as well as a financial/operational review. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 679 of 853



1100 Dr. Martin Luther King Blvd    I Nashville, TN 37203    I healthtrustpg.com 

 

 

 

 

H E A LT H T R U ST 
  

 
The above-described process was followed with respect to the Integrated Waste Streams.  HealthTrust 

issued RFPs and received proposals from identified suppliers in the category.  Agreements were awarded 

to Stericycle, Daniels Health, Clean Harbors, Trilogy, and Curtis Bay Medical Waste in January of 2024.  I 

hope this satisfies your request.  Please contact me with any additional questions. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Craig Dabbs 

Sr. Account Director, Member Services 

    

Page 680 of 853



REVISED 7/25/2014 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING THE  

DISCLOSURE OF OWNERSHIP/PRINCIPALS FORM 

Purpose of the Form 

 

The purpose of the Disclosure of Ownership/Principals Form is to gather ownership information pertaining to the business entity for use by the University Medical 

Center of Southern Nevada Governing Board (“GB”) in determining whether members of the GB should exclude themselves from voting on agenda items where 

they have, or may be perceived as having a conflict of interest, and to determine compliance with Nevada Revised Statute 281A.430, contracts in which a public 
officer or employee has interest is prohibited. 
 

General Instructions 
 

Completion and submission of this Form is a condition of approval or renewal of a contract or lease and/or release of monetary funding between the disclosing 
entity and University Medical Center of Southern Nevada.  Failure to submit the requested information may result in a refusal by the GB to enter into an 

agreement/contract and/or release monetary funding to such disclosing entity. 
 

Detailed Instructions 
 

All sections of the Disclosure of Ownership form must be completed.  If not applicable, write in N/A. 
 

Business Entity Type – Indicate if the entity is an Individual, Partnership, Limited Liability Company, Corporation, Trust, Non-profit Organization, or Other.  

When selecting ‘Other’, provide a description of the legal entity. 
 

Non-Profit Organization (NPO) - Any non-profit corporation, group, association, or corporation duly filed and registered as required by state law. 
 

Business Designation Group – Indicate if the entity is a Minority Owned Business Enterprise (MBE), Women-Owned Business Enterprise (WBE), Small 

Business Enterprise (SBE), Physically-Challenged Business Enterprise (PBE), Veteran Owned Business (VET), Disabled Veteran Owned Business (DVET), or 

Emerging Small Business (ESB) . This is needed in order to provide utilization statistics to the Legislative Council Bureau, and will be used only for such 
purpose.   
 

• Minority Owned Business Enterprise (MBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function and 

is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more minority persons of Black American, Hispanic American, Asian-Pacific American or Native 

American ethnicity. 

• Women Owned Business Enterprise (WBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function and 

is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more women. 

• Physically-Challenged Business Enterprise (PBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful 

function and is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more disabled individuals pursuant to the federal Americans with Disabilities Act. 

• Small Business Enterprise (SBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function, is not owned 

and controlled by individuals designated as minority, women, or physically-challenged, and where gross annual sales does not exceed $2,000,000. 

• Veteran Owned Business Enterprise (VET): An independent and continuing Nevada business for profit which performs a commercially useful 

function and is at least 51 percent owned and controlled by one or more U.S. Veterans. 

• Disabled Veteran Owned Business Enterprise (DVET):  A Nevada business at least 51 percent owned/controlled by a disabled veteran. 

• Emerging Small Business (ESB): Certified by the Nevada Governor's Office of Economic Development effective January, 2014. Approved into 

Nevada law during the 77th Legislative session as a result of AB294. 
 

Business Name (include d.b.a., if applicable) – Enter the legal name of the business entity and enter the “Doing Business As” (d.b.a.) name, if applicable.   
 

Corporate/Business Address, Business Telephone, Business Fax, and Email – Enter the street address, telephone and fax numbers, and email of the named 

business entity.   
 

Nevada Local Business Address, Local Business Telephone, Local Business Fax, and Email – If business entity is out-of-state, but operates the business from a 
location in Nevada, enter the Nevada street address, telephone and fax numbers, point of contact and email of the local office. Please note that the local address 

must be an address from which the business is operating from that location. Please do not include a P.O. Box number, unless required by the U.S. Postal Service, 

or a business license hanging address. 
 

Number of Clark County Nevada Residents employed by this firm. (Do not leave blank. If none or zero, put the number 0 in the space provided.) 
 

List of Owners/Officers – Include the full name, title and percentage of ownership of each person who has ownership or financial interest in the business entity.  If 

the business is a publicly-traded corporation or non-profit organization, list all Corporate Officers and Directors only.   
 

For All Contracts – (Not required for publicly-traded corporations) 
1) Indicate if any individual members, partners, owners or principals involved in the business entity are a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 

full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s).  If yes, the following paragraph applies. 

 
In accordance with NRS 281A.430.1, a public officer or employee shall not bid on or enter into a contract between a government agency and any 

private business in which he has a significant financial interest, except as provided for in subsections 2, 3, and 4. 
 

2) Indicate if any individual members, partners, owners or principals involved in the business entity have a second degree of consanguinity or affinity 

relation to a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s) (reference form on Page 2 for 

definition).  If YES, complete the Disclosure of Relationship Form.  
 

A professional service is defined as a business entity that offers business/financial consulting, legal, physician, architect, engineer or other professional services. 
 

Signature and Print Name – Requires signature of an authorized representative and the date signed. 
 

Disclosure of Relationship Form – If any individual members, partners, owners or principals of the business entity is presently a University Medical Center of 

Southern Nevada employee, public officer or official, or has a second degree of consanguinity or affinity relationship to a University Medical Center of Southern 
Nevada employee, public officer or official, this section must be completed in its entirety.   

 

Page 681 of 853



DISCLOSURE OF OWNERSHIP/PRINCIPALS 

1 
REVISED 7/25/2014 

 

Business Entity Type (Please select one) 

 Sole 
Proprietorship 

Partnership 
 Limited Liability 

Company  
 Corporation  Trust 

 Non-Profit   
Organization 

  Other 

Business Designation Group (Please select all that apply) 

 MBE  WBE  SBE  PBE  VET DVET  ESB 

Minority Business 
Enterprise 

Women-Owned 
Business 
Enterprise 

Small Business 
Enterprise 

Physically Challenged 
Business Enterprise 

Veteran Owned 
Business 

Disabled Veteran 
Owned Business 

Emerging Small 
Business 

 

Number of Clark County Nevada Residents Employed: 43 

  

Corporate/Business Entity Name:  Stericycle, Inc. 

(Include d.b.a., if applicable)  

Street Address: 2355 Waukegan Road Website: www.stericycle.com 

City, State and Zip Code: 
Bannockburn, IL 60015 POC Name: 

Email: 

Telephone No: 866-783-7422 Fax No: 

Nevada Local Street Address: 

(If different from above) 

3060 N Commerce Street Website: 

 City, State and Zip Code: North Las Vegas, NV 89030 Local Fax No: 

Local Telephone No: 
 Local POC Name: 

Email: 

All entities, with the exception of publicly-traded and non-profit organizations, must list the names of individuals holding more than five percent (5%) ownership or 
financial interest in the business entity appearing before the Board. 
 
Publicly-traded entities and non-profit organizations shall list all Corporate Officers and Directors in lieu of disclosing the names of individuals with 
ownership or financial interest. The disclosure requirement, as applied to land-use applications, extends to the applicant and the landowner(s). 

Entities include all business associations organized under or governed by Title 7 of the Nevada Revised Statutes, including but not limited to private corporations, 
close corporations, foreign corporations, limited liability companies, partnerships, limited partnerships, and professional corporations. 

 

  Full Name  Title  % Owned 
(Not required for Publicly Traded 

Corporations/Non-profit organizations) 

 

      

      

      

      

This section is not required for publicly-traded corporations.  Are you a publicly-traded corporation?             Yes       No 

1. Are any individual members, partners, owners or principals, involved in the business entity, a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time 
employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s)? 

  Yes   No (If yes, please note that University Medical Center of Southern Nevada employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s) may not 
perform any work on professional service contracts, or other contracts, which are not subject to competitive bid.) 

 

2. Do any individual members, partners, owners or principals have a spouse, registered domestic partner, child, parent, in-law or brother/sister, half-brother/half-
sister, grandchild, grandparent, related to a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s)? 

  Yes   No (If yes, please complete the Disclosure of Relationship form on Page 2.  If no, please print N/A on Page 2.)  

 

I certify under penalty of perjury, that all of the information provided herein is current, complete, and accurate. I also understand that the University Medical Center of 
Southern Nevada Governing Board will not take action on land-use approvals, contract approvals, land sales, leases or exchanges without the completed disclosure 
form. 

 

    

Signature 
 

 Print Name  

    

Title  Date  

Jennifer Thomas

Business Development Director 2/15/2024

Page 682 of 853



DISCLOSURE OF RELATIONSHIP 

2 
REVISED 7/25/2014 

 

 
List any disclosures below: 
(Mark N/A, if not applicable.) 

 

NAME OF BUSINESS 
OWNER/PRINCIPAL 

NAME OF UMC* 
EMPLOYEE/OFFICIAL 

AND JOB TITLE 

RELATIONSHIP TO 
 UMC* 

EMPLOYEE/OFFICIAL 

UMC* 
EMPLOYEE’S/OFFICIAL’S 

DEPARTMENT 

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 
* UMC employee means an employee of University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 
 
“Consanguinity” is a relationship by blood.  “Affinity” is a relationship by marriage. 
 
“To the second degree of consanguinity” applies to the candidate’s first and second degree of blood relatives as 
follows: 
 

• Spouse – Registered Domestic Partners – Children – Parents – In-laws (first degree) 
 

• Brothers/Sisters – Half-Brothers/Half-Sisters – Grandchildren – Grandparents – In-laws (second degree) 
 
 

 
For UMC Use Only: 

 
If any Disclosure of Relationship is noted above, please complete the following:     
 

  Yes     No   Is the UMC employee(s) noted above involved in the contracting/selection process for this particular agenda item? 
 

  Yes     No   Is the UMC employee(s) noted above involved in any way with the business in performance of the contract? 
 
Notes/Comments: 
 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Signature  
 
____________________________________ 
Print Name  
Authorized Department Representative 

 
 

 

Page 683 of 853



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
February 28, 2024 

 
 

 

Agenda Item #  

22 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD  

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Issue: Agreement for Contractor Services with T Evans RNFA, LLC 
 

 
Back-up: 
      

 
Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer 

 
Clerk Ref. # 
      

 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Governing Board approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the 
Agreement with T Evans RNFA, LLC for Cardiovascular Operating Room First Assist 
Services; authorize the Chief Executive Officer to execute extensions and amendments; or 
take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
Fund Number: 5420.000      Fund Name:  UMC Operating Fund 
Fund Center: 3000702100     Funded Pgm/Grant: N/A 
Description: Contractor Services       
Bid/RFP/CBE: NRS 332.115(1)(b) – Professional Services  
Term: 02/23/2024 – 02/22/2027 with a 3-month extension option 
Amount: NTE $3,700,000.00       
Out Clause:  15 days for convenience 
 

BACKGROUND: 
 
On February 22, 2023, the Governing Board approved an agreement with T Evans RNFA, LLC (“T Evans”) to 
provide, upon Hospital’s option, the services of individual Cardiovascular Thoracic (CVT) Registered Nurse 
First Assist (RNFA) professionals, to perform services that fall within their scope of practice, including but 
not limited to, endoscopic vessel harvesting, training and proctoring. The agreement was for a one (1) year 
term. 
 
This is a request for a new Agreement with T Evans to continue providing these same services through the use 
of RNFA professionals.  UMC will compensate T Evans a NTE amount $3,700,000.00 for three (3) additional 
years from February 23, 2024 through February 22, 2027, with the option to extend up to an additional three 
(3) months.  Either party may terminate this Agreement with a 15-day written notice to the other.  Staff also 
requests authorization for the Hospital CEO to execute extension options and amendments that are within his 
yearly delegation of authority if deemed beneficial to UMC. 
 
UMC’s Clinical Director of Specialty Services has reviewed and recommends approval of this Agreement. 
This Agreement has been approved as to form by UMC’s Office of General Counsel. 
 

Page 684 of 853



Page Number 
2 

T Evans is coordinating with the Department of Business License in obtaining a Clark County vendor 
registration. 
 
This Agreement was reviewed by the Governing Board Audit and Finance Committee at their February 21, 
2024 meeting and recommended for approval by the Governing Board. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 685 of 853



 

 

 

 
UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER 

OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
  

AGREEMENT FOR  
CONTRACTOR SERVICES 

 
 
 
 
 

 
T EVANS RNFA, LLC 

NAME OF FIRM 

 
Lucretia Evans, Business Manager 

 
DESIGNATED CONTACT, NAME AND TITLE 

(Please type or print) 

 
2249 Lauren Drive 

Las Vegas, NV 89134 
 

ADDRESS OF FIRM 
INCLUDING CITY, STATE AND ZIP CODE 

 
(281) 964-5933 

 
(AREA CODE) AND TELEPHONE NUMBER 

 
tevansrnfa@gmail.com 

E-MAIL ADDRESS 

Page 686 of 853

Mobile User



Page | 1  

 

AGREEMENT FOR CONTRACTOR SERVICES 
This Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into as of February 23, 2024  (the “Effective Date”), by and between 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA, a publicly owned and operated hospital created by virtue of Chapter 450 

of the Nevada Revised Statutes (hereinafter referred to as “HOSPITAL”), and T Evans RNFA, LLC (hereinafter referred to as 

“CONTRACTOR”), for Contractor services (hereinafter referred to as “PROJECT”). 

W I T N E S S E T H: 

WHEREAS, CONTRACTOR has the personnel and resources necessary to accomplish the PROJECT within the required 

schedule and with a budget allowance not to exceed $3,700,000 as further described herein; and 

WHEREAS, CONTRACTOR has the required licenses and/or authorizations pursuant to all federal, State of Nevada and local 

laws in order to conduct business relative to this Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, HOSPITAL and CONTRACTOR agree as follows: 

SECTION I: TERM OF AGREEMENT 

HOSPITAL agrees to retain CONTRACTOR for the period from Effective Date through February 22, 2027 (“Term”). During this period, 

CONTRACTOR agrees to provide services as required by HOSPITAL within the scope of this Agreement. HOSPITAL reserves the right 

to extend the Agreement for up to an additional three (3) months for its convenience.  

SECTION II: COMPENSATION AND TERMS OF PAYMENT 
A. Terms of Payments 

1. HOSPITAL agrees to pay CONTRACTOR for the performance of services described in the Scope of Work (Exhibit A) 

for the fixed not-to-exceed fee of $3,700,000.  It is expressly understood that the entire Scope of Work defined in 
Exhibit A will be requested by HOSPITAL and be completed by CONTRACTOR. 

2. Payment of invoices will be made within forty-five (45) calendar days after receipt of an accurate invoice that has been 

reviewed and approved by HOSPITAL. 

3. HOSPITAL, at its discretion, may not approve or issue payment on invoices if CONTRACTOR fails to provide the 

following information required on each invoice: 
a. The title of the PROJECT as stated in Exhibit A, Scope of Work, itemized description of products delivered 

or services rendered and amount due, Purchase Order Number, Invoice Date, Invoice Period, Invoice Number, 

and the Payment Remittance Address. 
b. Expenses not defined in Exhibit A, Scope of Work will not be paid without prior written authorization by 

HOSPITAL. 

c. HOSPITAL’s representative shall notify CONTRACTOR in writing within fourteen (14) calendar days of any 

disputed amount included on the invoice. CONTRACTOR must submit a new invoice for the undisputed 

amount which will be paid in accordance with this paragraph A.2 above. Upon mutual resolution of the disputed 

amount, CONTRACTOR will submit a new invoice for the agreed amount and payment will be made in 

accordance with this paragraph A.2 above. 

4. HOSPITAL shall subtract from any payment made to CONTRACTOR all damages, costs and expenses caused by 

CONTRACTOR's negligence, resulting from or arising out of errors or omissions in CONTRACTOR's work products, 

which have not been previously paid to CONTRACTOR. 

5. HOSPITAL shall not provide payment on any invoice CONTRACTOR submits after six (6) months from the date 
CONTRACTOR performs services, provides deliverables, and/or meets milestones, as agreed upon in Exhibit A, 

Scope of Work. 

6. Invoices shall be submitted to:  University Medical Center of Southern Nevada, Attn:  Accounts Payable, 1800 W. 

Charleston Blvd., Las Vegas, NV 89102. 

B. HOSPITAL’s Fiscal Limitations 

Page 687 of 853

Mobile User



 

Page | 2  

 

1. The content of this section shall apply to the entire Agreement and shall take precedence over any conflicting terms 

and conditions, and shall limit HOSPITAL’s financial responsibility as indicated in Sections 2 and 3 below. 

2. In accordance with the Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS 354.626), the financial obligations under this Agreement 

between the parties shall not exceed those monies appropriated and approved by HOSPITAL for the then-current fiscal 

year under the Local Government Budget Act. This Agreement shall terminate and HOSPITAL's obligations under it 

shall be extinguished at the end of any of HOSPITAL's fiscal years in which HOSPITAL’s governing body fails to 

appropriate monies for the ensuing fiscal year sufficient for the payment of all amounts which could then become due 

under this Agreement. HOSPITAL agrees that this section shall not be utilized as a subterfuge or in a discriminatory 

fashion as it relates to this Agreement. In the event this section is invoked, this Agreement will expire on the 30th day 

of June of the then-current fiscal year. Termination under this section shall not relieve HOSPITAL of its obligations 

incurred through the 30th day of June of the fiscal year for which monies were appropriated. 

3. HOSPITAL’s total liability for all charges for services which may become due under this Agreement is limited to the 

total maximum expenditure(s) authorized in HOSPITAL’s purchase order(s) to CONTRACTOR. 

SECTION III: SCOPE OF WORK 

Services to be performed by CONTRACTOR for the PROJECT shall consist of the work described in the Scope of Work as set forth in 
Exhibit A of this Agreement, attached hereto. In the event of a conflict between the terms of this Agreement and the terms in the Scope 

of Work, the terms of this Agreement shall prevail. 

SECTION IV: CHANGES TO SCOPE OF WORK 

A. HOSPITAL may at any time, by written order, make changes within the general scope of this Agreement and in the services or work 

to be performed.  If such changes cause an increase or decrease in CONTRACTOR's cost or time required for performance of any 

services under this Agreement, an equitable adjustment limited to an amount within current unencumbered budgeted appropriations 

for the PROJECT shall be made and this Agreement shall be modified in writing accordingly. Any claim of CONTRACTOR for the 

adjustment under this clause must be submitted in writing within thirty (30) calendar days from the date of receipt by CONTRACTOR 

of notification of change unless HOSPITAL grants a further period of time before the date of final payment under this Agreement. 

B. No services for which an additional compensation will be charged by CONTRACTOR shall be furnished without the written 

authorization of HOSPITAL. 

SECTION V: RESPONSIBILITY OF CONTRACTOR  
A. It is understood that in the performance of the services herein provided for, CONTRACTOR shall be, and is, an independent 

contractor, and is not an agent, representative or employee of HOSPITAL and shall furnish such services in its own manner and 

method except as required by this Agreement. Further, CONTRACTOR has and shall retain the right to exercise full control over the 

employment, direction, compensation and discharge of all persons employed by CONTRACTOR in the performance of the services 

hereunder. CONTRACTOR shall be solely responsible for, and shall indemnify, defend and hold HOSPITAL harmless from all matters 

relating to the payment and compliance with social security, withholding and all other wages, salaries, benefits, taxes, demands, and 

regulations of any nature whatsoever. 

B. CONTRACTOR will follow HOSPITAL's relevant compliance policies as followed by HOSPITAL's staff in regard to programming 

changes; testing; change control; and other similar activities, including its corporate compliance program, HOSPITAL’s Contracted 

Non-Employee Requirements policy, and HOSPITAL’s Vaccine Policy as may be amended from time to time. HOSPITAL will provide 

a copy of said policy upon CONTRACTOR request. CONTRACTOR must either register through HOSITAL’s vendor 

management/credentialing system prior to arriving onsite at any of HOSPITAL’s facilities or CONTRACTOR may be required to 

complete HOSPITAL’s onboarding process and abide by onboarding requirements of HOSPITAL’s Human Resources Department.  

CONTRACTOR’s employees, agents, subcontractors and/or designees who do not abide by HOSPITAL’s policies may be barred 

from physical access to HOSPITAL’s premises. 

C. CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the professional quality, technical accuracy, timely completion, and coordination of all 

Page 688 of 853

Mobile User



 

Page | 3  

 

services furnished by CONTRACTOR. In performing the specified services, CONTRACTOR shall follow practices consistent with 

generally accepted professional and technical standards.  

SECTION VI: SUBCONTRACTS 

Services specified by this Agreement shall not be subcontracted by CONTRACTOR, without prior written approval of HOSPITAL. 

SECTION VII: RESPONSIBILITY OF HOSPITAL 

A. HOSPITAL agrees that its officers and employees will cooperate with CONTRACTOR in the performance of services under this 

Agreement and will be available for consultation with CONTRACTOR at such reasonable times with advance notice as to not conflict 

with their other responsibilities. 

B. The services performed by CONTRACTOR under this Agreement shall be subject to review for compliance with the terms of this 

Agreement by HOSPITAL's representative, Janet David-Lustina, Director or Interim Director of Peri-Operative Service, telephone 

number (702) 888-2574 or her designee. HOSPITAL's representative may delegate any or all of her responsibilities under this 

Agreement to appropriate staff members, and shall so inform CONTRACTOR by written notice before the effective date of each such 

delegation. 

C. The review comments of HOSPITAL's representative may be reported in writing as needed to CONTRACTOR. It is understood that 

HOSPITAL's representative’s review comments do not relieve CONTRACTOR from the responsibility for the professional and 

technical accuracy of all work delivered under this Agreement. 

D. HOSPITAL shall assist CONTRACTOR in obtaining data on documents from public officers or agencies, and from private citizens 

and/or business firms, whenever such material is necessary for the completion of the services specified by this Agreement. 

E. CONTRACTOR will not be responsible for accuracy of information or data supplied by HOSPITAL or other sources to the extent 

such information or data would be relied upon by a reasonably prudent CONTRACTOR. 

SECTION VIII: TERMINATION 

A. Termination 

1. Termination for Cause 

This Agreement may be terminated in whole or in part by either party in the event of substantial failure or default of the other 

party to fulfill its obligations under this Agreement through no fault of the terminating party; but only after the other party is 

given: 

a. not less than ten (10) calendar days written notice of intent to terminate; and 

b. an opportunity for consultation with the terminating party prior to termination. 

2. Termination for Convenience 

a. This Agreement may be terminated in whole or in part by HOSPITAL for its convenience; but only after CONTRACTOR 

is given not less than fifteen (15) calendar days written notice of intent to terminate; and 

b. If termination is for HOSPITAL’s convenience, HOSPITAL shall pay CONTRACTOR that portion of the compensation 

which has been earned as of the effective date of termination but no amount shall be allowed for anticipated profit on 

performed or unperformed services or other work.   

SECTION IX: INSURANCE 

CONTRACTOR shall obtain and maintain the insurance coverage required in Exhibit B incorporated herein by this reference. 

CONTRACTOR shall comply with the terms and conditions set forth in Exhibit B and shall include the cost of the insurance coverage in 

their prices. 

SECTION X: NOTICES 

Any notice required to be given hereunder shall be deemed to have been given when received by the party to whom it is directed by 

personal service, hand delivery, certified U.S. mail, return receipt requested or facsimile, at the following addresses: 

 

Page 689 of 853

Mobile User



 

Page | 4  

 

TO HOSPITAL: University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 

Attn: Contracts Management 

1800 W. Charleston Blvd. 

Las Vegas, NV 89102 

TO CONTRACTOR:  T Evans RNFA, LLC 

 Attn: Lucretia Evans 

 2249 Lauren Drive 

 Las Vegas, NV 89134 
 
SECTION XI: MISCELLANEOUS 

A. Amendments  

No modifications or amendments to this Agreement shall be valid or enforceable unless mutually agreed to in writing by the parties. 

B. Complete Agreement 

This Agreement, together with all exhibits, appendices or other attachments, which are incorporated herein by reference, is the sole 

and entire agreement between the parties relating to the subject matter hereof. This Agreement supersedes all prior understandings, 

representations, agreements and documentation relating to such subject matter. In the event of a conflict between the provisions of 

the main body of the Agreement and any attached exhibits, appendices or other materials, the Agreement shall take precedence.  

C. Assignment 

Any attempt by CONTRACTOR to assign or otherwise transfer any interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of 

HOSPITAL shall be void. 

D. Counterparts 

This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts. Each counterpart will be an original, and all such counterparts will 

constitute a single instrument. 

E. Clark County Business License / Registration 

CONTRACTOR warrants that it is has a valid Clark County Business License and will maintain such licensure through the duration 

of this Agreement. 

F. Governing Law / Venue 

Nevada law shall govern the interpretation of this Agreement.  Venue shall be any court of competent jurisdiction in Las Vegas, 

Nevada. 

G. Non-Excluded Healthcare Provider.   

Provider represents and warrants to Hospital that neither it nor any of its affiliates (a) are excluded from participation in any federal 

health care program, as defined under 42 U.S.C. §1320a-7b (f), for the provision of items or services for which payment may be 

made under such federal health care programs and (b) has arranged or contracted (by employment or otherwise) with any employee, 

contractor or agent that such party or its affiliates know or should know are excluded from participation in any federal health care 

program, to provide items or services hereunder.  Provider represents and warrants to Hospital that no final adverse action, as such 

term is defined under 42 U.S.C. §1320a-7e (g), has occurred or is pending or threatened against such Provider or its affiliates or to 

their knowledge against any employee, contractor or agent engaged to provide items or services under this Agreement (collectively 

“Exclusions / Adverse Actions”). 

H. HIPAA 

Both parties hereto agree to comply with all applicable provisions of Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) and 

all regulations promulgated thereunder, as amended from time to time (“HIPAA”).  In handling Protected Health Information (“PHI”) 

as defined by applicable federal regulation, CONTRACTOR will be instructed to follow guidelines set by HOSPITAL, the covered 

entity, and immediately be required to execute confidentiality or HIPAA Compliance Agreements.   

Page 690 of 853

Mobile User



 

Page | 5  

 

I. Public Funds / Non-Discrimination 

CONTRACTOR acknowledges that the HOSPITAL has an obligation to ensure that public funds are not used to subsidize private 

discrimination. CONTRACTOR recognizes that if they or their subcontractors are found guilty by an appropriate authority of refusing 

to hire or do business with an individual or CONTRACTOR due to reasons of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender 

identity or gender expression, age, disability, handicapping condition (including AIDS or AIDS related conditions), national origin, or 

any other class protected by law or regulation, HOSPITAL may declare CONTRACTOR in breach of the Agreement, terminate the 

Agreement, and designate CONTRACTOR as non-responsible. 

J. Public Records 

CONTRACTOR acknowledges that HOSPITAL is a public, county-owned hospital which is subject to the provisions of the Nevada 

Public Records Act, Nevada Revised Statutes Chapter 239, as may be amended from time to time. As such, its records are public 

documents available for copying and inspection by the public. If HOSPITAL receives a demand for the disclosure of any information 

related to this Agreement that CONTRACTOR has claimed to be confidential and proprietary, HOSPITAL will immediately notify 

CONTRACTOR of such demand and CONTRACTOR shall immediately notify HOSPITAL of its intention to seek injunctive relief in 

a Nevada court for protective order. CONTRACTOR shall indemnify and defend HOSPITAL from any claims or actions, including all 

associated costs and attorney’s fees, demanding the disclosure of CONTRACTOR document in HOSPITAL’s custody and control in 

which CONTRACTOR claims to be confidential and proprietary. 

K. Publicity   

Neither HOSPITAL nor CONTRACTOR shall cause to be published or disseminated any advertising materials, either printed or 

electronically transmitted which identify the other party or its facilities with respect to this Agreement without the prior written consent 

of the other party 

L. Indemnity 

CONTRACTOR does hereby agree to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless HOSPITAL and the employees, officers and agents of 

HOSPITAL from any liabilities, damages, losses, claims, actions or proceedings, including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys’ 

fees, that are caused by the negligence, errors, omissions, recklessness or intentional misconduct of CONTRACTOR or the 

employees or agents of CONTRACTOR in the performance of this Agreement. 

M. Independent Contractor 

CONTRACTOR acknowledges that it shall not, under any circumstances, be considered an employee of the HOSPITAL, and that 

CONTRACTOR shall not be entitled to any of the benefits or rights afforded employees of HOSPITAL, including, but not limited to, 

sick leave, vacation leave, holiday pay, Public Employees Retirement System benefits, or health, life, dental, long-term disability or 

workers' compensation insurance benefits.  HOSPITAL will not provide or pay for any liability or medical insurance, retirement 

contributions or any other benefits for or on behalf of CONTRACTOR. 

CONTRACTOR shall assume no liability or legal obligation for any damages, losses, claims, legal actions or legal proceedings, or 

any attorneys' fees caused by the negligence, errors, omissions, reckless or intentional misconduct of the HOSPITAL and its  

employees, officers, agents of other subcontractors hired or contracted by the HOSPITAL in the performance of this Agreement. 

N. Insurance 

Each party will maintain, throughout the Term, the types of insurance customary and appropriate, in the amount necessary to cover 

its obligations and responsibilities under this agreement or as required by Nevada law. 

O. Waiver; Severability  

No term or provision of this Agreement shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent is in writing 

and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented. If any provision of this Agreement is held invalid, void or unenforceable 

under any applicable statute or rule of law, it shall to that extent be deemed omitted, and the balance of this Agreement shall be 

enforceable in accordance with its remaining terms. 

 

 

Page 691 of 853

Mobile User



 

Page | 6  

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the Parties has caused this Agreement to be executed and effective as of the Effective Date. 

HOSPITAL: 
 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 

 

By:     

MASON VAN HOUWELING DATE 
Chief Executive Officer 

 

    
   CONTRACTOR: 
 

   By:     

    THADEUS EVANS DATE  

Page 692 of 853

Mobile User



 

EXHIBIT A 
CVOR FA 

SCOPE OF WORK 
 

 
WORK TO BE PERFOMRED: 

A. CONTRACTOR will provide, upon Hospital’s option, the services of individual Cardiovascular Operating Room First Assist 

professionals, who will perform the function(s) and role(s) that falls within the scope of practice of a CVOR FA including 

but not limited to endoscopic vessel harvesting, first assisting, hands on training, and proctoring as needed to cover 

Hospital’s Operating Room Department Heart Program.  Monday – Sunday with on-call rotation based on department 

operational practice.  CONTRACTOR will provide 100% call coverage for First Assistants. 

B. Endoscopic vessel harvesting, first assisting, hands on training, and proctoring as needed in the Cardiothoracic Operating 

Room as requested.   
PRICING: 

A. Description  

1. Cost per CVOR FA not-to-exceed $33,333.00 monthly. This includes moving, travel, housing, utilities, car rental, 

professional liability insurance, Nevada licensing fees, and other expenses incurred by CONTRACTOR. CVOR 

FA consist of credentialed First Assist and any new FA’s with an education of RNFA and above.   

2. Cost per CVOR CSFA credentialed after February 23, 2024, not-to-exceed $29,166.00 monthly. This includes 

moving, travel, housing, utilities, car rental, professional liability insurance, Nevada licensing fees, and other 

expenses incurred by CONTRACTOR.  

3. 1.5% increase effective February 24, 2025 for CVOR FA and CVOR CSFA. 

4. Total Cost not-to-exceed 3,700,000.00 for the term of the Agreement.  

 
 

  

Page 693 of 853

Mobile User



 

 

 
EXHIBIT B 
CVOR FA 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
TO ENSURE COMPLIANCE WITH THE AGREEMENT DOCUMENT, CONTRACTOR SHOULD FORWARD THE FOLLOWING 
INSURANCE CLAUSE AND SAMPLE INSURANCE FORM TO THEIR INSURANCE AGENT PRIOR TO PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL. 
 

A. Format/Time: CONTRACTOR shall provide HOSPITAL with Certificates of Insurance, per the sample format (page B-3), for 
coverage as listed below, and endorsements affecting coverage required by this Agreement within ten (10) business days after 
the award by HOSPITAL. All policy certificates and endorsements shall be signed by a person authorized by that insurer and 
who is licensed by the State of Nevada in accordance with NRS 680A.300.  All required aggregate limits shall be disclosed and 
amounts entered on the Certificate of Insurance, and shall be maintained for the duration of the Agreement and any renewal 
periods. 

B. Best Key Rating: HOSPITAL requires insurance carriers to maintain during the Agreement term, a Best Key Rating of A.VII or 
higher, which shall be fully disclosed and entered on the Certificate of Insurance. 

C. HOSPITAL Coverage: HOSPITAL, its officers and employees must be expressly covered as additional insured’s except on 
Workers' Compensation. CONTRACTOR's insurance shall be primary as respects HOSPITAL, its officers and employees. 

D. Endorsement/Cancellation: CONTRACTOR's general liability and automobile liability insurance policy shall be endorsed to 
recognize specifically CONTRACTOR’s contractual obligation of additional insured to HOSPITAL and must note that HOSPITAL 
will be given thirty (30) calendar days advance notice by certified mail “return receipt requested” of any policy changes, 
cancellations, or any erosion of insurance limits. Either a copy of the additional insured endorsement, or a copy of the policy 
language that gives HOSPITAL automatic additional insured status must be attached to any certificate of insurance. 

E. Deductibles: All deductibles and self-insured retentions shall be fully disclosed in the Certificates of Insurance and may not 
exceed $25,000. 

F. Aggregate Limits: If aggregate limits are imposed on bodily injury and property damage, then the amount of such limits must 
not be less than $2,000,000. 

G. Commercial General Liability: Subject to Paragraph 6 of this Exhibit, CONTRACTOR shall maintain limits of no less than 
$1,000,000 combined single limit per occurrence for bodily injury (including death), personal injury and property damages.  
Commercial general liability coverage shall be on a “per occurrence” basis only, not “claims made,” and be provided either on a 
Commercial General Liability or a Broad Form Comprehensive General Liability (including a Broad Form CGL endorsement) 
insurance form. Policies must contain a primary and non-contributory clause and must contain a waiver of subrogation 
endorsement. 

H. Automobile Liability:  Subject to Paragraph 6 of this Exhibit, CONTRACTOR shall maintain coverage against all insurance 
claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from services rendered by CONTRACTOR and any auto 
used for the performance of services under this Agreement. 

I. Professional Liability: CONTRACTOR shall maintain limits of no less than $1,000,000 aggregate. If the professional liability 
insurance provided is on a Claims Made Form, then the insurance coverage required must continue for a period of two (2) years 
beyond the completion or termination of this Agreement.  Any retroactive date must coincide with or predate the beginning of 
this and may not be advanced without the consent of HOSPITAL.  

J. Workers' Compensation: CONTRACTOR shall obtain and maintain for the duration of this Agreement, a work certificate and/or 
a certificate issued by an insurer qualified to underwrite workers’ compensation insurance in the State of Nevada, in accordance 
with Nevada Revised Statutes Chapters 616A-616D, inclusive, provided, however, a CONTRACTOR that is a Sole Proprietor 
shall be required to submit an affidavit (Attachment 1) indicating that CONTRACTOR has elected not to be included in the terms, 
conditions and provisions of Chapters 616A-616D, inclusive, and is otherwise in compliance with those terms, conditions and 
provisions. 

K. Failure To Maintain Coverage:  If CONTRACTOR fails to maintain any of the insurance coverage required herein, HOSPITAL 
may withhold payment, order CONTRACTOR to stop the work, declare CONTRACTOR in breach, suspend or terminate the 
Agreement, assess liquidated damages as defined herein, or may purchase replacement insurance or pay premiums due on 
existing policies.  HOSPITAL may collect any replacement insurance costs or premium payments made from CONTRACTOR 
or deduct the amount paid from any sums due CONTRACTOR under this Agreement. 

L. Additional Insurance: CONTRACTOR is encouraged to purchase any such additional insurance as it deems necessary. 

M. Damages: CONTRACTOR is required to remedy all injuries to persons and damage or loss to any property of HOSPITAL, 
caused in whole or in part by CONTRACTOR, its subcontractors or anyone employed, directed or supervised by CONTRACTOR. 

N. Cost: CONTRACTOR shall pay all associated costs for the specified insurance.  The cost shall be included in the price(s). 

O. Insurance Submittal Address:  All Insurance Certificates requested shall be sent to University Medical Center, Attention: 
Contracts Management. See the Notice Clause in the Agreement for the appropriate mailing address. 

Page 694 of 853

Mobile User



 

 

P. Insurance Form Instructions: The following information must be filled in by CONTRACTOR’s Insurance CONTRACTOR 
representative: 

1. Insurance Broker’s name, complete address, phone and fax numbers. 

2. CONTRACTOR’s name, complete address, phone and fax numbers. 

3. Insurance CONTRACTOR’s Best Key Rating 

4. Commercial General Liability (Per Occurrence) 
(A) Policy Number 
(B) Policy Effective Date 
(C) Policy Expiration Date 
(D) Each Occurrence ($1,000,000) 
(E) Damage to Rented Premises ($50,000) 
(F) Medical Expenses ($5,000) 
(G) Personal & Advertising Injury ($1,000,000) 
(H) General Aggregate ($2,000,000) 
(I) Products - Completed Operations Aggregate ($2,000,000) 

5. Automobile Liability (Any Auto) 
(J) Policy Number 
(K) Policy Effective Date 
(L) Policy Expiration Date 
(M) Combined Single Limit  

6. Worker’s Compensation: The CONTRACTOR shall obtain and maintain for the duration of this Agreement, a work 
certificate and/or a certificate issued by an insurer qualified to underwrite workers’ compensation insurance in the State 
of Nevada, in accordance with Nevada Revised Statutes Chapters 616A-616D 

7. Professional Liability 
(N) Policy Number 
(O) Policy Effective Date 
(P) Policy Expiration Date 
(Q) Aggregate ($1,000,000) 

8. Description: RNFA (8285) (must be identified on the initial insurance form and each renewal form). 

9. Certificate Holder: 

University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 
c/o Contracts Management 
1800 W. Charleston Blvd. 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89102 

10. Appointed Agent Signature to include license number and issuing state. 
 

11. Notwithstanding any other provision to the contrary herein, the parties hereto agree that (1) all coverage provided by 
CONTRACTOR hereunder shall be on a per policy basis; (2) CONTRACTOR shall provide evidence of all such 
coverages upon request; (3) CONTRACTOR agrees to provide HOSPITAL with a written notice of cancellation in 
accordance with CONTRACTOR’S insurance policies; (4) all references herein to any ISO, Acord or other insurance 
form shall be read as to include “or equivalent, at the discretion of CONTRACTOR”; and (5) CONTRACTOR reserves 
the right to meet Excess/Umbrella Liability coverage requirements by increasing its Commercial General Liability, 
Business Automobile Liability and Employer’s Liability Insurance limits. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 695 of 853

Mobile User



Included

Berkshire Hathaway Direct Insurance Company 10391

02/13/2024

T Evans RNFA LLC

2249 Lauren Drive

Las Vegas, NV 89134-5530

X

X

X

N9BP659300 02/14/2024 02/14/2025A 5,000

1,000,000

50,000

2,000,000

2,000,000

T Evans RNFA LLC

2249 Lauren Drive
Las Vegas, NV 89134-5530

BIBERK
P.O. Box 113247
Stamford, CT 06911

Professional Liability (Errors & 
Omissions): Claims-Made

Per Occurrence/
   Aggregate

203-654-3613844-472-0967

customerservice@biBERK.com

Page 696 of 853



02/13/2024

Berkshire Hathaway Direct Insurance Company

X

X

*

*

* ALS up to 12 months.

 0

 0
02/14/2024 02/14/2025

T Evans RNFA LLC

2249 Lauren Drive

Las Vegas, NV 89134-5530

N9BP659300

Bldg #001: Medical Offices (Office) - 6398101

Location: 1800 west charlstonLas Vegas, NV 89102

n/a

n/a

n/a

T Evans RNFA LLC
2249 Lauren Drive
Las Vegas, NV 89134-5530

BIBERK
P.O. Box 113247
Stamford, CT 06911

621111

250

(203) 654-3613

salessupport@biberk.com

(844) 472-0967

Page 697 of 853



Page 698 of 853



Page 699 of 853



Page 700 of 853



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
February 28, 2024 

 
 

 

Agenda Item #  

23 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD  

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Issue: Addendum, Ordering Document, and Purchaser Agreement with ICU 

Medical Sales, Inc. and Smiths Medical ASD, Inc. 
 

 
Back-up: 
      

 
Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer 

 
Clerk Ref. # 
      

 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Governing Board review and recommend for approval by the Board of Hospital 
Trustees for University Medical Center of Southern Nevada, the Agreements with ICU 
Medical Sales, Inc. and Smiths Medical ASD, Inc. for Infusion Pumps and related 
products; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
Fund Number: 5420.000                                Fund Name:  UMC Operating Fund 
Fund Center: 3000705000                  Funded Pgm/Grant: N/A 
Description: Infusion Pumps      
Bid/RFP/CBE: NRS 450.525 & NRS 450.530 – GPO 
Term: 84 months from the Ordering Document 1Effective Date      
Amount: $8,476,887.20        
Out Clause: Budget Act and Fiscal Fund Out; Termination without Cause upon payment of fee 
 

BACKGROUND: 
 
This request is to enter into a new Addendum and Transaction Documents, including Ordering Document #1, 
Ordering Document #2, Place Equipment Agreement, and Purchaser Agreement (collectively the 
“Agreement”) between ICU Medical Sales, Inc. and Smiths Medical ASD, Inc. (collectively “ICU”) and 
University Medical Center of Southern Nevada (“UMC”) for infusion pumps and related products. This 
purchase is necessary due to patient safety concerns and will eliminate human factors with UMC’s current 
gravity-driven pumps. Based upon current usage, UMC will compensate ICU in the amount of $8,476,887.20 
for seven (7) years from the effective date. This Agreement has an estimated Tier Supply Cost Savings of 
$992,964.31 annually, and an estimated Capital Equipment Cost Savings of $1,465,900.00.  Total estimated 
Cost Savings over the life of the Agreement is $8,416,650.17.  
 
There is an estimated Return on Investment/Charge Capture with interoperability with Plum 360 from 
automated capture of precise, to the second, start/stop times and pauses for infusions. This provides a 
significant revenue opportunity where infusion is billable (e.g. in areas like ED and outpatient infusion 
clinics).  Please see table below: 

Page 701 of 853



Page Number 
2 

 
 
There is a provision allowing for early termination of all agreements with payment of a termination fee based 
upon the year of termination (years 1-7) ranging from $2,945,730.00 in the second year to $517,190.00 in the 
seventh year. There is a provision allowing for early termination with payment of a termination fee based upon 
the year of termination (years 1-7) ranging from $1,678,080.00 in the second year to $303,600.00 in the 
seventh year if UMC continues to purchase Additional Related Disposable. Additional Related Disposables 
are not proprietary.  
 
There is also a provision to upgrade the equipment once available pursuant to an HPG agreement at a total 
cost not to exceed $3,132,150.00. 
 
These Agreements are being entered into pursuant to UMC’s Agreement with HealthTrust Purchasing Group 
(“HPG”).  HPG is a Group Purchasing Organization of which UMC is a member.  This request is in 
compliance with NRS 450.525 and NRS 450.530; attached is the bid summary sheet and a sworn statement 
from an HPG executive verifying that the pricing was obtained through a competitive bid process. 
   
UMC’s Director of Materials Management has reviewed and recommends approval of the Agreements.  The 
Agreements have been approved as to form by UMC’s Office of General Counsel. 
 
These Agreements were reviewed by the Governing Board Audit and Finance Committee at their February 21, 
2024 meeting and recommended for approval by the Board of Hospital Trustees. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 702 of 853



1 
 

ADDENDUM  

 

This Addendum (“Addendum”) to the below listed agreements, is effective as of the Transaction Effective 

Date, and is by and between University Medical Center of Southern Nevada, a publicly owned and 

operated hospital created by virtue of Chapter 450 of the Nevada Revised Statutes, having its principal 

place of business at 1800 W Charleston Blvd, Las Vegas, NV 89102, (“Purchaser”), on the one hand, 

and ICU Medical Sales, Inc. (“Sales”), having its principal place of business at 951 Calle Amanecer, San 

Clemente, CA 92673, and Smiths Medical ASD, Inc., having its principal place of business at 6000 Nathan 

Lane North, Minneapolis, MN 55442,  (“ASD,” and together with Sales, “Vendor”), on the other hand.  

Purchaser and Vendor are referred to herein as the “Parties.”  Defined terms used but not defined herein shall 

have the meanings ascribed to them in the HPG Agreements and the Transaction Documents. 

 

WHEREAS, Vendor and Health Trust Purchasing Group, LLP have entered into certain agreements listed 

on Exhibit A (the “HPG Agreements”) associated with the Transactions defined below and contemplated by 

the Parties and the Parties are concurrently herewith entering into certain additional agreements identified 

on Exhibit A and which  govern such Transactions, (collectively “Transaction Documents”); and 

 

WHEREAS, Purchaser wishes to purchase certain Equipment, Devices, Vendor Software, and Accessories 

from Vendor (“Transactions”), each as defined in the HPG Agreements and the Transaction Documents, and 

such purchases will be made pursuant to the Transaction Documents; and 

 

WHEREAS, Purchaser and Vendor wish to amend and supplement the Transaction Documents in certain 

respects as provided in this Addendum. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 

acknowledged, Purchaser and Vendor hereby agree as follows: 

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Transaction Documents or the HPG Agreements the 

following shall control and supersede any provision to the contrary as it relates specifically to the 

Transactions: 

1. Effective Date.  

a. The Transaction Documents, including this Addendum, will be effective from the date of 

last signature below (“Transaction Effective Date”) and the term of the Transaction 

Documents shall continue for a period of 84 months from the Ordering Document Effective 

Date for Ordering Document #1, unless earlier terminated in accordance with the 

provisions herein.  

b. All recurring payments in the Transaction Documents commence on the Ordering 

Document Effective Date for Ordering Document #1. 

c. Purchase commitments under the Placed Equipment Agreement (1119) and the Purchaser 

Agreement (7679) commence on the Ordering Document Effective Date for Ordering 

Document #1. 

d. The date of one-time payments and annual fees shall be thirty (30) days from the date of 

invoice. 

2. Governing Law.  The Transactions and Transaction Documents shall be governed by and construed in 

accordance with the laws of the State of Nevada, without reference to its conflict of laws principles. 

Page 703 of 853



Page 704 of 853



Page 705 of 853



4 
 

d. The Purchase of the Upgraded Equipment shall be documented by an Order Form which 

shall be subject to the terms and conditions of this Addendum, the Transaction Document 

(to the extent applicable) and the applicable HPG Agreement except as modified in this 

Section 8. 

9. Conflicts. To the extent of any conflict between this Addendum and any HPG Agreement or 

Transaction Document, the terms of this Addendum shall control. 

10. Assignment. Vendor is expressly permitted to assign this Addendum and any or all Transaction 

Documents in whole or in part (including assignment of the right to receive payment) between Sales 

and ASD by providing notice to Purchaser and assumption of obligations by ASD. 

11. Notices. All notices required under this Addendum, the transaction Documents and the HPG 

Agreements must be submitted in writing and delivered by U.S. mail, postage prepaid, certified mail, 

or by hand delivery, and directed to the appropriate party as follows: 

 

To  Purchaser  University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 

    Attn: Legal Department 

1800 West Charleston Boulevard 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89102 
 

To Vendor:  ICU Medical Sales, Inc. 
  Smiths Medical ASD, Inc. 
  951 Calle Amanecer 

San Clemente, CA 92673 

Attn: General Counsel 

 

Except as expressly amended and supplemented by this Addendum, the HPG Agreements and Transaction 

Documents shall remain in full force and effect. 

For information purposes only, the potential liability for termination fees is $2,945,730.00. 

 

 

[Signatures follow on next page.] 

  

Page 706 of 853



5 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Addendum on the dates set forth below. 

 

ICU Medical Sales, Inc. University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 

 

Signature:_______________________________ 

 

Signature:___________________________________ 

 

Printed Name: Richard Nevin 

 

Printed Name: Mason Van Houweling 

 

Title: Vice President, Contracting         

 

Title: Chief Executive Officer 

 

Date:       

 

Date:                                       

  

 

 

Smiths Medical ASD, Inc. 
 

Signature:_______________________________ 

 

Printed Name: Richard Nevin    

 

Title: Vice President, Contracting         

 

Date:       

Page 707 of 853



6 
 

Exhibit A 

 

HPG Agreements (as amended from time to time) 

 Purchasing Agreement (HPG-1119), effective October 15, 2016 

 Amended & Restated Purchasing Agreement (HPG-7679), effective February 1,2018 

 Purchasing Agreement (HPG-39581), effective September 1, 2022 

 Purchasing Agreement (HPG-908), effective January 1, 2024 

 Purchasing Agreement (HPG-1351), effective January 1, 2022 

 

The Transaction Documents (as amended from time to time) 

 This Addendum 

 Ordering Document #1 (Placed Equipment for Plum 360™), including its Information Security 

Exhibit, Hardware Minimum Acceptable Service Level Agreement, On Premises Software Terms and 

Conditions Exhibit, and Statement of Work (if applicable) 

 Ordering Document #2 (Purchase Summary of CADD & Medfusion™), including its Information 

Security Exhibit, On Premises Software Terms and Conditions Exhibit, and Statement of Work (if applicable) 

 Placed Equipment Agreement (1119) 

 Purchaser Agreement (7679), effective February 1, 2024 

 Letter to Confirm the Removal of Install Base Records 

 

  

Page 708 of 853



7 
 

Exhibit B 

 

 

 

Page 709 of 853



 ORDER NO. [########] 

Page 1 of 9 

ORDERING DOCUMENT 

PURCHASER: University Medical Center of Southern Nevada ADDRESS: 1800 W Charleston Blvd. 

REPRESENTATIVE: Kelly Daniels Las Vegas, NV 89102 

VENDOR: ICU Medical Sales, Inc 

AGREEMENT NO.: #1119 PHONE: 702-207-8337

ORDER NO.: n/a FAX: n/a 

ORDERING 
DOCUMENT 
EFFECTIVE DATE: 

First Day of the month following shipment of 
Devices EMAIL: Kelly.Daniels@umcsn.com 

END DATE: Eighty-Four (84) months from the Ordering 
Document Effective Date 

ORDERING 
DOCUMENT 
TERM Eighty-Four (84) Months 

AGREEMENT 
This Ordering Document having the Order Number set forth above (this “Ordering Document”), is effective as of the date set forth above (the “Ordering 
Document Effective Date”) and incorporates by reference and is governed by the terms and conditions of the Purchasing Agreement having the Agreement 
Number set forth above (the “Agreement”), by and between HealthTrust Purchasing Group, L.P., (“HealthTrust”), and the Vendor identified above 
(“Vendor”). All capitalized terms not defined herein or in an Exhibit attached hereto have the meaning set forth in the Agreement. Purchaser, as a Participant 
to the Agreement, may order Products and Services from Vendor by executing and delivering this Ordering Document, including any completed Order 
Forms and Statements of Work, to Vendor.1    

PRODUCTS & SERVICES 
The Purchaser may use this Ordering Document to order and purchase any or all of the Products and Services identified herein by filling out the attached 
order forms (“Order Forms”) and related Statements of Work. Purchaser may order Products and Services on its own behalf or on behalf of a current 
Affiliate.  Purchaser shall be responsible for its Affiliates’ compliance with this Ordering Document (including any terms incorporated by reference) and shall 
pay in accordance with this Ordering Document for any Products and Services to be provided to Affiliate(s) hereunder.  Purchaser must specify the Products 
and Services that Purchaser wishes to purchase from Vendor by completing the applicable “Section” of the attached Order Forms for such Products and 
Services. Any Professional Services ordered hereunder will require Purchaser and Vendor to enter into a Statement of Work substantially in the form 
attached to this Ordering Document.  

• Products. Products ordered or purchased under this Ordering Document may include, without limitation, (a) On-Premise / Install Based Software;
and (b) Equipment.

• Services. Services ordered or purchased under this Ordering Document may include, but are not limited to, (a) SaaS Services, (b) Professional
Services which include, without limitation, any Installation and Configuration Services, and (c) Support and Maintenance Services.

o NOTE: Terms governing Support and Maintenance Services are set forth in the Appendices to the Exh bit applicable to the particular type
of Product or Service. The Fees for Support and Maintenance Services are set forth in Exhibit A to the Agreement.

ORDERING INSTRUCTIONS 
In order to correctly place orders for Products and Services using this Ordering Document, Purchaser and Vendor must complete as applicable: 
1. Order Forms. Specify the Products and/or Services for order or purchase by completing the Order Forms applicable to such Products and Services

on the following page. In each Order Form (other than the Professional Services Order Form) you must specify whether Professional Services are
required by writing ‘Yes’ or ‘No’ in the Professional Services column.

2. Statements of Work. For any Products and Services requiring Professional Services, identify and describe such Professional Services Section E:
Professional Services of this Order Form and complete a Statement of Work for such Professional Services as required by the Professional Services
Exhibit to the Agreement.

3. Delivery. Deliver the executed Ordering Documents including completed Order Forms and any applicable Statements of Work.

SIGNATURES 
Upon Vendor’s receipt of this Ordering Document, properly executed by Purchaser, this Ordering Document including any Order Forms and Statements 
of Work becomes legally binding unless rejected by Vendor for any of the following reasons: (1) Purchaser Representative identified above does not have 
the authority to bind Purchaser to this Ordering Document, (2) changes have been made to this Ordering Document (other than completion of the 
Ordering Document information and the signature block), or (3) the requested information or signature is incomplete or does not match Vendor’s records 
or the rest of this Ordering Document.  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Purchaser and Vendor have caused this Ordering Document to be executed by their duly authorized representatives. 

[PURCHASER] [VENDOR] 

Signature Signature 

Printed Name Printed Name 

1 HealthTrust must approve in writing and in advance any changes made to this Ordering Document. 

Richard NevinMason Von Houweling

Page 710 of 853



Chief Operating Officer VP - Contracting

Page 711 of 853



Page 712 of 853



 ORDER NO. [########] 

Page 4 of 9 

Additional Ordering Document Terms and Conditions 

(a) Invoicing, Payment, and Shipping Terms.

(i) Payment terms are Net 30 days paid by EFT from the date of invoice.  Products are shipped F.O.B. Origin (freight prepaid and absorb).  Vendor
shall remain responsible for replacing, at Vendor’s sole expense, any Products lost or damaged in transit and, provided that Vendor has timely
shipped replacement Products to the applicable Purchaser, shall be entitled to retain the proceeds of any damage-in-transit insurance claim.

(ii) Upon the first shipment of Devices, Vendor shall invoice Purchaser for the Devices and for any applicable Accessories.

(b) Disclosure / Government Reporting.  The purchase prices under this Ordering Document (including the value of any discounts, rebates, or
other price concessions) are intended to reflect discounts or other reductions in price within the meaning of the discount exception to the federal
anti-kickback statute 42 U.S.C. Section 1320a-7b(b)(3)(A).  In addition, any value provided to the Purchaser under the warranties set forth in this
Ordering Document shall be provided in accordance with the provisions of the federal anti-kickback statute warranty safe harbor regulation (42
CFR Section 1001.952(g)).  Purchaser shall properly report and appropriately reflect such discounted prices on cost reports or claims submitted
to any state or federal program that provides reimbursement to Purchaser for the items to which the discount applies.  Further, Purchaser shall
retain invoices and other price documentation and make them available to federal or state officials upon request.

(c) Annual User Fees.

(i) ICU Medical MedNet™ Annual Subscription Fees.  Subject to the terms and conditions of this Ordering Document, Vendor hereby grants to
Purchaser a non-exclusive, nontransferable, irrevocable (except upon termination of this Ordering Document) license use the Vendor
Medical MedNet™ Medication Management Products listed in Section B (the “ICU Medical MedNet™ Product”) in accordance with the
terms and conditions herein and as set forth in the applicable Exh bit solely during each annual period for which Purchaser has paid Vendor
the nonrefundable Annual Subscription Fee which shall be invoiced as provided in the Agreement (each such annual period an “Annual
Subscription Period”).  The initial Annual Subscription Period will commence on the Ordering Document Effective Date and will terminate
1 year thereafter.  Thereafter, the Annual Subscription Period shall automatically renew for successive annual periods through the Ordering
Document Term or termination.  For all subsequent Annual Subscription Periods, Purchaser shall pay the Annual Subscription Fee.  This
Annual Subscription Fee shall support the Devices set forth in Section B.  If Purchaser adds any additional servers and/or acquires any
additional Devices, the Annual Subscription Fee 

 The ICU Medical MedNet™ Product is only authorized for use at the
applicable Purchaser site(s) identified herein.

(ii) ICU Medical MedNet™ EHR Interface Annual User Fees.  In consideration for access to ICU Medical MedNet™ IV clinical integration
function that provides an interface with Purchaser’s current electronic health records system (“EHR") to allow Auto-Programming with Auto-
Documentation (automated programming of order settings on the Devices with automated EHR documentation of infusion activity) OR
Medication ID Programming with Auto-Documentation (automated programming of only the identity of ordered medication and concentration
on the Devices with automated EHR documentation of infusion activity) OR Auto-Documentation Only (automated EHR documentation of
infusion activity) (the “EHR Interface”), Purchaser agrees to pay Vendor the nonrefundable annual fee specified in Section E (“EHR Interface
Annual User Fee”).  Purchaser agrees not to access or attempt access of the EHR Interface through any manner other than by paying the
EHR Interface Annual User Fee.  Purchaser shall pay the EHR Interface Annual User Fee for each successive ICU Medical MedNet™
Annual Use Period during the Ordering Document Term.  The EHR Interface is only authorized for use at the sites identified herein.  Any
additional sites added shall require the EHR Interface Annual User Fee to be updated to reflect the then current number of systems and
sites utilizing the EHR Interface. Vendor may suspend the services related to, or at its discretion terminate access to the EHR Interface if
Purchaser breaches any material term or condition provided in this Ordering Document, including without limitation, failure to pay the EHR
Interface Annual User Fee, and such breach is not remedied within 60 days after written notice of the breach.

(d) Implementation Fees. The ICU Medical MedNet™ Implementation Fee listed in Section E covers 
 (collectively the

“ICU Medical MedNet™ Implementation Services”). If Purchaser has chosen to implement the ICU Medical MedNet™ Product at different
times and/or at multiple sites and/or for multiple Device types, then each individual ICU Medical MedNet™ Implementation Fee listed in Section
E covers 

  In such an event, if Vendor and
Purchaser mutually agree to have Vendor perform any of the remaining ICU Medical MedNet™ Implementation Services, then Vendor shall
charge Purchaser, based on Vendor’s then current standard time and material rates, for those remaining ICU Medical MedNet™ Implementation
Services after the performance thereof. In the event that Purchaser is migrating current Vendor devices to new Vendor Technology then the data
migration of log files, bio-medical information and infusion pump data is not included in this service but may be available under a separate
agreement for an additional fee.

(e) EHR Integration Fees. ICU Medical MedNet™ EHR Integration Implementation Fee. The ICU Medical MedNet™ EHR Integration
Implementation Fee listed in this Section E covers 

 (collectively the “ICU Medical MedNet™ EHR Integration
Implementation Services”).  The ICU Medical MedNet™ EHR Integration Implementation Services will be limited to 

   Purchaser understands and agrees that if Purchaser requests ICU to provide, and ICU agrees
to provide, any additional ICU Medical MedNet™ EHR Integration Implementation Services, including with respect to any Purchaser units other 
than  then ICU shall charge Purchaser Vendor’s then current standard time and material rates for any and all additional services.
Upon notification by Purchaser that Purchaser is ready to initiate the ICU Medical MedNet™ EHR Integration implementation, Vendor shall provide
a Statement of Work (“SOW”) that reviews the project scope, goals, methodology, roles and responsibilities, milestones, and deliverables.

(f) Data Analytics Fee.  Vendor shall provide Purchaser with  data consultative reviews with executive summary and
evaluation and trending of associated outcomes and monthly scorecards of Purchaser’s ICU Medical MedNet™ data (“ICU Data Analytics
Service”).    In order to obtain the ICU Medical Data Analytics Service, Purchaser must pay the nonrefundable annual ICU Data Analytics Service 
Fee, as specified in SECTION B(ii): Annual User Fee upon shipment of Devices. THE VENDOR DATA ANALYTICS SERVICE FEE SHALL BE
AUTOMATICALLY RENEWED FOR EACH SUCCESSIVE ANNUAL USE PERIOD UNLESS TERMINATED BY PURCHASER BY PROVIDING
WRITTEN NOTICE TO VENDOR AT LEAST 60 DAYS PRIOR TO THE END OF THE THEN CURRENT ANNUAL USE PERIOD. Vendor shall

Page 713 of 853



 ORDER NO. [########] 

Page 5 of 9 

provide ICU Data Analytics Service for the servers and sites set forth herein.  If Purchaser increases the servers or sites, then any ICU Data 
Analytics Server Fee shall immediately and automatically be increased to reflect the then current number of servers or sites Purchaser is utilizing. 
Purchaser must allow Vendor to remotely access the Server(s) via a restricted virtual private network as needed in order for Vendor to provide 
the ICU Data Analytics Service.  

FORM OF STATEMENT OF WORK 

This Statement of Work (this “Statement of Work”) dated as of the Effective Date of the Ordering Document (the “Statement of Work Effective Date”), 
between University Medical Center of Southern Nevada, with its principal place of business located at 1800 W Charleston Blvd., Las Vegas, NV 89102, for 
the benefit of itself, and its Affiliates (collectively “Purchaser”), and ICU Medical Sales, Inc., a business entity with offices located at 275 N. Field Drive Lake 
Forest, IL 60045 (“Vendor”).  All capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the Professional Services 
Attachment (the “Professional Services Attachment”). This Statement of Work is made and issued in connection with any Professional Services ordered 
or purchased by Purchaser under the Ordering Documents as specified in the applicable Order Forms. 

Pursuant to the terms of the Professional Services Attachment and the Purchasing Agreement between HealthTrust Purchasing Group, L.P., and Vendor 
with an Agreement No. 1119 (“Agreement”), which are incorporated herein by reference, and for good and valuable consideration, the adequacy and receipt 
of which are hereby acknowledged by the parties hereto, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

1. GENERAL TERMS

1.1 This Statement of Work applies solely to the University Medical Center of Southern Nevada with the Professional Services to be performed primarily
at the 1800 W Charleston Blvd., Las Vegas, NV 89102. This Statement of Work is under the Professional Services Attachment and the Agreement and is
subject to all terms and conditions of each of the foregoing. In the event of any conflict between the terms of this Statement of Work and any terms of the
Professional Services Attachment or the Agreement, the Agreement, or the Professional Services Attachments terms, as applicable shall control.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, if a provision of this Statement of Work specifically references a provision in the Agreement and provides that the provision
of this Statement of Work shall either amend such provision or control in the event of a conflict, then such provision in this Statement of Work shall control
with respect to the Professional Services under this Statement of Work.

1.2 The term of this Statement of Work (“Statement of Work Term”) shall commence on the Statement of Work Effective Date and shall expire upon the 
later of (i) Purchaser’s Acceptance (defined below) of all Professional Services under this Statement of Work. 

1.3 This Statement of Work may be executed in any number of counterparts by the parties hereto and delivered in person or by facsimile transmission 
or electronic mail, each of which, when so executed and delivered, shall be deemed an original, but such counterparts shall together constitute but one and 
the same Statement of Work. 

2. SCHEDULE OF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED

2.1 Listed below are descriptions and/or specifications of the Professional Services to be performed and the Milestones (which shall include, without
limitation, source code and system and user documentation for any software Deliverable, if applicable) to be delivered to Purchaser under this Statement
of Work. Also included in the descriptions below are the completion and Acceptance Criteria/metrics for the Professional Services and Deliverables under
this Statement of Work (the “Acceptance”).

Deliverables and Dates 

Deliverable or Task 
Description Delivery Date Acceptance Criteria Milestone 

Vendor will have a kick off 
meeting after Ordering 
Document signature to 
determine deliverable 

timelines  

Vendor and Purchaser will 
mutually agree upon a 

delivery date after the creation 
of the drug l brary (and as per 

the Statement of Work) 

Refer to Section 3 of the 
General Terms 

Milestone timelines will be 
determined by the parties 

during the kick off meeting an 
as per the Statement of Work 

2.2 Listed below is the name and address of a Project Manager for each of Purchaser and Vendor. 

Purchaser Project Manager Vendor Project Manager 

Name: Purchaser Project Manager to be determined by Name: Vendor Project Manager to be determined 
University Medical Center of Southern Nevada upon execution of the Ordering Document 
upon execution of the Ordering Doc 

Address: To be determined based on above Address: To be determined based on above 
To be determined based on above To be determined based on above 

Telephone: To be determined based on above Telephone: To be determined based on above 
Fax: n/a Fax: n/a 
E-mail: To be determined based on above E-mail: To be determined based on above 

2.3 All Professional Services performed pursuant to this Statement of Work shall be performed at either the fixed price set forth below or the time and 
materials basis with labor rates and materials prices set forth below. This Statement of Work will not exceed the amount specified below without prior written 
approval of the Parties.  Purchaser will pay the undisputed amounts of invoices in accordance with the Agreement.  

• As identified in Section E
2.4 Any item not specifically provided in this Statement of Work is considered out of scope. Purchaser may at any time request a modification to the
Professional Services by providing Vendor with written details of the modification. Vendor shall determine in good faith whether such modifications are
commercially and technically feasible, and, if such modifications are commercially and technically feasible, Vendor shall submit a change request to this
Statement of Work that includes the modifications along with an estimate of the fees for such modifications. If Vendor and Purchaser both execute such
change request, then the modifications to the Professional Services will be performed either at the fixed fee set forth in the change order, or on a time and
material basis. For the sake of clarity, no modifications shall be valid unless and until a change request has been signed by both Vendor and Purchaser.
2.5 Listed below are the detailed functional and technical specifications and standards for all Professional Services and Deliverables, including, without
limitation, test plans, test scripts and quality standards, and the methodology to be used by Vendor in performing under this Statement of Work.

• See Outline of Respons bilities

Page 714 of 853



 ORDER NO. [########] 

Page 6 of 9 

2.6 Listed below are the Documentation standards that the Vendor will follow with respect to the Professional Services and the Deliverables under this 
Statement of Work.  

• See Outline of Respons bilities
2.7 Listed below are specific responsibilities and roles that Vendor shall perform, including, without limitation, the procurement of any special equipment 
or materials for use in performance of the Professional Services. 

• See Outline of Respons bilities
2.8 Listed below are specific responsibilities and roles that Purchaser shall perform, including, without limitation, the procurement of any special 
equipment or materials for use in performance of the Professional Services. 

OUTLINE OF RESPONSIBILITIES 

Vendor 
Outline of Services and Responsibilities 

Purchaser 
Outline of Responsibilities 

OTS Licensing 

Vendor Executive Sponsor Purchaser Executive Sponsor 

Nurse Consultant Customer Clinical/Nursing Lead 

• •

•

Vendor 
Outline of Services and Responsibilities 

Purchaser 
Outline of Responsibilities 

Pharmacy Customer Drug Library Creation Lead 

• •

Page 715 of 853



 ORDER NO. [########] 

Page 7 of 9 

Information Technology Purchaser Information Technology Lead 

•

*

Vendor 
Outline of Services and Responsibilities 

Purchaser 
Outline of Responsibilities 

Project Manager Purchaser Project Manager 

• •

 

 

  
 

Page 716 of 853



Richard Nevin

VP -Contracting

Mason Von Houweling 

Chief Operating Officer

Page 717 of 853



 ORDER NO. [########] 

Page 9 of 9 

Date Date 

Page 718 of 853



Schedule 7 

Exhibit K 

Ordering Document 

PURCHASER: University Medical Center of Southern Nevada ADDRESS: 1800 W Charleston Blvd 

REPRESENTATIVE: Kelly Daniels Las Vegas, NV 89102 

VENDOR: Smiths Medical ASD, Inc. 

AGREEMENT NO.: HPG-1351 PHONE: 702-207-8337

ORDER NO.: Quotes SP_231202-000054, SP_231208-002517 FAX: 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 12.11.2023 EMAIL: Kelly.Daniels@umcsn.com 

AGREEMENT 
This Ordering Document having the Order Number set forth above (this “Ordering Document”), incorporates by reference and is 
governed by the terms and conditions of the Purchasing Agreement having the Agreement Number set forth above (the “Agreement”), 
by and between HealthTrust Purchasing Group, L.P., (“HealthTrust”), and the Vendor identified above (“Vendor”). All capitalized terms 
not defined herein have the meaning set forth in the Agreement. Purchaser, as a Participant to the Agreement, may order Products and 
Services from Vendor by executing and delivering this Ordering Document, including any completed Order Forms and Statements of 
Work, to Vendor.1 

PRODUCTS & SERVICES 
The Purchaser may use this Ordering Document to order and purchase any or all of the Products and Services identified herein by filling 
out the attached order forms (“Order Forms”) and related Statements of Work, if applicable. Purchaser must specify the Products and 
Services that Purchaser wishes to purchase from Vendor by completing the applicable “Section” of the attached Order Forms for such 
Products and Services. Any Professional Services ordered hereunder except IT Implementation Services, Product User Training, and 
Biomedical Product Maintenance Training as defined in Appendices 1, 2, and 3 of the Professional Services Exhibit, will require 
Purchaser and Vendor to enter into a Statement of Work substantially in the form attached to this Ordering Document. 

• 

Products. Products ordered or purchased under this Ordering Document may include, without limitation, (a) On-Premise / Install 
Based Software; and (b) Equipment. 

• 

Services. Services ordered or purchase under this Ordering Document may include, but are not limited to, (a) IT Implementation 
Services, Product User Training, and Biomedical Product Maintenance Training, and (b) Professional Services, and (c) Support 
and Maintenance Services. 

o 

NOTE: Terms governing IT Implementation Services, Product User Training, Biomedical Product Maintenance Training, 
and Support and Maintenance Services are set forth in the Appendices to the Exhibit applicable to the particular type of 
Product or Service. The Fees for Support and Maintenance Services are set forth in Exhibit A to the Agreement. 

ORDERING INSTRUCTIONS 
In order to correctly place orders for Products and Services using this Ordering Document, Purchaser and Vendor must: 1. 

Order Forms. Specify the Products and/or Services for order or purchase by completing the Order Forms applicable to such 
Products and Services on the following page. In each Order Form (other than the Professional Services Order Form) you must 
specify whether Professional Services are required by writing ‘Yes’ or ‘No’ in the Professional Services column. 

2. 

Statements of Work. For any Professional Services requiring a Statement of Work, identify and describe such Professional 
Services in the Professional Services Order Form and complete a Statement of Work for such Professional Services as required 
by the Professional Services Attachment to the Agreement. 

3. 
Delivery. Deliver the executed Ordering Documents including completed Order Forms, Vendor Quotation, Purchase Order 
(referencing Vendor Quotation Number) and any applicable Statements of Work to Vendor via email at: DublinCES@icumed.com 
(or such other email address as specified by Vendor) or to your applicable Vendor sales representative. 

SIGNATURES 

1 HealthTrust must approve in writing and in advance any changes made to this Ordering Document. 

Page 719 of 853



Mason Von Houweling
Chief Operating Officer

Richard Nevin
VP - Contracting

Page 720 of 853



Page 721 of 853



Page 722 of 853



HPG-1119 - Page 1 of 9 

HealthTrust Purchasing Group, L.P. 

Purchasing Agreement 

No. HPG-_1119 

Vendor: ICU Medical Sales Inc. 

Effective Date: November 1, 2018 

Exhibit K 

Placed Equipment Agreement Form 

Attached is a Placed Equipment Agreement form. The provisions of this Purchasing Agreement shall be deemed 

incorporated into any Placed Equipment Agreement that may be executed and delivered by a Purchaser and Vendor 

under this Agreement, and such Placed Equipment Agreement shall be subject to the terms and conditions of this 

Purchasing Agreement. In the event of a conflict, the terms of the Purchasing Agreement shall control. 

(see attached) 

Page 723 of 853



HPG-1119 - Page 2 of 9 

HealthTrust Purchasing Group, L.P. 

Purchasing Agreement 

No. HPG-1119 

Vendor: ICU Medical Sales Inc. 

Effective Date: November 1, 2018 

Placed Equipment Agreement 

This Placed Equipment Agreement (“Agreement”) dated the     , of 2024 (“Effective     

Date”)     is     made     by     and   between University Medical Center of Southern Nevada, having    

an     address    at 1800 W Charleston Blvd., Las Vegas, NV 89102 (“Purchaser”), and ICU 

Medical Sales, Inc., with an address at 951 Calle Amanecer, San Clemente, CA 92673 

(“Vendor”).    This Agreement is subject to the Purchasing Agreement between HealthTrust 

Purchasing Group, L.P. (“HPG”) and Vendor for ICU Medical Sales, Inc. (Agreement Number 

HPG-1119), dated October 15, 2016 (“Purchasing Agreement”), the terms and conditions of 

which are expressly incorporated herein. Capitalized terms not otherwise defined in the Purchasing 

Agreement may be further defined below. In the event of a conflict between the terms of this 

Agreement and the Purchasing Agreement, the terms of the Purchasing Agreement will control. 

1. Equipment. Vendor shall provide the reusable medical devices/equipment listed on

Attachment 1 attached to this Agreement (“Equipment”) for Purchaser’s use in accordance

with the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement. Purchaser shall be solely responsible

for the cost of delivery and, if applicable, installation of the Equipment. Equipment is also a

Product under the Purchasing Agreement. Equipment provided for Purchaser’s use under this

Agreement is intended to meet the anticipated needs of Purchaser in serving its patients. The

annual value of the use of the Equipment and services provided under this Agreement is shown

on Attachment 1. Purchaser promptly will advise Vendor of any material change in its

anticipated needs for the Equipment.

2. Related Disposables. The Equipment is being provided solely for use in connection with the

respective Vendor products manufactured by or for Vendor and sold by Vendor (as more fully

described in Attachment 1, “Related Disposables”). Related Disposables are also Products

under the Purchasing Agreement. Further, Related Disposables are solely for use in connection

with the Equipment. Purchaser shall purchase the volume commitment of Related

Disposables, as described in Attachment 1, from Vendor pursuant to the terms of the

Purchasing Agreement.

(a) Additional Related Disposables Shortfall.  If Purchaser does not purchase the Annual

Additional Related Disposables (as more fully described in Attachment 1, “Additional

Related Disposables”) in an Agreement Year (defined as each twelve (12) month period

starting on the Ordering Document Effective Date and continuing for each twelve (12)

month period thereafter for the Ordering Document Term, “Agreement Year”), then

Vendor shall provide written notice to Purchaser.  Purchaser shall have thirty (30) days

from the date of the notice to request Vendor to ship and invoice Purchaser for the

volume of Additional Related Disposables equivalent to the difference between

Purchaser’s Annual Related Additional Disposable Target and Purchaser’s actual

purchases (net of credits and returns) (the “Shortfall”) for such Agreement Year.  If after

such thirty (30) days Purchaser has not submitted a request to Vendor to ship and invoice

for the Shortfall, Vendor will invoice Purchaser for the Shortfall.  In the event that

Vendor is unable to supply an Additional Related Disposable under this Agreement,

Page 724 of 853



HPG-1119 - Page 3 of 9 

Vendor shall appropriately reduce the Annual Related Additional Disposable Target, 

with no penalty. 

3. Discount. Purchaser will not be invoiced a rental or other charge for use of the Equipment or

for services related to the Equipment except as otherwise specified in the Ordering Document.

During the term of this Agreement, Vendor agrees to ship the Equipment shown on

Attachment 1, under the heading “Placed Capital Equipment”, in increments mutually agreed

upon by Purchaser and Vendor. The value of the annual use of the Equipment and the

provision of service constitutes a “discount or other reduction in price” under 42 U.S.C.

§1320a-7b(b)(3)(A) and under 42 C.F.R. §1001.954(h). The parties acknowledge that it is

their intent to establish an arrangement regarding the Equipment, services and the Related

Disposables that complies with 42 C.F.R. §1001.954(h), with such goods and services being

reimbursed by the same Federal health care program using the same methodology, with   the

reduced charge being fully disclosed to the Federal health care program and accurately

reflected where appropriate, and as appropriate, to the reimbursement methodology.

Following each contract year, and upon Purchaser’s request, Vendor shall provide a

reconciliation statement to Purchaser documenting the discount or other reduction in price

provided and its application to the purchase prices of Related Disposables purchased during

the contract year, with the allocation of the additional discount or other reduction in price

representing Purchaser’s cost of Equipment usage and service. Purchaser acknowledges that

a full description of the discount is set forth in this Agreement and will not be reported in each

invoice. All transactions with Vendor in connection with this Agreement are made in good

faith on the basis of arms-length negotiation. The parties shall comply with all applicable laws

in connection with this Agreement and the use of the Equipment, including, without limitation,

the provisions of the federal anti-kickback statute, 42 U.S.C. 1320a-7b(b), and all applicable

related regulations. Vendor’s invoices and reconciliation statements will provide sufficient

information to support Purchaser’s calculation and report of its net costs. Further, upon

request, Vendor will provide all additional necessary information to Purchaser regarding the

Equipment and this Agreement. Vendor will refrain from doing anything that would impede

Purchaser from meeting its obligations to report any such discount.

4. Purchase Target. In order to support the placement of Equipment in the quantity set forth in

Attachment 1, Purchaser acknowledges that Vendor expects Purchaser to purchase a

commercially reasonable minimum aggregate volume of Related Disposables in the amount

shown on Attachment 1 as the “Annual Related Disposable Commitment”. In the event that,

contrary to the parties’ intent, the aggregate annual purchases of the Related Disposables is

insufficient to meet the Annual Related Disposable Commitment pursuant to this Agreement,

Purchaser may, at its sole discretion: (i) purchase additional specified quantities of Related

Disposables to apply only to such reconciled period sufficient to render the placement of

Equipment as a commercially reasonable arrangement; or (ii) request Vendor to invoice

Purchaser a dollar value equal to the annual use value of the Equipment to apply only to such

reconciled period sufficient to render the placement of Equipment as a commercially

reasonable arrangement, (iii) or cause to be removed a specified quantity of Equipment from

Purchaser’s facility, and amend Attachment 1 accordingly, such that the remaining Equipment

placed with Purchaser pursuant to this Agreement is a commercially reasonable arrangement.

In the event of items (i) to (iii) in this Section 4, above (or as may otherwise be agreed to by

Vendor and Purchaser), Vendor shall provide a reconciliation statement to Purchaser

documenting any adjustment in the discount or other reduction in price representing

Purchaser’s cost of Equipment and Related Disposables At the end of the term of this

Agreement and as long as the Purchaser has met Annual Related Disposable Commitment

pursuant to this Agreement, then Purchaser may purchase the Equipment at its residual value

Page 725 of 853



HPG-1119 - Page 4 of 9 

or return the Devices to Vendor in accordance with the Hardware MASL. For clarification 

purposes, the residual value is based upon straight line depreciation. 

5. Term; Termination. This Agreement will commence on the Effective Date and continue for

a period of eighty-four (84) months (the "Term") unless sooner terminated as provided in this

Section 5. This Agreement may be terminated by a party as a result of a material breach upon

 written notice provided that such material breach is not cured within the 

.        Upon such termination for material breach, Purchaser shall either purchase 

the Equipment, at the residual value pursuant to Section 8, or return to Vendor, at breaching 

party’s expense, all Equipment to which Vendor retains title. If Vendor terminates due to 

Customer’s material breach, in addition to any other remedies Vendor may have under this 

Contract or at law, Purchaser shall pay to Vendor a reconditioning fee of 

 per each device/quantity of Equipment placed under this Agreement. 

No credits or refunds will be issued to Purchaser for any amounts paid to Vendor for any 

Equipment returned as a result of material breach by Purchaser pursuant to this section. 

. Termination shall not relieve either party of any 

liability which has accrued prior to the effective date of such termination. 

6. Title. Title to the Equipment remains with Vendor and does not pass to Purchaser, and

Purchaser will not have an ownership interest in the Equipment, unless the Equipment is

purchased by Purchaser as provided herein. Purchaser shall receive the benefit of any Product

warranties on the Equipment in the event Purchaser purchases the Equipment. In no event

shall Purchaser transfer or sell the Equipment. Purchaser will keep the Equipment free from

all encumbrances. Purchaser will provide and sign reasonably requested documents to Vendor

necessary to maintain its interest in the Equipment.

7. Custody and Care. The servicing of the Equipment will be consistent with the manufacturer’s

requirements and recommendations and in accordance with the Hardware MASL. Purchaser

is liable for any loss of Equipment prior to making it available for pick-up by Vendor unless

such loss was caused by the negligence or willful misconduct of Vendor. The maximum

obligation for Purchaser in the event Purchaser was responsible for the loss of the equipment

shall be the residual value of the Equipment at the time of loss. Purchaser will be charged for

all damage to Equipment caused by the negligence or willful misconduct of Purchaser.

Purchaser shall not move the Equipment from Purchaser’s facility, without permission from

Vendor. Purchaser shall not make any unauthorized modifications, alterations or additions to

the Equipment. Purchaser shall notify Vendor promptly of any lost or damaged Equipment.

Vendor may inspect all or part of the Equipment at any time with reasonable written notice to

Purchaser and during normal business hours.

8. Option to Purchase. At any time during the term of this Agreement, Purchaser has the

option of purchasing any or all of the Equipment at a price not greater than the residual

value price of such Equipment as of the date Purchaser exercises such option (provided

the closing of any such purchase occurs  subsequent to Purchaser

exercising such option). This Agreement shall be modified to reflect any purchase of

Equipment, including termination of this Agreement in the event Purchaser purchases all

of the Equipment.

9. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which

shall be deemed to be one and the same Agreement. Any facsimile or pdf copy of the signature

of an authorized signatory of any party hereto shall constitute a legal, valid, and binding

execution hereof by such party.

Page 726 of 853



HPG-1119 - Page 5 of 9 

10. Modifications. No changes, modifications, or waivers of any provision of this Agreement

shall be binding unless in writing and signed by a duly authorized representative of each party.

Emails, including emails that have an electronic “signature block” identifying sender, do not

constitute a signed instrument for purposes of this Section 10.

11. Severability. In the event that any provision of this Agreement shall be determined to be

illegal or unenforceable, that provision will be limited or eliminated to the minimum extent

necessary so that this Agreement shall otherwise remain in full force and effect and

enforceable.

12. Waiver. The failure on the part of any party to exercise or enforce any rights conferred upon

it hereunder shall not be deemed to be a waiver of any such rights nor operate to bar the

exercise or enforcement thereof at any time or times thereafter.

13. Additional Terms. The terms and conditions set forth in Attachment 1 attached to this

Agreement are incorporated into this Agreement by reference.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties execute this Agreement by their duly authorized officers. 

University Medical Center of Southern Nevada ICU Medical Sales, Inc. 

Signature  Date Signature Date 

Name (printed) Name (printed) 

Title Title 

Mason Von Houweling

Chief Operating Officer VP - Contracting

Richard Nevin

Page 727 of 853



HPG-1119 - Page 6 of 9 

Attachment 1 

Placed Equipment Agreement 

List of Equipment and Related Disposables 

Placed Equipment and Services 

1. Equipment/Material # 2. Description 3. Quantity

30010 Plum 360™ Infusion Pump 1,139 

Related Disposables 

Related Disposables are solely for use in connection with the Equipment. Pricing for the Related Disposables 

are based on the prices for same contained in the Purchasing Agreement. 

Contract 

Year 

Product/Model 

Number 
Description 

Annual 
Volume 

Commitment 

Total 
disposable 

price 

1 14687-28 Primary PLUM Set, CLAVE Secondary Port, CLAVE Y-Site, Secure Lock, 103 Inch   

2 14687-28 Primary PLUM Set, CLAVE Secondary Port, CLAVE Y-Site, Secure Lock, 103 Inch   

3 14687-28 Primary PLUM Set, CLAVE Secondary Port, CLAVE Y-Site, Secure Lock, 103 Inch   

4 14687-28 Primary PLUM Set, CLAVE Secondary Port, CLAVE Y-Site, Secure Lock, 103 Inch   

5 14687-28 Primary PLUM Set, CLAVE Secondary Port, CLAVE Y-Site, Secure Lock, 103 Inch   

6 14687-28 Primary PLUM Set, CLAVE Secondary Port, CLAVE Y-Site, Secure Lock, 103 Inch   

7 14687-28 Primary PLUM Set, CLAVE Secondary Port, CLAVE Y-Site, Secure Lock, 103 Inch   

* In addition to, and on an annual basis, Purchaser also commits to purchase in the aggregate a minimum of the following

requirements:  in category Infusion Sets, Extension and Secondary Non-Dedicated,

and Infusion Needleless Products and Accessories from HPG

Additional Related Disposables 

Contract 

Year 

Product/Model 

Number 
Description 

Annual Dollar 

Commitment 

Total 

disposable 
price 

1 through 7 Various 
Infusion Needleless Products, Infusion Sets (non-dedicated Products under 
HealthTrust 7679 Agreement, PIVC Products under HealthTrust 780 and 

HealthTrust K39581  

 

As per 

HealthTrust 

7679, 780 
and K39581 

Total minimum seven year total of the #1119 Placed Equipment Agreement = $9,397,132

Page 728 of 853



Exhibit DD-2 
PURCHASER AGREEMENT 

THIS PURCHASER AGREEMENT (the "Agreement") is made this 1st day of Febrnaiy, 2024 
(the "Commencement Date"), by and between UMC of Southern Nevada ("Purchaser"), and ICU 
Medical Sales, Inc., a Delaware corporation, with a place of business at 951 Calle Amanecer, San 
Clemente, CA 92673 ("Vendor"). This Agreement is entered into in connection with that ce1iain 
Amended and Restated Purchasing Agreement, HPG-7679, dated Febrnaiy 1, 2018, between 
HealthTrnst Purchasing Group, L.P. ("HealthTrnst") and Vendor ("Purchasing Agreement"). The 
provisions of the Purchasing Agreement are incorporated into this Agreement. This Agreement 
shall be subject to and governed by the tenns and conditions of the Purchasing Agreement, except 
as may othe1wise be provided in this Agreement. In the event of a conflict between the tenns of 
the Purchasing Agreement and this Agreement, the tenns of the Purchasing Agreement shall 
control. All capitalized tenns used but not othe1wise defined herein shall have the meaning 
ascribed to such te1ms in the Purchasing Agreement. In consideration of the foregoing provisions 
and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 
acknowledged, Purchaser and Vendor agree as follows: 

1. eLOC. This Agreement is entered into in connection with Purchaser's selection and 
commitment to a minimum purchasing requirement of Products pursuant to an eLOC 
completed and submitted by Purchaser. The applicable eLOC completed and submitted 
by Purchaser is incorporated into this Agreement. 

2. Tiers: Interpretation. For purposes of this Agreement, "Group" means at least two 
healthcare provider locations/facilities owned or controlled by a Participant. The 
healthcai·e provider locations/facilities in the Group ai·e listed in Schedule 1 attached to this 
Agreement. For pmposes of this Agreement, "Facility" means a single healthcare provider 
location/facility owned or controlled by a Pm·chaser. 

For pmposes of this Agreement, to the extent the context requires, references herein to 
Group, shall be constrned to mean the Group, in the aggregate, and the entity executing 
this Agreement on behalf of such Group has the legal ability and authority to enter into 
this Agreement for and on behalf of itself and such Group. 

TIER OPTIONS: 

.. 
1 • X 

2 

Tier Description 

HPG-7679 - Amendment - Page I of 12 

Facility or 
Group 

Facility or 
Group 

Page 729 of 853



3 

4 

5 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 

Facility or 
Group 

Facility or 
Group 

Facility 

Product Category Sub Category 

Infusion Solutions Infusion Solutions, Itrigation 

Infusion Solutions Infusion Solutions, IV Nutritional Products 

Infusion Solutions Infusion Solutions, Parenteral 

Infusion Solutions Infusion Solutions, Pa1tial Fill Diluent Container, Non-Dmg 

Infusion Solutions Infusion Solutions, Vial Systems 

Infusion Sets Infusion Sets, Extension and Secondary (Non-Dedicated) 

Infusion Sets Infusion Sets, Gravity (Non-Dedicated) 

Infusion Sets Infusion Sets, Prima1y, Dedicated 

Infusion Sets Infusion Sets, Specialty (Non-Dedicated) 

Infusion Sets Itrigation Sets (Non-Dedicated) 

Infusion Needleless Products and Accessories Infusion Needleless Products and Accessories 

3. 

4. 

Pricing. Exhibit A to the Purchasing Agreement sets fo1th the Product pricing. 

Tier Rebates. 

Rebates. Vendor shall pay Rebates in the f01m of an EFT  following 
the end of month subject to Vendor's verification of Purchaser 's purchases based on 
purchases of Products and/or Services by Purchasers in the amounts stated in Exhibit AA, 
if any. If a percentage is listed, then the Rebate shall be detennined by multiplying the 
stated percentage by the dollar amount actually paid by the Purchaser for Products and 
Services purchased under this Agreement, excluding any added freight charges, taxes, any 
Distributor markup (if applicable), and net of any refunds or credits on Product returns. 
Rebates shall be paid to HealthTmst for payment by HealthTmst to Purchasers. The 
payment of Rebates is intended to be in compliance with the exception to the Medicaid and 
Medicare Anti-Kickback Statute set fo1th at 42 U.S.C. § 1320a-7b(b )(3)(A) and the "safe 
harbor" regulations set fo1t h in 42 C.F.R. § 1001.952(h) . 

HPG-7679 - Amendment - Page 2 of 12 

Page 730 of 853



A. Tiers 1-2 IV Select Solutions Rebate.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

B. Tier 1 IV Set Rebate.  
 
 
 

 
 

 

C. Tier 2 IV Set Rebate.  
 
 
 
 
 

 

D. Tier 3 IV Set Rebate.  
 
 
 
 
 

 

E. Tier 4 IV Set Rebate.  
 
 
 
 

HPG-7679 - Amendment - Page 3 of 12 

Page 731 of 853



 
 
 

 

5. Non-Tier Rebates.  
 

 

6. Price Adjustments.  
 

 

7. 

8. 

Price Adjustments 

Price Adjustment 
Price Adjustment 

Date 

Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 3 - 4 Tier 5 

January 1, 2024     

January 1, 2025     

January 1, 2026     

January 1, 2027     

 
 

   
 

 
 

 

Tenn of Agreement. The te1m ("Te1m ") of this Agreement is eighty four (84) 
months, commencing on the Commencement Date and expiring eighty four (84) months 
thereafter (the "Expiration Date") 

Reviews. In the event Purchaser selects Tiers 1 or 2, on a qua1ierly bas is during the 
Te1m, Purchaser and Vendor will review Purchaser's historical volumes by month 
(based on the same in the previous year) for all IV Solutions Products, by product 
catego1y and catalog number for the upcoming quaiier and whether Purchaser anticipates 
a purchase volume increase in a paiiiculai· month in excess of  of the total purchase 
volume of that same month the previous year or a purchase volume increase in a pa11icular 
month in excess of  increase of the amount purchased by Purchaser for an individual 
catalog number that same month the previous yeai· (a "Material Volume Increase"). 
Purchaser will use commercially reasonable effo11s to notify and provide to Vendor's 

HPG-7679 - Amendment - Page 4 of 12 

Page 732 of 853



9. 

Account Executive an Excel spreadsheet with the following detail: (i) the anticipated 
requested ship date of the Material Volume Increase(s) and (ii) estimate of the expected 
volume increase by product catego1y and catalog number (a "Material Volume Increase 
Forecast"). Unless Purchaser has timely provided such infonnation, Vendor shall not be 
required to accept any orders from Purchaser for Products which constitute a Material 
Volume Increase. If Purchaser has provided the Material Volume Increase Forecast, 
Vendor  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Any order under the Material Volume 
Increase or over the Material Volume Increase and accepted by Vendor upon receiving the 
Material Volume Increase Forecast shall be subject to Section 7 of this Agreement. 

Vendor Delive1y Perfo1mance; Cancellation 

A. Delive1y Perfonnance WaiTanty for Direct Purchases (all Products other than LV. 
Solutions).  

 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

B. Delive1y Perfonnance WaiTanty for Direct Pm·chases ofl.V. Solutions.  
 
 

 
 
 
 

HPG-7679 - Amendment - Page 5 of 12 

Page 733 of 853



 
 

 

C. Delive1y Perfonnance Wairnnty for Indirect Purchases of LV. Solutions 
with Distributors.  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

D. Remedies for Breach of I.V. Solutions Delive1y Perfonnance WaiTanty.  
 
 

 

1. Replacement Product from Vendor.  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 

11. Replacement Product from Third Pa1ty.  
 

 
 

     
 

    
     

HPG-7679 - Amendment - Page 6 of 12 

Page 734 of 853



Credit.  
 
 
 
 

  
  

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 

1.  
 
 

 

2.  
        

 
 

 

3.  
 
 

 

1v.  
 
 
 
 

 

v. Pro-Ration.  

 

HPG-7679 - Amendment - Page 7 of 12 

Page 735 of 853



v1. Tennination for FTS.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

vu. No Breach of Award or Collllllitment.  
 
 
 

 

Vlll. Cancellation of Orders.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

10. Business Continuity Plan; Force Majeure.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

HPG-7679 - Amendment - Page 8 of 12 

Page 736 of 853



HPG-7679 – Amendment - Page 9 of 12 

 

  

11. Compliance.

Effective as of the Commencement Date and continuing each year thereafter for the Term,

Purchaser hereby commits that it shall purchase from Vendor the percentage requirements

set forth in the Tier selected by Purchaser. After an annual review (described herein below),

if it is determined that Purchaser failed to achieve its percentage requirements for the year

subject to such annual review, pricing for Products within Purchaser’s selected Tier the

following year of the Term shall be at Tier 5 (access), provided that if Purchaser achieves

its percentage requirements in such following year, pricing at the Tier selected by

Purchaser shall be reinstated at the beginning of the following year.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, in the event Purchaser selects 

Tiers 3 or 4, Purchaser shall have the right to terminate such election at any time without 

cause and in such event, Purchaser shall be eligible to purchase Products at the prices set 

forth in Tier 5. 

Quarterly Business Review.  At the end of each quarter of the Term, Vendor and Purchaser 

shall conduct a quarterly business review.  The content communicated during the quarterly 

business reviews shall consist of Vendor’s most recent contract year data annualized to 

project annual performance by Purchaser with respect to its percentage requirements. Such 

review shall include Purchaser providing reasonable forecasts, including purchasing 

patterns ahead of the annual review (described herein below). 

Annual Review.  At the end of each year of the Term, Vendor and Purchaser shall conduct 

an annual business review. This Annual Review may be combined with Purchaser’s 

corresponding Quarterly Business Review. Upon Vendor’s request, Purchaser shall 

provide to Vendor reasonable information and data necessary to validate Vendor’s data 

regarding whether Purchaser has achieved its percentage requirements in Purchaser’s 

selected Tier.     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

12. Status of This Agreement in the Event Purchaser Ceases to be a HealthTrust Participant.

If Purchaser ceases to be a Participant of HealthTrust during the term of this Agreement,

Purchaser shall not thereafter be allowed to purchase Products and/or Services under the

Purchasing Agreement and this Agreement, and Vendor reserves the right to require that

Page 737 of 853



HPG-7679 – Amendment - Page 10 of 12 

(i) Purchaser shall remain obligated to Vendor to fulfill its Commitment; and (ii)

Vendor’s then-current standard terms and conditions of sale and pricing shall apply to

any purchases required under such Commitment (unless otherwise agreed by Vendor

and Purchaser in writing.

13. Termination. Vendor and Purchaser each shall have the right to terminate any of their

respective obligations under the Purchasing Agreement and this Purchaser Agreement

(and eLOC) as to the other for Cause, which is not cured within  following

receipt of written notice thereof specifying the Cause. If HealthTrust terminates the

Purchasing Agreement without Cause, this Purchaser Agreement (and eLOC) shall survive

the termination of the Purchasing Agreement.

14. Disclosure.  The purchase prices under this Agreement (including the value of any

discounts, rebates, or other price concessions) are intended to reflect discounts or other

reductions in price within the meaning of the discount exception to the federal anti-

kickback statute 42 U.S.C. Section 1320a-7b(b)(3)(A).  Purchaser shall properly report and

appropriately reflect such discounted prices on cost reports or claims submitted to any state

or federal program that provides reimbursement to Purchaser for the items to which the

discount applies.  Further, Purchaser shall retain invoices and other price documentation

and make them available to federal or state officials upon request.

15. Governing Law.  This Agreement and any claim, controversy or dispute arising under or

related to this Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the 

16. Assignment.  

Signatures on following page

Page 738 of 853



HPG-7679 – Amendment - Page 11 of 12 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties indicate their acceptance of the terms of this 

Agreement by the signatures of their duly authorized representatives.  

Purchaser: ICU Medical Sales, Inc. 

Purchaser Signee: Vendor Signee: 

Purchaser Signee Name: Vendor Signee Name: 

Purchaser Signee Title: Vendor Signee Title: 

Purchaser Signee Signature Date: Vendor Signee Signature Date: 

University Medical Center of Southern Nevada

Mason Von Houweling

Chief Operating Officer VP - Contracting

Richard Nevin

Page 739 of 853



HPG-7679 – Amendment - Page 12 of 12 

Schedule 1 

List of Healthcare Providers of Group (Tier 1, 2, 3, or 4) 

GPOID Facility Name Address Contact 

Person 

Phone 

Number 

UMC of Southern 

Nevada 

1800 W Charleston Blvd, Las 

Vegas NV 89102 

Page 740 of 853



   DocuSign Envelope ID: 9324E5B7-1339-49B5-85E6-07080CA4A8E6 

HPG-1351  Amendment - Page 38 of 54 

Schedule 8 

Exhibit L 

Statement of Work 

Comprehensive Implementation Services for 

Smiths Medical ASD, Inc. ( Vendor ) 

Infusion Pumps 

University Medical Center of Southern Nevada Customer

Created By: Vendor Date: 12/11/2023 

Page 741 of 853



    DocuSign Envelope ID: 9324E5B7-1339-49B5-85E6-07080CA4A8E6 

HPG-1351  Amendment - Page 39 of 54 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Table of Contents 

1.0 Project Goals ................................................................................................................... 4 

2.0 Project Scope ................................................................................................................... 4 

3.0 Project Methodology & Process ........................................................................................4 

3.1 Phase One: Initial Engagement ................................................................................. 5 

3.2 Phase Two: Discovery & Planning ............................................................................ 5 

3.3 Phase Three: Building & Developing ........................................................................ 5 

3.4 Phase Four: Staging & Validation ............................................................................ 5 

3.5 Phase Five: Education & Go Live ............................................................................. 6 

4.0 Vendor Roles and Responsibilities ................................................................................... 6 

5.0 Customer Roles & Responsibilities .................................................................................. 7 

6.0 Milestones and Deliverables Dates (Dates to be filled in with SOW Addendum) ............ 10 

7.0 Communications Plan .................................................................................................... 11 

8.0 Assumptions .................................................................................................................. 11 

9.0 Change Orders ............................................................................................................... 11 

10.0 Project Acceptance ........................................................................................................ 12 

Appendix A: Implementation Process ....................................................................................... 13 

Appendix B: Project Timeline (Example) ................................................................................. 14 

Appendix C: Education & Go live schedule .............................................................................. 15 

Appendix D: Change Order ...................................................................................................... 16 

Page 742 of 853



Page 743 of 853



    DocuSign Envelope ID: 9324E5B7-1339-49B5-85E6-07080CA4A8E6 

HPG-1351  Amendment - Page 41 of 54 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3.1 Phase One: Initial Engagement 
Key activities: 

Complete Customer engagement call 

o Introduce Vendor and Customer project leads 
o Discuss project scope and draft timeline 

Plan for kick off meeting 

Identify appropriate implementation project team members 

Initiate Statement of Work Addendum 

Ship test pumps and software 

 

3.2 Phase Two: Discovery & Planning 

Key activities: 
Complete kickoff meeting 

o Confirm project scope 
o Finalize project timeline 

Install Medication Safety Software 

Complete Medication Safety Software training 

Clinical Discovery 

Present and discuss customizable pump options and configurations 

IT Discovery 

Finalize, approve and sign off on Statement of Work Addendum 

 

3.3 Phase Three: Building & Developing 

Key activities: 
Customer provides server built to Vendor specifications 

Vendor remotely installs and configures the PharmGuard® Infusion Management System 

Configure and test pump wireless configuration 

Test the bidirectional communication between the pumps and the server 

Customer builds drug library 

Vendor pharmacist conducts a technical review of the drug library 

Develop agreed upon end-user education schedule and plan 

Review and amend clinical workflows, orders sets, policies and procedures 

Determine final disposables 

Finalize disposable ordering and rollout plan 

 

3.4 Phase Four: Staging & Validation 

Key Activities: 
Ship remaining devices 

Vendor to complete the following on devices: 

o Unbox and charge 

o Perform functional testing per preventative maintenance procedure in the technical manual 

o Configure pumps for wireless communication 

o Ensure each pump can receive a drug library 
Provide server training to Customer IT, Biomed and Pharmacy 

Customer to complete clinical validation of all settings and entries entered in drug library 

Finalize drug library and deploy to all pumps in preparation for education/go live 

Page 744 of 853



    DocuSign Envelope ID: 9324E5B7-1339-49B5-85E6-07080CA4A8E6 

HPG-1351  Amendment - Page 42 of 54 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3.5 Phase Five: Education & Go Live 

Key activities: 
Vendor provides clinical end user training on infusion devices and safety software 

o Training requirements: 

Training held in a classroom setting with a maximum of 15 participants 
Classroom will be reserved for the consecutive days of end-user training 

Number of education blocks/classes is provided in the contract (and SOW Addendum). 

Customer to provide necessary disposables for training 

Customer responsible for training room set up prior to the first education block 

Go live team to deploy devices to clinical areas for go live 

Go live support provided as agreed upon between Customer and Vendor 

 

3.6 Phase Six: Project Closure 

Key activities: 
Complete post implementation call 

 remote support provided from Vendor to Customer team 

Implementation services and associated service fees will be billed (once go live occurs, this will be 
deemed as accepted implementation services) 

Schedule PharmGuard® server reports training 

Complete project closure meeting 

o Customer satisfaction survey sent out 
o Final project documentation provided to Customer 

Transition Customer support to Vendor Account Manager 

 

4.0 Vendor Roles and Responsibilities: 

Vendor Project Owner (Sales Lead) 
 

 
 

Vendor Program Manager 
 

 

  
  

 

  
 

  
 

  
 

  
 

  
 
 

Vendor Clinical Project Manager 
 

 

  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 745 of 853



Page 746 of 853



Page 747 of 853



Page 748 of 853



Page 749 of 853



Page 750 of 853



   DocuSign Envelope ID: 9324E5B7-1339-49B5-85E6-07080CA4A8E6 

HPG-1351  Amendment - Page 48 of 54 

If the changes are Vendor driven due to unavailability of resource, inability to delivery equipment, 

or inability to complete tasks as assigned, a Change Order form will need to be completed 

outlining the causes of the delays and planned resolution to Customer. 

0 Project Acceptance 

Signatures: 

CUSTOMER NAME Printed: Vendor Name Printed: 

CUSTOMER NAME Signature: Vendor Signature: 

CUSTOMER NAME Title: Vendor Title: 

Date: Date: 

Page 751 of 853



HPG-1351  Amendment - Page 49 of 54 

    

Vendor Implementation Process 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 9324E5B7-1339-49B5-85E6-07080CA4A8E6 

Page 752 of 853

CT00069959
Highlight



    DocuSign Envelope ID: 9324E5B7-1339-49B5-85E6-07080CA4A8E6 

HPG-1351  Amendment - Page 50 of 54 

 

 

 
 
 

 

Appendix B: Project Timeline (Example) 
 

Page 753 of 853



    DocuSign Envelope ID: 9324E5B7-1339-49B5-85E6-07080CA4A8E6 

HPG-1351  Amendment - Page 51 of 54 

 

 

 
 
 

 

Appendix C: Education & Go live schedule 

Page 754 of 853



Page 755 of 853



 
 

v24APR23 

 

To Whom It May Concern: 

 

Per our records, the 4 (four) Smiths Medical ASD, Inc. Infusion Pumps with serial numbers 

below have been retired, lost, stolen, or otherwise removed from our inventory. By signing this 

document, we agree to allow Smiths Medical ASD, Inc. to remove these pumps from our 

Installed Base records. We understand and agree that any pumps removed from our Installed 

Base records will no longer be eligible for service, repair, updates, or upgrades. 

 

Customer Name: University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 

Customer Address: 1800 W Charleston Blvd, Las Vegas, NV 89102 

Signature: ___________________________________ 

Date: _______________________________________ 

Title: _______________________________________ 

Printed Name: ________________________________ 

 

System Item Item Description Serial 
Number 

21-2111-0100-51 PUMP KIT, CADD-SOLIS, MODEL 2110, CE ENGLISH 1/EA 1013438 

21-2111-0100-51 PUMP KIT, CADD-SOLIS, MODEL 2110, CE ENGLISH 1/EA 1013439 

21-2111-0100-51 PUMP KIT, CADD-SOLIS, MODEL 2110, CE ENGLISH 1/EA 1013440 

21-2111-0100-51 PUMP KIT, CADD-SOLIS, MODEL 2110, CE ENGLISH 1/EA 1013441 

 

Page 756 of 853



Page 1 of 14 

Information Security Exhibit 

This Information Security Exhibit (this “IS Exhibit”), is attached to and incorporated into the 

Purchasing Agreement (the “Agreement”), by and between HealthTrust and Vendor. This IS 

Exhibit sets forth HealthTrust’s required information security policies and procedures with respect 

to Vendor’s provision of any Products and Services to all Purchasers. In the event of a conflict 

between the Agreement and this Exhibit, the Agreement shall control. Terms used in this IS Exhibit 

but not otherwise defined in this IS Exhibit will have the meaning set forth in the Agreement and 

any other applicable exhibits. 

1. APPLICATION AND TECHNOLOGICAL ADVANCES. Vendor represents

that Vendor’s servers are currently located at a  data center to provide the

SaaS Services, and no other provider.

 HealthTrust and Vendor 

understand and agree that technologies and practices evolve over time, and that the 

administrative, physical, technical, and organizational measures and controls set 

forth in this IS Exhibit may be subject to progress and development. In that regard, 

Vendor and Subcontractors may, in some cases 

 implement alternative

measures to those set forth in this IS Exhibit; 

2. NETWORK ACCESS. In addition to any requirements set forth in the Agreement,

Vendor’s access to Purchaser’s Network is subject to the Purchaser’s security and

operational requirements as provided by Purchaser to Vendor. If granted access to

Purchaser’s Network, Vendor and Vendor Personnel shall only access those

portions of the Network, application or data which they are expressly authorized by

Purchaser to access, even if the technical controls in the Network, system or

application do not prevent Vendor or Vendor Personnel from greater access.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, Purchaser shall have in place reasonable and

appropriate controls to prevent unauthorized access. Vendor shall impose

reasonable sanctions against any Vendor Personnel who attempt to bypass security

controls.

Page 757 of 853



Page 2 of 14 

 

 

 

 

 

3. NETWORK ACCESS REMOVAL. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in 

the Agreement or other agreement between Purchaser and Vendor, Purchaser in its 

sole discretion may refuse to grant Vendor or any Vendor Personnel access to 

Purchaser’s Network or Confidential Information; Purchaser may at any time 

remove Network access from Vendor or any Vendor Personnel, without prior 

notice. In the event Purchaser withholds Vendor access other than in the event of 

Vendor’s or Vendor Personnel’s breach of this IS Exhibit, Purchaser shall be solely 

responsible for any outcome arising from Vendor’s inability to access Purchaser’s 

Network. Vendor shall make commercially reasonable efforts to replace Vendor 

Personnel within a reasonable period of time following any removal of access by 

Purchaser. Should Purchaser withhold Vendor access other than in the event of 

Vendor’s or Vendor Personnel’s breach of this IS Exhibit, Vendor shall not be 

responsible or liable for failure to perform the Services when no Vendor Personnel 

have access to Purchaser’s Network. 

4. VIRUS PROTECTION. 

4.1 Equipment, Vendor Software and Local Software. With respect to any 

Products and/or Services which will be installed on and reside on 

Purchaser’s Network, including, without limitation any Equipment, Vendor 

Software or Local Software installed on Purchaser’s Network,  

 

 

 

 

 

 

4.2 Maintenance of Anti-Virus Software – On-Premise. The maintenance of 

the Anti-virus Software, including keeping current software updates and 

virus signature files, shall be the sole responsibility of the Purchaser for On- 

Premise Services. To ensure clarity, the Anti-Virus Software maintained by 

Purchaser for On-Premise Services must be updated at significantly 

frequent intervals necessary to maintain, at a minimum, current industry 

standard signature files and software updates. 

4.3 Maintenance of Anti-Virus Software – SaaS Services.  

 

 

 

 

 

5. SECURITY STANDARDS. 

5.1 Backups and Segregation 

5.1.1 On-Premise. Purchaser  shall be responsible for the    management 

Page 758 of 853



Page 3 of 14 

 

 

 

 

 

and ongoing maintenance of its system backups and all Purchaser 

Data shall be logically segregated from other data in accordance 

with the Purchaser’s applicable policies and procedures. 

5.1.2 SaaS Services. Vendor shall be responsible for the management and 

ongoing maintenance of its system backups and all Purchaser Data 

shall be logically segregated from other customer data. 

5.2 Vulnerability Testing.  

 

 

 

 

 

        

 

5.2.1 Vulnerability Reports.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5.2.2 Notification, Compensating Controls, and Corrective Actions. 

Vendor      will      send    notification     to HealthTrust     at 

security@healthtrustpg.com pursuant to Section 19.12 of the 

Agreement  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 759 of 853



Page 4 of 14 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

        

 

 

 

    

         

        

 

 

 

        

       

 

 

 

 Notwithstanding the foregoing, to the extent a Critical 

Vulnerability exists with respect to hardware, software, and 

equipment (other than the Vendor’s Software) installed at 

Purchaser’s facilities, Purchaser shall be solely responsible for 

obtaining from the applicable third party, and implementing, 

compensating controls and corrective actions. 

5.2.3 SECURITY PATCH.  
 

       

 

  

Notwithstanding the foregoing, to the extent a Security 

Patch or compensating control is needed for hardware, software, and 
equipment (other than the Vendor’s Software or equipment) 

installed at Purchaser’s facilities, Purchaser shall be solely 
responsible for such cost. 

5.3 Encryption Procedures.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Page 760 of 853



Page 5 of 14 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

5.4 Information Security Program.  

 

 

        

 

 

       

      

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6. INFORMATION SECURITY INCIDENT. 

6.1 Notification and Response.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 761 of 853



Page 6 of 14 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6.2 Security Incident Contact Person. Vendor shall promptly designate a 

contact person for HealthTrust and each Purchaser to contact in the event of 

an Information Security Incident. This contact person should possess the 

requisite authority and knowledge to: (a) act as a liaison to communicate 

between Vendor and HealthTrust and between Vendor and Purchaser 

regarding the Information Security Incident (including providing 

information requested by HealthTrust and/or Purchaser); (b) perform the 

reporting obligations of Vendor; and (c) develop a mitigation strategy to 

remedy or mitigate any damage to Purchaser Network, Purchaser 

infrastructure, Purchaser Data, Products, Services or Vendor Network(s) 

that may result from the Information Security Incident. 

6.3  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

         

       

 

 

 

Page 762 of 853



Page 120 of 133 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

         

 

6.4 Termination.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

7. VENDOR PERSONNEL.

7.1 Vendor Personnel.  

        

 

 

 

7.2 Vendor Personnel Confidentiality.  

 

 

 

 

 

7.3 Termination of Vendor Personnel; Purchaser Revisions to Access 
Requirements.        

 
 

Page 763 of 853



Page 121 of 133 

 

 

 

 

 

8. SERVICE.

8.1 Account Usage.  

 

 

 

8.2 Purchaser Network Access Requirements. 

8.2.1  

 

 

 

        

 

 

8.2.2  

 

 

 

 

 

 

8.2.3  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

8.2.4  

 

 

 

Page 764 of 853



Page 122 of 133 

9. RISK MANAGEMENT REQUIREMENTS.

9.1 Security Controls.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

            

 

 

 

 

9.2 End User Credentials. 

9.2.1 Vendor Responsibilities – SaaS Services.  

 

 

 

       

 

 

 

       

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

          

 

 

 

 

 

Page 765 of 853



Page 123 of 133  

 

 

 

 

9.2.2 Purchaser Responsibilities.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9.3 Retention and Destruction of Purchaser Data. During the term of the 

Agreement and as otherwise obligated under the Agreement, Vendor will 

not delete or destroy any Purchaser Data or media on which Purchaser Data 

resides without prior authorization from Purchaser. Purchaser hereby 

authorizes Vendor to delete or destroy Purchaser Data in accordance with 

any Purchaser document retention policies furnished to Vendor in writing. 

In the event any Purchaser Data is lost or destroyed due to any act or 

omission of Vendor, including any Information Security Incident, Vendor 

shall restore such Purchaser Data using the most recent available back-up. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

10. INFORMATION SECURITY AUDIT. In addition to any audit rights provided 

to HealthTrust under the Audit Rights Section of the Agreement, Purchaser, 

HealthTrust or an external auditing firm selected by HealthTrust which is not a 

competitor of Vendor shall have the right to audit Vendor’s compliance with this 

IS Exhibit as provided in this Section 10. 

10.1 Logging.  

        

 

 

 

 

   

Page 766 of 853



Page 124 of 133  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

          

 

 

 

 

10.2 Internal Review and Audit Report.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

10.3 Certificates.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 767 of 853



Page 125 of 133  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

10.4 Compliance Audit.  

 

         

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

        

 

 

 

 

 

 

11. CYBER RISK AND DATA SECURITY INSURANCE. Vendor will maintain at 

its own expense, with such other terms and conditions as reasonably required by 

Purchaser and/or any applicable Affiliate(s)  

 

12. DEFINITIONS. 

12.1 “Anti-virus Software” shall be defined as industry-standard software specifically 

written to prevent the introduction or intrusion of Malicious Software. 

12.2 “Audit Log” means a time-based record of system activities to enable the audit, 

reconstruction, and examination of the sequence of events and/or changes in an 

Page 768 of 853



Page 126 of 133  

 

 

 

 

event, including without limitation, who accessed a system and what operations the 

person has performed during a given period of time. 

12.3 “Compensating Control” means a mechanism that is put in place to satisfy the 

requirement for a security measure that is deemed by Vendor to be too difficult or 

impractical to implement at the present time. 

12.4 “Corrective Action” means an action to eliminate the cause of a detected non- 

conformity or undesirable situation, as defined by the U.S. Food and Drug 

Administration. 

12.5 “Critical Vulnerability” means any Vulnerability with a Common Vulnerability 

Scoring System Revision 3 (“CVSS(3)”) score of 7 or above. 

12.6 “Vulnerability” means a flaw or weakness in a Product’s or system’s security 

procedures, internal controls, design or implementation that could be exercised 

(accidentally triggered or intentionally exploited) and result in harm or 

unauthorized access to a system, activity or Purchaser Data. 

12.7 “End User” means an individual that Purchaser permits to use the SaaS Services, 

which may include, without limitation, employees agents, contractors, consultants, 

outsourcers, suppliers or other individuals (including third parties), but only in 

accordance with Section 9.2.2. 

12.8 “Information Security Incident” means:  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

12.9 “Local Software” means any software provided by Vendor for local installation 

and use in connection with the SaaS Services. 

12.10 “Malicious Software” shall be defined as any type of software or program which 

is designed to: (a) cause unauthorized access to or intrusion upon; or (b) otherwise 

disrupt and/or damage, computer equipment, software, and/or data (commonly 

referred to as a virus, worm, Trojan horse, or spyware) 

12.11 “Network” means a configuration of computers, workstations, and other devices 

that are inter-connected. 

12.12 “Ordering Documents” means the ordering documents entered into by and between 

the Purchaser and Vendor for the purchase and order of Products and Services, and 

includes, without limitation, any Statements of Work, as applicable. 

Page 769 of 853



Page 127 of 133  

 

 

 

 

12.13 “Personal Information” means any information relating to an 

identified or identifiable individual (such as name, postal address, 

email address, telephone number, date of birth, Social Security 

number (or its equivalent), driver’s license number, account number, 

personal identification number, health or medical information, or any 

other unique identifier or one or more factors specific to the 

individual’s physical, physiological, mental, economic or social 

identity), whether such data is in individual or aggregate form and 

regardless of the media in which it is contained, that may be (a) 

disclosed or processed at any time to Vendor by Purchaser or an 

Affiliate; or (b) derived by Vendor from the information described in 

(a). 

12.14 “Purchaser Data” means any or all Personal Information that is 

stored, recorded, processed, created, derived or generated by Vendor 

for or on behalf of the Purchaser, regardless of the form or media in 

which such data is held. 

12.15 “Remote Access” means the connectivity which enables access from 

a network outside the Purchaser Network to the perimeter of the 

Purchaser Network. 

12.16 “Security Patch” means a  

 

 

 

 

12.17 “SaaS Services” means the software-as-a-service (“SaaS”) services 

and all software used by Vendor to display and perform the SaaS 

Services. 

12.18 “Software” means any and all computer software licensed to 

Purchaser under applicable Exhibits. The term Software includes, as 

applicable and without limitation, software provided through or in 

relation with the SaaS Services, Local Software (as defined in the 

Software as a Service Terms and Conditions Exhibit, if applicable) 

and Vendor Software (as defined in the On Premise Software Terms 

and Conditions Exhibit, if applicable). 
 

Page 770 of 853



1100 Dr. Martin Luther King Blvd    I Nashville, TN 37203    I healthtrustpg.com 

 

 

H E A LT H T R U S T ------------------ 
 
 
 
 
 

February 6th, 2024  

Valerie Salerno 

University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 

1800 W. Charleston Blvd. 

Las Vegas, NV 89102 
 

Re: Request for competitive bidding information regarding IV Safety Catheters.  

 

Dear Ms. Salerno: 
 

This letter is provided in response to the University Medical Center of Southern Nevada's ("UMC") request 

for information about HealthTrust Purchasing Group, L.P.'s ("HealthTrust") competitive bidding process for 

IV Safety Catheters. We are pleased to provide this information to UMC in your capacity as a Participant of 

HealthTrust, as defined in and subject to the Participation Agreement between HealthTrust and UMC, 

effective August 3, 2016. 

 
HealthTrust's bid and award process is described in its Contracting Process Policy [HT.008] available on its 

public website {http://healthtrustpg.com/about-healthtrust/healthcare-code-of-ethics/).  As described in the 

policy, HealthTrust operates a member-driven contracting process. Advisory Boards are engaged to 

determine the clinical, technical, operational, conversion, business and other criteria important for each 

specific bid category. The boards are comprised of representatives from HealthTrust's membership who 

have appropriate experience, credentials/licensures, and decision-making authority within their respective 

health systems for the board on which they serve. 

 
HealthTrust's requirements for specific products and services are published on its Contract Schedule on its 

public website.  HealthTrust's requirements for vendors are outlined in its Supplier Criteria Policy [HT.010]. 

A listing of the minimum Supplier Criteria is also published on HealthTrust's public website, as well as an on-

line form for prospective vendor submission. 

 
The Contracting Process Policy includes criteria for the selection of contract products and services and 

documents and the procedures followed by HealthTrust's contracting team to select vendors for 

consideration. HealthTrust's Advisory Boards may provide additional requirements or other criteria that 

would be incorporated into the RFP (request for proposals) process, where appropriate. Vendor proposals 

submitted in response to RFPs are analyzed using an extensive clinical/technical review as described above, 

as well as a financial/operational review. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 771 of 853



1100 Dr. Martin Luther King Blvd    I Nashville, TN 37203    I healthtrustpg.com 

 

 

 

 

H E A LT H T R U ST 
  

 
The above-described process was followed with respect to the IV Safety Catheters.  HealthTrust issued 

RFPs and received proposals from identified suppliers in the category.  Agreements were awarded to Smiths 

Medical, ICU Medical, Bbraun, Retractable Technologies and BD in September of 2022.  I hope this satisfies 

your request.  Please contact me with any additional questions. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Craig Dabbs 

Account Director, Member Services 

    

Page 772 of 853



1100 Dr. Martin Luther King Blvd    I Nashville, TN 37203    I healthtrustpg.com 

 

 

H E A LT H T R U S T ------------------ 
 
 
 
 
 

December 13th, 2023 

Cole Price 
Management Analyst - Contracts 
University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 

1800 W. Charleston Blvd. 

Las Vegas, NV 89102 
 

Re: Request for competitive bidding information regarding Infusion Pumps, Sets, Solutions and 

Needleless Products. 

 

Dear Mr. Price: 
 

This letter is provided in response to the University Medical Center of Southern Nevada's ("UMC") request 

for information about HealthTrust Purchasing Group, L.P.'s ("HealthTrust") competitive bidding process for 

Infusion Pumps, Sets, Solutions and Needleless Products. We are pleased to provide this information to 

UMC in your capacity as a Participant of HealthTrust, as defined in and subject to the Participation 

Agreement between HealthTrust and UMC, effective August 3, 2016. 

 
HealthTrust's bid and award process is described in its Contracting Process Policy [HT.008] available on its 

public website {http://healthtrustpg.com/about-healthtrust/healthcare-code-of-ethics/).  As described in the 

policy, HealthTrust operates a member-driven contracting process. Advisory Boards are engaged to 

determine the clinical, technical, operational, conversion, business and other criteria important for each 

specific bid category. The boards are comprised of representatives from HealthTrust's membership who 

have appropriate experience, credentials/licensures, and decision-making authority within their respective 

health systems for the board on which they serve. 

 
HealthTrust's requirements for specific products and services are published on its Contract Schedule on its 

public website.  HealthTrust's requirements for vendors are outlined in its Supplier Criteria Policy [HT.010]. 

A listing of the minimum Supplier Criteria is also published on HealthTrust's public website, as well as an on-

line form for prospective vendor submission. 

 
The Contracting Process Policy includes criteria for the selection of contract products and services and 

documents and the procedures followed by HealthTrust's contracting team to select vendors for 

consideration. HealthTrust's Advisory Boards may provide additional requirements or other criteria that 

would be incorporated into the RFP (request for proposals) process, where appropriate. Vendor proposals 

submitted in response to RFPs are analyzed using an extensive clinical/technical review as described above, 

as well as a financial/operational review. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 773 of 853



1100 Dr. Martin Luther King Blvd    I Nashville, TN 37203    I healthtrustpg.com 

 

 

 

 

 

 

H E A LT H T R U ST 
  

 
The above-described process was followed with respect to the Infusion Pumps, Sets, Solutions and Needleless 

Products.  HealthTrust issued RFPs and received proposals from identified suppliers in the category.  

Agreements were awarded to BBraun, Baxter, ICU Medical and BD (Alaris) in January of 2022.  I hope this 

satisfies your request.  Please contact me with any additional questions. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Craig Dabbs 

Account Director, Member Services 

    

Page 774 of 853



1100 Dr. Martin Luther King Blvd    I Nashville, TN 37203    I healthtrustpg.com 

 

 

H E A LT H T R U S T ------------------ 
 
 
 
 
 

December 13th, 2023 

Cole Price 
Management Analyst - Contracts 
University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 

1800 W. Charleston Blvd. 

Las Vegas, NV 89102 
 

Re: Request for competitive bidding information regarding Infusion Pumps, Sets, Solutions and 

Needleless Products. 

 

Dear Mr. Price: 
 

This letter is provided in response to the University Medical Center of Southern Nevada's ("UMC") request 

for information about HealthTrust Purchasing Group, L.P.'s ("HealthTrust") competitive bidding process for 

Infusion Pumps, Sets, Solutions and Needleless Products. We are pleased to provide this information to 

UMC in your capacity as a Participant of HealthTrust, as defined in and subject to the Participation 

Agreement between HealthTrust and UMC, effective August 3, 2016. 

 
HealthTrust's bid and award process is described in its Contracting Process Policy [HT.008] available on its 

public website {http://healthtrustpg.com/about-healthtrust/healthcare-code-of-ethics/).  As described in the 

policy, HealthTrust operates a member-driven contracting process. Advisory Boards are engaged to 

determine the clinical, technical, operational, conversion, business and other criteria important for each 

specific bid category. The boards are comprised of representatives from HealthTrust's membership who 

have appropriate experience, credentials/licensures, and decision-making authority within their respective 

health systems for the board on which they serve. 

 
HealthTrust's requirements for specific products and services are published on its Contract Schedule on its 

public website.  HealthTrust's requirements for vendors are outlined in its Supplier Criteria Policy [HT.010]. 

A listing of the minimum Supplier Criteria is also published on HealthTrust's public website, as well as an on-

line form for prospective vendor submission. 

 
The Contracting Process Policy includes criteria for the selection of contract products and services and 

documents and the procedures followed by HealthTrust's contracting team to select vendors for 

consideration. HealthTrust's Advisory Boards may provide additional requirements or other criteria that 

would be incorporated into the RFP (request for proposals) process, where appropriate. Vendor proposals 

submitted in response to RFPs are analyzed using an extensive clinical/technical review as described above, 

as well as a financial/operational review. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Page 775 of 853



1100 Dr. Martin Luther King Blvd    I Nashville, TN 37203    I healthtrustpg.com 

 

 

 

 

 

 

H E A LT H T R U ST 
  

 
The above-described process was followed with respect to the Infusion Pumps, Sets, Solutions and Needleless 

Products.  HealthTrust issued RFPs and received proposals from identified suppliers in the category.  

Agreements were awarded to BBraun, Baxter, ICU Medical and BD (Alaris) in January of 2022.  I hope this 

satisfies your request.  Please contact me with any additional questions. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Craig Dabbs 

Account Director, Member Services 

    

Page 776 of 853



REVISED 7/25/2014 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING THE  
DISCLOSURE OF OWNERSHIP/PRINCIPALS FORM 

Purpose of the Form 
 
The purpose of the Disclosure of Ownership/Principals Form is to gather ownership information pertaining to the business enti ty for use by the University Medical 

GB should exclude themselves from voting on agenda items where 
they have, or may be perceived as having a conflict of interest, and to determine compliance with Nevada Revised Statute 281A.430, contracts in which a public 
officer or employee has interest is prohibited. 
 

General Instructions 
 

Completion and submission of this Form is a condition of approval or renewal of a contract or lease and/or release of monetary funding between the disclosing 
entity and University Medical Center of Southern Nevada.  Failure to submit the requested information may result in a refusal by the GB to enter into an 
agreement/contract and/or release monetary funding to such disclosing entity.
 

Detailed Instructions 
 

All sections of the Disclosure of Ownership form must be completed. If not applicable, write in N/A. 
 

Business Entity Type  Indicate if the entity is an Individual, Partnership, Limited Liability Company, Corporation, Trust, Non-profit Organization, or Other.  
 

 

Non-Profit Organization (NPO) - Any non-profit corporation, group, association, or corporation duly filed and registered as required by state law. 
 

Business Designation Group  Indicate if the entity is a Minority Owned Business Enterprise (MBE), Women-Owned Business Enterprise (WBE), Small 
Business Enterprise (SBE), Physically-Challenged Business Enterprise (PBE), Veteran Owned Business (VET), Disabled Veteran Owned Business (DVET), or 
Emerging Small Business (ESB) . This is needed in order to provide utilization statistics to the Legislative Council Bureau, and will be used only for such 
purpose.   
 

 Minority Owned Business Enterprise (MBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function and 
is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more minority persons of Black American, Hispanic American, Asian -Pacific American or Native 
American ethnicity. 

 Women Owned Business Enterprise (WBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function and 
is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more women. 

 Physically-Challenged Business Enterprise (PBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful 
function and is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more disabled individuals pursuant to the federal Americans with Disabilities Act. 

 Small Business Enterprise (SBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function, is not owned 
and controlled by individuals designated as minority, women, or physically-challenged, and where gross annual sales does not exceed $2,000,000. 

 Veteran Owned Business Enterprise (VET): An independent and continuing Nevada business for profit which performs a commercially useful 
function and is at least 51 percent owned and controlled by one or more U.S. Veterans. 

 Disabled Veteran Owned Business Enterprise (DVET):  A Nevada business at least 51 percent owned/controlled by a disabled veteran. 
 Emerging Small Business (ESB): Certified by the Nevada Governor's Office of Economic Development effective January, 2014. Approved into 

Nevada law during the 77th Legislative session as a result of AB294. 
 

Business Name (include d.b.a., if applicable)   
 

Corporate/Business Address, Business Telephone, Business Fax, and Email Enter the street address, telephone and fax numbers, and email of the named 
business entity.   
 

Nevada Local Business Address, Local Business Telephone, Local Business Fax, and Email   If business entity is out-of-state, but operates the business from a 
location in Nevada, enter the Nevada street address, telephone and fax numbers, point of contact and email of the local office. Please note that the local address 
must be an address from which the business is operating from that location. Please do not include a P.O. Box number, unless required by the U.S. Postal Service, 
or a business license hanging address. 
 

Number of Clark County Nevada Residents employed by this firm. (Do not leave blank. If none or zero, put the number 0 in the space provided.)  
 

List of Owners/Officers  Include the full name, title and percentage of ownership of each person who has ownership or financial interest in the business entity.  If 
the business is a publicly-traded corporation or non-profit organization, list all Corporate Officers and Directors only.   
 

For All Contracts  (Not required for publicly-traded corporations)
1) Indicate if any individual members, partners, owners or principals involved in the business entity are a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 

full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s).  If yes, the following paragraph applies. 
 
In accordance with NRS 281A.430.1, a public officer or employee shall not bid on or enter into a contract between a governmen t agency and any 
private business in which he has a significant financial interest, except as provided for in subsections 2, 3, and 4. 
 

2) Indicate if any individual members, partners, owners or principals involved in the business entity have a second degree of consanguinity or affinity 
relation to a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s) (reference form on Page 2 for 
definition).  If YES, complete the Disclosure of Relationship Form.  

 

A professional service is defined as a business entity that offers business/financial consulting, legal, physician, architect, engineer or other professional services.
 

Signature and Print Name  Requires signature of an authorized representative and the date signed. 
 

Disclosure of Relationship Form  If any individual members, partners, owners or principals of the business entity is presently a University Medical Center of 
Southern Nevada employee, public officer or official, or has a second degree of consanguinity or affinity relationship to a University Medical Center of Southern 
Nevada employee, public officer or official, this section must be completed in its entirety.   
 

Page 777 of 853



DISCLOSURE OF OWNERSHIP/PRINCIPALS 

1
REVISED 7/25/2014 

 

Business Entity Type (Please select one) 

 Sole 
Proprietorship 

Partnership 
 Limited Liability 

Company  
Corporation  Trust 

 Non-Profit   
Organization 

  Other 

Business Designation Group (Please select all that apply) 

 MBE  WBE  SBE  PBE  VET DVET  ESB 

Minority Business 
Enterprise 

Women-Owned 
Business 
Enterprise 

Small Business 
Enterprise 

Physically Challenged 
Business Enterprise 

Veteran Owned 
Business 

Disabled Veteran 
Owned Business 

Emerging Small 
Business 

 

Number of Clark County Nevada Residents Employed:  3

  

Corporate/Business Entity Name:  ICU Medical Sales, Inc.

(Include d.b.a., if applicable)  

Street Address: 951 Calle Amanecer  Website: https://www.icumed.com/ 

 

City, State and Zip Code: 

San Clemente, CA 92673 POC Name: William Cloonen / Anne Putnoky 

Email:      william.cloonen@icumed.com /                                                                                            
anne.putnoky@icumed.com   

Telephone No: 949-366-2183 Fax No: 949-366-8368 

Nevada Local Street Address: 

(If different from above) 

 Website: 

 City, State and Zip Code:  Local Fax No: 

Local Telephone No: 
 Local POC Name: 

Email: 

All entities, with the exception of publicly-traded and non-profit organizations, must list the names of individuals holding more than five percent (5%) ownership or 
financial interest in the business entity appearing before the Board. 
 
Publicly-traded entities and non-profit organizations shall list all Corporate Officers and Directors in lieu of disclosing the names of individuals with 
ownership or financial interest. The disclosure requirement, as applied to land-use applications, extends to the applicant and the landowner(s). 

Entities include all business associations organized under or governed by Title 7 of the Nevada Revised Statutes, including but not limited to private corporations, 
close corporations, foreign corporations, limited liability companies, partnerships, limited partnerships, and professional corporations. 

  Full Name  Title  % Owned 
(Not required for Publicly Traded 

Corporations/Non-profit organizations) 

Not required  publicly traded corporation     

     

     

     

This section is not required for publicly-traded corporations.  Are you a publicly-traded corporation?             Yes       No 

1. Are any individual members, partners, owners or principals, involved in the business entity, a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time 
employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s)? 

  Yes   No (If yes, please note that University Medical Center of Southern Nevada employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s) may not 
perform any work on professional service contracts, or other contracts, which are not subject to competitive bid.) 

2. Do any individual members, partners, owners or principals have a spouse, registered domestic partner, child, parent, in-law or brother/sister, half-brother/half-
sister, grandchild, grandparent, related to a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s)? 

  Yes   No (If yes, please complete the Disclosure of Relationship form on Page 2.  If no, please print N/A on Page 2.)  

Page 778 of 853



DISCLOSURE OF OWNERSHIP/PRINCIPALS 

2
REVISED 7/25/2014 

 

 

 

 

 

 

I certify under penalty of perjury, that all of the information provided herein is current, complete, and accurate. I also understand that the University Medical Center of 
Southern Nevada Governing Board will not take action on land-use approvals, contract approvals, land sales, leases or exchanges without the completed disclosure 
form. 
 
 
 

 
 
 On Behalf of ICU Medical Sales, Inc., Richard Nevin 

Signature 
 

 Print Name

VP - Contracting  

Title  Date

Page 779 of 853



DISCLOSURE OF RELATIONSHIP 

3
REVISED 7/25/2014 

 

 
List any disclosures below: 
(Mark N/A, if not applicable.) 
 

NAME OF BUSINESS 
OWNER/PRINCIPAL 

NAME OF UMC* 
EMPLOYEE/OFFICIAL 

AND JOB TITLE

RELATIONSHIP TO 
 UMC* 

EMPLOYEE/OFFICIAL 

UMC* 

DEPARTMENT 
 
N/A 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 
* UMC employee means an employee of University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 
 

 
 

follows: 
 

 Spouse  Registered Domestic Partners  Children  Parents  In-laws (first degree) 
 

 Brothers/Sisters  Half-Brothers/Half-Sisters  Grandchildren  Grandparents  In-laws (second degree) 
 
 

 
For UMC Use Only: 

 
If any Disclosure of Relationship is noted above, please complete the following:     
 

  Yes     No   Is the UMC employee(s) noted above involved in the contracting/selection process for this particular agenda item? 
 

  Yes     No   Is the UMC employee(s) noted above involved in any way with the business in performance of the contract? 
 
Notes/Comments: 
 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Signature  
 
____________________________________ 
Print Name  
Authorized Department Representative 

 
 

 

Page 780 of 853



REVISED 7/25/2014 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING THE  
DISCLOSURE OF OWNERSHIP/PRINCIPALS FORM 

Purpose of the Form 
 
The purpose of the Disclosure of Ownership/Principals Form is to gather ownership information pertaining to the business entity for use by the University Medical 

GB should exclude themselves from voting on agenda items where 
they have, or may be perceived as having a conflict of interest, and to determine compliance with Nevada Revised Statute 281A.430, contracts in which a public 
officer or employee has interest is prohibited. 
 

General Instructions 
 

Completion and submission of this Form is a condition of approval or renewal of a contract or lease and/or release of monetary funding between the disclosing 
entity and University Medical Center of Southern Nevada.  Failure to submit the requested information may result in a refusal by the GB to enter into an 
agreement/contract and/or release monetary funding to such disclosing entity. 
 

Detailed Instructions 
 

All sections of the Disclosure of Ownership form must be completed.  If not applicable, write in N/A. 
 

Business Entity Type  Indicate if the entity is an Individual, Partnership, Limited Liability Company, Corporation, Trust, Non-profit Organization, or Other.  
 

 

Non-Profit Organization (NPO) - Any non-profit corporation, group, association, or corporation duly filed and registered as required by state law. 
 

Business Designation Group  Indicate if the entity is a Minority Owned Business Enterprise (MBE), Women-Owned Business Enterprise (WBE), Small 
Business Enterprise (SBE), Physically-Challenged Business Enterprise (PBE), Veteran Owned Business (VET), Disabled Veteran Owned Business (DVET), or 
Emerging Small Business (ESB) . This is needed in order to provide utilization statistics to the Legislative Council Bureau, and will be used only for such 
purpose.   
 

 Minority Owned Business Enterprise (MBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function and 
is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more minority persons of Black American, Hispanic American, Asian-Pacific American or Native 
American ethnicity. 

 Women Owned Business Enterprise (WBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function and 
is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more women. 

 Physically-Challenged Business Enterprise (PBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful 
function and is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more disabled individuals pursuant to the federal Americans with Disabilities Act. 

 Small Business Enterprise (SBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function, is not owned 
and controlled by individuals designated as minority, women, or physically-challenged, and where gross annual sales does not exceed $2,000,000. 

 Veteran Owned Business Enterprise (VET): An independent and continuing Nevada business for profit which performs a commercially useful 
function and is at least 51 percent owned and controlled by one or more U.S. Veterans. 

 Disabled Veteran Owned Business Enterprise (DVET):  A Nevada business at least 51 percent owned/controlled by a disabled veteran. 
 Emerging Small Business (ESB): Certified by the Nevada Governor's Office of Economic Development effective January, 2014. Approved into 

Nevada law during the 77th Legislative session as a result of AB294. 
 

Business Name (include d.b.a., if applicable)   
 

Corporate/Business Address, Business Telephone, Business Fax, and Email  Enter the street address, telephone and fax numbers, and email of the named 
business entity.   
 

Nevada Local Business Address, Local Business Telephone, Local Business Fax, and Email  If business entity is out-of-state, but operates the business from a 
location in Nevada, enter the Nevada street address, telephone and fax numbers, point of contact and email of the local office. Please note that the local address 
must be an address from which the business is operating from that location. Please do not include a P.O. Box number, unless required by the U.S. Postal Service, 
or a business license hanging address. 
 

Number of Clark County Nevada Residents employed by this firm. (Do not leave blank. If none or zero, put the number 0 in the space provided.) 
 

List of Owners/Officers  Include the full name, title and percentage of ownership of each person who has ownership or financial interest in the business entity.  If 
the business is a publicly-traded corporation or non-profit organization, list all Corporate Officers and Directors only.   
 

For All Contracts  (Not required for publicly-traded corporations) 
1) Indicate if any individual members, partners, owners or principals involved in the business entity are a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 

full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s).  If yes, the following paragraph applies. 
 
In accordance with NRS 281A.430.1, a public officer or employee shall not bid on or enter into a contract between a government agency and any 
private business in which he has a significant financial interest, except as provided for in subsections 2, 3, and 4. 
 

2) Indicate if any individual members, partners, owners or principals involved in the business entity have a second degree of consanguinity or affinity 
relation to a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s) (reference form on Page 2 for 
definition).  If YES, complete the Disclosure of Relationship Form.  

 

A professional service is defined as a business entity that offers business/financial consulting, legal, physician, architect, engineer or other professional services. 
 

Signature and Print Name  Requires signature of an authorized representative and the date signed. 
 

Disclosure of Relationship Form  If any individual members, partners, owners or principals of the business entity is presently a University Medical Center of 
Southern Nevada employee, public officer or official, or has a second degree of consanguinity or affinity relationship to a University Medical Center of Southern 
Nevada employee, public officer or official, this section must be completed in its entirety.   
 

Page 781 of 853



DISCLOSURE OF OWNERSHIP/PRINCIPALS

1 
REVISED 7/25/2014 

 

Business Entity Type (Please select one)

 Sole 
Proprietorship 

Partnership 
 Limited Liability 

Company  
 Corporation  Trust 

 Non-Profit   
Organization 

  Other 

Business Designation Group (Please select all that apply) 

 MBE  WBE  SBE  PBE  VET DVET  ESB 

Minority Business 
Enterprise 

Women-Owned 
Business 
Enterprise 

Small Business 
Enterprise 

Physically Challenged 
Business Enterprise 

Veteran Owned 
Business 

Disabled Veteran 
Owned Business 

Emerging Small 
Business 

 

Number of Clark County Nevada Residents Employed:  3 

  

Corporate/Business Entity Name:  Smiths Medical ASD, Inc. 

(Include d.b.a., if applicable)  

Street Address: 6000 Nathan Ln N Website:  http://www.icumed.com 

City, State and Zip Code: 

Plymouth, MN 55442 POC Name:  William Cloonan / Anne Putnoky 

Email: william.cloonan@icumed.com  

            anne.putnoky@icumed.com 

Telephone No: 763-383-3000Not Fax No: 

Nevada Local Street Address: 

(If different from above) 

 Website: 

 City, State and Zip Code:  Local Fax No: 

Local Telephone No: 
 Local POC Name: 

Email: 

All entities, with the exception of publicly-traded and non-profit organizations, must list the names of individuals holding more than five percent (5%) ownership or 
financial interest in the business entity appearing before the Board. 
 
Publicly-traded entities and non-profit organizations shall list all Corporate Officers and Directors in lieu of disclosing the names of individuals with 
ownership or financial interest. The disclosure requirement, as applied to land-use applications, extends to the applicant and the landowner(s). 

Entities include all business associations organized under or governed by Title 7 of the Nevada Revised Statutes, including but not limited to private corporations, 
close corporations, foreign corporations, limited liability companies, partnerships, limited partnerships, and professional corporations. 

 

  Full Name  Title  % Owned 
(Not required for Publicly Traded 

Corporations/Non-profit organizations) 

 

Not Required  Publicly Traded Company      

This section is not required for publicly-traded corporations.  Are you a publicly-traded corporation?             Yes       No 

1. Are any individual members, partners, owners or principals, involved in the business entity, a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time 
employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s)? 

  Yes   No (If yes, please note that University Medical Center of Southern Nevada employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s) may not 
perform any work on professional service contracts, or other contracts, which are not subject to competitive bid.) 

 

2. Do any individual members, partners, owners or principals have a spouse, registered domestic partner, child, parent, in-law or brother/sister, half-brother/half-
sister, grandchild, grandparent, related to a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s)? 

  Yes   No (If yes, please complete the Disclosure of Relationship form on Page 2.  If no, please print N/A on Page 2.)  

DISCLOSURE OF OWNERSHIP / PRINCIPALS 
I certify under penalty of perjury, that all of the information provided herein is current, complete, and accurate. I also understand that the University Medical Center of 
Southern Nevada Governing Board will not take action on land-use approvals, contract approvals, land sales, leases or exchanges without the completed disclosure 
form. 

 

   
 
Richard Nevin, on behalf of Smiths Medical ASD, Inc. 

 

Signature 
 

 Print Name  

VP - Contracting    

Title  Date  

Page 782 of 853



DISCLOSURE OF RELATIONSHIP

2 
REVISED 7/25/2014 

 

 
List any disclosures below: 
(Mark N/A, if not applicable.) 
 

NAME OF BUSINESS 
OWNER/PRINCIPAL 

NAME OF UMC* 
EMPLOYEE/OFFICIAL 

AND JOB TITLE 

RELATIONSHIP TO 
 UMC* 

EMPLOYEE/OFFICIAL 

UMC* 

DEPARTMENT 
 
N/A 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 
* UMC employee means an employee of University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 
 

 
 

follows: 
 

 Spouse  Registered Domestic Partners  Children  Parents  In-laws (first degree) 
 

 Brothers/Sisters  Half-Brothers/Half-Sisters  Grandchildren  Grandparents  In-laws (second degree) 
 
 

 
For UMC Use Only: 

 
If any Disclosure of Relationship is noted above, please complete the following:     
 

  Yes     No   Is the UMC employee(s) noted above involved in the contracting/selection process for this particular agenda item? 
 

  Yes     No   Is the UMC employee(s) noted above involved in any way with the business in performance of the contract? 
 
Notes/Comments: 
 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Signature  
 
____________________________________ 
Print Name  
Authorized Department Representative 

 
 

 

Page 783 of 853



Page 784 of 853



 Page 1 of 6 Version 08/2016 

 

Business Associate Agreement 

 This Business Associate Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made effective the _____ of 
____________, 2024 (the “Effective Date”), by and among University Medical Center of Southern 
Nevada (hereinafter referred to as “Covered Entity”), a county hospital duly organized pursuant to 
Chapter 450 of the Nevada Revised Statutes, with its principal place of business at 1800 West Charleston 
Boulevard, Las Vegas, Nevada, 89102, ICU Medical Sales, Inc., on behalf of itself and its affiliates and 
Smiths Medical ASD, Inc., hereinafter referred to collectively as “Business Associate”, (individually, a 
“Party” and collectively, the “Parties”).   

WITNESSETH: 

 WHEREAS, Sections 261 through 264 of the federal Health Insurance Portability and 
Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law 104-191, known as “the Administrative Simplification provisions,” 
direct the Department of Health and Human Services to develop standards to protect the security, 
confidentiality and integrity of health information; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the Administrative Simplification provisions, the Secretary of Health and 
Human Services issued regulations modifying 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164 (the “HIPAA Rules”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (Pub. L. 111-5), pursuant to 
Title XIII of Division A and Title IV of Division B, called the “Health Information Technology for Economic 
and Clinical Health” (“HITECH”) Act, as well as the Genetic Information Nondiscrimination Act of 2008 
(“GINA,” Pub. L. 110-233), provide for modifications to the HIPAA Rules; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Secretary, U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, published 
modifications to 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164 under HITECH and GINA, and other modifications on January 
25, 2013, the “Final Rule,” and 

 WHEREAS, on or about the date hereof, the Parties are entering into Transaction Documents (as 
defined in the Addendum dated on or about the date hereof) whereby Business Associate may provide 
certain services to Covered Entity (the “Services”), and, pursuant to one or more of such Transaction 
Documents, Business Associate may be considered a “Business Associate” of Covered Entity as defined 
in the HIPAA Rules (the Transaction Documents are referred to herein as the “Underlying Agreement”); 
and  

 WHEREAS, Business Associate may have access to Protected Health Information (as defined 
below) in fulfilling its responsibilities under the Underlying Agreement;  

 THEREFORE, in consideration of the Parties’ continuing obligations under the Underlying 
Agreement, compliance with the HIPAA Rules, and for other good and valuable consideration, the 
receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, and intending to be legally bound, the Parties 
agree to the provisions of this Agreement in order to address the requirements of the HIPAA Rules and 
to protect the interests of both Parties.   

I. DEFINITIONS 

“HIPAA Rules” means the Privacy, Security, Breach Notification, and Enforcement Rules at 45 CFR Part 
160 and Part 164. 

Page 785 of 853



 Page 2 of 6 Version 08/2016 

 

“Protected Health Information” is as defined by HIPAA Rules.  

“Electronic Protected Health Information” means Protected Health Information which is transmitted by 
Electronic Media (as defined in the HIPAA Rules) or maintained in Electronic Media.  “Protected Health 
Information” includes without limitation “Electronic Protected Health Information” as defined below. 

The following terms used in this Agreement shall have the same meaning as defined in the HIPAA Rules:  
Administrative Safeguards, Breach, Business Associate, Business Associate Agreement, Covered Entity, 
Individually Identifiable Health Information, Minimum Necessary, Physical Safeguards, Protected Health 
Information, Security Incident, and Technical Safeguards.  

 

Terms are defined by HIPAA rules.  

II. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS 

Business Associate and Covered Entity acknowledge and agree that in the event of an inconsistency 
between the provisions of this Agreement and mandatory provisions of the HIPAA Rules, the HIPAA 
Rules shall control.  Where provisions of this Agreement are different than those mandated in the HIPAA 
Rules, but are nonetheless permitted by the HIPAA Rules, the provisions of this Agreement shall control.     

Business Associate acknowledges and agrees that Protected Health Information that is disclosed or 
made available in any form (including paper, oral, audio recording or electronic media)  by Covered 
Entity to Business Associate or is created or received by Business Associate on Covered Entity’s behalf 
shall be subject to this Agreement.  

Business Associate has read, acknowledges, and agrees that the Secretary, U.S. Department of Health 
and Human Services, published modifications to 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164 under HITECH and GINA, and 
other modifications on January 25, 2013, the “Final Rule,” and the Final Rule significantly impacted and 
expanded Business Associates’ requirements to adhere to the HIPAA Rules.     

III. USE AND DISCLOSURE OF PROTECTED HEALTH INFORMATION 

(a) Business Associate agrees that all uses and disclosures of Protected Health information 
shall be subject to the limits set forth in 45 CFR 164.514 regarding Minimum Necessary 
requirements and limited data sets. 

(b) Business Associate agrees to use or disclose Protected Health Information solely: 

(i)  For meeting its business obligations as set forth in an Underlying Agreement 
between the Parties evidencing their business relationship;   

(ii)  as required by applicable law, rule or regulation,  or by accrediting or 
credentialing organization to whom Covered Entity is required to disclose such 
information or as otherwise permitted under this Agreement or the Underlying 
Agreement (if consistent with this Agreement and the HIPAA Rules); or 

(iii) for Business Associate’s proper management and administration; or 

(iv) as otherwise expressly permitted in writing by Covered Entity. 

Page 786 of 853



 Page 3 of 6 Version 08/2016 

 

(c) Where Business Associate is permitted to use Subcontractors that create, receive, 
maintain, or transmit Protected Health Information; Business Associate agrees to execute a 
“Business Associate Agreement” with Subcontractor as defined in the HIPAA Rules that includes 
the same covenants for using and disclosing, safeguarding, auditing, and otherwise 
administering Protected Health Information as outlined in 45 CFR 164.314). 

(d) Business Associate will acquire written authorization in the form of an update or 
amendment to this Agreement and Underlying Agreement prior to: 

(i)  Directly or indirectly receiving any remuneration for the sale or exchange of any 
Protected Health Information; or 

(ii)  Utilizing Protected Health Information for any activity that might be deemed 
“Marketing” under the HIPAA rules. 

IV. SAFEGUARDING PROTECTED HEALTH INFORMATION 

(a) Business Associate agrees: 

(i)  To implement appropriate safeguards and internal controls to prevent the use 
or disclosure of Protected Health Information other than as permitted in this Agreement 
or by the HIPAA Rules.   

(ii)  To implement “Administrative Safeguards,” “Physical Safeguards,” and 
“Technical Safeguards” as defined in the HIPAA Rules to protect and secure the 
confidentiality, integrity, and availability of Electronic Protected Health Information (45 
CFR 164.308, 164.310, 164.312).  Business Associate shall document policies and 
procedures for safeguarding Electronic Protected Health Information in accordance with 
45 CFR 164.316. 

(iii)  To notify Covered Entity of any attempted or successful Security Incident.  No 
report shall be required for unsuccessful attempts at unauthorized Access, Use, 
Disclosure, modification, or destruction of PHI or unsuccessful attempts at interference 
with systems operations in an information system as allowed by the HIPAA rules, which 
may include, but not limited to, pings and  other broadcast attacks on Business 
Associate’s firewall, port scans, unsuccessful log-on attempts, denials of service and any 
combination of the above with respect to Business Associate’s information systems. 

(b) When a Breach occurs, Business Associate agrees: 

 

((i)  To notify Covered Entity’s Chief Privacy Officer within 15 business days upon 
discovery of the Breach, and 

(ii) Within 15 business days of the discovery of the Breach, notify Covered Entity’s Chief Privacy 
Officer and provide Covered Entity with all required content of notification in accordance with 45 CFR 
164.410 and 45 CFR 164.404, and 

Page 787 of 853



 Page 4 of 6 Version 08/2016 

 

(ii)  To reasonably cooperate with Covered Entity’s analysis and determination on 
whether notification to affected individuals, media, or Secretary of the U.S. Department 
of Health and Human Services is legally required, and 

V. (iii)  To pay all costs associated with the notification of affected individuals and costs 
associated with mitigating potential harmful effects to affected individuals; provided, however, 
that the parties shall meet and confer prior to costs being incurred to determine which party is 
in best position to provide notification to affected individuals.RIGHT TO AUDIT 

(a) Business Associate agrees: 

(i)  To provide Covered Entity with timely and appropriate access to records, 
electronic records, HIPAA assessment questionnaires provided by Covered Entity, 
personnel, or facilities sufficient for Covered Entity to gain reasonable assurance that 
Business Associate is in compliance with the HIPAA Rules and the provisions of this 
Agreement solely to the extent required under an applicable HIPAA Rule or pursuant to 
a valid court order. 

(ii)  That in accordance with the HIPAA Rules, the Secretary of the U.S. Department 
of Health and Human Services has the right to review, audit, or investigate Business 
Associate’s records, electronic records, facilities, systems, and practices related to 
safeguarding, use, and disclosure of Protected Health Information to ensure Covered 
Entity’s or Business Associate’s compliance with the HIPAA Rules.   

VI. COVERED ENTITY REQUESTS AND ACCOUNTING FOR DISCLOSURES 

(a) At the Covered Entity’s written request, Business Associate agrees: 

(i)  To comply with any requests for restrictions on certain disclosures of Protected 
Health Information pursuant to Section 164.522 of the HIPAA Rules to which Covered 
Entity has agreed and of which Business Associate is notified by Covered Entity.   

(ii)  To make available Protected Health Information in a Designated Record Set to 
the extent and in the manner required by Section 164.524 of the HIPAA Rules.  If 
Business Associate maintains Protected Health Information in a Designated Record Set 
electronically, it agrees to make such Protected Health Information electronically 
available to the Covered Entity.   

(iii)  To make Protected Health Information in a Designated Record Set available for 
amendment and incorporate any amendments to such Protected Health Information in 
accordance with the requirements of Section 164.526 of the HIPAA Rules.   

(iv)  To account for such Disclosures of Protected Health Information and make an 
accounting of such Disclosures available to Covered Entity as required by Section 
164.528 of the HIPAA Rules.  Business Associate shall provide any accounting required 
within 30 business days of request from Covered Entity.   

VII. TERM AND TERMINATION 

This Agreement shall be effective as of the Effective Date and shall continue for the duration of the of 
the last Underlying Agreement. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, a Party 

Page 788 of 853



 Page 5 of 6 Version 08/2016 

 

shall have the right to terminate this Agreement and the Underlying Agreement immediately upon 
written notice if it determines that the other Party has violated the HIPAA Rules and such violation is not 
cured within thirty days of written notice of the violation provided that if the violation is not capable of 
cure, termination shall be immediate.  A Party will notify the other Party of a violation within thirty days 
of becoming aware of the violation. The Parties agree to work together in good faith to address any such 
alleged violations  At termination of this Agreement, the Underlying Agreement, or upon request of 
Covered Entity, whichever occurs first, if feasible, Business Associate will return or destroy all Protected 
Health Information received from or created or received by Business Associate on behalf of Covered 
Entity that Business Associate still maintains in any form, provide a written certification to Covered 
Entity that such Protected Health Information has been returned or destroyed, and retain no copies of 
such information, or if such return or destruction is not feasible, Business Associate will extend the 
protections of this Agreement to the Protected Health Information and limit further uses and disclosures 
to those purposes that make the return or destruction of the Protected Health Information not feasible. 

VIII. NOTICES 

Any notice required or permitted to be given hereunder shall be in writing and shall either be delivered 
personally to the party to whom such notice is given, or sent via United States Postal Service registered 
or certified mail, postage prepaid and return reeipt requested, addressed or delivered to such party at 
the address or addresses designated below (or such other address or addresses as may hereafter be 
designated by a party) by written notice to the other party: 

To Covered Entity: 
Attn: Legal Department 
University Medical Center of Southern Nevada  
1800 West Charleston Boulevard 
Las Vegas, NV 89102 

 
To Business Associates: 

ICU Medical Sales, Inc.  / Smiths Medical ASD, Inc. 
 951 Calle Amanecer 
 San Clemente, CA 92673 
 Attn:  General Counsel 
 With a copy by email to:  notice@icumed.com  
 

IX. MISCELLANEOUS 

Except as expressly stated herein or the HIPAA Rules, the Parties to this Agreement do not intend to 
create any rights in any third parties. The obligations of Business Associate under this Section shall 
survive the expiration, termination, or cancellation of this Agreement, the Underlying Agreement and/or 
the business relationship of the Parties, and shall continue to bind Business Associate, its agents, 
employees, contractors, successors, and assigns as set forth herein, but only to the extent Business 
Associates maintains any Protected Health Information on behalf of Covered Entity. 

This Agreement may be amended or modified only in a writing signed by the Parties.  No Party may 
assign its respective rights and obligations under this Agreement without the prior written consent of 
the other Party. None of the provisions of this Agreement are intended to create, nor will they be 
deemed to create any relationship between the Parties other than that of independent parties 
contracting with each other solely for the purposes of effecting the provisions of this Agreement and 

Page 789 of 853

mailto:notice@icumed.com


 Page 6 of 6 Version 08/2016 

 

any other agreements between the Parties evidencing their business relationship.  This Agreement will 
be governed by the laws of the State of Nevada.  No change, waiver or discharge of any liability or 
obligation hereunder on any one or more occasions shall be deemed a waiver of performance of any 
continuing or other obligation, or shall prohibit enforcement of any obligation, on any other occasion. 

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be 
invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of the provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and 
effect.  In addition, in the event a Party believes in good faith that any provision of this Agreement fails 
to comply with the HIPAA Rules, such Party shall notify the other Party in writing.  For a period of up to 
30 days, the Parties shall address in good faith such concern and amend the terms of this Agreement, if 
necessary to bring it into compliance.  If, after such 30-day period, the Agreement fails to comply with 
the HIPAA Rules, then either Party has the right to terminate upon written notice to the other Party. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the day and year written above. 

COVERED ENTITY: BUSINESS ASSOCIATE: 
 
 
By:___________________________                        By:___________________________ 
 
      Mason Van Houweling Name:________________________ 
 
Title: CEO Title:_________________________ 
 
Date:__________________________ Date:_________________________ 
 
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE: 
 
 
By:___________________________                         
 
Name:________________________ 
  
Title:_________________________ 
 
Date:__________________________  
 

Page 790 of 853



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
February 28, 2024 

 
 

 

Agenda Item #  

24 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD  

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Issue: Agreement with Waxie Sanitary Supply 
 

 
Back-up: 
      

 
Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer 

 
Clerk Ref. # 
      

 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Governing Board approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the 
Agreement with Waxie Sanitary Supply for Sanitation Materials and Equipment; or take 
action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
Fund Number: 5420.000       Fund Name:  UMC Operating Fund 
Fund Center: 3000846000      Funded Pgm/Grant: N/A 
Description:  Sanitation Materials and Equipment        
Bid/RFP/CBE: NRS 450.525 & 450.530 - GPO 
Term: 10/20/23 – 10/19/2028      
Amount: NTE $15,327,414.29       
Out Clause:  15 days for Convenience 
 

BACKGROUND: 
 
This request is to enter into a new Agreement with Waxie Sanitary Supply (“Waxie”) to provide UMC with  
janitorial and sanitation supplies to the UMC’s main hospital and various offsite clinics, as needed. Waxie will 
also provide onsite product and service consultations, demonstrations, job/task cleaning direction and training.   
UMC will compensate Waxie a NTE amount of $15,327,414.29 for a period of five (5) years, through October 
19, 2028. Either party may terminate this Agreement with a 15-day written notice to the other. 
 
The supplies are being purchased pursuant to UMC’s Agreement with HealthTrust Purchasing Group 
(“HPG”).  HPG is a Group Purchasing Organization of which UMC is a member.  This request is in 
compliance with NRS 450.525 and NRS 450.530; attached is the bid summary sheet and a sworn statement 
from an HPG executive verifying that the pricing was obtained through a competitive bid process. 
 
UMC’s Director of Environmental Services has reviewed and recommends approval of this Agreement.  This 
Agreement has been approved as to form by UMC’s Office of General Counsel. 
 
Waxie currently holds a Clark County business license. 
 
This Agreement was reviewed by the Governing Board Audit and Finance Committee at their February 21, 
2024 meeting and recommended for approval by the Governing Board. 
 

Page 791 of 853



Page 792 of 853



Page 793 of 853



Page 794 of 853



Page 795 of 853



Page 796 of 853



Page 797 of 853



Page 798 of 853



Page 799 of 853



Page 800 of 853



Page 801 of 853



Page 802 of 853



Page 803 of 853



Page 804 of 853



Page 805 of 853



Page 806 of 853



1100 Dr. Martin Luther King Blvd    I Nashville, TN 37203    I healthtrustpg.com 

 

 

H E A LT H T R U S T ------------------ 
 
 
 
 
 

January 2nd, 2024  

Melannie Bledsoe 
Contract Specialist 
University Medical Center of Southern Nevada  
1800 W. Charleston Blvd. 
Las Vegas, NV 89102 

 

Re: Request for competitive bidding information regarding Distribution – Environmental Services. 

 

Dear Ms. Bledsoe: 
 

This letter is provided in response to the University Medical Center of Southern Nevada's ("UMC") request 

for information about HealthTrust Purchasing Group, L.P.'s ("HealthTrust") competitive bidding process for 

Distribution – Environmental Services. We are pleased to provide this information to UMC in your capacity 

as a Participant of HealthTrust, as defined in and subject to the Participation Agreement between 

HealthTrust and UMC, effective August 3, 2016. 

 
HealthTrust's bid and award process is described in its Contracting Process Policy [HT.008] available on its 

public website {http://healthtrustpg.com/about-healthtrust/healthcare-code-of-ethics/).  As described in the 

policy, HealthTrust operates a member-driven contracting process. Advisory Boards are engaged to 

determine the clinical, technical, operational, conversion, business and other criteria important for each 

specific bid category. The boards are comprised of representatives from HealthTrust's membership who 

have appropriate experience, credentials/licensures, and decision-making authority within their respective 

health systems for the board on which they serve. 

 
HealthTrust's requirements for specific products and services are published on its Contract Schedule on its 

public website.  HealthTrust's requirements for vendors are outlined in its Supplier Criteria Policy [HT.010]. 

A listing of the minimum Supplier Criteria is also published on HealthTrust's public website, as well as an on-

line form for prospective vendor submission. 

 
The Contracting Process Policy includes criteria for the selection of contract products and services and 

documents and the procedures followed by HealthTrust's contracting team to select vendors for 

consideration. HealthTrust's Advisory Boards may provide additional requirements or other criteria that 

would be incorporated into the RFP (request for proposals) process, where appropriate. Vendor proposals 

submitted in response to RFPs are analyzed using an extensive clinical/technical review as described above, 

as well as a financial/operational review. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 807 of 853



1100 Dr. Martin Luther King Blvd    I Nashville, TN 37203    I healthtrustpg.com 

 

 

 

 

H E A LT H T R U ST 
  

 
The above-described process was followed with respect to the Distribution – Environmental Services 

category.  HealthTrust issued RFPs and received proposals from identified suppliers in the Distribution – 

Environmental Services category. A contract was executed with Staples Business and Network Services in October 

of 2023.  I hope this satisfies your request.  Please contact me with any additional questions. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Craig Dabbs 

Account Director, Member Services 

    

Page 808 of 853



REVISED 7/25/2014 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING THE  

DISCLOSURE OF OWNERSHIP/PRINCIPALS FORM 

Purpose of the Form 

 

The purpose of the Disclosure of Ownership/Principals Form is to gather ownership information pertaining to the business entity for use by the University Medical 

Center of Southern Nevada Governing Board (“GB”) in determining whether members of the GB should exclude themselves from voting on agenda items where 

they have, or may be perceived as having a conflict of interest, and to determine compliance with Nevada Revised Statute 281A.430, contracts in which a public 

officer or employee has interest is prohibited. 
 

General Instructions 
 

Completion and submission of this Form is a condition of approval or renewal of a contract or lease and/or release of monetary funding between the disclosing 

entity and University Medical Center of Southern Nevada.  Failure to submit the requested information may result in a refusal by the GB to enter into an 
agreement/contract and/or release monetary funding to such disclosing entity. 
 

Detailed Instructions 
 

All sections of the Disclosure of Ownership form must be completed.  If not applicable, write in N/A. 
 

Business Entity Type – Indicate if the entity is an Individual, Partnership, Limited Liability Company, Corporation, Trust, Non-profit Organization, or Other.  
When selecting ‘Other’, provide a description of the legal entity. 
 

Non-Profit Organization (NPO) - Any non-profit corporation, group, association, or corporation duly filed and registered as required by state law. 
 

Business Designation Group – Indicate if the entity is a Minority Owned Business Enterprise (MBE), Women-Owned Business Enterprise (WBE), Small 
Business Enterprise (SBE), Physically-Challenged Business Enterprise (PBE), Veteran Owned Business (VET),  Disabled Veteran Owned Business (DVET), or 

Emerging Small Business (ESB) . This is needed in order to provide utilization statistics to the Legislative Council Bureau, and will be used only for such 

purpose.   
 

 Minority Owned Business Enterprise (MBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function and 
is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more minority persons of Black American, Hispanic American, Asian-Pacific American or Native 

American ethnicity. 

 Women Owned Business Enterprise (WBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function and 
is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more women. 

 Physically-Challenged Business Enterprise (PBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful 
function and is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more disabled individuals pursuant to the federal Americans with Disabilities Act. 

 Small Business Enterprise (SBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function, is not owned 
and controlled by individuals designated as minority, women, or physically-challenged, and where gross annual sales does not exceed $2,000,000. 

 Veteran Owned Business Enterprise (VET): An independent and continuing Nevada business for profit which performs a commercially useful 
function and is at least 51 percent owned and controlled by one or more U.S. Veterans. 

 Disabled Veteran Owned Business Enterprise (DVET):  A Nevada business at least 51 percent owned/controlled by a disabled veteran. 

 Emerging Small Business (ESB): Certified by the Nevada Governor's Office of Economic Development effective January, 2014. Approved into 

Nevada law during the 77th Legislative session as a result of AB294. 
 

Business Name (include d.b.a., if applicable) – Enter the legal name of the business entity and enter the “Doing Business As” (d.b.a.) name, if applicable.   
 

Corporate/Business Address, Business Telephone, Business Fax, and Email – Enter the street address, telephone and fax numbers, and email of the named 

business entity.   
 

Nevada Local Business Address, Local Business Telephone, Local Business Fax, and Email – If business entity is out-of-state, but operates the business from a 

location in Nevada, enter the Nevada street address, telephone and fax numbers, point of contact and email of the local office. Please note that the local address 
must be an address from which the business is operating from that location. Please do not include a P.O. Box number, unless required by the U.S. Postal Service, 

or a business license hanging address. 
 

Number of Clark County Nevada Residents employed by this firm. (Do not leave blank. If none or zero, put the number 0 in the space provided.) 
 

List of Owners/Officers – Include the full name, title and percentage of ownership of each person who has ownership or financial interest in the business entity.  If 

the business is a publicly-traded corporation or non-profit organization, list all Corporate Officers and Directors only.   
 

For All Contracts – (Not required for publicly-traded corporations) 

1) Indicate if any individual members, partners, owners or principals involved in the business entity are a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 
full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s).  If yes, the following paragraph applies. 

 

In accordance with NRS 281A.430.1, a public officer or employee shall not bid on or enter into a contract between a government agency and any 
private business in which he has a significant financial interest, except as provided for in subsections 2, 3, and 4. 
 

2) Indicate if any individual members, partners, owners or principals involved in the business entity have a second degree of consanguinity or affinity 
relation to a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s) (reference form on Page 2 for 

definition).  If YES, complete the Disclosure of Relationship Form.  
 

A professional service is defined as a business entity that offers business/financial consulting, legal, physician, architect, engineer or other professional services. 
 

Signature and Print Name – Requires signature of an authorized representative and the date signed. 
 

Disclosure of Relationship Form – If any individual members, partners, owners or principals of the business entity is presently a University Medical Center of 

Southern Nevada employee, public officer or official, or has a second degree of consanguinity or affinity relationship to a University Medical Center of Southern 

Nevada employee, public officer or official, this section must be completed in its entirety.   
 

Page 809 of 853



DISCLOSURE OF OWNERSHIP/PRINCIPALS 

1 
REVISED 7/25/2014 

Business Entity Type (Please select one) 

 Sole 
Proprietorship 

Partnership 
 Limited 

Liability Company  
 Corporation  Trust 

 Non-Profit  
Organization 

 Other 

Business Designation Group (Please select all that apply) 

 MBE  WBE  SBE  PBE  VET DVET  ESB 

Minority Business 
Enterprise 

Women-Owned 
Business 
Enterprise 

Small Business 
Enterprise 

Physically Challenged 
Business Enterprise 

Veteran Owned 
Business 

Disabled Veteran 
Owned Business 

Emerging Small 
Business 

Number of Clark County Nevada Residents Employed: 

Corporate/Business Entity Name: 

(Include d.b.a., if applicable) 

Street Address: Website: 

City, State and Zip Code: 
POC Name: 

Email: 

Telephone No: Fax No: 

Nevada Local Street Address: 

(If different from above) 

Website: 

 City, State and Zip Code: Local Fax No: 

Local Telephone No: 
Local POC Name: 

Email: 

All entities, with the exception of publicly-traded and non-profit organizations, must list the names of individuals holding more than five percent (5%) ownership or 
financial interest in the business entity appearing before the Board. 

Publicly-traded entities and non-profit organizations shall list all Corporate Officers and Directors in lieu of disclosing the names of individuals with 
ownership or financial interest. The disclosure requirement, as applied to land-use applications, extends to the applicant and the landowner(s). 

Entities include all business associations organized under or governed by Title 7 of the Nevada Revised Statutes, including but not limited to private corporations, 

close corporations, foreign corporations, limited liability companies, partnerships, limited partnerships, and professional corporations. 

Full Name Title % Owned 
(Not required for Publicly Traded 

Corporations/Non-profit organizations) 

This section is not required for publicly-traded corporations.  Are you a publicly-traded corporation?    Yes    No 

1. Are any individual members, partners, owners or principals, involved in the business entity, a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time
employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s)?

  Yes   No (If yes, please note that University Medical Center of Southern Nevada employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s) may not 
perform any work on professional service contracts, or other contracts, which are not subject to competitive bid.) 

2. Do any individual members, partners, owners or principals have a spouse, registered domestic partner, child, parent, in-law or brother/sister, half-brother/half-
sister, grandchild, grandparent,  related to a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s)?

  Yes   No (If yes, please complete the Disclosure of Relationship form on Page 2.  If no, please print N/A on Page 2.) 

I certify under penalty of perjury, that all of the information provided herein is current, complete, and accurate. I also understand that the University Medical Center of 
Southern Nevada Governing Board will not take action on land-use approvals, contract approvals, land sales, leases or exchanges without the completed disclosure 
form. 

Signature Print Name 

Title Date 

36

WAXIE Enterprises, LLC

WAXIE Sanitary Supply

9353 Waxie Way waxie.com

San Diego, CA 92123 tjoyner@waxie.com

858-292-8111

Tracey Joyner

858-279-6311

277 Pilot Rd

Las Vegas, NV 98119 702-545-9599

702-263-0663

Tracey Joyner

tjoyner@waxie.com

Page 810 of 853



DISCLOSURE OF RELATIONSHIP 

2 
REVISED 7/25/2014 

 

 
List any disclosures below: 
(Mark N/A, if not applicable.) 

 

NAME OF BUSINESS 
OWNER/PRINCIPAL 

NAME OF UMC* 
EMPLOYEE/OFFICIAL 

AND JOB TITLE 

RELATIONSHIP TO 
 UMC* 

EMPLOYEE/OFFICIAL 

UMC* 
EMPLOYEE’S/OFFICIAL’S 

DEPARTMENT 

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 
* UMC employee means an employee of University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 
 
“Consanguinity” is a relationship by blood.  “Affinity” is a relationship by marriage. 
 
“To the second degree of consanguinity” applies to the candidate’s first and second degree of blood relatives as 
follows: 
 

 Spouse – Registered Domestic Partners – Children – Parents – In-laws (first degree) 
 

 Brothers/Sisters – Half-Brothers/Half-Sisters – Grandchildren – Grandparents – In-laws (second degree) 
 
 

 
For UMC Use Only: 

 
If any Disclosure of Relationship is noted above, please complete the following:     
 

  Yes     No   Is the UMC employee(s) noted above involved in the contracting/selection process for this particular agenda item? 
 

  Yes     No   Is the UMC employee(s) noted above involved in any way with the business in performance of the contract? 
 
Notes/Comments: 
 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Signature  
 
____________________________________ 
Print Name  
Authorized Department Representative 

 
 

 

Page 811 of 853



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
February 28, 2024 

 
 

 

Agenda Item #  

25 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Issue: Education –  Ethics Training 
 

 
Back-up: 
      

 
Petitioner: Mason VanHouweling, Chief Executive Officer  
 

 
Clerk Ref. # 
 

 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Governing Board receive Ethics training from Ross E. Armstrong Esq., 
Executive Director of Nevada Commission on Ethics; and take any action deemed 
appropriate. (For possible action)  

 
 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
None  
           

BACKGROUND: 
 

 
 The Governing Board will receive Ethics Training from Ross E. Armstrong, Esq. 
 

Page 812 of 853



ETHICS LAW BASICS 

BOARDS AND 
COMMISSIONS

Page 813 of 853



STAY ON THE PATH

“A public office is a public trust and shall be 
held for the sole benefit of the people”

NRS 281A.020

2

Page 814 of 853



STATUTORY AND REGULATORY AUTHORITY

 Chapter 281A Nevada Revised Statutes – Nevada Ethics Law
 Chapter 281A Nevada Administrative Code – Ethics Regulations

3

Page 815 of 853



THE NEVADA ETHICS COMMISSION

 8-member Commission

 No more than 4 members of the same party

 No more than 4 members from the same county

 At least 4 former public officers or employees

 At least 2 licensed attorneys

 No current public officers / prohibition on being actively involved in political party or campaign

4

Page 816 of 853



THREE MAJOR FUNCTIONS OF THE ETHICS COMMISSION

1. Education and Outreach about Nevada’s Ethics Law

2. Provide Advisory Opinions to public officers and employees about Nevada’s 
Ethics Law

3. Receive and process Complaints alleging violations of Nevada’s Ethics Law

5

Page 817 of 853



WHY AN ETHICS 
LAW?

6

 Watergate Scandal Triggered 
Enactment of Government 
Ethics Laws

 Federal Ethics in Government 
Act (1978)

 Nevada Ethics Law (1975)

Page 818 of 853



WHO IS COVERED IN THE JURISDICTION OF THE ETHICS 
COMMISSION?

Nevada Ethics Law Not Nevada Ethics Law

7

 Public Officers (position in Nevada Constitution, 
Nevada Law, local government charter or ordinance, or 
listed in NRS 281A.182)

 Public Employees

 Some cases – former public officers/employees

 Private individuals 

 Private business, companies, or organizations

 Public agencies as in “the agency violated the ethics 
law”

 Judges

 Federal Government Employees

 Volunteers

 Advisory Committees

Page 819 of 853



WHAT TYPES OF CONDUCT FALLS UNDER THE JURISDICTION OF 
THE ETHICS COMMISSION?

Nevada Ethics Law

 Conduct within the last two years

 Conduct that is expressly prohibited by a statute 
found in NRS Chapter 281A

Not Nevada Ethics Law

 Conduct older than two years

 Allegations of harassment or other activity covered 
by Equal Employment Opportunity Commission or 
Nevada Equal Rights Commission

 Other employment related grievances

 Local or other agency ethics rules that are not found 
in NRS Chapter 281A

8

Page 820 of 853



COMMITMENT IN A PRIVATE CAPACITY  - NRS 281A.065

9

Spouse / Domestic Partner Member of Household

Substantially SimilarSubstantial and Continuing 
Business Relationship

Employer

3rd Degree of 
Consanguinity / Affinity

Page 821 of 853



ETHICS 
CATEGORIES

10

 Improper Benefits

 Disclosure/Abstention

 Cooling Off

Page 822 of 853



THE CASE OF JO-JO BEAR

11

Page 823 of 853



IMPROPER BENEFIT –
GOVERNMENT RESOURCES

12

1. Use of government position

2. Benefit 

3. Benefit is for Self or to a Commitment in a Private 
Capacity or Result of Gift/Loan

Page 824 of 853



IMPROPER BENEFIT - GIFTS

13

Page 825 of 853



IMPROPER BENEFIT - GIFTS

 No gifts, services, favors, or engagements that “tend improperly to 
influence a reasonable person to depart from the faithful and impartial 
discharge of duties” NRS 281A.400(1)

 No salary or compensation from private source for performance of 
public duties NRS 281.400(4)

14

Different than financial disclosure 
requirements administered by the 
Secretary of State 

Page 826 of 853



IMPROPER BENEFIT – GOVERNMENT 
RESOURCES

15

 Economic opportunity using public position (NRS 281A.400(1))

 Unwarranted privileges, preferences, exemptions or advantages using 
position (NRS 281A.400(2))

 Negotiating a contract with self or for others with current agency (NRS 
281A.400(3))

 Benefit to self or other using influence over a subordinate (NRS 
281A.400(9))

 Honorarium for speaking (NRS 281A.510)

 Contract with government agencies prohibition (NRS 281A.430)

Page 827 of 853



IMPROPER BENEFIT – GOVERNMENT RESOURCES

 Use of government time, property, equipment, or 
other facility to benefit a significant personal or 
pecuniary interest. NRS 281A.400(7)

16

Page 828 of 853



IMPROPER BENEFIT – USE OF INFORMATION 

 Use of non-public information to benefit self 
or others  (NRS 281A.400(5))

 Suppression of government report to benefit 
self or others (NRS 281A.400(6))

17
Page 829 of 853



DISCLOSURE & ABSTENTION

“Government ought to be outside and not inside…Everybody knows that 
corruption thrives in secret places, and avoids public places, and we believe 

it a fair presumption that secrecy means impropriety”

President Woodrow Wilson

18

Page 830 of 853



DISCLOSURE & 
ABSTENTION

19

Before approving, voting, or acting 
on a matter when

 Gift or loan accepted

 Significant pecuniary interest

 Reasonably affected by 
commitment in private capacity

 Former lobbying

NRS 281A.420

Page 831 of 853



QUALITY DISCLOSURE

 “Sufficient to inform the public of the potential effect of the action or abstention 
upon the person or interest”

AND

 “Made at the time the matter is considered”

20

Page 832 of 853



DISCLOSURE & ABSTENTION

 A Public Officer shall not vote upon or advocate for the passage or 
failure of a matter

 Independence of judgment of a reasonable person affected by 

 own pecuniary interest, 

 commitment in a private capacity, 

 gift or loan

21

Page 833 of 853



DISCLOSURE & ABSTENTION

Presumption in NRS 281A.420

 Favors participation

 Abstention required in clear cases where the public 
officer’s situation is materially affected

 Presumed permissible if no greater benefit/detriment 
to officer than to anyone else affected by the matter

22

Case by Case Basis

Item by Item Basis

Page 834 of 853



DISCLOSURE & ABSTENTION

Test Cases

 Licensing Board member

 Friend from high school is before the board for 
disciplinary action

 Commission that sets fees

 Uncle is someone who pays the fee, commission 
considering raising the fee

 Board Member employed by Company A

 Company A is applying to the board for a decision on 
expanded service

23

Page 835 of 853



COOLING 
OFF

24
Page 836 of 853



COOLING OFF

25

 One-year cooling off period to 
seek or accept employment

 Regulated business/industry 
(State Only)

 Vendors of the agency

 Counseling or lobbying the 
agency

NRS 281.410 and .550

Relief can be granted

Page 837 of 853



WHAT ACTION CAN THE ETHICS COMMISSION TAKE IN RESPONSE 
TO A VIOLATION

Nevada Ethics Law

 Monetary penalties

 Stipulated agreements to require education, practice 
changes, or mandate public apologies

 Issue Letter of Instruction or Caution

 Admonish or reprimands

 Refer to other appropriate authorities

 Petition for removal of the public officer

Not Nevada Ethics Law

 File an injunction to prevent a public officer from 
taking an action 

 Any criminal sanctions or remedies including 
sentencing a person to jail or prison

26

Page 838 of 853



4 TIPS FOR COMPLIANCE

1. Maintain a list of individuals or entities to which you have a “commitment in a private capacity”

2. Review any agendas where you have action items beforehand to identify potential conflicts of interest

3. Consult with legal counsel who can search prior opinions

4. Request an advisory opinion

27

Page 839 of 853



CONTACT INFO

Ross Armstrong, rarmstrong@ethics.nv.gov

Commission on Ethics, ncoe@ethics.nv.gov

Phone: 775-687-5469

Website: ethics.nv.gov 

X: @ethics_nevada

LinkedIn: Nevada Commission on Ethics 

Special thanks to Susan Willeke of the Ohio Ethics 
Commission for media clips

28
Page 840 of 853

mailto:rarmstrong@ethics.nv.gov
mailto:ncoe@ethics.nv.gov


UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

Issue: Report from the Governing Board Clinical Quality and 
Professional Affairs Committee 

 
Back-up: 

Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer 
 

Clerk Ref. # 

Recommendation: 

That the Governing Board receive a report from the Governing Board Clinical 
Quality and Professional Affairs Committee; and take any action deemed 
appropriate. (For possible action) 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None 

BACKGROUND: 

The Governing Board will receive a report on the February Governing Board 
Clinical Quality and Professional Affairs Committee meeting. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   Cleared for Agenda 
February 28, 2024 

 
Agenda Item # 

26 
Page 841 of 853



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

Issue: Report from the Governing Board Human Resources and 
Executive Compensation Committee 

 
Back-up: 

Petitioner: Mason VanHouweling, Chief Executive Officer 
 

Clerk Ref. # 

Recommendation: 

That the Governing Board receive a report from the Governing Board Human 
Resources and Executive Compensation Committee; and take any action 
deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None 

BACKGROUND: 

The Governing Board will receive a report on the special meeting held on February 26, 2024 of 
the Governing Board Human Resources and Executive Compensation Committee meeting. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
 February 28, 2024 

 
Agenda Item # 

27 
Page 842 of 853



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
February 28, 2024 

 
 

Agenda Item #  

28 
 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Issue: Report from Governing Board Audit and Finance Committee  
 

 
Back-up: 
      
  

 
Petitioner: Mason VanHouweling, Chief Executive Officer  
  

 
Clerk Ref. # 
 
  

 
Recommendation: 
 

That the Governing Board receive a report from the Governing Board Audit and Finance 
Committee; and take any action deemed appropriate.  (For possible action)  
  

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
None    
           

BACKGROUND: 
 

The Governing Board will receive a report on the February 21, 2024 Governing Board Audit and 
Finance Committee meeting. 

Page 843 of 853



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
February 28, 2024 

 
 

 

Agenda Item #  

29 
 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD 

AGENDA ITEM 
  

 
Issue: Monthly Financial Report for January FY24 Update 
  

 
Back-up: 
      
  

 
Petitioner: Mason VanHouweling, Chief Executive Officer  
  

 
Clerk Ref. # 
 

 
Recommendation: 
  

That the Governing Board receive an update on the monthly financial report for January 
FY24; and take any action deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 
  

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
None 
           

BACKGROUND: 
 

The Governing Board will receive an update on January FY24 financial reports from Jennifer 
Wakem, Chief Financial Officer of University Medical Center of Southern Nevada. 

Page 844 of 853



GB Meeting

January 2024
Financials

Page 845 of 853



KEY INDICATORS – JAN

2

Current Month Actual Budget Variance % Var Prior Year Variance % Var
APDs 18,919 21,323 (2,404) (11.27%) 20,213 (1,293) (6.40%)

Total Admissions 1,838 2,133 (295) (13.83%) 1,999 (161) (8.05%)

Observation Cases 822 804 18 2.24% 804 18 2.24%

AADC (Hospital) 584 652 (68) (10.43%) 624 (40) (6.43%)

ALOS (Admits) 6.85 6.71 0.14 2.07% 7.12 (0.27) (3.79%)
ALOS (Obs) 1.42 0.97 0.46 47.41% 0.97 0.46 47.41%
Hospital CMI 1.84 1.79 0.05 2.80% 1.79 0.06 2.80%

Medicare CMI 2.05 1.89 0.16 8.47% 1.89 - 8.47%

IP Surgery Cases 768 841 (73) (8.73%) 742 26 3.50%

OP Surgery Cases 604 429 175 40.87% 376 228 60.64%

Transplants 11 16 (5) (31.25%) 16 (5) (31.25%)

Total ER Visits 9,035 9,270 (235) (2.54%) 8,991 44 0.49%

ED to Admission 12.02% - - - 11.36% 0.66% -

ED to Observation 11.28% - - - 11.10% 0.18% -

ED to Adm/Obs 23.30% - - - 22.46% 0.84% -

Quick Cares 20,703 19,462 1,241 6.38% 18,744 1,960 10.45%

Primary Care 7,476 9,248 (1,772) (19.16%) 6,842 634 9.27%

UMC Telehealth - QC 718 559 159 28.40% 526 192 36.50%

OP Ortho Clinic 2,032 2,557 (525) (20.52%) 1431 601 42.00%

Deliveries 120 138 (18) (13.28%) 137 (17) (12.41%)
Page 846 of 853



SUMMARY INCOME STATEMENT – JAN

3

REVENUE Actual Budget Variance % Variance 

  Total Operating Revenue $89,846,140 $81,688,979 $8,157,161 9.99%

Net Patient Revenue as a % of Gross 20.87% 18.04% 2.83% -

EXPENSE Actual Budget Variance % Variance 

  Total Operating Expense $81,291,733 $79,479,726 ($1,812,007) (2.28%)

INCOME FROM OPS Actual Budget Variance % Variance 

Total Inc from Ops $8,554,407 $2,209,253 $6,345,154 287.21%

Add back: Depr & Amort. $4,382,415 $3,233,915 ($1,148,500) (35.51%)

Tot Inc from Ops plus Depr & Amort. $12,936,822 $5,443,168 $7,493,654 137.67%

Operating Margin (w/Depr & Amort.) 14.40% 6.66% 7.74% -

Page 847 of 853



SUMMARY INCOME STATEMENT – YTD JAN

4

REVENUE Actual Budget Variance % Variance 

  Total Operating Revenue $557,901,497 $571,573,846 ($13,672,349) (2.39%)

Net Patient Revenue as a % of Gross 19.06% 17.65% 1.41% -

EXPENSE Actual Budget Variance % Variance 

  Total Operating Expense $548,160,269 $560,662,672 $12,502,403 2.23%

INCOME FROM OPS Actual Budget Variance % Variance 

Total Inc from Ops $9,741,228 $10,911,174 ($1,169,946) (10.72%)

Add back: Depr & Amort. $27,439,096 $23,591,492 ($3,847,604) (16.31%)

Tot Inc from Ops plus Depr & Amort. $37,180,323 $34,502,666 $2,677,658 7.76%

Operating Margin (w/Depr & Amort.) 6.66% 6.04% 0.63%

Page 848 of 853



SALARY & BENEFIT EXPENSE – JAN

5

Actual Budget Variance % Variance 

  Salaries $32,020,582 $31,715,489 ($305,093) (0.96%)

  Benefits $14,933,987 $15,402,214 $468,227 3.04%

  Overtime  $1,091,127 $1,742,655 $651,528 37.39%

  Contract Labor $2,066,758 $957,385 ($1,109,373) (115.88%)

  TOTAL  $50,112,453 $49,817,743 ($294,710) (0.59%)

Page 849 of 853



EXPENSES – JAN

6

Actual Budget Variance % Variance 

   Professional Fees $2,713,606 $3,067,903 $354,296 11.55%

   Supplies $14,325,318 $13,949,268 ($376,050) (2.70%)

   Purchased Services $7,460,492 $6,388,086 ($1,072,406) (16.79%)

   Depreciation $2,569,738 $2,364,147 ($205,591) (8.70%)

   Amortization $1,812,677 $869,768 ($942,909) (108.41%)

   Repairs & Maintenance $503,920 $1,007,662 $503,742 49.99%

   Utilities $590,093 $595,163 $5,070 0.85%

   Other Expenses $1,067,098 $1,177,858 $110,760 9.40%

   Rental $136,338 $242,127 $105,790 43.69%

   Total Other Expenses $31,179,280 $29,661,983 ($1,517,297) (5.12%)

Page 850 of 853



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

Issue: Kirk Kerkorian School of Medicine Dean’s Update 
 

Back-up: 

Petitioner: Mason VanHouweling, Chief Executive Officer 
 

Clerk Ref. # 

Recommendation: 

That the Governing Board receive an update on the Kirk Kerkorian School of 
Medicine at UNLV; and take any action deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None 

BACKGROUND: 

The Governing Board will receive an update from Dr. Marc Kahn, Dean of the Kirk Kerkorian 
School of Medicine at UNLV. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   Cleared for Agenda 
    February 28, 2024 

 
 

Agenda Item # 

30 
Page 851 of 853



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

Issue: CEO Update 
 

Back-up: 

Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer 
 

Clerk Ref. # 

Recommendation: 

That the Governing Board receive an update from the Hospital CEO; and take any action 
deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None 

BACKGROUND: 

The Governing Board will receive an update from Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer, 
University Medical Center of Southern Nevada. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
February 28, 2024 

Agenda Item # 

31 

Page 852 of 853



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
February 28, 2024 

 
 

Agenda Item #  

32 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Issue: Emerging Issues 
  

 
Back-up: 
      
  

 
Petitioner: Mason VanHouweling, Chief Executive Officer  
  

 
Clerk Ref. # 
 
  

 
Recommendation: 
  

That the Governing Board identifies emerging issues to be addressed by staff or by the 
Board at future meetings; and direct staff accordingly. (For possible action)  
  

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
None    
           

BACKGROUND: 
 

None.  

Page 853 of 853


	Cover Page
	AGENDA
	Governing Board - Agenda 2024.2.28 (final).pdf

	SECTION 1.   OPENING CEREMONIES
	CALL TO ORDER
	1.   Public Comment
	2.   Approval of Minutes
	Governing Board -DRAFT -Minutes January 31, 2024.pdf

	3.   Approval of Agenda

	SECTION 2: CONSENT ITEMS
	4. Credentialing
	Agenda Item - Credentialing.pdf
	Credentialing.pdf

	5. Policy and Procedures
	Agenda Item - Policies and Procedures.pdf
	a. Policy List December 2023.pdf
	b. Policy List January 2024.pdf

	6. Contract Evaluations
	Agenda Item - Contract Evaluations.pdf
	Tracking Contract Evaluations - 2022 with 2023 Evals.pdf

	7. Medical and Dental Staff Bylaws
	Agenda Item - Bylaws.pdf
	a. Summary of Bylaws Changes.pdf
	b.Medical and Dental Staff Bylaws.pdf

	8. CEO Employment Agreement
	Agenda Item - CEO Employment Agreement.pdf
	Fifth Amendment.FINAL.pdf

	9. Remote Work Policy
	Agenda Item - Remote Work Policy.pdf
	Remote Work_DRAFT_Jan 2024.pdf

	10. Disciplinary Hearing Process
	Agenda Item - Disciplinary Hearing Process.pdf
	HR Procedure Disciplinary Hearing Process.pdf

	11. HR Policies and Procedures
	Agenda Item - HR Policies and Procedures.pdf
	a. HR Policy Employee Leave Program.pdf
	b. HR Policy Payroll and Salary Reduction Policy for Non-Union Exem...pdf
	c. HR Procedure - Payroll and Salary Reduction for Non-Union Exempt E...pdf
	d. HR Policy Performance Review Program.pdf
	e. HR Procedure Performance Evaluation Program.pdf
	f. HR Policy Position Classification & Compensation Plans.pdf

	12. Essential Associates Holdings, LLC
	Agenda Item - Essential Associates Holdings.pdf
	a. Amendment 1 PSA.pdf
	b. Disclosure of Ownership.pdf

	13. Comprehensive Background Checks
	Agenda Item - RFP 2023-03 Comprehensive Backgreound Checks.pdf
	a.  Service Agreement.pdf
	b. Disclosure of Ownership.pdf

	14. FMLA Services
	Agenda Item - RFP 2023-08 FMLA Adminstrative Service.pdf
	a. 2023-08_FMLA_Administrative_Services_-_signed.pdf
	b. Disclosure of Ownership.pdf

	15. Southern Highlands Expansion Bid
	Agenda Item - Bid 2023 -15, UMC Southern Highlands.pdf
	a. ITB 2023-15 Southern Highlands-Notification of Intent to Award).pdf
	b. ITB 2023-15 UMC Southern Highlands PC_QC Expansion  Agreement.pdf
	c. Disclosure of Ownership.pdf

	16.EV&A Architects
	Agenda Item - EV&A.pdf
	a. Master Services Agreement.pdf
	b. Disclosure of Ownership.pdf

	17. Getinge USA Sales, LLC
	Agenda Item - Getinge.pdf
	a. Quote-Redacted.pdf
	b. Disclosure of Ownership.pdf

	18. Optimum Healthcare Solutions, LLC
	Agenda Item - Optimum Healthcare.pdf
	a. Optimum Agreement.pdf
	b. Disclosure of Ownership Form.pdf

	19. Pediatric Critical Care Associates
	Agenda Item - Las Vegas Pediatric.pdf
	a. Physician Prof Svcs_Pediatric Critical Care Assoc.pdf
	b. Disclosure of Ownership.pdf

	20. Emergency Repair
	Agenda Item - CWF - Emergency Repair.pdf
	CWF - Chilled Water Line Emergency Repair.pdf

	21. Stericycle, Inc.
	Agenda Item - Stericycle.pdf
	a. Agreement__Redacted.pdf
	b. Sourcing Letter.pdf
	c. Disclosure of Ownership.pdf

	22. T Evans RNFA, LLC
	Agenda Item - T Evans.pdf
	a. Service Agreement.pdf
	b. Disclosure of Ownership.pdf

	23. ICU Medical Sales, Inc.
	Agenda Item - ICU Medical.pdf
	a.  Addendum (9026)_Redacted.pdf
	b. Ordering Document #1 (Placed Equipment for Plum 360(TM) ) _Redacted.pdf
	c. Ordering Document #2 (Purchase Summary of CADD  Medfusion(TM)_Redacted.pdf
	d. CJT Placed Equipment Agreement _Redacted.pdf
	e. CJT Purchaser Agreement_Redacted.pdf
	f. #1351 - HPG Statement of Work -Exhibit L _Redacted.pdf
	g. #1351 Customer Letter to Update Installed Base.pdf
	h. #1119 - HPG Information Security Exhibit _Redacted.pdf
	i. IV Catheters Blood Collection Sourcing Letter - Feb 2024.pdf
	j. IV Infusion Sourcing Letter - Jan 2024.pdf
	k. ICU Medical Sales - Sourcing Letter.pdf
	l. Disclosure of Ownership - ICU MEDICAL.pdf
	m. Disclosure of Ownership - SMITHS MEDICAL 2024-01-12.pdf
	n. Business Associate Agreement.pdf

	24. Waxie
	Agenda Item - Waxie.pdf
	a. Service Agreement - Redacted - Partially Executed.pdf
	b. Sourcing Letter.pdf
	c. Disclosure of Ownership.pdf


	SECTION 3:  BUSINESS ITEMS
	25. Education - Ethics Training
	Agenda Item - Ethics Training.pdf
	Boards and Commissions Ethics Presentation.pdf

	26. Clinical Quality Committee Update
	Agenda Item - Clinical Quality and Professional Affairs Compensation.pdf

	27. HR Committee Update
	Agenda Item - HR Committee Report.pdf

	28. Audit and Finance Committee Update
	Agenda Item - Audit and Finance.pdf

	29. January FY24 Financial Report
	Agenda Item - Financial Report.pdf
	Financial Report - FY24 Jan 2024.pdf

	30. Kirk Kerkorian School of Medicine Update
	Agenda Item - KKSOM UNLV Update.pdf

	31. CEO Update
	Agenda Item - CEO Update.pdf


	SECTION 4: EMERGING ISSUES
	32. Emerging Issues
	Agenda Item - Emerging Issues.pdf



		2024-02-06T08:34:10+0000
	PandaDoc
	Digitally signed PDF downloaded from www.pandadoc.com


		2024-02-14T12:53:11-0800
	Digitally verifiable PDF exported from www.docusign.com


		2024-01-02T10:00:57-0800
	Digitally verifiable PDF exported from www.docusign.com


		2024-02-15T06:26:45-0800
	Digitally verifiable PDF exported from www.docusign.com


	Business Entity Type Please select one: 
	Sole: Off
	undefined: Off
	Partnership: Off
	Corporation: Off
	Trust: Off
	undefined_2: Off
	NonProfit Organization: 
	Other: 
	Business Designation Group Please select all that apply: 
	MBE: 
	undefined_3: Off
	WBE: 
	undefined_4: Off
	SBE: 
	undefined_5: Off
	PBE: 
	undefined_6: Off
	VET: 
	undefined_7: Off
	DVET: 
	undefined_8: Off
	ESB: 
	undefined_9: Off
	Number of Clark County Nevada Residents Employed 36Row1: 
	Number of Clark County Nevada Residents Employed 36Row1_2: 
	WAXIE Enterprises LLC: 
	WAXIE Sanitary Supply: 
	Street Address: 
	9353 Waxie Way: 
	Website waxiecom: 
	San Diego CA 92123: 
	POC Name Email tjoynerwaxiecom Tracey Joyner: 
	Telephone No: 
	8582928111: 
	Fax No 8582796311: 
	277 Pilot Rd: 
	Website: 
	Las Vegas NV 98119: 
	Local Fax No 7025459599: 
	Local Telephone No: 
	7022630663: 
	Local POC Name Email Tracey Joyner tjoynerwaxiecom: 
	1: 
	2: 
	3: 
	4: 
	1_2: 
	2_2: 
	3_2: 
	CorporationsNonprofit organizations 1: 
	CorporationsNonprofit organizations 2: 
	CorporationsNonprofit organizations 3: 
	This section is not required for publiclytraded corporations Are you a publiclytraded corporation: Off
	employees or appointedelected officials: Off
	sister grandchild grandparent related to a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada fulltime employees or appointedelected officials: Off
	Print Name: Eric Frei
	Title: 
	Date: 
	Check Box2: Yes
	Check Box3: Off
	Check Box4: Yes
	Check Box5: Off
	NAME OF BUSINESS OWNERPRINCIPALRow1: 
	NAME OF UMC EMPLOYEEOFFICIAL AND JOB TITLERow1: 
	RELATIONSHIP TO UMC EMPLOYEEOFFICIALRow1: 
	UMC EMPLOYEESOFFICIALS DEPARTMENTRow1: 
	NAME OF BUSINESS OWNERPRINCIPALRow2: 
	NAME OF UMC EMPLOYEEOFFICIAL AND JOB TITLERow2: 
	RELATIONSHIP TO UMC EMPLOYEEOFFICIALRow2: 
	UMC EMPLOYEESOFFICIALS DEPARTMENTRow2: 
	NAME OF BUSINESS OWNERPRINCIPALRow3: 
	NAME OF UMC EMPLOYEEOFFICIAL AND JOB TITLERow3: 
	RELATIONSHIP TO UMC EMPLOYEEOFFICIALRow3: 
	UMC EMPLOYEESOFFICIALS DEPARTMENTRow3: 
	NAME OF BUSINESS OWNERPRINCIPALRow4: 
	NAME OF UMC EMPLOYEEOFFICIAL AND JOB TITLERow4: 
	RELATIONSHIP TO UMC EMPLOYEEOFFICIALRow4: 
	UMC EMPLOYEESOFFICIALS DEPARTMENTRow4: 
	NAME OF BUSINESS OWNERPRINCIPALRow5: 
	NAME OF UMC EMPLOYEEOFFICIAL AND JOB TITLERow5: 
	RELATIONSHIP TO UMC EMPLOYEEOFFICIALRow5: 
	UMC EMPLOYEESOFFICIALS DEPARTMENTRow5: 
	NAME OF BUSINESS OWNERPRINCIPALRow6: 
	NAME OF UMC EMPLOYEEOFFICIAL AND JOB TITLERow6: 
	RELATIONSHIP TO UMC EMPLOYEEOFFICIALRow6: 
	UMC EMPLOYEESOFFICIALS DEPARTMENTRow6: 
	NAME OF BUSINESS OWNERPRINCIPALRow7: 
	NAME OF UMC EMPLOYEEOFFICIAL AND JOB TITLERow7: 
	RELATIONSHIP TO UMC EMPLOYEEOFFICIALRow7: 
	UMC EMPLOYEESOFFICIALS DEPARTMENTRow7: 
	NAME OF BUSINESS OWNERPRINCIPALRow8: 
	NAME OF UMC EMPLOYEEOFFICIAL AND JOB TITLERow8: 
	RELATIONSHIP TO UMC EMPLOYEEOFFICIALRow8: 
	UMC EMPLOYEESOFFICIALS DEPARTMENTRow8: 
	NAME OF BUSINESS OWNERPRINCIPALRow9: 
	NAME OF UMC EMPLOYEEOFFICIAL AND JOB TITLERow9: 
	RELATIONSHIP TO UMC EMPLOYEEOFFICIALRow9: 
	UMC EMPLOYEESOFFICIALS DEPARTMENTRow9: 
	undefined_10: 
	If any Disclosure of Relationship is noted above please complete the following: Off
	Is the UMC employees noted above involved in the contractingselection process for this particular agenda item: Off
	Print Name_2: 


